
COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, July 8, 2020 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID: 956 848 001 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://zoom.us/j/956848001  Meeting ID:  956 848 001 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Rollcall 



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 8, 2020, Agenda 
Page 2 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – June Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza  information 

6.5 Human Resources – Serena Morrow  information 

6.6 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 
6.6.1 SELPA – June Meeting 

6.7 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the June 9, 2020, Public Hearing 

8.2 Approve Minutes of the June 10, 2020, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 
   



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 8, 2020, Agenda 
Page 3 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Certifying a Candidate for Supervisors of  action 
  Attendance for her LEA 

12.0 CLOSED SESSION 
12.1 Existing Litigation 

(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) – One Case 
Name of case: Colusa County Office of Education vs. Swank Construction, et. al 

13.0 OPEN SESSION 
13.1 Report Action Taken in Closed Session 

14.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
14.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

14.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  action 
August 12, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

15.0 ADJOURNMENT 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 

6.2 

 

July 2020 Administrative Services Report 
 
 

For the Administrative Services departmental report, I’d like to highlight the extraordinary 

efforts made by our staff to keep things running smoothly during the COVID‐19 pandemic, 

which has made business as usual anything but. 

 

The Business team (Sheryl Parker, Karen Moriconi, Angelina Guizar, Alondra Morales) have all 

made sure that the fiscal piece of CCOE continues to run without any hitches.  The team has 

worked remotely and in person throughout the lockdown, providing financial services to all 

departments including but not limited to: budgeting and accounting services, creating purchase 

orders, paying vendors, securing and depositing revenues, reconciling accounts, providing items 

for our external auditors, fiscal reporting to the state, working with our county treasurer, and 

reviewing district budgets. 

 

The Payroll team (Lisa Knight, Crystal Frazier) ensures that everyone who is supposed to get 

paid does so correctly and in a timely manner.  Payroll processes approximately 250 payments 

per month for CCOE staff, and more than 1,100 payments per month for all of our districts.  

Additionally, the team has multiple reporting deadlines including quarterly reports and monthly 

retirement reporting for STRS and PERS. 

 

The Facilities team (Jared Robinett, Emilio Swift, Heather Sumner, Maira Martinez, Olivia 

Maldonado, Paul Rivera, Sherry Hall, Victor Silvas) works tirelessly to make sure everyone has a 

safe and clean work environment.  The team has performed a stellar job by deep cleaning 

offices and classrooms, doing daily cleaning and sanitation tasks, and repairing our facilities to 

make sure they are in good working order for years to come. 

 

The Food Services team (Angela Fulcher, Rosa Estrada, Olga Mendoza, Sandayha Sharma, Maria 

Madrigal, Ramona Contreras, Mary Ortiz, Eva Jacoba, Elvira Martinez, Laura Estrada, Griselda 

Fernandez de Salcedo, Martina Jiron, Margarita Espindola) made sure that the children of CCOE 

and Colusa County had access to daily meals throughout this crisis.  Showing up every morning, 

staff prepared and served hundreds of breakfasts and lunches to children who might not have 

had access to nutritious meals otherwise.  The team continues its work throughout the summer 

months, providing nourishment at a time when schools are out, and all with a friendly smile and 

words of encouragement. 

 



The Human Resources team (Serena Morrow, Rachel Webb, Elizabeth Segura, Brenda Ramirez, 

Diana Chavez) has been educating employees on return to work and illness prevention 

protocols, including public health guidance relating to employee rights, wellness, and safety.  

The team has also been a valuable source of information for employees on their options should 

they need to request time off work related to COVID‐19.  Additionally, Human Resources has 

been making preparations for the coming fiscal year by auditing reports to ensure that 

employment and payroll information is up to date and accurate. 

 

The Innovative Approaches to Literacy (IAL) team (Karisa Williams, Jennifer Jelavich, Stefani 

Silvas Santana, Alissa Maas) continued to promote improved literacy and reading skills to the 

children of Colusa County throughout the shutdown.  The team staged multiple book giveaway 

events in conjunction with our own Food Services distributions, as well as at other off‐campus 

sites.  The team also successfully completed their first federal reporting update. 

 

—Aaron Heinz 

    Associate Superintendent, Administrative Services 



  6.3 

CCOE - Children’s Services                                           

Vicki Markss, Director           

Report for CCOE Board of Education 

Month:  June 2020 

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 California Early Math Initiative Professional Development, Coaching, and Community of 

Practice Coaching Components. 
 Resource & Referral Network, CAPPA. 
 Parent Policy Council meeting. 
 National & Regional 9 Head Start Association, California Head Start Association 
 Monthly meetings with Office of Head Start Program Specialist. 
 Cabinet Meetings. 
  Created flyers, sanitation and maintaining safety classroom procedures, trained staff. 
 Completed surveys and webinars on COVID-19 with Federal and State funded programs. 
 Attended Trauma Informed Care; an overview for early childhood educators.  This is a 

three-part virtual training by Julie Kurtz, Founder and CEO of the Center for Optimal 
Brain Integration.  The training will relate to trauma, resilience, and social-emotional 
resilience.   

Grant Opportunities:   

 Applied for CDE CCTR (0-3 years) State Expansion Grant.  Waiting for response. 
 Head Start Quality Improvement funding. 
 Head Start Supplement –COVID-19 one-time funding for prevention and preparation. 
 Head Start Summer School Program. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 

School Readiness: 

 All full-day full-year sites are open or in the process. 
 Practicing health and safety measures often. 
 Engaging families and providing parenting and learning concepts through Learning Genie 

Family Engagement App. 
 Footsteps2Brilliance and Clever Kids University programs. 
 Summer meal program. 
 Completed enrollments for Fall programs. 

 



  6.3 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Collaboration with Elementary schools regarding transitioning children to Kindergarten.  
 CCOE Website. 
 Resource & Referral distribution of COVID prevention health and safety materials to 

licensed facilities and childcare providers throughout the county. 

 

 

 



Educational Services Board Report 

July 2020 

 

 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 

 The S. William Abel Community School has officially become the S. William Abel Academy.   

 Student, Angel Guevara received a new laptop for earning the most credits during the Distance Learning Period 

that started March 17th and ended on May 22, 2020.   The computer was donated by the Literacy Project.  Thanks 

Jennifer Jelavich for the donation! 

 Students at the S. William Abel Academy will be transitioning to a hybrid schedule next year.  They will be 

attending school three days/week and participating in Distance Learning the other two days. 

 Graduation on June 10th was a success with students and parents enjoying the commencement ceremony. 

 

Colusa County Adult School 

 The Colusa County Adult School has two more graduates this month!  Other students working on their credits 

towards their diploma will resume next fall, September 8th, 2020. 

 The Adult Education Program received notification of being awarded the WIOA II Grant.  This grant which has a 

funding cycle of three years will be used to pay for Teacher salaries and curriculum material. 

 

Farm to School 

 Families and groups are busily working in their community gardens at the Education Village. 

 

Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 

 Zoom meetings took place on 6/3 and 6/12 to provide information on the upcoming Universal Design for 

Learning online training webinars for county office and district personnel, reviewing plans to reopen schools, and 

discussing the challenges facing reopening.  Follow up meetings (Huddles) took place specific to an area of need 

identified by the consortia:  equity, English learners, and curriculum & instruction.  

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 

 Educational Services met with Williams Upper Elementary administration to assist in building a CSI plan that 

will be aligned to the one year 2020-21 LCAP and the School Plan for Student Achievement.  

 

Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

 Educational Services continues to provide DA to eligible LEAs as well as offering support to the two new 

superintendents.   

 

Health Education Framework 

 The Health Ed. Committee met on 6/24 to update the existing plan due to the changes that took place due to 

COVID-19.  The consortia will meet in early September to plan out the upcoming school year’s training.   

 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

 CDE is eliminating the projected one-year LCAP for 2020-21 and replacing it with a Learning Continuity and 

Attendance Plan, which ironically has the same initials as the Local Control Accountability Plan.   This sounds 

like a COVID-19 Operational Written Report 2.0 except more robust.   Our tri-county PLN, Colusa, Yolo, and 

Yuba COES will be providing a training once the template is released.  

 The Plan must be adopted by September 30, 2020, subject to specified consultation and public noticing 

requirements.  

 The State Superintendent, in consultation with the State Board of Education's executive director, shall adopt a 

template plan no later than August 1, 2020.  



 The Local Control and Accountability Plan is no longer required for 2020-21, but LEAs must still adopt their 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents by December 15, 2020.  

 The Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan shall articulate all of the following: 

 How COVID-19 impacts students and staff in the areas of health and safety, measuring student 

participation and academic progress through synchronous instruction, measuring the time value of 

student work, and the metrics to be used to measure learning loss 

 How LEAs will address learning loss from COVID-19 in the 2019-20 and 2020-21school years 

 How LEAs will conduct outreach to students and parents/guardians when students are not engaging 

or are absent 

 Types of additional supports to address the learning loss of, and accelerate learning progress for, 

English learners, foster youth, homeless students, and low-income students 

 Types of professional development support and resources for educators 

 How LEAs will provide student meals for in-person instruction and distance learning for the school 

year 

 How LEAs will align state and federal funding, including supplemental and concentration grants to 

align with student needs 

 Finally, LEAs will be required to articulate how state and federal funds included in their adopted or revised 

budgets will be used to support the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plans, including how supplemental and 

concentration grants, along with federal funds used to backfill losses from reductions to the LCFF on a dollar-

for dollar basis, will be used to meet LCFF proportionality requirements. 

 

North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 

 Planning will take place next month for the 2020-21 school year. 

 

School Improvement Grant (SIG) 

 No report due to school closed for the summer.  

 

System of Support Expanded Learning Program (After School Programs) (SSELP) 

 Zoom meetings took place 6/3 to update the Colusa County afterschool programs on the most recent changes to 

the funding, revision of current plans, and student registrations for the 2020-21 school year.  

PREVENTION SERVICES 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 

 Behavioral Health is requesting post assessment student data; however, student post assessments did not take 

place due to shelter in place and limited turnaround time to deliver the data.   

 

Foster Youth.  

 Grants are being reviewed to determine which grants will be ending at the end of the 19-20 fiscal year and which 

will have to be renewed.  

 Invoices/ requisitions are being reviewed in order to have all the budgets balanced by the end of the 19-20 fiscal 

year.   

 Our AmeriCorps- Foster Youth Mentor has been providing aid to the Nutritional Services Staff by assisting 

during the preparation/distribution of meals for the counties youth.   

 

Homeless/McKinney-Vento 

 Data is currently being gathered, in order to submit EOY reports, which are due by July 31, 2020. 

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE 

 The 2020-21 California Technical Assistance Tobacco Grant has opened and is currently being worked on. The 

grant provides funding for technical assistance to be provided to any public school within Colusa County that 

includes: Tobacco Free School policy, Tobacco-Use Prevention Education and Instruction, Staff Professional 

Development, Family and Community Engagement, Interagency Partnerships, and Cessation Support and 

Referrals.  



 

 The TUPE program has been meeting with Colusa County Partners for Health to support their efforts in including 

smoke-free multi-unit housing language into the county building and planning policy. The language has been 

approved by the Planning and Building commission and will be going to vote Tuesday, June 30th by the Board of 

Supervisors. This is exciting for the school districts because students that are exposed to smoke are roughly two 

times more likely to miss school due to asthma, ear infections, bronchitis, and other illness related to smoking, 

than children who live in smoke free homes.  

 



  6.7 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report July 8, 2020 

 

We are still in the process of negotiating a deal for LTE spectrum from T-Mobile for the 
EduNet.  We are working through new policies from the T-Mobile/Sprint merger to 
obtain our spectrum.  Williams Unified School District has agreed to be the Colusa 
County EduNet test pilot site.  We are working with the City of Williams to place 
equipment on the Williams water tower. We have received and have started 
programming the equipment for the EduNet test pilot.  We are working with our installer 
to build a plan of action to install the equipment.   
 
At the Superintendents Council meeting, Alex presented information about the USDA  
Distance Learning and Telemedicine grant for the EduNet for each district.  It did not 
seem that any of the districts were interested in pursuing the grant on this cycle due to 
its deadline in July.  Alex will follow up for next years options. 
 
We are preparing all fiscal year end quotes for July renewals on support contracts, 
licenses, and services from all vendors. 
 
We migrated from our Ruckus ZoneDirector to our Ruckus Smartzone wireless 
controller and setup all CCOE wireless access points to work on the new unit.   
 
Alex replaced 16 switches at Williams Unified School District that were purchased with 
Erate funding.   
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Public Hearing – June 9, 2020 

 
 

Board Members Present:  Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, and Brenda Miller 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Alex Evans, Aaron Heinz, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee 

Niesen, Sheryl Parker, and Michael West 
 

President Ed Conrado called the Public Hearing on the Colusa County Office of Education 
(CCOE) 2020‐21 Budget, including Education Protection Account, to order at 4:00 p.m., in the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Discussion was held on waiting until the June 10, 2020, Board meeting for Aaron Heinz to make 
his budget presentation to the entire Board. 
 
No public was present to comment on or ask questions about CCOE’s proposed 2020‐21 
Budget, including Education Protection Account, and the Public Hearing closed at 4:03 p.m. 
 
Adopted and Entered 
 
 
   
Michael P. West, County Superintendent and Secretary, 
Colusa County Board of Education 

8.1 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting June 10, 2020 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry 
Morrell 

 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Aaron Heinz, Jennifer Jelavich Vicki 

Markss, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Sheryl Parker, Chuck 
Wayman, and Michael West 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Ed Conrado called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, Colusa, 
Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and made the following 
announcements: 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Rollcall 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Graduation Ceremonies at the Education Village –  information 

Wildland Fire Academy, Sunday, June 7, 2020, 4:00 PM 
Colusa County Adult School, Tuesday, June 9, 2020, 6:00 PM 
S. William Abel Community School, Wednesday, June 10, 2020, 6:00 PM 
Lorilee Niesen thanked Ed Conrado for his attendance in the Adult Education graduation 
ceremony, and she reported on all of the graduation ceremonies. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input, neither in person, on Zoom, nor via text. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West provided a countywide COVID ‐19 update (seven positive cases with 
all recovered, no persons currently under investigation, 415 Negative Tests, and 
no deaths).  Michael reported on many Zoom meetings on topics such as health 
and safety, planning and protocols of reopening schools in August, and on the 

8.2 



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 10, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

budget impact (a possible 10% reduction).  He announced that all COE’s 
throughout the state would be distribution points for a 60‐days’ supply of PPEs 
provided by the State OES.  At CCOE, the PPEs will be stored in the Village 
multipurpose room.  Michael also reported that CCOE and the school districts 
received many documents from the CDC, SCOE, CASBO, CCSESA, CDE, and the 
State of Georgia, which offer guidelines and protocols regarding school openings 
that if all were followed, would make the delivery of education very difficult.  
Discussion was held on the determining factor being whether parents believe it is 
safe to send their children back to school, and Michael said that current statistics 
indicate that 85‐95% parents want their children back in school.  Michael said that 
district superintendents are communicating closely as issues arise, saying we will 
see distance learning, blended learning, and face to face instruction at differing 
levels throughout the County and the State, and that evaluations will take place 
weekly regarding levels of safety, monitoring of students and staff, overall activity, 
and protocols.  He said that Colusa County Department of Health has been 
supportive of the schools’ in this process.  Michael reported that safety is a 
concern for all area schools, and he spoke about safety protocols at the Village, 
including video surveillance, securing all exterior gates and doors, contracting a 
short‐term security guard, installation of an RFID monitoring system for staff, and 
exploring facial recognition software and real time monitoring of individuals via 
thermal scan.  Discussion was held on developing protocols for schools when the 
first child ends up with COVID 19, and Michael said that Colusa County DHHS has 
been advising schools for the event of a child coming to school ill or becoming sick 
at school.  Discussion was also held on social distancing and split schedules, the 
problematic internet access in the southern part of the county, sports and 
playground activities, and pushing out school start dates, which Michael said 
surveys indicate parents do not want. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council –May Meetings 
Michael West reported that he met with the district Superintendents several 
times in May and discussed distance learning exploration, safety protocols 
updates, proactive meetings about school reopening, and estimated percentages 
of attendance (85%‐95%).  Also discussed were concerns about academic testing 
protocols, attendance tracking, instructional minutes, required days of 
attendance, allowance for flexibility, and the budget (SB 808 vs. the Governor’s 
proposed budget).  Michael said that Chuck Wayman also updated the group on 
Special Education’s distance learning in the fall.  Discussion was also held on 
teaching young children to read via online reading programs, and books 
distributed during meal delivery. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz presented his May 2020 Business Services report to the Board including 
departmental updates on Facilities, Food Services, IAL Grant, Business Services, and 
Human Resources. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 10, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Vicki Markss’ May 2020 
Children’s Services written report.  Vicki added to her report saying that Children’s 
Services opened some full day programs (WCC and ACC), and others will open soon.  She 
said that some parents are apprehensive about sending their children to the centers, so 
staff have been making extra efforts to explain safety protocols to parents.  Vicki reported 
that the programs are not at full capacity, and that by the end of month all CCOE’s 
preschools will be up and running. 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza’s May 
2020 Educational Services written report.  Maria added to her report by announcing 
Educational Services relocated their offices to Building A at the Village. 

6.5 Human Resources – Serena Morrow 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Serena Morrow’s May 2020 
Human Resources written report. 

6.6 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman reported on waiting for districts to determine their fall instructional 
delivery before Special Education can develop a course of action, and he announced that 
Special Education’s ESY is currently online. 

6.6.1 SELPA ‐ May Meeting 
Chuck Wayman reported that SELPA Council is currently in negotiations over the 
budget, but he was confident that it would be passed next week.  Discussion was 
held on staffing, and Chuck said that all positions are filled. 

6.7 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Alex Evans presented his May 2020 Technology Services report to the Board.  Discussion 
was held on USDA grants, and Alex said that CCOE is considering submitting an 
application for the Distance Learning and Telemedicine grant that, if awarded, would 
recover significant costs for LTE equipment.  Alex provided a presentation on the EduNet 
WUSD Test Pilot to provide student Wi‐Fi access in students’ homes.  In his report, Alex 
identified the locations of students without internet access, infrastructure and antenna 
placements, LTE routers that convert to Wi‐Fi for students, and community partnerships.  
Alex said that his intention is to distribute the LTE routers to students during the district’s 
Chromebook distribution event.  Discussion was held on the next district to access the 
EduNet, which has not yet been identified, on lack of access in the south part of the 
county, on WUSD being up and running by the start of the new school year, and the 
timeline for next steps.  Michael spoke enthusiastically about Alex’s work with the 
project, and encouraged Board members to ask their constituents to communicate their 
internet needs to districts. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 10, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
Jason McMullan asked if the Board meeting could be live next month, and Michael said that it 
would be held in person and via Zoom.  Jason suggested using a better microphone. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion 
or action.  Brenda Miller/Moved, Jason McMullan/Seconded and the motion carried by three 
ayes (Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Barry Morrell) and zero noes to approve the following 
Consent Agenda items: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the May 13, 2020, Regular Board Meeting 
8.2 Approve Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input, neither in person, on Zoom, nor via text. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that Dr. Pimentel is considering temporarily closing both the 
Colusa and Woodland campuses in the fall, and holding classes via Zoom.  He said that the 
EMT Class is still moving forward with ongoing discussions about whether weeknights or 
weekend delivery of education will occur, a hopeful fall start date, and aligning the class 
with the Wildland Fire Academy.  Discussion was held on keeping WCC committed to the 
facility closure being only temporary, and Michael said he would discuss it with Dr. 
Houston. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael reported on security and health and safety measures that are being taken at the 
village, and he said that a Special Board meeting would be held at the Village to 
demonstrate the new systems to the Board.  Michael also reported on litigation activities. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that once it is reinstated, the LCAP will be a one‐year 
document, and that the three‐year document is on hold by statute.  Maria said she 
intends to work with new superintendents at MUSD and CUSD to develop those districts’ 
LCAPs. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Michael West announced that Jennifer Jelavich would leave the IAL Grant program to 
become CCOE’s full time Communications and Public Relations Director.  Alissa Maas, 
formerly the Colusa County Library Literacy Coordinator, will take her place.  Jennifer 
reported on book distributions, and on literacy kits that were given to businesses and 
distributed during meal distributions.  She announced that a second grade student at 
Burchfield Elementary School wrote an award‐winning book using F2B. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 10, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 2020‐21 Colusa County Office of Education Budget (Including Education Protection 

Account) 
Aaron Heinz presented the 2020‐21 CCOE Budget (including the Education Protection 
Account).  He then went on to provide a summary of the Superintendent’s letter; the 
general fund (form 01), which shows that in 2020‐21 CCOE will have deficit spending, but 
will leave the year with a healthy reserve; the multi‐year projections, which also predict 
deficit spending with a healthy reserve for the subsequent two years; the unknown 
factors (State budget, tax revenues, national economic recovery); CCOE’s plan to reduce 
spending for object codes 4000 and 5000 (books and supplies and services, and other 
operating expenditures) and to examine salaries and benefits; and the role of CCOE’s 
currently healthy reserves (34‐35%) in buying CCOE time.  Discussion was held on cuts 
already made to object codes 4000 and 5000; CalSTRS and CalPERS employer costs, which 
Aaron said may go down based upon the State Budget; the State’s budget deadline of July 
1; CCOE upcoming bargaining unit negotiations in early July; hiring freezes and attrition; 
the stock market; increases in COVID 19 in the fall; and no expected salary and benefit 
increases. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried by three ayes 
(Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan) and zero noes to approve the 2020‐
21 Colusa County Office of Education Budget (Including Education Protection Account). 

11.2 Approve Board Resolution No. 19/20‐07 Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and 
the Colusa County Board of Education Regarding the 2020‐21 Education Protection 
Account 
Aaron Heinz explained that Education Protection Account (EPA) funds can only be used on 
instruction.  Discussion was held on and whether funds can be expected to be stable, 
which Aaron said the EPA was not currently being affected by the 10% budget cut; and 
where the fund can be located in the budget, and Aaron said that it is found on the 
restricted side. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried by three ayes 
(Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan) and zero noes to approve Board 
Resolution No. 19/20‐07 Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa County 
Board of Education Regarding the 2020‐21 Education Protection Account. 

11.3 Adopt the 2020 COVID 19 Operations Written Report 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that the 2020 COVID 19 Operations Written Report 
replaced annual update, and addresses the impact on serving students during school 
closures due to COVID 19. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried by three ayes (Lynn 
Bowen Burnham, Jason McMullan, Barry Morrell) and zero noes to adopt the 2020 COVID 
19 Operations Written Report. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 10, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

11.4 Approve CSBA Dues 
Discussion was held on the ELA membership, continuing memberships from last year, the 
value of the memberships, and on the Board’s history with the memberships. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Jason McMullan/Seconded, and the motion carried by three ayes 
(Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller) and zero noes to approve paying CSBA 
and CCBE membership dues, but not ELA membership. 

11.5 Annual Salary Review ‐ County Superintendent – Board Discussion 
Michael West presented his letter to the Board, in which he requested that the discussion 
of the Superintendent’s salary be put off until late 2020, due to State budget delays. 

11.6 AB 1234 Ethics Training 
Michael West reported that AB 1234 Ethics Training is not mandatory for school board 
members, but if they would like to take the biennial training, CBOE members should do so 
in a fiscal year beginning with an odd‐numbered year (e.g., 2019‐20). 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

None. 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
July 8 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:46 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Ed Conrado, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education 



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

 
AB  Assembly Bill 

ACC  Arbuckle Children's Center 

CASBO  California Association of School Business Officials 

CBOE  Colusa County Board of Education 

CCBE  California County Boards of Education 

CCEE  California Collaborative for Educational Excellence 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

CDC  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

CDE  California Department of Education 

COE  County Office of Education 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 

CSBA  California School Boards Association 

CUSD  Colusa Unified School District 

DHHS  Colusa County Department of Health & Human Services 

ELA  Education Legal Alliance 

EMT  Emergency Medical Technician 

EPA  Education Protection Account 

ESY  Extended School Year 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

IAL  Innovative Approach to Literacy 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LTE  Long Term Evolution 

MUSD  Maxwell Unified School District 

OES  Office of Emergency Services 

RFID  Radio‐Frequency Identification  

SCOE  Sacramento County Office of Education 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

USDA  United States Department of Agriculture 

WCC  Williams Children's Center 

WCC  Woodland Community College 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

 



Event Title Start Date Attend First Name Last Name Position Category Position/Title District

Supervisors of Attendance Certification Training 6/5/2020 100% Staci DeWit Administrator (District) Principal Maxwell Unified School District

Supervisors of Attendance Certification Training

Event Date 09/09/2019

Time 12:00 pm ‐ 3:00 pm



State of California 

EDUCATION CODE 

Section  48240 

48240. (a)  The governing board of each school district and each county 
superintendent of schools shall appoint a supervisor of attendance and any assistant 
supervisors of attendance as may be necessary to supervise the attendance of pupils 
in the school district or county. The governing board of the school district or county 
superintendent of schools shall prescribe the duties of the supervisor of attendance 
and assistant supervisors of attendance to include, among other duties that may be 
required, those specific duties related to compulsory full-time education, truancy, 
work permits, compulsory continuation education, and opportunity schools, classes, 
and programs, now required of the attendance supervisors by this chapter and Article 
4 (commencing with Section 48450) of Chapter 3 and Article 2 (commencing with 
Section 48640) of Chapter 4. 

(b)  It is the intent of the Legislature that in performing his or her duties, the 
supervisor of attendance promote a culture of attendance and establish a system to 
accurately track pupil attendance in order to achieve all of the following: 

(1)  Raise the awareness of school personnel, parents, guardians, caregivers, 
community partners, and local businesses of the effects of chronic absenteeism and 
truancy and other challenges associated with poor attendance. 

(2)  Identify and respond to grade level or pupil subgroup patterns of chronic 
absenteeism or truancy. 

(3)  Identify and address factors contributing to chronic absenteeism and habitual 
truancy, including suspension and expulsion. 

(4)  Ensure that pupils with attendance problems are identified as early as possible 
to provide applicable support services and interventions. 

(5)  Evaluate the effectiveness of strategies implemented to reduce chronic 
absenteeism rates and truancy rates. 

(c)  When a pupil with a temporary disability, as defined in Section 48206.3, is 
receiving individual instruction in the home or a hospital or other residential health 
facility, the supervisor of attendance shall ensure that absences from the pupil’s regular 
school program are excused until the pupil is able to return to the regular school 
program. 

(d)  The supervisor of attendance may provide support services and interventions, 
which may include, but are not limited to, any or all of the following: 

(1)  A conference between school personnel, the pupil’s parent or guardian, and 
the pupil. 



(2)  Promoting cocurricular and extracurricular activities that increase pupil 
connectedness to school, such as tutoring, mentoring, the arts, service learning, or 
athletics. 

(3)  Recognizing pupils who achieve excellent attendance or demonstrate significant 
improvement in attendance. 

(4)  Referral to a school nurse, school counselor, school psychologist, school social 
worker, and other pupil support personnel for case management and counseling. 

(5)  Collaboration with child welfare services, law enforcement, courts, public 
health care agencies, or government agencies, or medical, mental health, and oral 
health care providers to receive necessary services. 

(6)  Collaborating with school study teams, guidance teams, school attendance 
review teams, or other intervention-related teams to assess the attendance or behavior 
problem in partnership with the pupil and his or her parents, guardians, or caregivers. 

(7)  In schools with significantly higher rates of chronic absenteeism, identify 
barriers to attendance that may require schoolwide strategies rather than case 
management. 

(8)  Referral for a comprehensive psychosocial or psychoeducational assessment, 
including for purposes of creating an individualized education program for an 
individual with exceptional needs, as that term is defined in Section 56026, or plan 
adopted for a qualified handicapped person, as that term is defined in regulations 
promulgated by the United States Department of Education pursuant to Section 504 
of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sec. 794). 

(9)  Referral to a school attendance review board established by the county or by 
a school district pursuant to Section 48321 or to the probation department pursuant 
to Section 48263. 

(10)  Referral to a truancy mediation program operated by the county’s district 
attorney or probation officer pursuant to Section 48260.6. 

(Amended by Stats. 2018, Ch. 167, Sec. 7.  (AB 2109)  Effective January 1, 2019.) 



State of California

EDUCATION CODE

Section  48241

48241. In any city or city and county no supervisor of attendance or assistant
supervisors of attendance shall be appointed, unless he has been lawfully certificated
for the work by the county board of education.

(Enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010.)



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 
   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, August 12, 2020 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID: 956 848 001 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/956848001  Meeting ID:  956 848 001 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Rollcall 



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 12, 2020, Agenda 
Page 2 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Letter from CCBE Region 4 County Delegate Representative  information 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – July Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the July 8, 2020, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 45 Day Revised Budget and Multi Year Projections  action 

11.2 Approve SELPA Local Plan  action 



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 12, 2020, Agenda 
Page 3 

11.3 Approve the Consolidated Application  action 

11.4 Approve Technical Services Inventory for Disposal  action 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  action 
September 9, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



Board of Education

Susan Goto 

Area 1 

Suzanne Jones 

Area 1

Robert Tomasini 

Area 1 

Kelli Gnile 

Area 2 

David Patterson, Ed.D. 

Area 3 

Lynn Oliver 

Area 4 

E. Ken Tokutomi

Area 4 

Superintendent's Cabinet 
Phillip J. Williams 

Deputy Superintendent 

Educational Services 

Martin Fregoso 

Associate Superintendent 

Business Services 

Catherine M. Goins 

Assistant Superintendent 

Early Childhood Education 

Jennifer Hicks 

Assistant Superintendent 

Curriculum & Instruction 

Colleen Slattery, Ed.D. 

Assistant Superintendent 

Human Resources 

Michelle Eklund 

Chief Communications Officer 

Superintendent's Office 

James L. Anderberg 

Chief Operations Officer 

Administrative Services 

Troy Tickle 

Executive Director 

SELPA 

Gayle Garbolino-Mojica
County Superintendent of Schools 

Placer County Office of Education 360 Nevada Street, Auburn, CA 95603

 P 530.889.8020  • F 866.840.2941 • www.placercoe.org 

  An Equal Opportunity Employer· Printed on recycled paper 



1 | P a g e   J u l y  2 ,  2 0 2 0  
  

 
 

Budget Deal Reached; Issues Remain. Gov. Gavin Newsom and the Legislature struck 

a budget deal that preserves K–12 funding in the short term and relies heavily on 

deferrals to help the state close its $54 billion shortfall.  You can read more about the 

2020-21 state budget here. Also, you will find a link to our state budget webinar here 

and a letter from Assembly Member Phil Ting providing clarifying language on SB 98, a 

budget trailer bill addressing Local Education Agencies (LEAs) ability to offer distance 

learning in the 2020-21 school year.  

 

CSBA Releases School Reopening Guidance & Webinar.  In early June, we released 

The Uncertain Road Ahead: Reopening Schools in the Time of COVID-19 report, and a 

webinar examining the report, the state budget, and recent guidance from CDE and 

CDPH. 

 

Potential CSBA work on “Continuity” Plan required in State budget. CSBA’s Member 

Services will be assisting school and county boards comply with the new requirement 

of preparing a Learning Continuity Attendance Plan (Learning Plan) by September 30, 

2020.  The plan will be developed thru a process similar to the LCAP, which will not be 

completed in 2020-21.  The new Learning Plan will include how districts and COE’s will 

measure student participation and progress, address learning loss, and support and 

monitor student and employee mental health, social and emotional well-being.  In 

addition, our Governmental Relations staff will be engaging the CDE as they develop 

the new template for the plan. The CDE is required to complete the plan by August 1. 

 

State Releases School Reopening Recommendations. State education officials released 

recommendations for reopening more than 10,000 public schools this fall. The CDE’s 

“Stronger Together” guidance include a number of drastic changes that will need to be 

made at school sites in order for students to practice social distancing. Most notably, 

hybrid class schedules will mean a mix of classroom and online learning. You can find 

additional information and resources on the CDE Coronavirus Response webpage.   

 

http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001cQj62g_EeJYzRkrCtWESKuTJ1YqAWD0_UGEgxnMqmK-0k8k1AYJGhJorkeKNT3d9_dxne0CHVyCp9ys5KfhpGNBrpZovJZ1vQFMraCTZmFnXTknzMzZzMKga1Qf4p5n3dNTvDVPSu9jjJfY6vWZ3tmXSHd7HyEDiW0SahRTCDYMxbpU-33-P97BSuNqxcu1-XvEQjzoGIsvsSHzfaZEG8kn7ouOgpPpinOSvYfCiYAI=&c=NECMEaDgu6oVBBK-qdEPFQVmyedcFc0fQirMT6vgmA-H-uYcRxg9wA==&ch=O2FJLlpOLre6YZJ-RkbeVU0Qiim_qFw7PaAN0slgQ_10xWL-8bad6Q==
http://link.csba.org/c/6/?T=ODU0ODMyMzk%3AMDItYjIwMTc2LTAwYjM2Mjk4MDkzZTRkOGE4MzQwZGUyZjUzNDlhZDhm%3AZGRlbHV6QGNzYmEub3Jn%3AY29udGFjdC02YTYwNTVkY2VhZTRlNDExODBlMjAwNTA1NmIwMmEwOS1kMTgyOGYyMzQ2NDE0YTUzODcxMGViZDc4M2UzNDRiOA%3AZmFsc2U%3ANA%3A%3AaHR0cDovL2xpbmsuY3NiYS5vcmcvbS8xLzg1NDgzMjM5LzAyLWIyMDE3NS0xYTRhOWY4YzkyZTU0Y2M2OGQ0YTgzNzYxNzE5MmMyNy82LzIvYTQ0ZDU3MGUtOWU3MS00YzliLWJmMTUtN2M5MDc3NTE0Y2Y4P19jbGRlZT1aR1JsYkhWNlFHTnpZbUV1YjNKbiZyZWNpcGllbnRpZD1jb250YWN0LTZhNjA1NWRjZWFlNGU0MTE4MGUyMDA1MDU2YjAyYTA5LWQxODI4ZjIzNDY0MTRhNTM4NzEwZWJkNzgzZTM0NGI4JmVzaWQ9NGI2ZDA3ODgtOGJiNS1lYTExLTgxMjktMDA1MDU2YjAyYTA5&K=2TpQ0bAVvXkrL5ejdy8a5Q
https://youtu.be/naotuGhOlso
https://online.casbo.org/images/My_Images/Newsbreak/2020/Senate%20Journal%20Letter%20Distance%20Learning%20SB%2098.pdf
https://online.casbo.org/images/My_Images/Newsbreak/2020/Senate%20Journal%20Letter%20Distance%20Learning%20SB%2098.pdf
http://gamuthelp.csba.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/CSBA-Reopening-Schools-Report.pdf
https://youtu.be/Gl37pfrS9So
https://youtu.be/Gl37pfrS9So
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/hn/strongertogether.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/hn/strongertogether.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/hn/coronavirus.asp


2 | P a g e   J u l y  2 ,  2 0 2 0  
  

Statewide, Districts Consider Moving Away from Police on Campus, Seek 

Alternatives. As Districts statewide consider proposals to change the nature of their 

relationships with local law enforcement, the recently approved state budget includes 

language expressing the legislature’s intent to evaluate the role of police on school 

campuses and study alternatives. You can read more online at EdSource.  

 

CSBA Advocacy Efforts Pay Off; AB 1384 Introduced to Limit LEA Liability Related 

to COVID-19. At the state level, local educational agency liability remains unresolved 

with governing boards and superintendents being told by insurance carriers that they 

will not cover LEAs on COVID-19 issues should an employee, student, or family 

member contract the virus as a result or returning to school.  CSBA’s advocacy effort 

paid off this week as Assemblymember O’Donnell introduced AB 1384, which provides 

there shall be no monetary liability or causes of action against a district or county office 

or their officers or employees, for responsible actions taken during the COVID-19 

pandemic.  The bill has been referred to Senate Judiciary and will be heard when 

members return in mid-July.   CSBA has also been advising board members to exercise 

their discretion diligently and to be prepared to show what information, order or 

guidance, was relied upon by the board in making decisions responding to the 

pandemic. 

 

ACSA/CSBA Joint Antiracism Taskforce.  ACSA invited CSBA to cohost a limited and 

small Antiracism Taskforce.  Staff from ACSA and CSBA have initiated preliminary 

planning meetings for the joint taskforce. The goal of the joint taskforce is to develop 

substantive and timely strategies that will contribute to fostering a culture of antiracism 

in the California K-12 education system and beyond.  

 

Federal Update 

 

Supreme Court Upholds DACA. The Supreme Court ruled (5-4) that the procedure 

used by the Trump Administration to end the Deferred Action for Childhood Arrivals 

(DACA) program was “arbitrary and capricious,” EdSource reported.  The decision 

allows the protections put in place by the previous administration to stay intact, 

protecting many K-12 students, college students, as well as faculty and staff for the 

immediate future.  

 

USDA Extends Summer Meals Eligibility to All Students. The USDA announced an 

additional waiver extension with regard to area eligibility, which will allow all children 

in all areas to receive free meals through USDA’s summer meals programs, rather than 

limiting eligibility to low income areas. 

 

https://edsource.org/2020/california-school-districts-should-spend-less-on-police-more-on-counselors-state-leaders-say/634450
https://edsource.org/2020/supreme-court-upholds-daca-protecting-hundreds-of-thousands-from-deportation/634027
https://www.usda.gov/media/press-releases/2020/06/10/usda-ensures-all-kids-can-get-free-meals-summer-nation-reopens


3 | P a g e   J u l y  2 ,  2 0 2 0  
  

Federal Child Care Infrastructure, Workforce Bill Introduced. Rep. Katherine Clark 

(D-MA) introduced a bill titled the “Child Care is Infrastructure Act”. The childcare 

package would invest $10 billion over five years in childcare infrastructure and $35 

million for early childhood education and workforce development. It would also 

include two national needs assessments of early childcare and learning facilities to be 

conducted by HHS to understand the impact of the pandemic and ongoing needs of 

childcare facilities. Further it would provide for a study to be completed regarding tax 

credits for employer-provided childcare through the GAO. 

 

The Department of Education’s Office of Special Education Programs (OSEP). OSEP 

released two Q&A documents to address COVID-19 dispute resolution procedures 

under IDEA Part B and IDEA Part C. 

 

DEPARTMENT HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Communications – In addition to support the production of CSBA’s school reopening 

report and budget webinar, the department also published the spring magazine, the 

June newsletter, more than two dozen COVID-19 related updates, more than three 

dozen blog posts and FAQ responses, and several email/text advocacy campaigns. 

 

Governmental Relations – With the state budget now signed into law, many LEAs will 

continue to operate within razor thin margins. The 2020-21 state budget relies on some 

budget gimmicks and enacts new constraints on LEAs attempting to balance their 

budget and avoid financial collapse under the weight of the COVID-19 pandemic.  Most 

striking of all the changes in the budget are the large deferrals and the new prohibition 

related to classified employee layoffs.  … Other critical issues remain.… Funding 

advocacy will need to continue to be focused on Congress with governing boards and 

employees pressing California’s Congressional delegates (U.S. Senate and House of 

Representative members in both parties) on the need for an additional round of 

assistance to public schools. Federal funds are needed immediately to eliminate the 

state’s reliance on apportionment deferrals, which are an accounting maneuver to delay 

more than $9 billion in cuts. … CSBA’s Legislative Awards Program is accepting 

nominations through Thursday, September 1, 2020, and can be made by CSBA member 

governing boards, CSBA regions, or county school board associations. Questions about 

the program may be directed via email to Governmental Relations. 

 

Legal Department – In a case where the ELA participated by filing an amicus brief, the 

California Supreme Court ruled last week that an agency’s cost of redacting exempt 

information from electronic records is not recoverable under the California Public 

Records Act (CPRA). In National Lawyers Guild v. City of Hayward, the ELA supported 

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/speced/guid/idea/memosdcltrs/qa-dispute-resolution-procedures-part-b.pdf?utm_content=&utm_medium=email&utm_name=&utm_source=govdelivery&utm_term=
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/speced/guid/idea/memosdcltrs/qa-dispute-resolution-procedures-part-c.pdf?utm_content=&utm_medium=email&utm_name=&utm_source=govdelivery&utm_term=
file:///C:/Users/ddeluz/Downloads/Posted%20online
https://publications.csba.org/california-school-news/june-2020/
http://covid19.csba.org/covid-19/#recent-updates
http://blog.csba.org/xilonin_conversation/
http://covid19.csba.org/covid-19/#answers
https://csba.org/en/Advocacy/LegislativeAdvocacy/LegislativeAwardsProgram
mailto:govrel@csba.org
https://www.courts.ca.gov/opinions/documents/S252445.PDF


4 | P a g e   J u l y  2 ,  2 0 2 0  
  

the City’s argument that Government Code section 6253.9 should allow for cost sharing 

between requester and responding agency where production of an electronic record 

requires data compilation, extraction, or programming. The ELA also highlighted for 

the Court the unique burden faced by education agencies in complying with the CPRA 

while also protecting student records and information. … Also, in a case where the ELA 

filed an amicus brief with the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals, the U.S. Supreme Court 

last week held in a 5-4 ruling that the administration had failed to follow proper 

procedures and provided an insufficient explanation to rescinding Deferred Action for 

Childhood Arrivals (DACA) in Department of Homeland Security, et al. v. Regents of the 

University of California, et al. 

 

Member Services –The Climate Change Task Force met at the end of May and is 

scheduled to meet again in mid-July. The Task Force is working on resolution language 

as well as details for an AEC workshop. … New content will be released in the Online 

Learning Center at the end of July. New courses will include The History of School 

Finance and Chronic Absenteeism. ... June 1 was the AEC Call for Proposals submission 

deadline. A total of 251 proposals were submitted. The AEC Planning Committee is 

currently scoring all proposals. ... June 9 was the opening day of AEC registration. … 

Staff has increased the promotion of the TRANs program through webinars, eblasts and 

paid social media posts due to the state’s heavy reliance on deferrals for K-12 schools. 

There is a possibility that multiple TRAN issuances could take place next school year 

based on the schedule of deferrals outlined in the state budget. 

 

Policy and Governance Technology Services – The Policy team, with assistance from 

CSBA's legal department, released a special update for CSBA's new sample policy – BP 

0470 – "COVID-19 Mitigation Plan." The policy covers a variety of policy issues that 

may require revision prior to schools reopening in the fall. Rather than revise every 

policy affected by the pandemic, the COVID-19 Mitigation Plan policy is intended to be 

used as an interim solution, superseding other existing district policies where necessary 

so that districts can prepare for the fall without having to revise all of their policies. … 

The GAMUT Support Team recorded a series of new training videos to help districts 

and COEs continue transitioning to the new GAMUT program. The videos allow for on-

demand tutorials training and also help provide training at a time when CSBA staff are 

unable to do in-person trainings.  
 

#### 

https://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/19pdf/18-587_5ifl.pdf
https://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/19pdf/18-587_5ifl.pdf


1

Tina Maxwell

From: Aaron Heinz
Sent: Tuesday, August 4, 2020 11:47 AM
To: Tina Maxwell
Subject: RE: Department Reports Reminder

Administrative Services 
 

 Working on closing the books for fiscal year 2019‐20 

 Distributed state‐issued PPE to all districts 

 Met with the county Treasurer’s office to discuss cash flow solutions in 2020‐21 for our districts 

 Onboarding of new employees for the 20‐21 fiscal year 

 Calculation of monthly and annual salary for all CCOE employees for 20‐21 

 Fielding employee questions regarding COVID‐19 issues and processing related leave requests 

 Updating Superintendent’s Policy 

 Making preparations for 20‐21 employee training and CVT Open Enrollment 

 Food services continues to provide meals for our county’s students 

 Facilities has been busy getting everything ready for the new school year 
 

 
Aaron Heinz 
Associate Superintendent, Administrative Services 
Colusa County Office of Education 
345 5th Street, suite A 
Colusa, CA  95932 
(530) 458‐0350, x10357 
aheinz@ccoe.net 

tmaxwell
Text Box



  6.3 

CCOE - Children’s Services                                           

Vicki Markss, Director           

Report for CCOE Board of Education 

Month:  July 2020 

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 California Early Math Initiative Professional Development, Coaching, and Community of 

Practice Coaching Components. 
 Resource & Referral Network, CAPPA. 
 Parent Policy Council meeting. 
 National & Regional 9 Head Start Association, California Head Start Association 
 Monthly meetings with Office of Head Start Program Specialist. 
 Cabinet Meetings. 
  Created flyers, sanitation and maintaining safety classroom procedures, trained staff. 
 Completed surveys and webinars on COVID-19 with Federal and State funded programs. 
 Attended Trauma Informed Care; an overview for early childhood educators.  This is a 

three-part virtual training by Julie Kurtz, Founder and CEO of the Center for Optimal 
Brain Integration.  The training will relate to trauma, resilience, and social-emotional 
resilience.   

Grant Opportunities:   

 Applied for CDE CCTR (0-3 years) State Expansion Grant.  Waiting for response. 
 Head Start Quality Improvement funding. 
 Head Start Supplement –COVID-19 one-time funding for prevention and preparation. 
 Head Start Summer School Program. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 

School Readiness: 

 All full-day full-year sites are open for care for essential workers. 
 Practicing health and safety measures. 
 Engaging families and providing parenting and learning concepts through Learning Genie 

Family Engagement App. 
 Footsteps2Brilliance and Clever Kids University programs. 
 Completing enrollments for Fall programs. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Collaboration with Elementary schools regarding transitioning children to Kindergarten.  
 CCOE Website. 
 Resource & Referral distribution of COVID prevention health and safety materials to 

licensed facilities and childcare providers throughout the county. 



  Educational Services Board Report 

August 2020 

 

 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 

 S. William Abel Academy will begin instruction on August 5, 2020 with Distance Learning.  New Teacher, 

Patricia Pinedo has been meeting parents and students to begin virtual instruction via Zoom. All students have 

their laptops, schedules, and Individualized Learning Plans ready to begin the new school year. 

 

Colusa County Adult School 

 The Colusa County Adult School will begin classes on September 8, 2020.  Classes at the Day Reporting Center 

in Colusa are still open to students to receive face-to-face instruction as long as safety protocols are followed. The 

Colusa County Adult School has partnered with Woodland Community College in offering an EMT Course this 

fall.  25 potential students showed up at the Orientation night to begin their quest of becoming an EMT! 

 

Farm to School 

 Nothing new to report.  

 

Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 

 Zoom meetings took place on 7/10 and 7/24 to discuss Professional Learning for Distance Learning (DL) for the 

county office personnel and how to support the LEAs with the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan  

requirements and what the Williams Review visits look like for the upcoming school year. Educational Services 

invited the LEAs to participate in the professional learning opportunities. 

 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 

 Educational Services continues to meet with Williams Upper Elementary administration to assist in building a 

CSI plan that is aligned to the School Plan for Student Achievement that is due by November 2020. 

 

Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

 Educational Services continues to provide DA to Williams Unified in the areas of curriculum, instruction, and 

student assessment data as well as providing technical assistance to Colusa Unified with the district’s Reopening 

School Plan.  

 

Health Education Framework 

 The consortia will meet on 9/15 to plan the upcoming school year’s professional development calendar.   

 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

 LCAP is currently on hold. 

 The NCCPLN held a training on 8/6 on how to complete the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan with the 

tri-county LEAs.   

North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 

 Planning will take place in September for the 2020-21 school year. While there will be no funding from the 

CCEE, Colusa, Yolo, and Yuba Counties will continue to work collaboratively to support the LEAs during these 

very difficult educational times.  

 

School Improvement Grant (SIG) 

 The Leadership Team completed the meetings schedules for the upcoming school year with the understanding that 

flexibility is extremely important.  

 



System of Support Expanded Learning Program (After School Programs) (SSELP) 

 Educational Services is working on scheduling a meeting with the afterschool coordinators to provide guidance on

the reopening of the programs.

PREVENTION SERVICES 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 

 A planning meeting took place on 8/4 with the Second Step personnel, Williams Elementary, and Behavioral

Health to plan the COVID-19 curriculum, instruction for the upcoming school year, and what instruction will look

like virtually as a supplemental service to students.  Second Step Services will be provided for TK-3rd grade

students at Williams Elementary and Hand in Hand.

Foster Youth 

• We are working in collaboration with Jennifer Jelavich to create a CCOE Guidebook for districts on the technical 
assistance and services CCOE provides to districts.

• Our Foster Youth AmeriCorps member’s last day will be August 15, 202O. Plans are in place to hire a new Foster 
Youth Mentor for the 2020-2021 academic year.

• The quarterly Title IV-E invoice have been submitted to the Department of Health and Human Services.

• January – June 2020 expenditure reports have been submitted and approved.

• The Independent Living Program (ILP) MOU is being finalizing with Colusa One-Stop. 
• FY funding will remain the same for the 2020-2021 fiscal year. 

Homeless/McKinney-Vento 

• The Adult Ed. and SWAA housing questionnaire process has been modified in order to better identify homeless

students during student registration.

• Alejandra Lopez is currently working with CDE’s Mental Health Services program to become a certified Youth

Mental Health First Aid instructor and by doing so; she will be able to provide mental health first aid trainings

for educators, parents, and the community.

• The fourth quarter expenditure reports have been submitted and approved.

• Funding results for the 2020-2021 fiscal year were received, the funding will be $50,000.

• A mental health resources page is in the works of being created and it will be placed in the prevention services

page of the CCOE website.

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE 

 The 2020-2023 TUPE Tier 1 grant was awarded, the CCOE TUPE program will be receiving $30,000 for a three

year grant to implement the California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS), Students Working Against Tobacco

(SWAT) activities, and more.

 The 2020-21 California Technical Assistance Tobacco Grant was submitted and is in the approval process. The

grant provides funding for technical assistance to be provided to public schools within Colusa County, which

includes: Tobacco Free School policy, Tobacco-Use Prevention Education and Instruction, Staff Professional

Development, Family and Community Engagement, Interagency Partnerships, and Cessation Support and

Referrals.

 The Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program is working on accomplishing scope of work activities while also

taking COVID-19 challenges into consideration. We will be looking for new innovative ways to provide outreach

to students and the community, while also meeting the required objectives.



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report August 12, 2020 

 

We are still in the process of negotiating a deal for LTE spectrum from T-Mobile for the 
EduNet.  We are working through new policies from the T-Mobile/Sprint merger to 
obtain our spectrum.  We have installed the LTE radios and antennas on the Williams 
water tower for the WUSD EduNet.  We are testing the configuration to ensure that it is 
optimal.  We are about to start programming of the LTE Routers that will be handed out 
to the student when school begins.  This has been our primary focus this month. 
 
We are now looking to expand the EduNet into Maxwell on the Maxwell water tower. We 
are working to repeat the steps performed in Williams. 
 
We are preparing all fiscal year quotes for July renewals on support contracts, licenses, 
and services from all vendors. 
 
We are helping to welcome aboard and train Nick Wilson the new Technology Director 
in Maxwell. 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting July 8, 2020 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Aaron Heinz, Alissa Maas, 

Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Sheryl Parker, 
and Michael West 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Ed Conrado called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, 
Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and 
made the following announcements: 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Rollcall 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
Lorilee Niesen announced that two students graduated from the Colusa County Adult 
School, but because of COVID 19 social distancing their diploma presentations would be 
postponed until a future meeting. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
No letters or communications. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West provided an update on the status of Colusa County COVID 19 
cases, and he spoke about his video message to staff last week.  Michael 
also reported on his participation and attendance in activities, such as 
Zoom meetings with many organizations and staff on health and safety, 
planning and protocols for reopening schools in August, and on the budget 
impact.  He reported on the distribution of a 60‐day supply of State OES 

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 8, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

provided PPE’s to districts, the CCOE Welcome Back Day in August that will 
be modified from previous events to allow for social distancing, on 
professional development and pre‐service meetings, and on continuing 
preparations for fall opening.  Discussion was held on State guidelines for 
re‐opening and on staff safety.  Michael reported that districts received 
State guidelines and protocols, which were suggested to be followed as 
much as practicable; district superintendents have been communicating 
closely as issues arise; safety evaluations will take place weekly to monitor 
students and staff, overall activity, and the continued necessity for 
protocols; and that the Colusa County Public Health Department has been 
working closely with the districts. Michael spoke about the two‐day CCSESA 
quarterly meeting that was held via Zoom, and the upcoming October 
meeting. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – June Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the district Superintendents in 
June and discussed school issues, exploration of distance learning, safety 
protocols updates, and proactive meetings about school re‐openings.  He 
said that currently WUSD is planning to have two days a week attendance 
with an am pm schedule, and three days of distance Learning.  CUSD, 
MUSD, and PJUSD are planning to resume in person instruction following 
protocols as much as practicable 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz presented his July 2020 Administrative Services written report to 
the Board and highlighted activities of the Business, Payroll, Facilities, Food 
Services, Human Resources, and Innovative Approaches to Literacy teams. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Vicki Markss’ July 
2020 Children’s Services written report. 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Maria Arvizu‐
Espinoza’s July 2020 Educational Services written report.  Maria added that she 
is continuing to provide differentiated assistance to eligible LEAs, and focusing 
on providing support to the two new Superintendents (CUSD and MUSD). 

6.1 Human Resources – Serena Morrow 
Serena Morrow explained that to streamline the reporting process, the Human 
Resources written report was included in Aaron Heinz’ Administrative Services 
written report.  Aaron will continue to report on Human Resources in future 
meetings, and Human Resources will no longer be an individual agenda item. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 8, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.2 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Michael West reported on Chuck Wayman’s absence, and his activities and 
meetings during the previous month. 

6.2.1 SELPA ‐ June Meeting 
No questions or comments. 

6.3 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Alex Evans’ July 2020 
Technology Services written report.  Alex added that the EduNet is being 
deployed in Williams.  Discussion was held on the cost of putting a computer in 
each student’s hands, seeking grants to help pay for those devices, and on 
delivering direct line teaching for the very young students.  Michael West 
reported on Children’s Services review of distance learning and finding a balance 
between in person learning and distance learning.  Discussion was also held on 
California and Texas being the two worst states for providing computers to 
students. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
Brenda Miller expressed her concern about educating students through distance 
learning for very young students, but in particular, high school students. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No Report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion 
carried by two ayes (Ed Conrado and Jason McMullan), one absent (Lynn Bowen 
Burnham), and zero noes to approve the following Consent Agenda items: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the June 9, 2020, Public Hearing 
8.2 Approve Minutes of the June 10, 2020, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that an EMT Class will be offered through a collaboration 
between the WCC Colusa County Campus and CCOE.  He said that classes will be 
held during Friday and Saturday sessions at either the Colusa Center or the 
Education Village, and will eventually align with Wildland Fire Academy. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 8, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported on continued safety and security upgrades at the Village, 
saying that the RFID is in place and the thermal scan was delivered and will be 
installed.  These systems will lead to a change of protocols for coming to the 
Village (e.g., check in at single entry door, thermal scan of all persons to detect 
temperature that will determine if they are able to enter, and continued 
monitoring of students and staff as they arrive).  Michael said that CCOE will 
serve as a beta test for these systems at no cost to CCOE. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that the CDE is eliminating the projected one‐
year LCAP for 2020‐21 and replacing it with a Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan (LCAP2).  Discussion was held on the abbreviated plan.  She said 
that because the Board will need adopt the plan by September 30, 2020, and the 
State has until August 1, 2020, to develop the template, LEAs would only have 
about one month to write it. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Michael West introduced Alissa Maas, as CCOE’s newest addition to the IAL 
Grant Family, and spoke about her qualifications, including her work at the 
Colusa County Public Library in charge of the media and literacy outreach, and 
her experience with grants and grant management. 
 
Alissa reported on current activities of the IAL team including giving free books 
and literacy kits to children.  She also spoke about future plans including 
partnering with First 5 Colusa to give books and kits to children during Arbuckle’s 
food distribution and doing the same in Stonyford, F2B activities including a 
virtual summer school, instituting a book sharing program for children, providing 
500 iPads to schools for students to borrow, attending parent and provider 
meetings, and hosting an F2B kickoff event in October. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Certifying a Candidate for Supervisors of Attendance for her LEA 

Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that MUSD wanted to change their attendance 
supervisor and that Maria provided the candidate with the necessary training. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried by two 
ayes (Ed Conrado and Jason McMullan), one absent (Lynn Bowen Burnham), and 
zero noes to approve certifying a candidate for Supervisors of Attendance for her 
LEA. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
July 8, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

12.0 CLOSED SESSION 
12.1 Existing Litigation 

(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 
Name of case: Colusa County Office of Education vs. Swank Construction, et. al 
Convened Closed Session at 4:43 p.m., and discussion was held. 
 
Adjourned Closed Session at 4:50 p.m. 
Reconvened Open Session at 4:51 p.m. 

13.0 REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
No action was taken. 

14.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
14.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

No items added. 

14.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
August 12, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

15.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 4:52 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Ed Conrado, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Associatio

CDE  California Department of Education 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

CUSD  Colusa Unified School District 

EMT  Emergency Medical Technician 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

IAL  Innovative Approach to Literacy 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LCAP2  Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan  

LEA  Local Educational Agency 

MUSD  Maxwell Unified School District 

OES  Office of Emergency Services 

PJUSD  Pierce Joint Unified School District 

PPE  Personal Protective Equipment 

RFID  Radio‐Frequency Identification  

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

WCC  Woodland Community College 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

 



Description Account Proposed Budget Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 2 Difference 2020-21% Automatic Changes Manual Changes Total for Year 3 Difference 2021-22%

Codes Totals Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) % Explanation of Difference Assumed by Departments (Col B - D) %

2020-21 2021-22 Difference See supporting spreadsheets 2022-23 Difference

A.  Revenues

    1) LCFF 8010-8099 2,706,265$              -$                         -                           2,706,265$              -                           0.00% -                           -                           2,706,265                -                       0.00%

    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 1,614,407$              -                           -                           1,614,407$              -                           0.0% -                           -                           1,614,407                -                       0.0%

    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 3,967,083$              -                           -                           3,967,083$              -                           0.0% -                           -                           3,967,083                -                       0.0%

    4) Other local Revenues 8600-8799 5,149,436$              -                           (107,164)                  5,042,272$              (107,164)                  -2.1% -                           305,840                   5,348,112                305,840               6.1%

-                           -                           -$                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -                       

       TOTAL REVENUES 13,437,191$            -$                         (107,164)$                13,330,027$            (107,164)                  -$                         305,840$                 13,635,867$            305,840               

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,408,988$              66,135                     -                           4,475,123$              66,135                     1.5% 67,127 4,542,250                67,127                 1.5%

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 3,672,523$              55,088                     -                           3,727,611$              55,088                     1.5% 55,914 -                           3,783,525                55,914                 1.5%

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,523,589$              125,912                   -                           3,649,501$              125,912                   3.6% 250,772 -                           3,900,273                250,772               6.9%

            Health Benefits 3400-3499 -$                         -                           -                           -$                         -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                       0.0%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 593,923$                 -                           -                           593,923$                 -                           0.0% -                           -                           593,923                   -                       0.0%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 1,219,471$              -                           -                           1,219,471$              -                           0.0% -                           -                           1,219,471                -                       0.0%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 36,432$                   -                           -                           36,432$                   -                           0.0% -                           -                           36,432                     -                       0.0%

    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 -$                         -                           -                           -$                         -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                       0.0%

7400-7499 -$                         -                           -                           -$                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -                       

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (449,350)$                9,058                       -                           (440,292)$                9,058                       -2.0% 16,250                     -                           (424,042)                  16,250                 -3.7%

 -$                         

       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13,005,576$            256,192$                 -$                         13,261,768$            256,192                   390,063$                 -$                         13,651,831$            390,063               

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures Before Other

Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B9) 431,615$                 (256,192)$                (107,164)                  68,259$                   (390,063)$                305,840                   (15,964)$                  -$                     

D. Other Financing Sources/Uses

    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 6,000$                     -$                         -                           6,000$                     -                           0.0% -$                         -                           6,000                       -                       0.0%

    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 -$                         -                           -                           -$                         -                           0.0% -                           -                           -                           -                       

    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                         -                           -                           -$                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -                       

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses 6,000$                     -$                         -$                         6,000$                     -                           -$                         -$                         6,000$                     -                       

E. Net Change to Fund Balance 437,615$                  (256,192)$                (107,164)$                 74,259$                   -$                         (390,063)$                305,840$                  (9,964)$                    -$                     

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)  

    1. Beginning Balance 3,696,035$              4,133,650 4,207,909$              

    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                         -                           

       Ending Balance 4,133,650$                4,207,909$               4,197,945$              

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Combined

2020-21 45-day Revised Budget



CDE Form Version 2.0

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

LOCAL PLAN 

Section B: Governance and Administration  

SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 

California Department of Education 

Special Education Division 

January 2020



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-1 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

B. Governance and Administration

California Education Code (EC) sections 56195 et seq. and 56205 

Participating Local Educational Agencies 

Participating local educational agencies (LEAs) included in the Special Education Local Plan Area 
(SELPA) local plan must be identified in Attachment I.  

Special Education Local Plan Area—Local Plan Requirements

1. Describe the geographic service area covered by the local plan:

The Colusa County SELPA Local Plan area covers the fours school districts in Colusa County. 
The four school districts are: Colusa Unified School District, Maxwell Unified School District, 
Pierce Joint Unified School District, and Williams Unified School District.

2. Describe the SELPA regional governance and administrative structure of the local plan. 
Clearly define the roles and structure of a multi-LEA governing body, or single LEA 
administration as applicable:

The four school districts (Colusa Unified School District, Maxwell Unified School District, 
Pierce Joint Unified School District, and Williams Unified School District) in Colusa County 
have agreed to have the Colusa County Office of Education implement and operate this local 
plan. This designation was based on size and scope considerations, including the low 
incidence of exceptional children and geographical factors. The Colusa County Office of 
Education has the dual role of being the Responsible Local Agency and providing all special 
education services. 

  
Each district shall assist the Colusa County Office of Education in carrying out this plan.  A 
three tiered governance structure was designed to facilitate implementation while eliciting input 
from Board Members and parents.  The first tier is an Executive Committee, the second tier is a 

 SELPA Council, and the third tier is the Colusa County Board of Education.

3. Describe the SELPA's regional policy making process. Clearly define the roles of a multi-LEA 
governing body, or single LEA administration as applicable related to the policy making 
process for coordinating and implementing the local plan:

 The Colusa County SELPA's regional policy making process is conducted through its three 
tiered governance structure. The responsibilities of superintendents, district boards and the 
Colusa County Board of Education and their relationship to this tiered governance structure 
are defined below. 

  
The participation of each local education agency superintendent is essential to 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-2 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

supporting the operation of the Special Education Local Plan Area.  The superintendents 
will participate through monitoring the policies and procedures to carry out the special 
education programs and services and participating in the Executive Committee and 
SELPA Council. 

  
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

  
The local education agency governing boards of Colusa County SELPA agree to 
provide representation to the Executive Committee.  Representatives from each agency 
shall include the superintendent from each district, the county superintendent, and 
SELPA Director. The functions of the Executive Committee are delineated in the 
Procedures. 

  
PROCEDURES:  EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

  
The Executive Committee of the  SELPA Council was established to:  (1) provide 
guidance for the administration and implementation of the special education programs 
and services; (2) problem-solve situations arising in the program; and (3) make 
recommendations to the SELPA Council when recommended action involves budget or 
policy changes. 

    The Executive Committee is composed of the following members: 
  

(1)  District Superintendent from each school district (one vote each) 
                     (2)  County Superintendent (one vote)                           (3)  SELPA Director (non-voting)                 
                  RESPONSIBILITES OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: 

(1)  Review and make recommendations on the Local Plan for Special Education 
to the SELPA Council. 

  
(2)  Recommend priorities for special education services. 

  
(3)  Advise the Administration on the deliverance of services. 

  
(4)  Formulate and review policies on the provision of special education 

services, including  transportation. 
  

(5)  Review and make formal recommendations to the SELPA Council. 
  

(6)  Elect chairperson for two year term in July or August.  The chairperson shall 
chair meetings and review agenda items with the SELPA Director.  The 
chairperson  will also act as the SELPA Council chairperson.  The committee 
could elect to rotate the chairperson  in the following manner:  Williams, 
Colusa, Pierce, Maxwell. 

  
(7)    Participate in special education programs and services evaluations. Meetings  
        are scheduled monthly or as needed. Meetings will usually be scheduled so    



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-3 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

        school employees can attend. The meetings are open to the public. In the 
event that a Superintendent cannot attend a meeting, he/she should notify the 
chairperson of his/her pending absence and may appoint a designee, if 
appropriate, with full voting rights and privileges.  

  
                  A quorum shall be a minimum  of three voting members.   A minimum of three  
                  votes shall be required to enact decisions of the SELPA Executive  
                  Committee.  If only three members are in attendance all decisions will require   
                  a unanimous vote. 
  
               Members of the SELPA Council will be invited to attend all Executive   
               Committee meetings as non-voting  members. 

  
SUPERINTENDENTS' RESPONSIBILITIES: 

  
Superintendents are responsible for contacting  the Assistant Superintendent-Special 
Education/SELPA Director  when a potential legal issue arises.  The superintendents, 
working with the SELPA  Council, are responsible for providing appropriate space at 

           school sites for special education  programs and services. 
  

The Executive Committee will review projected student enrollment  and analyze available 
classrooms by April each year. The Executive Committee  will determine  facilities needs 
to be completed  prior to the opening  of school the following  year.  Classroom  eligibility 
for the County  Office of Education/Special Education enrollment will be included in the 
analysis. 

         SELPA COUNCIL BOARD MEMBERS  AND SELPA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:    
             
           The SELPA Council was established to provide a vehicle for the interests and concerns of 
           each of the districts and its constituents to be heard.    
          
           It is imperative  that all stakeholders  are represented  in the planning and review of            
           special education  programs  and services in Colusa County.  The SELPA Council is   
           designed to provide county wide representation  through the following  policies,   
           procedures and responsibilities. 
  

POLICY:   SELPA  COUNCIL 
  

The local education  agency governing  boards of Colusa County SELPA agree to 
provide representation to the SELPA Council. Representatives shall include the 
superintendent from each district,  the county superintendent, the SELPA Director,  a 
member of the Community  Advisory Committee  for Special Education or their 
designee,  and a Board member or designated  representative from each school district 
board and the County Board of Education.  

    PROCEDURES: SELPA COUNCIL 
  

The SELPA  Council  was formed to assist the Colusa County Office of Education in 
providing  appropriate special education  programs and services to individuals  with 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-4 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

exceptional needs who are found eligible by Federal and State laws and regulations. 
  

The SELPA  Council  is composed  of the following  members: 
                               (1)  District Superintendent from each school district (one vote each) 
                               (2)  County Superintendent (one vote)  

            (3)  Board Member or designated  representative from each         
                   school district board and County  Board of Education  (one   
                   vote each)  
            (4)  SELPA  Director (non-voting) 

                                (5)  COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE (CAC) member or designee         
                                    (non-voting) 
  

RESPONSIBILITIES OF SELPA COUNCIL: 
  

(1) Review and approve special education budget for final approval by the Colusa 
County Board of Education. 

  
(2) Develop, review and approve special education policy. 

  
(3) Resolve conflicts among local education agency governing boards or their 

representatives concerning special education issues. 
  

Meetings shall be open to the public and held at least two times a year or more as 
needed . A quorum consists of 6 of the 10 voting members. A member can send a proxy  
or a designated person to vote. Proxies are counted in determining the existence of a 
quorum.  A designee can be part of the quorum. No officer, agent, or employee of any 
other entity entitled to a Council vote may be appointed as a proxy by any other entity 
entitled to a SELPA Council vote.  Each entity entitled to a SELPA Council vote shall be 
limited to a maximum of two proxies.  In any case the Chairperson of the Executive 
Committee shall act as the Chairperson of the SELPA Council. 

  
Voting shall be a majority vote for all issues except budget. 
  
A unanimous vote of member's present shall be required for action related to the budget. 
For purpose of this paragraph "members present" includes voting members of SELPA 
Council defined as the 5 Superintendents or selected alternate, the board representative 
for each district or the selected board member alternate, i.e. District Business Official or 
other board member. If a unanimous vote cannot be achieved, then the item shall be 
placed on each of the five board agendas at the next regular scheduled board meeting. 
The item would need a majority vote by each local board to pass the budget. If passed by 
all the local boards the SELPA Council would reconvene to officially approve the SELPA 
budget. If not passed by all local boards, it will go back to the SELPA Council for a vote. 
A super majority vote of 80% of member's present shall be required for passage. If a 
super majority vote cannot be achieved, then the item shall be placed on each of the five 
board agendas at the next regular scheduled board meeting. The item would need a 
majority vote by each local board to pass the budget. If passed by 4 out of the 5 local 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-5 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

boards the SELPA Council would reconvene to officially approve the SELPA budget. If 
not passed by 4 out of the 5 local boards the SELPA Council will reconvene to continue 
discussion. This process would continue until a compromise is reached and the items are 
resolved. 
 

4. Clearly define the roles of the County Office of Education (COE) as applicable, and/or any 
other administrative supports necessary to coordinate and implement the local plan:

GOVERNING BOARD:  COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
  

The governing boards for each participating local education agency have designated 
the Colusa County Board of Education as the board to provide guidance for the 
implementation of the Local Plan. 

  
POLICY:  GOVERNING BOARD 

  
The local education agency governing boards in Colusa County SELPA designate the 
Colusa County Board of Education as the governing board for the responsibilities and 
procedures below. 

  
PROCEDURES:  GOVERNING BOARD 

  
         The County Board of Education serves as the governing  body for special     
         education programs and services. Its duties include the following: 

(1)  Approve the Local Plan for Special Education  before submission  to the State. 
                    (2)   Review the policy relative to the provisions of special education services in the   
                          county, after the recommended policy has been reviewed by the SELPA Council.

(3)  Make recommendations concerning the operation  of special education 
programs and services. 

                    (4)  Approve the special  education  budget after reviewing  recommendations from   
                          the SELPA Council. 
  
  
                       The County Office of Education is designated as the Responsible Local Agency for
                       special education  services.   The responsibilities include, but are not limited to: 
                      (1)  Receiving  regionalized service funds. 

(2)  Coordinating the implementation of the plan. 
(3)  Implementing policies  for due process decision. 
(4)  Maintaining  fiscal services for special education. 
  
 
                   
 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-6 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

5. Describe the policies and procedures of the SELPA that allow for the participation of charter 
schools in the local plan:

All Charter Schools within the member districts of the Colusa County SELPA are given the 
opportunity to become a member of the Colusa County SELPA if they are located within the 
member district boundaries. Students who are voluntarily enrolled in these Charter Schools 
may receive special education services from the Colusa County SELPA using the same 
qualifying criteria used for all other students in Colusa County.  Any charter school petition 
granted by the State Board of Education (SBE) in which oversight responsibilities have 
been assigned to a district within the SELPA follow the same procedure (EC 47605.S(k)(1). 
As students enrolled in charter schools are entitled to special education services provided 
by State and Federal funding, the charter schools will comply with all requirements of state 
and federal law regarding provision of special education services (EC 56000 et seq., 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Chapter 33).  Children with disabilities 
and their parents shall retain all rights under the IDEA. 

  
POLICY: SERVICES TO CHARTER SCHOOLS 

  
Special Education and related services shall be offered and made available to all eligible 
individuals under the jurisdiction of the Colusa County SELPA in accordance with this Local 
Plan.  Students enrolled in charter schools chartered by member districts shall receive 
special education and designated instructional services in the same manner as other 
similarly situated students (EC 47646(a)).  No governing board shall grant a charter unless 
the charter includes assurances that special education instruction and/or services are made 
available to all eligible students, enrolled in the charter school, in accordance with the 
Individual Education Plan and the Colusa County SELP A Local Plan. 

  
Special education services and participation in the governance structure shall be based on 
the categorization of the individual charter school.  Education Code section 47613.5, allows 
a charter school to be deemed a Local Education Agency (LEA). Charter schools which do 
not meet the requirements of EC 4764l(a) by including in its charter or otherwise providing 
written and verifiable assurance of participation as an LEA in the SELPA will be deemed a 
public school of the LEA that granted the charter (EC 47641(b), 47641 (c). 

  
PROCEDURES: APPROVAL AND RENEWAL OF CHARTERS 

  
The Colusa County SELPA requires the following procedures for approval or renewal of 
Charters. 

  
      1. Prior to approval of a new charter, or renewal of an existing charter, the 

superintendent or designee of the chartering entity shall consult with the SELPA Director 
regarding the  provision of special education services to students enrolled by the charter 
school. 

           2.   The petition presented must provide adequate assurances  that all eligible students   
           enrolled in the charter school  will be offered appropriate special education  services in  
            accordance  with the Colusa County SELPA Local Plan. 
           3.  The charter must provide assurances that no student will be denied enrollment in the 

charter school due to a disability (EC 47605(d)(2)). 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-7 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

4.   The SELPA  will be available to assist the chartering entity in calculating  the 
potential fiscal risks that may be associated with granting the requested charter. 

     5.   An approved  charter must identify any provisions for sharing deficits in funding.  
These provisions  may be included  in a Memorandum  of Understanding. 

  
TYPES OF CHARTER  SCHOOLS 

  
For the purposes of provision  of special education services, charter schools may be 
deemed either chartering district or a Local Education Agency (LEA) or a public school 
within the chartering  district. 

  
1.  Public School Within a District 

  
Charter schools that are deemed to be public schools within a district will participate in state 
and federal funding in the same manner as other schools within the chartering district.  The 
chartering  district will be responsible  for ensuring that all children with disabilities  enrolled 
in the charter school shall be offered special education  and designated  instructional  
services in a manner that is consistent  with all applicable provisions  of state and federal  
law. The district will determine the policies and procedures  necessary to ensure that the 
protections of special education  law are extended to students in the charter school in the 
same manner as students  in the regular program. The Colusa County SELPA policies and 
procedures ensure that special education laws protect all students equally. 

  
The chartering district will represent the needs of charter schools like other schools within 
the district, in the SELPA governance  structure.   The chartering district will be responsible 
for procuring  and funding  appropriate special education  services, even though the student 
may not reside within the boundaries  of the chartering  district.  The SELPA  will be 
responsible for procuring and providing special education services, even though the student 
may not reside within the boundaries of the chartering district.  The SELPA may contract for 
these services with public or private educational entities, as written in the individual  
educational plans. The chartering  district will be responsible  for the funding of special 
education services for Charter School students in the same manner as students in other 
schools in the district. 

  
2.  Charter School as an LEA within the SELPA 

  
 Prior to approval of the petition  to become a charter school,  the charter school shall notify  
and consult  with the SELPA  no later than a minimum  of one year prior to the school year 
proceeding  the school year in which the charter school anticipates operating  as a LEA  
within the SELPA. 

  
The SELPA Council  will make the final determination  whether the charter school has the 
capacity and intent to meet all requirements  of an LEA. The following  requirements  must 
be in agreement with and implemented  according  to the Colusa County SELPA  Local 
Plan: 

  
o   Identification,  Referral, and Placement System 
o   Procedural Safeguards 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-8 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

o   Regionalized  Services 
o   Hospitals, Licensed Children's Institutions  and Juvenile Court/Community Schools 
o   Costs of Programs and Services, Including Transportation 

  
Once deemed an LEA the charter school  will be responsible  for and entitled to the 
following as required of any LEA in the SELPA: 

  
a.  Participate in governance  of the SELPA in the same manner as other districts within the 

SELPA. 
b.   Participate in funding for special education in the same manner as other districts 

within the SELPA. 
c.   Participate in and receive regionalized  services in the same manner as other 

districts within the SELPA. 
d.   Be responsible for all costs incurred in the provision of special education services.    
     These costs may include,  but are not limited to, instruction,  transportation,  
     nonpublic school/agency placements,  inter/intra SELPA  placements, due process  
     proceedings, complaints and attorney fees. 
  

  
 

6. Identify and describe the representation and participation of the SELPA community advisory 
committee (CAC) pursuant to EC Section 56190 in the development of the local plan:

Each of the agencies in the SELPA provides support to the Community Advisory 

Committee (CAC). The policy and procedures below describe this function.  

POLICY:  COMMUNITY ADVISORY  COMMITTEE 
The local education agency governing  boards of the Colusa County SELPA agree to provide 
support to achieve CAC objectives.  Each district Board of Trustees and County Office Board 
of Education appoints one representative to the CAC based on suggestion from the current 
CAC members.   Parents, community  agencies, such as Mental Health, Alta Regional Center 
and California  Children's Services are invited to be non-voting participants.  Terms of 
appointment are for two years and are staggered to ensure that no more than one half of the 
membership is renewed in any one year. The membership  role and responsibilities  are 
included  in the following procedures: 

  
PROCEDURES:  COMMUNITY ADVISORY  COMMITTEE 

  
The CAC meets with the SELPA  Director or designee no less than two times per year or more 
frequently as needed. The responsibilities of the CAC include the following: 

  
(1)      Advise the SELPA Council  regarding the development, amendment,  and review 

the local plan.  The SELPA Council shall review and consider comments from the 
CAC.  The plan is provided to the CAC at least thirty days prior to submission to 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-9 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

the State Department  of Education. 
  

(2)     Recommend  annual priorities to be addressed by the plan. 
  

(3)     Assist in parent education and recruit parents and other volunteers  who may 
contribute  in the development and review of the local plan. 

  
(4)     Encourage community involvement  in the development and review of the local 

plan. 
  

(5)     Support activities and promote community  awareness on behalf of individuals 
with exceptional  needs. 

  
(6)     Assist in parent awareness  of the importance of school  attendance. 

  
(7)     Report to their respective Board of Trustees or Board of Education at least 

annually, or on an as needed basis. 
  

(8)    Appoint a non-voting  representative to serve on the SELPA  Council.   
        REFERENCES: Education  Code Section  56200(c)(l), 56194 (a-f) 

 

7. Describe the SELPA's process for regular consultations regarding the plan development with 
representative of special education and regular education teachers, and administrators 
selected by the groups they represent and parent members of the CAC:

At least every three years during the annual budget and service plan process, the SELPA 
Council will review the Local Plan and determine if changes or amendments to the permanent 
portion of the Local Plan may be needed. At that time, any public input and consultation can be 
provided by anyone including special education and regular education teachers, administrators 
selected by the groups they represent, as well as parent members of the CAC, to ensure 
information contained within the plan remains relevant and accurate. The CAC may also review 
the Local Plan at one of their meetings preceding the SELPA Council's review. 

Each year, the SELPA Council shall adopt annual budget and service plans at a public hearing 
scheduled at a SELPA Council meeting. As it is a public hearing, it provides for public input and 
consultation by anyone including special education and regular education teachers, 
administrators selected by the groups they represent, as well as parent members of the CAC. 
The CAC may also review the annual budget and service plans at one of their meetings 
preceding the SELPA Council adoption.  

When the SELPA Council determines that an amendment to the Local Plan is needed, the 
following process occurs: 

The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director, or designee, shall be 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-10 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

responsible for the coordination of the amendment of the Local Plan, and shall form a committee 
that includes representatives of the following groups who provide input, review drafts and make 
recommendations to the SELPA Council: 

-Special Education Teachers- Selected by their bargaining unit 

- General Education Teachers- Selected by their bargaining unit 

-Superintendent- Selected by the SELPA Council 

-Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director 

-Charter School Representative- Selected by the SELPA 

-Preschool Representative- Selected by the SELPA 

-Community Advisory Committee- Selected by the CAC Executive Committee 

During the amendment process, the SELPA Council reviews the recommendations of the CAC, 
reviews the drafts of the Local Plan amendment committee, seeks input from the governing 
boards of their respective LEAs, and reviews and approves the final draft of the Local Plan for 
submission to the local governing boards for approval. 

The SELPA Council may adopt amendments to the permanent portion of the Local Plan on an 
interim basis, not to exeed on school year. Amendments approved in this manner shall become 
permanent upon subsequent approval by all LEAs' governing boards and the California 
Department of Education. 

8. Identify and describe the responsible local agency (RLA), Administrative Unit (AU), or other 
agency who is responsible for performing tasks such as the receipt and distribution of funds, 
provision of administrative support, and coordination and implementation of the plan:

The member districts in the local plan have designated  Colusa County Office of 
Education as the Responsible Local Agency for the SELPA.   The County office provides 
dual services both as the Responsible Local Agency and as the service provider.  The 
Colusa County Office of Education  is designated  to receive all federal and state funds 
allocated  to the SELPA with Executive Council oversight, staffing for special education 
services is the responsibility of the County Office of Education. 

  
The County Superintendent is the manager of the local plan. He/she or his/her designee 
directs and guides the implementation of the local plan board policies and decisions. The 
County Superintendent or designee when appropriate:  (A) hires and evaluates all 
special education personnel; and (B) provides  guidance to program  personnel. 

  
POLICY:   RESPONSIBLE LOCAL AGENCY 

  



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-11 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

The Local Education  Agency  governing  boards in Colusa County SELPA designate  
the Colusa  County Office of Education  as the Responsible  Local Agency (RLA) to 
operate this local plan. In the event that any member of the SELPA  Council determines 
there is a need or reason to change the RLA the Transfer Plan approved by the SELPA 
Council shall be followed. 
  

  PROCEDURE:  RESPONSIBLE LOCAL AGENCY  
 Responsible Local Agency Responsibilities: 

Every three years the SELPA Council  reviews the responsibility  of the Responsible 
Local Agency and determines the roles and responsibilities  to be assigned  with the 
position. These roles and responsibilities include: 

  
(1)     Receive and distribute  of regionalized services funds to include, but not 

limited to, personnel  development, evaluation,  data collection, 
management information  system, curriculum  development, program 
review, and interagency  coordination. 

  
(2)     Provide administrative support to Assistant Superintendent-Special 

Education/SELPA Director, SELPA Council, and Executive Committee. 
  
                         (3)      Coordinate the implementation of the local plan. 

9. Describe the contractual agreements and the SELPA’s system for determining the 
responsibility of participating agency for the education of each student with special needs 
residing within the geographical area served by the plan:

Local educational agencies (LEAs) are responsible for the students ages 3 to 22 within 
the geographical area consistent with California education code. The Colusa County 
SELPA provides the special education services for these students. 
  
For children from birth to three, Colusa County SELPA provides services for students 
with solely low incidence disability with the appropriate funds. Any child that does not 
have a low incidence disabilities receives services from the ALTA Regional Center until 
the age of three when they transition over to the Colusa County SELPA.

10. For multi-LEA local plans, specify: 

 a. The responsibilities of each participating COE and LEA governing board in the  
policymaking process:

Each participating LEA and the Colusa County Office of Education governing board has the 
responsibilities outlined below: 

- The LEA and COE governing board designates a representative to serve on the SELPA 
Council. The SELPA Council approves SELPA-wide policies and procedures, Annual Budget 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-12 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

and Service Plans and any subsequent modifications. 

-Approve Local Plan 

-Implement policies and procedures approved by the SELPA Council 

-Appoint members to the Special Education Community Advisory Committe (CAC) in accorance 
with CAC bylaws and LEA policies 

-Encourage parental involvment through the members of CAC, receive and consider requests 
and recommendations from their CAC representatives and other parent groups. 

-Address questions and concerns of the public, including parents or guardians of students with 
diabilities who are receving services under the Local Plan. 

 

b. The responsibilities of the superintendents of each participating LEA and COE in the 
implementation of the local plan:

Superintendents are responsible for contacting the Assistant Superintendent-Special 
Education/SELPA Director when a potential legal issue arises.  The Superintendents, 
working with the SELPA  Council, are responsible for providing appropriate space at 
school sites for special education programs and services.

c. The responsibilities of each LEA and COE for coordinating the administration of the 
local plan:

 The role of each LEA and COE for coordinating the administration of the Local Plan includes: 

-Participating in the SELPA Council meeting to help develop, implement, evaluate and improve 
special education programs and services within the SELPA. 

-Gather, interpret, and report special education program and student data to the SELPA Council 
regarding current program operations and effectiveness. 

-Cooperating among LEAs and COE pertaining to the implementation, administration and 
operation of the Local Plan 

-Establishing, modifying, and implementing procedures for the operations of the Local Plan 

 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-13 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

11. Identify the respective roles of the RLA/AU, the SELPA administrator, and the individual 
LEAs associated with the SELPA related to: 

 a. The hiring, supervision, evaluation, and discipline of the SELPA administrator and staff 
employed by the AU in support of the local plan:

EMPLOYMENT OF STAFF: 
  

The County Superintendent, with input from the SELPA Executive Committee, shall 
determine  the staff necessary for the special education programs.   The County 
Superintendent is responsible for the employment of all staff. A representative  
appointed by the district may participate in all hiring of special education certificated  
staff. A District Superintendent, or designee,  may have input in all certificated  and 
classified staff evaluations,  as consistent with contractual agreements.   A parent may 
be invited to participate in the hiring of special education certificated staff. 

  
          SPECIAL EDUCATION ADMINISTRATION: 

  
All programs and services are provided through the Colusa County Office of Education. 
Special education administration is provided by the Colusa County Office of Education 
in a dual role of Assistant  Superintendent-Special Education/SELPA Director. 

  
  
            The Colusa County Office of Education  Assistant Superintendent's primary 

responsibilities includes: 
  

(1)  Carry out day-to-day supervision of all Special Education programs and services. 
  

(2)  Serve as lead administrator when potential legal involvement is identified. 
  

(3)  Ensure special  education  programs and services are available for all individuals 
      with exceptional  needs who are found eligible by Federal and State laws and 
       regulations. 

  
(4)   Develop annual income and expenditure  budgets for the implementation  of 
       Special Education  programs and services for the Special Education  Local Plan 
       Area. 

  
(5)  Make Administrative Placements for transferring  individuals with exceptional 
       needs with an active Individualized  Education  Programs (IEP). 

  
(6)  Develop administrative rules and regulations  necessary to implement  policies 
       which affect the SELPA, not in conflict with Colusa County Office of Education 
       policies, subject  to the approval of the Executive Committee. 

  
(7)  Report to the County Board of Education concerning Special Education. 

  



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-14 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

(8)  Establish  committees to address ongoing concerns and needs of special education. 
  

(9)  Act as a resource for district Special Education components  of the Categorical     
       Program Monitoring  (CPM). 

(10)  Implement  and monitor any CPM special education corrective  actions. 

(11)  Receive, respond  to, implement,  and monitor: 
• Office of Civil Rights (OCR) Complaints 

• Procedural  Safeguards,  complaints, and Due Process Findings. 
  
  

(12)  Gather all data and submit reports required by the Federal Government  and the 
State Department. 

  
(13)  Make staff assignments, supervise and evaluate special education  personnel, with 

input from site administration. (Cross reference SELPA  Admin-Employment of 
Staff) 

  
(14)  Meet with each District Management Team as needed. 

  
(15)  Provide information on trends and quality practices in Special Education 

  
(16)  Make presentations to groups on topics related to Special Education. 

  
(17)   Collaborate with non-public schools/agencies providing programs or services to 

individuals with special needs who reside within Colusa County Office of 
Education boundaries. 

  
(18)   Serve as a member  of the Colusa County Office of Education  leadership team. 

  
(19)   Participate in Individualized  Education Plan meetings as needed. 
  

         The Colusa County SELPA Director's primary  responsibilities include: 
  

(1)  Act as executive secretary to the Executive Committee and SELPA Council; 
      prepare agendas and information for its meetings and submit  minutes for 
      approval. 

  
(2)  Serve  as a liaison between  the Executive Committee and the Community  
       Advisory Council. 

  
(3)  Act as a resource for the SELPA-wide Special  Education Categorical Program 
      Monitoring (CPM). 

  



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-15 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

(4) Act as a liaison to the State Department of Education, Department of Mental Health, 
      Department of Health and Human  Services, California Children's Services and any  
      other agency in accordance with interagency agreements. 

  
(5)  Provide management of Office of Civil Rights (OCR), due process and 
       complaint findings and share these  findings, as appropriate, and coordinate 
       necessary changes at the SELPA  level. 

  
(6)  Provide copies of parent  rights which  include information about  low cost and/or 
       free legal services in the area. 

  
(7)  Coordinate meetings with nonpublic school  personnel to determine educational  
      costs. 

  
(8)  Participate in State level SELPA  meetings and share  information, as 
       appropriate,with superintendents, Community Advisory Committee (CAC), boards   
       and community. 

  
(9)  Submit waivers necessary for the implementation of the Local  Plan. 

  
(10)  Approve all purchases for low incidence materials, equipment and services. 

  
(11) Make contractual and administrative arrangements with other SELPA's serving   
       Colusa County Special  Education students. 

  
(12)  Provide regionalized services including staff  development. 

  
(13)  Provide guidance and involvement in complex l.E.P. situations. 
  

  (14)  Manage CALPADS (CALPADS) system and complete all reports required from the  
          pupil data count. 
 
(15)  Develop Local Plan procedures and forms for Special Education. 
 
(16)   Develop policies for Special Education to be reviewed and approved by SELPA 

Council. 
  
           (17)  Track and represent SELPA on legislative issues.  

(18)  Provide consultant services when appropriate. 

  
(19)  Prepare and monitor budgets for federal, state and local   
         funds. 

  
(20)   Identify and pursue grant funding and other resources to support and/or increase 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-16 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

programs and services 
  

(21)   Ensure special education programs and services are available for all individuals 
with exceptional needs who are found eligible by Federal and State laws and 
regulations. 

  
(22)  Establish committees to address ongoing concerns and needs of the SELPA. 

  
(23)  Gather all data and submit reports required by the Federal Government and the      
         State Department, SELPA, and the County. 

  
The Executive Committee will assist the Colusa County Superintendent of Schools in 
hiring the SELPA Director. The SELPA Director will be evaluated annually by the County 
Superintendent with prior written input from the Executive Committee, including, when 
appropriate, recommendation for continued assignment in the position. 

  
REFERENCES:  Education Code Section 56200(c)(l). 
 

b. The local method used to distribute federal and state funds to the SELPA RLA/AU and 
to LEAs within the SELPA:

BUDGET PLANNING  PROCESS 
  

Both Federal and State law require that all eligible pupils residing within a SELPA 
have equal access to special education  programs and services regardless of their 
district of residence. To accomplish this goal, the SELPA Council is required to (1) 
have a process for allocating  funds in accordance  with laws and regulations (2) 
develop an annual budget allocation  plan; and (3) monitor the use of special 
education  funds. 

  
In the Colusa County Special Education Local Plan Area all of the programs and 
services are provided  by one agency within the planning area and through contract  
with a neighboring  SELPA.  The local education  agency governing boards for the 
Colusa County SELPA agree that each district shall be responsible for assuring 
services to pupiIs in their district.   The responsibility for program provision has been 
assigned  to the Colusa County Office of Education who is responsible for the 
development  of all of the budget and implementation phases of special education 
services. 

  
The SELPA Council reviews the budget and the provision of services annually so that 
the programs and services  appropriate to the needs of the area are implemented.  A 
unanimous vote by the SELPA Council is needed for any action on a budget item.  
With the exception  of the County Board approving costs not approved by the SELPA 
Council, any and all deficit and/or excess costs incurred  by the SELPA, during the 
term of this agreement, shall be the responsibility of the districts who, exclusively,  
shall be obligated for payment. 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-17 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

  
Recognizing that the primary goal is to provide  appropriate educational services to 
individuals  with exceptional  needs, the budget planning process should proceed in an 
atmosphere of mutual respect, trust and cooperation.  To maintain a quality program 
we recognize the need to provide adequate funding and staff compensation. The 
budget will be sufficient  to maintain compliance with state and federal mandates. 

  
  
             BUDGET 

  
  

The budget shall  be "presented in a form that is understandable by the general 
public" (E.C. 56195.7(w)). An annual budget allocation  plan shall be adopted at a 
public hearing held by the SELPA.   Notice of this hearing shall be posted in each 
school in the local plan area at least 15 days prior to the hearing. 
  
The budget documents shall be reviewed by the Executive Committee in preparation 

for the annual budget presentation and shall be available  upon request: 
    

   • Actual expenditures by object code and classification for the previous fiscal year; 
• The budget by the same object code and classification  for the current year; 

• The number and type of certificated instructional and support  personnel, 
including type of class setting to which they are assigned, if appropriate; 

• The number of para educators and other qualified  classified personnel; 

• The number of special education pupils receiving each type of service provided; 

Allocations  will include: 
• Funds received  by source; 

• Administrative cost of plan; 

• Services to pupil with severe and low incidence disabilities; 

• Services to pupils with non-severe disabilities 

• Supplemental aids and services to meet the needs of pupils in a regular    

  classroom; 

• Regionalized operations  and services and direct instructional  support by   

  program specialists; 
• Use of property  tax. 

  
  
    

BUDGET DEVELOPMENT 
  
The SELPA budget shall be developed in accordance  with the following  procedures 
and schedule: 

    



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-18 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

a.   Budget Review and Recommendation: 
  

The budget process shall be initiated no later than February by the Executive 
Committee which shall schedule and convene such budget workshops as are 
reasonable and necessary, in the Executive Committee's judgment, to: 

  
i.   Determine and prioritize educational  program goals, objectives and 

requirements. 

ii.    Review and analyze the current school year budget. 
  

iii.    Project upcoming SELPA revenue and expenditure requirements. 
  

iv.   Propose  budgetary increases and decreases as warranted by 
projected revenue and expenditure  in light of program goals, 
objectives and requirements. 

  
The Assistant  Superintendent-Special Education I SELPA Director shall 
provide the budgetary assumptions to the Executive Committee  no later than 
April 1. 

  
b. Tentative  Budget: 

                         Based on Executive Committee  review and recommendation, the Assistant  
                         Superintendent -Special Education/SELPA Director shall submit a tentative    
                         SELPA budget to the SELPA Council for the upcoming school year at least one  
                         week prior to the April SELPA Council meeting. 
  

c.  Budget Adoption: 
  

           A unanimous vote of member's present shall be required for action related to the    
           budget. For purposed of this paragraph "member's present" includes voting   
           members of SELPA Council defined as the 5 Superintendents or selected  
           alternate, the board representative for each district or the selected board member  
           alternate, i.e. District Business Official or other board member. If a unanimous  
          vote cannot be achieved, then the item shall be placed on each of the five board  
          agendas at the latest the next regular scheduled board meeting. The item would  
          need a majority vote by each local board to pass the budget. If passed by all the  
          local boards the SELPA Council would reconvene to officially approve the SELPA  
         budget. If not passed by all local boards, it will go back to the SELPA Council for a  
         vote. A super majority vote of 80% of member's present shall be required for  
         passage. If a super majority vote cannot be achieved, then the item shall be place  
         on each of the five board agendas at the latest the next regular scheduled board  
         meeting. The item would need a majority vote by each local board to pass the  
         budget. If passed by 4 out of the 5 local boards the SELPA Council would  
         reconvene to officially approve the SELPA budget. If not passed by 4 out of the 5  
         local boards the SELPA Council will reconvene to continue discussion. This process



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-19 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

         would continue until a compromise is reached and the items are resolved. 
  

  
d.   Board Adoptions of Budget Approved by SELPA Council: 
 
          If passed by all local boards the SELPA Council would  
          reconvene to officially approve the SELPA  budget. 

  
If not passed by all local boards the SELPA Council will reconvene to continue 
discussion.  This process would continue until a compromise is reached and 
the items are resolved. 

  
e.         Disagreement 

If  a disagreement is not  resolved,  the  budget  in  existence  at  May 15  will  be 
continued  (stay put) into the next year until a tentative  budget is passed. 

  
If the County Board approves costs not approved  by the SELPA Council, the 
County Board would be liable for these additional costs until the SELPA Council 
approves their inclusion  in the SELPA Budget. These additional costs would 
need to be brought before the SELPA Council each year and not automatically  
rolled into the budget. 

  
Budget changes follow the policy of the Colusa County Board of Education 
except for changes that affect deficits and/or excess costs for the current or 
future years.  These changes require unanimous approval  of the SELPA 
Council prior presentation  to the County Board of Education. 

  
The County Office will charge an indirect rate of 7% of the total actual audited 
program expenditures that flow through the County  Office during the operation 
of the Local Plan. 

  
            DUE PROCESS COSTS 

  
   Due process costs shall be shared by the four districts by unduplicated  pupil count    
   as long as the district of residence  has followed the Local Plan.  In the event a fair  
   hearing is filed involving  a student or situation regarding Adult Transition, Coastal    
   Buttes Academy, and Williams S. Abel Community School services or program, the    
   Colusa County Office of Education  will be responsible for   
   fair hearing costs. 

  
In the event that the district of residence has not carried out their responsibilities 
stated in the Local Plan, the other three districts are not obligated to share any of the 
cost. Any disagreement concerning adherence  to the Local Plan will be determined  
by the SELPA Executive  committee. 

  
Due process costs are defined  as: Costs arising out of any claim, dispute, 
compliance complaint  or other action related to the identification, assessment, 
program provision, placement, suspension,  expulsion or any other matter having to 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-20 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

do with a pupil's right to special education services  under the parties'  Local Plan, PL 
94-142,  IDEA 2004, Section 504 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, related provision of 
California  Education Code Sections  56000 et seq., and/or California  Administrative  
Code Title 5 Section 3000 et seq. 

  
It is understood that decisions  regarding  pupil assessment,  program  needs, and 
placement can result in precipitous  actions  being taken by parents. Such precipitous 
actions include parental unilateral  placement  of a pupil for which there is an award 
or settlement for retroactive  reimbursement and attorney fees. Such costs are herein 
defined as "precipitous costs". 

  
Precipitous costs in special education  can occur and will be shared like other due 
process costs. 

  
It is further understood  and agreed that any dispute regarding  the definition 
of "precipitous costs" or "due process costs" will be determined  by the 
Executive Committee by majority vote. 

    
  
           COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 

  
The District Superintendents will nominate a representative to serve as a member of 
the County  Superintendent's collective bargaining team.  As a member of the 
County Superintendent's bargaining  team, the representative shall have the duty 
and responsibility to fully participate  in all aspects of the County Superintendent's 
negotiation processes,  including all table negotiations, caucuses, deliberations and 
executive sessions with the County Superintendent of Schools.  The team shall 
consist of the County Superintendent, the Assistant  Superintendent-Special 
Education/SELPA Director, the County Associate Superintendent of Business 
Services, the County Director of Human Resources, and a district superintendent. 

  
In developing collective  bargaining proposals at any time during the course of 
negotiations, any disagreement among or between the County Superintendent's 
collective bargaining team members  as to such proposals having to do with the level 
of compensation to be offered  to unit members shall be referred for consultation  to 
the Superintendents Council. Members  of the Superintendents Council shall include 
all District Superintendents and the County Superintendent. 

    
   If the Superintendents Council recommendation  fails to resolve any disagreement as    
   to proposed compensation to be offered to the unit, the Executive Committee shall  
   have the discretion  to recommend  to the County Superintendent the employment  of  
   an experienced negotiator  from among individuals and firms providing such services  
  on an independent contractor  basis to public education agencies.  The purpose of said  
  recommendation is for said negotiator to carry on for the then current bargaining  team.  
  The negotiator shall complete  negotiations  on behalf of the County Superintendent in  
  an attempt to effect settlement.   If the County Superintendent fails to follow the  
  Executive Committee  recommendation for a replacement negotiator, then the County  
  Office of Education shall bear full responsibility  for any and all deficit and/or excess  



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-21 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

  costs resulting from the then current negotiations.   Once appointed  by the County  
  Superintendent, said negotiator  shall be the designated  representative  of the County  
  Superintendent exclusively  who shall be responsible for those obligations  undertaken  
  pursuant to the independent  contract including fees for negotiation services. 

  
Collective Bargaining Procedure 

  
The following  procedures shall apply to SELPA related collective  bargaining 
engaged in by the County Superintendent of Schools with certificated and 
classified  bargaining units. 

  
In carrying out its collective  bargaining duties and responsibilities as provided 
above, the District Superintendents and County Superintendent shall comply with 
the following procedures: 

  
1. Proposal  Initiation: 

  
Each agency represented  on the Executive  Committee  shall initiate and 
present any recommendations for change, amendment or alteration of the 
current collective  bargaining  agreement, including  those related to employee 
compensation, to the Executive Committee  by March 1, of each school year, or 
within 150 days prior to the expiration or reopening of the current agreement. 

  
2.  Proposal Development: 

  
The Executive  Committee shall review and consider member bargaining 
recommendations. The Executive Committee shall develop a comprehensive 
bargaining  proposal for recommendation to the County Superintendent on or 
before March 31. No proposal which has less than majority support  of the 
Superintendents Committee  shall be recommended to the collective bargaining 
team for consideration. 

  
3.    Proposal Adoption: 

  
The collective bargaining team shall review and consider the Executive 

                    Committee's  proposed rccommendation(s). Upon due consideration,  but not later    
                    than April 30, the collective  bargaining team  shall report to the Executive  
                    Committee  as to which, if any, of the recommended  proposals have been accepted 
                    for inclusion  as part of the initial collective  bargaining  proposal for the school year. 
  
                    4.   Proposal Modification: 
  
                    During the course of negotiations, collective bargaining  team shall advise the            
                    Executive Committee of the current status of negotiations. 
  
                   During the course of negotiations,  the Executive  Committee  shall advise the   
                   collective  bargaining team of its position regarding  the status of negotiations. 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-22 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

  
                   Unless the Executive  Committee advises the collective  bargaining team that it   
                   desires a modification in the bargaining proposals or positions, it is understood and   
                   agreed that the collective bargaining team has the authorization  and concurrence  of 
                   the Executive Committee  to continue  negotiations. 

          INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAM DEFICIT AND/OR EXCESS COSTS ALLOCATION  
  

Colusa County Office of Education receives the funding for programs and services. A 
report of programs, services, and allocation of costs, will be reviewed semi-annually 
by the SELPA Council in October and April.  
  
Total instructional  program  deficits and/or excess costs incurred by the SELPA shall 
be allocated by the district of residence of each student enrolled in a special 
education program on the following basis: 

  
Each District shall be responsible for that portion of the total instructional 
program amount of any deficit and/or excess costs as each District's 
unduplicated  pupil count (as set forth in the District's  April P2 count of the 
previous year) bears to the total unduplicated  pupil count for all Districts 
(as set forth from the total of all District's P2 count as of April of the 
previous year) i.e.: individual district pupil count  percent to be applied to 
total excess costs divided by equals total of all districts' pupil count total 
instructional program deficit individual district allocation of deficit and/or 
excess costs multiplied by equals percent for each district from previous 
calculation. 
               

  
              TRANSPORTATION DEFICITS  AND/OR EXCESS COSTS ALLOCATION: 

  
The Colusa County Office of Education receives the funding for SELPA 
Transportation. An annual report of transportation costs will be reviewed by the 
SELPA Council. 

  
Total transportation deficits and/or excess costs incurred by the SELPA shall be from 
the combination  of two general  types of costs; (1) transportation  costs incurred for 
routes entirely within the boundaries  of the four (4) school districts included in the 
Colusa County SELPA; and (2) those costs incurred for routes that include points 
outside of Colusa County.  The allocation  of deficits and/or excess costs shall be on 
the following basis. 

  
COLUSA COUNTY  SELPA: 

  
From the total transportation revenue will first be subtracted all transportation  
costs incured for routes entirely within Colusa County SELPA. 

  
If this calculation  results in any excess revenues, the excess revenues  will be 
used to offset any deficit and/or excess costs incurred for routes that include 
points outside of Colusa County SELPA. 

  



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-23 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

If this calculation results in any deficit and/or excess costs, the deficit and/or excess 
costs shall be allocated  as each District's total April P2 unduplicated  pupil count of 
the previous year relates to all Districts total April P2 unduplicated  pupil count of the 
previous year, i.e. individual district pupil count percent to be applied to total excess 
costs divided by equals total of all districts' pupil count total transportation program 
deficit invididual district allocation of deficit and/or excess costs multiplied by equals 
percent of each district from previous calculation. 

  
The Colusa County Office of Education will continue to be the SELPA Administrative 
Agency and in this capacity will continue to receive funding for Special Education 
transportation. Districts will be reimbursed  for alternative transportation  
arrangements for special education students. 

  
  

                 COST OF IN-KIND CONTRIBUITONS 
It is understood  and agreed that, individually, the SELPA member districts shall 
make certain in-kind contributions necessary to the provision, maintenance  and 
delivery of special education  services under the Local Plan. The exact nature, 
amount and value of such contributions cannot be ascertained  in advance, but will 
depend upon a number of factors including,  program location and program needs, as 
determined  by the contributing district as reasonable  and necessary for the Local 
Plan implementation. Such contributions may include maintenance and operations, 
salaries, services, other operating expenditures and other supplies. 

  
It is further understood  and agreed that said in-kind contributions shall constitute the 
sole responsibility of the contributing  district, except that any district shall have the 
right on a case by case basis to petition the SELPA Council for an allocation  of in-
kind contribution costs among the districts of the SELPA.  Allocation shall be made at 
the discretion of and only upon unanimous agreement of the Executive Committee. 
  

                 DEFICT AND/OR EXCESS COSTS 
Excess costs shall be defined as the amount by which actual audited program 
expenditures that flow through the County Office exceed designated  federal, state, 
and local revenue entitlements  per the J-50/J-141  as of June 30 of each fiscal 
year. 

  
Deficits shall  be defined as the amount  by which actual audited revenue is less 
than designated  federal, state, and local revenue entitlements  per the J-50/J 141 
as of June 30 of each fiscal year.  With the exception  of the County Board 
approving  costs not approved  by the SELPA Council, each district shall make 
payment for any and all deficits and/or excess costs to the County Office as follows: 

  
  
  

(a)     On January 31 of each school year, based on the current budget in effect at that 
time, each district shall pay to the County Office an amount equal to fifty percent 
of its allocated portion of the estimated deficit/excess costs. 

  
(b)     On or before August 31 of the succeeding fiscal year, each district shall be billed 

by and make payments to the County Office (or receive refunds as the case may 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-24 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

be) for any difference between the estimated and actual deficit/excess costs 
incurred. 

  
(c)     Any adjustments noted in the annual audit process will be reconciled in the 

succeeding fiscal year. 
  

  
INTEREST CREDITS/CHARGES 
  
On a monthly basis, SELPA program cash receipts and cash disbursements will be 
compared. Any difference will be the base amount for the computation of interest. 
The rate, timing, and calculations used will be those established by the Colusa 
County Treasurer. Positive interest will be credited and negative interest will be 
charged to the SELPA program. 
 

c. The operation of special education programs: education programs:

All programs and services  are provided through Colusa County Office of Education. 
Special education administration is provided by the Colusa County Office of Education 
in a dual role of Assistant  Superintendent-Special Education/SELPA Director.

d. Monitoring the appropriate use of federal, state, and local funds allocated for special 
education programs:

         ACCOUNTING FOR FEDERAL  FUNDS 
  

The Colusa County Office of Education receives federal funding for special education 
services.   These resources are identified on budget systems to provide sufficient 
accountability.   Expenditures are also identified and audited for compliance  with 
Federal guidelines. 

  
REFERENCE:  Education  Code 34 C.F.R. 300.299. 

  
       ACCOUNTING FOR STATE  FUNDS 

  
The Colusa County Office of Education  receives state funding  for special education 
services.   These resources are identified on budget systems to provide sufficient 
accountability.  Expenditures are also identified and audited for compliance  with State 
guidelines. 

  
       ACCOUNTING FOR LOCAL CONTRIBUTION 

  
          The Colusa County Office of Education receives local contribution  of district funds to     
          cover the excess cost of providing the special education services.  The local contribution   
          supplements State and Federal Funds. For details of the budget process and procedures   



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-25 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

          for determining distribution of excess costs, refer to Section B 11B.

12. Describe how specialized equipment and services will be distributed within the SELPA in a 
manner that minimizes the necessity to serve students in isolated sites and maximizes the 
opportunities to serve students in the least restrictive environments:

Low incidence funds are designated by Federal and State resources to provide 
services, special books, materials and equipment for pupils who meet eligibility criteria 
for specific low incidence disabilities as documented in the I.E.P. (E.C. 56026.5). 

  
Current Low Incidence Disabilities include: hearing impairments, vision impairments, 
and severe orthopedic impairments or any combination thereof. 

  
LOW INCIDENCE FUNDS AND SERVICES 

  
The Local Education Agency of the Colusa County Special Education Local Plan Area 
will distribute low incidence funds based on needs documented by IFSP's and IEP's. 

  
PROCEDURES:  LOW INCIDENCE FUNDS AND SERVICES 

  
The Assistant Superintendent Special Education I SELPA Director shall facilitate the 
distribution of funds according to the following process: 

  
(1)  The IEP team for an eligible pupil with a low incidence disability who is in need of 

special resources shall prepare a request for funds including: 
  

a.  Pupil's eligibility category; 
  

b. Description of low incidence services, special books; materials and/or 
equipment needs; 

  
c.   Submit proposal to Assistant Superintendent Special Education I SELPA 
 

Policies, Procedures, and Programs  

Pursuant to EC sections 56122 and 56205(a), the SELPA ensures conformity with Title 20 United 
States Code (USC) and in accordance with Title 34 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 
300.201 and has in effect policies, procedures, and programs. For each of the following 23 areas, 
identify whether, or not each of the following provisions of law are adopted as stated. If the policy 
is not adopted as stated, briefly describe the SELPA's policy for the given area. In all cases, 
provide the SELPA policy and procedure numbers; the document title; and the physical location 
where the policy can be found.  

1. Free Appropriate Public Education: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(1)



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-26 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Policy/Procedure Number: 1

Document Title: Free Appropriate Public Education

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that a free appropriate public education is available to all children 
with disabilities residing in the LEA between the ages of 3 and 21, inclusive, including children with 
disabilities who have been suspended or expelled from school." The policy is adopted by the SELPA 
as stated: 

Yes No

2. Full Educational Opportunity: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(2)

Policy/Procedure Number: 2

Document Title: Full Educational Opportunity

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

“It shall be the policy of this LEA that all children with disabilities have access to educational 
programs, non-academic programs, and services available to non-disabled children.” The policy is 
adopted by the SELPA as stated:

Yes No

3. Child Find: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(3)

Policy/Procedure Number: 3

Document Title: Child Find

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that all children with disabilities residing in the State, including children 
with disabilities who are homeless or are wards of the State and children with disabilities attending 
private schools, regardless of the severity of their disabilities, who are in need of special education and 
related services, are identified, located, and evaluated. A practical method has been developed and 
implemented to determine which children with disabilities are currently receiving needed special 
education and related services." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-27 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

4. Individualized Education Program (IEP) and Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP): 
20 USC Section 1412(a)(4)

Policy/Procedure Number: 4

Document Title:
Individualized Education Program (IEP) and Individualized Family 
Service Plan (IFSP)

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

“It shall be the policy of this LEA that an IEP, or an IFSP that meets the requirements of 20 USC 
Section 1436 (d), is developed, implemented, reviewed, and revised for each child with a disability who 
requires special education and related services in accordance with 20 USC Section 1414 (d). It shall 
be the policy of this LEA that a of an IEP will be conducted on at least an annual basis to review a 
student’s progress and make appropriate revisions.” The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No

5. Least Restrictive Environment: USC Section 1412(a)(5)

Policy/Procedure Number: 5

Document Title: Least Restrictive Environment

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that to the maximum extent appropriate, children with disabilities, 
including children in public or private institutions or other care facilities, are educated with children 
who are not disabled. Special classes, separate schooling, or other removal of children with 
disabilities from the general educational environment, occurs only when the nature or severity of the 
disability of a child is such that education in regular classes with the use of supplementary aids and 
services cannot be achieved satisfactorily." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No

6. Procedural Safeguards: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(6)

Policy/Procedure Number: 6

Document Title: Procedural Safeguards

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-28 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

“It shall be the policy of this LEA that children with disabilities and their parents shall be afforded all 
procedural safeguards according to state and federal laws and regulations.” The policy is adopted by 
the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No

7. Evaluation: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(7)

Policy/Procedure Number: 7

Document Title: Evaluation

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

“It shall be the policy of this LEA that a reassessment of a child with a disability shall be conducted at 
least once every three years or more frequently, if appropriate.” The policy is adopted by the SELPA 
as stated:

Yes No

8. Confidentiality: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(8)

Policy/Procedure Number: 8

Document Title: Confidentiality

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that the confidentiality of personally identifiable data, information, 
and records maintained by the LEA relating to children with disabilities and their parents and families 
shall be protected pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, non-academic 
programs, and services available to non-disabled children." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as 
stated: 

Yes No

9. Part C to Part B Transition: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(9)

Policy/Procedure Number: 9

Document Title: Part C to Part B Transition

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-29 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that children participating in early intervention programs under the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), Part C, and who will participate in preschool 
programs, experience a smooth and effective transition to preschool programs in a manner 
consistent with 20 USC Section 1437(a)(9). The transition process shall begin prior to the child's third 
birthday."The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No

10. Private Schools: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(10)

Policy/Procedure Number: 10

Document Title: Private Schools

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to assure that children with disabilities voluntarily enrolled by their 
parents in private schools shall receive appropriate special education and related services pursuant to 
LEA coordinated procedures. The proportionate amount of federal funds will be allocated for the 
purpose of providing special education services to children with disabilities voluntarily enrolled in 
private school by their parents." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No

11. Local Compliance Assurances: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(11)

Policy/Procedure Number: 11

Document Title: Local Compliance Assurances

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that the local plan shall be adopted by the appropriate local board(s) 
(district/county) and is the basis for the operation and administration of special education programs, 
and that the agency(ies) herein represented will meet all applicable requirements of state and federal 
laws and-regulations, including compliance with the IDEA; the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 
Section 504 of Public Law; and the provisions of the California EC, Part 30." The policy is adopted by 
the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No

12. Interagency: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(12) 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-30 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Policy/Procedure Number: 12

Document Title: Interagency 

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that interagency agreements or other mechanisms for interagency 
coordination are in effect to ensure services required for free appropriate public education are 
provided, including the continuation of services during an interagency dispute resolution process." 
The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated:

Yes No

13. Governance: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(13)

Policy/Procedure Number: 13

Document Title: Governance

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to support and comply with the provisions of the governance bodies 
and any necessary administrative support to implement the local plan. A final determination that an 
LEA is not eligible for assistance under this part will not be made without first affording that LEA with 
reasonable notice and an opportunity for a hearing through the State Education Agency." The policy is 
adopted by the SELPA as stated:

Yes No

14. Personnel Qualifications

Policy/Procedure Number: 14

Document Title: Personnel Qualifications

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to ensure that personnel providing special education related services 
are appropriately and adequately prepared and trained, and that those personnel have the content 
knowledge and skills to serve children with disabilities. This policy shall not be construed to create a right 
of action on behalf of an individual student for the failure of a particular LEA staff person to be highly 
qualified or to prevent a parent from filing a State complaint with the California Department of Education 
(CDE) about staff qualifications." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-31 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Yes No

15. Performance Goals and Indicators: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(15)

Policy/Procedure Number: 15

Document Title: Performance Goals and Indicators

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to comply with the requirements of the performance goals and 
indicators developed by the CDE and provide data as required by the CDE." The policy is adopted by 
the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No

16. Participation in Assessments: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(16)

Policy/Procedure Number: 16

Document Title: Participation in Assessments

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that all students with disabilities shall participate in state and district-
wide assessment programs described in 20 USC Subsection 6311. The IEP team determines how a 
student will access assessments with or without accommodations, or access alternate assessments 
where necessary and as indicated in their respective Reps.." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as 
stated: 

Yes No

17. Supplementation of State, Local, and Federal Funds: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(17)

Policy/Procedure Number: 17

Document Title: Supplementation of State, Local, and Federal Funds

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to provide assurances that funds received from Part B of the IDEA 
will be expended in accordance with the applicable provisions of the IDEA, and will be used to 
supplement and not to supplant state, local, and other federal funds." The policy is adopted by the 
SELPA as stated:



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-32 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Yes No

18. Maintenance of Effort: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(18)

Policy/Procedure Number: 18

Document Title: Maintenance of Effort

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that federal funds will not be used to reduce the level of local funds 
and/or combined level of local and state funds expended for the education of children with disabilities 
except as provided in federal laws and regulations." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No

19. Public Participation: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(19)

Policy/Procedure Number: 19

Policy/Procedure Title: Public Participation

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA that public hearings, adequate notice of the hearings, and an opportunity 
for comments are available to the general public,including individuals with disabilities and parents of 
children with disabilities, and are held prior to the adoption of any policies and/or regulations needed to 
comply with Part B of the IDEA." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated:

Yes No

20. Suspension and Expulsion: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(22)

Policy/Procedure Number: 20

Document Title: Suspension and Expulsion

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"The LEA assures that data on suspension and expulsion rates will be provided in a manner 
prescribed by the CDE. When indicated by data analysis, the LEA further assures that policies, 
procedures, and practices related to the development and implementation of the IEPs will be 
revised." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-33 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Yes No

21. Access to Instructional Materials: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(23)

Policy/Procedure Number: 21

Document Title: Access to Instructional Materials

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to provide instructional materials to blind students or other 
students with print disabilities in a timely manner according to the state-adopted National 
Instructional Materials Accessibility Standard." The policy is adopted by the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No

22. Over-identification and Disproportionality: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(24)

Policy/Procedure Number: 22

Document Title: Over-identification and Disproportionality

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to prevent the inappropriate over-identification or disproportionate 
representation by race and ethnicity of children as children with disabilities." The policy is adopted by 
the SELPA as stated: 

Yes No

23. Prohibition on Mandatory Medicine: 20 USC Section 1412(a)(25) 

Policy/Procedure Number: 23

Document Title: Prohibition on Mandatory Medicine

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

"It shall be the policy of this LEA to prohibit school personnel from requiring a student to obtain a 
prescription for a substance covered by the Controlled Substances Act as a condition of attending 
school or receiving a special education assessment and/or services." The policy is adopted by the 
SELPA as stated: 

Yes No



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-34 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Administration of Regionalized Operations and Services 

Pursuant to EC sections 56195.7(c), 56205(a)(12)(B), 56368, and 56836.23, describe the 
regionalized operation and service functions. Descriptions must include an explanation of the 
direct instructional support provided by program specialists; and the respective roles of the RLA/
AU, the SELPA administrator, and the individual LEAs associated with the SELPA. Information 
provided should include the reference number, document title, and the location (e.g., SELPA 
office) for each function:

1. Coordination of the SELPA and the implementation of the local plan:

Reference Number: AR-1

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

Direct Instructional support provided by program specialists: 
 
The local education  agency governing  boards of the Colusa County 
SELPA agree to provide Program Specialists  through the Colusa 
County Office of Education.  The Executive  Committee  will analyze 
and provide direction for distribution of Program Specialist services.  
Pupil count and CBEDS in each district will be considered in the 
allocation  of Program Specialist  services assignments. Program 
Specialists  are supervised  by the Assistant Superintendent Special 
Education/SELPA Director and are selected  through the special 
education certificated employment procedure. The Program  Specialist's 
responsibilities include the following: 
(1)  Observe, consult with, and assist special education  staff. 
(2)  Participate in and provide staff development to special education 
and regular education  staff concerning special education. 
(3)  Assure that pupils within Colusa County SELPA have full 
educational opportunity. 
(4)   Plan programs, coordinate  curricular  resources,  and assess 
effectiveness  of programs for individuals  with exceptional  needs. 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The member districts  in the local plan have designated  Colusa County 
Office of Education as the Responsible Local Agency for the SELPA.   
The County office provides dual services both as the Responsible Local 
Agency and as the service provider.  The Colusa County Office of 
Education  is designated  to receive all federal and state funds allocated 
to the SELPA with Executive Council oversight, staffing  for special 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-35 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:
education services is the responsibility of the County Office of 
Education. 
  
The County Superintendent is the manager of the local plan. He/she or 
his/her designee directs and guides the implementation of the local plan 
board policies and decisions. The County Superintendent or designee  
when appropriate:  (A) hires and evaluates all special education  
personnel;  and (B) provides  guidance to program  personnel 
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director will 
ensure that the Local Plan is implemented and will make 
recommendations to the Executive Committee when revisions are 
needed. They will facilitate the review, revision, and administration of 
the Local Plan. They will also facilitate development and approval of 
SELPA policies and procedures necessary to implement the Local Plan. 
 
Role of the individual LEAs: 
The individual LEAs, through the Executive Committee, will ensure that 
a full continuum of services are available in order to provide a free and 
appropriate public education to all students with disabilities within the 
SELPA. The individual LEAs, through the Executive Committee, will 
approve any policies and procedures needed to implement the Local 
Plan. Each LEA will approve and implement the Local Plan as well as 
any LEA policies and procedures needed to implement the plan. The 
LEAs, through representation on the Executive Commitee, directs the 
Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director 
regarding the implementation, administration and operation of the Local 
Plan. 

2. Coordinated system of identification and assessment: 

Reference Number: AR-2

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A Williams, Ca 9598

Direct Instructional support provided by program specialists: 
The program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 
duties, whether they are employed by the SELPA or the LEA will 
observe, consult and assist service providers, as appropriate. 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-36 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider will ensure the following child find process is followed by 
participating LEAs: 
 
Step 1. Child Find Non-Identified Student Walks in to any school within 
Colusa County SELPA or Child Find Non-Identified Student Already 
Enrolled in any school within Colusa County SELPA proceed to Step 2 
 
Step 2. School or Children's Services SST process: implementation of 
accommodations, modification and Behavior Support Plans, as 
appropriate and documented. Children's Services Special Needs 
Coordinator or SST Chair is responsible for the monitor and 
implementation of SST process and recommendations. 
 
Step 3. School or Children's Services SST process suspects child may 
have a disability and needs more support than general  program  can 
provide: (Sites have exhausted  all general program resources)  refers 
to Special Education Services/SELPA. 
 
Role of Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director will 
ensure each LEA conducts child find activities through monitoring of 
each LEA's data. The SELPA will also provide targeted and intensive 
support to LEAs as needed to assist them in meeting their obligation. 
The SELPA Administrator, or designee, will facilitate the annual 
consultation to the private schools located within the SELPA. The 
SELPA will also participate in child find activities by establishing policies 
and procedures for the member LEAs and ensuring appropriate 
interagency agreements are in place. The Assistant Superintendent of 
Special Education/SELPA Director, or designee, will serve on 
committees as interagency agreements are being reviewed, revised, or 
developed. The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA 
Director will ensure that interagency agreements are in place as 
required by California Education Code. The Assistant Superintendent of 
Special Education/SELPA Director, or designee, will also provide 
guidance to parents, as needed.  
 
Role of the individual LEAs: 
Consistent with education code each LEA is responsible for identifying 
and assessing all students for whom they are the district of special 
education accountability. They are also responsible for conducting child 
find activities and implementing SELPA and LEA policies and 
procedures. The LEAs will also provide guidance to parents, staff, and 
community members.  



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-37 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Through their representative to the Executive Committee, the LEAs will 
approve interagency agreements. Each individual LEA and the SELPA, 
since the county serves the dual role of RLA and service provider,  is 
responsible for implementing approved interagency agreements, as 
appropriate.  
 
 
 
 
 

3. Coordinated system of procedural safeguards: 

Reference Number: AR-3

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
The program specialists assist parents with filing due process or 
compliance complaints when requested. The program specialist also 
assure procedural safeguards by providing technical assistance and 
guidance on forms and procedures to parents and LEAs in the areas of 
assessment, identification, and placement.  
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider will ensure the following coordinated system of procedural 
safeguards: 
The Colusa County SELPA is very sensitive to assuring procedural 
safeguards, complaints, and due process rights to its parents and 
pupils.  A conscientious effort to educate the educational community 
and provide protection regarding timeliness, services, information, etc. 
is ongoing in the Special Education Local Plan Area.  The following 
policy indicates administrations interest in assuring compliance of 
procedural safeguards, complaints and due process rights throughout 
the Special Education Local Plan Area. 
 
POLICY:  PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS 
 
The governing boards of local education agencies within the Colusa 
County SELPA agree to provide procedural safeguards, complaints and 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-38 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

due process rights as required for special education services. 
 
PROCEDURES:  PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS 
 
A.  Equal Access to all Programs and Services: 
 
Any pupils within the SELPA may be referred for special education 
assessment.  Pupils may be referred by Student Study Team, parent/
guardian or a pupil may request a self referral. Information regarding 
rights and legal provisions are given to the parent/ guardian, or student 
if he/she has reached the age of majority. 
 
 
REFERENCE:  34 C.F. R. 300.237 and 300.240 
 
B. Free Low Cost Legal Services: 
 
When a parent requests a due process hearing, the SELPA Director 
shall provide the parent with information regarding free and low cost 
legal services and other relevant services within the geographical area.   
In addition, information regarding the reimbursement for legal fees in 
hearings where the parent prevails is included for their edification. 
 
REFERENCE:  PL 99-372.  Handicapped Children's Protection Act of 
1986, Education Code 
Section 56502(a). 
 
C.  Complaints Resolution: 
Complaints regarding due process violations shall be referred to the 
Assistant Superintendent-Special Education/SELPA Director. Uniform 
Complaint Policy and Procedures shall be followed. 
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director 
handles all due process violations and complaints received within the 
SELPA. The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA 
Director, or their designee, assists parents with filing due process or 
compliance complaints. Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/
SELPA Director, or their designee, also assures procedural safeguards 
by providing technical assistance and guidance on forms and 
procedures to LEA's and SELPA staff in the areas of assessment, 
identification, and placement. The Assistant Superintendent of Special 
Education/SELPA Director, or their designee, will also provide parents 
with a copy of their procedural safeguards upon request and will 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-39 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

maintian a copy on their website. Assistant Superintendent of Special 
Education/SELPA Director, or their designee, also reviews compliance 
complaint determinations provied by the CDE and provides targeted or 
intensive assistance as appropriate. 
 
Role of the individual LEAs: The LEAs and SELPA staff provide 
procedural safeguards to parents consistent with education code, assist 
parents with understanding them, and ensure that they are 
implemented. The LEAs assist parents with filing complaints when 
requested. The LEAs will notify the Assistant Superintendent of Special 
Education/SELPA Director of all complaints and work together to deal 
with them.  
 
 

4. Coordinated system of staff development and parent and guardian education: 

Reference Number: AR-4

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

Description:

Direct Instructional Support provided by the program specialist: 
The program specialists, and others that are assigned to carry out these 
duties, support parent and guardian education, provide for staff 
development, program development, and innovation of special methods 
and approaches.  
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider, will do an annual needs assessment through the SELPA 
Executive Committee to determine staff training needs for LEA's. These 
needs will be given to the Assistant Superintendent of Special 
Education/SELPA to coordinate and provide training for teachers, 
administrators, volunteers, CAC members, and district governing 
boards.  
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
On an annual basis input is collected from the members of the 
Executive Committee to determine the staff development needs that the 
SELPA can facilitate or help provide for teachers, administrators, 
volunteers, CAC members, and district governing board members. On 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-40 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

an annual basis, the Community Advisory Committee will provide input 
on the parent and guardian education needs. The Assistant 
Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director, or designee, will 
provide the needed training and supports as determined appropriate. 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director may 
also provide technical assistance to individual LEAs regarding staff 
development and parent and guardian education. 
 
Role of individual LEAs: 
Individual LEAs will determine their staff development and parent and 
guardian education, based on their local needs. These needs will be 
shared with the Executive Committee and passed on to the  Assistant 
Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director. 

5. Coordinated system of curriculum development and alignment with the core curriculum: 

Reference Number: AR-5

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St Suite A Williams, Ca 95987

Description:

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
The program specialist and others that are assinged to carry out these 
duties will coordinate curricular resources for students with disabilities, 
as requested. 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider, will collaborate with LEAs is coordinating curricular resources 
for students with disabilities to ensure alignment with common core.  
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director, or 
designee, will provide technical assistance and staff development on 
curriculum development and alignment with common core, as 
determined appropriate.  
 
Role of the individual LEAs: 
LEAs will determine their needs for curriculum development and 
alignment with the core curriculum, based on their local needs. They 
ensure that each student with a disability has full access to the required 
core curriculum, any alternative curriculum and textbooks, and 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-41 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

supplementary curriculum and textbooks as appropriate, and 
instructional materials to blind students and other students with print 
disabilities. 

6. Coordinated system internal program review, evaluation of the effectiveness of the local plan, 
and implementation of the local plan accountability system: 

Reference Number: AR-6

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

Description:

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: Upon 
request, the program specialist and others that are assigned to carry out 
these duties, will evaluate the effectiveness of programs for students 
with disabilities. 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider, will facilitate the review of the Annual Budget and Service 
Plans, and the LEAs' Annual Performance Indicators. The County Office 
of Education through the Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/
SELPA Director will provide technical assistance in all monitoring 
activities LEAs engage in. 
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director, or 
designee, will faciltate the review of the Annual Budget and Service 
Plans, and the LEAs' Annual Performance Indicators. This includes and 
any additional pertinent data such as services provided by the SELPA. 
They will also facilitate reviews by the Superintendents, CAC, and other 
interested parent, community or educational groups. The Assistant 
Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director  will also review 
the funding allocation plan and services offered. 
 
Role of individual LEAs: 
Individual LEAs through their representative to the Executive 
Committee, review the Annual Budget and Service Plans, and the 
evaluation of services offered by the SELPA. Each representative 
provide input through the annual evaluation of SELPA services on the 
effectiveness of the Local Plan. 
Each individual LEA review and monitors Annul Performance Reports, 
the California School Dashboard, and other data sources to ensure 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-42 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

students with disabilities receive a free and appropriate public 
education. Individual LEAs also engage in monitoring activities as 
required by CDE. The Executive Committee representatives provide 
leadership for cooperative action among LEAs pertaining to the 
implementation, administration, and operation of the Local Plan. 

7. Coordinated system of data collection and management: 

Reference Number: AR-7

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

Description:

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
Not applicable 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider, will approve the California Longitudinal Assessment and Pupil 
Data System (CALPADS) submission of each member LEA as required 
by the California Department of Education. The County Office of 
Education, in collaboration with the LEAs, gather, interpret, and report 
special education program data and quality indicators regarding current 
program operations and effectiveness.  
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director, or 
designee, will approve the California Longitudinal Assessment and Pupil 
Data System (CALPADS) submission of member LEA as required by 
the California Department of Education. The Assistant Superintendent 
of Special Education/SELPA Director will provide technical assistance 
and staff development to LEAs as requested and/or deemed necessary 
by the SELPA. 
 
Role of individual LEAs: 
Individual LEAs are responsible for data entry, accuracy, and integrity. 
In collaboration with the SELPA, LEAs will assist in the gathering, 
interpreting, and reporting of special education program data and quality 
indicators regarding current program operations and effectiveness. The 
LEAs will approve the California Longitudinal Assessment and Pupil 
Data System (CALPADS) submission as required by the California 
Department of Education.  



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-43 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

8. Coordination of interagency agreements:

Reference Number: AR-8

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

Description:

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
Not applicable 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider, will ensure that interagency agreements are in place as 
required by California Education, and provide technical assistance as 
needed. The County Office is responsible for implementing approved 
interagency agreements, as appropriate. 
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director, or 
designee, will serve of committees as interagency agreements are 
being reviewed, revised, or developed. The Assistant Superintendent of 
Special Education/SELPA Director will ensure that interagency 
agreements are in place as required by California Education Code. 
 
Role of individual LEAs: 
Through their representative to the Executive Committee, the LEAs will 
approve interagency agreements. Each individual LEA is responsible for 
implementing approved interagency agreements, as appropriate.

9. Coordination of services to medical facilities:

Reference Number: AR-9

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
The program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 
duties assures students with disabilities have a full educational 
opportunity regardless of district of residence. 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-44 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider,is responsible for students with disabilities who are placed in a 
public hospital, state licensed children's hospital, psychiatric hospital, 
proprietary hospital, or a health facility for medical purposes when the 
hospital or facility is located with the CCOE SELPA boundaries, unless 
based on education code there is another district of special education 
accountability which would be responsible. 
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA will facilitate 
the coordination of these services and provide technical assistance to 
the medical facilities and LEAs as appropriate. 
 
Role of the individual LEAs: 
Through their representatives on the Executive Committee, LEAs will 
ensure that SELPA staff have the appropriate resources to provide 
these services.

10. Coordination of services to licensed children's institutions and foster family homes: 

Reference Number: AR-10

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

Description:

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
The program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 
duties assures students with disabilities have a full educational 
opportunity regardless of district of residence. 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider,is responsible for students with disabilities who are residing in 
foster family homes or licensed children's institution located within the 
Colusa SELPA boundaries, unless based on education code there is 
another district of special education accountability which would be 
responsible.  
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director, or 
designee, will facilitate the coordination of these services and provide 
technical assistant to the licensed children's institutions and foster 
family as appropriate. 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-45 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

 
Role of the individual LEAs: 
Through their representatives on the Executive Committee, LEAs will 
ensure that SELPA staff have the appropriate resources to provide 
these services. 

11. Preparation and transmission of required special education local plan area reports: 

Reference Number: AR-11

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

Description:

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
Not Applicable 
 
Role of the RLA/AU:  
The County Office reviews, signs and submits as appropriate any 
required special education Local Plan area reports. 
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA will ensure 
timely transmission of required reports. 
 
Role of the individual LEAs: 
Individual LEAs will submit required accurate data in order for the 
SELPA to submit timely reports.

12. Fiscal and logistical support of the CAC: 

Reference Number: AR-12

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
Not applicable 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider, through their representatives to the SELPA Council, will 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-46 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

ensure the SELPA has sufficient resources to provide fiscal and 
logistical support of the CAC. 
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director, or 
designee, will provide fiscal and logistical support for CAC meetings, 
events, and trainings that are approved by the SELPA Council. 
 
Role of individual LEAs: 
The LEA through their representatives to the SELPA Council will ensure 
the SELPA has sufficient resources to provide fiscal and logistical 
support for the CAC. LEA Superintendents has facilitate communication 
between their CAC representative from the LEA. Each LEA is 
responsible to appoint members to the CAC in accordance with CAC 
bylaws and LEA policies. Each LEA's governing board encourages 
parental involvement through the members of CAC, receives and 
consider requests and recommendations from their CAC 
representatives and other parent groups. 

13. Coordination of transportation services for individuals with exceptional needs: 

Reference Number: AR-13

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
The program specialists and other that are assigned to carry out these 
duties, provides staff development as appropriate. 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider, provides specialized transportation to students with disabilities 
as determined in their IEP's, in accordance with California Education 
Code 4 I 851.2. The Colusa County Office of Education receives the 
funding for SELPA Transportation.  An annual report of transportation 
costs will be reviewed by the SELPA Council. 
Administrative Guideline: 
 
Total transportation deficits and/or excess costs incurred by the SELPA 
shall be from the combination of two general types of costs; (1) 
transportation costs incurred for routes entirely within the boundaries of 
the four school districts included in the Colusa County SELPA; and (2) 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-47 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

those costs incurred for routes that include points outside of Colusa 
County.  The allocation of deficits and/or excess costs shall be on the 
following basis. 
 
All transportation costs incurred for routes entirely within Colusa County 
SELPA will first be subtracted from the total transportation revenue. 
 
If this calculation results in any excess revenues, the excess revenues 
will be used to offset any deficit and/or excess costs incurred for routes 
that include points outside of Colusa County SELPA (5.A.(2)). 
 
If this calculation results in any deficit and/or excess costs, the deficit 
and/or excess costs shall be allocated as each District's total April P2 
unduplicated pupil count of the previous year relates to all Districts total 
April P2 unduplicated pupil count of the previous year. 
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director, or 
designee, will coordinate, provide training, and technical support as 
appropriate. 
 
Role of the individual LEAs: 
Each LEA, through their representatives to the SELPA Council, will 
ensure resources are available to provide transportation for students 
with disabilities as determined by the IEP team.  

14. Coordination of career and vocational education and transition services: 

Reference Number: AR-14

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca 95984

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
The program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 
duties, will support staff development, program development, and 
innovation of special methods and approaches. 
 
Role of the RLA/AU:  
The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider, will provide appropriate career and vocational education and 
transition services as required under state and federal laws. The County 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-48 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

Office may also provide staff development in this area.  
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA, or 
designee, will provide technical assistance and staff development as 
needed. The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA 
Director, or designee, will oversee the coordination of career and 
vocational education and transition services delivered by the county 
office. The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA, or 
designee, may provide targeted or intensive support to LEAs based on 
identified needs in the Annual Performance Report and assist LEA's in 
completing any monitoring activities required by the CDE. Assistant 
Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA, or designee, will serve on 
committees as interagency agreements that address this are as they 
are being reviewed, revised, or developed. Assistant Superintendent of 
Special Education/SELPA will ensure that interagency agreements are 
in place as required by California Education Code, and provide technical 
assistance as appropriate. 
 
Role of the individual LEAs: 
Through their representative to the SELPA Council, the LEAs will 
approve interagency agreements and ensure their are resources to 
provide career, vocational, and transition services. Each LEA will be 
responsible for implementing approved interagency agreements, as 
appropriate.

15. Assurance of full educational opportunity: 

Reference Number: AR-15

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

Direct Instructional support provided by program specialist: 
The program specialists and others that are assigned to carry out these 
duties, will assure pupils have a full educational opportunity regardless 
of the district of special education accountability.  
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider, will determine programs needed to meet the needs of students 
with disabilities within the SELPA. The CCOE SELPA is responsible for 
providing a full continuum of services for students that reside within the 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-49 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

SELPA boundaries. 
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
Through approval of the Annual Services Plan, the Assistant 
Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director will ensure that 
the full continuum of services is provided. Additionally, professional 
development and technical assistance is available upon request or as 
determined to be needed by the SELPA to LEAs and/or nonpublic 
schools. 
Role of the individual LEAs: 
Each LEA, through their representative to the Executive Committee, will 
determine programs needed to meet the need of the student with 
disabilities within the SELPA to ensure a full continuum of services is 
being offered. 

16. Fiscal administration and the allocation of state and federal funds pursuant to EC Section 
56836.01—The SELPA Administrator's responsibility for the fiscal administration of the annual 
budget plan; the allocation of state and federal funds; and the reporting and accounting of special 
education funding. 

Reference Number: AR-16

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca, 95987

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
Not applicable. 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The member districts  in the local plan have designated  Colusa County 
Office of Education as the Responsible Local Agency for the SELPA.   
The County office provides dual services both as the Responsible Local 
Agency and as the service provider.  The Colusa County Office of 
Education  is designated  to receive all federal and state funds allocated 
to the SELPA with Executive Council oversight, and staffing  for special 
education services is the responsibility of the County Office of 
Education. 
 ACCOUNTING FOR FEDERAL  FUNDS 
  
The Colusa County Office of Education receives federal funding for 
special education services.   These resources are identified on budget 
systems to provide sufficient accountability.  Expenditures are also 
identified and audited for compliance with Federal guidelines. 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-50 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

  
REFERENCE:  Education  Code 34 C.F.R. 300.299. 
  
 ACCOUNTING FOR STATE FUNDS 
  
The Colusa County Office of Education  receives state funding  for 
special education services.   These resources are identified on budget 
systems to provide sufficient accountability.  Expenditures are also 
identified and audited for compliance  with State guidelines. 
  
 ACCOUNTING FOR LOCAL CONTRIBUTION 
  
The Colusa County Office of Education receives local contribution  of 
district funds to cover the excess cost of providing the special education 
services.  The local contribution supplements State and Federal Funds. 
For details of the budget process and procedures for determining 
distribution of excess costs, refer to Section B 11B. 
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director will 
facilitate and oversee the distribution of funding in accordance to the 
budget process approved by the SELPA Council. The Assistant 
Superintendent/SELPA Director will also facilitate the Annual Budget 
Plan. 
 
Role of the individual LEAs: 
Each LEA, through their representative to the SELPA Council, 
determines and approves the budget, distribution of funds, and the 
Annual Budget Plan. 

17. Direct instructional program support that maybe provided by program specialists in accordance 
with EC Section 56368:

Reference Number: AR-17

Document Title: Local Plan, Section B Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

Direct Instructional support provided by the program specialist: 
 
The local education  agency governing boards of the Colusa County 
SELPA agree to provide Program Specialists  through the Colusa 
County Office of Education.  The Executive  Committee  will analyze 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-51 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

and provide direction for distribution of Program Specialist services.  
Pupil count and CBEDS in each district will be considered in the 
allocation  of Program Specialist  services assignments. Program 
Specialists  are supervised  by the Assistant Superintendent Special 
Education/SELPA Director and are selected  through the special 
education certificated employment procedure. 
The Program  Specialist's responsibilities include the following: 
 
(1)  Observe, consult with, and assist special education  staff. 
 
(2)  Participate in and provide staff development to special education 
and regular education  staff concerning special education. 
 
(3)  Assure that pupils within Colusa County SELPA have full 
educational opportunity. 
 
(4)   Plan programs, coordinate  curricular  resources,  and assess 
effectiveness  of programs for individuals  with exceptional  needs. 
 
Role of the RLA/AU: 
The County Office will hire staff to perform these duties. 
 
Role of the Administrator of the SELPA: 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director, or 
designee, will hire, supervise, evaluate, and discipline the program 
specialists. The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA 
Director will annually assess the Executive Committee to determine 
SELPA-wide needs for services.  
 
Role of the individual LEAs:  
Through their representative to the Executive Committee, each LEA will 
annually determine the need for services within their LEA to assist in 
program specialist assignments and ensure resources are available to 
provide these services through the budget planning process.  
 

Special Education Local Plan Area Services 

1. A description of programs for early childhood special education from birth through five years of 
age: 

Reference Number: AS-1



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-52 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Document Title: Local Plan Section B, Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca, 95987

Early Education Services are provided for all eligible infants, toddlers, 
and children by the County Office, which serves the dual role as RLA/
AU and service provider.  
 
Early Intervention Services 
The Colusa County SELPA will provide early intervention  services for 
solely low incidence infants and toddlers identified as eligible for special 
education services from birth to 36 months of age. The Colusa County 
Special  Education services for infants are provided in accordance with 
the provisions and guidelines  of the California's Early Start Program.  
The provider of services for birth to 36 months that are not low 
incidence will be Alta California Regional Center. Colusa County Office 
of Education will work in collaboration with Alta Regional to ensure a 
smooth transition for Part B to C.  
 
PROCEDURES 
A collaborative effort will continue  with all agencies in Colusa County to 
ensure services to infants and their families.   The following  public 
agencies within Colusa County have provided and will continue  to 
provide services:   Alta California  Regional  Center, Migrant Education-
Early Head Start, California  Children's Services, and Colusa County 
Behavioral Health. 
 
Agency  involvement  is a major component of the infant services.   
Ongoing agency participation and involvement  is essential  to the infant 
services and participating families. 
 
A.  Goals and Objectives 
 
The major goals and objectives of the Colusa County Infant services  
are: 
 
1. To inform parents, agencies  and the communities  that special 
education services are available  for identified  and eligible infants from 
birth to 36 months. 
 
2.  To coordinate  the referral and assessment  components  with the 
appropriate  agencies. 
 
3.  To provide an educational  program for infants and their families to 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-53 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

best meet their individual  and family needs, based on the family's 
concerns, priorities and resources and assessment information.  The 
delivery of services will be provided whenever possible  in the "natural  
environment" which may include a combination  of home, community 
settings, day care, preschools,  and community  center based programs. 
 
4.  To incorporate parent and family education  and involvement  as an 
integral part of the total comprehensive program. 
 
B.   Staffing 
The Infant services in Colusa County shall be staffed using a team 
approach. Membership on the team may include an Early Childhood 
Special Educator, Speech and Language Therapist,  Nurse, 
Psychologist,  and others when appropriate.   The team will be used in 
assessment,  program planning, the Individual Family Service Plan 
(IFSP) Process, and IFSP implementation and review. 
 
The team process shall involve the crossing of disciplinary  boundaries 
and the sharing of expertise and knowledge. 
 
C. Collaborative Teams 
Special agency teams have been established  and utilized in the county 
to assist families and agencies  in exploring  alternative  services, 
coordination of services and program options.  The benefits of a multi 
agency team are: 
 
1.  A team approach saves time and energy and provides families with 
information and support. 
 
2.   Parents are able to meet with all agency representatives who may 
be involved with the infant. 
 
3.   A team approach  provides  an opportunity  to explore all resources 
and options with the family and all team members. 
 
4.   Agencies  are more effective  when working with all participants;  to 
encourage creative problem solving techniques. 
 
5.   The team is able to decide the nature and level of involvement. 
 
6.   Services available  will focus on the infant as an individual  within 
the family. 
 
D. Interagency  Agreement 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-54 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

An Interagency  Agreement with Alta California Regional Center 
compliant  with IDEA 
has been developed  and will be reviewed annually. 
 
F.  Staff Development 
Pre-service and In-service training and education  will be provided to 
assure early intervention  providers have the necessary skills in working 
with other agencies and families.   Staff development will be conducted 
on an interdisciplinary basis to the extent appropriate  and will address 
the training needs of all staff, including public/private providers.  
Training  will include but is not limited to the following areas: 
 
1.   Interagency  and family/professional collaboration 
 
2.   Coordination of transition services from infant to preschool  
programs and services 
  
3.   Basic components and requirements of California's  Early 
Intervention Services Act 
 
4.   Strategies to enhance the development and implementation of 
IFSPs 
 
5.   Other topics identified from local needs assessments. 
 
F.  Parent Support and Education 
Parent support and education will continue to be a primary focus on 
both a formal and informal basis. Parents and families will have an 
opportunity to participate in family education training provided by a 
variety of agencies, as appropriate. 
 
Early Education Programs: 
It shall be the policy of the Colusa County SELPA to offer early 
education programs that are compliant with all Federal and State Laws 
and regulations, ant to provide a smooth and effective transition from 
early education programs to preschool age programs.  Components of 
Early Education Programs include but are not limited to: 
 
•  a full range of services including developmental education, speech 
and language therapy, team assessment, parent support and advocacy 
• interagency collaboration 
• a variety of program options including home-based, center-based and 
combination programs 
• services shall be provided in a non-clinical environment  which helps 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-55 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

families to be 
comfortable and promotes modeling of quality parenting skills 
•  a structured setting in the child's least restrictive and natural 
environments, as appropriate which promotes play as a learning 
experience 
• services specially designed to meet the unique needs of infants, from 
birth to three years of age, and their families and promote a seamless 
transition to preschool/school age programs as appropriate 
 
 
 

2. A description of the method by which members of the public, including parents or guardians of 
individuals with exceptional needs who are receiving services under the local plan, may address 
questions or concerns to the SELPA governing body or individual administrator: 

Reference Number: AS-2

Document Title: Local Plan Section B, Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca, 95987

Description:

Members of public, including parents or guardians of students with 
disabilities who are receiving services under the Local Plan, may 
address questions or concerns to the SELPA governing body or 
individual administrator through: 
- Contacting their school of attendance to communicate with the site 
administrator 
-Contacting their LEA to communicate with the SELPA Administrator 
-Contacting the SELPA office to request communication with the SELPA 
Administrator 
-Contacting their LEA Superintendent as they are responsible to 
address questions and concerns of the public, including parents and 
guardians of student with disabilities who are receiving services under 
the Local Plan 
-Providing public comment at the SELPA Council meeting.

3. A description of a dispute resolution process, including mediation and final and binding 
arbitration to resolve disputes over the distribution of funding, the responsibility for service 
provision, and the other governance activities specified within the local plan: 

Reference Number: AS-3



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-56 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Document Title: Local Plan Section B, Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca, 95987

Description:

In order to ensure the continuity  of quality services to children with 
disabilities,  a process for dispute resolution  over the responsibility  for 
service provision, governance  activities, program transfer, or the 
distribution of funding must be in place. The Dispute Resolution Process 
for the Colusa County SELPA is described below. 
 
 DISPUTE  RESOLUTION PROCESS 
 
If a dispute arises over the responsibility  and implementation of an 
action taken by the SELPA Executive  Committee,  the district(s)  
including any Charter School LEA in the SELPA, may request a review 
of the action by an Independent  Review Panel. 
 
Any request for such a review must be submitted  in writing to the 
Responsible  Local Agency (RLA) Superintendent within thirty (30) days 
of the action taken by the Executive  Committee.   The written request 
must clearly identify the reason(s) for the request and the potential  
resolution(s) to the problem. 
 
PROCEDURE: DISPUTE  RESOLUTION 
 
1. To establish  an Independent  Review Panel, the RLA Superintendent 
shall establish a list of persons from nearby SELPAs, districts, or county 
offices, who are knowledgeable in the area of special education and 
who would be willing to serve as a member  of such panel. 
 
2.  From the list of available  panel members, the LEA that requested 
the review, and the RLA Superintendent, acting for the Executive 
Committee shall each select a representative for the panel. 
 
3. The Chairperson  of the Executive  Committee shall establish  the list 
of persons willing to serve on the panel and select the representative for 
the panel if the RLA Superintendent has requested  the review. 
 
4. These representatives then select one additional neutral member to 
serve as chairperson. 
 
5.  The panel shall meet as often as necessary to consider the facts of 
the complaint and prepare a written report and recommendations for 
consideration by the Executive Committee. 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-57 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

 
6.  After studying  the report of the review panel and at the next 
scheduled  meeting of the Executive  Committee, the Executive 
Committee  must take one of the following actions.   All voting is to be 
done in accordance  with the voting procedures specified in the Local 
Plan. 
  
a)  Vote to reaffirm the previous action of the Executive Committee.  
b) Vote to rescind the previous action of the Executive Committee. 
c)  Vote to modify the previous action of the Executive Committee.  
 
Council to comply or partially comply with the recommendations of the 
Review Panel. 
 
Any costs resulting from this process will be paid by the LEA(s) that 
requested the review. 

4. A description of the process being used to ensure a student is referred for special education 
instruction and services only after the resources of the regular education program have been 
considered and, where appropriate, utilized: 

Reference Number: AS-4

Document Title: Local Plan Section B, Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca, 95987

It shall be the policy of the Colusa County SELPA that all member LEAs 
implement all of California Education Code relative to the delivery of 
special education programs and services. 
Specifically relative to EC 56303, this SELPA ensures that children 
"shall be referred for special education instruction and services only 
after the resources of the regular education program have been 
considered, and where appropriate, utilized." 
 
This shall be ensured through the implementation of effective monitoring 
and assessment practices at school sites, so that the outcomes for 
student achievement will be continuously positive.  Where appropriate 
growth is not occurring, the students' achievement will be discussed 
with site level staff to proactively plan for necessary accommodations/ 
and modifications to the instruction.  If there is inadequate progress in 
the general curriculum for an individual student, staff and/or parents will 
have the opportunity to request  potential intervention opportunities, 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-58 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

which may include, but not be limited to, observations in class, team 
teaching, peer coaching, modeling of instructional practices, classroom 
and environmental accommodations modifications, and referral to site 
level "student success teams" (by whatever name the site team may be 
called) for additional supports and services for the student. 
 
It shall be the responsibility of the LEA site to ensure that resources of 
the general education program are utilized where needed.  Specifically 
when a student is being considered for referral to determine eligibility for 
special education services, the teacher and/or team of interested 
professionals, including the parents(s), will have the opportunity to 
discuss what new or additional supports, services, accommodations, 
modifications, etc., are appropriate for the student(s).  When the IEP 
team meets following an assessment,  the team has written 
documentation that locally-provided supports and services  have not 
been adequately  successful.  For learning disabilities, in particular, an 
assessed  lack of response to intervention must not be the result of 
environmental, cultural, or economic disadvantages  and cannot be 
corrected  through other general or categorical  services offered within 
the general instructional  program. 
 
 
In all cases, site practices will comply with requirements in state and 
federal law. 
 
 
 
 

5. A description of the process being used to oversee and evaluate placements in nonpublic, 
nonsectarian schools and the method of ensuring that all requirements of each student's 
individualized education program are being met. The description shall include a method for 
evaluating whether the student is making appropriate educational progress: 

Reference Number: AS-5

Document Title: Local Plan Section B, Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider, contracts with a nonpublic, nonsectarian school when deemed 
by IEP team placement. The Colusa County SELPA shall evaluate the 



 Section B: Governance and Administration 

CDE Form Version 2.0 Page B-59 of 59

SELPA Colusa County SELPA Fiscal Year 2020-21

Description:

placement of its pupil(s) in such schools on at least an annual basis as 
part of the annual IEP review. The IEP team will determine if the student 
is making appropriate educational progress through review of progress 
on IEP goals, including those specific to a Behavior Intervention Plan as 
well as any other assessments or pertinent data. The Colusa County 
SELPA will observe a pupil during instruction and will conduct a 
walkthrough of the facility. 
 
The Assistant Superintendent of Special Education/SELPA Director, or 
designee, shall review the master contract, the individual services 
agreements, and the IEP to ensure that all services agreed upon and 
specified in the IEP are provided.

6. A description of the process by which the SELPA will fulfill the obligations to provide free and 
appropriate public education (FAPE) to a student age 18 to 21 (or age 22 under the circumstances 
described in EC 56026(c)(4)) who has been incarcerated in a county jail and remains eligible for 
special education services:  

The obligation to make FAPE available extends to those otherwise-eligible adults in county jail, 
age 18 to 21, who: (a) had been identified as a child with a disability and had received services in 
accordance with an IEP, but left school prior to their incarceration; or (b) did not have an IEP in 
their last educational setting, but had actually been identified as a child with a disability. 
(EC Section 56040) 

It is the responsibility of the district of residence (DOR) to provide special education services and 
related services to an adult student in county jail who remains eligible for these services and 
wishes to receive them. The DOR is the district in which the student's parents resided when the 
student turned 18, unless and until the parents move to a new DOR. For conserved students, the 
DOR is based on the residence of the conservator. (EC Section 56041) 

Reference Number: AS-6

Document Title: Local Plan Section B, Governance and Administration

Document Location: 499 Marguerite St. Suite A, Williams, Ca 95987

Description:

The County Office of Education serving the dual role of RLA and service 
provider, will provide services to any students age 18 to 21 who are 
incarcerated in a county jail and remaining eligible for special education 
that lie within the SELPA boundaries, to meet the obligation required.



11.3

























CCOE Tag Number Manufacturer Type of Device Model Serial Number Reason for Surplus

3872 Sanyo Projector PDG‐DSU30 50501730 non‐operational

3432 Sony Camera CCD‐TRV57 238775 non‐operational

3311 HP Computer HP Compaq Elite 8300 SFF MXL3180SPG non‐operational

3288 HP Computer HP Compaq 8200 Elite SFF PC 2UA1241QKM non‐operational

1649 HP Computer HP Compaq 8200 Elite SFF PC 2UA125091F non‐operational

3813 HP Laptop HP ProBook 4540s 2CE3371J1N non‐operational

1537 Gateway Monitor FPD1565 ME35b 90L 02077 non‐operational

3207 HP Computer HP Compaq 8200 Elite SFF PC 2UA125091J non‐operational

2000 HP Computer HP Compaq 8200 Elite SFF PC 2UA1241QJ8 non‐operational

2178 Dell Laptop Vostro 1520 50112L1 non‐operational

2155 Dell Laptop Vostro 1720 FRDVPJ1 non‐operational

3204 HP Printer LJ P1606dn VNB3B70328 non‐operational

3803 HP Printer OJP 8630 CN46CC406M non‐operational

4287 HP Printer DJ 6988 My7bqr0wx non‐operational

3664 HP Monitor HPL1710 3CQ8242KQ2 non‐operational

3697 HP Monitor L1710 CNC909PW3P non‐operational

3698 HP Monitor L1710 3CQ8242KT6 non‐operational

3725 HP Monitor L1710 3CQ9040C9D non‐operational

3726 HP Monitor L1710 3CQ9040BXH non‐operational

1536 Gateway Monitor 500G ME35990H03496 non‐operational

4501 Nec Monitor Lcd1970vx 64D16680YA non‐operational

4507 Nec Monitor Lcd1970vx 64d16694ya non‐operational

1390 NEC Monitor LCD9V 37105830GA non‐operational

5127 Sanyo Projector PLC‐XW55A 68934647 non‐operational

3682 HP Monitor L1710 3CQ9040BXB non‐operational

3597 HP Monitor L1710 3CQ8424WC1 non‐operational

3598 HP Monitor L1710 3CQ8401CBH non‐operational

4506 NEC Monitor Lcd1970vx 64D16689YA non‐operational

1967 HP Monitor L1710 3CQ9294MN0 non‐operational

4502 Nec Monitor Lcd1970vx 64d16691ya non‐operational

3683 HP Monitor L1710 3CQ8424TNY non‐operational

3663 HP Monitor HPL1710 3CQ8424VPQ non‐operational

3900 HP Monitor L1710 3CQ9242JMG non‐operational

3819 Gateway Monitor TFT1780PS+ MW67C B0N 00654 non‐operational

1962 Gateway Monitor FPD1775W MGM7C 70P 09119 non‐operational

3681 HP Monitor HPL1710 3CQ9040BX2 non‐operational

3599 HP Monitor L1710 3CQ9040C9L non‐operational

3285 HP Computer HP Compaq 8200 Elite Small Form Factor 2UA125091W non‐operational



CCOE Tag Number Manufacturer Type of Device Model Serial Number Reason for Surplus

2129 HP Computer HP Compaq 8200 Elite SFF PC MXL1240FFH non‐operational

3308 HP Computer HP Compaq Elite 8300 SFF MXL3230BBX non‐operational

3879 HP Monitor L1710 3CQ9302MK2 non‐operational

3209 HP Computer HP Compaq 8200 Elite Small Form Factor 2UA1241QJW non‐operational

3215 SourceTechnologies Printer ST9630 MXL0140PV3 non‐operational

2747 HP Printer LJ 1100 USRP089526 non‐operational

Hitatchi Projector Cp‐x2530wn CP‐X2530WNUF non‐operational

1576 Gateway Monitor 500G MZK66 50V 00903 non‐operational

1816 Gateway Monitor TFT1780PS+ MW684 B0N 00525 non‐operational

1785 Gateway Monitor TFT1780PS+ MW684 B0N 00526 non‐operational

5117 Sanyo Projector PLC‐XW55A 68832639 non‐operational

3494 HP Printer DJ 6940 MY7309R0S5 non‐operational

3502 HP Printer OJ 8600 premium CN4PF40J105KF non‐operational

3495 HP Printer LJ P1606dn VND3B67598 non‐operational

3515 HP Printer LJ p1606dn VNB3D92390 non‐operational

4046 HP Printer  OJP 8710 CN68FGW16X non‐operational

2378 HP Printer CLJ MFP M277dw VNBKK5R2KH non‐operational

5143 MICRO‐STAR INTERNATIONAL CO. LTD Computer MS‐6462 123456789 non‐operational

1981 Canon Printer MF6530 F189100 non‐operational

5200 HP Printer LJP M203dw VND3B22436 non‐operational

1491 Gateway Monitor FPD1565 ME35590L01877 non‐operational

1495 Gateway Monitor FPD1565 ME35S90L01892 non‐operational

3385 HP Computer HP Compaq 8000 Elite SFF PC MXL00403K2 non‐operational

1889 HP Computer HP Compaq dc7900 Small Form Factor MXL8480GDF non‐operational
3284 HP Computer HP Compaq 8000 Elite SFF PC MXL04518QX non‐operational

2051 HP Computer Compaq Pro 6300sff MXL24002YW non‐operational

6310 HP Computer HP Compaq dc7900 Small Form Factor MXL915146K non‐operational

6317 HP Computer HP Compaq dc7900 Small Form Factor MXL915145P non‐operational

1497 Gateway Monitor 500G ME35590L01880 non‐operational

1532 Gateway Monitor 500G MR95750H03139 non‐operational



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, September 9, 2020 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Public Hearing on Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials 

    Public Hearing on the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
  (Plan Inspection Location – www.ccoe.net and 345 5th Street, Colusa) 

    Followed by the Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID: 956 848 001 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/956848001  Meeting ID:  956 848 001 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

4:00 p.m.  P U B L I C   H E A R I N G S 

Public Hearing on Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials 

Public Hearing on the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan   



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 9, 2020, Agenda 
Page 2 

R E G U L A R   M E E T I N G   A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Rollcall 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – August Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the August 12, 2020, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
   



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 9, 2020, Agenda 
Page 3 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 
10.3.1 2020‐21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Schedule Special Meeting for September 14, 2020 to  action 
  Adopt the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 

11.2 Approve Board Resolution No. 20/21‐01 of the  action 
Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa 
County Board of Education Regarding Sufficiency or 
Insufficiency of Instructional Materials for Fiscal Year 2020‐21 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  information 

12.2 Next Special Board Meeting  information 
September 14, 2020, 4:00 p.m. (if approved in item 11.1) 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

12.3 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
October 14, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



  6.3 

CCOE - Children’s Services                                           

Vicki Markss, Director           

Report for CCOE Board of Education 

Month:  August 2020 

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 California Early Math Initiative Professional Development, Coaching, and Community of 

Practice Coaching Components. 
 Resource & Referral Network, CAPPA. 
 Parent Policy Council meeting. 
 National & Regional 9 Head Start Association, California Head Start Association 
 Monthly meetings with Office of Head Start Program Specialist. 
 Cabinet Meetings. 
 Meetings on Quality Counts California towards increased quality. 
  Created flyers, sanitation and maintaining safety classroom procedures, trained staff. 
 Planned and implemented In-Service Day training for returning staff. 
 Implemented Pre-Service trainings that included all area components. 
 Employee Personnel Evaluations. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 Applied for CDE CCTR (0-3 years) State Expansion Grant.  Waiting for response. 
 Head Start Quality Improvement funding. 
 Head Start Supplement –COVID-19 one-time funding for prevention and preparation. 
 Head Start Summer School Program. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 

School Readiness: 

 Revised Health and Safety Protocols for open/reopening plan. 
 Completed CDE Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. 
 Engaging families and providing parenting and learning concepts through Learning Genie 

Family Engagement App. 
 Footsteps2Brilliance and Clever Kids University programs. 
 Completing enrollments for Fall programs. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Collaboration with Elementary schools regarding transitioning children to Kindergarten.  
 CCOE Website. 



9/1/2020

1

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE 
of 

EDUCATION

EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

September 9, 2020

GUIDING 
PRINCIPLE

To become a partner, we must establish a legacy of trust 
by:

The guiding principle of the Educational Services 
department is to increase student achievement and provide 
quality educational services to learners of all ages through 
the building of partnerships

Building positive and sustainable relationships in the 
community with key individuals, groups, and organizations

Demonstrating sensitivity to community concerns and 
issues

Designing and implementing community programs that 
improve the quality of life based on community needs and 
recommendations



9/1/2020

2

TEAM
S. William Abel Academy
Bob Kirkman, Art Teacher
Lorilee Niesen, Principal
Patricia Pinedo, Teacher
Jesús Ramos, Administrative Assistant 

Prevention Services Programs
María Iniguez, Second Step- Child Aide
Santana King, TUPE Coordinator
Alejandra López, Prevention Services 
Coordinator – Foster/Homeless 
Toni Rangel, Child Aide

Farm to School
Nancy Cutter, Farm to School 
Lab  Supervisor
Craig Richards, Farm to School 
Supervisor

Adult Education
Jeremiah Karlonas, WFA 
Coordinator
Ben Mayes, WFA Program Assistant
Loraine Joy McBurney, Inmate 
Education 
Nic Monroe, HiSET/GED Instructor 
Sandra Muñoz Lule , 
ESL/Citizenship Instructor 
Lorilee Niesen, Principal 
Claudia Tinoco, Program Support 
Technician
Jill Wright, Career Technical 
Education Instructor

4

CATEGORICAL 
PROGRAMS

Categorical Programs are established by state or 
federal legislation and are designed to 

supplement the existing core/basic instructional 
program.  

Common Elements of Categorical Programs

 Supplement the core/base program
 Designed to serve a specified targeted audience
 Usually have a life span identified within the 

legislation
 Sometimes they continue to exist after their 

expiration date if funding continues to be provided 
by the legislature



9/1/2020

3

5

GRANTS 
& 

BUDGETS

Curriculum & Instruction
 Comprehensive Support and 

Improvement (CSI)
 Expanded Learning (EXL)
 Health Education Framework
 School Improvement Grant (SIG)

SWAA
 Average Daily Attendance
 K-12 Strong Workforce
 Lottery
 Small Rural School Achievement

Adult Education
 California Adult Education 

Program (CAEP)
 ELL Grant
 Inmate Education
 Wildland Fire Academy
 WIOA II

Prevention Services
 Early Mental Health Initiative
 Foster Youth
 Homeless (M-V)
 Student Mental Health Initiative
 Title IV-E -FY
 TUPE (4)

 CTALF
 CTAT
 Tier 1
 TLEGP

6

CONTRACTS

 Behavioral Health
 CALFIRE
 Colusa Sheriff
 County One Stops 
 Colusa Probation
 Districts- SWAA
 Williams Unified School District - SIG
 Hand in Hand
 Independent Contractors
 North Central Counties Consortium 

(WIB)
 Sacramento, Sutter, Yolo, & Yuba 

COEs



9/1/2020

4

7

CURRICULUM 
& 

INSTRUCTION

 Career Technical Education 

(CTE)

 Communities of Practice 

(CoP)

 Comprehensive Support 

and Improvement (CSI)

 Differentiated Assistance 

(DA)

 English Learner Roadmap

 Expanded Learning (EXL)

 Federal Program 

Monitoring (FPM)

 Health Education 

Framework

 Learning Continuity & 

Attendance Plan (LCP)

 Local Control Accountability 

Plan (LCAP)

 Migrant Education 

 Multi-Teared System of Support 

(MTSS)

 Professional Learning Network 

(PLN)

 School Improvement Grant 

(SIG)

 State Assessments

 State Seal of Biliteracy

8

S. WILLIAM 
ABEL  

ACADEMY

Accredited alternative school primarily designed to serve expelled and at-promise youth 
7th – 12th. Students come to the school via referrals from the Department of Probation, 

SARB/DART, and school districts. Students are temporarily in need of a supportive, 
alternative educational program in order to progress academically and socially

2015-16…

 14 students
 3 graduates
 Gently used 

textbooks
 Friday Night Live 

(FNL)
 Meals
 Transportation (FY, 

MV, Probation)

…2020-21

 156 students
 30 graduates
 Independent Study, Hybrid 

Curriculum,  Concurrent 
Enrollment at WCC

 Academic Counseling & 
Licensed MFT

 Meals 
 Transportation for ALL 

Students
 WASC Accreditation
 CTE  



9/1/2020

5

9

PREVENTION 
SERVICES

Foster Youth Services 
Coordinating 

Programs (FYSCP) 

 Executive Advisory 
Committee

 Foster Youth Mentor
 Monthly District Liaison 

Meetings
 Foster Focus: Accurate 

Identification 
 Trainings on AB 167/216 

State Grad Requirements 
 Individual Learning Program
 Technical Assistance
 Supplemental school supplies

Homeless 
(McKinney-Vento)

 Suicide Prevention Policy
 Training on AB 1806 State 

Grad Requirements 
 Proper Identification 
 Backpacks and Clothing
 Migrant Labor Camp 

Recruitment Event
 Caring Youth Counts

10

PREVENTION 
SERVICES

Tobacco-Use 
Prevention 
Program (TUPE)

 Brief Intervention
 Alternative to Suspension
 Students Working Against 

Tobacco (SWAT)
 Red Ribbon Week
 Tobacco Free Schools 

Certification
 California Healthy Kids Survey
 Great American Smoke Out
 Kick Butt’s Day
 Parent Outreach and Education
 Tobacco Education curriculum 

Training
 SRO Officer
 Presentations 

 Provides a fully integrated 
framework for protecting 
elementary school students 
and promoting their social, 
emotional, and academic 
success. 

 Preschool – 3rd Grades
 Age appropriate 

lessons/curriculum
 Social-Emotional Learning
 Bullying Prevention
 Positive change in culture and 

student behaviors
 Professional Development
 Parent Education

Second Step



9/1/2020

6

11

ADULT 
EDUCATION

Basic Wildland Fire Academy

Career Technical Education

Citizenship

EMT

English as a Second Language

HiSET/GED/High School Diploma

Inmate Education

CNA (stay tuned)

12

FARM 
TO 

SCHOOL

To promote agriculture and educate students of Colusa County.

Phase 1: Student Garden 
(completed)

 Build raised beds (already 
completed ten of the beds)

 Install irrigation to the beds
 Develop curriculum and student 

involvement with S. William Abel 
Community School Students 
including greenhouse production 
and Spring 2019 Plant Sale

 Collaborate with food services on 
next steps for Fall 2019 to include 
fresh garden produce on student 
meal trays

Phase 2:  Native Plant 
Garden (progressing)

 Propagate Valley Oaks from 
acorns for Fall 2019 Planting 
(in progress)

 Acquire and plant native plants 
and pollinators with students. 
Proposed planting will be Fall 
2019/Winter 2020

 Irrigation system is currently 
being installed for Phase 2 and 
3

 Monarch Waystation planted as 
a Colusa High School Senior 

Project
 Walkways through native 

garden established



9/1/2020

7

13

FARM 
TO 

SCHOOL

Phase 4- Walking 
Trail/Native Pathway 
(start Fall 2020)

 Propagate native plants
 Incorporate native plants 

complete with irrigation 
into walking trail designed 
by students

 Design and install benches 
for resting along walking 
trail

Phase 3: Agriculture 
Demonstration Area 
(progressing)

 Establish multiple growing 
areas for Colusa County 
Schools, Master Gardener’s, 
community partners and 
community members

 Highlight Colusa County’s 
Agricultural Commodities 
and Producers

 Collaborate with the 
Resource Conservation 
District on soil improvement 
and sound agricultural 
practices

14

S
T
A
K
E
H
O
L
D
E
R
S

 Butte COE
 CAL FIRE
 CHP
 Colusa Advocates for Parents and 

Children (CAPC)
 Colusa Behavioral Health
 Colusa County Community Advocates
 Colusa County Continuum of Care
 Colusa County Fire Association Chiefs
 Colusa County Master Gardeners
 Colusa One Stop
 Colusa Probation
 Colusa Sheriff
 Community Action Partnership
 Department of  Health and Human 

Services

 Family Action Center 
 Hand in Hand
 Meridian Fire Department
 Migrant Education Program
 Migrant Housing 
 Multi-Discipline Committee
 North Central Adult Ed Consortium
 Parents/Guardians/Students
 Police Departments
 Surrounding COEs (14)
 School Districts
 Tobacco Coalition
 Woodland Community College



9/1/2020

8

15

THANK YOU!

 Administrative Services
 Children's Services
 Facilities
 First 5 Colusa
 Special Education
 Technology Services



  6.5 

Colusa County Office of Education 

SELPA/Special Ed Board Report 
September 9, 2020 

 

Special Ed Report 

1. Staffing- one teacher opening and are in a hiring freeze for Para 
Educators.  
 

2. Professional Development for staff occurred in early August. The 
topics were distance learning, COVID-19 safety precautions, and 
Keenan safety videos.  
 

3. All four districts have passed the Local Plan. It will now be sent to 
CDE for approval.   
 

4. Working on making sure all staff have the necessary tools to conduct 
their jobs in a virtual setting. Also, working on re-opening plans for 
Coastal Buttes.  Staff have begun in-person assessments and we will 
be serving students in-person following the State guidelines soon. 
 

5. Coastal Buttes now consists of three classes. K-8 
behavior/emotionally disturbed, K-8 moderate/severe disabilities with 
communication issues, and Adult Transition Program.  
 

CCOE SELPA 

1. The next CCOE SELPA meeting is September. 

STATE SELPA 

1. State SELPA is focused on how to delivery service and conduct 
assessments during school closures. Also, the legal ramifications 
school closures will have once schools can open. 
 
  
 



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report September 9, 2020 

 

We are happy to report that T-Mobile has officially offered us terms to lease spectrum 
for use with the Colusa County EduNet.  We have agreed to the terms and we are in the 
process of legal drafting and review to finalize a contract.  We now have 20megahertz 
of LTE EBS bandwidth which will be ideal for deployment.   
 
We have started programming WUSD’s LTE Routers to prepare them for student 
deployment.   
 
We are fine tuning settings on the WUSD EduNet radios and point to point radios to 
optimize our bandwidth and connection strength.   
 
Maxwell Unified has received permission to deploy the EduNet on the Maxwell water 
tower. We are working to repeat the steps performed in Williams over the next several 
months. 
 
We are helping to welcome aboard and train Nick Wilson the new Technology Director 
in Maxwell. 
 
We are deploying new cameras at our preschool locations for additional site security. 
 
We are in the process of deploying external Wi-Fi at some of our preschool locations to 
create locations where families that do not have access to the internet can safely 
access the internet from their vehicles in the parking lots. 
 
We have been creating annual Footsteps2Brilliance accounts for students in the 
districts and CCOE. 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting August 12, 2020 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, 
and Barry Morrell 

 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Angelina Guizar, Aaron Heinz, 

Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, 
Sheryl Parker, Chuck Wayman, and Michael West 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Ed Conrado called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, 
Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and 
made the following announcements. 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Rollcall 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Letter from CCBE Region 4 County Delegate Representative 

Ed Conrado spoke about the letter that the Board received from Dr. David 
Patterson, CCBE Region 4 County Delegate Representative, saying that he is the 
first CCBE representative to reach out to the Board.  Discussion was held on 
replying to Dr. Patterson to express appreciation for his outreach, and Ed said 
that we would do so. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West reported on his participation and attendance in activities, 
such as Zoom meetings with many organizations and staff regarding 
health and safety, planning and protocols of reopening in August, 
concern about the budget, and concern about opening schools and the 

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 12, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

level of opening that can occur.  Michael spoke about the new Public 
Health order requiring masks to be worn in all public spaces, and he said 
that the CCPHO has provided guidelines and is working with him on 
issues regarding Special Education.  Michael described the August 
Welcome Back Day, which he said was modified from previous events.  It 
was a drive‐through format and staff received a brown bag lunch, a 
flower, a flyer, and a welcome back bag.  He said that the event was all 
organized by Jennifer Jelavich and was well attended.  Ed Conrado 
thanked Michael for holding the event during the pandemic, and 
congratulated him on the attendance.  Michael said that a link for two 
videos about the Welcome Back Day and Years of Service Recognition 
was sent via email to the Board.  Michael also reported on the following 
fall openings: 

CCOE – Distance learning, with Special Education staff delivering 
instruction the same as their assigned district, and professional 
development and pre‐service meetings via Zoom or blended (in 
person and via Zoom) 

MUSD, PJUSD, WUSD – Teachers were given the choice of teaching 
virtually from the classroom or from their home to students’ homes. 

CUSD – Teachers will be teaching virtually from the classroom to 
students’ homes 

Michael said that the districts and CCOE are working with guidelines and 
protocols from the State that are very fluid, and working closely with the 
CCPHO.  Michael reported on safety and security protocols at the 
Education Village, administrative offices, and preschool sites, including 
installation of video surveillance at all sites, installation of RFID 
monitoring and facial recognition software at the Village, installation of 
real time thermal scan monitoring of individuals, and training for all 
protocols that will be delivered to all staff within upcoming weeks.  
Michael announced that the CCSESA Executive Director search is over.  
The association hired Karen Stapf Walters, currently serving on the State 
Board of Education where she worked with both Governors Brown and 
Newsom.  He said Stapf Walters was an original purveyor of LCFF and 
LCAP, and worked at ACSA. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – July Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the district Superintendents via 
Zoom and phone calls as needed and discussed issues such as LCAP2 and 
distance learning. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Aaron Heinz’s August 
2020 Business Services written report. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 12, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss added to her August 2020 Children’s Services written report saying 
that staff are finding it difficult to do virtual instruction with preschool children, 
but that staff has become very competent with technology and are ready to 
begin the school year.  Discussion was held on whether preschoolers are 
required to wear masks, and Vicki said that the children are not wearing masks 
and that staff is taking every precaution against the illness. 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza added to her August 2020 Educational Services written 
report saying that the department is forging ahead during this tumultuous time, 
while remaining flexible and supportive to the districts.  Lorilee Niesen answered 
the Board’s question regarding SWAA enrollment, which she said is currently six 
students, and she added to the report saying that Adult Education registration is 
now available on CCOE’s web site, and that applications for the WFA opened 
today. 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman reported that Special Education is not currently hiring 
paraeducators because he did not want to bring new employees in during this 
environment, he has been working with Michael West and CCPHO to determine 
if staff could provide in‐person instruction, and that professional development 
was dedicated to the districts to get the teachers ready to go for the school year.  
He also answered the Board’s question about whether he had received any 
parent complaints of the program not following a student’s IEP, and he said that 
he had.  Chuck explained that following the State’s guidelines the IEP stays in 
place, but each student also has their own distance learning plan that adheres to 
their school’s schedule, and their minutes are proportional to that school day.  
He said that staff is currently developing distance learning plans for each 
student. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Alex Evans’ August 
2020 Technology Services written report.  Alex announced that T‐Mobile 
officially offered CCOE terms for leasing the spectrum.  The EduNet 
infrastructure is in place in WUSD, staff are in the process of deploying LTE 
routers to students, and programing for twenty routers was finished yesterday.  
Because we can confirm that we have access to the spectrum, MUSD is 
immediately ready to proceed with participating in the EduNet, and plan to use 
the town water tower as their vertical asset.  Alex said that the team is starting 
to make progress in PJUSD by identifying areas, and pointing out that there could 
be a business case made for PJUSD to buy into EduNet instead of paying for 
hotspots.  CUSD is the same as PJUSD, but CUSD is behind the curve because of 
administration turnover and the need to get up to speed on the project.  
Discussion was held on the possibility of T‐Mobile putting up a tower in areas 
where children are unable to receive a signal because of obstructions (e.g. trees), 



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 12, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

and Alex answered “No.”  He said that as a business T‐Mobile (and other similar 
ISPs) need more population to make it profitable.  He added that there are 
initiatives tied to funding for newer type models to get “last mile” connectivity 
for areas with no service of any kind like the towns of Stonyford and Ladoga, but 
nothing is finalized nor moving forward yet.  Michael West added that his 
meeting with the K12HSN next week will include an update on the “last mile” 
issues; however, he cautioned that it is primarily the districts’ responsibility to 
get connectivity to those areas.  He added that Alex and Kyle Gehrts did a terrific 
job negotiating the deal with T‐Mobile.  Alex assured the Board that he is 
optimistic that they will find a way around obstructions.  The Board 
congratulated the team on their phenomenal job during this multi‐year project. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion 
carried five ayes (Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, 
and Barry Morrell) and zero noes to approve the following Consent Agenda item: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the July 8, 2020, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that because of Lorilee Niesen’s and Maria Arvizu 
Espinoza’s work with Patricia Barba of WCC’s Colusa Campus, the EMT class will 
be held, and the orientation occurred with 25 attendees.  During the orientation, 
Michael had the opportunity to speak with YCCD Chancellor Dr. Douglas Houston 
about broadband on the west side of the county that YCCD may be able to share 
with CCOE for EduNet purposes. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West said that he reported on safety and security upgrades earlier in the 
meeting under his Superintendent’s Monthly Report (6.1.1). 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu Espinoza reported that the LCAP is still on hold, but the department 
is working on the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan (LCAP2) and she will 
have it for review during a public hearing on September 9, 2020.  The Board will 
need to vote to approve the plan, but they may not do so on the same day as the 



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 12, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

public hearing, so during the regular meeting on that date the Board will need to 
vote to approve a scheduling a special meeting to approve the plan.  Maria said 
that the approval and submittal process will be the same as the LCAP, with 
Boards approving the plans, districts submitting the LCAP2 to the COE and COEs 
submitting to the CDE. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Michael West reported that outreach activities were underway and he asked 
Jennifer Jelavich to provide an update.  Jennifer spoke about a two month‐long 
Zoom reading time, book purchases and distribution efforts, and Alissa Maas’ 
efforts in cleaning iPads and returning those to schools. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 45 Day Revised Budget and Multi Year Projections 

Aaron Heinz explained that the budget presented in June was the result of the 

May Revise that the Governor presented, and that the 45 Day Revised Budget is 

the result of the budget that the legislature approved, which eliminated the 10% 

LCFF cut.  He reviewed changes to the 2020‐21 budget including restoration of 

the LCFF funding to the 2019‐20 level, addition of monies because of the end of 

the Village litigation settlement, and reduction of monies due to the end of 

ongoing legal fees.  Those changes led to an overall $600,000 ending fund 

balance improvement.  Aaron said that he is monitoring the status of the Federal 

government’s stimulus package, and continuing cost cutting measures and 

decreases in expenditures.  Discussion was held on litigation expenditures. 

 

Brenda Miller/Moved, Jason McMullan/Seconded, and the motion carried five 

ayes (Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and 

Barry Morrell) and zero noes to approve the 45 Day Revised Budget and Multi 

Year Projections. 

11.2 Approve SELPA Local Plan 
Chuck Wayman reported that he used the State’s template to write the 
Governance document of the Local Plan, which guides the SELPA.  He said that 
committees drafted the Local Plan, it was sent to the CDE for revisions, it was 
submitted to district boards for approval, and after approval by this Board the 
final version will be submitted to the CDE.  Chuck said that the Local Plan is now 
a three‐year document.  Discussion was held on the ability to adhere to the plan 
during COVID19, and Chuck said that CCOE will be able to uphold the document. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Lynn Bowen Burnham/Seconded, and the motion carried 
five ayes (Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, 
and Barry Morrell) and zero noes to approve the SELPA Local Plan. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
August 12, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

11.3 Approve the Consolidated Application 
Maria Arvizu Espinoza reported that the spring release of the Consolidated 
Application was delayed due to COVID19.  She explained that it is CDE’s 
distribution of categorical programs to LEA’s.  Discussion was held on differences 
from prior, and Maria said that are no differences, it is just later than normal. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Lynn Bowen Burnham/Seconded, and the motion carried 
five ayes (Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, 
and Barry Morrell) and zero noes to approve the Consolidated Application. 

11.4 Approve Technical Services Inventory for Disposal 
Alex Evans explained that this is an annual disposal of e‐waste, and will help in 
the transition to a new storage location.  Discussion was held on making certain 
all usable material was removed from the disposal items. 
 
Lynn Bowen Burnham/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried 
five ayes (Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, 
and Barry Morrell) and zero noes to approve the Technical Services Inventory for 
Disposal. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

No items added. 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
September 9, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 4:42 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Ed Conrado, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

  
 

ACSA  Association of California School Administrators 

CCBE  California County Boards of Education 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCPHO  Colusa County Public Health Office 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

CDE  California Department of Education 

COE  County Office of Education 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

CUSD  Colusa Unified School District 

EMT  Emergency Medical Technician 

IEP  Individualized Education Program 

ISP  Internet Service Provider 

K12HSN  K‐12 High Speed Network 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LCAP2  Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan  

LCFF  Local Control Funding Formula 

LEA  Local Educational Agency 

LTE  Long Term Evolution 

MUSD  Maxwell Unified School District 

PJUSD  Pierce Joint Unified School District 

RFID  Radio‐Frequency Identification  

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

SWAA  S. William Abel Academy 

WCC  Woodland Community College 

WFA  Wildland Firefighter Academy 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

YCCD  Yuba Community College District 

 



 

Page 1 

California Department of Education, July 2020 

Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21) 
The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx. 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 

Colusa County Office of Education 
Lorilee Niesen, Director of Educational 
Services 

lniesen@ccoe.net 
530-473-1350 

General Information 
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.] 

The Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE) provides educational services to students TK-Adult.  While the ages and grade levels may 
vary, the guiding principle is to provide a quality educational experience for all students. On March 18, 2020, CCOE programs were shut 
down to address the COVID-19 emergency. The CCOE Website was immediately updated with links for students and families in English and 
Spanish to obtain enrichment activities, information regarding the pandemic, as well as safety guidelines. In order to inform parents, we also 
made phone calls and posted announcements through social media. In addition to providing interpreting & translation services, the CCOE 
staff provided telephone support to parents, students and staff with questions related to the use of and access to technology. While our 
different schools began to initiate processes to transition to distance learning, the common thread was the impact of COVID-19 on our small 
county office.  All students returned virtually to school with a higher degree of learning loss. The summer slide further widened and added to 
the lower achievement rates and a greater gap between our higher and lower achieving students than prior years. The wider range of 
learning needs coupled with lack of in person learning creates a greater challenge for alternative education, special education, and children 
services. Staff is tasked with creating an expedited individualized learning plan for every student that includes differentiated instruction based 
on a broader range of educational needs. The lack of explicit face-to-face instruction from teachers has further regressed student learning 
and engagement. Teachers are making every attempt to adapt content to deliver on an online platform while parents juggle work (if fortunate 
to be employed), childcare, lack of connectivity in remote areas, while providing instruction for the first time ever. Some students are 
struggling with isolation, are afraid of contamination, have food insecurities, and the loss of a routine that may further add to their anxiety. 
Absenteeism and lack of engagement have been expounded due to COVID-19. Although not impossible, it will be a challenge to provide the 
same level of in classroom instruction for our expelled, special education, and preschool students through virtual instruction as COVID-19 is 
making a negative impact on our small and rural communities.  

Stakeholder Engagement 
[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.] 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx


 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 2 

CCOE Programs solicited stakeholder feedback in means that were most productive for departments. The alternative education program 
located at CCOE, S. William Abel Academy (SWAA), initiated stakeholder feedback in various formats and at different times.  The first effort 
to solicit feedback occurred in May 2020 after the pandemic hit and school was in its final weeks. The survey given to parents was to 
determine the effectiveness of how the school transitioned to Distance Learning and how those efforts could have been more seamless. In 
addition, trying to understand the effects that COVID had on our families, their reactions and needed adjustments were also part of the 
survey’s purpose. The survey was provided in both English and Spanish.  Surveys were distributed during weekly meal delivery but only a 
small portion where returned.  To gather more input from parents and other stakeholders, a survey was given to each parent and student at 
registration/intake meetings in August.  At this meeting, many surveys were completed, and the information was used to guide distance 
learning efforts.  Daily check in with students and scheduled Individualized Learning Plan (ILP) meetings every six weeks will also provide an 
opportunity for stakeholder engagement. Students have a scheduled monthly virtual Stakeholder Meeting beginning on September 17th, that 
allows students the platform to share concern and ideas on how to improve the educational services at SWAA.  Bi-weekly meal deliveries 
provide the opportunity for students and parents to share concerns regarding school and needs for students. In addition, a survey was 
emailed to stakeholders to garner feedback from partnering agencies and others instrumental in guiding the alternative education program. 
This LCP draft plan was provided to the teacher, principal, administrator, and other school personnel to review and make recommendations. 

Due to the small population of students (7) at SWAA there is no existing ELPAC and we do not receive Title III Funding.  Pre-COVID, we 
were in the process of securing a School Site Council to represent our parent advisory committee.  Since COVID-19 the PAC is on hold and 
thereby this draft plan was provided to each parent and student on 09/02/20 in their native language (English and Spanish) to solicit 
feedback on the plan.  The county superintendent will respond in writing to any comments received. This draft plan will also be posted on 
CCOE’s website on 09/02/20 and will be presented to the Colusa County Board of Education on 09/09/20. The final plan is scheduled to be 
adopted by the CCOE Board on 09/14/20. 

Special Education solicited feedback from stakeholders including the classified and certificated bargaining units through various methods. 
Surveys were sent out to better understand the needs of each family regarding connectivity, devices, desired schedule that worked for their 
family, and address any other concerns. Staff then made check-in phone calls to engage families and students. A distance learning plan was 
developed for each student that the IEP agreed upon, outlining how service would be delivered and goals addressed. Staff check-in with 
families ongoing to ensure that their needs are being met. 

Children’s Services solicited feedback through communication with parents via telephone conversations, emails, website postings, and 
conducted home visits to families of enrolled children’s homes to determine the best way to maintain continued communication.  Daily check 
ins involved meeting parents at school meal distribution “drive through” to obtain additional items such as learning materials, diapers and 
wipes, and available resources needed by the family. 

[A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.] 

S. William Abel Academy Stakeholders are provided information regarding public meetings and events through our Monthly Newsletters as 
well as reports to the Colusa County Board of Education.  Per Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, all meetings subject to the 
Brown Act were held digitally in accordance with CCOE Board Policy.  Board meeting and access information are provided to the public on 
the www.ccoe.net website. Both options allow for participation in public hearings. Special Education provided information to stakeholder 
regarding public meetings and events through staff communication, postings on social media and CCOE website, and posting in the Special 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 3 

Education office. Children’s Services stakeholders are provided monthly information through the Policy Council, which is comprised of 
community representatives including elected parent representatives. Parent feedback was also obtained through phone conversations and 
ongoing communication during daily meal distributions.  Our Colusa County Superintendent of Schools provided updates through podcasts 
and videos to keep the community engaged and corresponded with local Public Health Department for current directives. 

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.]  

Feedback from the Stakeholder survey for alternative education included preference for instruction delivery methods; methods of contact; 
challenges faced due to distance learning; device and connectivity challenges, schedules, how to promote parental participation; and the 
meal program provided. Stakeholder feedback for Special Education include the preferences for schedule, amount of live learning, 
connectivity and device concerns, distance learning plan input, re-opening documents suggestions. 

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.]  

Input from stakeholder for S. William Abel Academy has provided direction in ways to communicate with parents and students.  Most feel that 
in-person meetings are still the most effective way to communicate therefore intake meetings were conducted prior to the beginning of the 
school year using appropriate safety protocols. In addition, all respondents preferred in class instruction versus distance learning. As soon as 
Colusa County can return to in person instruction, schools at CCOE will open.  Students preferred having their one-on-one time in the 
morning with the teacher between the hours of 8:30-10:00 AM and the schedule was developed to accommodate preferences. Parents rated 
the lunch delivery system extremely effective, while students rated it moderately effective.  Student Stakeholder Meetings will provide 
direction in how to improve instruction as well as the meal program. Parents unanimously reported that home visits were the primary 
motivators to support student academic outcomes as students are visited twice weekly. Regarding academic engagement, students and 
parents described external factors and a dislike for 100% Distance Learning as the primary reasons for lack of engagement in previous 
distance learning. 

Since all students were provided a device for online learning before the end of the school year, no concerns were voiced from parents or 
students.  Due to the lack of available hot spots some students have recently been able to access online curriculum programs. In the interim, 
these students were provided paper/pencil packets to be completed and submitted weekly. 

Listening to parents’ concerns regarding the social-emotional wellbeing of their children at the beginning of the pandemic situation prompted 
SWAA to immediately deploy and make available our licensed family mental health therapist for students and parents.  The therapist was 
and still is readily available for all students and reaches out weekly to check in with students and parents.  Student’s and parent’s desire to 
return to school in a hybrid program has prompted administration to develop a re-opening plan for when in class instruction can begin. 

The influence from stakeholder input affected Special Education’s distance learning schedule, the need for devices and hot spots, amount of 
live learning that would occur, and meal delivery. Stakeholder input was also taken into consideration when developing the re-opening plan 
for when traditional school can begin.  

Children’s Services received feedback and full-day full-year preschool programs are currently open and in operation through in-classroom 
instruction for children to meet the needs of working families.  Preschool group size of no more than ten children are present at one time to 
maintain learning continuity.  Part day preschool sessions will follow local elementary school districts requirements and local and state 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 4 

requirements as we transition into traditional classroom learning.  Preschool instruction for part-day programs will be implemented through 
virtual learning opportunities until returning to classroom settings. 

 

Continuity of Learning 

In-Person Instructional Offerings 

[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have 
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019–2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss 
due to future school closures.] 

S. William Abel Academy realizes the need for in-person instruction for its At-Promise Youth it serves, but since Colusa County remains on 
California’s monitoring list, this method of delivery is currently unavailable due to Governor Newsom’s order dated July 17, 2020 that schools 
may not upon if they are located in counties that are on California’s Covid-19 Monitoring list. Recognizing that in person instruction would be 
most beneficial, SWAA will continue to operate a distance learning program to serve student’s academic and social-emotional needs until it is 
safe to return to in person instruction. 

Special Education is working in collaboration with Colusa County Public Health to create a process that would be safe for students to come 
to CCOE campus to receive services. The students enrolled in CCOE programs are considered high needs and once approval is given for in-
person instruction, Special Education will provide service to student in-person when appropriate. Through staff check-ins, if students are 
deemed to be in crisis, the staff will meet to determine if in-person visits are needed. Students current levels are being monitored by staff and 
measured with levels prior to school closure to gage learning loss. This is done by work completion and NWEA assessment results. Each 
student completes a standardized assessment through NWEA to get a baseline of levels, which occurred in the Spring of 2020. The NWEA 
will be given upon return to school to determine the exact learning loss. The gaps of learning loss are being documented and when given 
authorization for in-person instruction, staff will address the learning loss gaps through intensive interventions. The IEP team will determine if 
goals need to be adjusted to account for the learning loss that occurred. IEP meeting will be held when needed to adjust each student 
individualized plan. 

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

 This space intentionally left blank due to the LEA not offering in-person instruction.   N/A N 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 5 

Distance Learning Program 

Continuity of Instruction 

[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of 
substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery, including the LEA’s plan for curriculum and instructional resources that will 
ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.] 

All schools at CCOE are devising systems to create continuity of instruction for their students.  While the systems may look different, the end 
goal is to ensure that pupils have full access to curriculum regardless of method of delivery.  For S. William Abel, current instruction is 
accomplished through online curriculum; daily dedicated time individually with the teacher; morning check-ins and afternoon exit tickets. 
SWAA realized that to be able to create a successful Individualized Learning Plan for each student, it was necessary to begin the year with 
diagnostic testing to determine student’s strengths and weaknesses. These tests in Reading, Language Arts, English Language 
Development, and Math help determine the essential areas in which students need support.  In addition, it helped chart a path for skill 
building and to mitigate learning loss. Individualized Learning Plans were completed at meetings with parents, students, and the school team 
prior to the start of school for all students.  Individualized Learning Plan meetings are held every six weeks to review progress and academic 
goals with students and parents.  School calendars were provided to students and parents depicting grading periods and parent teacher 
conferences. Teacher communication with students and parents will provide monitoring of student grades and credits. S. William Abel 
Academy uses platforms such as Google Classroom and Zoom to provide continuity of instruction for all students. Edmentum Courseware 
provides instruction in core classes for all students while textbooks are provided in other areas.  Students request various methods of 
instruction to mitigate lack of motivation. All classes are made available to students, but meetings with parents and students determine 
necessary requirements and course focus. Intake meetings and follow up ILP meetings dictate the student’s trajectory. Each student is 
created an individualized schedule to ensure access to rigorous courses and the schedule includes 180 minutes of daily instruction. Exact 
Path, an online platform, is used to build skills in student deficiency areas. When the school transitions to in person instruction these same 
curriculum models will be utilized.  Students participating in Independent Study follow the same curriculum models as those participating in 
Distance Learning with weekly check ins rather than daily.  Since SWAA maintains only one full time teacher on staff, the transition from 
distance learning to a hybrid program will be a seamless transition. The Licensed Marriage/Family Therapist (LMFT), employed by SWAA, is 
also a licensed academic counselor. She reviews student transcripts and provides case management for each student. This includes one-on- 
one support, home visits or any other necessary resources.  

Special Education has transitioned the adopted curriculum to a digital platform so that it can easily be delivered in either setting. Nearpod, 
NWEA, Unique, Google Classroom and Zoom are being utilized to ensure that the quality of content remains the same from classroom to 
distance learning. Special Education implemented Unique, NWEA, and Google Classroom throughout 2019-2020 school year, so students 
are familiar with the platforms and can access the content when delivered in these methods. The content and curriculum have remained the 
same and can be delivered in either format. 

Distance learning instruction for Children’s Services part-day preschool programs will include a virtual classroom model with important 
aspects from classroom curriculum and will be modified.  Instruction delivery methods include both virtual and hands on learning 
opportunities to ensure an individualized approach for varying learners.  Educators will utilize theme studies from current research-based 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 6 

curriculum that includes a focus question of the day and learning experiences to strengthen creativity, confidence, and critical thinking 
opportunities.  Footsteps2Brilliance and Clever Kids University are part of virtual instruction and provides interactive eBooks that can easily 
toggle between both English and Spanish languages and promote pre-reading skills such as letter recognition, writing, and phonemic 
awareness. These electronic applications integrate with current preschool curriculum and promotes language and literacy, mathematics 
development, scientific reasoning, social and emotional development, approaches to learning, and physical and perceptual development that 
prepares children for kindergarten readiness.  Educators plan weekly lesson plans and distribute hands on learning materials that support 
activities to the homes of each child.  Learning kits that are delivered to the child’s home include books, art materials, counting objects, and 
manipulatives that support planned learning objectives.  Teachers will have access to comprehensive library of books and a library of videos 
that provide unlimited resources.  Recorded instruction and lessons will allow children and parents to view together and build upon 
establishing family engagement and partnerships.  Full day programs will continue with children’s regular classroom attendance and will 
phase into increasing the number of children in attendance to full capacity once safe to do so and is recommended by our local public health 
officials.  As we plan for absenteeism amongst classroom employees, part-day Assistant Teachers provide classroom support to full-day 
centers to ensure ongoing instruction and to meet increased sanitation requirements.  Current data systems such as Child Plus and Learning 
Genie supports family engagement and virtual and in classroom learning. Children’s Services will meet the significant learning loss identified 
in children ages 0-5 years through the focus of a consistent routine and daily learning activities that promotes academic and social emotional 
learning.  A plan for completing child assessments and collection of data will be based on parent and teacher observations and type of 
instruction provided.  Smaller group sizes support individual needs of children and provide more one on one opportunities for positive 
teacher-child interactions.  Full day programs where children are in attendance will continue to identify strengths and areas for growth 
through formative child assessments and informed instructional practices.  Individualized Learning Plans prepared for each child will identify 
focus areas for development and identify progression. 

Support from CCOE’s Technology Services Department has created a Google Tenant to support LMS standards to allow Teachers to 
interact with students through Google Classroom and to communicate through Gmail with students.  The CCOE Technology Department has 
worked to secure and ensure Child Internet Protection Act (CIPA) compliance to all student devices to help facilitate distance learning for our 
students Monitor usage of LMS to determine if certain content areas or grade levels may need additional support or resources. 

 

Access to Devices and Connectivity 

[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.] 

Connectivity issues is the primary focus of the CCOE Technology Department as it pertains to distance learning.  Without connectivity 
students cannot participate in distance learning adequately.  Colusa County is very rural. ISP services inside Colusa County often stop at the 
edge of the cities, limiting access to families outside of those ranges.  Compounding the issue, due to low return on investment in our small 
communities, LTE carriers only provide coverage to major interstates and highways in our community.  Families that live further out in the 
farmlands cannot utilize these services.   

To help provide students that are currently unable to leverage any connectivity, CCOE is leading a consortium consisting of the Colusa 
County Office of Education, Colusa Unified School District, Maxwell Unified School District, Pierce Joint Unified School District, and Williams 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 7 

Unified School District to build an LTE network that we are calling the “Colusa County EduNet” to resolve these issues.  We have partnered 
with T-Mobile to leverage underutilized LTE spectrum in our county to deploy the EduNet.  We have also partnered with the cities in our 
communities to place our LTE radios and antennas on the water towers to broadcast our LTE signal throughout the community.  This will 
allow CCOE to extend our network to the homes of the students safely and securely.   Students near our signal will receive it on their district 
provided LTE Router and convert it to Wi-Fi to work with their county or district provided device.   

The EduNet will provide access from 4 to 7 miles outside of the larger cities in the Colusa County valley. We expect this to reach up to 90 
percent of our students.  Some of the families in our county cannot afford the price to have internet at home. The EduNet would help provide 
these students safe and secure CIPA compliant internet access. The cost of the EduNet is substantially less than the cost of “out of the box” 
vendor solutions with greater coverage.  

To ensure equitable access, the CCOE Technology Department is mapping students that do not have connectivity on a Google Map.  From 
there, the technology department assesses each student's best solution ranging from either Comcast or Frontier if they live in the city limits 
and have adequate access to hotspot or the Colusa County EduNet depending on which best suits their needs.  Once the student is online 
the CCOE Technology Department works with other departments to ensure that the students has the resources necessary to conduct 
distance learning. 

To resolve any connectivity or device issues, the CCOE Technology Department has a helpdesk system that all departments leverage. When 
the need arises, the CCOE Technology Department works to address the situation to ensure that issues are resolved.  This immediate call to 
action helps eliminate any issues that would result in a loss of distance learning.  In addition, Board Policy has been created as it relates to 
distance learning. 

Devices are chosen based on specific needs of the children and resources available.  Special Education students may require specialized 
equipment to help provide an adequate learning experience whereas other departments my choose a standard laptop to achieve 1:1 for 
student to device deployment.  Schools at CCOE approached access to devices according to what was the best method to meet the needs 
of their students. 

S. William Abel Academy has provided all students devices and connectivity for the previous and current school year so that students can 
participate in online curriculum and digital platforms. Device issues and trouble-shooting support is provided by SWAA staff to students on as 
needed basis. The teacher is also provided support to ensure distance learning and communication with students is readily available. 

Through a technology survey delivered to Special Education families, it was determined who needed assistance with connectivity and hot 
spots have been ordered for the families that need assistance. Devices were delivered to each student in the Spring of 2020. Kits and other 
materials were delivered to student’s homes to assist with learning. 

Children’s Services purchased electronic devices such as tablets and headphones for all preschool programs.  CCOE has been awarded an 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant from the U.S. Department of Education that allowed the purchase of over 300 child tablets that will 
be sent to the home of each 2-5 year old child and family to provide greater access to digital literacy.  Utilizing technology in the child’s home 
will provide families with greater access to educational programs, e-books, and interactive learning activities that promote distance learning.  
In addition, several books are sent home with each child to build their home libraries. 

 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 8 

Pupil Participation and Progress 

[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how 
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.] 

Assessment methods to determine pupil progress are created by each school and implemented to meet the needs of their students in 
accordance with Senate Bill 98. S. William Abel Academy students receive daily contact with certificated staff three times during the school 
day. The morning check in frames the student’s schedule for the day and provides an opportunity for early intervention for those not present.  
Simultaneously, the teacher alerts office staff of students’ absences and follow up phone calls to student and parent begin immediately.  The 
check ins are done through Zoom teleconferencing software and Google classroom. The teacher assigns coursework through Google 
Classroom, Edmentum, and Exact Path, which provides student progress, course completion, and verifies student participation.  
Asynchronous work assigned is either placed in student work folders distributed weekly during meal delivery or uploaded to Google 
Classroom. This work is assigned time-to-value credit. Synchronous and asynchronous methods are used to ensure that a student 
completes 180 minutes of instruction. A daily participation and attendance log designating activities completed, check ins and meetings are 
compiled by the teacher and given to the administration to ensure that students are engaged and participating in daily activities.  This 
attendance/activity log also helps identify students who are at-risk of learning loss. 

For Special Education, the distance learning plan that are connected to each student’s IEP, will guide staff to use work completion and 
assessment to monitor goal progress. The distance learning schedule that was developed with stakeholder input, has live and synchronous 
instructional minutes embedded. Each morning starts with live learning and check-ins to outline the activities for the day. Attendance is taken 
each day and a percentage of work completion is documented. The completion of work and activities is documented to measure baseline 
and goal progress. If students are not making progress, then a meeting is held to alter the distance learning plan. The two Special Education 
programs in Coastal Buttes are using the same methods to ensure consistency. The time value of assignments has been adjusted to fit the 
current distance learning schedule and monitored by staff. Staff gage student completion and determine if less or more work needs to be 
assigned. Also, staff have assigned activities that can be completed asynchronous at students preferred times.   

Children Services’ Teachers are assigned a list of enrolled children and begin with an Orientation with parents to discuss the importance of 
regular and positive attendance.  Teachers monitor and track attendance on daily attendance sheets.  Teachers in part-day classrooms that 
provide virtual learning will correspond with parents weekly through email, interact through Learning Parent Engagement application, and 
telephone conversations.  Teachers encourage families to develop meaningful home learning environments and utilize materials sent home 
to family.  Parents are encouraged to share photos of their child’s work.  Ongoing and responsive communication will improve each child’s 
outcomes. 

Distance Learning Professional Development 

[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including 
technological support.] 

S. William Abel Academy staff is offered professional development in distance learning and online programs utilized.  Administration 
participated in The Distance Learning Playbook webinar and has access to resources to support the distance learning program. The teacher 
has been provided multiple professional development opportunities to ensure success in distance learning and delivering rigorous content 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 9 

through Edmentum and Exact Path. Consistent weekly check-ins between administration and teacher result in discussions in improving 
processes and curriculum for students. Tech support is provided for teacher and staff as needed through the county office of education. 

In Special Education, staff has been provided Nearpod, Unique, Sonday Intervention, and google classroom training. Staff meetings are 
scheduled monthly to determine any new staff needs that need to be addressed. 

Children’s Services approaches professional development needs by providing monthly professional development opportunities for teachers 
with weekly check-ins to ensure continuity of instruction in between school sites.  Teachers receive daily pre-scheduled planning time and 
meet monthly for peer to peer collaboration opportunities. In addition, a training plan is created that consists of monthly professional 
development trainings on a variety of educational topics focused on program goals and increased quality. Topics for trainings include health 
and safety protocols, monitoring, classroom modifications, environments and interactions, lesson planning and individualization, and program 
procedures.  Trauma informed practices is one training topic that staff received due to the affects the pandemic has had on families.    

 

 

Staff Roles and Responsibilities 

[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.] 

S. William Abel Academy staff had anticipated the need to implement distance learning before COVID-19 occurred as it was discussing 
offering a hybrid program.  Because of COVID-19, it forced administration to create the distance learning program that would be put in place 
during and after the pandemic.  Distance learning has not created any additional roles as providing instruction is key regardless which 
platform is utilized.  The administration will continue to monitor student progress and attendance just as it has in the past.  Student to staff 
ratio is not a problem due to small class sizes. 

In Special Education, staff have transitioned well to distance learning during school closures. Due to the small size of our programs, student 
to staff ratio is also not an issue. Staff are able to keep their current job duties working remotely and any training request by staff are 
immediately provided.   Each student has a comprehensive IEP and their services are being met through the agreed upon distance learning 
plan. Staff negotiations took place on August 18, 2020 to review safety precautions, telecommuting guidelines, safety precautions and to 
gather input on roles and responsibilities. 

The role of Children’s Services staff is to remain flexible to meet the changing needs of families and to best meet the needs of the program.  
Employees from classrooms where virtual learning is the current option, are utilized to support full-day classrooms where children are in 
session. During the pandemic, many employees have requested temporary leaves therefore, leaving positions unfilled.  Staffing patterns are 
subject to change to meet necessary changes and to fill vacant positions. In-service training provided safety protocols for reopening and 
included guidance from health officials to ensure transparent communication.  Consistent staffing patterns and continuity helps young 
children develop safe and trusting relationships with adults and lesson the spread of Covid-19.   However, maintaining consistent staffing 
patterns has been extremely difficult.  In addition, there are staff that that will not adjust their work schedules because of home commitments 
which places additional pressures on other employees.  A significant number of employees resigned from their positions because they were 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 10 

afraid of being exposed in the classrooms which increased our number of vacant positions.  Employees received a list of vacant positions 
with an opportunity to request a transfer to another location to support staff. 

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs 

[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English 
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing 
homelessness.] 

Each school’s demographics may vary so each school approaches support to students by meeting the individual needs of its students. S. 
William Abel’s cohort of seven students, that represents English Learners, pupils with exceptional needs across the full continuum of 
placements, pupils in foster care, pupils who are experiencing homelessness, migrant, and Socio Economically disadvantaged students.  
Since all categories are represented, services apply to all students. S. William Abel Academy students are provided supports both virtually 
and during bi-weekly meal deliveries.  These supports are provided in areas of academics as well as social emotional.  The daily check-ins 
with the teacher are the primary method of support.  Next, dedicated individual class time daily with the teacher also provides supports to all 
students.  The LMFT/academic counselor provides check in and provides home visits when the situation warrants such.  S. William Abel 
works closely with the CCOE Prevention Services Team which is housed on campus and is readily available to provide support. Trusted 
relationships built with Behavioral Health and other county agencies allow resources to be provided to students. 

In Special Education each student has an IEP and a distance learning plan. These documents guide the services that are delivered to each 
student. If an area of concern arises, the IEP team meets to determine if assessment and additional services are needed. Staff monitor 
student progress in all areas of services through baseline testing and therapy logs. This assures staff that they are addressing every area of 
needs and monitoring progress through student goals.  

Children’s Services employees take an individualized approach with each child and family at the beginning of enrollment that identifies all 
unique needs. Employees conduct an assessment and refer each family to necessary and available resources.   Developmental 
assessments and screenings are conducted with each child’s family to identify the child’s strengths and areas that need more focus.  An 
Individualized Learning Plan will support the child’s learning and opportunities and will be monitored by staff.   A Special Needs Coordinator, 
Family Engagement Coordinator, Health Specialist, and members of our Leadership Team are available to support the needs of all children 
and participate in monthly case management when a special need may arise. 

Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Student technology acquisition including hot spots and internet access for all students.  $5,052.00 Y 

Professional development provided for staff to Distance Learning Programs. 

 

$898.00 

 

Yes 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 11 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Staff technology acquisition including webcams, professional Zoom accounts and headsets with built in 
microphones to ensure staff’s ability to host online learning spaces 

$895.00 

 

Yes 

Increased transportation costs due to meal delivery and schoolwork drop off and pick up. 

 

$553.00 Yes 

Student incentives for assistance and participation in distance learning. $1,539.00 

 

Yes 

Pupil Learning Loss 

[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019–2020 and 2020–21 school years, 
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language 
development, and mathematics.] 

All schools have plans to address pupil learning loss. S. William Abel acknowledges that there was a learning gap and learning loss from the 
summer slide from 2019-20.  To determine the amount of loss and to be able to create a successful Individualized Learning Plan for each 
student, it was necessary to begin the year with diagnostic testing to determine student’s strengths and weaknesses.  These tests in 
Reading, Language Arts, and Math in Exact Path help determine the essential areas in which students need support.  Moreover, Exact Path 
provides recommendations in charting a path for skill building and to mitigate learning loss. Individualized learning plans were developed at 
meetings with parents, students, and staff prior to the start of school for all students.  Individualized Learning Plan meetings will be held 
every six weeks to review progress and academic goals with students and parents. English Language Learners will be assessed in the 
Spring to determine learning status through the ELPAC. 

Special Education will use Goals testing and NWEA assessment results to gauge learning loss. If learning loss has occurred, intensive 
intervention will be given in the areas of loss. An IEP meeting will be held to discuss the learning loss and goal adjusted. When appropriate, 
compensatory education will be discussed and offered if appropriate.  

Children’s Services will utilize developmentally appropriate assessment results to identify progress and areas of need.  Individualized 
curriculum opportunities will provide concentrated focus to improve developmental gains. 

Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 

[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed, 
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils 
experiencing homelessness.] 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 12 

S. William Abel Academy students representing English Learners, Low income, foster youth, pupils with exceptional needs, pupils 
experiencing homeless, migrant, and Socioeconomically disadvantaged were tested in Reading, Language Arts, Math and English Language 
Development (integrated and designated) in Exact Path to help determine the essential areas in which students need support.  Moreover, 
Exact Path provides recommendations in charting a path for skill building and to mitigate learning loss. Classroom instruction design will 
provide multiple opportunities for synchronous learning and asynchronous learning.   Daily check-ins and exit tickets with the teacher are just 
a few of the strategies to determine student’s daily progress. Individualized Learning Plans were developed at meetings with parents, 
students, and staff prior to the start of school for all students.  Individualized Learning Plan meetings will be held every six weeks to review 
progress and academic goals with students and parents.  In addition, Foster and homeless youth are supported through case management 
by the Foster/Homeless program coordinator. Families are connected with agencies and referred to community resources as need are 
identified.  A backpack with school supplies was provide for these students. 

Special Education students have specific goals that address areas of need in their IEP. Goal testing, informal assessment, therapy logs, and 
NWEA standardized assessment will be used to determine baseline levels. These forms of assessment will be delivered daily and NWEA will 
be given three times in a school year. Goals and services will be adjusted to fit student levels and need.  

Children’s Services will continue to provide engaging activities that build connections to engage families.  Children’s Services’ focus on 
instilling a consistent routine and daily educational activities promotes both academic and social emotional learning. Families will receive 
access to home-based literacy programs available in English and Spanish that will connect to classroom activities that build upon learning. 
Distribution of quality books to build a child’s home library and interest in reading and hands-on learning materials will promote the learning 
progression in each child. Children’s Services also deploys assessments to determine developmental levels. 

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 

[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.] 

S. William Abel Academy will conduct post testing through Exact path to determine the amount of learning loss that was regained.  It will also 
be determined through transcripts and ILP plan reviews at six-week intervals. Daily monitoring of attendance and engagement through 
Aeries and Google classroom determines additional supports needed as well as rapidly identifying students needing or exceeding the 60% 
threshold of absences.  Home visits and phone calls during extended hours and weekends for difficult to reach students and working parents 
help to address student needs. 

Learning loss in Special Education will be measured through the IEP process of goal monitoring and NWEA assessment results. This 
monitoring will determine adjustments needed to the student's IEP. Goals and assessment drive the IEP and goals. These have legal 
timelines to be followed and will be adjusted accordingly to student need. 

Children’s Services will utilize checkpoints throughout the year and reevaluate the process.  The Desired Results systems including the 
DRDP will be the developmental child screening assessment for programs currently in operation.  Collected data will include parent and 
teacher observations through assessing the child’s skills and providing individualized support. Observational data collected will inform 
curriculum implementation, instruction for children, and professional development opportunities. 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 13 

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Instructional and data technology driven tools to include Google Classroom and Zoom $1,155.00 Yes 

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school 
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of 
COVID-19 on the school community.] 

CCOE recognizes the importance of supporting mental health and the social emotional well-being of its staff and students. While approaches 
may vary, the underlying principle to keep students and staff healthy is at the forefront of all schools. S. William Abel Academy supports the 
emotional and mental well-being through daily contact with the teacher and consistent contact with our LMFT.  In addition, staff and student 
participation in Living Works, a suicide prevention program is also scheduled for the fall.  Family wellness checks are provided to families of 
SWAA Students and referrals are made to the appropriate agencies. Prevention Services personnel also support the social-emotional well-
being of students and parents as needed. Staff are provided the ability to participate in social emotional events/webinars and our county wide 
staff development addresses the need of self-care.  CCOE provides flexibility to staff to telecommute when necessary and provides 
newsletters and information on emotional well-being. 

Special Education has an ERMHS clinician and Behavior Specialist on staff. These individuals participate in each program and monitor 
students. Any need for training or concern by staff on a student, are addressed by these individuals. Trauma Informed Care is utilized in all 
special education programs and if a student need arises, the IEP will meet to determine is assessment is needed to address an area of 
concern. 

Children’s Services utilizes various methods to support the well-being of young children.  The Teaching Pyramid incorporates early childhood 
behavior support through promoting positive social-emotional development and support for children’s behavior.  Staff are trained and utilize 
Teaching Pyramid tools for classroom management and monitoring practices.  Curriculum support includes solving conflicts and regulating 
emotions.  The Early Learning Second Step Program supports concepts such as empathy, problem solving, and emotional management.  
Staff received extensive training on relationship-based approaches to trauma, healing for support, and social-emotional resilience that are 
culturally responsive for early educators.  A Special Needs Coordinator on staff partners with local Behavioral Health for mental health 
consultation services for children and families. 

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from 
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English, 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 14 

when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not engaging in instruction and is at risk 
of learning loss.] 

Communication is essential for continued success in all programs at CCOE. Realizing the importance of communication systems, each 
school designs pupil and family engagement according to the needs of its clients. Some processes for outreach are universal, while others 
vary.  S. William Abel Academy believes the most consistent and reliable method to reach students is by having the teacher check in with 
students three times per day.  For students who did not engage in distance learning during the day, S. William Abel Academy has developed 
a tiered reengagement strategy plan for pupils who are absent from distance learning. Attendance is documented daily in the attendance 
program, Aeries and in the Distance Learning Log. In addition, parent letters are sent in English and Spanish when students are not meeting 
compulsory education requirements and who have missed more than 60% of instructional days during any given week. Intervention 
strategies, home visits, and follow up conferences with students and parents are scheduled immediately to avoid the risk of learning loss.  
Due to the small student population, regular communication with parents is common practice.  

In Special Education, staff also maintain regular communication with students and families. This is outlined in the students Distance Learning 
Plan. Each staff member has designated office hours for students and families. Translators are on staff to assist with language barriers. CAC 
meetings are also scheduled this school year as an arena to allow parents to give feedback. Special Education also has developed a tiered 
re-engagement strategy to address absent students, which includes calls, emails, letters to families.  Like SWAA, attendance is also 
collected via AERIES for in-person instruction and documented in an attendance log for distance learning. It is taken daily, and re-
engagement strategies as used when students are absent. If a student is having difficulties attending, an IEP meeting will be scheduled to 
see if the plan needs to be altered to promote engagement.  

Children’s Services maintains communication and attendance strategies with families also.  Preschool classrooms that provide virtual 
learning will engage in virtual bi-weekly classroom instruction and weekly interactions with parents through email, text messages, and/or 
Learning Genie parent engagement application.  A Family Calendar that outlines daily family-oriented learning activities is provided to each 
family at the beginning of the month and is available in English and Spanish. The calendar will be handed out to parents and emailed for 
programs offering virtual learning.   Activities from the Family Engagement Calendar will be revisited during virtual learning and weekly 
interactions.  Learning Genie provides parenting videos, children’s books and activities, and resources and updates directly to a parent’s 
electronic device.  Staff problem solve with families and identify barriers to increase active attendance. 

School Nutrition 
[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or 
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.] 

At the onset of COVID-19, meals were provided for all students through our county office of education at two meal sites.  Breakfast and lunch 
were provided at no cost to all school-age children 18 years of age and younger.  Addresses for meal locations were provided in the initial 
letter sent out by administration, as well as the information being posted to the CCOE website and social media posts. Currently, three-day 
meal supplies are delivered to all SWAA and Special Ed students including those eligible and non-eligible for free and reduced-price meals 
twice weekly when instructional resources are also provided.  These meals are delivered to student’s homes on Monday and Wednesdays. 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 15 

Children’s Services approach is slightly different as it provides individual meals through the Child and Adult Food Program for all children in a 
classroom setting.  Meals are delivered to each classroom.  Mealtime procedures include monitoring and identifying that each child receives 
a meal at time of meal distribution.   Meal service distribution is available for each enrolled child.    

Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows 
and actions may be added as necessary] 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students 

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services  
Increased Apportionment Based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students  

26.69% $53,770 

Required Descriptions 

[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of (1) 
how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the needs of these students.] 

Colusa County Office of Education is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs of 
low income, English Learners, and foster youth at the community school. Student academic improvement is provided through research-
based curriculum, programs, and services. Due to the small school size, mobile student population, and extremely credit deficient students, 
LCFF supplemental funds are used schoolwide to increase or improve services for unduplicated pupils in the following manner: 

Professional Development 

By offering targeted professional learning opportunities to staff in Google Classroom, Zoom, Instruction that is Synchronous & Asynchronous, 
and social-emotional learning, we are preparing our staff to identify and specifically respond to the unique needs of our unduplicated student 
populations. By strategically supporting and providing interventions, we believe our students will have the best possible supports to help 
them better achieve academic success.  

Section Description Total Funds  Contributing 

N/A There are no additional actions to include in this section. N/A No 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 16 

Increased Technology Supports: 

Looking at the needs of our foster youth, low-income, and English learners, it is clear that the LEA need to close the equity gap presented by 
students and staff who are unable to connect in a distance learning environment through either limited connectivity or substandard devices 
has been the biggest challenge! Devices and connectivity have been provided to all students. All students have received a Chromebook 
and/or Mobile Hotspot. Access to devices and connectivity are essential for learning within the remote teaching environment. By acquiring 
technology devices and connectivity to meet the needs of students and staff, we are ensuring the infrastructure upon which distance learning 
is built and gives us the need to respond to the digital learning needs of our foster youth, low income, and English learners which has been 
an essential priority. While we know these needs may exist across all students, they have been the most pronounced in our unduplicated 
student populations. 

Expanded Supports: 

We will be offering social services along with mental health services to all students since we know that our foster youth and socio-
economically disadvantaged populations are vulnerable to trauma-inducing environments which will most likely have been exacerbated by 
the conditions created by COVID-19. Providing these expanded health services will help address the first levels of socio-emotional needs 
through our LMFT, then further connect students and their families with community-based resources as well as timely higher-level mental 
health supports should they need them. In addition to these socio-emotional supports for these most vulnerable subgroups, we also provide 
student incentives to increase engagement.  

Transportation & Other Supports: 

In order to support our low-income and foster youth families, we have increased our staff transportation to make weekly home visits to all 
students to deliver meals, homework, conduct wellness check ins, and provide support with technology connectivity issues. In addition, we 
provided student backpacks with school materials and supplies that can support their academic success. For students who need clothing, 
shoes, and other personal necessity needs, we take them to our partner Churches who provide for these students such needs. 

 

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required.] 

Services for Foster Youth, Englisher Learners and low-income students are being increased or improved using the strategies mentioned 
above and taking into consideration the expenditures incurred to meet the improved service percentage of 26.69%. The services and 
supports listed above are robust, culturally responsive and leverage the various supplemental resources that we have acquired in technology 
programs, targeted professional development opportunities and curriculum.  Curriculum utilized has imbedded integrated and designated 
ELD. Any group experiencing difficulties accessing curriculum including English Learners will be provided targeted interventions to ensure 
they have the necessary support to be successful.  Counseling and mental health services are also available for students to ensure social 
well-being during this pandemic as well as during the regular school year.  



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
RESOLUTION 20/21‐01 

RESOLUTION OF THE COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT  
OF SCHOOLS AND THE COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGARDING SUFFICIENCY OR INSUFFICIENCY OF TEXTBOOKS AND INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2020‐21 

 
  WHEREAS, the governing board of Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE), in order to comply 
with the requirements of Education Code Section 60119 held a public hearing which did not take 
place during or immediately following school hours, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, the governing board provided at least 10 days notice of the public hearing posted in at 
least three public places within the district that stated the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, 
and; 
 
  WHEREAS, the governing board encouraged participation by parents, teachers, members of the 
community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, information that CCOE provided at the public hearing and to the governing board at 
the public meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional materials were provided 
to all students, including English learners, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” means that each 
pupil has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home to complete 
required homework assignments, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to each student, 
including English learners, in mathematics, science, history‐social science, and English/language arts, 
including the English language development component of an adopted program, consistent with the 
cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials were provided to each pupil enrolled in 
foreign language or health classes, and; 
 
  WHEREAS, sufficient laboratory science equipment was provided for science laboratory classes 
offered in grades 9‐12, inclusive;  
 
  THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED, that for the 2020‐21 school year, the CCOE has provided each pupil 
with sufficient textbooks and instructional materials consistent with the cycles and content of the 
curriculum frameworks. 
 

11.2 



Board Resolution 20/21‐01 
Page 2 
September 9, 2020 

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Colusa County Board of 
Education on the 9th day of September 2020 by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 
 
 
Noes: 
 
 
Absent: 
 

I, Michael P. West, Secretary of the Governing Board of Colusa County Office of Education, of Colusa 
County, California, certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution adopted by 
the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held at a regular public place of meeting and the resolution 
is on file in the of said Board. 
 

       
  (Clerk’s Signature)      (Date) 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SPECIAL MEETING 

DATE:  Monday, September 14, 2020 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID:  913 7254 3440  Passcode:  810120 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 
https://zoom.us/j/91372543440?pwd=SlVjb0xTZk41YnFhMmxiVTlrQ2Z1QT09 
  Meeting ID:  913 7254 3440  Passcode:  7Pj3AX 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Rollcall 



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 14, 2020, Special Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

4.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

5.0 NEW BUSINESS 
5.1 Approve Adoption of the 2020‐21 Learning Continuity and   action 
  Attendance Plan 

6.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
6.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  information 

6.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
Gann Limits 
October 14, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

7.0 ADJOURNMENT 



 

Page 1 

California Department of Education, July 2020 

Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21) 
The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx. 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 

Colusa County Office of Education 
Lorilee Niesen, Director of Educational 
Services 

lniesen@ccoe.net 
530-473-1350 

General Information 
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.] 

The Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE) provides educational services to students TK-Adult.  While the ages and grade levels may 
vary, the guiding principle is to provide a quality educational experience for all students. On March 18, 2020, CCOE programs were shut 
down to address the COVID-19 emergency. The CCOE Website was immediately updated with links for students and families in English and 
Spanish to obtain enrichment activities, information regarding the pandemic, as well as safety guidelines. In order to inform parents, we also 
made phone calls and posted announcements through social media. In addition to providing interpreting & translation services, the CCOE 
staff provided telephone support to parents, students and staff with questions related to the use of and access to technology. While our 
different schools began to initiate processes to transition to distance learning, the common thread was the impact of COVID-19 on our small 
county office.  All students returned virtually to school with a higher degree of learning loss. The summer slide further widened and added to 
the lower achievement rates and a greater gap between our higher and lower achieving students than prior years. The wider range of 
learning needs coupled with lack of in person learning creates a greater challenge for alternative education, special education, and children 
services. Staff is tasked with creating an expedited individualized learning plan for every student that includes differentiated instruction based 
on a broader range of educational needs. The lack of explicit face-to-face instruction from teachers has further regressed student learning 
and engagement. Teachers are making every attempt to adapt content to deliver on an online platform while parents juggle work (if fortunate 
to be employed), childcare, lack of connectivity in remote areas, while providing instruction for the first time ever. Some students are 
struggling with isolation, are afraid of contamination, have food insecurities, and the loss of a routine that may further add to their anxiety. 
Absenteeism and lack of engagement have been expounded due to COVID-19. Although not impossible, it will be a challenge to provide the 
same level of in classroom instruction for our expelled, special education, and preschool students through virtual instruction as COVID-19 is 
making a negative impact on our small and rural communities.  

Stakeholder Engagement 
[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.] 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx


 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 2 

CCOE Programs solicited stakeholder feedback in means that were most productive for departments. The alternative education program 
located at CCOE, S. William Abel Academy (SWAA), initiated stakeholder feedback in various formats and at different times.  The first effort 
to solicit feedback occurred in May 2020 after the pandemic hit and school was in its final weeks. The survey given to parents was to 
determine the effectiveness of how the school transitioned to Distance Learning and how those efforts could have been more seamless. In 
addition, trying to understand the effects that COVID had on our families, their reactions and needed adjustments were also part of the 
survey’s purpose. The survey was provided in both English and Spanish.  Surveys were distributed during weekly meal delivery but only a 
small portion where returned.  To gather more input from parents and other stakeholders, a survey was given to each parent and student at 
registration/intake meetings in August.  At this meeting, many surveys were completed, and the information was used to guide distance 
learning efforts.  Daily check in with students and scheduled Individualized Learning Plan (ILP) meetings every six weeks will also provide an 
opportunity for stakeholder engagement. Students have a scheduled monthly virtual Stakeholder Meeting beginning on September 17th, that 
allows students the platform to share concern and ideas on how to improve the educational services at SWAA.  Bi-weekly meal deliveries 
provide the opportunity for students and parents to share concerns regarding school and needs for students. In addition, a survey was 
emailed to stakeholders to garner feedback from partnering agencies and others instrumental in guiding the alternative education program. 
This LCP draft plan was provided to the teacher, principal, administrator, and other school personnel to review and make recommendations. 

Due to the small population of students (7) at SWAA there is no existing ELPAC and we do not receive Title III Funding.  Pre-COVID, we 
were in the process of securing a School Site Council to represent our parent advisory committee.  Since COVID-19 the PAC is on hold and 
thereby this draft plan was provided to each parent and student on 09/02/20 in their native language (English and Spanish) to solicit 
feedback on the plan.  The county superintendent will respond in writing to any comments received. This draft plan will also be posted on 
CCOE’s website on 09/02/20 and will be presented to the Colusa County Board of Education on 09/09/20. The final plan is scheduled to be 
adopted by the CCOE Board on 09/14/20. 

Special Education solicited feedback from stakeholders including the classified and certificated bargaining units through various methods. 
Surveys were sent out to better understand the needs of each family regarding connectivity, devices, desired schedule that worked for their 
family, and address any other concerns. Staff then made check-in phone calls to engage families and students. A distance learning plan was 
developed for each student that the IEP agreed upon, outlining how service would be delivered and goals addressed. Staff check-in with 
families ongoing to ensure that their needs are being met. 

Children’s Services solicited feedback through communication with parents via telephone conversations, emails, website postings, and 
conducted home visits to families of enrolled children’s homes to determine the best way to maintain continued communication.  Daily check 
ins involved meeting parents at school meal distribution “drive through” to obtain additional items such as learning materials, diapers and 
wipes, and available resources needed by the family. 

[A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.] 

S. William Abel Academy Stakeholders are provided information regarding public meetings and events through our Monthly Newsletters as 
well as reports to the Colusa County Board of Education.  Per Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, all meetings subject to the 
Brown Act were held digitally in accordance with CCOE Board Policy.  Board meeting and access information are provided to the public on 
the www.ccoe.net website. Both options allow for participation in public hearings. Special Education provided information to stakeholder 
regarding public meetings and events through staff communication, postings on social media and CCOE website, and posting in the Special 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 3 

Education office. Children’s Services stakeholders are provided monthly information through the Policy Council, which is comprised of 
community representatives including elected parent representatives. Parent feedback was also obtained through phone conversations and 
ongoing communication during daily meal distributions.  Our Colusa County Superintendent of Schools provided updates through podcasts 
and videos to keep the community engaged and corresponded with local Public Health Department for current directives. 

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.]  

Feedback from the Stakeholder survey for alternative education included preference for instruction delivery methods; methods of contact; 
challenges faced due to distance learning; device and connectivity challenges, schedules, how to promote parental participation; and the 
meal program provided. Stakeholder feedback for Special Education include the preferences for schedule, amount of live learning, 
connectivity and device concerns, distance learning plan input, re-opening documents suggestions. 

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.]  

Input from stakeholder for S. William Abel Academy has provided direction in ways to communicate with parents and students.  Most feel that 
in-person meetings are still the most effective way to communicate therefore intake meetings were conducted prior to the beginning of the 
school year using appropriate safety protocols. In addition, all respondents preferred in class instruction versus distance learning. As soon as 
Colusa County can return to in person instruction, schools at CCOE will open.  Students preferred having their one-on-one time in the 
morning with the teacher between the hours of 8:30-10:00 AM and the schedule was developed to accommodate preferences. Parents rated 
the lunch delivery system extremely effective, while students rated it moderately effective.  Student Stakeholder Meetings will provide 
direction in how to improve instruction as well as the meal program. Parents unanimously reported that home visits were the primary 
motivators to support student academic outcomes as students are visited twice weekly. Regarding academic engagement, students and 
parents described external factors and a dislike for 100% Distance Learning as the primary reasons for lack of engagement in previous 
distance learning. 

Since all students were provided a device for online learning before the end of the school year, no concerns were voiced from parents or 
students.  Due to the lack of available hot spots some students have recently been able to access online curriculum programs. In the interim, 
these students were provided paper/pencil packets to be completed and submitted weekly. 

Listening to parents’ concerns regarding the social-emotional wellbeing of their children at the beginning of the pandemic situation prompted 
SWAA to immediately deploy and make available our licensed family mental health therapist for students and parents.  The therapist was 
and still is readily available for all students and reaches out weekly to check in with students and parents.  Student’s and parent’s desire to 
return to school in a hybrid program has prompted administration to develop a re-opening plan for when in class instruction can begin. 

The influence from stakeholder input affected Special Education’s distance learning schedule, the need for devices and hot spots, amount of 
live learning that would occur, and meal delivery. Stakeholder input was also taken into consideration when developing the re-opening plan 
for when traditional school can begin.  

Children’s Services received feedback and full-day full-year preschool programs are currently open and in operation through in-classroom 
instruction for children to meet the needs of working families.  Preschool group size of no more than ten children are present at one time to 
maintain learning continuity.  Part day preschool sessions will follow local elementary school districts requirements and local and state 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 4 

requirements as we transition into traditional classroom learning.  Preschool instruction for part-day programs will be implemented through 
virtual learning opportunities until returning to classroom settings. 

 

Continuity of Learning 

In-Person Instructional Offerings 

[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have 
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019–2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss 
due to future school closures.] 

S. William Abel Academy realizes the need for in-person instruction for its At-Promise Youth it serves, but since Colusa County remains on 
California’s monitoring list, this method of delivery is currently unavailable due to Governor Newsom’s order dated July 17, 2020 that schools 
may not upon if they are located in counties that are on California’s Covid-19 Monitoring list. Recognizing that in person instruction would be 
most beneficial, SWAA will continue to operate a distance learning program to serve student’s academic and social-emotional needs until it is 
safe to return to in person instruction. 

Special Education is working in collaboration with Colusa County Public Health to create a process that would be safe for students to come 
to CCOE campus to receive services. The students enrolled in CCOE programs are considered high needs and once approval is given for in-
person instruction, Special Education will provide service to student in-person when appropriate. Through staff check-ins, if students are 
deemed to be in crisis, the staff will meet to determine if in-person visits are needed. Students current levels are being monitored by staff and 
measured with levels prior to school closure to gage learning loss. This is done by work completion and NWEA assessment results. Each 
student completes a standardized assessment through NWEA to get a baseline of levels, which occurred in the Spring of 2020. The NWEA 
will be given upon return to school to determine the exact learning loss. The gaps of learning loss are being documented and when given 
authorization for in-person instruction, staff will address the learning loss gaps through intensive interventions. The IEP team will determine if 
goals need to be adjusted to account for the learning loss that occurred. IEP meeting will be held when needed to adjust each student 
individualized plan. 

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

 This space intentionally left blank due to the LEA not offering in-person instruction.   N/A N 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 5 

Distance Learning Program 

Continuity of Instruction 

[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of 
substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery, including the LEA’s plan for curriculum and instructional resources that will 
ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.] 

All schools at CCOE are devising systems to create continuity of instruction for their students.  While the systems may look different, the end 
goal is to ensure that pupils have full access to curriculum regardless of method of delivery.  For S. William Abel, current instruction is 
accomplished through online curriculum; daily dedicated time individually with the teacher; morning check-ins and afternoon exit tickets. 
SWAA realized that to be able to create a successful Individualized Learning Plan for each student, it was necessary to begin the year with 
diagnostic testing to determine student’s strengths and weaknesses. These tests in Reading, Language Arts, English Language 
Development, and Math help determine the essential areas in which students need support.  In addition, it helped chart a path for skill 
building and to mitigate learning loss. Individualized Learning Plans were completed at meetings with parents, students, and the school team 
prior to the start of school for all students.  Individualized Learning Plan meetings are held every six weeks to review progress and academic 
goals with students and parents.  School calendars were provided to students and parents depicting grading periods and parent teacher 
conferences. Teacher communication with students and parents will provide monitoring of student grades and credits. S. William Abel 
Academy uses platforms such as Google Classroom and Zoom to provide continuity of instruction for all students. Edmentum Courseware 
provides instruction in core classes for all students while textbooks are provided in other areas.  Students request various methods of 
instruction to mitigate lack of motivation. All classes are made available to students, but meetings with parents and students determine 
necessary requirements and course focus. Intake meetings and follow up ILP meetings dictate the student’s trajectory. Each student is 
created an individualized schedule to ensure access to rigorous courses and the schedule includes 180 minutes of daily instruction. Exact 
Path, an online platform, is used to build skills in student deficiency areas. When the school transitions to in person instruction these same 
curriculum models will be utilized.  Students participating in Independent Study follow the same curriculum models as those participating in 
Distance Learning with weekly check ins rather than daily.  Since SWAA maintains only one full time teacher on staff, the transition from 
distance learning to a hybrid program will be a seamless transition. The Licensed Marriage/Family Therapist (LMFT), employed by SWAA, is 
also a licensed academic counselor. She reviews student transcripts and provides case management for each student. This includes one-on- 
one support, home visits or any other necessary resources.  

Special Education has transitioned the adopted curriculum to a digital platform so that it can easily be delivered in either setting. Nearpod, 
NWEA, Unique, Google Classroom and Zoom are being utilized to ensure that the quality of content remains the same from classroom to 
distance learning. Special Education implemented Unique, NWEA, and Google Classroom throughout 2019-2020 school year, so students 
are familiar with the platforms and can access the content when delivered in these methods. The content and curriculum have remained the 
same and can be delivered in either format. 

Distance learning instruction for Children’s Services part-day preschool programs will include a virtual classroom model with important 
aspects from classroom curriculum and will be modified.  Instruction delivery methods include both virtual and hands on learning 
opportunities to ensure an individualized approach for varying learners.  Educators will utilize theme studies from current research-based 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 6 

curriculum that includes a focus question of the day and learning experiences to strengthen creativity, confidence, and critical thinking 
opportunities.  Footsteps2Brilliance and Clever Kids University are part of virtual instruction and provides interactive eBooks that can easily 
toggle between both English and Spanish languages and promote pre-reading skills such as letter recognition, writing, and phonemic 
awareness. These electronic applications integrate with current preschool curriculum and promotes language and literacy, mathematics 
development, scientific reasoning, social and emotional development, approaches to learning, and physical and perceptual development that 
prepares children for kindergarten readiness.  Educators plan weekly lesson plans and distribute hands on learning materials that support 
activities to the homes of each child.  Learning kits that are delivered to the child’s home include books, art materials, counting objects, and 
manipulatives that support planned learning objectives.  Teachers will have access to comprehensive library of books and a library of videos 
that provide unlimited resources.  Recorded instruction and lessons will allow children and parents to view together and build upon 
establishing family engagement and partnerships.  Full day programs will continue with children’s regular classroom attendance and will 
phase into increasing the number of children in attendance to full capacity once safe to do so and is recommended by our local public health 
officials.  As we plan for absenteeism amongst classroom employees, part-day Assistant Teachers provide classroom support to full-day 
centers to ensure ongoing instruction and to meet increased sanitation requirements.  Current data systems such as Child Plus and Learning 
Genie supports family engagement and virtual and in classroom learning. Children’s Services will meet the significant learning loss identified 
in children ages 0-5 years through the focus of a consistent routine and daily learning activities that promotes academic and social emotional 
learning.  A plan for completing child assessments and collection of data will be based on parent and teacher observations and type of 
instruction provided.  Smaller group sizes support individual needs of children and provide more one on one opportunities for positive 
teacher-child interactions.  Full day programs where children are in attendance will continue to identify strengths and areas for growth 
through formative child assessments and informed instructional practices.  Individualized Learning Plans prepared for each child will identify 
focus areas for development and identify progression. 

Support from CCOE’s Technology Services Department has created a Google Tenant to support LMS standards to allow Teachers to 
interact with students through Google Classroom and to communicate through Gmail with students.  The CCOE Technology Department has 
worked to secure and ensure Child Internet Protection Act (CIPA) compliance to all student devices to help facilitate distance learning for our 
students Monitor usage of LMS to determine if certain content areas or grade levels may need additional support or resources. 

 

Access to Devices and Connectivity 

[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.] 

Connectivity issues is the primary focus of the CCOE Technology Department as it pertains to distance learning.  Without connectivity 
students cannot participate in distance learning adequately.  Colusa County is very rural. ISP services inside Colusa County often stop at the 
edge of the cities, limiting access to families outside of those ranges.  Compounding the issue, due to low return on investment in our small 
communities, LTE carriers only provide coverage to major interstates and highways in our community.  Families that live further out in the 
farmlands cannot utilize these services.   

To help provide students that are currently unable to leverage any connectivity, CCOE is leading a consortium consisting of the Colusa 
County Office of Education, Colusa Unified School District, Maxwell Unified School District, Pierce Joint Unified School District, and Williams 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 7 

Unified School District to build an LTE network that we are calling the “Colusa County EduNet” to resolve these issues.  We have partnered 
with T-Mobile to leverage underutilized LTE spectrum in our county to deploy the EduNet.  We have also partnered with the cities in our 
communities to place our LTE radios and antennas on the water towers to broadcast our LTE signal throughout the community.  This will 
allow CCOE to extend our network to the homes of the students safely and securely.   Students near our signal will receive it on their district 
provided LTE Router and convert it to Wi-Fi to work with their county or district provided device.   

The EduNet will provide access from 4 to 7 miles outside of the larger cities in the Colusa County valley. We expect this to reach up to 90 
percent of our students.  Some of the families in our county cannot afford the price to have internet at home. The EduNet would help provide 
these students safe and secure CIPA compliant internet access. The cost of the EduNet is substantially less than the cost of “out of the box” 
vendor solutions with greater coverage.  

To ensure equitable access, the CCOE Technology Department is mapping students that do not have connectivity on a Google Map.  From 
there, the technology department assesses each student's best solution ranging from either Comcast or Frontier if they live in the city limits 
and have adequate access to hotspot or the Colusa County EduNet depending on which best suits their needs.  Once the student is online 
the CCOE Technology Department works with other departments to ensure that the students has the resources necessary to conduct 
distance learning. 

To resolve any connectivity or device issues, the CCOE Technology Department has a helpdesk system that all departments leverage. When 
the need arises, the CCOE Technology Department works to address the situation to ensure that issues are resolved.  This immediate call to 
action helps eliminate any issues that would result in a loss of distance learning.  In addition, Board Policy has been created as it relates to 
distance learning. 

Devices are chosen based on specific needs of the children and resources available.  Special Education students may require specialized 
equipment to help provide an adequate learning experience whereas other departments my choose a standard laptop to achieve 1:1 for 
student to device deployment.  Schools at CCOE approached access to devices according to what was the best method to meet the needs 
of their students. 

S. William Abel Academy has provided all students devices and connectivity for the previous and current school year so that students can 
participate in online curriculum and digital platforms. Device issues and trouble-shooting support is provided by SWAA staff to students on as 
needed basis. The teacher is also provided support to ensure distance learning and communication with students is readily available. 

Through a technology survey delivered to Special Education families, it was determined who needed assistance with connectivity and hot 
spots have been ordered for the families that need assistance. Devices were delivered to each student in the Spring of 2020. Kits and other 
materials were delivered to student’s homes to assist with learning. 

Children’s Services purchased electronic devices such as tablets and headphones for all preschool programs.  CCOE has been awarded an 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant from the U.S. Department of Education that allowed the purchase of over 300 child tablets that will 
be sent to the home of each 2-5 year old child and family to provide greater access to digital literacy.  Utilizing technology in the child’s home 
will provide families with greater access to educational programs, e-books, and interactive learning activities that promote distance learning.  
In addition, several books are sent home with each child to build their home libraries. 

 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 8 

Pupil Participation and Progress 

[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how 
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.] 

Assessment methods to determine pupil progress are created by each school and implemented to meet the needs of their students in 
accordance with Senate Bill 98. S. William Abel Academy students receive daily contact with certificated staff three times during the school 
day. The morning check in frames the student’s schedule for the day and provides an opportunity for early intervention for those not present.  
Simultaneously, the teacher alerts office staff of students’ absences and follow up phone calls to student and parent begin immediately.  The 
check ins are done through Zoom teleconferencing software and Google classroom. The teacher assigns coursework through Google 
Classroom, Edmentum, and Exact Path, which provides student progress, course completion, and verifies student participation.  
Asynchronous work assigned is either placed in student work folders distributed weekly during meal delivery or uploaded to Google 
Classroom. This work is assigned time-to-value credit. Synchronous and asynchronous methods are used to ensure that a student 
completes 180 minutes of instruction. A daily participation and attendance log designating activities completed, check ins and meetings are 
compiled by the teacher and given to the administration to ensure that students are engaged and participating in daily activities.  This 
attendance/activity log also helps identify students who are at-risk of learning loss. 

For Special Education, the distance learning plan that are connected to each student’s IEP, will guide staff to use work completion and 
assessment to monitor goal progress. The distance learning schedule that was developed with stakeholder input, has live and synchronous 
instructional minutes embedded. Each morning starts with live learning and check-ins to outline the activities for the day. Attendance is taken 
each day and a percentage of work completion is documented. The completion of work and activities is documented to measure baseline 
and goal progress. If students are not making progress, then a meeting is held to alter the distance learning plan. The two Special Education 
programs in Coastal Buttes are using the same methods to ensure consistency. The time value of assignments has been adjusted to fit the 
current distance learning schedule and monitored by staff. Staff gage student completion and determine if less or more work needs to be 
assigned. Also, staff have assigned activities that can be completed asynchronous at students preferred times.   

Children Services’ Teachers are assigned a list of enrolled children and begin with an Orientation with parents to discuss the importance of 
regular and positive attendance.  Teachers monitor and track attendance on daily attendance sheets.  Teachers in part-day classrooms that 
provide virtual learning will correspond with parents weekly through email, interact through Learning Parent Engagement application, and 
telephone conversations.  Teachers encourage families to develop meaningful home learning environments and utilize materials sent home 
to family.  Parents are encouraged to share photos of their child’s work.  Ongoing and responsive communication will improve each child’s 
outcomes. 

Distance Learning Professional Development 

[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including 
technological support.] 

S. William Abel Academy staff is offered professional development in distance learning and online programs utilized.  Administration 
participated in The Distance Learning Playbook webinar and has access to resources to support the distance learning program. The teacher 
has been provided multiple professional development opportunities to ensure success in distance learning and delivering rigorous content 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 9 

through Edmentum and Exact Path. Consistent weekly check-ins between administration and teacher result in discussions in improving 
processes and curriculum for students. Tech support is provided for teacher and staff as needed through the county office of education. 

In Special Education, staff has been provided Nearpod, Unique, Sonday Intervention, and google classroom training. Staff meetings are 
scheduled monthly to determine any new staff needs that need to be addressed. 

Children’s Services approaches professional development needs by providing monthly professional development opportunities for teachers 
with weekly check-ins to ensure continuity of instruction in between school sites.  Teachers receive daily pre-scheduled planning time and 
meet monthly for peer to peer collaboration opportunities. In addition, a training plan is created that consists of monthly professional 
development trainings on a variety of educational topics focused on program goals and increased quality. Topics for trainings include health 
and safety protocols, monitoring, classroom modifications, environments and interactions, lesson planning and individualization, and program 
procedures.  Trauma informed practices is one training topic that staff received due to the affects the pandemic has had on families.    

 

 

Staff Roles and Responsibilities 

[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.] 

S. William Abel Academy staff had anticipated the need to implement distance learning before COVID-19 occurred as it was discussing 
offering a hybrid program.  Because of COVID-19, it forced administration to create the distance learning program that would be put in place 
during and after the pandemic.  Distance learning has not created any additional roles as providing instruction is key regardless which 
platform is utilized.  The administration will continue to monitor student progress and attendance just as it has in the past.  Student to staff 
ratio is not a problem due to small class sizes. 

In Special Education, staff have transitioned well to distance learning during school closures. Due to the small size of our programs, student 
to staff ratio is also not an issue. Staff are able to keep their current job duties working remotely and any training request by staff are 
immediately provided.   Each student has a comprehensive IEP and their services are being met through the agreed upon distance learning 
plan. Staff negotiations took place on August 18, 2020 to review safety precautions, telecommuting guidelines, safety precautions and to 
gather input on roles and responsibilities. 

The role of Children’s Services staff is to remain flexible to meet the changing needs of families and to best meet the needs of the program.  
Employees from classrooms where virtual learning is the current option, are utilized to support full-day classrooms where children are in 
session. During the pandemic, many employees have requested temporary leaves therefore, leaving positions unfilled.  Staffing patterns are 
subject to change to meet necessary changes and to fill vacant positions. In-service training provided safety protocols for reopening and 
included guidance from health officials to ensure transparent communication.  Consistent staffing patterns and continuity helps young 
children develop safe and trusting relationships with adults and lesson the spread of Covid-19.   However, maintaining consistent staffing 
patterns has been extremely difficult.  In addition, there are staff that that will not adjust their work schedules because of home commitments 
which places additional pressures on other employees.  A significant number of employees resigned from their positions because they were 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 10 

afraid of being exposed in the classrooms which increased our number of vacant positions.  Employees received a list of vacant positions 
with an opportunity to request a transfer to another location to support staff. 

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs 

[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English 
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing 
homelessness.] 

Each school’s demographics may vary so each school approaches support to students by meeting the individual needs of its students. S. 
William Abel’s cohort of seven students, that represents English Learners, pupils with exceptional needs across the full continuum of 
placements, pupils in foster care, pupils who are experiencing homelessness, migrant, and Socio Economically disadvantaged students.  
Since all categories are represented, services apply to all students. S. William Abel Academy students are provided supports both virtually 
and during bi-weekly meal deliveries.  These supports are provided in areas of academics as well as social emotional.  The daily check-ins 
with the teacher are the primary method of support.  Next, dedicated individual class time daily with the teacher also provides supports to all 
students.  The LMFT/academic counselor provides check in and provides home visits when the situation warrants such.  S. William Abel 
works closely with the CCOE Prevention Services Team which is housed on campus and is readily available to provide support. Trusted 
relationships built with Behavioral Health and other county agencies allow resources to be provided to students. 

In Special Education each student has an IEP and a distance learning plan. These documents guide the services that are delivered to each 
student. If an area of concern arises, the IEP team meets to determine if assessment and additional services are needed. Staff monitor 
student progress in all areas of services through baseline testing and therapy logs. This assures staff that they are addressing every area of 
needs and monitoring progress through student goals.  

Children’s Services employees take an individualized approach with each child and family at the beginning of enrollment that identifies all 
unique needs. Employees conduct an assessment and refer each family to necessary and available resources.   Developmental 
assessments and screenings are conducted with each child’s family to identify the child’s strengths and areas that need more focus.  An 
Individualized Learning Plan will support the child’s learning and opportunities and will be monitored by staff.   A Special Needs Coordinator, 
Family Engagement Coordinator, Health Specialist, and members of our Leadership Team are available to support the needs of all children 
and participate in monthly case management when a special need may arise. 

Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Student technology acquisition including hot spots and internet access for all students.  $5,052.00 Y 

Professional development provided for staff to Distance Learning Programs. 

 

$898.00 

 

Yes 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 11 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Staff technology acquisition including webcams, professional Zoom accounts and headsets with built in 
microphones to ensure staff’s ability to host online learning spaces 

$895.00 

 

Yes 

Increased transportation costs due to meal delivery and schoolwork drop off and pick up. 

 

$553.00 Yes 

Student incentives for assistance and participation in distance learning. $1,539.00 

 

Yes 

Pupil Learning Loss 

[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019–2020 and 2020–21 school years, 
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language 
development, and mathematics.] 

All schools have plans to address pupil learning loss. S. William Abel acknowledges that there was a learning gap and learning loss from the 
summer slide from 2019-20.  To determine the amount of loss and to be able to create a successful Individualized Learning Plan for each 
student, it was necessary to begin the year with diagnostic testing to determine student’s strengths and weaknesses.  These tests in 
Reading, Language Arts, and Math in Exact Path help determine the essential areas in which students need support.  Moreover, Exact Path 
provides recommendations in charting a path for skill building and to mitigate learning loss. Individualized learning plans were developed at 
meetings with parents, students, and staff prior to the start of school for all students.  Individualized Learning Plan meetings will be held 
every six weeks to review progress and academic goals with students and parents. English Language Learners will be assessed in the 
Spring to determine learning status through the ELPAC. 

Special Education will use Goals testing and NWEA assessment results to gauge learning loss. If learning loss has occurred, intensive 
intervention will be given in the areas of loss. An IEP meeting will be held to discuss the learning loss and goal adjusted. When appropriate, 
compensatory education will be discussed and offered if appropriate.  

Children’s Services will utilize developmentally appropriate assessment results to identify progress and areas of need.  Individualized 
curriculum opportunities will provide concentrated focus to improve developmental gains. 

Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 

[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed, 
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils 
experiencing homelessness.] 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 12 

S. William Abel Academy students representing English Learners, Low income, foster youth, pupils with exceptional needs, pupils 
experiencing homeless, migrant, and Socioeconomically disadvantaged were tested in Reading, Language Arts, Math and English Language 
Development (integrated and designated) in Exact Path to help determine the essential areas in which students need support.  Moreover, 
Exact Path provides recommendations in charting a path for skill building and to mitigate learning loss. Classroom instruction design will 
provide multiple opportunities for synchronous learning and asynchronous learning.   Daily check-ins and exit tickets with the teacher are just 
a few of the strategies to determine student’s daily progress. Individualized Learning Plans were developed at meetings with parents, 
students, and staff prior to the start of school for all students.  Individualized Learning Plan meetings will be held every six weeks to review 
progress and academic goals with students and parents.  In addition, Foster and homeless youth are supported through case management 
by the Foster/Homeless program coordinator. Families are connected with agencies and referred to community resources as need are 
identified.  A backpack with school supplies was provide for these students. 

Special Education students have specific goals that address areas of need in their IEP. Goal testing, informal assessment, therapy logs, and 
NWEA standardized assessment will be used to determine baseline levels. These forms of assessment will be delivered daily and NWEA will 
be given three times in a school year. Goals and services will be adjusted to fit student levels and need.  

Children’s Services will continue to provide engaging activities that build connections to engage families.  Children’s Services’ focus on 
instilling a consistent routine and daily educational activities promotes both academic and social emotional learning. Families will receive 
access to home-based literacy programs available in English and Spanish that will connect to classroom activities that build upon learning. 
Distribution of quality books to build a child’s home library and interest in reading and hands-on learning materials will promote the learning 
progression in each child. Children’s Services also deploys assessments to determine developmental levels. 

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 

[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.] 

S. William Abel Academy will conduct post testing through Exact path to determine the amount of learning loss that was regained.  It will also 
be determined through transcripts and ILP plan reviews at six-week intervals. Daily monitoring of attendance and engagement through 
Aeries and Google classroom determines additional supports needed as well as rapidly identifying students needing or exceeding the 60% 
threshold of absences.  Home visits and phone calls during extended hours and weekends for difficult to reach students and working parents 
help to address student needs. 

Learning loss in Special Education will be measured through the IEP process of goal monitoring and NWEA assessment results. This 
monitoring will determine adjustments needed to the student's IEP. Goals and assessment drive the IEP and goals. These have legal 
timelines to be followed and will be adjusted accordingly to student need. 

Children’s Services will utilize checkpoints throughout the year and reevaluate the process.  The Desired Results systems including the 
DRDP will be the developmental child screening assessment for programs currently in operation.  Collected data will include parent and 
teacher observations through assessing the child’s skills and providing individualized support. Observational data collected will inform 
curriculum implementation, instruction for children, and professional development opportunities. 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 13 

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 

Description Total Funds  Contributing 

Instructional and data technology driven tools to include Google Classroom and Zoom $1,155.00 Yes 

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school 
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of 
COVID-19 on the school community.] 

CCOE recognizes the importance of supporting mental health and the social emotional well-being of its staff and students. While approaches 
may vary, the underlying principle to keep students and staff healthy is at the forefront of all schools. S. William Abel Academy supports the 
emotional and mental well-being through daily contact with the teacher and consistent contact with our LMFT.  In addition, staff and student 
participation in Living Works, a suicide prevention program is also scheduled for the fall.  Family wellness checks are provided to families of 
SWAA Students and referrals are made to the appropriate agencies. Prevention Services personnel also support the social-emotional well-
being of students and parents as needed. Staff are provided the ability to participate in social emotional events/webinars and our county wide 
staff development addresses the need of self-care.  CCOE provides flexibility to staff to telecommute when necessary and provides 
newsletters and information on emotional well-being. 

Special Education has an ERMHS clinician and Behavior Specialist on staff. These individuals participate in each program and monitor 
students. Any need for training or concern by staff on a student, are addressed by these individuals. Trauma Informed Care is utilized in all 
special education programs and if a student need arises, the IEP will meet to determine is assessment is needed to address an area of 
concern. 

Children’s Services utilizes various methods to support the well-being of young children.  The Teaching Pyramid incorporates early childhood 
behavior support through promoting positive social-emotional development and support for children’s behavior.  Staff are trained and utilize 
Teaching Pyramid tools for classroom management and monitoring practices.  Curriculum support includes solving conflicts and regulating 
emotions.  The Early Learning Second Step Program supports concepts such as empathy, problem solving, and emotional management.  
Staff received extensive training on relationship-based approaches to trauma, healing for support, and social-emotional resilience that are 
culturally responsive for early educators.  A Special Needs Coordinator on staff partners with local Behavioral Health for mental health 
consultation services for children and families. 

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from 
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English, 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 14 

when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not engaging in instruction and is at risk 
of learning loss.] 

Communication is essential for continued success in all programs at CCOE. Realizing the importance of communication systems, each 
school designs pupil and family engagement according to the needs of its clients. Some processes for outreach are universal, while others 
vary.  S. William Abel Academy believes the most consistent and reliable method to reach students is by having the teacher check in with 
students three times per day.  For students who did not engage in distance learning during the day, S. William Abel Academy has developed 
a tiered reengagement strategy plan for pupils who are absent from distance learning. Attendance is documented daily in the attendance 
program, Aeries and in the Distance Learning Log. In addition, parent letters are sent in English and Spanish when students are not meeting 
compulsory education requirements and who have missed more than 60% of instructional days during any given week. Intervention 
strategies, home visits, and follow up conferences with students and parents are scheduled immediately to avoid the risk of learning loss.  
Due to the small student population, regular communication with parents is common practice.  

In Special Education, staff also maintain regular communication with students and families. This is outlined in the students Distance Learning 
Plan. Each staff member has designated office hours for students and families. Translators are on staff to assist with language barriers. CAC 
meetings are also scheduled this school year as an arena to allow parents to give feedback. Special Education also has developed a tiered 
re-engagement strategy to address absent students, which includes calls, emails, letters to families.  Like SWAA, attendance is also 
collected via AERIES for in-person instruction and documented in an attendance log for distance learning. It is taken daily, and re-
engagement strategies as used when students are absent. If a student is having difficulties attending, an IEP meeting will be scheduled to 
see if the plan needs to be altered to promote engagement.  

Children’s Services maintains communication and attendance strategies with families also.  Preschool classrooms that provide virtual 
learning will engage in virtual bi-weekly classroom instruction and weekly interactions with parents through email, text messages, and/or 
Learning Genie parent engagement application.  A Family Calendar that outlines daily family-oriented learning activities is provided to each 
family at the beginning of the month and is available in English and Spanish. The calendar will be handed out to parents and emailed for 
programs offering virtual learning.   Activities from the Family Engagement Calendar will be revisited during virtual learning and weekly 
interactions.  Learning Genie provides parenting videos, children’s books and activities, and resources and updates directly to a parent’s 
electronic device.  Staff problem solve with families and identify barriers to increase active attendance. 

School Nutrition 
[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or 
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.] 

At the onset of COVID-19, meals were provided for all students through our county office of education at two meal sites.  Breakfast and lunch 
were provided at no cost to all school-age children 18 years of age and younger.  Addresses for meal locations were provided in the initial 
letter sent out by administration, as well as the information being posted to the CCOE website and social media posts. Currently, three-day 
meal supplies are delivered to all SWAA and Special Ed students including those eligible and non-eligible for free and reduced-price meals 
twice weekly when instructional resources are also provided.  These meals are delivered to student’s homes on Monday and Wednesdays. 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 15 

Children’s Services approach is slightly different as it provides individual meals through the Child and Adult Food Program for all children in a 
classroom setting.  Meals are delivered to each classroom.  Mealtime procedures include monitoring and identifying that each child receives 
a meal at time of meal distribution.   Meal service distribution is available for each enrolled child.    

Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows 
and actions may be added as necessary] 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students 

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services  
Increased Apportionment Based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students  

26.69% $53,770 

Required Descriptions 

[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of (1) 
how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the needs of these students.] 

Colusa County Office of Education is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs of 
low income, English Learners, and foster youth at the community school. Student academic improvement is provided through research-
based curriculum, programs, and services. Due to the small school size, mobile student population, and extremely credit deficient students, 
LCFF supplemental funds are used schoolwide to increase or improve services for unduplicated pupils in the following manner: 

Professional Development 

By offering targeted professional learning opportunities to staff in Google Classroom, Zoom, Instruction that is Synchronous & Asynchronous, 
and social-emotional learning, we are preparing our staff to identify and specifically respond to the unique needs of our unduplicated student 
populations. By strategically supporting and providing interventions, we believe our students will have the best possible supports to help 
them better achieve academic success.  

Section Description Total Funds  Contributing 

N/A There are no additional actions to include in this section. N/A No 



 

California Department of Education, July 2020 Page 16 

Increased Technology Supports: 

Looking at the needs of our foster youth, low-income, and English learners, it is clear that the LEA need to close the equity gap presented by 
students and staff who are unable to connect in a distance learning environment through either limited connectivity or substandard devices 
has been the biggest challenge! Devices and connectivity have been provided to all students. All students have received a Chromebook 
and/or Mobile Hotspot. Access to devices and connectivity are essential for learning within the remote teaching environment. By acquiring 
technology devices and connectivity to meet the needs of students and staff, we are ensuring the infrastructure upon which distance learning 
is built and gives us the need to respond to the digital learning needs of our foster youth, low income, and English learners which has been 
an essential priority. While we know these needs may exist across all students, they have been the most pronounced in our unduplicated 
student populations. 

Expanded Supports: 

We will be offering social services along with mental health services to all students since we know that our foster youth and socio-
economically disadvantaged populations are vulnerable to trauma-inducing environments which will most likely have been exacerbated by 
the conditions created by COVID-19. Providing these expanded health services will help address the first levels of socio-emotional needs 
through our LMFT, then further connect students and their families with community-based resources as well as timely higher-level mental 
health supports should they need them. In addition to these socio-emotional supports for these most vulnerable subgroups, we also provide 
student incentives to increase engagement.  

Transportation & Other Supports: 

In order to support our low-income and foster youth families, we have increased our staff transportation to make weekly home visits to all 
students to deliver meals, homework, conduct wellness check ins, and provide support with technology connectivity issues. In addition, we 
provided student backpacks with school materials and supplies that can support their academic success. For students who need clothing, 
shoes, and other personal necessity needs, we take them to our partner Churches who provide for these students such needs. 

 

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required.] 

Services for Foster Youth, Englisher Learners and low-income students are being increased or improved using the strategies mentioned 
above and taking into consideration the expenditures incurred to meet the improved service percentage of 26.69%. The services and 
supports listed above are robust, culturally responsive and leverage the various supplemental resources that we have acquired in technology 
programs, targeted professional development opportunities and curriculum.  Curriculum utilized has imbedded integrated and designated 
ELD. Any group experiencing difficulties accessing curriculum including English Learners will be provided targeted interventions to ensure 
they have the necessary support to be successful.  Counseling and mental health services are also available for students to ensure social 
well-being during this pandemic as well as during the regular school year.  



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 







Board of Education

Susan Goto 

Area 1 

Suzanne Jones 

Area 1

Robert Tomasini 

Area 1 

Kelli Gnile 

Area 2 

David Patterson, Ed.D. 

Area 3 

Lynn Oliver 

Area 4 

E. Ken Tokutomi

Area 4 

Superintendent's Cabinet 
Phillip J. Williams 

Deputy Superintendent 

Educational Services 

Martin Fregoso 

Associate Superintendent 

Business Services 

Catherine M. Goins 

Assistant Superintendent 

Early Childhood Education 

Jennifer Hicks 

Assistant Superintendent 

Curriculum & Instruction 

Colleen Slattery, Ed.D. 

Assistant Superintendent 

Human Resources 

Michelle Eklund 

Chief Communications Officer 

Superintendent's Office 

James L. Anderberg 

Chief Operations Officer 

Administrative Services 

Troy Tickle 

Executive Director 

SELPA 

Gayle Garbolino-Mojica
County Superintendent of Schools 

Placer County Office of Education 360 Nevada Street, Auburn, CA 95603

 P 530.889.8020  • F 866.840.2941 • www.placercoe.org 

  An Equal Opportunity Employer· Printed on recycled paper 



 

CCBE │#20CCBEAC   1 | P a g e  
 

Welcome! 
2020 CCBE ANNUAL CONFERENCE AGENDA  

 

Friday, September 11 Session Presenter/Activity 

10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. Directors Meeting 
Meeting of the CCBE Board of Directors  
CCBE President, Janet Wohlgemuth (Monterey County 
Office of Education) 

1:00 – 2:45 p.m. Membership Session 
CCBE General Membership Meeting 
CCBE President Janet Wohlgemuth (Monterey County 
Office of Education)  

2:45 – 3:00 p.m. Break  

3:00 – 4:00 p.m. Keynote Session Fireside Chat 
Eric Yuan, Zoom Founder & CEO 

4:00 – 4:15 p.m. Break  
4:15 – 5:00 p.m. Breakout Sessions  
 Breakout 1 Transforming Systems to Meet the Needs of Vulnerable 

Students and Their Families  
Tracy E. Thompson, Dr. Leilah Kirkendoll, and Stephanie 
Johnston (Juvenile Court and Community Schools, San 
Diego County Office of Education) 

Breakout 2 

Distance Learning for Our Highest Needs Students 
Terri Dye (Monterey County Office of Education) 

5:00 – 5:15 p.m. Break  

5:15 – 6:00 p.m. Regional Breakouts Regional Meetings  



 

CCBE │#20CCBEAC   2 | P a g e  
 

 

Saturday, September 12 Sessions Presenter/Activity 

10:00 – 11:00 a.m.  Keynote Session 
Supporting Student Learning in the Time of COVID 
Linda Darling-Hammond, Board President (California 
State Board of Education) 

11:00 – 11:15 a.m. Break  

11:15 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.  Breakout Sessions  

 Breakout 1 Transforming Systems through an Equity Lens – 
Implications for COE Leadership 
Olympia Kyriakidis (San Diego County Office of 
Education) 

Breakout 2 Innovation Division’s Response to COVID 19 School 
Closures 
Erin English, Ed.D., Alicia Gallegos-Butters, Ed.D. Staci 
Block, Ed.D. and Paulette Donnellon (San Diego County 
Office of Education) 

Breakout 3 Shared Governance Part 1  
Mike Walsh and Amy Christianson (Butte County Office 
of Education) 

12:00 – 12:15 p.m. Lunch on Your Own Monterey County Student Performance 

12:15 – 1:15 p.m.  Keynote Session 

Pure Politics: The Political Landscape Impacting Schools 
Kevin Gordon, Jack O’Connell, Barrett Snider (Capitol 
Advisors Group) and Paul Gothold (San Diego County 
Office of Education) 

1:15 – 1:30 p.m. Break  

1:30 – 2:15 p.m.  Breakout Sessions  

 Breakout 1 Creating Equitable Access: An Introduction to MTSS 
Nicholas Zefeldt, Julie Dooley, David Fendel, and Dr. 
Fatima Alleyne (Contra Costa County Office of Education) 

Breakout 2 Protecting the Virtual Student & Teacher: Cybersecurity 
Guidance for Distance Learning and Work-from-Home 
(WFH) 
Terry Loftus (San Diego County Office of Education); Ed 
Babakhan (San Joaquin County Office of Education) 

Breakout 3 Shared Governance Part 2 
Mike Walsh and Amy Christianson (Butte County Office 
of Education) 

2:15 – 2:30 p.m. Break  



 

CCBE │#20CCBEAC   3 | P a g e  
 

2:30 – 3:15 p.m.  Breakout Sessions  

 Breakout 1 Supporting Our Most Vulnerable Students During 
Unprecedented Times Through Distance Learning 
Dr. Jeanette Chien (San Diego County Office of 
Education), Terry Loftus (San Diego County Office of 
Education) 

Breakout 2 Addressing the Social, Emotional and Mental Health 
Needs of Staff and Students 
Mara Madrigal-Weiss, and Felicia Singleton (San Diego 
County Office of Education) 

Breakout 3 Creating Positive Appeals 
Michael Tucker (Girard, Edwards, Stevens & Tucker LLP) 
and Heidi Weiland (El Dorado COE) 

 



CCBE Board of Directors 4 | P a g e
May 17, 2020 Meeting Minutes 

NEW BUSINESS 
• CSBA’s Governance Task Force Recommendations to remove the Directors-at-Large and

CCBE Representation positions.
CSBA Director-at-Large County Bruce Dennis shared that the CSBA’s Governance Task
Force proposed to eliminate all the Directors-at-Large positions, Black, Hispanic, Pacific
Asian/Island, American Indian and County, and replace these with two Diversity Directors, one
each from the north and south, plus change the one-year CCBE President appointment to a
two-year CCBE County Representative appointment on the CSBA Board of Directors. After
discussion ensued, Gina Cuclis made a motion and Rosemary Kamei seconded to oppose the
proposal to remove all the CSBA Directors-at-Large positions and the one-year CCBE
President appointment from the CSBA Board of Directors. Motion carried, unanimous. Janet
agreed to create a resolution/statement opposing this recommendation for the board to review
and adopt at its September meeting.

• Climate Change Discussion
Gina Cuclis shared that she was appointed to serve on the CSBA Climate Change Task force
and is the only county board member appointed to this task force. A virtual meeting is
scheduled to occur later in May. Gina will reach out to the Directors to get feedback as things
are discussed.

• Board of Directors Retreat July 31-Aug 2, 2020 Discussion
President Janet Wohlgemuth reviewed postponing the in-person Board of Directors retreat or
hold this as a virtual event instead. Discussion ensued that this strategic meeting is very
important for CCBE in providing guidance and direction as an organization and was
recommended to reach out to Laruen Ball, past retreat Facilitator, for her thoughts on holding
this event as a virtual strategic planning event. Immediate Past President Dana Dean made a
motion and Rosemary Kamei seconded to cancel the contract with the Hayes Mansion and seek
the $3,510.00 deposit back and move this event to be held virtually at the same timeframe as
the scheduled in-person retreat. Motion carried, unanimous.

NEXT SCHEDULED MEETINGS  
• Friday, July 31 – Sunday, August 2, 2020, Virtual Hayes Mansion, San Jose
• Thursday, September 10, 2020 from 6:30 – 9:30 p.m. Virtual in Monterey
• Thursday, December 3, 2020 from 11:30 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. in Anaheim - TBD

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 6



I  

T 

E 

M  

    3 

Page 7



California County Boards of Education| 3251 Beacon Boulevard | West Sacramento, CA 95691| (800) 266-3382 

ITEM:   3 

DATE:  September 11, 2020 

TITLE:   TREASURER REPORT 

Action: ______ Direction/Discussion: __X____  Update: __X____ Written: ______ 

Summary 

The CCBE Financial Summary report will be presented to the Board of Directors and will discuss COVID-19 
impact in the coming fiscal year, discuss revisions and review the 2021-22 Fiscal Year Budget. 

Background 

The Fiscal Year 2019-20 budget was approved by the Board of Directors at its November 29, 2018 meeting 
approving to keep membership dues the same as FY 2018-19 except for increasing Los Angeles COE dues by a 
$1,000.00.  Due to COVID-19, the CCBE Governance Training event was cancelled in March causing the 
current FY budget to reflect a $12,216.00 revenue deficit. The FY 2019-20 budget has not fully closed yet.   

The Fiscal Year 2020-21 budget was approved by the Board of Directors at its December 5, 2019 meeting 
approving to increase membership dues by 20 percent. Dues invoices were mailed in May. So far to date, two 
COEs (Shasta and San Luis Obispo) cancelled their CCBE membership resulting in a revenue decrease of 
$3,987.00 less than what was originally budgeted. There are still some outstanding dues that have not yet been 
received but it is anticipated these dues will be paid by the September 15 due date. Due to the impact of 
COVID-19, events were cancelled and changed to be held virtually causing revenue and expenses to decrease. 
As a result, the FY 2020-21 budget was revised and now projects a net income gain of $25,142.00 However, 
with the uncertain impact of COVID-19, it is anticipated the budget will fluctuate in this fiscal year.  

The proposed Fiscal Year 2021-22 budget is included for the board’s review and input. Based on discussions at 
the Board of Directors retreat, this budget assumes travel will be permitted and events will be held in-person 
allowing projected expenses to include, 2 trips to send representatives to attend a federal advocacy trip at 
$2,500 each, 5 regional meetings at $750 each, and $5,000.00 in discretionary to be used either CARSNet 
membership or reserve build. It also assumes no increase in membership dues. The FY 2021-22 budget is 
projected to be a balanced budget.  

The budget is a living document that will change over the course of the year. The Treasurer and Executive 
Committee will be kept informed of the need for changes to the budget in between meetings of the Board of 
Directors and the board will receive budget revision reports at scheduled meetings. The CCBE financial 
condition continues to be strong and healthy.  In the attached Financial Summary report, you can see that our 
cash reserve level of approximately $141,195.00.  

Attachments: CCBE Financial Summary & Budget: 2017-18 thru 2021-22 
Fiscal Year 2020-21 Membership Dues 

Presenter: Matt Taylor, CCBE Treasurer (Yolo COE) 

Page 8



Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Co

un
ty

 B
oa

rd
s 

of
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

Co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

 G
ro

up
 - 

D
iv

 6
0-

13
0

FI
N

AN
CI

AL
 S

U
M

M
AR

Y

YT
D 

AC
TU

AL
 T

O
TA

LS
20

15
-1

6
20

16
-1

7
20

17
-1

8
20

18
-1

9
20

19
-2

0
20

17
-1

8
20

18
-1

9
20

19
-2

0
20

20
-2

1
20

20
-2

1
20

20
-2

1
20

21
-2

2

In
co

m
e

17
9,

82
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
19

4,
40

8
   

   
   

   
 

19
0,

36
5

  
20

8,
99

6
  

19
6,

23
7

  
IN

CO
M

E
YT

D 
AC

TU
AL

YT
D 

AC
TU

AL
YT

D 
AC

TU
AL

O
rig

in
al

 
BU

DG
ET

Re
vi

se
d 

BU
DG

ET
YT

D 
AC

TU
AL

 P
RO

PO
SE

D
BU

DG
ET

Ex
pe

ns
es

17
2,

79
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
21

3,
24

9
   

   
   

   
 

20
1,

62
0

  
21

1,
51

3
  

20
8,

45
3

  
Pr

og
ra

m
 R

ev
en

ue
58

,1
99

   
   

 
68

,6
62

   
   

 
54

,3
12

   
   

 
71

,6
00

   
   

 
25

,0
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
70

,1
00

   
   

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
N

et
 In

co
m

e 
(L

os
s)

7,
03

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
8,

84
1)

   
   

   
   

 
(1

1,
25

5)
   

(2
,5

17
)

   
  

(1
2,

21
6)

   
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
Du

es
 

11
6,

77
4

   
  

12
3,

95
4

   
 

12
4,

95
4

   
  

14
8,

29
2

   
 

14
4,

30
5

   
 

12
3,

30
5

   
 

14
4,

30
5

   
 

BA
 S

po
ns

or
sh

ip
12

,7
00

   
   

 
11

,7
00

   
   

 
12

,9
50

   
   

 
13

,0
00

   
   

 
5,

50
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
12

,9
50

   
   

In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e

2,
69

2
   

   
   

4,
68

0
   

   
   

4,
02

1
   

   
   

 
4,

00
0

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   
55

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   
To

ta
l

19
0,

36
5

   
  

20
8,

99
6

   
 

19
6,

23
7

   
  

23
6,

89
2

   
 

17
8,

80
5

   
 

12
3,

36
0

   
 

23
1,

35
5

   
 

PE
RS

O
N

N
EL

 E
XP

EN
SE

S
YT

D 
AC

TU
AL

YT
D 

AC
TU

AL
YT

D 
AC

TU
AL

O
rig

in
al

 
BU

DG
ET

Re
vi

se
d 

BU
DG

ET
YT

D 
AC

TU
AL

 P
RO

PO
SE

D
BU

DG
ET

Ba
sic

 P
ay

 (S
ta

ff)
63

,7
90

   
   

 
63

,4
13

   
   

 
67

,0
23

   
   

 
67

,2
90

   
   

 
65

,9
24

   
   

 
5,

31
4

   
   

   
66

,1
09

   
   

Em
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

24
,4

66
   

   
 

21
,4

05
   

   
 

23
,9

19
   

   
 

24
,5

67
   

   
 

22
,6

56
   

   
 

2,
10

8
   

   
   

22
,6

56
   

   
To

ta
l R

ec
ur

rin
g 

Pa
yr

ol
l C

os
t

88
,2

56
   

   
 

84
,8

18
   

   
 

90
,9

42
   

   
 

91
,8

57
   

   
 

88
,5

80
   

   
 

7,
42

2
   

   
   

88
,7

65
   

   

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n/
O

ve
rh

ea
d

24
,0

00
   

   
 

24
,0

00
   

   
 

24
,0

00
   

   
 

24
,0

00
   

   
 

24
,0

00
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

24
,0

00
   

   
To

ta
l O

ve
rh

ea
d 

Co
st

24
,0

00
   

   
 

24
,0

00
   

   
 

24
,0

00
   

   
 

24
,0

00
   

   
 

24
,0

00
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

24
,0

00
   

   

O
PE

RA
TI

N
G 

EX
PE

N
SE

S
YT

D 
AC

TU
AL

YT
D 

AC
TU

AL
YT

D 
AC

TU
AL

O
rig

in
al

 
BU

DG
ET

Re
vi

se
d 

BU
DG

ET
YT

D 
AC

TU
AL

 P
RO

PO
SE

D
BU

DG
ET

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
 

Tr
av

el
 (s

ta
ff)

6,
52

2
   

   
   

4,
89

3
   

   
   

6,
22

9
   

   
   

 
6,

04
1

   
   

   
1,

54
2

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
6,

14
0

   
   

   
Tr

av
el

 (n
on

-s
ta

ff)
16

,3
86

   
   

 
19

,7
41

   
   

 
9,

52
3

   
   

   
 

21
,2

20
   

   
 

7,
40

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

18
,4

50
   

   
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l F
ee

s
3,

00
0

   
   

   
1,

75
0

   
   

   
3,

00
0

   
   

   
 

3,
30

0
   

   
   

3,
30

0
   

   
   

1,
50

0
   

   
   

3,
00

0
   

   
   

Au
di

o 
Vi

su
al

 
7,

42
2

   
   

   
14

,9
18

   
   

 
13

,2
87

   
   

 
17

,6
80

   
   

 
1,

60
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
15

,4
30

   
   

Fo
od

 &
 B

ev
er

ag
e

47
,8

18
   

   
 

56
,4

61
   

   
 

56
,3

00
   

   
 

60
,8

16
   

   
 

14
,8

00
   

   
 

33
3

   
   

   
   

64
,0

00
   

   
Re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
Co

st
s

1,
51

5
   

   
   

56
6

   
   

   
   

76
0

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
75

0
   

   
   

   
Ho

st
ed

 E
ve

nt
 V

en
ue

 E
xp

.
1,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
Te

le
ph

on
e

21
4

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
30

9
   

   
   

   
 

54
0

   
   

   
   

48
   

   
   

   
   

48
0

   
   

   
   

O
ff-

Si
te

 S
to

ra
ge

51
   

   
   

   
   

57
   

   
   

   
   

31
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

O
ffi

ce
 S

up
pl

ie
s/

M
at

er
ia

ls
1,

17
8

   
   

   
84

8
   

   
   

   
86

2
   

   
   

   
 

85
0

   
   

   
   

90
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

95
0

   
   

   
   

Po
st

ag
e

27
9

   
   

   
   

 
55

   
   

   
   

   
59

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
   

   
   

   
14

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
14

0
   

   
   

   
Pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
 &

 S
ub

s.
30

0
   

   
   

   
 

30
0

   
   

   
   

15
0

   
   

   
   

 
15

0
   

   
   

   
15

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
15

0
   

   
   

   
N

ET
 R

ES
ER

VE
 B

AL
AN

CE
20

15
-1

6
20

16
-1

7
20

17
-1

8
20

18
-1

9
20

19
-2

0
Sh

ip
pi

ng
-

   
   

   
   

  
12

   
   

   
   

   
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
   

   
   

   
   

1,
57

0
   

   
   

17
0

   
   

   
   

10
0

   
   

   
   

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e
17

8,
99

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
6,

02
4

   
   

   
   

 
16

7,
18

3
  

15
5,

92
8

  
15

3,
41

1
  

Pr
in

tin
g 

&
 B

in
de

ry
2,

18
6

   
   

   
1,

69
5

   
   

   
1,

73
7

   
   

   
 

2,
20

0
   

   
   

1,
30

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

En
di

ng
 B

al
an

ce
18

6,
02

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7,

18
3

   
   

   
   

 
15

5,
92

8
  

15
3,

41
1

  
14

1,
19

5
  

Aw
ar

ds
/G

ift
s

1,
49

2
   

   
   

1,
40

1
   

   
   

1,
26

0
   

   
   

 
1,

85
0

   
   

   
2,

34
1

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

   
   

   
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
W

HA
T 

AR
E 

M
Y 

TO
P 

5 
HI

GH
ES

T 
O

PE
RA

TI
N

G 
EX

PE
N

SE
S?

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

Du
es

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

EX
PE

N
SE

AV
ER

AG
E 

AM
O

U
N

T
%

 O
F 

EX
PE

N
SE

S
Ba

nk
in

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
Fo

od
 &

 B
ev

er
ag

e
47

,1
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
%

St
af

f A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n/
Go

od
w

ill
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
Tr

av
el

 (N
on

-s
ta

ff)
14

,7
84

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7%
Di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
 E

xp
en

se
 - 

CC
BE

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

Au
di

o 
Vi

su
al

8,
84

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4%
To

ta
l O

pe
ra

tin
g

89
,3

64
   

   
 

10
2,

69
5

   
 

93
,5

11
   

   
 

12
0,

02
2

   
 

41
,0

83
   

   
 

2,
05

1
   

   
   

11
8,

59
0

   
 

Tr
av

el
 (s

ta
ff)

5,
15

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3%
17

-1
8

YT
D 

Ac
tu

al
18

-1
9

YT
D 

Ac
tu

al
19

-2
0

YT
D 

Ac
tu

al
20

-2
1 

Bu
dg

et
20

-2
1 

Bu
dg

et
20

-2
1

YT
D 

Ac
tu

al
20

-2
1 

Bu
dg

et
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l F
ee

s
2,

82
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1%

 In
co

m
e

19
0,

36
5

   
  

20
8,

99
6

   
 

19
6,

23
7

   
  

23
6,

89
2

   
 

17
8,

80
5

   
 

12
3,

36
0

   
 

23
1,

35
5

   
 

   
To

ta
l

78
,7

84
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
39

%
 G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s

20
1,

62
0

   
  

21
1,

51
3

   
 

20
8,

45
3

   
  

23
5,

87
9

   
 

15
3,

66
3

   
 

11
,4

72
   

   
 

23
1,

35
5

   
 

N
et

 In
co

m
e 

(L
os

s)
(1

1,
25

5)
   

   
(2

,5
17

)
   

   
  

(1
2,

21
6)

   
   

1,
01

3
   

   
   

25
,1

42
   

   
 

11
1,

88
7

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

Au
gu

st
 2

8,
 2

02
0

 (5
0,

00
0) -

 5
0,

00
0

 1
00

,0
00

 1
50

,0
00

 2
00

,0
00

 2
50

,0
00

20
15

-1
6

20
16

-1
7

20
17

-1
8

20
18

-1
9

20
19

-2
0

CC
BE

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

um
m

ar
y 

O
ve

rv
ie

w

In
co

m
e

Ex
pe

ns
es

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Ne

t I
nc

om
e 

(L
os

s)

45
%

55
%20
19

-2
0 

EX
PE

N
SE

S

M
em

be
r s

er
vi

ce
s

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e

64
%

36
%

20
19

-2
0 

RE
VE

N
U

ES

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

du
es

Pr
og

ra
m

s,
 o

th
er

Pa
ge

 9



I  

T 

E 

M  

  4.1 

Page 16



 

California County Boards of Education| 3251 Beacon Boulevard | West Sacramento, CA 95691| (800) 266-3382 

ITEM: 4.1 
 
DATE: September 11, 2020 
 
TITLE: COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Legislative Committee Report 
 
Written only: _____ Discussion: __X___ Direction: _______  Decision: ______ 
 
Summary 
 
The Board of Directors will receive a report on key legislation impacting county boards of education 
reviewed by the CSBA Legislative Committee.  
 
Background  
 
The CSBA Legislative Committee is comprised of school district and county board of education 
members from across the state representing a diverse membership with attention given to type of district 
(i.e. large, small, and county); ethnicity; and geographical location (i.e. north, central, and south).  There 
are 4 county board members appointed to serve on this committee, one of which is the CCBE Immediate 
Past President, providing CCBE with a greater voice on the impact legislation has on county boards of 
education at the state level. The four county board members appointed to serve on this year’s committee 
include: Dana Dean, CCBE Immediate Past President (Solano COE), Rosemary Kamei (Santa Clara 
COE), Joaquin Rivera, CSBA Director-at-Large, Hispanic (Alameda COE), and Dwight Pierson 
(Plumas County & USD). 
 
With the leadership of the CSBA Legislative Committee, CSBA reviewed and took positions on 60 
plus legislative bills. Efforts around budget issues and changes to the legislative priorities to this year’s 
session due to COVID-19 will be further discussed at the General Membership September 11th 
meeting.  
 
As always, thank you for your participation and input. If there are issues on legislation that you would 
like to bring forward to the committee, please email Dana Dean at DDean@solanocoe.net.   
 
Presenter:  Dana Dean, Immediate Past President (Solano COE) 

Page 17

mailto:DDean@solanocoe.net


I  

T 

E 

M  

  4.2 

Page 18



California County Boards of Education| 3251 Beacon Boulevard | West Sacramento, CA 95691| (800) 266-3382 

ITEM:  4.2 

DATE: September 11, 2020 

TITLE: COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Special Events & Annual Conference Report 

Written only: _____ Discussion: __X___  Direction: _______  Decision: _______ 

Summary 

The Board of Directors will receive a report on the upcoming annual conference and the work of 
the annual conference planning committee. 

Background 

At the beginning of 2020, the CCBE Annual Conference was scheduled to be held Sept. 11-13 at 
the Hyatt Regency Monterey Hotel. The Annual Conference Planning Committee held its first 
planning meeting on Feb. 20, and subsequent meetings in March, April, May, June, July, August, 
and September. However, due to COVID-19 and survey results from CCBE membership, the 
Board of Directors adopted at its May meeting to change the Annual Conference from an in-
person to a virtual event.   

Since then, the committee has reworked the CCBE Annual Conference to a virtual event and are 
proud to be able to offer our members the opportunity to virtually join county board members, 
superintendents, and education leaders from across the state on September 11-12 through an 
online website platform.   

We are excited to present our members with vital information during these unprecedented times 
with 11 plus engaging and dynamic virtual sessions that will address the unique issues faced by 
county boards of education and the students they serve plus three General Session Speaker Line 
up: Fireside Chat with Zoom Founder CEO Eric Yuan, Supporting Student Learning in The 
Time of COVID-19 with California Board of Education President Linda Darling-Hammond, and 
Pure Politics with Capitol Advisors Group, Kevin Gordon, Jack O’Connell, Barret Snider and 
San Diego COE Superintendent Paul Gothold. There will also be interactive components such as: 
live chats with participants and performances to celebrate our talented students! 

Presented on behalf of the 2020 Special Events and Annual Conference Planning 
Committee: Rick Shea, chair (San Diego COE); Janet Wolhgemuth (Monterey COE); Amber 
Childress, (Alameda COE); Dr. Fatima Alleyne (Contra Costa COE); Beverly Gerard (San 
Mateo COE); and Guadalupe Gonzalez (San Diego COE), and Joe Ross (San Mateo COE). 

Page 19



I  

T 

E 

M  

  5.2 

Page 20



   
 

 
  California County Boards of Education| 3251 Beacon Boulevard | West Sacramento, CA 95691| (800) 266-3382 

 

ITEM:   5.2. 
 
DATE: September 11, 2020 
 
TITLE: NEW BUSINESS  
  CCBE Outstanding Legislator Award Nominations 
 
Information Only: _____ Discussion: ____  Direction: _____  Decision: __ X __ 
 
 
Summary 
 
The Board of Directors will review and select a 2020 California Legislator to receive the CCBE 
Outstanding Legislator Award at its September meeting.  
 
Background  
 
For the past several years, CCBE has honored current members of the California Senate and Assembly 
who actively work to improve our public schools, support local county, and school board governance 
and exercise leadership in the legislative arena. To review past winners, please visit 
http://theccbe.org/en/Events/OutstandingLegislatorAward. 
 
CCBE encourages county boards to participate in nominating a member of the California State 
Legislature, the California Congressional delegation or federal/state elective or appointed office for 
CCBE’s 2020 Outstanding Legislator Awards program.  The award is bestowed upon a member of the 
Senate or Assembly who has been actively involved in legislation or legislative activities supporting 
the work of county offices of education and their programs.  
 
Members are asked to include why their nominated legislator is being recognized and share their story 
explaining how the work they are doing supports county offices of education and our student 
population, and include photos or supporting articles and/or documentation and information about the 
problem and solution to the legislation they are supporting. 
 
Nominations for the 2020 Outstanding Legislator Awards program are due no later than Wednesday, 
September 2, 2020 to be considered. Include a resolution or written explanation of why the nominated 
legislator should be honored. It is important that your nomination include as much specific information 
as possible, and highlight legislation with a direct, beneficial effect on COEs and their students. Please 
complete the nomination form and send it to CCBE via email at ccbe@csba.org. 
 
As of August 28th, one nomination was received and is attached for review and consideration. Other 
nominations received by the due date will be forwarded to the Board by September 3.  
 
Presenter: Janet Wohlgemuth, President (Monterey COE)   

Page 21

http://theccbe.org/en/Events/OutstandingLegislatorAward
mailto:ccbe@csba.org


Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



 

 

 

 

I    

T 

E 

M    

         6 

 

Page 30



 

California County Boards of Education| 3251 Beacon Boulevard | West Sacramento, CA 95691| (800) 266-3382 

CCBE Board of Directors Tasks & Goals 2020-21 
(As of 8/1/20) 

 
Task Who Date Due Desired Result / notes 

Complete - Grand jury article regarding 
training 

Bruce Emailed on 8/1   

Complete - Additional Administrator for BoD 
Facebook group 

 

Rose Set up on 8/1  

Join BofD Facebook group - current board 
members should all be a part of this 
Facebook group 
 
Parking lot: an ALL county Facebook 
opportunity- revisit at a later time 

Each 
Director – 
make sure to 
request to 
join 

TBD Continue to share valuable 
resources 

Stand against racism 
Check-in with task force – what’s up & who 
are the representatives? 

Janet TBD We would like to be part of 
the solution 

Video 
Find someone with skills - Volunteer? Hire? 
Amber willing to help? 

 Check in on 
status at Sept 
BoD meeting.  

 

President Welcome and Update Video 
 

Janet and 
Monterey 
county office 
of education 

September In Progress - check in 30 days 

Zoom training for conference - Zoom 
meeting hosts / Regional Directors  
• some type of zoom training to lead a 

room 
• outline an order of possible events for our 

regional meeting 
• hot topics 
• bullet/talking points 
• relationship building ideas 

Conference two weeks In Progress 

Commission “Communications Committee”  
• CCBE brochure 
• Video content 
• Update webpage 
Mindful of equity and representation 

Gina, 
Juliana, 
David P, 
Beverly, 
Rose 

TBD  

Page 31



 

CCBE Board of Directors  2 | P a g e  
Tasks & Goals List 2020-21 

Task Who Date Due Desired Result / notes 

Training – Professional Development 
Committee 
1-hour development topics - current needs 
with subject matter expert or diverse panel. 
Plus: Schedule an advance county board 
training and a separate newly elected board 
member trainings via Zoom.  

Marcy, 
Laura, David, 
Amy  
Others???  

TBD Include Amy Christensen  

Advocacy/Legislative - Cohesive message 
 
Create an Advocacy subcommittee to have 
legislative conversations specific to CCBE on 
zoom 

Dana 
 
Janet 

TBD  

Handbook regarding transfers – material that 
is an example / resource, able to combine 
that with new virtual challenge(s) ideas  
Would be material for a great article  

David P Sometime the 
week of Aug 3 

Get to Rick and Janet. In 
progress 

Mentor / bring someone to the leadership 
team - develop 

All Board TBD  

 
 

Page 32



 

California County Boards of Education| 3251 Beacon Boulevard | West Sacramento, CA 95691| (800) 266-3382 

CCBE Board of Directors Virtual Retreat 
Friday, July 31 from 6:30 – 8:30 p.m. 

 Saturday, August 1, 2020 from 10:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 
 

MINUTES 
 
The Board of Directors retreat was held via Zoom beginning Friday, July 31 at 6:30 p.m. and adjourning on 
Saturday, August 1 by 3:00 p.m. President Janet Wohlgemuth welcomed everyone and introduced Lauren Ball, 
Retreat Facilitator, who asked members to each take three minutes to share who are you (name), where you’re 
at, why are you here, experiences/advice that brought you here and what do you expect to get out of this 
retreat. Below is a list of desired outcomes, goals, assigned tasks and expectations that were discussed 
throughout the retreat.  
 
Desired Outcomes & Agenda Items 

• Professional development - incorporate virtual 
options  
o Training on Inter/Intra district transfers / 

expulsions virtually? 
o Training on Charter schools’ oversight 

and appeals changes, 7/1 
o Framework of plan for meetings  

• Network in new ways 
• (New normal) Best possible 

o staff development 
o caregivers and parents at home 

information, support and development 
o special education, private schools and 

charter 
• All the voices 
• Strategic plan from previous years to craft 

appropriate steps for the current world 
• Connections - take back to board 
• So much - how can we stay relevant 
• Hub to bring together  
• Lean into this 
• We need to "meet the moment" 
• TEAM - together everyone achieves more 
• How we are going to change and move 

forward? 
• The more we hear, the better we will be 
• Strategic plan applied to what is identified 

under new conditions 
• "Crisis is a terrible thing to waste" 
• Re-dedicate 
• Close achievement gap  

• The way in our own backyards - make the 
changes 

• How CCBE can lead and be a resource for 
Boards 

• Reassure parents kids are getting a great 
education 

• Bring community together 
• Rise above politics 
• Respect 
• Responsibility and kindness 
• No school - daycare? 
• First charge is education - first rate education 
• Strategic plan for CCBE - next year to support - 

no such thing as normal 
• What is different (disaster management) - How 

do we help county boards? Conference can do 
that? 

• Counties that paid dues and we never see 
them - how do we pull them in? 

• Figure out how: 
o outreach and CCBE work online format 
o reach members and do the work – zoom 

format 
• Keep the zoom options in future at board 

meetings - have found benefits for families to 
use this technology 

• Don’t want to lose sight of our advocacy role – 
it opens doors 

• Be the voice 



CCBE Board of Directors Retreat  2 | P a g e  
July 31-August 1, 2020 Minutes 

• Districts that don’t come or send only one 
person to get information and return to 
County - value and all to attend for perspective 

• Lessons learned and sharing - explore how we 
do that more 

• Provide leadership to bring districts along 
• Legislative committee - what move can we do 

you for advocacy?  
o Issues 
o Rural 
o plans and priorities 

• Ensure kids are engaging - get support that it is 
conducive for learning 

• Huge issue - deal with learning gaps and results 
• Interface with CSBA - all coming together now? 
• Eye-opener for education - experience must 

not fall on deaf ears 
• More communication in network to support 

and help 
• See what everybody else is going through 

• Teachers do not want to come back – instant 
testing for COVID? 

• Educate all children 
• Improve how we communicate with counties 

that are not coming – ties to regional visits – 
reach out with zoom 

• Inspire next generation to want to be in those 
seats - to serve spreads passion 

• Difficulty for parents shifting to be home for 
supervision and missing work 

• Life circumstances - essential workers kids - 
businesses losing workforce 

• Continued growth and connections  
• Your support and leadership  
• Take those steps - build future 
• Economic downturn – training students to take 

jobs 
• Learning the losses and needs of communities 
• Create video – who are we and where are we 

going.
 
Retreat Agreements ZOOM / virtual meeting 

• Be mindful of the tips and best practices of using virtual tools – raise hand virtually, thumbs up / down, 
eye contact, chat (monitored), length of comments, body language 
o practice, ask questions  
o also our time to learn 

• Be kind, slow down, help each other  
• All beginners 
• Engagement 
• Changes 
• Flexible Curve balls 
• New ways of… reaching out & communicating 
• Honor styles 
• Breathe 

 
Major Conversation Threads 
 CCBE “Setting the Table” vs. Being Invited to the Table 
 Meet the Moment 
 Equality  
 Stand against racism 
 Seat at the table(s) - build bench and leadership team 
 Infrastructure 
 Budget 
 Fundraising  

o general support  
o training  
o conference 

 Fall Conference  
o goals 
o purpose of breakout sessions 



CCBE Board of Directors Retreat  3 | P a g e  
July 31-August 1, 2020 Minutes 

 Advocacy - focus? 
 Regional visits/value 
 
Strategic plan 

• May need to think in smaller bites – next week and next month, this year vs. 3-5 years out (although  
we DO need to think 3-5 years out!) 

• Make sure we have a seat at the (all needed) tables 
• Under contractMOU  
• This is on us make a focus 
• Work with Regional Directors & Delegates 

o May have need longer lead times 
 
Fall Conference 

• Conference committee was able to make a quick move to virtual 
• “Zoomed out” equals condense timeline, create inclusive event, high quality, beneficial information 

Relevant topics 
• Key notes are timely 
• Topics - quality information 
• Want “meat” on subjects covered 
• Reach out to people through email / social media, other ways regarding attendance 
• What is our message… all sessions were based on a “What do you want survey”- we heard you! 
• Need: At Regional meetings, outline the topics to discuss – can be specific to attendees needs – 

“your” time. ASSIGN BREAKOUTS & know who to get help from with Tech. 
 
Advocacy 

• DC 2022 to start plan of who and what - Bruce will be speaking with Naomi 
• Legislative Agenda items? 

o PPE 
o Budget 
o Equity 
o Federal dollars 
o Flexibility 
o Proactive vs Reactive 
o Broader voices – CCBE 

• Legislative Committee - Continue to be Active and Involved with CSBA relationship – 4 county 
board seats on this committee. 

 
Regional Visits, Values & Meetings  
GOAL: By end of 2020 each BofD should “visit” (virtual) each district. Regional Director attempt to make 
contact with Board President to ask to appear on either: 

1. Agenda 
2. Public comment(announce) 
3. Attend meeting (announce) – good to know you are there 

• Regional meetings 
o Zoom - get on agendas  
o Text board President in advance to request 
o Technology to augment - multiple tools available 
o Train those that need to understand how to use technology  
o Seize the opportunity 



CCBE Board of Directors Retreat  4 | P a g e  
July 31-August 1, 2020 Minutes 

o Update regarding: 
 Accomplishments 
 works in progress 

o Input/communication 
o Tools to support – CCBE pamphlet, CCBE power point, Videos (being developed) 

 Videos can be handy 
 CCBE President annual video - goals and recap 

o See the faces/relationships are a good thing 
o In three minutes – explain what can I/CCBE offer AND what do they need? 
o Virtual – acknowledge is not great choice for all 
o Work on / focus on how to support selves and community 

 Supportive  
 Useful  
 Value - Value to county board members 

o Needs are different for each county and community - Front burner  
 COVID  
 Achievement issues 
 Equity 
 Serve County Boards 
 Advocate 
 Help get Schools up and operating 
 Address Achievement gap(s) 

 
Ad hoc Fundraising 
• Need bigger task force – members appointed to serve on this task force 
• Tie fundraising into Budget goals 
• InfrastructureDevelop 
 
Budget Overview – quick discussion and Q&A 
Budget question (just curios) – line item on budget for training? – who does what?  
 
Committees – list is on CCBE’s website at http://theccbe.org/en/AboutUs/Committees. 
• Who is responsible for the work? Each committee has a protocol that outlines who is responsible for the 

work. 
o Staff 
o Committee 
o Board of Directors 

• Define Value to our members 
• Commission “Communications Committee” – Gina, Juliana, David P, Beverly, Rose 

o CCBE brochure 
o Video content 
o Update webpage 
o Mindful of equity and representation 

 
Training – schedule has changed in 2020 trainings canceled – how are we moving forward? 
• Great opportunity 
• Respond to critical needs & current information  
• Reduce cost? 
• How did it effect the budget? 

http://theccbe.org/en/AboutUs/Committees


CCBE Board of Directors Retreat  5 | P a g e  
July 31-August 1, 2020 Minutes 

• Professional Development committee  going forward.  
• Hot topic – Right presenter/expert 
• Pilot classes – (Ventura COE-example) 

o Great outcomes  
o Small groups 

• Huge NEED for training – good time to create on Zoom – workload? Large 
o Can we do 1-hour subject specific as soon as possible for support – Subject expert or diverse 

panel 
o Series of sessions – record – library to members only? 
o FREE? Value? With “meat” 
o Provide development 
o Communication  
o Value added 
o Range of things we could address 
o Diverse = Different needs – be open 
o Q&A process  in advance, chat, facilitator 
o Pick a time – be consistent 
o List small bites… 

 
Equity  
• Resolution… See how CCBE can address the different parts on this issue. Most county boards have 

adopted a resolution on this topic. 
• Embed 
• Something that matters 
• Focus conversation with LCAP – we said…what is in our LCAP. Put action steps into place instead of 

creating a resolution. 
 
Parking lot  
• New County Board Governance training dates (virtual?) for NEW board and Seasoned members 
• Facebook Group Page for ALL county member boards 
 
Parting thoughts 
• Do the right thing 
• Actions not words 
• Future is now 
• Appreciation for those who have come before 
• Remember students in your plans and 

thoughts 
• It takes a team 
• Pivot, Flexibility, Continuity 
• Concept of TEAM together everyone achieves 

more 
• Looking forward to brighter future 

 
 
 
 
 
 

• Using an equity approach to guide 
• Stay positive, keep moving 
• Moving forward 
• Cause good trouble 
• Move forward & cause good trouble helps 
• Thankful for leadership - Janet 
• Together 
• Necessary trouble 
• Passion and appreciation 
• Thanks for inspiration 
• The heart of this group 



 

California County Boards of Education| 3251 Beacon Boulevard | West Sacramento, CA 95691| (800) 266-3382 

CCBE Board of Directors Tasks & Goals  
(As of 8/1/20) 

 
Task Who Date Due Desired Result / notes 

Complete - Grand jury article regarding 
training 

Bruce Emailed on 8/1   

Complete - Additional Administrator for BoD 
Facebook group 

 

Rose Set up on 8/1  

Join BofD Facebook group - current board 
members should all be a part of this 
Facebook group 
 
Parking lot: an ALL county Facebook 
opportunity- revisit at a later time 

Each 
Director – 
make sure to 
request to 
join 

TBD Continue to share valuable 
resources 

Stand against racism 
Check-in with task force – what’s up & who 
are the representatives? 

Janet TBD We would like to be part of 
the solution 

Video 
Find someone with skills - Volunteer? Hire? 
Amber willing to help? 

 Check in on 
status at Sept 
BoD meeting.  

 

President Welcome and Update Video 
 

Janet and 
Monterey 
county office 
of education 

September check in 30 days 

Zoom training for conference - Zoom 
meeting hosts / Regional Directors  
• some type of zoom training to lead a 

room 
• outline an order of possible events for our 

regional meeting 
• hot topics 
• bullet/talking points 
• relationship building ideas 

Conference two weeks  

Commission “Communications Committee”  
• CCBE brochure 
• Video content 
• Update webpage 
Mindful of equity and representation 

Gina, 
Juliana, 
David P, 
Beverly, 
Rose 

TBD  



 

CCBE Board of Directors Retreat  7 | P a g e  
July 31-August 1, 2020 Minutes 

Task Who Date Due Desired Result / notes 

Training – Professional Development 
Committee 
1-hour development topics - current needs 
with subject matter expert or diverse panel. 
Plus: Schedule an advance county board 
training and a separate newly elected board 
member trainings via Zoom.  

Marcy, 
Laura, David, 
Amy  
Others???  

TBD Include Amy Christensen  

Advocacy/Legislative - Cohesive message 
 
Create an Advocacy subcommittee to have 
legislative conversations specific to CCBE on 
zoom 

Dana 
 
Janet 

TBD  

Handbook regarding transfers – material that 
is an example / resource, able to combine 
that with new virtual challenge(s) ideas  
Would be material for a great article  

David P Sometime the 
week of Aug 3 

get to Rick and Janet  

Mentor / bring someone to the leadership 
team - develop 

All Board TBD  

 
 



 

 

 

September 15, 2020 
 
Dear Fellow Superintendents, 
 
We are dealing with unprecedented times in all of our schools regardless of size. 
However, some of our most isolated and rural schools are adding to the impact 
with an unmatched fire season and we still have over a month to go before the 
season’s conclusion. California has already lost the facilities of three single‐school 
districts and lost homes in many of our represented districts.  
 
SSDA has always operated and focused on the needs of small school districts. As 
SSDA, we represent any small school District that has faced severe damage, 
closure, and most importantly, the tremendous impact on students and their 
families. 
 
It is also important to know that in these Districts many of the staff members, 
regardless of position, live in these towns. Everyone is a contributor to the 
community and the school, in many ways, serves as the heart and soul of the 
people. 
 
The SSDA Board recognizes these natural disasters are becoming all too common 
place and SSDA will responding in three ways:  

 Priority I is to reach out and do our best to support these communities as 
well as any in the future.  

 Priority II is to develop a plan that will serve as a guide and road map for 
future responses that ensure a quick, coordinated response.  

 Priority III is to work through the legislative process to make reporting less 
cumbersome as our districts and their teams are burdened with tending to 
the needs of the children, their families, and the community in general. 

 
On behalf of our entire SSDA Board, be assured that we know how crucial small 
school Districts are throughout California.  Small school Districts represent nearly 
64% of the districts in California. We will continue to help serve and support each 
and every one of these districts as we travel through the complicated and 
emotional tasks of responding to the different tiers of needs during recovery. 
 
Thank you to each of you.  We wish you the best as we continue to meet the 
challenges our schools have faced in 2020. 
 
Sincerely, 

       
J. Stuart Packard, SSDA President           Tim Taylor  
Buttonwillow School District, Superintendent         SSDA Executive Director 

925 L Street, Suite 1200 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Tel: (916) 662‐7213 
Fax: (916) 443‐7468 
www.ssda.org 
 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
Dr. Amy Alzina, Superintendent 
Cold Spring Elementary School District 
 
Eric Bonniksen, Superintendent 
Placerville Union Elementary SD 
 
Dr. Don Brann 
Founder – Emeritus Member 

 
Dr. Helio Brasil, Superintendent 
Keyes Union Elementary SD 

 
Linda Irving, Superintendent 
Sebastopol Union Elementary SD 
 
Mike Martin, Superintendent 
Modoc County Office of Education 
 
Brett McFadden, Superintendent 
Nevada Joint Union High School District 
 
Stuart Packard, Superintendent 
Buttonwillow Union Elementary SD 
 
Dr. Jeremy Powell, Superintendent 
Hamilton Unified School District 
 
Dr. Catherine Reimer, Superintendent  
San Ardo Union Elementary School District 
 

Terri Rufert, Superintendent 
Sundale Union Elementary SD 
 
Toby Wait, Superintendent 
Big Creek Elementary School District 

 

SSDA FOUNDERS 
 

Dr. Don Brann, Founder 
Dr. David Evans, Founder, 1932‐2018 
Ray Edman, Founder, 1926‐2006 
 

SSDA OFFICE 
 

Timothy J. Taylor, Executive Director 
(916) 662‐7212; tim@ssda.org  
 
Corrie Pelc, Director of Member Services 

(916) 662‐7213; corrie@ssda.org 
 

 
 



CDPH Center for Infectious Diseases, MS 0509  P.O. Box 997377  Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 
(916) 445-0062 ● (916) 445-0274 FAX 

Internet Address: www.cdph.ca.gov 

State of California—Health and Human Services Agency 
California Department of Public Health 

 
 
 

SANDRA SHEWRY, MPH, MSW GAVIN NEWSOM 
Acting Director Governor 

ERICA S. PAN, MD, MPH 
Acting State Health Officer 

 
 

 

September 24, 2020 
 
Wendy G. Tyler, Colusa County Administrative Officer 
547 Market Street, Room 102 
Colusa, CA 95932 
 
Re: COVID-19 Monitoring List and Colusa Schools  
 
Ms. Tyler: 
 
Pursuant to the Blueprint for a Safer Economy, which replaced the County Data 
Monitoring List as of Monday August 31, 2020, Colusa County is in Tier 1 
(Widespread/Purple). As community spread of infection remains a significant concern 
across the state of California, for counties that are in Tier 1, schools may not reopen fully 
for in-person instruction. Schools are eligible for reopening fully for in-person instruction 
following once the county is out of Tier 1 for 14 days, as outlined in the July 17th School 
Re-opening Framework. CDPH is committed to supporting local jurisdictions in reducing 
COVID-19 case rates and test positivity to enable movement to a less restrictive tier. 
 
For the reasons articulated in your letter regarding the critical importance of providing 
educational opportunities for students (especially younger and higher-need students), 
CDPH has released two different guidance documents to provide some additional 
flexibility to counties. The Elementary Waiver Process allows a district superintendent, 
private school principal/head of school, or executive director of a charter school to apply 
for a waiver from the local health officer to fully open an elementary school for in-person 
instruction. This waiver is applicable for grades TK-6. In addition, on August 25, 2020, 
CDPH released Cohort Guidance which authorizes in-person child supervision and 
instruction, targeted support services, and facilitation of distance learning in small group 
environments, especially for students who school officials determine would benefit most 
from in-person settings. The accompanying FAQs for Providing Targeted, Specialized 
Support and Services at School explain how this cohort guidance can be operationalized 
in schools that are not able to re-open for in-person instruction school wide. In addition, as 
you know, Colusa county has demonstrated encouraging trends and had case rate and 
test positivity in the Tier 2 range for one week; if this trend continues for another week will 
enter Tier 2 soon. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.cdph.ca.gov/
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/COVID19CountyMonitoringOverview.aspx
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdph.ca.gov%2FPrograms%2FCID%2FDCDC%2FCDPH%2520Document%2520Library%2FCOVID-19%2FSchools%2520Reopening%2520Recommendations.pdf&data=02%7C01%7Cmichelle.baass%40chhs.ca.gov%7C88fb2ccdd32e4552e56208d84b208ce0%7C265c2dcd2a6e43aab2e826421a8c8526%7C0%7C0%7C637341950764884988&sdata=GTdTEUL0JLs5ELX9n3WdWZZ9VALJpFNJQaCymoJ7EFc%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdph.ca.gov%2FPrograms%2FCID%2FDCDC%2FCDPH%2520Document%2520Library%2FCOVID-19%2FSchools%2520Reopening%2520Recommendations.pdf&data=02%7C01%7Cmichelle.baass%40chhs.ca.gov%7C88fb2ccdd32e4552e56208d84b208ce0%7C265c2dcd2a6e43aab2e826421a8c8526%7C0%7C0%7C637341950764884988&sdata=GTdTEUL0JLs5ELX9n3WdWZZ9VALJpFNJQaCymoJ7EFc%3D&reserved=0
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/In-Person-Elementary-Waiver-Process.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/small-groups-child-youth.aspx
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-schools-cohort-FAQ.pdf
https://files.covid19.ca.gov/pdf/guidance-schools-cohort-FAQ.pdf


CDPH Center for Infectious Diseases, MS 0509  P.O. Box 997377  Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 
(916) 445-0062 ● (916) 445-0274 FAX 

Internet Address: www.cdph.ca.gov 

State of California—Health and Human Services Agency 
California Department of Public Health 

 
 
 

SANDRA SHEWRY, MPH, MSW GAVIN NEWSOM 
Acting Director Governor 

ERICA S. PAN, MD, MPH 
Acting State Health Officer 

 
 

 

CDPH continues to encourage schools to work with their Local Health Officers to 
operationalize the existing guidelines to best support students and teachers. Thank you 
for your critical partnership at this time. Should you have any questions, please do not 
hesitate to reach out to Tara Zimonjic at K6waiver@cdph.ca.gov, and she will be able to 
assist you.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Erica Pan, MD, MPH, FAAP 
Acting State Health Officer State Epidemiologist 
Deputy Director, Center for Infectious Diseases 
California Department of Public Health 
 
 
 
CC: Michael P. West, Colusa County Superintendent of Schools; Dr. Gregory Burt, 
Colusa Health Officer 

http://www.cdph.ca.gov/
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCLHO/Pages/CCLHO-Health-Officer-Directory.aspx
mailto:K6waiver@cdph.ca.gov


The SAS System

Small County Additional Criteria

County

Date of Tier 

Assessment

Updated Tier 

Assignment, 10‐

5‐20 

Assessment

Previous Tier 

Assignment, 9‐

28‐20 

Assessment

First Date in 

Current Tier School Opening

Number of 

Consecutive 

Weeks Meeting 

Criteria for Less 

Restrictive Tier

Number of 

Consecutive 

Weeks Meeting 

Criteria for More 

Restrictive Tier

Tier for Week 9‐

20‐20 to 9‐26‐

20, 

&assessment. 

Assessment

Test Positivity 

excl prisons (7‐

day, 7‐day lag)

Adjusted Case 

Rate Used for 

Tier Assignment 

(7‐day avg, 7‐

day lag)

Unadjusted 

Case Rate per 

100,000 excl 

prison (7‐day 

avg, 7‐day lag)

Linear Case Rate 

Adjustment 

Factor Applied 

to Case Rate

Tests per 100,000 excl 

prisons, with replaced 

approved county data (7‐

day avg 7‐day lag)

State Median Testing 

Rate=216.35

Tests per 

100,000 excl 

prisons, (7‐day 

avg 7‐day lag) Population

Total New Cases: Additional Small 

County Criteria Applied to Move to 

More Restrictive Tier: Exceeds Cases: 2 

to 1: <=35K:35, 35‐70K:42, 70‐106K:49, 

3 to 2: <=35K:14, 35‐70K:21, 70‐

106K:28, 4 to 3: <=35K:7, 35‐70K:14, 70‐

106K:21

Test Positivity 

excl prisons in 

Lowest Healthy 

Places Index 

Quartile Census 

Tracts (7‐day, 7‐

day lag)

Meets Health Equity 

Requirement: Lowest HPI 

Quartile Census Tracts' 

Test Positivity Threshold 

for Less Restrictive Tier

(Purple: <=8%, Red: <= 

5.2%, Orange: <=2.1%)

Number of 

Consecutive 

Weeks Meeting 

Health Equity 

Requirement

Meets 

Accelerated 

Health Equity 

Criteria

Number of 

Consecutive 

Weeks Meeting 

Accelerated 

Health Equity 

Criteria
Alameda 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐21‐2020 May Reopen 1 0 3 2.0 3.4 4.0 0.848 298.3 298.3 1685886 474 3.9 Yes 2 No 0
Alpine 10‐05‐2020 4 4 08‐31‐2020 May Reopen NA 0 4 0.0 0.0 0.0  ‐    562.7 562.7 1117 0     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Amador 10‐05‐2020 3 3 09‐28‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 3 0.5 1.5 1.5  ‐    343.7 343.7 38531 4     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Butte 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐28‐2020 May Not Reopen 1 0 3 1.6 2.8 3.1 0.898 271.3 271.3 217769 48 1.4 Yes 2 No 0

Calaveras 10‐05‐2020 3 3 09‐28‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 3 1.0 1.0 1.0  ‐    200.3 200.3 44289 3     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Colusa 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 1 0 2 6.3 3.2 3.2  ‐    111.3 111.3 22593 5     ‐  NA NA NA NA

Contra Costa 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐28‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 0 2 3.3 5.6 6.2 0.906 267.4 267.4 1160099 503 6.8 No 0 No 0
Del Norte 10‐05‐2020 3 3 08‐31‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 3 2.0 3.6 3.6  ‐    202.7 202.7 27558 7     ‐  NA NA NA NA
El Dorado^ 10‐05‐2020 3 3 09‐21‐2020 May Reopen 0 1 2 3.3 4.5 4.5  ‐    193.3 193.3 193098 61 1.7 Yes 2 No 0
Fresno^ 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐28‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 1 1 5.3 7.2 7.0 1.027 201.6 201.6 1032227 509 8.4 No 0 No 0
Glenn 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 NA 1 6.2 12.7 12.7  ‐    228.3 228.3 29348 26     ‐  NA NA NA NA

Humboldt* 10‐05‐2020 4 3 10‐05‐2020 May Reopen NA 0 3 1.5 2.0 2.0  ‐    195.6 195.6 134098 19 0.0 Yes 0 Yes 0
Imperial 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 NA 1 4.9 8.2 9.5 0.865 289.6 289.6 191649 128 6.1 Yes 2 No 0
Inyo 10‐05‐2020 3 2 10‐05‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 3 0.6 3.1 3.1  ‐    137.8 137.8 18453 4     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Kern 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 1 0 2 4.7 5.5 5.1 1.077 174.8 161.8 927251 329 6.2 Yes 1 No 0
Kings 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 1 0 3 3.0 3.8 5.0 0.758 347.4 304.6 156444 55 4.4 Yes 2 No 0
Lake** 10‐05‐2020 2 2 08‐31‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 1 3.9 8.8 8.8  ‐    354.1 354.1 64871 40     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Lassen 10‐05‐2020 3 3 09‐21‐2020 May Reopen 1 0 4 0.4 0.5 0.5  ‐    118.8 118.8 30065 1     ‐  NA NA NA NA

Los Angeles 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 NA 1 2.8 7.4 9.4 0.786 332.1 332.1 10257557 6775 4.4 Yes 2 No 0
Madera 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 NA 1 6.6 8.4 7.9 1.073 176.9 176.9 160089 88 6.6 Yes 2 No 0
Marin 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐14‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 2 1.8 4.0 5.5 0.722 366.8 332.3 260800 100 3.1 Yes 1 No 0

Mariposa 10‐05‐2020 4 4 09‐21‐2020 May Reopen NA 0 4 0.4 0.8 0.8  ‐    226.4 226.4 17795 1     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Mendocino 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 NA 1 4.6 10.5 10.5  ‐    267.2 267.2 88439 65     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Merced 10‐05‐2020 2 1 10‐05‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 0 2 3.9 6.7 6.8 0.991 221.4 221.4 287420 136 3.3 Yes 0 No 0
Modoc** 10‐05‐2020 4 4 08‐31‐2020 May Reopen NA 0 2 1.8 4.5 4.5  ‐    168.9 168.9 9475 3     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Mono 10‐05‐2020 3 3 08‐31‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 3 3.1 1.0 1.0  ‐    131.0 131.0 13961 1     ‐  NA NA NA NA

Monterey 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 NA 1 5.4 10.0 11.2 0.890 276.0 276.0 448732 353 7.3 Yes 2 No 0
Napa 10‐05‐2020 2 2 08‐31‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 2 2.5 5.1 6.2 0.817 315.5 315.5 139652 61 3.2 Yes 2 No 0
Nevada 10‐05‐2020 3 3 09‐21‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 3 0.7 1.3 1.3  ‐    272.9 272.9 98710 9     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Orange 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐07‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 2 3.2 5.2 5.4 0.965 235.3 235.3 3228519 1219 6.6 No 0 No 0
Placer 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐07‐2020 May Reopen 1 0 3 1.9 2.5 2.5  ‐    196.0 196.0 400434 70 1.7 Yes 2 No 0
Plumas 10‐05‐2020 4 3 10‐05‐2020 May Reopen NA 0 4 0.0 0.0 0.0  ‐    182.7 182.7 18997 0     ‐  NA NA NA NA

Riverside^ 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐21‐2020 May Reopen 0 1 1 5.0 7.6 6.8 1.107 158.6 158.6 2468145 1179 7.0 No 0 No 0
Sacramento 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐28‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 0 2 3.4 5.3 5.3 0.993 220.0 220.0 1567975 583 4.7 Yes 2 No 0
San Benito 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 1 0 2 4.5 6.5 6.5  ‐    217.1 217.1 64022 29     ‐  NA NA NA NA

San Bernardino 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 NA 1 6.4 9.6 9.2 1.049 189.8 189.8 2217398 1426 8.1 No 0 No 0
San Diego 10‐05‐2020 2 2 08‐31‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 2 3.5 6.5 7.0 0.918 260.9 167.6 3370418 1661 6.2 No 0 No 0

San Francisco 10‐05‐2020 3 3 09‐21‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 3 1.4 2.6 4.3 0.600 529.9 529.9 892280 269 3.0 No 0 No 0
San Joaquin 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐28‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 0 2 4.2 6.4 6.2 1.036 196.8 196.8 782545 337 5.7 No 0 No 0

San Luis Obispo 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐21‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 2 1.9 5.1 6.6 0.784 332.9 332.9 278862 128 2.4 Yes 2 No 0
San Mateo 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐21‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 2 2.6 4.3 4.9 0.881 280.8 280.8 778001 268 5.3 No 0 No 0

Santa Barbara 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐28‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 0 2 3.3 5.8 6.4 0.916 262.0 262.0 456373 204 6.7 No 0 No 0
Santa Clara 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐07‐2020 May Reopen 1 0 3 1.8 3.5 4.8 0.726 364.6 364.6 1967585 657 3.7 Yes 1 No 0
Santa Cruz 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐07‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 2 3.2 5.9 6.4 0.935 251.7 251.7 273999 122 4.7 Yes 1 No 0
Shasta 10‐05‐2020 2 3 10‐05‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 1 6.9 12.8 13.9 0.920 259.4 259.4 177925 173 6.8 No 0 No 0
Sierra 10‐05‐2020 3 3 09‐21‐2020 May Reopen 2 0 4 0.0 0.0 0.0  ‐    247.6 247.6 3115 0     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Siskiyou 10‐05‐2020 4 3 10‐05‐2020 May Reopen NA 0 4 0.5 0.0 0.0  ‐    122.9 122.9 43956 0     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Solano 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐21‐2020 May Reopen 0 0 2 2.8 5.2 5.6 0.931 253.4 253.4 444255 174 2.9 Yes 2 No 0
Sonoma 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 NA 1 5.0 10.8 12.0 0.900 270.6 270.6 496668 417 8.1 No 0 No 0
Stanislaus 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 1 0 2 3.5 4.8 4.8  ‐    186.2 186.2 562303 189 5.1 Yes 2 No 0
Sutter 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 1 0 3 3.3 3.5 3.5  ‐    173.3 173.3 105747 26     ‐  NA NA NA NA

Tehama*** 10‐05‐2020 1 2 10‐05‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 0 1 5.8 11.9 11.9  ‐    251.1 251.1 65885 55     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Trinity 10‐05‐2020 4 3 10‐05‐2020 May Reopen NA 0 4 0.0 0.0 0.0  ‐    133.7 133.7 13354 0     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Tulare 10‐05‐2020 1 1 08‐31‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 NA 1 6.2 10.7 11.5 0.936 250.8 250.8 484423 389 7.2 Yes 2 No 0

Tuolumne 10‐05‐2020 3 3 08‐31‐2020 May Reopen 1 0 4 0.3 0.0 0.0  ‐    275.1 275.1 52351 0     ‐  NA NA NA NA
Ventura 10‐05‐2020 2 1 10‐05‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 0 2 3.0 5.5 6.2 0.896 272.7 272.7 852747 368 3.6 Yes 0 No 0
Yolo 10‐05‐2020 2 2 09‐28‐2020 May Not Reopen 1 0 3 2.2 3.3 3.3  ‐    204.1 204.1 223612 51 3.3 Yes 2 No 0
Yuba 10‐05‐2020 2 1 10‐05‐2020 May Not Reopen 0 0 2 4.2 5.6 5.6  ‐    160.5 160.5 79290 31     ‐  NA NA NA NA

small county Purple‐ Tier 1 Red‐ Tier 2 Orange‐ Tier 3 Yellow‐ Tier 4

*** Moved to more restrictive tier due to exceeding case number threshold for small county
^ Entering into supportive engagement period with CDPH.
^^ Source: http://www.dof.ca.gov/Forecasting/Demographics/Projections/ 

*Health Equity Metric: Meets criteria for accelerated movement to a less restrictive tier.
**Small County: Held harmless, did not exceed case number threshold.

County Tier Assessment 10‐5‐20 for Week 9‐20‐20 to 9‐26‐20

County Status as of Tier Assignment on 10‐5‐20

Current Data Week Tier and Metric Tiers: (Test 

Positivity: 1: >8, 2: 5‐8, 3: 2‐4.9, 4: <2) (Case Rate 1: 

>7, 2: 4‐7, 3: 1‐3.9, 4: <1) Case Rate Adjustment Factors Health Equity Metric

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/COVID19CountyMonitoringOverview.aspx


  6.3 

CCOE - Children’s Services                                           

Vicki Markss, Director           

Report for CCOE Board of Education 

Month:  September 2020 

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 Resource & Referral Network, CAPPA. 
 Parent Policy Council meeting. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Monthly meetings with Office of Head Start Program Specialist. 
 Cabinet meeting. 
  Office Team meeting. 
 Virtual trainings/meetings with classroom staff. 
 Employee Personnel Evaluations. 
 Local Child Care Planning Council. 
 Employee One-on-One meetings for goal planning. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 Received Head Start Quality Improvement funding. 
 Head Start Supplement –COVID-19 one-time funding for prevention and preparation. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 

School Readiness: 

 Revised Health and Safety Protocols for open/reopening plan. 
 Completed CDE Early Learning and Childcare Distance Learning Plan. 
 Engaging families and providing parenting and learning concepts through Learning Genie 

Family Engagement App. 
 Footsteps2Brilliance and Clever Kids University programs. 
 Continue enrollments for Fall. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 Community Collaboration Committee Meeting. 
 Keys to Quality – Quality Counts California meeting. 

 

 



  Educational Services Board Report 

October 2020 

  

 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 

 Students have been checking in with their instructor on a daily basis through different distance learning platforms. 

The students check-in at the beginning and end of the school day.  

 Students have taken part in multiple Virtual Field Trips. The students have visited the John Deere Museum, 

Syngenta, the Winchester Mystery House, and the National Constitution Center.  

 At the beginning of the school year, SWAA students participated in Individual Learning Plan meetings. During 

these meetings, each student was given three academic goals, which they would like to accomplish by the end of 

the school year. Currently, most of the students have already accomplished one of their goals.  

 Monthly student stakeholder meetings have been conducted to create class goals for the students to accomplish as 

a unit 

 

Colusa County Adult School 

 We have hired a new ESL & Citizenship Teacher, Sandra Munoz-Lule.  We are excited to have Sandra join our 

adult education team! 

 Adult Education Classes started on September 8th, 2020, 

 We already have our first Adult High School Diploma Recipient for the 2020-21 School year! Great job team! 

 Adult Education Classes are currently also being held at the Probation Day Reporting Center in Colusa to serve 

all students.  Distance Learning Services are also being provided at the Colusa County Jail for students. 

 

Farm to School 

 We are happy to welcome Nancy Cutter, our new Lab Supervisor to our Farm to School Team.  Nancy and Craig 

Richards are working at making the Farm to School Program Phases a reality! 

 

Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 

 Zoom meetings have taken place bi-weekly to discuss how to support the districts in a variety of ways: delivery of 

distance learning, student attendance tracking, student assessments, elementary school waivers, cohort models, 

and reviewing the district’s Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan.   
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 

 Educational Services participated in CDE webinars on how to complete the CSI state prompts required for the 

districts identified for CSI.  We have been providing ongoing technical assistant to Williams Upper Elementary 

school administrative personnel to complete the school plan and imbed the CSI prompts.   

 

Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

 Educational Services continues to provide DA to Williams Unified in the areas of curriculum, instruction, and 

student assessment data as well as the other three districts.  

 

Health Education Framework 

 Educational Services HEF team met with the tri-county consortium to plan the rollout of the HEF to the Colusa 

County educators.  We will be delivering the first professional learning session on October 8.    

 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

 LCAP is currently on hold. 

 Educational Services has reviewed all four district Learning Continuity & Attendance Plans and provided 

guidance to all four districts.  All four LCPs have been board approved and Michael West has sent an informal 



letter acknowledging the district’s leadership, their submission of the LCP, and their dedication to the students of 

Colusa County during these unprecedented times.  

 

North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 

 No report. No meetings took place. 

 

School Improvement Grant (SIG) 

 A meeting with the CDE took place to review the SIG plan and budget.  Due to COVID-19, revisions took place 

to reflect the current instructional climate.  

 

System of Support Expanded Learning Program (After School Programs) (SSELP) 

 The first County Coordinator’s meeting took place in September with two of the districts.  Guidance and technical 

support were provided to the three coordinators that participated. The CDE continues to provide the COEs with 

resources and numerous professional development opportunities to share with the Coordinators.  We are currently 

scheduling virtual site visitations.  

 

PREVENTION SERVICES 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 

 Second Step services are being provided at the Williams Elementary School, Hand in Hand, and the Children 

Centers in Williams and Colusa. The feedback from the teaches has been very positive due mostly to the need for 

early socio-emotional and behavior developments that is currently needed.  

 

Foster Youth 

 The CCOE School District Guidebooks have been completed and distributed to local school districts. The 

guidebook was also posted on the CCOE website. 

 The Prevention Services Department is currently recruiting to fill the vacant AmeriCorps Foster Youth Mentor 

position.  

 Foster Focus training have been provided for all district liaisons. The purpose of the trainings is to make district 

liaisons comfortable utilizing Foster Focus to identify foster youth students.  

 The Foster Youth Services Coordinating Program (FYSCP) and SELPA collaborated to provide a webinar series 

on 504 trainings for school districts. The Foster Youth Services Coordinating Program funded the webinar series.  

 The first district liaison meeting was held on 9/14, Brandon Kingsley, from Colusa Probation was the guest 

speaker at the meeting. During his presentation, Brandon focused on 602 foster youth and Ed. Code from the 

California Laws Relating to Minors “Red Book.” 

o The FYSCP and EHCY programs purchased red books for all school district liaisons, administrators and 

for the probation department.  

 An Organizational Meeting System (OMS) calendar has been purchased and posted to the CCOE Website. The 

OMS Calendar will allow the promotion of professional development opportunities. The OMS Calendar was 

purchased using funds from the FYSCP grant. 

o The OMS Calendar will be made available to other departments to use at no cost for the 2020-2021 

school year, but there will be a cost associated with the use of the OMS Calendar starting in 2021-2022.  

 

Homeless/McKinney-Vento  

 The mental health resources page has been posted to the CCOE website, under Ed. Services > Prevention Services 

> Mental Health Resources 

 Dr. Victor Rios presented at the district development days for Maxwell and Williams Unified School Districts. 

Dr. Rios also presented for the at-large Colusa County community on the School-to-Prison pipeline and how it 

impacts homeless and foster youth. His presentations were paid for by the Education for Homeless Children and 

Youth (EHCY) grant. 

 McKinney-Vento and Foster Youth Education trainings have been being conducted and as a result of the 

trainings, 105 school personnel members have been trained countywide since August. 

 



 

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 

 The TUPE program collaborated with the Family Action Centers of Colusa County and Literacy For All to 

provide outreach to families and community members during the community food drives throughout the county.  

 The 2020-21 California Technical Assistance Tobacco Grant was awarded for a one-year term in the amount of 

$75,000. The grant provides funding for technical assistance to be provided to public schools within Colusa 

County, which includes: Tobacco Free School policy, Tobacco-Use Prevention Education and Instruction, Staff 

Professional Development, Family and Community Engagement, Interagency Partnerships, and Cessation Support 

and Referrals. 

 California Healthy Kids Survey data results summaries were provided to school districts to show possible 

correlations between substance use, mental health, school connectedness, school engagement, and how the 

distance learning might be impacting those numbers.  

Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

 The Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program is beginning to provide education to local tobacco retailers on the 

laws and regulations. This is the first component of the grant objective to reduce underage sales of tobacco within 

Colusa County, additional efforts will be continued throughout the 2020/2021 year. 

 The School Resource Officer is aiding school districts, including home visits to promote engagement in distance 

learning and offering assistance to families. 

 



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report October 14, 2020 

 

We are happy to report that T-Mobile has officially offered us terms to lease spectrum 
for use with the Colusa County EduNet.  Our legal team has reviewed their initial legal 
proposal for the contract, and we are in the process of finalizing the agreement.   
 
We have flown and finalized an RFP to purchase LTE Infrastructure equipment (radios 
and antennas) on behalf of the districts.  We are creating MOU’s for each of the districts 
for back billing of this equipment.  CCOE must maintain all LTE infrastructure as part of 
the terms of our agreement with T-Mobile. 
 
We are still working with WUSD to rollout out EduNet equipment and make 
modifications to optimize EduNet service in the city of Williams. 
 
Maxwell, Colusa and Pierce Joint Unified are all in various stages of moving forward 
with the EduNet.  We are working with each district to move things forward for 
purchasing and creating installation plans.   
 
We are continuing the process of deploying external Wi-Fi at some of our preschool 
locations to create locations where families that do not have access to the internet can 
safely access the internet from their vehicles in the parking lots. 
 
Education Services, Special Education and Business Services have all met and decided 
to move forward with hosing Aeries directly on their servers at the end of the school 
year. 
 
We are working on deploying thermal scanners at each preschool location and at the 
CCOE Business Office once the carts arrive. 



 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Public Hearing – September 9, 2020 

 
 

Board Members Present:  Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, Tina 

Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Sheryl Parker, Chuck 
Wayman, and Michael West 

 

Ed Conrado called the Public Hearing on the Availability of Textbooks and Instructional 
Materials to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 
No public was present to comment on or ask questions about the Availability of Textbooks and 
Instructional Materials. 
 
The Public Hearing closed at 4:01 p.m.   
 
Adopted and Entered 
 
 
   
Michael P. West, County Superintendent and Secretary, 
Colusa County Board of Education 

8.1 



 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Public Hearing – September 9, 2020 

 
 

Board Members Present:  Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, Tina 

Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Sheryl Parker, Chuck 
Wayman, and Michael West 

 
Ed Conrado called the Public Hearing on the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan to order 
at 4:01 p.m. 
 
No public was present to comment on or ask questions about the Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan. 
 
The Public Hearing closed at 4:02 p.m.   
 
Adopted and Entered 
 
 
   
Michael P. West, County Superintendent and Secretary, 
Colusa County Board of Education 

8.2 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting September 9, 2020 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Lynn Bowen Burnham (until 5:40 pm), Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, 
and Barry Morrell 

 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Barbara Bair, Alex Evans, Angelina Guizar, 

Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee 
Niesen, Sheryl Parker, Chuck Wayman, and Michael West 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Ed Conrado called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, 
Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and 
made the following announcements. 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
Move 6.6 to follow 6.1.2. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
Michael West reported that the Board received an update letter from CCBE Region 4 
Representative David Patterson, which he will add to the October Board agenda. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West reported on his participation and attendance in activities, 
such as meetings with many organizations and staff regarding health and 
safety and new health orders.  Michael said that cohorts have been 
amended to 16 students, and discussion was held on that amendment 
being for cohorts of certain groups (e.g., Special Education, homeless and 
foster youth).  For early childcare education, an allowance was made for 
teachers to oversee two cohorts, which would allow an am/pm schedule.  
Michael reported on fall openings with distance learning in process 
throughout the County.  He said that Our Lady of Lourdes, Maxwell, and 

8.3 



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 9, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

Princeton schools applied for and received waivers to open TK‐6 grade 
levels under CDPH guidance.  Discussion was held on waivered schools 
opening as hybrid, in person, or split sessions, which Michael said is a 
district decision.  Michael spoke about Colusa County’s status on the 
State’s four‐tier, color‐coded classification system, as “Purple,” which is 
the most restrictive tier, and requirements to be downgraded to the next 
tier (Red).  Discussion was held on rural counties’ lack of internet access.  
Michael reported on CCOE’s PPE distribution, guidelines for school re‐
openings and protocols to be followed as much as practicable, district 
superintendents continuing to communicate closely as issues arise, safety 
evaluations taking place weekly, and CCOE closely working with Colusa 
County Public Health.  Michael reviewed safety protocols at the Village 
and preschool sites.  He said that he began COVID 19 related, limited 
access, Williams Settlement Act visits to district schools.  He spoke about 
concerns related to wildfires, including smoke issues and Public Safety 
Power Shutoffs (PSPS).  Michael reported that he had the opportunity to 
provide input to the Colusa County Board of Supervisors about the state 
of education within the county.  Discussion was held on stress related to 
distance learning, specific to Colusa County students; the education lag 
that our students are experiencing; the county as a whole doing what is 
necessary (e.g., wearing masks) to move out of COVID 19 restrictions; 
reducing class size; the possibility of small districts joining together to 
advocate for their issues; reaching out to legislative representatives; and 
the impact of distance learning on students and families.  Brenda Miller 
asked if the Board would write a letter to other small counties to 
promote banding together, and the members agreed.  Michael will speak 
with SSDA Executive Director Tim Taylor and formulate a letter on the 
Board’s behalf. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – Month Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the district Superintendents in 
August via Zoom to review guidance from the CDPH and Department of 
Education. 

Agenda item 6.6 was heard immediately following agenda item 6.1.2. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz was not in attendance. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss answered the Board’s question regarding her September 2020 
Children’s Services written report, about the level of enrollment, which she said 
is low, but that it is not currently jeopardizing funding.  Vicki said that staff are 
working on re‐opening centers. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 9, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza and Lorilee Niesen co‐presented the September 2020 
Educational Services report to the Board.  They reviewed the tenets of their 
guiding principal to increase student achievement and provide quality 
educational services to all ages through partnerships, relationships, sensitivity to 
community concerns, and providing community programs.  They highlighted 
program staff and their functions.  They reported on common elements of 
categorical programs, grants and budgets for 24 grants under the categories of 
Curriculum and Instruction, Prevention Services, Adult Education, and SWAA.  
They highlighted contracts with agencies, districts, independent contractors, and 
COEs.  They reviewed sixteen curriculum and instruction programs.  The team 
reported on changes at SWAA from 2015 to 2020 and on Prevention Services 
programs including Foster Youth Services Coordinating Programs, Homeless 
(McKinney‐Vento), TUPE, and Second Step.  They also spoke about Adult 
Education, the Farm to School program, and a plethora of stakeholders. 

5:40 pm – Lynn Bowen Burnham left the meeting. 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman answered the Board’s question regarding his September 2020 
Special Education and SELPA written report, about Coastal Buttes teaching 
delivery during COVID 19, saying that five out of seven students attend via 
distance learning, and that CBA will receive three students from a non‐public 
school tomorrow. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Agenda item 6.6 was heard immediately following agenda item 6.1.2. 

Alex Evans added to his September 2020 Technology Services written report with 
an update on the EduNet at WUSD.  He said that MUSD and CUSD will utilize the 
EduNet, and that PJUSD could possibly be on board as well.  Alex reported that 
PJUSD’s internet outage today was caused by a problem at Frontier, the district’s 
ISP provider.  Brenda Miller asked Michael West to speak to the State specifically 
about lost ADA.  Michael said that he spoke with the State Superintendent of 
Public Instruction’s liaison this morning, and that the district would need to 
submit a Request for Allowance of Attendance Due To Emergency Conditions 
(form J‐13A) to recover funds.  Alex said that once vertical assets are in place, 
there is a potential to bypass Frontier and only use that ISP as a backup 
connection.  He added that he has a plan to test pilot a CBRS in Dunnigan and 
hopefully bring the EduNet to that town as well.  Michael announced that Alex 
has been working with YCCD Chancellor Dr. Douglas Houston and the district’s IT 
department on allowing CCOE to use their EBS spectrum on the west side of the 
valley, and that Dr. Houston indicated that the district wants CCOE’s assistance 
to build the program.  Brenda Miller reported on student connectivity issues, and 
she asked who chooses the hot spot that students receive.  Alex sad the districts 
decide the hot spot that students receive.  Discussion was held on environmental 
obstructions, and Alex said that staff can assist students with re‐directing the 



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 9, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

signal.  Discussion was held on setting up small learning centers.  Alex said that 
we do not have a facility, but he is setting up Wi Fi connectivity at parking lots at 
the Village and at preschool learning sites in Williams, Arbuckle, and Colusa, and 
at the Stonyford library.  Discussion was held on students not having access to a 
car, and Michael said that he relayed this problem to SSPI Tony Thurmond, and 
in a memo to Governor Newsom.  Discussion was held on the next district to be 
online with EduNet, and Alex said that would be MUSD and then CUSD, and he 
said that all districts could potentially be online by early next year. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Brenda Miller/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried three ayes (Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell) and two absent (Lynn 
Bowen Burnham and Jason McMullan) to approve the following Consent Agenda item: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the August 12, 2020, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reiterated YCCD information that he reported under item 6.1.1. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported that during the excessive heat and smoke, staff are 
taking measures to stay healthy while working outside. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
No report. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Alissa Maas reported on assisting with supplemental learning at Children’s 
Services sites by downloading the F2B app to iPads.  She said that IAL distributed 
94 iPads to preschool students, with 100 more to be distributed later, and 250 
iPads to be distributed to elementary schools.  She said that the group is working 
on a book sharing program that will start in October, during which children in 
every classroom from infant to third grade will receive ten books each.  Alissa 
said that staff are planning a curbside Fall Festival during the month of October 
to include weekly online story times, countywide book giveaways, and books will 
be provided to local businesses to give to children.  She added that IAL will 
purchase 1,000 books for the First 5 Raising a Reader program.   



Colusa County Board of Education 
September 9, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Schedule Special Meeting for September 14, 2020 to Adopt the Learning 

Continuity and Attendance Plan 
Tina Maxwell reported that the meeting would be to adopt the LCAP2 that was 
presented during the public hearing at the beginning of this meeting. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried three 
ayes (Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell) and two absent (Lynn 
Bowen Burnham and Jason McMullan) to approve scheduling a special meeting 
on September 14, 2020, to adopt the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. 

11.2 Approve Board Resolution No. 20/21‐01 of the Colusa County Superintendent 
of Schools and the Colusa County Board of Education Regarding Sufficiency or 
Insufficiency of Instructional Materials for Fiscal Year 2020‐21 
Discussion was held on hot spots and other electronic devices not falling under 
the curriculum aspect of this resolution. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried three 
ayes (Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell) and two absent (Lynn 
Bowen Burnham and Jason McMullan) to approve Board Resolution No. 20/21‐
01 of the Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa County Board 
of Education Regarding Sufficiency or Insufficiency of Instructional Materials for 
Fiscal Year 2020‐21. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

No items added. 

12.2 Next Special Board Meeting  information 
September 14, 2020, 4:00 p.m. (if approved in item 11.1) 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

12.3 Next Regular Board Meeting information 
Gann Limits 
October 14, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 6:16 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Ed Conrado, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

ADA  Average Daily Attendance 

CBA  Coastal Buttes Academy 

CBRS  Citizens Broadband Radio Service 

CCBE  California County Boards of Education 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CDPH  California Department of Public Health 

COE  County Office of Education 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

CUSD  Colusa Unified School District 

EBS  Educational Broadband Service 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

IAL  Innovative Approach to Literacy 

ISP  Internet Service Provider 

IT  Information Technology 

LCAP2  Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan  

MUSD  Maxwell Unified School District 

PJUSD  Pierce Joint Unified School District 

PPE  Personal Protective Equipment 

PSPS  Public Safety Power Shutoff 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

SSDA  Small School Districts' Association 

SSPI  State Superintendent of Public Instruction 

SWAA  S. William Abel Academy 

TK  Transitional Kindergarten 

TUPE  Tobacco Use Prevention Education 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

YCCD  Yuba Community College District 

 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Special Meeting September 14, 2020 

Board Members Present:  Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 

Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Aaron Heinz, Tina Maxwell, Lorilee Niesen, 
and Michael West 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

Ed Conrado called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, Colusa, 
Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and made the 
following announcements. 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

4.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

5.0 NEW BUSINESS 
5.1 Approve Adoption of the 2020‐21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 

No questions or comments. 

Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes 
(Lynn Bowen Burnham, Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell) and one 
absent (Jason McMullan) to approve the 2020‐21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan 

6.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
6.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

No items added. 

6.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
Gann Limits 

   October 14, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
   345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

7.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 4:05 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 

       
Ed Conrado, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education 

8.4 



2019‐2020  

Unaudited Actuals 
Presented to the Board 

October 14, 2020 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  

 

COE Certification (Form CB/CC) ........................................................................................... 1 

Average Daily Attendance-Form A ....................................................................................... 4 

General Fund 01 ........................................................................................................................ 6 

Adult Education Fund 11 ....................................................................................................... 27 

Child Development Fund 12 ................................................................................................. 40 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 ........................................................................................................... 51 

Special Reserve Fund 17 ........................................................................................................ 59 

Foundation for Private Purpose Trust Fund 73 .................................................................... 68 

Miscellaneous Forms ............................................................................................................... 80 

       Form ESMOE ...................................................................................................................... 81 

       GANN Appropriations Limit Calculation ...................................................................... 84  

 Lottery Report................................................................................................................... 87 

       Form Asset ......................................................................................................................... 88  

Form Debt ......................................................................................................................... 89 

Indirect Cost Calculation (ICR) ..................................................................................... 90  

Summary of Interfund Activities-SIAA ........................................................................... 95 

 



COE Certification (Form CA)  

Page 1 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education FINANCIAL REPORTS 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals Form CA 

County Office of Education Certification 

UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT: 

To the Superintendent of Public Instruction: 

2019-20 UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT. This report is hereby prepared and filed by the 
County Superintendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code sections 41010 and 1628. 

Signed: Date: 
' County Superintendent/Designee 

(Original signature required) 

For additional information on the unaudited actual reports, please contact: 

For County Office of Education: 

Aaron Heinz  
Name 

Associate Superintendent Administrative Servil 
Title 

530-458-0350 
Telephone 

aheinz@ccoe.net  
E-mail Address 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: ca-c (Rev 05/30/2017) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 AM 

Page 2 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education FINANCIAL REPORTS 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals Form CA 

Summary of Unaudited Actual Data Submission 

Following is a summary of the critical data elements contained in your unaudited actual data. Since these data may have 
fiscal implications for your agency, please verify their accuracy before filing your unaudited actual financial reports. 

Form Description Value 

ESMOE Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Maintenance of Effort (MOE) Determination MOE Met 

If MOE Not Met, the 2021-22 apportionment may be reduced by the lesser of the following two percentages: 

MOE Deficiency Percentage - Based on Total Expenditures 

MOE Deficiency Percentage - Based on Expenditures Per ADA 

GANN Adjustments to Appropriations Limit Per Government Code Section 7902.1 $292,740.43 

If this amount is not zero, it represents an increase to your Appropriations Limit. The Department of 

Finance must be notified of increases within 45 days of budget adoption. 

Adjusted Appropriations Limit $496,828.70 

Appropriations Subject to Limit $496,828.70 

These amounts represent the board approved Appropriations Limit and Appropriations Subject to 

Limit pursuant to Government Code Section 7907 and EC 1629. 

ICR Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate 10.93% 
Fixed-with-carry-forward indirect cost rate for use in 2021-22, subject to CDE approval. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: ca-c (Rev 03/06/2018) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 AM 

Page 3 of 96



1 

ANNUAL ATTENDANCE (ADA)  

Page 4 of 96



2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Description  P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA 
Estimated P-2 

ADA 
Estimated 

Annual ADA 
Estimated 

Funded ADA 

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
I. County Program Alternative Education ADA 

a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole, 

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 
d. Total, County Program Alternative Education 

ADA (Sum of Lines Bla through 131c) 
2. District Funded County Program ADA 

a. County Community Schools 
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 
d. Special Education Extended Year 
e. Other County Operated Programs: 

Opportunity Schools and Full Day 
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary 
Schools 

f. County School Tuition Fund 
(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 

g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA 
(Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 

3. TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA 
(Sum of Lines Bid and B2g) 

4. Adults in Correctional Facilities 
5. County Operations Grant ADA 
6. Charter School ADA 

(Enter Charter School ADA using 
Tab C. Charter School ADA) 

12.32 

12.32 

0.14 
14.55 

14.69 

27.01 
4.05 

4,466.93 

10.67 

10.67 

0.13 
14.55 

1.55 

16.23 

26.90 
3.51 

4,466.93 

10.67 

10.67 

0.13 
14.55 

1.55 

16.23 

26.90 
3.51 

4,466.93 

25.35 

14.68 

14.55 

10.67 

10.67 

3.51 

0.13 

26.90 

16.23 

14.55 

10.67 

10.67 

3.51 

0.13 

1.55 

26.90 

16.23 

14.55 

10.67 

10.67 

3.51 

0.13 

1.55 

4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Form A 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: ada (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 5 of 96



COUNTY SERVICE FUND (01)  

Page 6 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Diff 
Column 
C & F 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

2,274,963.76 394,168.00 2,669,131.76 2,098,913.00 396,438.00 2,495,351.00 -6.5% 

0.00 1,507,718.40 1,507,718.40 0.00 1,614,407.00 1,614,407.00 7.1% 

23,931.02 3,791,426.51 3,815,357.53 22,800.00 3,944,283.00 3,967,083.00 4.0% 

519,054.39 4,102,712.91 4,621,767.30 374,679.00 4,474,757.00 4,849,436.00 4.9% 

2,817,949.17 9,796,025.82 12,613,974.99 2,496,392.00 10,429,885.00 12,926,277.00 2.5% 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299 
Costs) 7400-7499 

8) Other Outgo-Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

403,935.11 3,577,523.84 3,981,458.95 519,757.00 3,889,231.00 4,408,988.00 10.7% 

1,289,675.22 2,090,527.15 3,380,202.37 1,379,669.00 2,292,854.00 3,672,523.00 8.6% 

705,890.01 2,420,374.75 3,126,264.76 832,944.00 2,690,645.00 3,523,589.00 12.7% 

129,669.75 544,263.23 673,932.98 170,867.00 423,056.00 593,923.00 -11.9% 

665,689.14 687,507.88 1,353,197.02 640,653.00 778,818.00 1,419,471.00 4.9% 

14,509.41 63,673.96 78,183.37 28,432.00 8,000.00 36,432.00 -53.4% 

14,998.73 0.00 14,998.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

(1,087,208.81) 621,117.01 (466,091.80) (1,080,012.00) 630,662.00 (449,350.00) -3.6% 

2,137,158.56 10,004,987.82 12,142,146.38 2,492,310.00 10,713,266.00 13,205 576.00 8.8% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 680,790.61 (208,962.00) 471,828.61 4,082.00 (283,381.00) (279,299.00) -159.2% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 

b) Uses 7630-7699 

3) Contributions 8980-8999 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

5,185.07 0.00 5,185.07 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 15.7% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

(238,631.53) 238,631.53 0.00 (283,381.00) 283,381.00 0.00 0.0% 

(233,446.46)_ 238,631.53 5,185.07 (277,381.00) 283,381.00 6,000.00 15.7% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 03/10/2020) Paoe 1 Printari• R/9RP2M11 11•1(1 

Page 7 of 96



Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

06 10066 0000000 
Form 01 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

°A Diff 
Column 

C & F 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + DI) 447,344.15 29669.53 477,013.68 1273,299.0M 0.00 (273,299.00) -157.3% 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 9795 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1 c + Fld) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E+ Fl e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 9711 

Stores 9712 

Prepaid Items 9713 

All Others 9719 

b) Restricted 9740 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 

Other Commitments 9760 

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 
Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 
Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 
CCOE 0000 9760 

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 
Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 
CCOE 0000 9760 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 9780 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 

3,474,795.01 352,325.01 3,827,120.02 3,922,139.16 381,994.54 4,304,133.70 12.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3,474,795.01 352,325.01 3,827,120.02 3,922,139.16 381,994.54 4,304,133.70 12.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3,474,795.01 352,325.01 3,827,120.02 3,922,139.16 381,994.54 4,304,133.70 12.5% 

3,922,139.16 381,994.54 4,304,133.70 3,648,840.16 381,994.54 4,030,834.70 -6.3% 

350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 10,479.80 10,479.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

30,983.25 0.00 30,983.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 371,514.74 371,514.74 0.00 381,994.54 381,994.54 2.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3,283,697.91 0.00 3,283,697.91 2,988,561.16 0.00 2,988,561.16 -9.0% 
75,000.00 75,000.00 
100,000.00 100,000.00 
316,779.00 316,779.00 
100,000.00 100,000.00 
2,691,918.91 2,691,918.91 

75,000.00 75,000.00 
100,000.00 100,000.00 
316,779.00 316,779.00 
100,000.00 100,000.00 
2,396,782.16 2,396,782.16 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

607,108.00 0.00 607,108.00 660,279.00 0.00 660,279.00 8.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
Filtrr fund-a (Rev 03/10/20201 Panp 7 oinoinnnn 0.0/1 AR 

Page 8 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Diff 
Column 
C & F 

G. ASSETS 

1) Cash 
a) in County Treasury 9110 

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 

b) in Banks 9120 

c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 

2) Investments 9150 

3) Accounts Receivable 9200 

4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 

5) Due from Other Funds 9310 

6) Stores 9320 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 

8) Other Current Assets 9340 

9) TOTAL, ASSETS 

3,343,186.97 (1,171,987.71) 2,171,199.26 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

350.00 0.00 350.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

693,411.99 1,851,660.79 2,545,072.78 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

138,268.06 0.00 138,268.06 

0.00 10,479.80 10,479.80 

30,983.25 0.00 30,983.25 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

4,206,200.27 690,152.88 4,896,353.15 

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Payable 9500 

2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 

3) Due to Other Funds 9610 

4) Current Loans 9640 

5) Unearned Revenue 9650 

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 

279,357.11 123,263.32 402,620.43 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

4,704.00 0.00 4,704.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 184,895.02 184,895.02 

284,061.11 308,158.34 592,219.45 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

K. FUND EQUITY 

Ending Fund Balance, June 30 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 03/10/2020) Pane 3 Drinictri• 2/012/0(11/1 0.111 

Page 9 of 96



Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

06 10066 0000000 
Form 01 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Bud et 

Total Fund Total Fund % Diff 
Object Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E Column 

Descri.tion Resource Codes Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F) C & F 
(must agree with line F2) (G9 + H2) - (16 + J2) 3,922,139 16 381 994.54 4 304 133.70 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 4 Prinforl• szoRi9mn st,In APA 

Page 10 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

, % Diff 
Column 

C & F 

LCFF SOURCES 

Principal Apportionment 
State Aid - Current Year 8011 

Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 

Tax Relief Subventions 
Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 

Timber Yield Tax 8022 

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 

County & District Taxes 
Secured Roll Taxes 8041 

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 

Supplemental Taxes 8044 

Education Revenue Augmentation 
Fund (ERAF) 8045 

Community Redevelopment Funds 
(SB 617/699/1992) 8047 

Penalties and Interest from 
Delinquent Taxes 8048 

Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604) 
Royalties and Bonuses 8081 

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 

Less: Non-LCFF 
(50%) Adjustment 8089 

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 

1,976,457.00 0.00 1,976,457.00 1,642,049.00 0.00 1,642,049.00 -16.9% 

205,722.00 0.00 205,722.00 415,339.00 0.00 415,339.00 101.9% 

73.04 0.00 73.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

2,530.03 0.00 2,530.03 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 2.8% 

210.30 0.00 210.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

445,616.21 0.00 445,616.21 400,076.00 0.00 400,076.00 -10.2% 

34,514.85 0.00 34,514.85 28,192.00 0.00 28,192.00 -18.3% 

959.26 0.00 959.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

8,770.07 0.00 8,770.07 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 -34.5% 

(1,735.35) 0.00 (1,735.35) 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

1,436.70 0.00 1,436.70 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 -6.2% 

(718.35) 0.00 (718.35) 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

2,673,835.76 0.00 2,673,835.76 2,495,351.00 0.00 2,495,351.00 -6.7% 
LCFF Transfers 

Unrestricted LCFF Transfers - 
Current Year 0000 8091 

All Other LCFF Transfers - 
Current Year All Other 8091 

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 

Property Taxes Transfers 8097 

(4,704.00) (4,704.00) 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

(394,168.00) 394,168.00 0.00 (396,438.00) 396,438.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 03/10/2020) 1,101,1Ilnri n.nn na• 

Page 11 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Diff 
Column 
C & F 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2,274,963.76 394,168.00 2,669,131.76 2,098,913.00 396,438.00 2,495,351.00 -6.5% 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Maintenance and Operations 8110 

Special Education Entitlement 8181 

Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 

Donated Food Commodities 8221 

Flood Control Funds 8270 

Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 

FEMA 8281 

Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 

Pass-Through Revenues from 
Federal Sources 8287 

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 
Programs 3025 8290 

Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 4035 8290 

Title Ill, Part A, Immigrant Student 
Program 4201 8290 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 854,044.00 854,044.00 0.00 854,044.00 854,044.00 0.0% 

0.00 163,635.00 163,635.00 0.00 215,985.00 215,985.00 32.0% 

0.00 45,524.67 45,524.67 0.00 95,000.00 95,000.00 108.7&/0 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

1,576.00 1,576.00 610.00 610.00 -61.3% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
Pik?' fllrld-A (Rev (13/1non2n) Donn A 

Page 12 of 96



Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County 

Unaudited Actuals 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

06 10066 0000000 
Form 01 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Diff 
Column 

C & F 

Title III, Part A, English Learner 

Program 4203 8290 

Public Charter Schools Grant 
Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 

3020, 3040, 3041, 
3045, 3060, 3061, 
3110, 3150, 3155, 
3177, 3180, 3181, 
3182, 3183, 3185, 
4037, 4050, 4123, 
4124, 4126, 4127, 
4128, 4204, 5510, 

Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act 5630 8290 

Career and Technical 
Education 3500-3599 8290 

All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

21,304.25 21,304.25 30,000.00 30,000.00 40.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 421,634.48 421,634.48 0.00 418,768.00 418,768.00 -0.7% 

0.00 1,507,718.40 1,507,718.40 0.00 1,614,407.00 1,614,407.00 7.1% 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

ROC/P Entitlement 
Prior Years 6360 8319 

Special Education Master Plan 
Current Year 6500 8311 

Prior Years 6500 8319 

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 

Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 

Tax Relief Subventions 
Restricted Levies - Other 

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 

Pass-Through Revenues from 
State Sources 8587 

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2,371,653.00 2,371,653.00 2,373,980.00 2,373,980.00 0.1% 

51,573.00 51,573.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 79,397.00 79,397.00 0.00 79,423.00 79,423.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 2,690.36 2,690.36 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 160.2% 

6,562.00 0.00 6,562.00 9,800.00 0.00 9,800.00 49.3% 

6,105.78 1,992.83 8,098.61 8,000.00 3,700.00 11,700.00 44.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File-  fund-a (Rev 03/10/2020) Panp 7 Drirsbnri. ainaionqn o.ori A RA 

Page 13 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (1_3) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

')/c, Diff 
Column 
C & F 

Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 

6650, 6680, 6685, 
Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6690, 6695 8590 

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 

Career Technical Education Incentive 
Grant Program 6387 8590 

American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 

Quality Education Investment Act 7400 8590 

All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

89,659.95 89,659.95 92,669.00 92,669.00 3.4% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ' 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ' 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

11,263.24 1,194,460.37 1,205,723.61 5,000.00 1,387,511.00 1,392,511.00 15.5% 

23,931.02 3,791,426.51 3,815,357.53 22,800.00 3,944,283.00 3,967,083.00 4.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 03/10/2020) Pace 8 Prinfnri• 2P)S2/1fOri o•ln ARA 

Page 14 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Diff 
Column 
C & F 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 
County and District Taxes 

Other Restricted Levies 
Secured Roll 8615 

Unsecured Roll 8616 

Prior Years Taxes 8617 

Supplemental Taxes 8618 

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes 
Parcel Taxes 8621 

Other 8622 

Community Redevelopment Funds 
Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 

Penalties and Interest from 
Delinquent Non-LCFF 
Taxes 8629 

Sales 
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 

Sale of Publications 8632 

Food Service Sales 8634 

All Other Sales 8639 

Leases and Rentals 8650 

Interest 8660 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value 
of Investments 8662 

Fees and Contracts 
Adult Education Fees 8671 

Non-Resident Students 8672 

Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 

Interagency Services 8677 

Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 

Other Local Revenue 
Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 28,090.00 28,090.00 New 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

114,926.64 0.00 114,926.64 75,000.00 0.00 75,000.00 -34.7% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

44,000.00 52,007.40 96,007.40 20,250.00 87,893.00 108,143.00 12.6% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File.  fund-a (Rev 03/10/20201 Panp o ,nnn n.nr• it • 

Page 15 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Duff 
Column 
C & F 

(50%) Adjustment 8691 

Pass-Through Revenues From 
Local Sources 8697 

All Other Local Revenue 8699 

Tuition 8710 

All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 

Transfers of Apportionments 
Special Education SELPA Transfers 
From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 

From County Offices 6500 8792 

From JPAs 6500 8793 

ROC/P Transfers 
From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 

From County Offices 6360 8792 

From JPAs 6360 8793 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 
From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 

From County Offices All Other 8792 

From JPAs All Other 8793 

All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

718.35 0.00 718.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

166,676.46 341,621.66 508,298.12 108,324.00 344,690.00 453,014.00 -10.9% 

44,448.74 3,709,083.85 3,753,532.59 10,367.00 4,014,084.00 4,024,451.00 7.2% 

148,284.20 0.00 148,284.20 160,738.00 0.00 160,738.00 8.4% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

519,054.39 4,102,712.91 4,621,767.30 374,679.00 4,474,757.00 4,849,436.00 4.9% 

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,817,949.17 9,796,025.82 12,613,974.99 2,496,392.00 10,429,885.00 12,926,277.00 2.5% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 03/10/20201 Parip ln a MO innnr, o.on ARA 

Page 16 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Duff 
Column 
C & F 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

40,930.11 2,122,615.93 2,163,546.04 57,628.00 2,316,247.00 2,373,875.00 9.7% 

0.00 1,172,350.76 1,172,350.76 16,150.00 1,216,908.00 1,233,058.00 5.2% 

363,005.00 214,820.30 577,825.30 445,979.00 247,371.00 693,350.00 20.0% 

0.00 67,736.85 67,736.85 0.00 108,705.00 108,705.00 60.5% 

403,935.11 3,577,523.84 3,981,458.95 519,757.00 3,889,231.00 4,408,988.00 10.7% 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 

Classified Support Salaries 2200 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 

Other Classified Salaries 2900 

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

0.00 1,291,541.94 1,291,541.94 0.00 1,325,957.00 1,325,957.00 2.7% 

212,433.79 256,556.74 468,990.53 214,676.00 350,743.00 565,419.00 20.6% 

478,716.59 155,877.91 634,594.50 493,528.00 192,069.00 685,597.00 8.0% 

590,016.60 167,956.63 757,973.23 671,465.00 174,243.00 845,708.00 11.6% 

8,508.24 218,593.93 227,102.17 0.00 249,842.00 249,842.00 10.0% 

1,289,675.22 2,090,527.15 3,380,202.37 1,379,669.00 2,292,854.00 3,672,523.00 8.6% 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 3101-3102 

PERS 3201-3202 

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

68,367.18 1,026,495.08 1,094,862.26 85,790.00 1,104,047.00 1,189,837.00 8.7% 

252,636.43 390,287.43 642,923.86 315,734.00 538,177.00 853,911.00 32.8% 

99,755.56 204,206.26 303,961.82 111,768.00 236,524.00 348,292.00 14.6% 

224,040.08 608,387.59 832,427.67 252,334.00 617,920.00 870,254.00 4.5% 

743.56 5,265.49 6,009.05 836.00 7,956.00 8,792.00 46.3% 

50,347.24 167,720.62 218,067.86 56,482.00 186,021.00 242,503.00 11.2% 

9,999.96 18,012.28 28,012.24 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 -64.3% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

705,890.01 2,420,374.75 3,126,264.76 832,944.00 2,690,645.00 3,523,589.00 12.7% 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 

Materials and Supplies 4300 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

82,690.74 401,769.77 484,460.51 135,329.00 308,540.00 443,869.00 -8.4% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
rilm• fi inrl_n Maw f11/1(1/91"19(11 

Page 17 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Diff 
Column 
C & F 

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 

Food 4700 

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

46,979.01 28,156.22 75,135.23 35,538.00 52,629.00 88,167.00 17.3% 

0.00 114,337.24 114,337.24 0.00 61,887.00 61,887.00 -45.9% 

129,669.75 544,263.23 673,932.98 170,867.00 423,056.00 593,923.00 -11.9% 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 5100 

Travel and Conferences 5200 

Dues and Memberships 5300 

Insurance 5400 - 5450 

Operations and Housekeeping 
Services 5500 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and 
Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 

Professional/Consulting Services and 
Operating Expenditures 5800 

Communications 5900 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER 
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

61,953.90 81,825.90 143,779.80 86,133.00 104,164.00 190,297.00 32.4% 

31,921.18 4,092.00 36,013.18 32,522.00 2,551.00 35,073.00 -2.6% 

75,076.14 0.00 75,076.14 80,000.00 0.00 80,000.00 6.6% 

91,396.75 4,378.70 95,775.45 105,000.00 11,586.00 116,586.00 21.7% 

85,617.82 21,027.42 106,645.24 91,187.00 22,434.00 113,621.00 6.5% 

(71,040.65) 71,040.65 0.00 (69,150.00) 69,150.00 0.00 0.0% 

(294,109.61) (2,127.61) (296,237.22) (289,726.00) 0.00 (289,726.00) -2.2% 

557,340.93 492,833.77 1,050,174.70 470,815.00 559,495.00 1,030,310.00 -1.9% 

127,532.68 14,437.05 141,969.73 133,872.00 9,438.00 143,310.00 0.9% 

665,689.14 687,507.88 1,353,197.02 640,653.00 778,818.00 1,419,471.00 4.9% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 

nple-inris 

Page 18 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Duff 
Column 
C & F 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 6100 

Land Improvements 6170 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 

Books and Media for New School Libraries 
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 

Equipment 6400 

Equipment Replacement 6500 

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 5,340.00 5,340.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 9,417.85 9,417.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

22.00 48,916.11 48,938.11 28,432.00 8,000.00 36,432.00 -25.6% 

14,487.41 0.00 14,487.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

14,509.41 63,673.96 78,183.37 28,432.00 8,000.00 36,432.00 -53.4% 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 
Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict 
Attendance Agreements 7110 

State Special Schools 7130 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 

Payments to County Offices 7142 

Payments to JPAs 7143 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 
To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 

To County Offices 7212 

To JPAs 7213 

Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments 
To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 

To County Offices 6500 7222 

To JPAs 6500 7223 

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments 
To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 

To County Offices 6360 7222 

To JPAs 6360 7223 

Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 

All Other Transfers 7281-7283 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 

Page 19 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Diff 
Column 
C & F 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 

Debt Service 
Debt Service - Interest 7438 

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

707.42 0.00 707.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 I -100.0% 

14,291.31 0.00 14,291.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

14,998.73 0.00 14,998.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 

Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

(621,117.01) 621,117.01 0.00 (630,662.00) 630,662.00 0.00 0.0% 

(466,091.80) 0.00 (466,091.80) (449,350.00) 0.00 (449,350.00) -3.6% 

(1,087,208.81) 621,117.01 (466,091.80) (1,080,012.00) 630,662.00 (449,350.00) -3.6% 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,137,158.56 10,004,987.82 12,142,146.38 2,492,310.00 10,713,266.00 13,205,576.00 8.8% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
PHA.fi,nr1-a /Paw nlm non9m D.-Arm I A 

Page 20 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(Di (E) (F) 

% Diff 
Column 

C & F 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

5,185.07 0.00 5,185.07 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 15.7% 

5,185.07 0.00 5,185.07 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 15.7% 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: Child Development Fund 7611 

To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 

To: State School Building Fund/ 
County School Facilities Fund 7613 

To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

State Apportionments 
Emergency Apportionments 8931 

, Proceeds 

Proceeds from Disposal of 
Capital Assets 8953 

Other Sources 
County School Bldg Aid 8961 

Transfers from Funds of 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 
Proceeds from Certificates 
of Participation 8971 

Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 

All Other Financing Sources 8979 

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

USES 

Transfers of Funds from 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 

Page 21 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Object 

Object 
Description Resource Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% D i ff 
Column 
C & F 

All Other Financing Uses 7699 

(d) TOTAL, USES 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 

(238,631.53) 238,631.53 0.00 (283,381.00) 283,381.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

(238,631.531 238,631.53 0.00 (283,381.00) 283,381.00 0.00 0.0% 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
(a-b+c-d+e) (233,446.46) 238,631.53 5,185.07 (277,381.00) 283,381.00 6,000.00 15.7% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 

Page 22 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Function 

Object 
Description Function Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Diff 
Column 

C & F 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

2,274,963.76 394,168.00 2,669,131.76 2,098,913.00 396,438.00 2,495,351.00 -6.5% 

0.00 1,507,718.40 1,507,718.40 0.00 1,614,407.00 1,614,407.00 7.1% 

23,931.02 3,791,426.51 3,815,357.53 22,800.00 3,944,283.00 3,967,083.00 4.0% 

519,054.39 4,102,712.91 4,621,767.30 374,679.00 4,474,757.00 4,849,436.00 4.9% 

2,817,949.17 9,796,025.82 12,613_974.99 2,496,392.00 10,429,885.00 12,926,277.00 2.5% 

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999) 

1) Instruction 1000-1999 

2) Instruction - Related Services 2000-2999 

3) Pupil Services 3000-3999 

4) Ancillary Services 4000-4999 

5) Community Services 5000-5999 

6) Enterprise 6000-6999 

7) General Administration 7000-7999 

8) Plant Services 8000-8999 

Except 
9) Other Outgo 9000-9999 7600-7699 

10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

64,017.24 5,590,915.48 5,654,932.72 125,839.00 6,030,942.00 6,156,781.00 8.9% 

655,607.26 1,456,548.72 2,112,155.98 807,971.00 1,665,194.00 2,473,165.00 17.1% 

106,849.03 1,984,025.43 2,090,874.46 108,104.00 2,024,573.00 2,132,677.00 2.0% 

19,237.12 0.00 19,237.12 9,457.00 52,329.00 61,786.00 221.2% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

1,079,194.40 737,857.26 1,817,051.66 1,226,074.00 695,266.00 1,921,340.00 5.7% 

197,254.78 235,640.93 432,895.71 214,865.00 244,962.00 459,827.00 6.2% 

14,998.73 0.00 14,998.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

2,137,158.56 10 004,987.82 12,142,146.38 2,492,310.00 10,713,266.00 13,205,576.00 8.8% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B10) 680,790.61 (208,962.00) 471,828.61 4,082.00 (283,381.00) (279,299.00) -159.2% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 

b) Uses 7630-7699 

3) Contributions 8980-8999 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

5,185.07 0.00 5,185.07 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 15.7% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

(238,631.53) 238,631.53 0.00 (283,381.00) 283,381.00 0.00 0.0% 

(233,446.46) 238,631.53 5,185.07 (277,381.00) 283,381.00 6,000.00 15.7% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 

Page 23 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Function 

Object 
Description Function Codes Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. A + B 

(A) (B) (C) 

Total Fund 
Unrestricted Restricted col. D + E 

(D) (E) (F) 

% Diff 
Column 
C & F 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 447,344.15 29,669.53 477,013.68 (273,299.00) 0.00 (273,299.00) -157.3% 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 -Unaudited 9791 

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 

c) As of July 1 -Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 9795 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Flc + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fl e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 9711 

Stores 9712 

Prepaid Items 9713 

All Others 9719 

b) Restricted 9740 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 

Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 9760 

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 

CCOE 0000 9760 

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 

CCOE 0000 9760 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 9780 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 

3,474,795.01 352,325.01 3,827,120.02 3,922,139.16 381,994.54 4,304,133.70 12.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3,474,795.01 352,325.01 3,827,120.02 3,922,139.16 381,994.54 4,304,133.70 12.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3,474,795.01 352,325.01 3,827,120.02 3,922,139.16 381,994.54 4,304,133.70 12.5% 

3,922,139.16 381,994.54 4,304,133.70 3,648,840.16 381,994.54 4,030,834.70 -6.3% 

350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 10,479.80 10,479.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

30,983.25 0.00 30,983.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 371,514.74 371,514.74 0.00 381,994.54 381,994.54 2.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3,283,697.91 0.00 3,283,697.91 2,988,561.16 0.00 2,988,561.16 -9.0% 

75,000.00 75,000.00 

100,000.00 100,000.00 

316,779.00 316,779.00 

100,000.00 100,000.00 

2,691,918.91 2,691,918.91 

75,000.00 75000.00 

100,000.00 100,000.00 

316,779.00 316,779.00 

100,000.00 100,000.00 

2,396,782.16 2,396,782.16 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

607,108.00 0.00 607,108.00 660,279.00 0.00 660,279.00 8.8% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 

Page 24 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 

Expenditures by Function 

Description Function Codes 
Object 
Codes 

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 2020-21 Budget 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(A) (B) 

Total Fund 
col. A + B 

(C) 
Unrestricted 

(D) 
Restricted 

(E) 

Total Fund 
col. D + E 

(F) 

% Diff 
Column 
C & F 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 , . 

Page 25 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education County School Service Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 01 

Resource Description 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

5320 Child Nutrition: Child Care Food Program (CCFP) Claims-Centers an 2,054.74 12,534.54 

6512 Special Ed: Mental Health Services 292,873.00 292,873.00 

6520 Special Ed: Project Workability I LEA 11,160.00 11,160.00 

7810 Other Restricted State 65,427.00 65,427.00 

Total, Restricted Balance 371,514.74 381,994.54 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:30 AM Page 26 of 96



ADULT EDUCATION FUND (11)  

II 

Page 27 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 11 

,Descri Resource Codes Ola'ect Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

4,704.00 0.00 -100.0% 

38,905.00 31,624.00 -18.7% 

6,919.00 8,753.00 26.5% 

183,089.57 169,227.00 -7.6% 

233 617.57 209 604.00 -10.3% 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299, 
Costs) 7400-7499 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

117,691.54 62,046.00 -47.3% 

17,388.98 18,250.00 5.0% 

33,185.05 35,989.00 8.4% 

33,708.43 64,086.00 90.1% 

19,509.69 20,145.00 3.3% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8,622.92 9,088.00 5.4% 

230 106.61 209 604.00 -8.9% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 3,510.96 0.00 -100.0% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 8930-8979 

b) Uses 7630-7699 

3) Contributions 8980-8999 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 28 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 11 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + 04) 3,510.96 0.00 . -100.0% 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 9795 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fie) 
Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 9711 

Stores 9712 

Prepaid Items 9713 

All Others 9719 

b) Restricted 9740 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 

Other Commitments 9760 

d) Assigned 
Other Assignments 9780 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 

127,418.09 130,929.05 2.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

127,418.09 130,929.05 2.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

127,418.09 130,929.05 2.8% 

130,929.05 130,929.05 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

130,929.05 130,929.05 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 29 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 11 

Descri .tion Resource Codes 01Yect Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 Percent 
Bud et Difference 

G. ASSETS 
1) Cash 

a) in County Treasury 9110 88,395.46 

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00 

b) in Banks 9120 0.00 

c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00 

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00 

2) Investments 9150 0.00 

3) Accounts Receivable 9200 46,401 90 

4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00 

5) Due from Other Funds 9310 4,704.00 

6) Stores 9320 0.00 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00 

8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00 

9) TOTAL. ASSETS 139 501.36 

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00 

2 TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Payable 9500 2,624.52 

2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00 

3) Due to Other Funds 9610 5,947.79 

4) Current Loans 9640 

5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00 

6) TOTAL LIABILITIES 8572.31 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00 

2) TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00 

K. FUND EQUITY 

Ending Fund Balance, June 30 
must a.ree with line F2 G9 + H2 - 16 + J2 130 929.05 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 30 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 11 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

LCFF SOURCES 

LCFF Transfers 

LCFF Transfers - Current Year 

LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 

8091 

8099 

4,704.00 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4,704.00 0.00 -100.0% 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues from 
Federal Sources 

Career and Technical Education 

All Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

3500-3599 

All Other 

8285 

8287 

8290 

8290 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

38,905.00 31,624.00 -18.7% 

38,905.00 31,624.00 -18.7% 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 

Pass-Through Revenues from 
State Sources 

Adult Education Program 

All Other State Revenue 

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 

6391 

All Other 

8311 

8319 

8587 

8590 

8590 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

6,919.00 8,753.00 26.5% 

6,919.00 8,753.00 26.5% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 4 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 31 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 11 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

Sales 
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 

Leases and Rentals 8650 

Interest 8660 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 

Fees and Contracts 
Adult Education Fees 8671 

Interagency Services 8677 

Other Local Revenue 

All Other Local Revenue 8699 

Tuition 8710 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

165,747.09 146,766.00 -11.5% 

17,342.48 22,461.00 29.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

183,089.57 169,227.00 -7.6% 

TOTAL, REVENUES 233,617.57 209,604.00 -10.3% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 5 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 32 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 11 

Descri .tion Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 

Certificated Supervisors and Administrators' Salaries 1300 

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

96,365.26 39,652.00 -58.9% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

21,326.28 22,394.00 5.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

117,691.54 62,046.00 -47.3% 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 

Classified Support Salaries 2200 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 

Other Classified Salaries 2900 

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

17,388.98 18,250.00 5.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

17,388.98 18,250.00 5.0% 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 3101-3102 

PERS 3201-3202 

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

16,741.70 19,365.00 15.7% 

3,138.18 4,144.00 32.1% 

3,016.50 3,047.00 1.0% 

6,017.70 6,978.00 16.0% 

286.86 44.00 -84.7% 

3,984.11 2,411.00 -39.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

33,185.05 35,989.00 8.4% 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 

Materials and Supplies 4300 

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

1,151.01 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

22,420.42 48,362.00 115.7% 

10,137.00 15,724.00 55.1% 

33,708.43 64,086.00 90.1% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/20201 Page 6 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 33 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 11 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 5100 

Travel and Conferences 5200 

Dues and Memberships 5300 

Insurance 5400-5450 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 

Professional/Consulting Services and 
Operating Expenditures 5800 

Communications 5900 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4,432.01 6,188.00 39.6% 

239.26 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

658.09 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

12,956.75 12,957.00 0.0% 

1,223.58 1,000.00  

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

19,509.69 20,145.00 3.3% 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 6100 

Land Improvements 6170 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 

Equipment 6400 

Equipment Replacement 6500 

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 

Payments to County Offices 7142 

Payments to JPAs 7143 

Other Transfers Out 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 
To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 

To County Offices 7212 

To JPAs 7213 

Debt Service 

Debt Service - Interest 7438 

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 7 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 34 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 11 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

8,622.92 9,088.00 5.4% 

8,622.92 9,088.00 5.4% 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 230,106.61 209,604.00_ -8.9% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 8 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 35 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 11 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: State School Building Fund/ 
County School Facilities Fund 7613 

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 

Proceeds from Certificates 
of Participation 8971 

Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 

All Other Financing Sources 8979 

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

USES 

All Other Financing Uses 7699 

(d) TOTAL, USES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
(a-b+c-d+e) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 9 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 36 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Function Form 11 

Descri tion Function Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL REVENUES 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

4,704.00 0.00 -100.0% 

38,905.00 31,624.00 -18.7% 

6,919.00 8,753.00 26.5% 

183,089.57 169,227.00 -7.6% 

233,617.57 209 604.00 -10.3% 

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999) 

1) Instruction 

2) Instruction - Related Services 

3) Pupil Services 

4) Ancillary Services 

5) Community Services 

6) Enterprise 

7) General Administration 

8) Plant Services 

9) Other Outgo 

10 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7000-7999 

8000-8999 

9000-9999 
Except 

7600-7699 

148,826.79 117,028.00 -21.4% 

58,476.57 69,531.00 18.9% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8,622.92 9,088.00 5.4% 

14,180.33 13,957.00 -1.6% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

230 106.61 209 604.00 -8.9% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B10) 3,510.96 0.00 -100.0% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 37 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Function Form 11 

Descri•tion Function Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budgt 

Percent 
Difference 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCi• D4 3510.96 0.00 -100.0% 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 

c) As of July 1 -Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 9795 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Flc + Fld) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fl e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 9711 

Stores 9712 

Prepaid Items 9713 

All Others 9719 

b) Restricted 9740 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 

Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 9760 

d) Assigned 
Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 9780 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 

127,418.09 130,929.05 2.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

127,418.09 130,929.05 2.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

127,418.09 130,929.05 2.8% 

130,929.05 130,929.05 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

130,929.05 130,929.05 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 38 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Adult Education Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 11 

Resource Description 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

6015 Adults in Correctional Facilities 25,931.27 25,931.27 

6391 Adult Education Program 104,997.78 104,997.78 

Total, Restricted Balance 130,929.05 130,929.05 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM Page 39 of 96



CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND (12)  

Page 40 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Child Development Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 12 

Descri_ption Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Bud_get 

Percent 
Difference 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 

5) TOTAL REVENUES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3,541,336.52 3,316,918.00 -6.3% 

3,677,850.31 3,763,300.00 2.3% 

126,193.43 206,247.00 63.4% 

7,345,380.26 7286465.00 -0.8% 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299, 
Costs) 7400-7499 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 

9 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

1,183,349.41 1,198,056.00 1.2% 

1,631,239.66 1,583,038.00 -3.0% 

1,148,646.07 1,282,873.00 11.7% 

418,213.06 177,879.00 -57.5% 

2,409,103.88 2,574,357.00 6.9% 

99,371.22 30,000.00 -69.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

457,468.87 440,262.00 -3.8% 

7 347 392.17 7 286 465.00 -0.8% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (2,011.91) 0.00 -100.0% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 

b) Uses 7630-7699 

3) Contributions 8980-8999 

4) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00/n 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 41 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Child Development Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 12 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

BALANCE (C + D4) 12,011.91), 0.00 -100.0% 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 -Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Flc + Fld) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fie) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

Child Development Program Requirements 

Child Development Program Requirements 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

0000 

0000 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9760 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

82,427.19 80,415.28 -2.4% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

82,427.19 80,415.28 -2.4% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

82,427.19 80,415.28 -2.4% 

80,415.28 80,415.28 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

5,431.80 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

18,755.91 18,755.91 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

56,227.57 61,659.37 9.7% 

56,227.57 

61,659.37 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 42 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Child Development Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 12 

Descri. ion Resource Codes Ob-ect Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 Percent 
Bud et Difference 

G. ASSETS 

1) Cash 

a) in County Treasury 9110 336,475.09 

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00 

b) in Banks 9120 0.00 

c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00 

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00 

2) Investments 9150 0.00 

3) Accounts Receivable 9200 633,121.09 

4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00 

5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00 

6) Stores 9320 0.00 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 5,431.80 

8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00 

9) TOTAL, ASSETS 975,027.98 

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00 

2 TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Payable 9500 295,227.21 

2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00 

3) Due to Other Funds 9610 132,320.27 

4) Current Loans 9640 

5) Unearned Revenue 9650 467,065.22 

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 894 612.70 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00 

2 TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00 

K. FUND EQUITY 

Ending Fund Balance, June 30 

(must agree with line F2)_ (G9 + H2) - (16 + J2) 80,415.28 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 43 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Child Development Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 12 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 

Title I, Part A, Basic 

All Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

3010 

All Other 

8220 

8285 

8290 

8290 

412,525.87 332,060.00 -19.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3,128,810.65 2,984,858.00 -4.6% 

3,541,336.52 3,316,918.00 -6.3% 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Child Development Apportionments 

Pass-Through Revenues from 
State Sources 

State Preschool 

All Other State Revenue 

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 

6105 

All Other 

8520 

8530 

8587 

8590 

8590 

69,097.97 9,032.00 -86.9% 

671,237.24 734,448.00 9.4% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

1,705,600.79 1,745,418.00 2.3% 

1,231,914.31 1,274,402.00 3.4% 

3,677,850.31 3,763,300.00 2.3% 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

Sales 
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 

Food Service Sales 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 

Child Development Parent Fees 

Interagency Services 

All Other Fees and Contracts 

Other Local Revenue 

All Other Local Revenue 

All Other Transfers In from All Others 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

8631 

8634 

8660 

8662 

8673 

8677 

8689 

8699 

8799 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

5,833.08 0.00 -100.0% 

13,169.39 14,143.00 7.4% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7,782.00 4,800.00 -38.3% 

39,864.65 95,404.00 139.3% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

59,544.31 91,900.00 54.3% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

126,193.43 206,247.00 63.4% 

TOTAL, REVENUES 7,345,380.26 7,286,465.00 -0.8% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/20201 Page 4 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 44 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Child Development Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 12 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference - 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers Salaries 1100 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

925,601.30 933,277.00 0.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

257,748.11 264,779.00 2.7% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

1,183,349.41 1,198,056.00 1.2% 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 

Classified Support Salaries 2200 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 

Other Classified Salaries 2900 

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

673,169.69 711,261.00 5.7% 

32,249.92 0.00 -100.0% 

284,003.73 271,714.00 -4.3% 

241,344.62 243,782.00 1.0% 

400,471.70 356,281.00 -11.0% 

1,631,239.66 1,583,038.00 -3.0% 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 3101-3102 

PERS 3201-3202 

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

262,545.68 414,617.00 57.9% 

347,135.47 361,498.00 4.1% 

153,489.27 134,731.00 -12.2% 

297,778.03 289,583.00 -2.8% 

5,310.87 1,377.00 -74.1% 

82,386.75 81,067.00 -1.6% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

1,148,646.07 1,282,873.00 11.7% 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 

Materials and Supplies 4300 

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 

Food 4700 

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

283,267.23 173,627.00 -38.7% 

44,299.85 3,702.00 -91.6% 

90,645.98 550.00 -99.4% 

418,213.06 177,879.00 -57.5% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 5 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 45 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Child Development Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 12 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 5100 

Travel and Conferences 5200 

Dues and Memberships 5300 

Insurance 5400-5450 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 

Professional/Consulting Services and 
Operating Expenditures 5800 

Communications 5900 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

36,867 96 57,971.00 57.2% 

12,688.28 15,141.00 19.3% 

3,472.00 1,732.00 -50.1% 

120,008.85 126,904.00 5.7% 

91,071.88 112,526.00 23.6% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

283,280.47 276,769.00 -2.3% 

1,785,354.57 1,878,367.00 5.2% 

76,359.87 104,947.00 37.4% 

2,409,103.88 2,574,357.00 6.9% 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 6100 

Land Improvements 6170 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 

Equipment 6400 

Equipment Replacement 6500 

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

99,371.22 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 30,000.00 New 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

99,371.22 30,000.00 -69.8% 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Other Transfers Out 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 

Debt Service 

Debt Service - Interest 7438 

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

457,468.87 440,262.00  

457,468.87 440,262.00 -3.8% 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 7,347,392.17 7,286,465.00 -0.8% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 6 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 46 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Child Development Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 12 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

From: General Fund 

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

8911 

8919 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

7619 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 

Proceeds from Certificates 
of Participation 

Proceeds from Capital Leases 

All Other Financing Sources 

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 

8971 

8972 

8979 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

USES 

All Other Financing Uses 

(d) TOTAL, USES 

7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 

8980 

8990 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
(a-b+c-d+e) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 7 Printed: 8/28/2020 831 AM 

Page 47 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Child Development Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Function Form 12 

Description Function Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL REVENUES 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3,541,336.52 3,316,918.00 -6.3% 

3,677,850.31 3,763,300.00 2.3% 

126,193.43 206,247.00 63.4% 

 ±34380.26 7,286 465.00 -0.8% 

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999) 

1) Instruction 

2) Instruction - Related Services 

3) Pupil Services 

4) Ancillary Services 

5) Community Services 

6) Enterprise 

7) General Administration 

8) Plant Services 

9) Other Outgo 

10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7000-7999 

8000-8999 

9000-9999 
Except 

7600-7699 

2,356,102.47 2,573,781.00 9.2% 

3,217,305.18 3,364,970.00 4.6% 

699,844.23 413,335.00 -40.9% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

457,468.87 440,262.00 -3.8% 

616,671.42 494,117.00 -19.9% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7 347 392.17 7,286,465.00 -0.8% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B10 (2,011.91), 0.00 -100.0% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 48 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Child Development Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Function Form 12 

Description Function Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + 04 (2,011.91) 0.00 -100.0% 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1 e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 

Child Development Program Requirements 

Child Development Program Requirements 

d) Assigned 
Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

0000 

0000 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9760 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

82,427.19 80,415.28 -2.4% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

82,427.19 80,415.28 -2.4% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

82,427.19 80,415.28 -2.4% 

80,415.28 80,415.28 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

5,431.80 0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

18,755.91 18,755.91 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

56,227.57 61,659.37 9,7% 

56, 227.57 

61,659.37 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 49 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Child Development Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 12 

Resource Description 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

5320 Child Nutrition: Child Care Food Program (CCFP) Claims-Cen 5,409.38 5,409.38 

5350 Child Nutrition: CCFP Family Day Care Sponsor Adnnin 3,264.66 3,264.66 

6130 Child Development: Center-Based Reserve Account 1.96 1.96 

6131 Child Development: Resource & Referral Reserve Account 5,368.25 5,368.25 

6132 Child Development: Alternative Payment Reserve Account 4,711.66 4,711.66 

Total, Restricted Balance 18,755.91 18,755.91 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM Page 50 of 96



Forest Reserve Fund (16)  

Page 51 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Forest Reserve Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 16 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

39,457.17 41,354.00 4.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

648.85 200.00 -69.2% 

40,106.02 41 554.00 3.6% _ 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299, 
Costs) 7400-7499 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 

9) TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

36,482.52 35,554.00 -2.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

36,482.52 35,554.00 -2.5% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 3 623.50 6,000.00 65.6% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 

b) Uses 7630-7699 

3) Contributions 8980-8999 

4) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

5,185.07 6,000.00 15.7% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

(5,185.07) (6,000.00) 15.7% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 52 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Forest Reserve Fund 06 10066 000000C 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 16 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4) (1,561.57) 0.00 -100.0% 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 -Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Flc + Fld) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fie) 
Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 

, 

Other Commitments 

Distributions due to other LEA \x27s for 19-21 

Amounts due to other LEAV275 for Forest F 

d) Assigned 
Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

0000 

0000 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9760 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

41,353.83 39,792.26 -3.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

41,353.83 39,792.26 -3.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

41,353.83 39,792.26 -3.8% 

39,792.26 39,792.26 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

39,792.26 39,792.26 0.0% 

39, 792.26 

39,792.26 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 53 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Forest Reserve Fund 06 10066 000000C 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 16 

Descri ion Resource Codes Ob'ect Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 Percent 
Bud et Difference 

G. ASSETS 
1) Cash 

a) in County Treasury 9110 39,792.26 

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00 

b) in Banks 9120 0.00 

c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00 

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00 

2) Investments 9150 0.00 

3) Accounts Receivable 9200 0.00 

4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00 

5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00 

6) Stores 9320 0.00 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00 

8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00 

9) TOTAL. ASSETS 39792.26 

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00 

2 TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Payable 9500 0.00 

2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00 

3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00 

4) Current Loans 9640 

5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00 

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 0.00 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00 

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00 

K. FUND EQUITY 

Ending Fund Balance, June 30 
(must agree with line F2) (G9 + H2) -(16 + J2) 39,792.26 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 54 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Forest Reserve Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 16 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Forest Reserve Funds 8260 

Pass-Through Revenues from 
Federal Sources 8287 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

39,457.17 41,354.00 4.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

39,457.17 41,354.00 4.8% 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

Interest 8660 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

648.85 200.00 -69.2% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

648.85 200.00 -69.2% 

TOTAL, REVENUES 40,106.02 41,554.00 3.6% 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Other Transfers Out 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 
To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 

To County Offices 7212 

To JPAs 7213 

All Other Transfers 7281-7283 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

36,482.52 35,554.00 -2.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

36,482.52 35,554.00 -2.5% 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 36,482.52 35,554.00 -2.5% 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

5,185.07 6,000.00 15.7% 

5,185.07 6,000.00 15.7% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2,0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 4 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 55 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Forest Reserve Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Function Form 16 

Descri.tion Function Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

39,457.17 

0.00 

41,354.00 4.8% 

0.00 0.0% 

648.85 200.00 -69.2% 

40,106.02 41,554.00 3.6% 

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999) 

1) Instruction 

2) Instruction - Related Services 

3) Pupil Services 

4) Ancillary Services 

5) Community Services 

6) Enterprise 

7) General Administration 

8) Plant Services 

9) Other Outgo 

10) TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7000-7999 

8000-8999 

9000-9999 
Except 

7600-7699 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

36,482.52 35,554.00 -2.5% 

36,482.52 35,554.00 -2.5% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B10) 3,623.50 6,000.00 65.6% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

5,185.07 6,000.00 15.7% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

(5,185.07) (6,000.00) 15.7% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 56 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Forest Reserve Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Function Form 16 

Description Function Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4) (1,561.57) 0.00 -100.0% 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + Fld) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fie) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 

Distributions due to other LEA\x27s for 19-2( 

Amounts due to other LEA\x27s for Forest R 

d) Assigned 
Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

0000 

0000 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9760 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

41,353.83 39,792.26 -3.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

41,353.83 39,792.26 -3.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

41,353.83 39,792.26 -3.8% 

39,792.26 39,792.26 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00  

39,792.26 39,792.26 0.0% 

39,792.26 

39,792.26 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 2 Printed: 8/2E1/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 57 of 96



Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County 

Resource Description 

Total, Restricted Balance 

Unaudited Actuals 
Forest Reserve Fund 

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail 
06 10066 0000000 

Form 16 

 

2019-20 2020-21 
Unaudited Actuals Budget 

 

 

0.00 0.00 

 

    

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM Page 58 of 96



SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 17 

Page 59 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 17 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

25,291.41 18,000.00 -28.8% 

25,291.41 18,000.00 -28.8% 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299, 
Costs) 7400-7499 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 25,291.41 18,000.00 -28.8% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 

b) Uses 7630-7699 

3) Contributions 8980-8999 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 60 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 06 10066 000000C 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 17 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference _ 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 25,291.41 18,000.00 -28.8% 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Flc + Fld) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fl e) 
Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

CCOE Deferred Maintenance/Other Econorr 

CCOE Deferred Maintenance/Other Econorr 

d) Assigned 
Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

0000 

0000 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9760 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

854,619.10 879,910.51 3.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

854,619.10 879,910.51 3.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

854,619.10 879,910.51 3.0% 

879,910.51 897,910.51 2.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

879,910.51 897,910_51 2.0% 

879,910.51 

897,910.51 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 61 of 96



0.00 

5,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County 

Unaudited Actuals 
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 

Expenditures by Object 
06 10066 0000000 

Form 17 

2019-20 
Unaudited Actuals 

G. ASSETS 

1) Cash 

a) in County Treasury 9110 874,910.51 

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00 

b) in Banks 9120 0.00 

c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00 

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00 

2) Investments 9150 

3) Accounts Receivable 9200 

4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 

5) Due from Other Funds 9310 

6) Stores 9320 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 

8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00 

9) TOTAL. ASSETS 879 910.51 

2020-21 Percent 
Bud et Difference 

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00 

2 TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Payable 9500 0.00 

2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 

3) Due to Other Funds 9610 

4) Current Loans 9640 

5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00 

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 0.00 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00 

2 TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00 

K. FUND EQUITY 

Ending Fund Balance, June 30 

(must agree with line F2) (G9 + H2) - (16 + J2) 879 910.51 

0.00 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/20201 Page 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 62 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 06 10066 000000C 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 17 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

Sales 
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 

Interest 8660 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

25,291.41 18,000.00 -28.8% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

25,291.41 18,000.00 -28.8% 

TOTAL, REVENUES 25,291.41 18,000.00 -28.8% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 4 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 63 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 06 10066 000000( 
Colusa County Expenditures by Object Form 1i 

Description Resource Codes 01?ject Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

From: General Fund/CSSF 8912 

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: General Fund/CSSF 7612 

To: State School Building Fund/ 
County School Facilities Fund 7613 

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
(a-b+e) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 5 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 64 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Function Form 17 

Description Function Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

25,291.41 18,000.00 -28.8% 

25,291.41 18,000.00 -28.8% 

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999) 

1) Instruction 

2) Instruction - Related Services 

3) Pupil Services 

4) Ancillary Services 

5) Community Services 

6) Enterprise 

7) General Administration 

8) Plant Services 

9) Other Outgo 

10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7000-7999 

8000-8999 

9000-9999 
Except 

7600-7699 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B10) 25,291.41 18,000.00 -28.8% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 65 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenditures by Function Form 17 

Description Function Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 25,291.41 18,000.00 -28.8% 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Flc + Fld) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fie) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 

CCOE Deferred Maintenance/Other Econom 

CCOE Deferred Maintenance/Other Econom 

d) Assigned 
Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

0000 

0000 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9760 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

854,619.10 879,910.51 3.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

854,619.10 879,910.51 3.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

854,619.10 879,910.51 3.0% 

879,910.51 897,910.51 2.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

879,910.51 897,910.51 2.0% 

879,910.51 

897,910.51 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 66 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 17 

Resource Description 
2019-20 2020-21 

Unaudited Actuals Budget 

  

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00 0.00 

  

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM Page 67 of 96



FOUNDATION TRUST FUND (73)  

Page 68 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 06 10066 000000C 
Colusa County Expenses by Object Form 72 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2,607.13 3,000.00 15.1% 

2,607.13 3,000.00 15.1% 

B. EXPENSES 

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 

6) Depreciation 6000-6999 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299, 
Costs) 7400-7499 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 

9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 2,607.13 3000.00 15.1% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 

b) Uses 7630-7699 

3) Contributions 8980-8999 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 69 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 06 10066 000000( 
Colusa County Expenses by Object Form 7: 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
NET POSITION (C + D4) 2,607.13 3,000.00 15.1% 

F. NET POSITION 

1) Beginning Net Position 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 9795 

e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (Flc + Fld) 

2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + Fie) 

Components of Ending Net Position 
a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 

b) Restricted Net Position 9797 

c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 

64,738.67 67,345.80 4.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

64,738.67 67,345.80 4.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

64,738.67 67,345.80 4.0% 

67,345.80 70,345.80 4.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

67,345.80 70,345.80 4.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 70 of 96



67 345.80 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

67 345.80 

0.00 9490 

0.00 

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County 

Unaudited Actuals 
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 

Expenses by Object 
06 10066 0000001 

Form 7. 

Percent 
Difference 

2019-20 
Descr tion Resource Codes Ob'ect Codes Unaudited Actuals 

2020-21 
Bud et 

G. ASSETS 
1) Cash 

a) in County Treasury 9110 

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 

b) in Banks 9120 

c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 

2) Investments 9150 

3) Accounts Receivable 9200 

4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 

5) Due from Other Funds 9310 

6) Stores 9320 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 

8) Other Current Assets 9340 

9) Fixed Assets 
a) Land 9410 

b) Land Improvements 9420 

c) Accumulated Depreciation - Land Improvements 9425 

d) Buildings 9430 

e) Accumulated Depreciation - Buildings 9435 

f) Equipment 9440 

g) Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment 9445 

h) Work in Progress 9450 

irn TOTAI ASSFTS 

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 71 of 96



Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County 

Unaudited Actuals 
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 

Expenses by Object 
06 10066 000000( 

Form 7: 

2019-20 2020-21 
Descri tion Resource Codes Otiect Codes 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Payable 9500 0.00 

2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 

3) Due to Other Funds 9610 

4) Current Loans 9640 

5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00 

6) Long-Term Liabilities 
a) Net Pension Liability 9663 0.00 

b) Total/Net OPEB Liability 9664 0.00 

c) Compensated Absences 9665 0.00 

d) COPs Payable 9666 0.00 

e) Capital Leases Payable 9667 0.00 

f) Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 9668 

g) Other General Long-Term Liabilities 9669 0.00 

7) TOTAL. LIABILITIES 0.00 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

K. NET  POSITION 

Net Position, June 30 
(must agree with line F2) (G10 + H2) - (17 + J2) 67,345.80 

Unaudited Actuals Bud et 

9690 0.00 

0.00 

 

Percent 
Difference 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 4 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 72 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 06 10066 000000( 
Colusa County Expenses by Object Form 7: 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

STRS On-Behalf Pension Contributions 

All Other State Revenue 

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 

7690 

All Other 

8590 

8590 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

Sales 

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

Other Local Revenue 

All Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

8631 

8660 

8662 

8699 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

1,538.36 500.00 -67.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

1,068.77 2,500.00 133.9% 

2,607.13 3,000.00 15.1% 

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,607.13 3,600.00 15.1% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 5 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 73 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 06 10066 0000001 
Colusa County Expenses by Object Form 7: 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 

Certificated Supervisors and Administrators' Salaries 1300 

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 

Classified Support Salaries 2200 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 

Other Classified Salaries 2900 

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 3101-3102 

PERS 3201-3202 

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 

Materials and Supplies 4300 

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 

Food 4700 

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 6 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 74 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenses by Object Form 73 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

Subagreements for Services 5100 

Travel and Conferences 5200 

Dues and Memberships 5300 

Insurance 5400-5450 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 

Transfers of Direct Costs - lnterfund 5750 

Professional/Consulting Services and 
Operating Expenditures 5800 

Communications 5900 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

DEPRECIATION 

Depreciation Expense 6900 

TOTAL, DEPRECIATION 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/27/20181 Page 7 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 75 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 06 10066 000000( 
Colusa County Expenses by Object Form 7: 

Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

All Other Financing Sources 8979 

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

USES 

All Other Financing Uses 7699 

(d) TOTAL, USES 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
(a + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 8 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 76 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 06 10066 000000( 
Colusa County Expenses by Function Form 7:: 

Description Function Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2,607.13 3,000.00 15.1% 

2607.13 3,000.00 15.1% 

B. EXPENSES (Objects 1000-7999) 

1) Instruction 

2) Instruction - Related Services 

3) Pupil Services 

4) Ancillary Services 

5) Community Services 

6) Enterprise 

7) General Administration 

8) Plant Services 

9) Other Outgo 

10) TOTAL, EXPENSES 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7000-7999 

8000-8999 

9000-9999 
Except 

7600-7699 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B10) 2,607.13 3,000.00 15.1% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 77 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Expenses by Function Form 73 

Description Function Codes Object Codes 
2019-20 

Unaudited Actuals 
2020-21 
Budget 

Percent 
Difference 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
NET POSITION (C + D4) 2,607.13 3,000.00 15.1% 

F. NET POSITION 

1) Beginning Net Position 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (Fla + Fib) 

d) Other Restatements 9795 

e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (Plc + Fld) 

2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + Fie) 

Components of Ending Net Position 

a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 

b) Restricted Net Position 9797 

c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 

64,738.67 67,345.80 4.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

64,738.67 67,345.80 4.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

64,738.67 67,345.80 4.0% 

67,345.80 70,345.80 4.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

67,345.80 70,345.80 4.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM 

Page 78 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Exhibit: Restricted Net Position Detail Form 73 

2019-20 2020-21 
Resource Description Unaudited Actuals Budget 

9010 Other Restricted Local 67,345.80 70,345.80 

Total, Restricted Net Position 67,345.80 70,345.80 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 11/30/2012) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:31 AM Page 79 of 96



MISCELLANEOUS FORMS  

Page 80 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE 

Section I - Expenditures 
Funds 01, 09, and 62 2019-20 

Expenditures Goals Functions Objects 

A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) 

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE 
(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) 

C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE: 
(All resources, except federal as identified in Line B) 
1. Community Services 

2. Capital Outlay 

3. Debt Service 

4. Other Transfers Out 

5. Interfund Transfers Out 

6. All Other Financing Uses 

7. Nonagency 

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate 
costs of services for which tuition is received) 

9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a 
Presidentially declared disaster 

10. Total state and local expenditures not 
allowed for MOE calculation 
(Sum lines Cl through C9) 

D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 
1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services 

(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) 

2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities 

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE 
(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 

All All 1000-7999 12,142,146.38 

All All 1000-7999 1,681,213.58 

All 5000-5999 1000-7999 0.00 
All except 
7100-7199 

All except 
5000-5999 6000-6999 78,183.37 

All 9100 

5400-5450, 
5800, 7430- 

7439 14,998.73 

All 9200 7200-7299 0.00 

All 9300 7600-7629 0.00 

All 

9100 7699 

0.00 9200 7651 

7100-7199 

All except 
5000-5999, 
9000-9999 1000-7999 2,465.27 

All All 8710 3,753,532.59 

Manually entered. Must not include 
expenditures in lines B, Cl-C8, D1, or 

D2. 0.00 

3,849,179.96 

All All 

1000-7143, 

7300-7439 

minus 
8000-8699 0.00 

Manually entered. Must not include 
expenditures in lines A or Dl. 

6,611,752.84 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 AM 

Page 81 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE 

Section ll - Expenditures Per ADA 

2019-20 
Annual ADA/ 

Exps. Per ADA 

A. Average Daily Attendance 
(Form A, Annual ADA column, sum of lines Bid and C9) 

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A) 

10.67 

619,658.19 

Section III - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final 
determination will be done by CDE) Total Per ADA 

A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures from prior year official CDE 
MOE calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not met, CDE has 
adjusted the prior year base to 90 percent of the preceding prior year 
amount rather than the actual prior year expenditure amount.) 

1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for 
LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line Al) 

B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 

C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line 113) 

D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C) 
(If negative, then zero) 

E. MOE determination 
(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement 
is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If 
either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is 
incomplete.) 

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero 
(Line D divided by Line B) 
(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2021-22 may 
be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 

6,328,341.30 487,545.55 

0.00 0.00 

6,328,341.30 487,545.55 

5,695,507.17 438,791.00 

6,611,752.84 619,658.19 

0.00 0.00 

MOE Met 

0.00% 0.00% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 AM 

Page 82 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE 

SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section III, Line A.1) 

Description of Adjustments 
Total 

Expenditures 
Expenditures 

Per ADA 

Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 AM 

Page 83 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Fiscal Year 2019-20 06 10066 0000 
Colusa County County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations Form GP 

2019-20 
Calculations 

2020-21 
Calculations 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments* 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments* 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

A. PRIOR YEAR DATA 
(2018-19 Actual Appropriations Limit and Gann ADA are 
from county's prior year Gann data reported to the CDE. 
LCFF data are from the 2018 annual LCFF Target Entitlement 
Exhibit.) 
PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
1. Program Portion of Prior Year Appropriations Limit 

(A3 times [A6 divided by (A6 plus A7)], not to exceed A6) 
Excess is added to Other Services portion. 

2. Other Services Portion of Prior Year Appropriations 
Limit (A3 minus Al) 

3. TOTAL PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
(Preload/Line D17, PY column) 

PRIOR YEAR GANN ADA 

4. Program ADA (Preload/Line B3, PY column) 

5. Other ADA (Preload/Line B4, PY column) 

PRIOR YEAR LCFF 
6. LCFF Alternative Education Grant (Preload/Line A28, 

Alternative Education Grant, 2018-19 Annual County LCFF 
Calculation) 

7. LCFF Operations Grant, (Preload/Line Al, Operations 

Grant, 2018-19 Annual County LCFF Calculation) 

ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT AND ADA 
ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT 

8. Reorganizations and Other Transfers 
9. Temporary Voter Approved Increases 
10. Less: Lapses of Voter Approved Increases 
11. TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT 

(Lines A8 plus A9 minus A10) 
12. Adjustments to Program Portion 

([Lines Al divided by A3] times Line All) 
13. Adjustments to Other Services Portion 

(Lines All minus Al2) 
ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR ADA 
(Only for reorganizations and other transfers, and only if 
adjustments to the appropriations limit amounts are entered 
in Line A8 or Al2 above) 
14. Adjustments to Program ADA 
15. Adjustments to Other ADA 

B. CURRENT YEAR GANN ADA 
CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM ADA 
(2019-20 data should tie to Principal Apportionment 
Software Attendance reports and include ADA for 
charter schools reporting with the COE) 

1. Total County Program ADA (Form A, Line Bid) 

2. Total Charter Schools ADA (Form A, Line C2d plus C6d) 
3. Total Current Year ADA (Lines B1 through B2) 

2018-19 Actual 2019-20 Actual 

225,667.00 225,667.00 65,343.6: 

3,937,103.00 3,937,103.00 431,485.07 

4,162,770.00 4,162,770.00 496,828.7C 

12.98 12.98 10.67 

4,408.03 4,408.03 12.42 

225,667.00 225,667.00 225,667.00 

1,490,152.00 1,490,152.00 1,490,152.00 

Ad ustments to 2018-19 Adjustments to 2019-20 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

2019-20 Annual Report 2020-21 Annual Estimate 

10.67 10.67 10.67 10.67 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

10.67 0.00 10.67 10.67 0.00 10.67 
2019-20 P2 Report 2020-21 P2 Estimate 

CURRENT YEAR DISTRICT ADA 

4_ Total District Gann ADA (District Form GANN, Line B3) 12.42 10.67 

C. CURRENT YEAR LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES/STATE 2019-20 Actual 2020-21 Budget 
AID RECEIVED 
TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS (Funds 01, 09, and 62) 

1. Homeowners' Exemption (Object 8021) 2,530.03 2,530.03 2,601.00 2,601.00 

2. Timber Yield Tax (Object 8022) 210.30 210.30 0.00 0.00 

3. Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8029) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4. Secured Roll Taxes (Object 8041) 445,616.21 445,616.21 400,076.00 400,076.00 

5. Unsecured Roll Taxes (Object 8042) 34,514.85 34,514.85 28,192.00 28,192.00 
6. Prior Years' Taxes (Object 8043) 959.26 959.26 0.00 0.00 

7. Supplemental Taxes (Object 8044) 8,770.07 8,770.07 5,746.00 5,746.00 

8_ Ed. Rev. Augmentation Fund (ERAF) (Object 8045) (1,735.35) (1,735.35) 0.00 0.00 

9. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Taxes (Object 8048) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

10. Receipts from County Bd. of Supervisors (Object 8070) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

11. Other In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8082) 1,436.70 1,436.70 1,348.00 1,348.00 

12. Comm. Redevelopment Funds (Objects 8047 & 8625) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
13. Parcel Taxes (Object 8621) 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 

14_ Other Non-Ad Valorem Taxes (Object 8622) (Taxes only) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

15. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Non-LCFF 

Taxes (Object 8629) (Only those for the above taxes) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: gann-c (Rev 05/19/2020) Page 1 of 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 A 

Page 84 of 96



06 10066 0000( 
Form GA 

Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County 

Unaudited Actuals 
Fiscal Year 2019-20 

County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations 

2020-21 
Calculations 

2019-20 
Calculations 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

Extracted 

Data 

437,963.00 492,302.07 0.00 437,963.00 0.00 

437,963 00 0.00 437,963.00 0.00 492,302.07 

0.00 73.04 0.00 73.04 

0.00 2,057,388.00 2,057,388.00 0.00 2,182,252.04 2,182,252.04 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: gann-c (Rev 05/19/2020) Page 2 of 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 A 

Adjustments* Adjustments* 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

16. Transfers to Charter Schools 
in Lieu of Property Taxes (Object 8096) 

17. TOTAL TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS 
(Lines Cl through C16) 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUES (Funds 01, 09, and 62) 

18. To General Fund from Bond Interest and Redemption 

Fund (Excess debt service taxes) (Object 8914) 
19. TOTAL LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES 

(Lines C17 plus C18) 

EXCLUDED APPROPRIATIONS 

20. Medicare (Enter federally mandated amounts only from objs. 
3301 and 3302; do not include negotiated amounts) 

OTHER EXCLUSIONS 

21. Americans with Disabilities Act 
22. Unreimbursed Court Mandated Desegregation 

Costs 
23. Other Unfunded Court-ordered or Federal Mandates 
24. TOTAL EXCLUSIONS (Lines C20 through C23) 

STATE AID RECEIVED (Funds 01, 09, and 62) 

25. LCFF - CY (objects 8011 and 8012) 
26. LCFF/Revenue Limit State Aid - Prior Years (Object 8019) 
27. TOTAL STATE AID RECEIVED 

(Line C25 plus C26) 

DATA FOR INTEREST CALCULATION 
28. Total Revenues (Funds 01, 09 & 62, objects 8000-8799) 
29. Total Interest and Return on Investments 

(Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 8660 and 8662) 

D. APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT CALCULATIONS 
PRELIMINARY APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
1. Revised Prior Year Program Limit (Lines Al plus Al2) 
2. Inflation Adjustment 
3. Program Population Adjustment (Lines B3 divided 

by [A4 plus A14]) (Round to four decimal places) 
4. PRELIMINARY PROGRAM LIMIT 

(Lines D1 times D2 times 03) 
5. Revised Prior Year Other Services Limit 

(Lines A2 plus A13) 
6. Inflation Adjustment 
7. Other Services Population Adj. (Lines 84 divided 

by [A5 plus A15]) (Round to four decimal places) 

8. PRELIMINARY OTHER SERVICES LIMIT 
(Lines D5 times D6 times D7) 

9. PRELIMINARY TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
(Lines D4 plus D8) 

APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT 

10. Local Revenues Excluding Interest (Line C19) 
11. Preliminary State Aid Calculation 

a. Maximum State Aid in Local Limit 
(Lesser of Line C27 or [Lines D9 minus 
D10 plus C24]; if negative, then zero) 

12. Local Revenues in Proceeds of Taxes 
a. Interest Counting in Local Limit (Lines C29 divided by 

[C28 minus C29] times [D10 plus Dula]) 
b. Total Local Proceeds of Taxes (Lines D10 plus D12a) 

13. State Aid in Proceeds of Taxes (lesser of Line Dila or 
[Lines D9 minus D12b plus C24]; if negative, then zero) 

14. Total Appropriations Subject to the Limit 
a. Local Revenues (Line D12b) 
b. State Subventions (Line D13) 

c. Less: Excluded Appropriations (Line C24) 
d. TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT 

(Lines D14a plus D14b minus D14c) 

492,302.07 

492,302.07 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2,057,388.00 

0.00 

2019-20 Actual 

2,182,179.00 2,057,388.00 2,182,179.00 

12,926,277.00 12,613,974.99 12,613,974.99 12,926,277.00 

75,000.00 75,000.00 114,926.64 114,926.64 

Extracted 

Data 

2020-21 Budget 

225,667.00 
1.0385 

0.8220 

192,639.96 

3,937,103.00 

1.0385 

0.0028 

11448.31 

204,088.27 

492,302.07 

0.00 

4,526.63 
496,828.70 

0.00 

65,343.63 
1.0372 

1.0000 

67,780.95 

431,485.07 
1.0373 

0.8591 

384,515.52 

452,296.47 

437,963.00 

14,333.47 

2,639.60 
440,602.60 

11,693.87 

496,828.70 
0.00 
0.00 

496,828.70 

Page 85 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Fiscal Year 2019-20 06 10066 0000 
Colusa County County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations Form GA 

2019-20 
Calculations 

2020-21 
Calculations 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments* 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments* 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 
15. Adjustments to the Limit Per 

Government Code Section 7902.1 

(Line D14d minus D9; if negative, then zero) 

If not zero report amount to: 

Keely Bosler, Director 
State Department of Finance 

Attention: School Gann Limits 
State Capitol, Room 1145 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

SUMMARY 
16. Adjusted Appropriations Limit 

(Lines D9 plus D15) 
17. Appropriations Subject to the Limit 

(Line D14d) 

292,740.43 

2019-20 Actual 2020-21 Budget 

496,828.70 452,296.4 

496,828.70 

* Please provide below an explanation for each entry in the adjustments column. 

Aaron Heinz, Associate Superintendent Admin. Services 530-458-0350 
Gann Contact Person Contact Phone Number 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: gann-c (Rev 05/19/2020) Page 3 of 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 A 

Page 86 of 96



Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County 

Unaudited Actuals 
2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 

LOTTERY REPORT 
Revenues, Expenditures and 
Ending Balances - All Funds 

06 10066 0000 
For 

Descrjption Object Codes 

Lottery: 
Unrestricted 

(Resource 1100) 

Transferred to 
Other Resources 
for Expenditure 

Lottery: 
Instructional 

Materials 
(Resource 6300)" Totals 

A. AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR 
1. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9795 
2. State Lottery Revenue 8560 
3. Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 

4. Transfers from Funds of 
Lapsed/Reorganized Districts 8965 

5. Contributions from Unrestricted 
Resources (Total must be zero) 8980 

6. Total Available 
(Sum Lines Al through A5) 

0.00 17,833.61 17,833.61 
6,105.78 1,992.83 8,098.61 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

6,105.78 0.00 19,826.44 25,932.22 

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 
2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 
3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 
4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 

5. a. Services and Other Operating 
Expenditures (Resource 1100) 5000-5999 

b. Services and Other Operating 5000-5999, except 
Expenditures (Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800 

c. Duplicating Costs for 
Instructional Materials 
(Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800 

6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 
7. Tuition 7100-7199 
8. Interagency Transfers Out 

a. To Other Districts, County 
7211,7212,7221, Offices, and Charter Schools 
7222,7281,7282 

b. To JPAs and All Others 7213,7223, 
7283,7299 

9. Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 
10. Debt Service 7400-7499 
11. All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 

12. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 
(Sum Lines B1 through B11 ) 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 19,826.44 19,826.44 

6,105.78 6,105.78 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

6,105.78 0.00 19,826.44 25,932.22 

C. ENDING BALANCE 
(Must equal Line A6 minus Line B12) 979Z 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

D. COMMENTS: 

Data from this report will be used to prepare a report to the Legislature as required by Control Section 24.60 of the Budget Act. 

*Pursuant to Government Code Section 8880.4(a)(2)(B) and the definition in Education Code Section 60010(h), Resource 6300 funds are to be used for the 
purchase of instructional materials only. Any amounts in the shaded cells of this column should be reviewed for appropriateness. 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: lot (Rev 02/24/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 / 

Page 87 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Schedule of Capital Assets Form ASSET 

Unaudited 
Balance 

July 1 

Audit 
Adjustments/ 
Restatements 

Audited 
Balance 

July 1 Increases Decreases 
Ending Balance 

June 30 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Work in Progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Land Improvements 
Buildings 
Equipment 
Total capital assets being depreciated 

Accumulated Depreciation for: 
Land Improvements 
Buildings 
Equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Governmental activity capital assets, net 

Business-Type Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Work in Progress 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Land Improvements 
Buildings 
Equipment 
Total capital assets being depreciated 

Accumulated Depreciation for: 
Land Improvements 
Buildings 
Equipment 
Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Business-type activity capital assets, net 

3,621,725.00 3,621,725.00 3,621,725.00 
0.00 0.00 

3,621,725.00 0.00 3,621,725.00 0.00 0.00 3,621,725.00 

246,134.71 246,134.71 104,733.00 350,867.71 
19,555,753.00 19,555,753.00 19,555,753.00 

877,358.85 877,358.85 88,020.00 965,378.85 
20,679,246.56 0.00 20,679,246.56 192,753.00 0.00 20,871,999.56 

(79,694.27) (79,694.27) (26,309.00) (106,003.27) 
(4,835,050.46) 

(580,474.53) 
(5,521,528.26) 

(4,407,206.46) (4,407,206.46) (427,844.00) 
(480,429.53) (480,429.53) (100,045.00) 

(4,967,330.26) 0.00 (4,967,330.26) (554,198.00) 0.00 
15,711,916.30 0.00 15,711,916.30 (361,445.00) 0.00 15,350,471.30 
19,333,641.30 0.00 19,333,641.30 (361,445.00) 0.00 18,972,196.30 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: asset (Rev 01/27/2009) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 9/7/2020 12:03 PM 

Page 88 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Schedule of Long-Term Liabilities Form DEBT 

Unaudited 
Balance 

July 1 

Audit 
Adjustments/ 
Restatements 

Audited 
Balance 

July 1 Increases Decreases 
Ending Balance 

June 30 
Amounts Due Within 

One Year 

Governmental Activities: 

General Obligation Bonds Payable 
State School Building Loans Payable 
Certificates of Participation Payable 
Capital Leases Payable 
Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 
Other General Long-Term Debt 
Net Pension Liability 
Total/Net OPEB Liability 
Compensated Absences Payable 

Governmental activities long-term liabilities 

Business-Type Activities: 

General Obligation Bonds Payable 
State School Building Loans Payable 
Certificates of Participation Payable 
Capital Leases Payable 
Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 
Other General Long-Term Debt 
Net Pension Liability 
Total/Net OPEB Liability 
Compensated Absences Payable 

Business-type activities long-term liabilities 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

14,292.00 14,292.00 14,292.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

14,776,885.00 14,776,885.00 567,885.00 15,344,770.00 
399,296.00 399,296.00 29,790.00 429,086.00 
107,412.22 107,412.22 29,284.84 136,697.06 

15,297,885.22 0.00 15,297,885.22 626,959.84 14,292.00 15,910,553.06 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 

Page 89 of 96



Part I - General Administrative Share of Plant Services Costs 

California's indirect cost plan allows that the general administrative costs in the indirect cost pool may include that portion of plant services 
costs (maintenance and operations costs and facilities rents and leases costs) attributable to the general administrative offices. The 
calculation of the plant services costs attributed to general administration and included in the pool is standardized and automated 
using the percentage of salaries and benefits relating to general administration as proxy for the percentage of square footage 
occupied by general administration. 

A. Salaries and Benefits - Other General Administration and Centralized Data Processing 
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702) 

(Functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000) 
2. Contracted general administrative positions not paid through payroll 

a. Enter the costs, if any, of general administrative positions performing services ON SITE but paid through a 
contract, rather than through payroll, in functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000, Object 5800. 

b. If an amount is entered on Line A2a, provide the title, duties, and approximate FTE of each general 
administrative position paid through a contract. Retain supporting documentation in case of audit. 

B. Salaries and Benefits - All Other Activities 
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702) 

(Functions 1000-6999, 7100-7180, & 8100-8400; Functions 7200-7700, all goals except 0000 & 9000) 9,546,813.35 

  

C. Percentage of Plant Services Costs Attributable to General Administration 
(Line Al plus Line A2a, divided by Line B1; zero if negative) (See Part III, Lines A5 and A6) 9.56% 

Part II - Adjustments for Employment Separation Costs 

When an employee separates from service, the local educational agency (LEA) may incur costs associated with the separation in addition 
to the employee's regular salary and benefits for the final pay period. These additional costs can be categorized as "normal" or "abnormal 
or mass" separation costs. 

Normal separation costs include items such as pay for accumulated unused leave or routine severance pay authorized by governing board 
policy. Normal separation costs are not allowable as direct costs to federal programs, but are allowable as indirect costs. State programs 
may have similar restrictions. Where federal or state program guidelines required that the LEA charge an employee's normal separation 
costs to an unrestricted resource rather than to the restricted program in which the employee worked, the LEA may identify and enter 
these costs on Line A for inclusion in the indirect cost pool. 

Abnormal or mass separation costs are those costs resulting from actions taken by an LEA to influence employees to terminate their 
employment earlier than they normally would have. Abnormal or mass separation costs include retirement incentives such as a Golden 
Handshake or severance packages negotiated to effect termination. Abnormal or mass separation costs may not be charged to federal 
programs as either direct costs or indirect costs. Where an LEA paid abnormal or mass separation costs on behalf of positions in general 
administrative functions included in the indirect cost pool, the LEA must identify and enter these costs on Line B for exclusion from the pool. 

A. Normal Separation Costs (optional) 
Enter any normal separation costs paid on behalf of employees of restricted state or federal programs that 
were charged to an unrestricted resource (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 1000-6999 or 8100-8400 
rather than to the restricted program. These costs will be moved in Part III from base costs to the indirect cost pool.  
Retain supporting documentation. 

B. Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (required) 
Enter any abnormal or mass separation costs paid on behalf of general administrative positions charged to 
unrestricted resources (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 7200-7700. These costs will be 
moved in Part III from the indirect cost pool to base costs. If none, enter zero. 

913,100.49 

0.00 

Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 06 10066 0000C 
Colusa County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form Ii 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 1 of 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 Al 

Page 90 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 06 10066 00000 
Colusa County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form l( 

Part III - Indirect Cost Rate Calculation (Funds 01, 09, and 62, unless indicated otherwise) 
A. Indirect Costs 

1. Other General Administration, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals 
(Functions 7200-7600, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B9) 

2. Centralized Data Processing, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals 
(Function 7700, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B10) 

3. External Financial Audit - Single Audit (Function 7190, resources 0000-1999, 
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 5000-5999) 

4. Staff Relations and Negotiations (Function 7120, resources 0000-1999, 
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 

5. Plant Maintenance and Operations (portion relating to general administrative offices only) 
(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C) 

6. Facilities Rents and Leases (portion relating to general administrative offices only) 
(Function 8700, resources 0000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C) 

7. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs 
a. Plus: Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A) 
b. Less: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part II, Line B) 

8. Total Indirect Costs (Lines Al through A7a, minus Line A7b) 
9. Carry-Forward Adjustment (Part IV, Line F) 

10. Total Adjusted Indirect Costs (Line A8 plus Line A9) 
B. Base Costs 

1. Instruction (Functions 1000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 
2. Instruction-Related Services (Functions 2000-2999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 
3. Pupil Services (Functions 3000-3999, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100) 
4. Ancillary Services (Functions 4000-4999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 
5. Community Services (Functions 5000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 
6. Enterprise (Function 6000, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100) 
7. Board and Superintendent (Functions 7100-7180, objects 1000-5999, 

minus Part III, Line A4) 

8. External Financial Audit - Single Audit and Other (Functions 7190-7191, 
objects 5000-5999, minus Part III, Line A3) 

9. Other General Administration (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only) 
(Functions 7200-7600, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Functions 7200-7600, 
resources 0000-1999, all goals except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 

10. Centralized Data Processing (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only) 
(Function 7700, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Function 7700, resources 0000-1999, all goals 
except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 

11. Plant Maintenance and Operations (all except portion relating to general administrative offices) 
(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part III, Line A5) 

12. Facilities Rents and Leases (all except portion relating to general administrative offices) 
(Function 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part III, Line A6) 

13. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs 
a. Less: Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A) 
b. Plus: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part II, Line B) 

14. Student Activity (Fund 08, functions 4000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 
15. Adult Education (Fund 11, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 
16. Child Development (Fund 12, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 
17. Cafeteria (Funds 13 & 61, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 
18. Foundation (Funds 19 & 57, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 
19. Total Base Costs (Lines B1 through B12 and Lines B13b through B18, minus Line B13a) 

C. Straight Indirect Cost Percentage Before Carry-Forward Adjustment 
(For information only - not for use when claiming/recovering indirect costs) 
(Line A8 divided by Line B19) 

D. Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate 
(For final approved fixed-with-carry-forward rate for use in 2021-22 see www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/ic)  
(Line Al 0 divided by Line B19) 

  

1,344,361.68 

   

  

288,939.57 

   

  

18,330.00 

   

  

0.00 

   

  

33,657.69 

   

  

5,801.28 

   

  

0.00 

   

  

0.00 

   

  

1,691,090.22 

   

  

234,310.70 

   

  

1,925,400.92 

   

  

5,654,932.72 

   

  

2,112,133.98 

   

  

1,962,049.81 

   

  

19,237.12 

   

  

0.00 

   

  

0.00 

   

  

448,505.74 

   

  

0.00 

   

  

1,918.00 

   

  

137,559.49 

   

  

318,410.24 

   

  

54,881.52 

   

      

  

0.00 

   

  

0.00 

   

  

0.00 

   

  

221,483.69 

   

  

6,692,423.67 

   

  

0.00 

   

  

0.00 

   

  

17,623,535.98 

   

  

9.60% 

   

  

10.93% 

   

       

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 2 of 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 A 

Page 91 of 96



Part IV - Carry-forward Adjustment 

The carry-forward adjustment is an after-the-fact adjustment for the difference between indirect costs recoverable using the indirect 
cost rate approved for use in a given year, and the actual indirect costs incurred in that year. The carry-forward adjustment eliminates 
the need for LEAs to file amended federal reports when their actual indirect costs vary from the estimated indirect costs on which the 
approved rate was based. 

Where the ratio of indirect costs incurred in the current year is less than the estimated ratio of indirect costs on which the approved rate for 
use in the current year was based, the carry-forward adjustment is limited by using either the approved rate times current year base costs, 
or the highest rate actually used to recover costs from any program times current year base costs, if the highest rate used was less than 
the approved rate. Rates used to recover costs from programs are displayed in Exhibit A. 

A. Indirect costs incurred in the current year (Part III, Line A8) 

B. Carry-forward adjustment from prior year(s) 

1. Carry-forward adjustment from the second prior year 

2. Carry-forward adjustment amount deferred from prior year(s), if any 

C. Carry-forward adjustment for under- or over-recovery in the current year 

1,691,090.22 

37,696.33 

0.00 

 

1. Under-recovery: Part III, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus (approved indirect 
cost rate (8.48%) times Part III, Line B19); zero if negative 234,310.70 

2. Over-recovery: Part III, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus the lesser of 
(approved indirect cost rate (8.48%) times Part III, Line B19) or (the highest rate used to 
recover costs from any program (8.48%) times Part III, Line B19); zero if positive 

D. Preliminary carry-forward adjustment (Line Cl or C2) 234,310.70 

E. Optional allocation of negative carry-forward adjustment over more than one year 

Where a negative carry-forward adjustment causes the proposed approved rate to fall below zero or would reduce the rate at which 
the LEA could recover indirect costs to such an extent that it would cause the LEA significant fiscal harm, the LEA may request that 
the carry-forward adjustment be allocated over more than one year. Where allocation of a negative carry-forward adjustment over more 
than one year does not resolve a negative rate, the CDE will work with the LEA on a case-by-case basis to establish an approved rate. 

Option 1. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part III, Line D) if entire negative carry-forward 
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation: not applicable 

Option 2. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part III, Line D) if one-half of negative carry-forward 
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder 
is deferred to one or more future years: 

Option 3. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part III, Line D) if one-third of negative carry-forward 
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder 
is deferred to one or more future years: 

LEA request for Option 1, Option 2, or Option 3 

not applicable 

not applicable 

1 

F. Carry-forward adjustment used in Part III, Line A9 (Line D minus amount deferred if 
Option 2 or Option 3 is selected) 234,310.70 

0.00 

Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 06 10066 00001 
Colusa County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form I 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 3 of 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 A 

Page 92 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Exhibit A: Indirect Cost Rates Charged to Programs Form ICR 

Approved indirect cost rate: 8.48% 
Highest rate used in any program: 8.48%  

Eligible Expenditures 
(Objects 1000-5999 Indirect Costs Charged Rate 

Fund Resource except Object 5100) (Objects 7310 and 7350) Used 

01 3310 791,453.32 55,401.73 7.00% 
01 3311 6,718.65 470.30 7.00% 
01 3315 27,344.86 1,914.14 7.00% 
01 3327 47,818.69 3,347.31 7.00% 
01 3345 936.00 64.00 6.84% 
01 3385 76,831.78 5,378.22 7.00% 
01 4035 1,551.00 25.00 1.61% 
01 5320 286,558.42 14,671.43 5.12% 
01 5630 19,638.87 1,665.38 8.48% 
01 5810 389,410.01 32,224.47 8.28% 
01 6500 6,145,623.65 430,193.67 7.00% 
01 6510 74,202.90 5,194.10 7.00% 
01 6512 261,127.10 18,278.90 7.00% 
01 6520 84,027.49 5,882.51 7.00% 
01 6680 24,051.76 2,039.59 8.48% 
01 6685 34,469.78 1,722.98 5.00% 
01 6690 25,235.85 2,139.99 8.48% 
01 7366 121,742.16 10,323.74 8.48% 
01 7810 99,945.61 6,995.86 7.00% 
01 8150 141,639.52 12,011.03 8.48% 
01 9010 187,096.99 11,172.66 5.97% 
11 6015 37,518.71 3,169.31 8.45% 
11 6391 137,865.98 5,453.61 3.96% 
12 5025 179,914.23 13,043.77 7.25% 
12 5035 115,414.80 8,367.30 7.25% 
12 5050 357,582.85 25,924.76 7.25% 
12 5055 50,814.85 3,684.07 7.25% 
12 5061 50,344.38 3,649.97 7.25% 
12 5062 224,472.92 16,274.29 7.25% 
12 5210 1,833,604.25 132,205.00 7.21% 
12 5320 417,752.26 5,206.06 1.25% 
12 5350 54,485.80 2,789.67 5.12% 
12 6040 506,748.77 36,739.29 7.25% 
12 6041 283,954.65 20,586.71 7.25% 
12 6042 94,073.84 6,820.35 7.25% 
12 6045 2,196.23 159.23 7.25% 
12 6052 2,308.58 167.37 7.25% 
12 6065 538,195.22 39,019.17 7.25% 
12 6070 89,983.08 6,523.77 7.25% 
12 6100 1,795.00 130.00 7.24% 
12 6105 1,595,249.70 115,649.09 7.25% 
12 6108 13,613.32 986.97 7.25% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 02/10/2020) Page 1 of 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 AM 

Page 93 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County Exhibit A: Indirect Cost Rates Charged to Programs Form ICR 

Eligible Expenditures 
(Objects 1000-5999 Indirect Costs Charged Rate 

Fund Resource except Object 5100) (Objects 7310 and 7350) Used 
12 6110 142,782.00 10,352.00 7.25% 
12 9010 125,159.22 9,073.60 7.25% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: icr (Rev 02/10/2020) Page 2 of 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 AM 

Page 94 of 96



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 06 10066 01 
Colusa County SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES Fon 

FOR ALL FUNDS 

Description 

Direct Costs 
Transfers In 

5750 

Interfund 
Transfers Out 

5750 

Indirect Cos 
Transfers In 

7350 

s - Interfund 
Transfers Out 

7350 

Interfund 
Transfers In 
8900-8929 

Interfund 
Transfers Out 

7600-7629 

Due From 
Other Funds 

9310 

Due To 
Other Funds 

9610 
01 COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 0.00 (296,237.22) 0.00 (466,091.80) 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 5,185.07 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 138,268.06 4,704. 

08 STUDENT ACTIVITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0. 

09 CHARTER SCHOOLS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0., 

10 SPECIAL EDUCATION PASS-THROUGH FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.1 

11 ADULT EDUCATION FUND 
Expenditure Detail 12,956.75 0.00 8,622.92 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 4,704.00 5,g47. 

12 CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 
Expenditure Detail 283 280.47 0.00 457,468.87 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 132,320. 

13 CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00' 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.1 

14 DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.0 

15 PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.0 

16 FOREST RESERVE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 5,185.07 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.0 

17 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR OTHER THAN CAPITAL OUTLAY 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.0 

18 SCHOOL BUS EMISSIONS REDUCTION FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.0 

19 FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.01 

20 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.01 

21 BUILDING FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.0( 

25 CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.01 

30 STATE SCHOOL BUILDING LEASE/PURCHASE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.01 

35 COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.0C 

40 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00 

53 TAX OVERRIDE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00 

56 DEBT SERVICE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00 

57 FOUNDATION PERMANENT FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 a oo 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.00 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: siaa (Rev 04/06/2020) Page 1 of 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 

Page 95 of 96



Colusa County Office of Education 
Colusa County 

Unaudited Actuals 
2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 
FOR ALL FUNDS 

06 10066 001 
Form 

Description 

Direct Costs 
Transfers In 

5750 

Interfund 
Transfers Out 

5750 

Indirect Cos 
Transfers In 

7350 

s - Interfund 
Transfers Out 

7350 

Interfund 
Transfers In 
8900-8929 

Interfund 
Transfers Out 

7600-7629 

Due From 
Other Funds 

9310 

Due To 
Other Funds 

9610 
61 CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0 00 0.0 

62 CHARTER SCHOOLS ENTERPRISE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.0 

63 OTHER ENTERPRISE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.0 

66 WAREHOUSE REVOLVING FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.G 

67 SELF-INSURANCE FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.01 

71 RETIREE BENEFIT FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.01 

73 FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND 
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.01 

76 WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.01 

95 STUDENT BODY FUND 
Expenditure Detail 
Other Sources/Uses Detail 
Fund Reconciliation 0.00 0.01 

TOTALS 296 237.22 1296 237.2211 466,091.79 (466 5,185.07 5 185.07 142 972.06 142 972.0E 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: siaa (Rev 04/06/2020) Page 2 of 2 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 

Page 96 of 96



  11.2 

BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 20/21-02 
GANN LIMITS 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

AND THE COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

 
 

WHEREAS in November of 1979, the California electorate did adopt Proposition 4, commonly 
called the Gann Amendment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the provisions of that amendment establish maximum appropriations limitations, 
commonly called “Gann Limits” for public agencies, including school districts and county offices; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the county schools office must establish a Gann Limit for the 2019/20 fiscal year and an 
estimated Gann Limit for the 2020/21 fiscal year in accordance with the provisions of the Gann 
Amendment and applicable statutory law; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board for the Colusa County Office of 
Education does provide public notice that the 2019/20 Gann Limit is $496,828.70 , that the 
2020/21 estimated Gann Limit is $452,296.47, that the calculations were made in accordance with 
applicable Constitutional and Statutory Law, and that this Board does hereby declare that subject 
appropriations do not exceed the limitations imposed by the Gann Amendment. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Colusa County Office 

of Education on the 14th day of October 2020 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

Dated this 14th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Superintendent and Secretary 
Colusa County Board of Education, 
State of California 



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Fiscal Year 2019-20 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations Form GANN 

2019-20 
Calculations 

2020-21 
Calculations 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments* 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments* 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

A. PRIOR YEAR DATA 
(2018-19 Actual Appropriations Limit and Gann ADA are 
from county's prior year Gann data reported lathe CDE. 
LCFF data are from the 2018 annual LCFF Target Entitlement 
Exhibit) 

PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
1. Program Portion of Prior Year Appropriations Limit 

(A3 times [A6 divided by (A6 plus A7)], not to exceed A6) 
Excess is added to Other Services portion. 

2. Other Services Portion of Prior Year Appropriations 
Limit (A3 minus Al) 

3. TOTAL PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
(Preload/Line D17, PY column) 

PRIOR YEAR GANN ADA 

4. Program ADA (Preload/Line B3, PY column) 

5. Other ADA (Preload/Line 84, PY column) 
PRIOR YEAR LCFF 
6. LCFF Alternative Education Grant (Preload/Line A28, 

Alternative Education Grant, 2018-19 Annual County LCFF 
Calculation) 

7. LCFF Operations Grant, (Preload/Line Al, Operations 

Grant, 2018-19 Annual County LCFF Calculation) 

ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT AND ADA 
ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT 

8. Reorganizations and Other Transfers 
8. Temporary Voter Approved Increases 
10, Less: Lapses of Voter Approved Increases 
11. TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT 

(Lines A8 plus A9 minus A10) 
12. Adjustments to Program Portion 

([Lines Al divided by A3] times Line Al l) 
13. Adjustments to Other Services Portion 

(Lines All minus Al2) 
ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR ADA 
(Only for reorganizations and other transfers, and only if 
adjustments to the appropriations limit amounts are entered 
in Line A8 or Al2 above) 
14. Adjustments to Program ADA 
15. Adjustments to Other ADA 

B. CURRENT YEAR GANN ADA 
CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM ADA 

(2019-20 data should tie to Principal Apportionment 
Software Attendance reports and include ADA for 
charter schools reporting with the COE) 

1. Total County Program ADA (Form A, Line Bid) 
2. Total Charter Schools ADA (Form A, Line C2d plus C6d) 
3. Total Current Year ADA (Lines B1 through B2) 

CURRENT YEAR DISTRICT ADA 

4. Total District Gann ADA (District Form GANN, Line B3) 

C. CURRENT YEAR LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES/STATE 
AID RECEIVED 
TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS (Funds 01, 09, and 62) 

1. Homeowners' Exemption (Object 8021) 
2. Timber Yield Tax (Object 8022) 

3. Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8029) 
4- Secured Roll Taxes (Object 8041) 
5. Unsecured Roll Taxes (Object 8042) 
6. Prior Years' Taxes (Object 8043) 

7. Supplemental Taxes (Object 8044) 
8. Ed. Rev. Augmentation Fund (ERAF) (Object 8045) 
8. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Taxes (Object 8048) 
10. Receipts from County Bd. of Supervisors (Object 8070) 
11. Other In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8082) 
12. Comm. Redevelopment Funds (Objects 8047 & 8625) 
13. Parcel Taxes (Object 8621) 
14. Other Non-Ad Valorem Taxes (Object 8622) (Taxes only) 
15. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Non-LCFF 

Taxes (Object 8629) (Only those for the above taxes) 

2018-19 Actual 2019-20 Actual 

225,667.00 225,667.00 65,343.63 

3,937,103.00 3,937,103.00 431,485.07 

4,162,770.00 4,162,770.00 496,828.70 

12.98 12.98 10.67 

4,408.03 4,408.03 12.42 

225,667.00 225,667.00 225,667.00 

1,490,152.00 1,490,152.00 1,490,152.00 

Ad ustments to 2018-19 Adjustments to 2019-20 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

2019-20 Annual Report 2020-21 Annual Estimate 

10.67 10.67 10.67 10.67 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

10.67 0.00 10.67 10.67 0.00 10.67 
2019-20 P2 Report 2020-21 P2 Estimate 

12.42 10.67 

2019-20 Actual 2020-21 Budget 

2,530.03 2,530.03 2,601.00 2,601.00 
210.30 210.30 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
445,616.21 445,616.21 400,076.00 400,076.00 

34,514.85 34,514.85 28,192.00 28,192.00 
959.26 959.26 0.00 0.00 

8,770.07 8,770.07 5,746.00 5,746.00 
(1,735.35) (1,735.35) 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,436.70 1,436.70 1,348.00 1,348.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: gann-c (Rev 05/19/2020) Page 1 of 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 AM 



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Fiscal Year 2019-20 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations Form GANN 

2019-20 
Calculations 

2020-21 
Calculations 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments* 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments* 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 
16. Transfers to Charter Schools 

in Lieu of Property Taxes (Object 8096) 
17. TOTAL TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS 

(Lines Cl through C16) 492,302.07 0.00 492,302.07 437,963.00 0.00 437,963.00 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUES (Funds 01, 09, and 62) 

18. To General Fund from Bond Interest and Redemption 
Fund (Excess debt service taxes) (Object 8914) 

19. TOTAL LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES 
(Lines C17 plus C18) 492,302.07 0.00 492,302.07 437,963.00 0.00 437,963.00 

EXCLUDED APPROPRIATIONS 

20. Medicare (Enter federally mandated amounts only from obis. 
3301 and 3302; do not include negotiated amounts) 

0.00 0.00 

OTHER EXCLUSIONS 

21. Americans with Disabilities Act 
22. Unreimbursed Court Mandated Desegregation 

Costs 
23. Other Unfunded Court-ordered or Federal Mandates 
24. TOTAL EXCLUSIONS (Lines C20 through C23) 0.00 0.00 

STATE AID RECEIVED (Funds 01, 09, and 62) 

25. LCFF - CY (objects 8011 and 8012) 2,182,179.00 2,182,179.00 2,057,388.00 2,057,388.00 
26. LCFF/Revenue Limit State Aid - Prior Years (Object 8019) 73.04 73.04 0.00 0.00 
27. TOTAL STATE AID RECEIVED 

(Line C25 plus C26) 2,182,252.04 0.00 2,182,252.04 2,057,388.00 0.00 2,057,388.00 

DATA FOR INTEREST CALCULATION 
28. Total Revenues (Funds 01, 09 & 62, objects 8000-8799) 12,613,974.99 12,613,974.99 12,926,277.00 12,926,277.00 
29. Total Interest and Return on Investments 

(Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 8660 and 8662) 114,926.64 114,926.64 75,000.00 75,000.00 

D. APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT CALCULATIONS 2019-20 Actual 2020-21 Budget 
PRELIMINARY APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
1. Revised Prior Year Program Limit (Lines Al plus Al2) 225,667.00 65,343.63 
2. Inflation Adjustment 1.0385 1.0373 
3. Program Population Adjustment (Lines B3 divided 

by [A4 plus A14]) (Round to four decimal places) 0.8220 1.0000 
4. PRELIMINARY PROGRAM LIMIT 

(Lines D1 times D2 times D3) 192,639.96 67,780.95 
5. Revised Prior Year Other Services Limit 

(Lines A2 plus A13) 3,937,103.00 431,485.07 
6. Inflation Adjustment 1.0385 1.0373 
7. Other Services Population Adj. (Lines B4 divided 

by [A5 plus A15]) (Round to four decimal places) 0.0028 0.8591 
8. PRELIMINARY OTHER SERVICES LIMIT 

(Lines D5 times D6 times D7) 11,448.31 384,515.52 
9. PRELIMINARY TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

(Lines D4 plus D8) 204,088.27 452,29647 

APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT 

10. Local Revenues Excluding Interest (Line C19) 492,302.07 437,963.00 

11. Preliminary State Aid Calculation 
a. Maximum State Aid in Local Limit 

(Lesser of Line C27 or [Lines D9 minus 
D10 plus C24]; if negative, then zero) 0.00 14,333.47 

12. Local Revenues in Proceeds of Taxes 
a. Interest Counting in Local Limit (Lines C29 divided by 

[C28 minus C29] times [010 plus Dila]) 4,526.63 2,639.60 

b. Total Local Proceeds of Taxes (Lines D10 plus D12a) 496,828.70 440,602.60 

13. State Aid in Proceeds of Taxes (lesser of Line D1 la or 

[Lines D9 minus D12b plus C24]; if negative, then zero) 0.00 11,693.87 

14. Total Appropriations Subject to the Limit 
a. Local Revenues (Line D12b) 496,828.70 

b. State Subventions (Line 013) 0.00 
c. Less: Excluded Appropriations (Line C24) 
d. TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT 

(Lines 014a plus D14b minus D14c) 

0.00 

496,828.70 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: gann-c (Rev 05/19/2020) Page 2 of 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 AM 



Unaudited Actuals 
Colusa County Office of Education Fiscal Year 2019-20 06 10066 0000000 
Colusa County County Office Appropriations Limit Calculations Form GANN 

2019-20 
Calculations 

2020-21 
Calculations 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments" 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 

Extracted 

Data Adjustments* 

Entered Data/ 

Totals 
16. Adjustments to the Limit Per 

Government Code Section 7902.1 

(Line D14d minus D9; if negative, then zero) 

If not zero report amount to: 

Keely Bosler, Director 

State Department of Finance 
Attention: School Gann Limits 
State Capitol, Room 1145 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

SUMMARY 
16. Adjusted Appropriations Limit 

(Lines D9 plus D15) 

17. Appropriations Subject to the Limit 
(Line D14d) 

292,740.43 

2019-20 Actual 2020-21 Budget 

496,828.70 452,296.47 

496,828.70 

* Please provide below an explanation for each entry in the adjustments column. 

Aaron Heinz, Associate Superintendent Admin. Services 530-458-0350 
Gann Contact Person Contact Phone Number 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: gann-c (Rev 05/19/2020) Page 3 of 3 Printed: 8/28/2020 8:32 AM 



 
 

 

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE 

COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS AND THE 
COLUSA COUNTY EDUCATION SERVICES PROFESSIONALS (CCESP) 

 
Background:  Part of AB1200 requires school districts and county offices of education to publicly 
disclose the major provisions of all collective bargaining agreements. 

 
The Superintendent of Public Instruction has not required a particular set of procedures or formats, 
but has made recommendations that we have implemented with the following: 

 
A.   Period of agreement ‐ July 1, 2020 ‐ June 30, 2021 

 
B.   Adjustments to salaries, effective July 1, 2020: 

 

 Replaced Step 2 with Step 1 of Salary Schedules 140, 150, and 151 and evened out 

years in Step 6‐Step F to equal 3 years per Step 

Adjustments to other compensation issues, effective October 1, 2020: 

 The Superintendent’s yearly contribution for dental, vision, and health benefits shall be 
increased to ten thousand two hundred ninety ($10,290) 

 
C.   Adjustments to non‐compensation issues:  

 Revised Paraeducator and Translator/Interpreter job descriptions, effective September 
1, 2020  
 

 Revised language to Articles VII, IX, and XI, effective July 1, 2020 
 

D.   Current and subsequent sources of funding: 
 

 The source of funding is provided by the State of California, the Special Education Local 
Plan Area (SELPA), and the Districts that participate in the SELPA 

 
Disclosed at a regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Colusa County Office of Education on the 14th 
day of October 2020. 
 
 
 
 

(Clerk’s Signature)  (Date) 
 



 
 

 

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE 

COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
AND THE 

EDUCATORS OF COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION (ECCOE) 

 
Background:  Part of AB1200 requires school districts and county offices of education to 
publicly disclose the major provisions of all collective bargaining agreements. 

 
The Superintendent of Public Instruction has not required a particular set of procedures or 
formats, but has made recommendations that we have implemented with the following: 

 
A.   Period of agreement ‐ July 1, 2020 ‐ June 30, 2021 

 
B.   Adjustments to salaries, effective July 1, 2020: 

 

 One‐time 3% off the salary schedule allowance to salary schedules 115, 
115(A), 120, 121, 125 

 
Adjustments to other compensation issues, effective October 1, 2020: 

 The Superintendent’s yearly contribution for dental, vision, and health 
benefits shall be increased to ten thousand two hundred ninety dollars 
($10,290) 

 
C.   Adjustments to non‐compensation issues, effective July 1, 2020:  

 Revised language to Articles 5 and 25 and added Article 20.8 
 
D.   Current and subsequent sources of funding: 

 

 The source of funding is provided by the State of California, the Special 
Education Local Plan Area (SELPA), and the Districts that participate in the 
SELPA. 

 
Disclosed at a regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Colusa County Office of Education 
on the 14th day of October 2020. 

 
 
 
 
 

(Clerk’s Signature)  (Date) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

                           
 
 
 

 
TO:  Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Serena Morrow, Director of Human Resources 
 
DATE:  September 15, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Health/Dental/Vision (H/D/V) Employer Contribution 2020-2021 
 
 
A Tentative Agreement has been signed by the County Superintendent, the Educators 
of Colusa County Office of Education (ECCOE), and the Colusa County Education 
Support Professionals (CCESP), to increase the annual H/D/V employer contribution 
from $10,000 annually to $10,290 annually.  The increase will take effect October 1, 
2020. 
 
With this in mind, it is my recommendation that the Board of Trustees consider taking 
action to increase the County Superintendent and Board of Trustees’ annual H/D/V 
employer contribution to $10,290 annually, with an effective date of October 1, 2020. 
 
For your consideration, I have attached a copy of premium cost spreadsheets that detail 
the monthly cost to both the County Superintendent and Board of Trustees at the 
employer contribution rate of $10,000 annually and $10,290 annually.  
 
 
 



Colusa County Office of Education 
Board Member 

TCSIG - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance Employee Only 
20-21 Fiscal Year coverage July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 

7/1/20 to 6/30/21 - 12 months Premier Standard Basic CDHP 
Medical $ 839.00 $ 699.00 $ 602.00 $ 426.00 
Dental D2 $ 53.00 $ 53.00 $ 53.00 $ 53.00 
Vision Plan B $ 12.00 $ 12.00 $ 12.00 $ 12.00 
Total Monthly Premium $ 904.00 $ 764.00 $ 667.00 $ 491.00 
less CCOE Paid Monthly Cap* , (833.33) $ (833.33) $ (833.33) $ (833.33) 
TOTAL $ 70.67 $ (69.33) $ (166.33) $ (342.33) 

Board Member Pays Monthly (12 Months) $ 70.67 $ (69.33) $ (166.33) $ (342.33) 

*Cap is $10,000 Annually / $833.33 Monthly 

Board Member will not be compensated for underutilized annual employer contribution benefit (Cap). 



Colusa County Office of Education 
Board Member 

TCSIG - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance Employee +1 
20-21 Fiscal Year coverage July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 

7/1/20 to 6/30/21 - 12 months Premier Standard Basic CDHP 
Medical $ 1,678.00 $ 1,398.00 $ 1,204.00 $ 852.00 
Dental 02 $ 101.00 $ 101.00 $ 101.00 $ 101.00 
Vision Plan B $ 20.00 $ 20.00 $ 20.00 $ 20.00 
Total Monthly Premium $ 1,799.00 $ 1,519.00 $ 1,325.00 $ 973.00 
less CCOE Paid Monthly Cap* $ (833.33) $ (833.33) $ (833.33) $ (833.33) 
TOTAL $ 965.67 $ 685.67 $ 491.67 $ 139.67 

Board Member Pays Monthly (12 Months) $ 965.67 $ 685.67 $ 491.67 $ 139.67 

*Cap is $10,000 Annually / $833.33 Monthly 



Colusa County Office of Education 
Board Member 

TCSIG - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance Employee + Family 
20-21 Fiscal Year coverage July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 

7/1/20 to 6/30/21 - 12 months Premier Standard Basic CDHP 
Medical $ 2,265.00 $ 1,887.00 $ 1,625.00 $ 1,150.00 
Dental D2 $ 144.00 $ 144.00 $ 144.00 $ 144.00 
Vision Plan B $ 35.00 $ 35.00 $ 35.00 $ 35.00 
Total Monthly Premium $ 2,444.00 $ 2,066.00 $ 1,804.00 $ 1,329.00 
less CCOE Paid Monthly Cap* 0 "‘ (833.33) $ (833.33) $ (833.33) $ (833.33) 
TOTAL $ 1,610.67 $ 1,232.67 $ 970.67 $ 495.67 

Board Member Pays Monthly (12 Months) $ 1,610.67 $ 1,232.67 $ 970.67 $ 495.67 

*Cap is $10,000 Annually /  $833.33 Monthly 



Colusa County Office of Education 
Board Member 

TCSIG - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance Employee Only 
20-21 Fiscal Year coverage July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 

7/1/20 to 6/30/21 - 12 months Premier Standard Basic CDHP 
Medical $ 839.00 $ 699.00 $ 602.00 $ 426.00 
Dental 02 $ 53.00 $ 53.00 $ 53.00 $ 53.00 
Vision Plan B $ 12.00 $ 12.00 $ 12.00 $ 12.00 
Total Monthly Premium $ 904.00 $ 764.00 $ 667.00 $ 491.00 
less CCOE Paid Monthly Cap* $ (857.50) $ (857.50) $ (857.50) $ (857.50) 
TOTAL $ 46.50 $ (93.50) $ (190.50) $ (366.50) 

Board Member Pays Monthly (12 Months) $ 46.50 $ (93.50) $ (190.50) $ (366.50) 

*Cap is $10,290 Annually / $857.50 Monthly 

Board Member will not be compensated for underutilized annual employer contribution benefit (Cap). 

10/1/2020 



Colusa County Office of Education 
Board Member 

TCSIG - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance Employee +1 
20-21 Fiscal Year coverage July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 

7/1/20 to 6/30/21 - 12 months Premier Standard Basic CDHP 
Medical $ 1,678.00 $ 1,398.00 $ 1,204.00 $ 852.00 
Dental 02 $ 101.00 $ 101.00 $ 101.00 $ 101.00 
Vision Plan B $ 20.00 $ 20.00 $ 20.00 $ 20.00 
Total Monthly Premium $ 1,799.00 $ 1,519.00 $ 1,325.00 $ 973.00 
less CCOE Paid Monthly Cap* $ (857.50) $ (857.50) $ (857.50) $ (857.50) 
TOTAL $ 941.50 $ 661.50 $ 467.50 $ 115.50 

Board Member Pays Monthly (12 Months) $ 941.50 $ 661.50 $ 467.50 $ 115.50 

*Cap is $10,290 Annually / $857.50 Monthly 

10/1/2020 



Colusa County Office of Education 
Board Member 

TCSIG - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance Employee + Family 
20-21 Fiscal Year coverage July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 

7/1/20 to 6/30/21 - 12 months Premier Standard Basic CDHP 
Medical $ 2,265.00 $ 1,887.00 $ 1,625.00 $ 1,150.00 
Dental D2 $ 144.00 $ 144.00 $ 144.00 $ 144.00 
Vision Plan B $ 35.00 $ 35.00 $ 35.00 $ 35.00 
Total Monthly Premium $ 2,444.00 $ 2,066.00 $ 1,804.00 $ 1,329.00 
less CCOE Paid Monthly Cap* $ (857.50) $ (857.50) $ (857.50) $ (857.50) 
TOTAL $ 1,586.50 $ 1,208.50 $ 946.50 $ 471.50 

Board Member Pays Monthly (12 Months) $ 1,586.50 $ 1,208.50 $ 946.50 $ 471.50 

*Cap is $10,290 Annually / $857.50 Monthly 
10/1/2020 



Colusa County Office of Education 
Superintendent 

CVT - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance - Employee +1 
CVT Plan Year for Rates is October 1, 2020 to September 30, 2021 

Plan 1A-SE1 HDHP-3 
Medical - Empl+One 1,964.00 927.00 

Dental - Basic/Unlimited/3 115.45 115.45 
Vision - Plan C 24.29 24.29 

Sub Total 2,103.74 1,066.74 

Months Covered 12 12 

Yearly Total 25,244.88 12,800.88 
CCOE Paid Annual Cap 10,000.00 10,000.00 
Employee Pays Yearly 15,244.88 2,800.88 

Employee Pays Monthly (12 Months) $1,270.41 $233.41 

Worst Case Individual 15,244.88 2,800.881 
Max Individual out of pocket 1,250.00 6,250.00 

16,494.88 9,050.881 

Worst Case Family 15,244.88 2,800.881 
Max Individual out of pocket 2,500.00 12,500.00 

17,744.88 15,300.881 

1 

1 



Colusa County Office of Education 
Superintendent 

CVT - Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance - Employee +1 
CVT Plan Year for Rates is October 1, 2020 to September 30, 2021 

Plan 1A-SE1 HDHP-3 
Medical - Empl+One 1,964.00 927.00 

Dental - Basic/Unlimited/3 115.45 115.45 
Vision - Plan C 24.29 24.29 

Sub Total 2,103.74 1,066.74 

Months Covered 12 12 

Yearly Total 25,244.88 12,800.88 
CCOE Paid Annual Cap 10,290.00 10,290.00 
Employee Pays Yearly 14,954.88 2,510.88 

Employee Pays Monthly (12 Months) $1,246.24 $209.24 

Worst Case Individual 14,954.88 2,510.881 
Max Individual out of pocket 1,250.00 6,250.00 

16,204.88 8,760.881 

Worst Case Family 14,954.88 2,510.881 
Max Individual out of pocket 2,500.00 12,500.00 

17,454.88 15,010.881 

10/1/2020 

1 

1 



 

 

 

Colusa County Office of Education 

Michael P. West 

Superintendent of Schools  

2020-2021 Annual Plan for Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) Support 
 

The Colusa County Office of Education Superintendent of Schools will support districts and schools within Colusa 

County in response to COVID-19 with the purpose of: 

 

Reopening of School Guidance 

• Providing tools and resources to support the re-opening of schools 

• Participating in the LEAs Reopening Task Force 

 

Distance Learning 

• Providing distance learning technical assistance 

• Identifying and sharing best practices 

 

Accountability 

• Providing Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan guides, resources, professional development, and 

technical assistance 

• Providing Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan feedback and support 

• Providing LCAP guides, resources, professional development, and technical assistance 

• Providing LCAP feedback and support through approval process 

• Providing training and support for revised LCAP Template and LCAP Federal Addendum 

• Providing support and advisement related to state and federal program requirements 

• Providing Williams monitoring and support 

 

Professional Development, Services, and Supports 

• Facilitating Attendance Supervisor Training and Certification, technical assistance, and attendance systems 

support 

• Facilitating Homeless/Foster Youth Services Network and provide support 

• Facilitating school climate training 

• Providing mental health support professional learning including suicide prevention training 

• Embedding continuous improvement process and activities into countywide learning networks 

 

Supports for LEAs Identified for Technical Assistance 

• Providing continuous improvement process coaching and facilitation 

• Facilitating local and state data analysis 

• Facilitating self-assessment 

• Providing progress monitoring and follow up support 

• Building district capacity for continuous improvement through ongoing coaching and professional 

development 

 

 

 

 



 

Definition of Terms 

 
Aim Statement: Explicit description of desired outcomes written to be measurable and time specific. 

 

California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE): State agency created under Local Control 

Funding Formula (LCFF) that offers support to county offices of education, school districts, and charter schools 

with support in the improvement and implementation of LCFF. 

 

California Dashboard: Contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a 

set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement.  

 

Continuous Improvement: Identified in statute as the framework for improving outcomes for California students 

through the LCAP and used to describe an ongoing effort over time that leads to improvement of student outcomes. 

Distinguishing features include: 

• Taking a systems perspective 

• Being process-oriented 

• Understanding problems and their root causes 

 

Differentiated Assistance (DA): Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) are eligible for Differentiated Assistance 

if: 

• The County Superintendent does not approve an LCAP 

• The governing board of the LEA requests technical assistance 

• The LEA fails to improve pupil achievement across more than one state priority for one or more student 

groups 

 

Distance Learning (DL): Instruction in which the student and instructor are in different locations. This 

may include interacting using technology and/or print materials.  

 

Fishbone Diagram: Also called a cause and effect diagram, is a visualization tool for categorizing the 

potential causes of a problem to identify its root causes. 

 

Improvement Science: Systematic process explicitly designed to improve teaching and learning through a 

problem-centered approach. 

 

Learning continuity and Attendance Plan (LCP): Key part of the overall budget package for K–12 that 

seeks to address funding stability for schools while providing information at the LEA level for how student 

learning continuity will be addressed in light of the COVID-19 crisis in the 2020–21 school year. 

 

LEA Self-Assessment: Tool for District Leadership Teams to examine the status of systemic practices that 

have been consistently demonstrated through research to be the components of effective district systems. 

 

Plan-Do-Study-Act Cycle (PDSA):  Tool to incorporate Improvement Science, Continuous Improvement, 

Root Cause Analysis, and other methodologies to determine the effectiveness in creating change. 

 

Problem of Practice: An area of focus that a school or school district identifies as an area of focus for 

improvement. 

 

Professional Learning Networks (PLN): Support networks that are based on the concept of Professional 

Learning Communities and are intended to build capacity and support deeper learning in interpreting, using, 

and understanding the Dashboard and the LCAP as tools for continuous improvement. Members of the 



 

Colusa, Yolo, and Yuba COEs PLN include district and county leaders in charge of the development and 

implementation of LCAPs. 

 

Root Cause Analysis: A process for understanding the root causes of the current problem and may assist 

in understanding the system and user perspectives. 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA): A plan that represents a school’s cycle of continuous 

improvement of student performance. 

 

The following plan to support districts in implementing Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan and Local Control 

Accountability Plan adhered to provisions/requirements of  Ed Code 52066. 
 

 

 

 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&amp;sectionNum=52066


 G
o
a
l 

1
: 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e 

a
ll

 L
C

A
P

s 

C
O

M
P

O
N

E
N

T
 

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
M

E
T

R
IC

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 

L
ea

rn
in

g
 C

o
n
ti

n
u
it

y
 a

n
d
 

A
tt

en
d
an

ce
 P

la
n

 (
L

C
P

) 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

P
ro

v
id

e 
al

l 
L

o
ca

l 
E

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

A
g
en

ci
es

 (
L

E
A

) 
w

it
h
 t

ec
h
n
ic

al
 

su
p

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 f

ee
d
b
ac

k
 o

n
 L

C
P

 

A
ll

 L
E

A
s 

su
b
m

it
 L

C
P

 
A

. 
P

ro
v
id

e 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

an
d
 t

ec
h
n
ic

al
 

as
si

st
an

ce
 

 B
. 
P

ro
v
id

e 
o
p
en

 o
ff

ic
e 

h
o
u
rs

 f
o
r 

d
ro

p
 i

n
 t

ec
h
n
ic

al
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 

 C
. 
R

ev
ie

w
 L

C
P

s 
an

d
 p

ro
v
id

e 

fe
ed

b
ac

k
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 b

o
ar

d
 

ap
p
ro

v
al

 

L
ea

rn
in

g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 

an
d
 

A
cc

o
u
n
ta

b
il

it
y
 P

la
n
 (

L
C

A
P

) 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 

L
C

A
P

s 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 b

y 
sc

h
o
o
l 

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 [

E
d
 C

o
d
e 

5
2
0
7
0
] 

 

P
ro

v
id

e 
al

l 
L

E
A

s 
w

it
h
 t

ec
h
n
ic

al
 

su
p
p

o
rt

 a
n
d
 f

ee
d
b
ac

k
 o

n
 i

n
it

ia
l 

d
ra

ft
s 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
ei

r 
L

C
A

P
 

P
u
b

li
c 

H
ea

ri
n
g
 

1
. 
A

ll
 L

E
A

s 
at

te
n
d
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 
L

ea
rn

in
g
 N

et
w

o
rk

 (
P

L
N

) 
m

ee
ti

n
g
s 

an
d
 t

ec
h
n
ic

al
 

as
si

st
an

ce
 i

s 
p

ro
v
id

ed
 a

s 
re

q
u

es
te

d
 

2
. 
L

C
A

P
s 

p
re

- 
ap

p
ro

v
ed

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 

P
u
b
li

c 
H

ea
ri

n
g

 a
re

 s
u
b
je

ct
 t

o
 

fi
n
al

 f
is

ca
l 

ap
p
ro

v
al

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

A
d
o
p
te

d
 B

u
d
g
et

 

A
. 
H

o
ld

 i
n
it

ia
l 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 

as
si

st
an

ce
 m

ee
ti

n
g
s 

w
it

h
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

le
ad

er
s 

b
y

 M
ay

 1
, 

2
0
2
1

 

 B
. 

P
ro

v
id

e 
te

ch
n
ic

al
 a

ss
is

ta
n
ce

 

fo
r 

L
E

A
s 

an
d
 a

sk
 q

u
es

ti
o

n
s 

re
g

ar
d
in

g
 L

C
A

P
 c

o
m

p
o
n
en

ts
 

an
d
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
 i

n
 P

L
N

 

  C
. 

P
ro

v
id

e 
a 

ti
m

el
in

e 
fo

r 

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 t

o
 u

se
 i

n
 L

C
A

P
 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

an
d

 S
u
b
m

is
si

o
n

 

 D
. 

R
ev

ie
w

 L
C

A
P

 d
ra

ft
s 

an
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e 
fe

ed
b
ac

k
 b

et
w

ee
n
  
  

 

A
p
ri

l 
- 

Ju
n
e 

2
0
2
1

 

 
P

ro
v
id

e 
o
n
g
o
in

g
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n
al

 

u
p
d

at
es

 a
n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 t

o
 

su
p

er
in

te
n
d
en

ts
 r

el
at

ed
 t

o
 

L
C

A
P

s,
 S

ta
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
es

, 
an

d
 

st
u

d
en

t 
g
ro

u
p
s 

S
u
rv

ey
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

le
ad

er
s 

to
 

m
ea

su
re

 l
ev

el
 o

f 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

su
p
p

o
rt

 a
n
d
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 v

ia
 

th
e 

P
L

N
  

A
. 
P

ro
v
id

e 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 l

ea
rn

in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

fo
cu

se
d
 o

n
 S

ta
te

 

an
d
 L

o
ca

l 
In

d
ic

at
o
rs

 a
n
d
 L

C
A

P
 

te
m

p
la

te
 c

o
m

p
o
n
en

ts
 (

i.
e.

 

A
n
n
u
al

 U
p
d
at

e,
 e

tc
.)

 

 B
. 
P

ro
v
id

e 
te

ch
n
ic

al
 a

ss
is

ta
n
ce

 

w
h
en

 n
ee

d
ed

 

  

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52070.&amp;lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52070.&amp;lawCode=EDC


 

C
O

M
P

O
N

E
N

T
 

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
M

E
T

R
IC

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

p
p

ro
v
al

 

o
f 

al
l 

L
C

A
P

s 

A
ll

 L
C

A
P

s 
ap

p
ro

v
ed

 a
n

d
 

u
p
lo

ad
ed

 t
o
 t

h
e 

co
u
n
ty

 w
eb

p
ag

e 

b
y
 S

ep
te

m
b
er

 1
5
 

R
ev

ie
w

 B
o
ar

d
 A

p
p
ro

v
ed

 

L
C

A
P

s 
in

 J
u
n
e 

- 
A

u
g
u
st

 a
n
d
 

w
o
rk

 w
it

h
 L

E
A

 l
ea

d
er

s 
to

 

en
su

re
 a

ll
 L

C
A

P
s 

ar
e 

ap
p

ro
v
ab

le
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
o
u
n
ty

 

S
u
p
er

in
te

n
d
en

t 

 G
o
a
l 

2
: 

 P
ro

v
id

e 
te

ch
n

ic
a
l 

a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 t
o
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

 b
a
se

d
 o

n
 n

ee
d

 b
y
 u

ti
li

zi
n

g
 t

h
e 

cy
cl

e 
o

f 
co

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s 
im

p
ro

v
em

en
t.

  
T

ec
h

n
ic

a
l 

a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 i
s 

p
ro

v
id

ed
 t

o
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

 w
h

o
 a

re
 i

d
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

s 
n

ee
d

in
g
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 a

s 
w

el
l 

a
s 

th
o
se

 t
h

a
t 

v
o
lu

n
te

er
 f

o
r 

a
ss

is
ta

n
c
e.

 

C
O

M
P

O
N

E
N

T
 

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
M

E
T

R
IC

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 

T
ec

h
n
ic

al
 A

ss
is

ta
n
ce

 

P
ro

vi
d
in

g
 t

ec
h
n
ic

a
l 

a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 

to
 s

ch
o
o
l 

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 p

u
rs

u
a

n
t 

to
 

su
b
d
iv

is
io

n
s 

(a
) 

a
n
d
 (

b
) 

o
f 

E
d
 

C
o
d
e 

5
2
0
7

1
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 L
E

A
s 

w
it

h
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

an
d

 i
m

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 o

f 
D

is
ta

n
ce

 

L
ea

rn
in

g
 (

D
L

) 

L
E

A
 i

m
p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 o

f 
D

L
 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
al

 S
er

v
ic

es
, 
S

p
ec

ia
l 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
, 

an
d
 P

re
v

en
ti

o
n
 

S
er

v
ic

es
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 p

ro
v
id

e 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t,

 
co

ac
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

ar
g
et

ed
 t

ec
h
n
ic

al
 

as
si

st
an

ce
 f

o
r 

D
L

 

 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 L
E

A
s 

w
it

h
 i

d
en

ti
fy

in
g
 

a 
p
ro

b
le

m
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d
 

co
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 a

 r
o
o
t 

ca
u
se

 a
n
al

y
si

s 

1
. 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
ro

o
t 

ca
u
se

 
an

al
y
si

s 
to

o
ls

 
 2
. 
A

li
g
n
m

en
t 

o
f 

L
C

A
P

 g
o
al

s 
to

 
ro

o
t 

ca
u
se

 a
n
al

y
si

s 
 3
. 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a 

p
ro

b
le

m
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
 

A
. 
W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

to
 i

d
en

ti
fy

 
ca

u
se

s 
u
si

n
g
 t

h
e 

Im
p
ro

v
em

en
t 

S
ci

en
ce

 t
o
o
ls

 (
i.

e.
 F

is
h
b
o

n
e 

D
ia

g
ra

m
, 
A

im
 S

ta
te

m
en

t,
 R

o
o
t 

C
au

se
 A

n
al

y
si

s,
 P

D
S

A
 C

y
cl

e,
 

et
c.

) 
 B

. 
In

tr
o
d
u

ce
 t

h
e 

C
o
n
ti

n
u
o
u
s 

Im
p
ro

v
em

en
t 

C
y
cl

e 
to

 d
is

tr
ic

ts
 

an
d
 P

L
N

 t
o
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
ro

o
t 

ca
u
se

s 
 C

. 
W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

to
 d

ra
ft

 
L

C
A

P
 g

o
al

s 
th

at
 a

li
g
n
 t

o
 r

o
o
t 

ca
u
se

s 
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 L
E

A
s 

w
it

h
 l

o
ca

l 
an

d
 

st
at

e 
d

at
a 

an
al

y
si

s 
an

d
 

id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

g
ap

s,
 

st
re

n
g

th
s,

 a
n

d
 w

ea
k

n
es

se
s 

1
. 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
G

re
at

es
t 

P
ro

g
re

ss
, 

G
re

at
es

t 
N

ee
d
s,

 a
n
d
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 G
ap

s 
se

ct
io

n
s 

o
f 

L
C

A
P

 
 2
. 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 o

n
 t

h
e 

C
A

 
D

as
h
b
o
ar

d
 

A
. 
W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

le
ad

er
s 

v
ia

 

th
e 

P
L

N
 t

o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

y
ea

r 
D

as
h
b
o
ar

d
 d

at
a 

to
 

d
et

er
m

in
e 

g
re

at
es

t 
p
ro

g
re

ss
, 

g
re

at
es

t 
n
ee

d
s,

 a
n
d
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

g
ap

s 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&amp;lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&amp;lawCode=EDC


 

C
O

M
P

O
N

E
N

T
 

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
M

E
T

R
IC

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 

 3
. 
L

E
A

 s
el

f-
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
re

su
lt

s 
B

. 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

n
al

y
ze

 s
ta

te
 a

n
d
 

lo
ca

l 
d
at

a 

 C
. 
P

ro
v
id

e 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

o
n
 C

A
 D

as
h
b
o
ar

d
 

A
n
al

y
si

s 

 D
. 
P

ro
v
id

e 
L

E
A

s 
w

it
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

o
n
 c

o
n
d
u
ct

in
g
 t

h
e 

L
E

A
 s

el
f-

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

to
 i

d
en

ti
fy

 s
y
st

em
s 

le
v
el

 s
tr

en
g
th

s 
an

d
 w

ea
k
n
es

se
s 

 
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 L
E

A
s 

w
it

h
 a

 s
y
n
th

es
is

 
o
f 

fi
n
d
in

g
s 

an
d
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 

1
. 
A

li
g
n
m

en
t 

o
f 

L
C

A
P

 a
ct

io
n
s 

an
d
 s

er
v
ic

es
 t

o
 i

d
en

ti
fi

ed
 

p
ro

b
le

m
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
 2
. 
A

li
g
n
m

en
t 

o
f 

D
em

o
n
st

ra
ti

o
n
 

o
f 

In
cr

ea
se

d
 o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
ed

 

S
er

v
ic

es
 f

o
r 

U
n
d
u
p
li

ca
te

d
 

P
u
p
il

s 
to

 i
d

en
ti

fi
ed

 p
ro

b
le

m
 o

f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 

 3
. 
A

li
g
n
m

en
t 

o
f 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

S
tu

d
en

t 
A

ch
ie

v
em

en
t 

an
d
 o

th
er

 

sy
st

em
 p

la
n
s 

to
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

L
C

A
P

  

 

A
. 
W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 L

E
A

s 
to

 i
d

en
ti

fy
 

ai
m

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, 
an

d
 p

ri
m

ar
y
 a

n
d
 

se
co

n
d
ar

y
 d

ri
v
er

s 
to

 a
d
d
re

ss
 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 r

o
o
t 

ca
u
se

s 
 B

. 
P

ro
v
id

e 
L

E
A

s 
w

it
h
 t

o
o
ls

 t
o
 

id
en

ti
fy

 c
h
an

g
e 

id
ea

s 
an

d
 

cr
ea

te
 A

ct
io

n
s 

an
d
 S

er
v
ic

es
 i

n
 

th
ei

r 
L

C
A

P
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

ss
 r

o
o
t 

ca
u
se

s 

 C
. 

P
ro

v
id

e 
cu

st
o
m

iz
ed

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

in
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

(s
) 

th
at

 t
h
e 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
h
as

 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

s 
a 

n
ee

d
, 
b
as

ed
 o

n
 

ro
o
t 

ca
u

se
 a

n
al

y
si

s 

 D
. 
P

ro
v
id

e 
d
is

tr
ic

t 
w

it
h
 

ev
id

en
ce

-b
as

ed
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e 

o
u
tc

o
m

es
  

     



 G
o
a
l 

3
: 

 P
ro

v
id

e 
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
o
 a

ll
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
en

ti
n

g
 t

h
ei

r 
L

C
A

P
 

C
O

M
P

O
N

E
N

T
 

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 
M

E
T

R
IC

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 

O
th

er
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
 P

ro
vi

d
in

g
 a

n
y 

o
th

er
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
o
 

sc
h
o
o
l 

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 a

n
d
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 

w
it

h
in

 t
h
e 

co
u
n
ty

 i
n
 

im
p
le

m
en

ti
n
g
 t

h
e 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n
s 

o
f 

 

E
d
 C

o
d

e 
5
2
0

7
1
. 

P
ro

v
id

e 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

sc
h
o
o
l 

an
d

 d
is

tr
ic

t 
le

ad
er

s 
to

 n
et

w
o
rk

 

an
d

 l
ea

rn
 t

o
g

et
h
er

 

A
tt

en
d
an

ce
 a

t 
P

L
N

 M
ee

ti
n
g
s  

A
. 

In
cl

u
d
e 

B
es

t 
P

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
n
d
 

E
v
id

en
ce

 B
as

ed
 R

es
ea

rc
h
 a

s 
an

 
ag

en
d
a 

it
em

 f
o
r 

P
L

N
 m

ee
ti

n
g
s 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 t

o
 s

h
ar

e 
p
ro

b
le

m
s 

o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d
 h

o
w

 t
h
ey

 a
re

 
ad

d
re

ss
ed

 i
n

 t
h
ei

r 
d
is

tr
ic

ts
 

 B
. 

P
ro

v
id

e 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
to

 s
h
ar

e 
co

n
ti

n
u
o

u
s 

im
p
ro

v
em

en
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

ce
ss

es
 u

ti
li

ze
d
 i

n
 t

h
ei

r 
d
is

tr
ic

t 
at

 m
o
n
th

ly
 P

L
N

 
m

ee
ti

n
g

s 
 C

. 
P

ro
v
id

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
/t

ra
in

in
g
 

o
n
 c

h
an

g
es

 t
o
 t

h
e 

2
0
2
1
-2

0
2
2
 

L
C

A
P

 T
em

p
la

te
  

 D
. 
A

ss
is

ta
n
ce

 s
ta

tu
s 

g
u
id

an
ce

 
an

d
 h

o
w

 i
t 

al
ig

n
s 

to
 t

h
e 

L
C

A
P

 
an

d
 S

P
S

A
 

 E
. 
C

o
ll

ab
o
ra

te
 w

it
h
 o

th
er

 L
E

A
s 

an
d
 C

O
E

s 

 
A

ss
is

t 
L

E
A

s 
in

 i
m

p
le

m
en

ti
n
g
 

an
d

 m
o
n
it

o
ri

n
g
 i

m
p
ac

t 
o
f 

ac
ti

o
n
s 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 i

n
 t

h
ei

r 
L

C
A

P
 

1
. 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

A
n
n
u
al

 
U

p
d
at

es
 

 2
. 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
p
ro

g
re

ss
 o

n
 t

h
e 

C
A

 
D

as
h
b
o

ar
d

 
 3
. 
A

tt
en

d
an

ce
 a

t 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 
le

ar
n
in

g
 e

v
en

ts
  

 

A
. 
R

ev
ie

w
 L

E
A

s 
A

n
n
u
al

 
U

p
d
at

es
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 o

n
 

th
e 

C
A

 D
as

h
b
o
ar

d
 

 B
. 
P

ro
v
id

e 
in

d
iv

id
u
al

iz
ed

 
su

p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 L

E
A

s 
t 

in
 d

is
tr

ic
t-

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

re
as

. 
 

 C
. 
P

ro
v
id

e 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 l
ea

rn
in

g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

in
 t

ar
g
et

ed
 a

re
as

 

 

  

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&amp;lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&amp;lawCode=EDC


 

C
o
ll

a
b

o
ra

ti
o
n

 
 
T

h
e 

C
o
lu

sa
 C

o
u
n

ty
 S

u
p
er

in
te

n
d
en

t 
o
f 

S
ch

o
o
ls

 w
il

l 
co

ll
ab

o
ra

te
 w

it
h
 t

h
e 

C
C

E
E

, 
th

e 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
o
f 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o

n
 (

C
D

E
) 

o
th

er
 c

o
u
n
ty

 s
u
p
er

in
te

n
d
en

ts
 (

C
C

S
E

S
A

),
 C

ap
it

al
 C

en
tr

al
 F

o
o
th

il
l 

A
re

a 
C

o
n
so

rt
iu

m
 (

C
C

F
A

C
) 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 L
E

A
s 

an
d
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 w
it

h
in

 

th
e 

co
u
n
ty

 i
m

p
le

m
en

ti
n
g
 L

C
A

P
s 

in
 t

h
e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
 w

ay
s:

 
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s 
C

C
E

E
 

C
D

E
 

C
C

S
E

S
A

 
G

eo
 

L
ea

d
s 

T
ri

-C
o
u

n
ty

 

C
o
n

so
rt

ia
 

S
ta

te
 

S
E

L
P

A
 S

E
A

C
O

 C
A

F
S

E
 

C
o
lu

sa
 C

o
u
n
ty

 S
u
p
er

in
te

n
d
en

t 
o
f 

S
ch

o
o
ls

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

es
 

in
 q

u
ar

te
rl

y
 C

C
S

E
S

A
 m

ee
ti

n
g
s.

 

X
 

X
 

X
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u
p
er

in
te

n
d
en

t-
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 S

er
v

ic
es

 m
ee

ts
 

b
i-

m
o
n
th

ly
 w

it
h
 C

&
I 

le
ad

er
s 

ac
ro

ss
 t

h
e 

st
at

e 
at

 
C

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 a

n
d
 I

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 S
te

er
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

(C
IS

C
) 

m
ee

ti
n
g
s.

 

X
 

X
 

X
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
t-

E
d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 S

er
v

ic
es

 c
o

-
le

ad
s 

a 
N

o
rt

h
 C

en
tr

al
 C

o
u
n
ti

es
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 L
ea

rn
in

g
 

N
et

w
o
rk

 C
o
n
so

rt
iu

m
 (

N
C

C
P

L
N

),
 w

h
ic

h
 i

n
cl

u
d
es

 
d
is

tr
ic

ts
 a

n
d
 c

h
ar

te
r 

sc
h
o
o
ls

. 
 E

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
al

 S
er

v
ic

es
, 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
se

rv
ic

es
, 
an

d
 S

E
L

P
A

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

es
 i

n
 t

h
e 

N
C

C
P

L
N

. 
 

 
 

 
X

 
X

 
 

 
 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
t-

E
d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 S

er
v

ic
es

 m
ee

ts
 

m
o
n
th

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

ap
it

al
 C

en
tr

al
 F

o
o
th

il
ls

 A
re

a 

C
o
n
so

rt
iu

m
 (

C
C

F
A

C
) 

th
e 

G
eo

g
ra

p
h

ic
 L

ea
d
 A

g
en

cy
 

G
ro

u
p
 f

o
r 

th
e 

ar
ea

. 

 
 

X
    

X
 

 
 

 
 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
t-

E
d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 S

er
v

ic
es

 s
er

v
es

 

as
 a

n
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 M
em

b
er

 a
n

d
 m

ee
ts

 m
o

n
th

ly
 w

it
h
 t

h
e 

C
C

F
A

C
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p

. 

 
 

X
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 S
u
p

er
in

te
n
d

en
t-

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 s
er

v
ic

es
 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

es
 i

n
 C

C
F

A
C

 w
o
rk

g
ro

u
p
s 

fo
r:

 U
D

L
, 

E
L

, 

an
d
 e

q
u
it

y
. 

 

 
 

X
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
t-

E
d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 s

er
v
ic

es
 m

ee
ts

 

b
i-

m
o
n

th
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

B
il

in
g
u

al
 C

o
o
rd

in
at

o
rs

 N
et

w
o
rk

 

g
ro

u
p

. 

 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

A
c
ti

o
n

s 
C

C
E

E
 

C
D

E
 

C
C

S
E

S
A

 
G

eo
 

L
ea

d
s 

T
ri

-C
o
u

n
ty

 

C
o
n

so
rt

ia
 

S
ta

te
 

S
E

L
P

A
 S

E
A

C
O

 C
A

F
S

E
 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
t-

E
d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 s

er
v
ic

es
 m

ee
ts

 

m
o
n
th

ly
 w

it
h

 C
ap

it
al

 S
er

v
ic

e 
R

eg
io

n
 3

 l
ea

d
er

s.
 

 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
t-

E
d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 S

er
v

ic
es

 a
tt

en
d

s 

S
ta

te
 a

n
d

 F
ed

er
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 M

ee
ti

n
g
s.

 

X
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
t-

E
d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 S

er
v

ic
es

 a
tt

en
d

s 

S
ta

te
 a

n
d

 F
ed

er
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 M

ee
ti

n
g
s.

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
t-

E
d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 S

er
v

ic
es

 a
tt

en
d

s 

T
r-

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

S
L

A
 C

o
n
so

rt
iu

m
 m

ee
ti

n
g

s.
 

X
 

 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

A
ss

o
ci

at
e 

S
u

p
er

in
te

n
d

en
t-

B
u

si
n

es
s 

at
te

n
d

s 
B

A
S

C
 

m
ee

ti
n
g
s.

 

 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u
p
er

in
te

n
d
en

t-
S

p
ec

ia
l 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

es
 i

n
 m

o
n
th

ly
 S

ta
te

 S
E

L
P

A
 m

ee
ti

n
g
s 

to
 g

ai
n
 

fu
rt

h
er

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e 

o
n
 S

p
ec

ia
l 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 t

im
el

in
es

, 

b
u
d
g
et

, 
re

v
ie

w
s,

 a
n
d
 n

ew
 l

aw
s.

 

 
X

 
 

 
 

X
 

 
 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u
p
er

in
te

n
d
en

t-
S

p
ec

ia
l 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

tt
en

d
s 

S
E

A
C

O
 m

ee
ti

n
g
s.

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

X
 

 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

S
u
p
er

in
te

n
d
en

t-
S

p
ec

ia
l 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

es
 i

n
 C

A
F

S
E

 m
o
n
th

ly
 m

ee
ti

n
g
s 

ab
o
u
t 

S
p
ec

ia
l 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 l

aw
s 

an
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
X

 

       



 

B
u

d
g

et
 

 

D
if

fe
r
en

ti
a
te

d
 A

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 a

n
d

 L
C

A
P

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 

2
0
2
0
-2

1
 E

st
im

a
te

d
 C

o
st

s 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

d
 P

er
so

n
n

el
 (

S
al

ar
ie

s 
&

 B
en

ef
it

s)
 

$
1
8
2
,4

1
5
  

C
la

ss
if

ie
d
 P

er
so

n
n
el

 (
S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 B

en
ef

it
s)

 
$
2
0
,9

6
0

 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 S

u
p
p
li

es
 

$
1
,0

0
0

 

T
ra

v
el

 
$
2
0
0

 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

/C
o
n
su

lt
in

g
 S

er
v
ic

es
 &

 O
p
er

at
io

n
al

 E
x
p
en

se
s 

$
5
,0

0
0

 

T
o
ta

l 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o
st

 
$
2
0
9
,5

7
5

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Tuesday, November 10, 2020 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID:  913 7254 3440  Passcode:  810120 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 
https://zoom.us/j/91372543440?pwd=SlVjb0xTZk41YnFhMmxiVTlrQ2Z1QT09 
  Meeting ID:  913 7254 3440  Passcode:  7Pj3AX 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2020, Agenda 
Page 2 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Assembly Members' Letter to CHHS Secretary Ghaly Re: Reopening Schools 
4.2 Superintendents of the Sacramento, Santa Ana, Long Beach, Los Angeles, 

Oakland, San Diego and Fresno School Districts to Governor Newsom Re:  
Common Standards 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – October Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 
6.5.1 SELPA – October Meeting 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the October 14, 2020, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.1.1 Woodland Community College – President’s College Report 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2020, Agenda 
Page 3 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Accept 2019‐20 Financial Audit Report, Presented by  action 
  James Marta & Co. – Mario da Costa 

11.2 Upcoming December Annual Organizational Meeting Considerations 
11.2.1 Draft Schedule of 2021 Regular Meetings  information 
11.2.2 Draft President Rotation Schedule  information 
11.2.3 Draft Liaison Assignments  information 

11.3 Approve setting December 14, 2020, 4:00 pm, as the Date and Time  action 
for the Colusa County Board of Education Annual Organizational 

Meeting as Required by EC 35143 

11.4 Williams Settlement Act Report to the County Board of Education  information 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  action 
Annual Organizational Meeting and First Interim Report 
Friday, December 11, 2020, 4:00 p.m. (Note:  Not the second 
Wednesday due to the EC 35143 mandated window of dates and 
the First Interim Report submission deadline) 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 









 

 

November 2, 2020 
 
Honorable Gavin Newsom 
State Capitol, 1303 10th Street, Suite 1173  
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 

 
Governor Newsom,  
 
It has been seven long months since school facilities closed due to the Covid-19 pandemic. We all 

recognize that the best place for students to learn is in schools. We also know the impact of this virus 

may be with us for some time to come and during this period it is imperative that all students are 

able to return to school. Our shared objective is to facilitate this return as soon as possible, but the 

health and safety of all in the school community must remain our top priority. So today we offer a 

Common Standard for schools to safely reopen and remain open. 

  

Collectively, our schools impact more than a million students, over a hundred thousand staff 

members and over seven million people in the communities we serve. Many of the challenges society 

faces – poverty, inequity and now COVID-19 – present themselves in our schools each day, and 

schools alone cannot solve these problems. While each of our school districts and hardworking 

employees are doing remarkable things to provide the best possible education for students, 

additional assistance is critically necessary to reopen, and keep open, schools safely.  In this area, 

educators, labor and management, are agreed: it will take collective action and additional funding 

to bring students, teachers and staff back to schools in the way that is as safe as possible and 

sustainable for the long-term.  

 

California has long maintained a set of standards for health, education and employee practices in 

schools. This crisis is not a time to lessen standards which could compromise the health and safety of 

all in the school community, the quality of education being provided to students or the protections 

for employees in the workplace.  

 

As we plan for a new semester, which will begin in January, there is a pressing need for a clear and 

consistent set of guidelines which would set forth the health, education and employee practices and 

standards needed to reopen our schools, and keep them open.  

 

 



 

Representing geography from northern to southern California, multiple counties and diverse communities, the 

undersigned superintendents have agreed that a Common Standard is needed to serve as a blueprint for schools to 

safely reopen and remain open.  The Common Standard should attend to the critical areas of work outlined below (see 

Appendix A). Our ability to implement a Common Standard, however, is dependent upon the necessary funding and 

participation by federal, state, and local governments and health authorities.  

 

Clearly the overall level of COVID-19 must be within the guidelines already set by the state of California for schools to 

consider reopening. Once that community threshold has been reached, this Common Standard will provide the 

additional clarity needed by all who work in schools, as well as the families we serve, to be confident that schools will 

reopen and remain open in the safest way possible while providing the best possible education to students.  

 

We hope you will join us now in implementing a Common Standard for schools to safely reopen and remain open so 

the foundation can be in place for our school districts to provide as many students in-person instruction as safety will 

allow.  

 

We would welcome the opportunity to discuss this with you at your earliest convenience.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CC: California Congressional Delegation 

Kyla Johnson-Trammell 
Superintendent 
Oakland Unified 

 

Jill Baker 
Superintendent 

Long Beach Unified 

Bob Nelson 
Superintendent 
Fresno Unified 

 

Austin Beutner 
Superintendent 

Los Angeles Unified 

Cindy Marten 
Superintendent 

San Diego Unified 
 

Jorge Aguilar 
Superintendent 

Sacramento City Unified 
 

Jerry Almendarez 
Superintendent 

Santa Ana Unified 
 



 

Appendix A 

A Common Standard  

for schools to safely reopen and remain open 

 
Health and Safety Practices at Schools 

Ensure common health and safety practices are identified, including: 

• Appropriate signage to encourage safe health practices in language that is accessible to students and 

families 

• Health check and temperature checks (at home or school) before entering school each day 

• Cleaning and sanitizing classrooms and school facilities before use by students or staff 

• Appropriate ventilation in classrooms and workspaces 

• Availability of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) including face coverings, hand soap and hand 

sanitizers 

• Assurance of appropriate social distancing in classrooms and common spaces with the maximum 

possible distance between students in classrooms and at least 6 feet distance between students and 

teachers or other staff members 

• Appropriate staffing in schools to coordinate student and adult movement and to maintain safe 

distances in common areas 

• Standards and protocols for isolation (care) rooms at all schools 

• Safety training materials for employees, students and families 

• All students and staff wear face coverings, as required by the California Department of Public Health 

(CDPH), unless medically exempted 

 

COVID-19 Testing at Schools 

• Criteria for regular surveillance testing for school personnel and students, free of cost to students, staff, 

and school districts (including any future increases in insurance premiums) 

• Free to the individual immediate testing for all symptomatic students, employees, and families whose 

students test positive or students or employees who are exposed to a Covid-19 positive person 

• Expectation that all teachers, staff and students will be tested on a regular basis, with students being 

tested at school, including the additional appropriate personnel to conduct on-site testing for students 

• Tests will be the currently recommended industry standard and capable of being self-administered 

• Testing will be provided at sites within the community 

• Results of test to be available within approximately 24-48 hours to allow rapid intervention, i.e. a test 

taken on Monday would provide results in the time to intervene before Wednesday’s school day 

• Multi-lingual hotlines and/or other technological aids will be established to assist families and 

employees with general Covid-19 questions and contact tracing 

• Testing aligned with HIPAA regulations 

 

Community Engagement and Contact Tracing 

• Multi language ability to contact those who test positive within 24 hours of the availability of test results 



 

• Ability to publish and share school COVID report card to identify both the cohort impacted by the virus 

in a school and the cohorts which are not impacted 

• Information system in place to share data with appropriate staff, students, families and local authorities 

and monitor compliance with testing and tracing program 

• Information system to protect the security of the data 

 

Instruction 

• Meet or exceed all SB98 requirements to have agreed upon instructional baselines through methods of 

in-person Instruction - frequency may vary.  

• Provide in-person related service for students with disabilities. 

• Provide on campus space (and staffing) for students unable to accesses asynchronous instruction from 

home. 

• Adequate staffing to ensure assessments and services are provided in a timely manner for students with 

disabilities, English-learners, and gifted students 

• Technology and connectivity access for all Pre-K-12 students and employees 

Student Supervision 

• Students are provided with a supervised learning environment during and after school hours  

 

Transportation 

• All students in need of transportation receive necessary services in a manner consistent with 

appropriate health practices  

 

Community Health Metrics  

• Follow the COVID-19 levels County dashboards to determine eligibility for reopening.  Follow the CDPH 

guidance to determine school closure due to community spread   

 

Employee Protection (In all cases, employees will work with their supervisor to determine if working remotely is 

an option. If remote work is not an option, the following apply): 

 

• Employees who have an underlying health condition that puts them at increased risk may: 

o Be eligible for Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) benefits, including Employee Paid 

Sick leave (EPSL) (prior to 1/1/21) 

o Utilize their benefitted time, including a leave of absence, consistent with applicable CBA’s 

o Request a Reasonable Accommodation 

 

• Employees who cannot physically return to a worksite because they are responsible for individual(s) 

with an underlying health condition may: 

o Use benefitted time such as personal necessity/kin-care for a qualifying relationship for up to six 

days 

o Be eligible for a personal unpaid leave of absence consistent with applicable CBAs 

o Be eligible to utilize FFRA benefits such as EPSL (only for COVID related sickness) if the person 
under their care is under quarantine (prior to 1/1/21) 



 

 

• Employees whose children’s schools are closed/child-care provider is not available may utilize FFCRA 
benefits including Family Medical Leave Act Plus benefits (prior to 1/1/21) 

• Employees who feel uncomfortable about physically returning to the worksite may work with their 
supervisor to determine if working remotely is an option or take an unpaid leave of absence 

 



  Educational Services Board Report 

November/ December 2020 

  

 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 

 S. William Abel Academy Students have returned to a hybrid schedule of three days per week on campus. Parents 

and students were excited to return to school.   

 In the classroom, S. Williams Abel Academy Students are learning about Day of the Dead customs and traditions. 

In the upcoming weeks, the students will be learning about the importance of harvest and the connection that 

harvest has to the first Thanksgiving. Along with learning about Thanksgiving, students will be studying about 

holidays from around the world. In December, students will be participating in midterm projects, which will 

reflect the student’s learning over the past four months of instruction. 

 Parent/Student/Teacher Conferences and Individualized Learning Plan (ILP) Meetings were recently held for 

SWAA Students. 

 

Colusa County Adult School 

 The 20 cadets have been selected for the 2020-21 Basic Wildland Fire Academy from a pool of 32 applicants.  

Orientation for the new cadets will be held on Saturday, November 14, 2020. 

 

Farm to School 

 Farm to School efforts have resumed with the S. William Abel Academy students planting a fall garden of 

broccoli, cauliflower, and other vegetables. 

 The Farm to School Program has partnered with Sutter County Office of Education on the K12 Strong Workforce 

Grant. 

 

Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 

 Zoom meetings continue to take place to discuss how to support the districts and build capacity at the district and 

county office levels.   
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 

 Educational Services is working with Williams Upper Elementary School to disaggregate the student data and 

imbedding it into the CSI school plan and the School Plan for Student Achievement.  

 A revision to the CCOE CSI budget was completed and approved by CDE.   Monies were shifted from services to 

salary/benefits as more technical assistance is being provided to the school administration.     

 

Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

 Although DA is on hold, Educational Services continues to provide support to the LEAs in various areas of need.  

Most recently, Educational Services has provided student data analysis to Williams Unified, English learner 

guidance to Colusa Unified, parent education for Pierce Unified, and CTE guidance to Maxwell Unified.   

 A parent presentation regarding the prevalence of mental health issues among children and youth took place on 

10/26.  Parent/guardians learned basic skills in approaching the topic of mental well-being with their children, the 

dangers of stigma, signs, and symptoms to look for, and when to seek professional support. A second training will 

take place on 11/7.  

 

Health Education Framework 

 As a follow up to the October 8th teacher training, instructional materials were ordered for each participating 

school.  The materials were funded through Orange COE for all participating county offices.   

 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

 A CDE webinar took place on 10/27/2020 to go over the Draft Annual Update template for the 2019-20 LCAP 

and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan (LCP).  



 The LCAP requires Annual Measurable Outcomes for each Goal and Actions/Services including an overall 

Analysis of the overall implementation of the Actions/Services. 

 The LCP requires an analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings, Distance Learning Program, and Pupil 

Learning Loss: successes, challenges, substantive differences in planned actions, continuity of instruction, access 

to devices and connectivity, pupil participation and progress, professional development, staff roles and 

responsibilities, supports for pupils with unique needs, an explanation of material differences between budget 

expenditures and estimated actual expenditures, and an explanation of how the lessons learned have informed the 

development of Goals, Actions/Services in the 2021-24 LCAP.  

North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 

 No report. No meetings took place. 

 

School Improvement Grant (SIG) 

 Educational Services is providing support to Williams Elementary School to disaggregate and analyze state and 

local student data, conduct root cause analysis, and develop plans based on the data gaps.  

 

System of Support Expanded Learning Program (After School Programs) (SSELP) 

 Technical Assistance continues for the afterschool programs as needed and upon request of each coordinator.  

Professional development is being provided to the coordinators and their instructors as well.  

 

PREVENTION SERVICES 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 

 Second Step personnel participated in the Social Emotional Learning Community of Practice training on 10/13 

and a debrief and planning meeting took place to discuss how to implement some of the skills during the training.   

 

Foster Youth 

 The Prevention Services Departments is still currently recruiting to fill the vacant AmeriCorps, Foster Youth 

Mentor position. We have not had any applicants. 

 Title IV-E Quarter 1 report was submitted to DHHS. 

 A McKinney-Vento and Foster Youth education training will be held for the Parent Policy Council in near future. 

 

Homeless/McKinney-Vento  

 Quarter 5 expenditure report was submitted to CDE. 

 The Educational Services Prevention Services Department collaborated with CDE’s Project Cal-Well to provide a 

Mental Health Awareness presentation for parents in English on 10/26. A Spanish presentation is scheduled for 

Saturday, November 7 from 12pm-2pm. 

 The Education for Homeless Children and Youth grant is available to apply for and it is due in February. 

Prevention Services is working on the grant and will be conducting community needs assessments and gathering 

three letters of support from local community agencies. 

 A National Association of Education of Homeless Children and Youth (NAEHCY) virtual conference was held 

on 10/5/2020 through 10/9/2020. 

 A district liaison meeting was held on 10/19/2020, which was led by Patricia Julianelle from School House 

Connection. 

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 

 Tobacco education resources and over 1,200 Tobacco Education Prevention Red Ribbon Week baggies were 

provided to the districts.  Educational Services is working with the districts to provide one on one Vaping 

prevention support to students.  

Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

 No report.  

 



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report November 10, 2020 

 

We are happy to report that T-Mobile has officially offered us terms to lease spectrum 
for use with the Colusa County EduNet.  We have signed our paperwork. As a final 
requirement, T-Mobile must receive the consent to the sublease from the original 
license holder to complete the process, which is essentially a formality. 
 
We have purchased radios and antennas off CCOE’s RFP for Maxwell and Pierce.  
Both districts have purchased their student LTE routers and Maxwells has just received 
theirs.  We are working with Suez the company that maintains the Maxwell water tower 
to weld mounting brackets for our equipment. 
 
Since we recently standardized on the more powerful 20watt radios, CCOE has made 
an agreement with Williams and purchased 20watt radios to replace the 10watt radios 
that were already deployed on the Williams water tower for the test pilot.  Williams will 
pay to have them swapped out.  CCOE will reuse these 10watt radios in locations that 
require backfilling of spectrum throughout the county. 
 
Colusa Unified administration has agreed to move forward with the EduNet.  We are 
presenting to their board at their November board meeting.  We have an agreement in 
place with Colusa Reclamation District to use their tower to mount their equipment.   
 
We are finalizing an agreement with Yuba Community College District to partner with 
them in the efforts of expanding the Colusa County EduNet in our county on their 
spectrum.  As part of the agreement, we will be helping them to deploy their own 
network for YCCD use. 
 
We had a Tech only CEWAN Meeting to quickly discuss matters.  The iBoss content 
filter deployment will be held over until next summer due to the major filtering 
disruptions that should not happen in real time.  The equipment arrived too late in the 
summer to deploy it.  We will also start the process of looking for a new firewall this 
year.   
 
We are working on deploying thermal scanners at each preschool location and at the 
CCOE Business Office once all the equipment arrives. 
 
We have been helping deploy the CCOE Education Village badge notification system. 
 
We are working with our vendor to line out E-rate for this year. 
 
 







COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting October 14, 2020 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Aaron Heinz, Vicki Markss, 

Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Chuck Wayman, 
Michael West, and Karisa Williams 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Ed Conrado called the meeting to order at 4:06 p.m. in the 345 5th 
Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the Pledge of 
Allegiance, and made the following announcements. 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma 

Lorilee Niesen reported on one recent graduate from Colusa County Adult 
School.  Lorilee shared a photograph of the graduate receiving her diploma and 
she explained the graduate’s absence. 

4.2 Update from CCBE Region 4 Representative David Patterson 
4.3 SSDA President Stuart Packard Letter to Members 
4.4 CDPH Letter Regarding COVID‐19 Monitoring List and Colusa Schools 
4.5 CDPH Blueprint Data Chart 

Michael West presented a CDPH COVID 19 Blueprint Data Chart, which indicated 
Colusa County moved up to the next, less restrictive tier, and he said that Colusa 
County may be able to reopen schools in the foreseeable future. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

   

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 14, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West elaborated further on moving to the next tier, which could 
allow schools to open within the next month without CDPH approval.  
Currently a combination of distance learning is happening in grades 7‐12; 
however, first quarter grades indicated poor results.  Michael spoke 
about the learning loss between March 2020 and the date that schools 
reopen, and the massive need for remediation, possibly including 
required summer school, which would face many hurdles.  Michael said 
another area of concern is the statewide reduction in ADA, with greater 
than 60 Colusa County students currently not accounted for.  He reported 
that Our Lady of Lourdes, MUSD, and Princeton are offering TK‐6 grade in 
class instruction with no issues reported so far, and that CUSD has 
applied for a waiver.  Michael announced that the WHO has determined 
that sequestration and restrictions are not good for health issues, and the 
CDC reported that 98% of people 65 and younger have recovered and 
that 95% of those 65 and over have recovered.  He also said that the 
County received a distribution of PPEs from the OES to meet the needs of 
the County.  Michael assured the group that as the County transitions to 
the red tier and beyond, the districts will follow guidelines and protocols 
suggested to be followed as much as practicable; that district 
superintendents are communicating closely as issues arise; and that we 
will still see distance learning, blended learning, and face‐to‐face 
Instruction at differing levels throughout the county.  He went on to say 
that evaluations will take place weekly as to levels of safety, monitoring 
of students and staff, overall activity, and the need or not for continued 
protocols, with the County Health Department being prepared to step in 
whenever necessary.  Michael reported on safety protocols at the Village, 
administrative offices, and preschool sites.  He said that CCOE received 
equipment for the real time monitoring of individuals via thermal scan 
and the system is operational.  Michael spoke about staff trainings to 
celebrate their successes with distance learning, and his Williams 
Settlement Act activities.  Discussion was held on low grades, academic 
rigor, on pressure that teachers have experienced to lower the bar, on 
using summer school for student remediation, on the early retirement 
rate for educators, and on getting all student demographics caught up.  
Maria Arvizu Espinoza said that she has been working with the Mexican 
Consulate and Migrant Education to facilitate translation of student 
transcripts before those students return to Mexico, and on allowing 
students to take their devices to continue their distance learning in 
Mexico.  Discussion was also held on supporting teaching staff. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 14, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – October Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the district Superintendents via 
Zoom in October and the group discussed district and COE plans and 
challenges.  Discussion was held on the high quality of administrators and 
teaching staff, and on the importance of essential learning. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
The Board did not have any questions for Aaron Heinz. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Vicki Markss’ October 
2020 Children’s Services written report. 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza’s 
October 2020 Educational Services written report. 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman presented his October 2020 Special Education and SELPA report 
to the Board by highlighting the department’s Service Provider Resources 
website to assist parents and students in distance learning.  These resources 
included information on Workability 1 Transition Activities, Preschool Special 
Education Activities, Adapted Physical Education, and Speech and Language.  The 
site also offers one‐stop shopping for service provider services.  Chuck said that 
this site would continue to be maintained after COVID 19.  Chuck answered 
questions regarding whether the federal or state governments relaxed any 
requirements; such as the IEP process, by saying the federal government has not 
relinquished any requirements, but the state has been a little lenient.  He said 
that that the state is keeping up the timeline for this year, while encouraging the 
department to prioritize and catch up IEPs from last year.  Chuck added that the 
program is seeing referrals for Special Education service for students’ poor 
performance in distance learning, and Special Education does not have the staff 
to offer those services.  Discussion was help on using the budget help provide 
those services. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Alex Evans’ October 
2020 Technology Services written report.  The Board offered congratulations on 
the progress of the EduNet project.  Alex provided an update on the project 
including the purchase of infrastructure equipment for MUSD and PJUSD and a 
meeting scheduled with the CUSD CBO to solidify plans for that district.  He also 
said the team developed a strategy to replace WUSD’s 10‐watt radios with 20‐
watt radios to alleviate object interference (e.g. leaves and trees) and making 20‐
watt radios the standard for future installations.  Alex also reported on a 
meeting today with Reclamation District 1004 who agreed to provide a vertical 
asset for CUSD. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 14, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No Report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Brenda Miller/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried three ayes (Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), two absent (Lynn 
Bowen Burnham and Jason McMullan) to approve the following Consent Agenda items: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the September 9, 2020, Public Hearing on Availability of 
Textbooks and Instructional Materials 

8.2 Approve Minutes of the September 9, 2020, Public Hearing on Learning 
Continuity and Attendance Plan 

8.3 Approve Minutes of the September 9, 2020, Regular Board Meeting 
8.4 Approve Minutes of the September 14, 2020, Special Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that YCCD has agreed to work with CCOE to use their 
spectrum for EduNet expansion.  Alex Evans said CCOE solidified a partnership 
with YCCD, and that they are hoping to develop their own network modeled 
after CCOE’s specifically for Yuba, Sutter, Yolo, Colusa, and Lake Counties.  CCOE 
will work with and train YCCD so that they may bring the spectrum to their 
schools. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West announced that CCOE is finally enacting plans to deal with garage 
doors; security of facility; expansion of Farm to School ideas and additional use 
of California native grasses, scrubs, trees, and sod at the entire Village; and 
improvement of the audio‐visual equipment at the at the multipurpose room. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reminded the Board that the LCAP is not required this 
year, but she said that she reviewed all LCPs and Michael West submitted an 
acknowledgement letter to all district superintendents. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Project Director Karisa Williams reported on 
grant activities, including Fall Fest activities at local restaurants in Colusa 
Arbuckle and Williams; distributing books during food distribution events; 
providing devices to TK through third grade students; hosting Book sharing and 
Story time with Pinky programs, and two trainings for Spanish language 



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 14, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

preschool providers on F2B.  Karisa said because of the F2B dashboard, we are 
able to see that from July 1, 2020 to October 11, 2020, district students in the 
County spent over 2,300 hours on literacy.  The Board complimented IAL for 
their outreach activities.  Michael West encouraged the Board to go to CCOE’s 
Facebook page to view Jennifer Jelavich’s videos of IAL activities. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve 2019‐20 Unaudited Actuals 

Aaron Heinz presented information from the 2019‐20 Unaudited Actuals Report, 
describing it as a wrap‐up scorecard of the condition of CCOE’s budget at the end 
of 2019‐20.  Aaron reported that due to COVID 19, CCOE had less expenditures 
than anticipated in the second half of the year, and the ending fund balance 
increased by $477,000.  Discussion was held on the source of savings, which 
Aaron said were across the Board.  He added that the Indirect Cost Rate for 
2021‐22 will be 10.93%, which is a slight increase from 2020‐21’s rate of 10.10%.  
Discussion was held on Special Education’s Indirect Cost Rate. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried three 
ayes (Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), two absent (Lynn Bowen 
Burnham and Jason McMullan) to approve the 2019‐20 Unaudited Actuals. 

11.2 Approve Board Resolution No. 20/21‐02 Gann Limits 
Aaron Heinz reported on the history of the annual Gann Limits Resolution, and 
on the need to correct Board Resolution No. 20/21‐02 Gann Limits due to a 
clerical error. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried three 
ayes (Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), two absent (Lynn Bowen 
Burnham and Jason McMullan) to approve the corrected Board Resolution No. 
20/21‐02 Gann Limits. 

11.3 Public Disclosure of the 2020‐21 Negotiated Agreement Between the Colusa 
County Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa County Education Services 
Professionals (CCESP) 
Michael West explained that this document discloses to the Board and to the 
public the negotiated agreement between CCOE and the Colusa County 
Education Services Professionals (CCESP). 

11.4 Public Disclosure of the 2020‐21 Negotiated Agreement Between the Colusa 
County Superintendent of Schools and the Educators of Colusa County Office of 
Education (ECCOE) 
Michael West explained that this document discloses to the Board and to the 
public the negotiated agreement between CCOE and the Educators of Colusa 
County Office of Education (ECCOE).  Discussion was held on the need to change 
contract language, and Serena Morrow said changes were the result of changing 
laws and old contract language. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
October 14, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

11.5 Approve HDV Employer Contribution Increase Recommendation 
11.5.1 Board of Education 
11.5.2 County Superintendent of Schools 
Discussion was held on the HDV cap increase that CCOE approved for employees, 
and on whether the cap should increase for the Board and Superintendent as 
well. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried three 
ayes (Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), two absent (Lynn Bowen 
Burnham and Jason McMullan) to approve the HDV Employer Contribution 
Increase Recommendation for the Board of Education and the County 
Superintendent of School. 

11.6 Approve 2020‐21 CCOE Annual Plan for LCAP Support 
Maria Arvizu Espinoza reported that SB 98 did not suspend the Annual Plan for 
LCAP Support, which documents support that CCOE provides to the districts and 
schools. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried three 
ayes (Ed Conrado, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), two absent (Lynn Bowen 
Burnham and Jason McMullan) to approve the 2020‐21 CCOE Annual Plan for 
LCAP Support. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

No items added. 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
November 10, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:08 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Ed Conrado, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

ADA  Average Daily Attendance 

CBO  Chief Business Official 

CCESP  Colusa County Educational Support Professionals 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CDC  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

CDE  California Department of Education 

CDPH  California Department of Public Health 

COE  County Office of Education 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

CUSD  Colusa Unified School District 

ECCOE  Educators of Colusa County Office of Education 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

HDV  Health, Dental, & Vision (in terms of insurance) 

IEP  Individualized Education Program 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LCP  Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan  

MUSD  Maxwell Unified School District 

OES  Office of Emergency Services 

PJUSD  Pierce Joint Unified School District 

PPE  Personal Protective Equipment 

SB  Senate Bill 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

TK  Transitional Kindergarten 

WHO  World Health Organization 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

YCCD  Yuba Community College District 

 



 
 
 

President’s College Report 
October 30, 2020 

 
 

It has been a busy month at WCC, and things will start getting busier as registration for the spring 
semester begins on November 16. Below is my report for October and includes several updates on 
the spring semester, LCC website integration, and more. I wish each one of you continued health and 
well-being. Thank you as always for all that you do for our students. 

 

Excellence in Education Awards 2020 Yolo County Office 
of Education: 
On behalf of WCC, please join me in congratulating Isabel 
Duenas, Rajdeep Johal, Ariane Metz, and Annette Lee for 
being recognized by Yolo County Office of Education for 
their outstanding work with Student Outreach and as part of the Guided Pathways Initiative 
respectively. They were honored at the Excellence in Education Awards hosted by Yolo County Office 
of Education at their virtual celebration on Monday, October 26. For more information on the event 
itself and to learn more about the honors presented, check out the Press release below. 

 
YCOE Press Release : Excellence in Education 

 

Town Hall for LCC: 
On October 8th we were able to connect with faculty, staff and students for our LCC town hall. If 
you missed the live events, visit our website to view the PPT and Zoom recordings. It is not quite 
the same as seeing everyone in person, but it is certainly a good way to connect and keep 
everyone updated. The town hall was co-hosted by Academic Senate President Christopher 
Howerton and Dean of the Lake campus Dr. Cirilo Cortez. 

LCC Town Hall 
 

Professional Development Day Activities TODAY, October 30: 
Building from the great success of our first Professional Development day of fall 2020, the Office of 
Instruction and Flex Committee developed a second day of activities, focusing on self-care and overall 
wellness, providing staff and faculty an opportunity to gain some amazing resources and tools to use 
both on and off the job. Workshops include Meditation and Yoga sessions, a third presentation by 
Lasana Hotep and additional trainings from Peralta College partners for online courses. A full listing of 
the workshops offered as well as links to the Zoom recordings will be made available in the coming 
days. 

 
Student ID Cards: 
In collaboration with ASWCC and Student Services we are a few weeks away from being able to 
provide ID cards for free for students and WCC staff. The equipment has been ordered and should be 
arriving and installed within the next several weeks. The goal is to offer student and staff ID’s during 
the week of November 16th. More information will be shared in the next weeks. 

https://cccconfer.zoom.us/rec/play/t7cTP0DG1SoR_zt94c4494mglciMOBIkiyA4jHR8Ky1naAZ7oAtS9qs94n2IsLFydVPr3v6XegY3jLlJ.yTraG1Ef0kwMRBwJ


 

Class schedule is LIVE – Registration for Spring 2021 begins on November 16: 
Office of Instruction and Student Services have been hard at work getting ready to welcome students 
to the spring 2021 semester by developing a master list of courses to be offered. It is a team effort 
that gets this project off the group every semester, so a big thank you to everyone who has made this 
possible. Please encourage your students to visit our counselors who are available to meet with them 
virtually and in the office both by appointment and drop in to go over their educational plans and get 
assistance completing the registration process. Remember all student services departments are open 
to assist new (dual enrollment included) and returning students. Priority Registration begins 
November 16 and open registration starts November 24! 

 
Website Integration: 
As you might have noticed our website has a new look. Over the last couple of months, our partners 
at Stevenson Media have been working with staff across departments and campuses to develop a 
website that better reflects who we are as a college and will include content for each of our sites that 
is much more cohesive and allows visitors to enjoy a better experience when visiting the site. A big 
thank you to everyone who has worked on this project. We expect to have final updates completed in 
by the end of November. To check out the progress, be sure to visit wcc.yccd.edu. 

 
Transfer Rates: 
Thank you to our transfer counselor, Aracely Ruiz for her continued work with UC Davis partners to 
ensure transfer ready students get access to key information regarding the TAG and TAP programs. 
Every year, students who are looking to transfer to UC Davis receive first-hand information from UCD 
reps on programs available for transfer, requirements and a glimpse of college life via a campus tours 
and do so with the support of our very own counselors. Attached you will find a short PowerPoint 
Presentation put together by Aracely Ruiz that highlights some of the major changes to these 
programs along with key statistics on transfer rates for students. 

 
Transfer Updates 2020-21 

 
UndocuAlly Activities in collaboration with Yuba College: 
Dream Team members from WCC and Yuba met on October 19th to mark 
the first day of a full week of activities designed to inform and support 
student DREAMERS. The week of October 19-23 is nationally recognized 
as Undocumented Student Action week and provides opportunities to 
educational institutions, community organizations and individuals to learn 
more about the challenges DREAMER students face as well as the efforts 
being made to increase the resources available to them. A special recognition to Dr. Lisceth Brazil- 
Cruz for being a lead on this project on behalf of WCC. 

 
We are excited to announce our partnership with Coalition for 
Human Immigrant Rights (CHIRLA) which will provide our students 
with support services including workshops, legal counsel and 
informational sessions, all free of charge. Thank you to Dean Brazil- 
Cruz for all her work in getting this partnership full circle. 



Performing Arts and Culinary Arts Project: 
Performing Arts and Culinary Arts team continues to make progress on the project with selection of 
colors, finishes (interior and exterior) and other details taking place this month. Groundbreaking 
remains on track for late spring or early summer 2021. For those interested in seeing the samples, 
please stop by Building 100, Conference Rm. 113. A follow up meeting for the project team is 
scheduled for Friday, November 6th. 

 

“Meet the Entrepreneur” Event: 
We continue to build on our commitment to highlighting community 
accomplishments and providing different opportunities for students and 
staff alike, Business and Accounting Professor Claudio Cisneros hosted the 
first “Meet the Entrepreneur” virtual event this past October 28th. The 
event was open to the public and over 100 folks attended. Professor 
Cisneros captured the purpose of the event with the following take away, 
the "entrepreneurial mindset" provides a valuable perspective for your 
professional toolkit. Attending this event is an opportunity for you to listen 
to success stories, imagine your own success, and ask those questions 
you've been eager to ask about how they do it. Entrepreneurism is a 
mindset - you can learn it, too!”. With our great business program, I am 

sure, we are going to be hosting many more of these events over the years and highlighting WCC 
alumni at each. Congrats on a great event. 

 
Cash for College Event: 
The event was hosted by the Financial Aid department and are offered 
virtually on Saturday, October 17th. The event helped 30 high school 
and current WCC students complete their FAFSA application and learn 
more about financial assistance options to attend college. Thank you to 
Becky Reyes CALSOP, Sacramento Office of Education, volunteers from 
UC Davis EAOP and Financial Aid office for making this another 
successful event (the first virtually). 

 
 
 
 

Desserts at the WCC Quad: 
After a few scheduling conflicts, we finally hosted our socially distant lunch at the Woodland campus. 
Let me re-phrase, we hosted, a small dessert party. "#$% Staff and faculty came together to enjoy 
some delicious desserts in our beautiful rose garden and catch up over their lunch hour in a socially 
distanced manner. 

 
Upcoming visits to CCC and LCC: 
Vice President of Student Services and I will be visiting both Colusa County Campus and Lake County 
Campus on Monday, November 2nd to connect with our staff and faculty. We will host a coffee and 
donuts event at Colusa before heading to Lake for desserts. If you have not yet RSVP’d to either of 
these events, please make sure to check your emails for details 



Celebrating our Cultures: 
A big congratulations to Mary Wilson, Rodrigo Lopez, Robert Cabreros and Ian Anderson for their 
work putting together the first annual celebration of Indigenous People’s Day at the Lake County 
Campus on October 12th. In collaboration with Lake County Campus of Woodland Community 
College’s Circle of Indigenous Students, the event honored the past, present, and futures of Native 
peoples across the Americas and features local Indigenous speakers and agencies. Dean Dr. Cirilo 
Cortez shared a few highlights of the event which we are sure will be the first of many. During this 
virtual event, students and guest alike, were able to enjoy a series of workshops, including Food 
Sovereignty with Lake County Campus by Chef Rob Cabreros, Honoring our Ancestors with Toney 
Steele and a presentation by Kyle Bill, Kno’Qoti of Native Wellness, Inc. Speakers, included students 
from the Lake County Campus Circle of Indigenous Students, Raevan Shephard, Sacred Life Recovery 
and a Closing statement by Eddie “EJ” Crandell, Lake County Board of Supervisors, District 3. 

 

Virtual Open House hosted by Student Services 
Please have your teams sign up to participate in our virtual open house 
which is scheduled for November 10th. This will be a great way to 
connect with our students (current and prospective) and share 
information about our student programs, academic portfolios and so 
much more. For questions regarding the event including how to sign up 
connect with Student Services Outreach team via email. See attached 
flyer for details. 

 

Finally, a quick announcement from district office. The Citizens Bond 
Oversight Committee (CBOC) is looking to recruit new members to 
represent Colusa, Lake and Woodland. Part of Prop 39 requirements 
include creation of a committee to ensure that bond funds are expended as outlined in the bond 
resolutions. These positions are open to the community, so please share this information to those 
who may be interested in serving on the CBOC. Any suggestions or those interested should contact 
the President’s Office for additional details. 



               James Marta & Company LLP 
             Certified Public Accountants 

 

                              Accounting, Auditing, Consulting and Tax 

 

 

 
 701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825   (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489                      

  www.jpmcpa.com    jmarta@jpmcpa.com 

 

 

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED  

WITH GOVERNANCE 

 

October 7, 2020 

 

To the Board of Education 

Colusa County Office of Education 

Colusa, California 

 

We have audited the basic financial statements of Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office 

of Education”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated October 

7, 2020. Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated November 13, 2018, our responsibility, as described by 

professional standards, is to form and express an opinion(s) about whether the financial statements that have 

been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the 

financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 

 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 

reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 

misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 

reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial 

reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the County Office of 

Education solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance 

concerning such internal control. 

 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 

professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. 

However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 

communicate to you.  

 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  

 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 

 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm, have complied with all relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence. 

 

http://www.jpmcpa.com/
mailto:jmarta@jpmcpa.com


James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

2 

 

We follow the AICPA Ethics Standard Rule 201C, in conjunction with this, we annually review with all 

engagement staff potential conflicts and obtain a conflict certification. In addition, we inquire on each 

engagement about potential conflicts with staff. We have not identified any relationships or other matters 

that in the auditor’s judgment may be reasonably thought to bear on independence. 

 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices  
 

Significant Accounting Policies 

 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the 

significant accounting policies adopted by County Office of Education is included in Note 1 to the financial 

statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant 

accounting policies or their application during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. No matters have come to 

our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used 

to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in 

controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. However, 

there are new Governmental Accounting Standards that may affect the County Office of Education in future 

years. See Attachment A. 

 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 

on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience 

about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are 

particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility 

that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 

 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the collectability of 

receivables and the County Office of Education’s proportionate share of net pension liability and net OPEB 

liability. 

 

Management’s estimate of the collectability of receivables is based on past experience with collections from 

various entities. The estimate for the County Office of Education’s proportionate share of net pension 

liabilities and net OPEB liabilities are based on respective actuarial studies. We evaluated key factors and 

assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic 

financial statements taken as a whole and in relation to the applicable opinion units. 

 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgement and are particularly sensitive because 

of their significance to financial statement users. The pension disclosures included in footnote 6, required 

significant judgements to calculate the County Office of Education’s proportionate share of the net pension 

liability for CalPERS and STRS.  The OPEB disclosures included in footnote 7, required significant 

judgements to calculate the County Office of Education’s net OPEB liability. 

 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the 

audit. 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

3 

 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements  

 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 

misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate 

them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also 

communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of 

transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each applicable 

opinion unit.  There were no uncorrected misstatements identified as a result of our audit procedures. 

 

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements 

that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. There were no audit 

adjustments identified as a result of our audit procedures. 

 

Disagreements with Management 

 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 

whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 

which could be significant to the County Office of Education’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. 

No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

 

Representations Requested from Management 

 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the attached 

letter dated October 7, 2020. See Attachment B. 

 

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 

matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 

accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 

 
Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 

 

In the normal course of our professional association with the County Office of Education, we generally 

discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 

operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect 

the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as 

the County Office of Education’s auditors. 

 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

4 

 

Other Services 
 

We have assisted management in preparing the financial statements of the County Office of Education in 

conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by 

management.  

 

Management’s responsibilities for other services included designated qualified individuals with the skill, 

knowledge, and experience to be responsible and accountable for overseeing financial statement preparation 

and any other nonattest services we performed as part of this engagement. Management has represented that 

they have evaluated the adequacy and results of those services we performed as part of this engagement. 

Management has represented that they have evaluated the adequacy and results of those services and is 

accepted responsibility for them. 

 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Education and management of 

Colusa County Office of Education and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 

these specified parties. 
 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

Sacramento, California 

October 7, 2020 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

5 

 

Attachment A – Upcoming Changes in Accounting Standards 

As of June 30, 2020 

 

The following pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) have been 

released recently and may be applicable to the Charter in the near future. We encourage management to 

review the following information and determine which standard(s) may be applicable to the Charter. For the 

complete text of these and other GASB standards, visit www.gasb.org and click on the “Standards & 

Guidance” tab. If you have questions regarding the applicability, timing, or implementation approach for 

any of these standards, please contact your audit team. 

 

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations  

Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 

 

This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations 

(AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. 

A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible 

capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement.  

 

We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 

 

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities  

Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 

 

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The 

focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary 

activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to 

identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities.  

 

An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. 

Governments with activities meeting the criteria should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a 

statement of changes in fiduciary net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a business-

type activity that normally expects to hold custodial assets for three months or less. 

 

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other 

employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial 

funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent 

arrangement that meets specific criteria. A fiduciary component unit, when reported in the fiduciary fund 

financial statements of a primary government, should combine its information with its component units that 

are fiduciary component units and aggregate that combined information with the primary government’s 

fiduciary funds. 

 

This Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an 

event has occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. Events that compel a 

government to disburse fiduciary resources occur when a demand for the resources has been made or when 

no further action, approval, or condition is required to be taken or met by the beneficiary to release the 

assets. 

 

The County Office of Education is currently assessing the financial statement impact of GASB 84. 
 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

6 

 

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases 

Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 

 

The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 

improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the 

usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 

liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 

resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single 

model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use 

an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible 

right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of 

resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing 

activities. 

 

The County Office of Education is currently assessing the financial statement impact of GASB 87. 
 

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and 

Direct Placements 

Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 

 

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to 

government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also 

clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. 

 

This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a liability that 

arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or 

more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established. 

 

This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to 

financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms 

specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, 

significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration 

clauses. 

 

For notes to financial statements related to debt, this Statement also requires that existing and additional 

information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately.  

 

We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 

 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

7 

 

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction 

Period 

Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 

 

This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a 

construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance 

with the requirements of paragraphs 5–22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial 

Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which are 

superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a 

construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial 

statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred 

before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported 

in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. 

 

This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources 

measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as 

an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles. 

 

We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 

 

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 

and No. 61 

Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 

 

The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a 

government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of 

financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity interest and 

specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an 

investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A 

majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity 

method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary 

fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those 

governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value. 

 

For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should 

report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the 

equity interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This 

Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results 

in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the 

government should report that organization as a component unit. 

 

This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity interest 

account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at 

acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component unit. 

Transactions presented in flows statements of the component unit in that circumstance should include only 

transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition. 

 

We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 

 

 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

8 

 

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations 

Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023  
 

The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt 

obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by 

issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This 

Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; 

establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for 

accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by 

issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. 

 

We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 

 

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020  

Effective dates vary  

 

The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to 

improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified 

during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of 

topics and includes specific provisions about the following: 
 

 The effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases, for 

interim financial reports – Effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021 

 Reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government employer and a 

component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit other postemployment benefit 

(OPEB) plan – Effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021 

 The applicability of Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and 

Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain 

Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting for 

Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets 

accumulated for postemployment benefits – Effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021 

 The applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to 

postemployment benefit arrangements – Effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021 

 Measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement obligations (AROs) in a 

government acquisition – Effective for the government acquisitions occurring in reporting periods 

beginning after June 15, 2020 

 Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from reinsurers or excess 

insurers – Effective for the fiscal year ending December, 2021 

 Reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities in authoritative literature 

– Effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021 

 Terminology used to refer to derivative instruments. – Effective for the fiscal year ending December 

31, 2021 

 

The County Office of Education is currently assessing the financial statement impact of GASB 92. 
 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

9 

 

GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates 

Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 
 

The objective of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications 

that result from the replacement of an IBOR. This Statement achieves that objective by: 
 

 Providing exceptions for certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge accounting 

termination provisions when an IBOR is replaced as the reference rate of the hedging derivative 

instrument’s variable payment 

 Clarifying the hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to replace 

the reference rate 

 Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, by itself, 

affect the assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged expected transaction is probable 

 Removing LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the 

effectiveness of an interest rate swap 

 Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as 

appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest 

rate swap 

 Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended 

 

Providing an exception to the lease modifications guidance in Statement 87, as amended, for certain lease 

contracts that are amended solely to replace an IBOR as the rate upon which variable payments depend. 

 

We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 

 

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 

Arrangements 

Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 

 

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to 

public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). As used in this Statement, a PPP is an 

arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator (a governmental or 

nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate or use a 

nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of 

time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Some PPPs meet the definition of a service concession 

arrangement (SCA), which the Board defines in this Statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects 

and is compensated by fees from third parties; (2) the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or 

approve which services the operator is required to provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the 

services, and the prices or rates that can be charged for the services; and (3) the transferor is entitled to 

significant residual interest in the service utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement. 

 

This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment 

arrangements (APAs). As defined in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government 

compensates an operator for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or 

operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. 

 

We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 

 

 

 



James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

10 

 

GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance  

Effective immediately 

 

The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to governments and other 

stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by postponing the 

effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became effective or 

are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later. 

 

The effective dates of the preceding statements have been updated to reflect the impact of the issuance of 

GASB 95. 

 

The County Office of Education is currently assessing the financial statement impact of GASB 95. 

 

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements 
Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 

 

This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based 

information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement 

(1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible 

asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other 

than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures 

regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established 

in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. 

 

We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the County Office of Education. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 
 

 

 

 

 

 

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER 
 

 

 

 

October 7, 2020 

 

James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

Sacramento, CA 

 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Colusa County 

Office of Education (the “County Office of Education”) as of June 30, 2020 and for the year then ended, and the 

related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions on whether the basic financial 

statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows, where 

applicable, of the various opinion units of the County Office of Education in accordance with accounting principles 

generally accepted for governments in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 

 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are considered 

material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, in the light 

of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information 

would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. 

 

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for 

the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves as of October 7, 2020. 

 

Financial Statements 

 

  We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated November 13, 

2018, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the various opinion units 

referred to above in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

  We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

  We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to 

prevent and detect fraud. 

  We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts 

and grant agreements. 

  We acknowledge that we are responsible for distributing the issued report as well as the communication 

with governance letter and internal control letter to all governing board members. 

  We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for the financial statements and related notes. 

  We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 

  We have identified and communicated to you all previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies 

related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented. 

  Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 

are reasonable. 

  Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 

accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 
 

 

 

 

  All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires adjustment 

or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.  

  The effects of uncorrected misstatements summarized in the attached schedule and aggregated by you 

during the current engagement are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the applicable 

opinion units and to the financial statements as a whole.  

  The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in 

accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

  All component units, as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, are included and other joint ventures 

and related organizations are properly disclosed. 

  All funds and activities are properly classified. 

  All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and 

Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic 

Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments: 

Omnibus as amended, and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, 

for presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major 

are considered important to financial statement users. 

  All components of net position, nonspendable fund balance, and restricted, committed, assigned, and 

unassigned fund balance are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

  Our policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred 

for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position/fund balance are available is 

appropriately disclosed and net position/fund balance is properly recognized under the policy. 

  All revenues within the statement of activities have been properly classified as program revenues, general 

revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund principal. 

  All expenses have been properly classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement of 

activities, and allocations, if any, have been made on a reasonable basis. 

  All interfund and intra-entity transactions and balances have been properly classified and reported. 

  Special items and extraordinary items have been properly classified and reported. 

  Deposit and investment risks have been properly and fully disclosed. 

  Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and if applicable, 

depreciated. 

  All required supplementary information is measured and presented within the prescribed guidelines. 

  With regard to investments and other instruments reported at fair value: 

  The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect management’s intent and 

ability to carry out its stated courses of action. 

  The measurement methods and related assumptions used in determining fair value are appropriate in 

the circumstances and have been consistently applied. 

  The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

  There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value measurements and disclosures 

included in the financial statements. 

 

Information Provided  

 

  We have provided you with:  

  Access to all information, of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements of the various opinion units referred to above, such as records, 

documentation, meeting minutes, and other matters; 

  Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and 

  Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit 

evidence. 

  All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 
 

 

 

 

  We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 

materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

  We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves: 

  Management; 

  Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

  Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

  We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity’s financial 

statements communicated by employees, former employees, vendors, regulators, or others. 

  We are not aware of any pending litigation, claims, and assessments whose effects should be considered 

when preparing the financial statements. 

  We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party relationships 

and transactions of which we are aware. 

  There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or 

deficiencies in accounting, internal control, or financial reporting practices. 

  The County Office of Education has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 

classification of assets and liabilities. 

  We have disclosed to you all guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the County Office of 

Education is contingently liable. 

  We have disclosed to you all nonexchange financial guarantees, under which we are obligated and have 

declared liabilities and disclosed properly in accordance with GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, for those guarantees where it is more likely 

than not that the entity will make a payment on any guarantee. 

  For nonexchange financial guarantees where we have declared liabilities, the amount of the liability 

recognized is the discounted present value of the best estimate of the future outflows expected to be 

incurred as a result of the guarantee. Where there was no best estimate but a range of estimated future 

outflows has been established, we have recognized the minimum amount within the range. 

  We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to management that 

are required to be disclosed in accordance with GASB Statement No. 62 (GASB-62), Codification of 

Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 

Pronouncements. Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date that could change materially 

within the next year. Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or 

markets or geographic areas for which events could occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances 

within the next year. 

  We have identified and disclosed to you the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant 

agreements that could have a direct and material effect on financial statement amounts, including legal and 

contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. 

  There are no: 

  Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, or provisions of contracts or grant agreements 

whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording 

a loss contingency, including applicable budget laws and regulations. 

  Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised are probable of assertion and must be 

disclosed in accordance with GASB-62.  

  Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by GASB-62  

  Continuing disclosure consent decree agreements or filings with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission and we have filed updates on a timely basis in accordance with the agreements (Rule 240, 

15c2-12). 

  The County Office of Education has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or 

encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset or future revenue been pledged as collateral, except as 

disclosed to you. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 
 

 

 

 

  We have complied with all aspects of grant agreements and other contractual agreements that would have a 

material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 
 

 

 

 

Additional Representations 

 

Supplementary Information in Relation to the Financial Statements as a Whole 

 

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements: 

 

     We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the supplementary information in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP); the standards 

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 

General of the United States; the 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and 

State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in the California Code of Regulations, Title s, Section 19810 and 

following; and the Uniform Guidance. 

      We believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance 

with U.S. GAAP the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 

Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in the California Code of 

Regulations, Title s, Section 19810 and following; and the Uniform Guidance. 

      The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior. When the 

supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements, management will make 

the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary information no 

later than the date of issuance by the entity of the supplementary information and the auditor's report 

thereon. 

      We acknowledge our responsibility to include the auditor's report on the supplementary information in any 

document containing the supplementary information and that indicates the auditor reported on such 

supplementary information. We acknowledge our responsibility to present the supplementary information 

with the audited financial statements or, if the supplementary information will not be presented with the 

audited financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users 

of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by the entity of the supplementary 

information and the auditor's report thereon. 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

With respect to the required supplementary information accompanying the financial statements: 

 

      We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the required supplementary information in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP); 

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States. 

     We believe the required supplementary information, including its form and content, is measured and fairly 

presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

(U.S. GAAP); and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The methods of measurement or 

presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. 

 

Pension and Postretirement Benefits 

 

      We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and other postemployment 

benefit liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.  



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 
 

 

 

 

      We are unable to determine the possibility of a withdrawal liability in a multiemployer benefit plan. 

 

 

Federal Award Programs  

With respect to federal award programs: 

 

      We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the requirements of the 

Uniform Guidance. 

      We have identified and disclosed to you all of our government programs and related activities subject to the 

Uniform Guidance compliance audit and included in the SEFA made during the audit period for all awards 

provided by federal agencies in the form of grants, federal cost-reimbursement contracts, loans, loan 

guarantees, property (including donated surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, 

insurance, food commodities, direct appropriations, and other direct assistance.  

      We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained, effective 

internal control over compliance requirements applicable to federal programs that provides reasonable 

assurance that we are managing our federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions 

of contracts and grant agreements that could have a material effect on our federal programs. We believe the 

internal control system is adequate and is functioning as intended. 

      We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the requirements of 

federal statutes, laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements related to each of 

our federal programs.  

      We have identified and disclosed to you the requirements of federal statutes, laws, regulations, and the 

provisions of contracts and grant agreements that are considered to have a direct and material effect on each 

major program.  

      We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance requirements that may have varying 

interpretations.  

      We have made available to you all federal awards (including amendments, if any) and any other 

correspondence relevant to federal programs and related activities that have taken place with federal 

agencies or pass-through entities.  

      We have identified and disclosed to you all amounts questioned and all known noncompliance with the 

requirements of federal awards.  

      We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost principles. 

     We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the direct material compliance 

requirements, including information related to federal program financial reports and claims for advances 

and reimbursements.  

      Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are supported by the books 

and records from which the financial statements have been prepared. 

      The copies of federal program financial reports provided you are true copies of the reports submitted, or 

electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or pass-through entity, as applicable. 

      We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior audit findings to 

include all findings required to be included by the Uniform Guidance and we have provided you with all 

information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit findings by federal awarding agencies and pass-

through entities, including all management decisions.  

      We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the auditee section of the Data Collection Form as 

required by the Uniform Guidance. There are no such known instances of noncompliance with direct and 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 
 

 

 

 

material compliance requirements that occurred subsequent to the period covered by the auditor's report.  

      No changes have been made in internal control over compliance or other factors that might significantly 

affect internal control, including any corrective action we have taken regarding significant deficiencies in 

internal control over compliance (including material weaknesses in internal control over compliance), 

subsequent to the date as of which compliance was audited.  

      We have complied with the direct and material compliance requirements, including when applicable, those 

set forth in the Uniform Guidance, relating to federal awards  

      We have disclosed any communications from grantors and pass-through entities concerning possible 

noncompliance with the direct and material compliance requirements, including communications received 

from the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor's report.  

      We have disclosed to you the findings received and related corrective actions taken for previous audits, 

attestation engagements, and internal or external monitoring that directly relate to the objectives of the 

compliance audit, including findings received and corrective actions taken from the end of the period 

covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor's report.  

      We are responsible for taking corrective action on audit findings of the compliance audit and have 

developed a corrective plan that meets the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  

      We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional evidence about 

conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period affecting noncompliance during the reporting 

period.  

      The reporting package does not include protected personally identifiable information.  

      Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with relevant guidelines in the 

Uniform Guidance.  

      We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) 

in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, and we believe the SEFA, including its 

form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with the Uniform Guidance.  

      We have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement or 

presentation of the SEFA.  

      If the SEFA is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the audited financial 

statements readily available to the intended users of the SEFA no later than the date we issue the SEFA and 

the auditor's report thereon.  

      We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific programs as a major 

program. 

 

 

 

_______________________________________________________ 

Aaron Heinz, Associate Superintendent of Administrative Services 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

  

 COLUSA COUNTY 

COLUSA, CALIFORNIA 

 

 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 WITH 

 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 

 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

 
 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 

 

 
PAGE 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT        1 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS        4 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 Government-Wide Financial Statements 

 

  Statement of Net Position         11 

 

  Statement of Activities          12 

  

 Fund Financial Statements 

  

  Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds        13 

 

  Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

   to the Statement of Net Position        14 

 

  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 

   in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds       15 

 

  Reconciliation of the Governmental Statement of Revenues,  

   Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the 

   Statement of Activities         16 

 

 Statement of Fiduciary Net Position         17 

 

 Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position                        18  

  

 Notes to the Financial Statements               19 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

 

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  

  Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual - General Fund       45 

 

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  

  Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual – Child Development Fund     46 

 

 Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability          47 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 
 

 Schedule of Pension Contributions             48 
 

 Schedule of Changes in the County Office of Education’s Net OPEB Liability 

  And Related Ratios          49 
 

 Notes to Required Supplementary Information –           

  Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations                   50 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
  

Combining Balance Sheet –Non-Major Funds                     52 
 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

 Changes in Fund Balances – Non-Major Funds                      53 
 

Organization           54 
 

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance        55 
 

Schedule of Instructional Time         56 
 

 Schedule of Charter Schools  57   
 

 Reconciliation of Annual and Budget Financial Report  

to Audited Financial Statements             58 
 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards        59 
 

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis        60 
 

Notes to Supplementary Information         61 

  

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS       
 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with 

 State Laws and Regulations         62 
 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and  

 on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit  

 of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance  

with Government Auditing Standards         65 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on  

Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of  

Expenditures of Federal Awards Required the Uniform Guidance        67 

     

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS           
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs        69 
 

Status of Prior Year Recommendations        73 



                         James Marta & Company LLP 
            Certified Public Accountants 

 
              Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax  

   

 

701 Howe Avenue Suite E3, Sacramento, California 95825   Phone: (916) 993-9494    Fax: (916) 993-9489 

e-mail:  jmarta@jpmcpa.com     www.jpmcpa.com 

1 

         

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 

 

Board of Education 

Colusa County Office of Education 

Colusa, California 

 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and 

the aggregate remaining fund information of the Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office”), as 

of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 

comprise the County Office’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 

design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 

control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion. 

 

 

mailto:jmarta@jpmcpa.com


                         
 

 2 

Opinions 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 

financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 

information of the Colusa County Office of Education, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in 

financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Other Matters 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget (Non-

GAAP) and Actual for the General Fund and the Child Development Fund, Schedule of Proportionate Share 

of the Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Pension Contributions and Schedule of Changes in the County 

Office of Education’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios be presented to supplement the basic financial 

statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 

placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 

applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 

standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 

about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 

management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 

during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 

the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 

opinion or provide any assurance.  

 

Other Information 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 

comprise the County Office’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information as 

listed in the table of contents, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by the 

August 2020 Edition of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), Audits of 

States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis 

and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

 

The supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was 

derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 

financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 

the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 

information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 

statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the supplementary 

information as listed in the table of contents is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 

financial statements as a whole. 

 



                         
 

 3 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 7, 2020 on 

our consideration of the County Office’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  

The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 

and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 

reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering County Office’s internal control over financial reporting and 

compliance. 

 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

Sacramento, California 

October 7, 2020 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 
 

 

4 

 

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of the 

Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office”) for the year ended June 30, 2020.  This discussion 

has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes 

thereto which follow this section. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE PAST YEAR   
 

 Over the course of the year, the total net position decreased by 20.14%.  This includes a decrease in 

capital assets and an increase in current and long-term liabilities.  

 

 On the Statement of Activities, total current year expenses exceeded total current year revenues by 

$2,709,094.   

 

 Capital assets, net of depreciation, decreased $361,444 due to accumulated depreciation growing 

faster than acquisitions and improvements.   

 

 Total long-term liabilities increased 11.96% totaling $18,319,452, due to the net pension liability. 

  

 The County Office maintains sufficient reserves for a County Office its size.  It meets the State 

required minimum reserve for economic uncertainty of 4% of County School Service Fund 

expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).   

 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The Financial Statements 

 

During the year the County Office presents income and expenditures to the board and the public using the 

modified accrual basis of accounting.  During the year end process the financial statements are converted to 

an accrual basis of accounting as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

Statement No. 34. The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the County Office 

and its component units and were developed using this integrated approach described in Note 1. 

 

The Primary unit of the government is the Colusa County Office of Education. 

 

COUNTY OFFICE-WIDE STATEMENTS 

 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the County Office as a 

whole and about its activities.  These statements include all assets and liabilities of the County Office using 

the accrual basis of accounting which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies.  All 

of the current year revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 
 

 

5 

 

These two statements report the County Office’s net position.  Net position is the difference between assets 

and liabilities, which is one way to measure the County Office’s financial health, or financial position.  Over 

time, increases or decreases in the County Office’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial health 

is improving or deteriorating.  Other factors to consider are changes in the County Office’s property tax base 

and the condition of the County Office’s facilities. 

 

The relationship between revenues and expenses is the County Office’s operating results.  Since the 

governing board’s responsibility is to provide services to our students and not to generate profit as 

commercial entities do, one must consider other factors when evaluating the overall health of the County 

Office.  The quality of the education and the safety of our schools will likely be an important component in 

this evaluation. 

 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the County Office activities are reported as 

follows: 

 

Governmental Activities – The County Office reports all of its services in this category.  This includes the 

education of K-12 students, adult education students, the operation of child development activities, and the 

on-going effort to improve and maintain buildings and sites.  These activities are financed by property taxes, 

State income taxes, user fees, interest income, and Federal, State, and local grants. 

 

 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds – not the County 

Office as a whole.  Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants.  However, 

management establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes, or to 

show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money that it receives 

from the U.S. Department of Education. 

 

Governmental Funds  

 

Most of the County Office’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which determine how money 

flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.  These 

funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measure cash and 

all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.  The governmental fund statements provide a 

detailed short-term view of the County Office’s general government operations and the basic service it 

provides.  Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial 

resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the County Office’s programs.  We describe the 

relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and 

the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation following each governmental fund 

financial statement.  

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 
 

 

6 

 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY OFFICE AS A WHOLE 

 

Statement of Net Position 

             

The County Office’s combined net position, as of June 30, 2020, was $10,740,930 reflecting a decrease of 

20.14% since June 30, 2019.  Of this amount, ($8,752,466) was unrestricted.  Restricted net position is 

reported separately to show legal constraints from debt covenants and legislation that limits the governing 

board’s ability to use those assets for day-to-day operations.  

 

2019 2020

Assets

Current 5,710,274$              6,787,612$           

Capital Assets, net 19,333,642              18,972,198           

     Total Assets 25,043,916              25,759,810           

Deferred Outflows 7,641,827                7,569,116             

Liabilities

Current 778,044                   1,352,434             

Long-Term 16,361,927              18,319,452           

     Total Liabilities 17,139,971              19,671,886           

Deferred Inflows 2,095,748                2,916,110             

     Total Net Position 13,450,024$            10,740,930$         

Governmental

Activities

Comparative Statement of Net Position

 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 
 

 

7 

 

Statement of Changes in Net Position  

     

The County Office’s total revenues increased 9.06% to $20,258,368.  Charges for Services and Operating 

Grants & Contributions accounted for most of the County Office’s revenues, contributing about 83% of every 

dollar raised.  Approximately 17% came from General Revenues. 

 

The total cost of all programs and services increased approximately 33% to $22,967,462.  The County 

Office’s expenses are predominantly related to educating and caring for students. The purely administrative 

activities of the County Office accounted for 11% of total costs. 

 

2019 2020

Program Revenues

Charges for Services 3,553,959$              3,980,318$           

Operating Grants & Contributions 11,551,512              12,904,414           

General Revenues

Taxes Levied 463,755                   490,865                

Federal & State Aid 2,326,778                2,272,105             

Interest & Investment Earnings 106,681                   153,755                

Interagency revenues 216,666                   192,284                

Miscellaneous 356,820                   264,627                

Total Revenues 18,576,171              20,258,368           

Expenses

Governmental Activities

Instruction 7,168,409                9,602,622             

Instruction-Related Services 4,469,857                5,992,365             

Pupil Services 2,283,391                3,202,782             

General Administration 1,986,227                2,536,537             

Plant Services 864,875                   1,020,734             

Ancillary Services 17,154                    21,741                 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 707                         -                       

Other Outgo 37,435                    36,483                 

Depreciation 444,168                   554,198                

Total Expenses 17,272,223              22,967,462           

Change in Net Position 1,303,948$              (2,709,094)$          

Governmental

Activities

Comparative Statement of Changes in Net Position

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 
 

 

8 

 

Governmental Activities 

 

As reported in the Statement of Activities on page 12, the cost of all of our governmental activities was 

$22,967,462 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, an increase of $5,695,239 from the 2018-19 fiscal year. 

However, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through local taxes was only 

$490,865 in 2019-20, because a portion of the cost was paid by those who benefited from the programs 

($3,980,318) or by other governments and organizations who subsidized certain programs with grants and 

contributions ($12,904,414).  

 

The schedule below reflects the net cost of each of the largest functions – instruction, student support, 

administration, maintenance and operations, and other costs.  Included in this table are each program’s net 

cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities).  As discussed above, net cost shows the financial 

burden placed on the taxpayers by each of these functions.  Providing this information allows our citizens to 

consider the cost of each function in comparison to the benefits they believe are provided by that function.  
 

2019 2020 2019 2020

Governmental Activities

Instruction 7,168,409$       9,602,622$      (219,060)$        1,721,947$      

Instruction-Related Services 4,469,857         5,992,365        644,892           1,306,471        

Pupil Services 2,283,391         3,202,782        77,536             587,855          

General Administration 1,986,227         2,536,537        957,479           1,427,894        

Plant Services 864,875           1,020,734        206,946           426,141          

Ancillary Services 17,154             21,741             16,649             21,741            

Interest on Long-Term Debt 707                  -                  707                  -                 

Other Outgo 37,435             36,483             37,435             36,483            

Depreciation 444,168           554,198           444,168           554,198          

Totals 17,272,223$     22,967,462$     2,166,752$       6,082,730$      

Table includes financial data of the combined governmental funds

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

Comparative Schedule of Costs of Services 

 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY OFFICE’S FUNDS 

 

At the completion of the school year, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 

$5,435,178, which was an increase of $502,241 from the previous year. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 
 

 

9 

 

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020

Increase

(Decrease)

     General 4,681,740$          5,184,044$        502,304$       

     Child Development 82,426                80,414              (2,012)           

     All Non-Major 168,771              170,720            1,949            

           Totals 4,932,937$          5,435,178$        502,241$       

Comparative Schedule of Fund Balances

 
 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 

The County Office’s budget is prepared in accordance with California law and is based on the modified 

accrual basis of accounting.  Over the course of the year, the County Office revises its budget based on 

updated financial information.  The original budget, approved at the end of June for July 1, is based on May 

Revise figures and updated 45 days after the State approves its final budget.  In addition, the County Office 

revises its budget at First and Second Interim.  The original budget, presented on page 48, includes only new 

revenues for 2019-20. 

 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

 

Capital Assets 

 

2019 2020

Land 3,621,725$              3,621,725$           

Land Improvements 246,135                  350,868               

Buildings and Improvements 19,555,753              19,555,753           

Furniture and Equipment 877,359                  965,380               

     Subtotals 24,300,972              24,493,726           

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (4,967,330)               (5,521,528)            

     Capital Assets, net 19,333,642$            18,972,198$         

Governmental

Activities

Comparative Schedule of Capital Assets

 
 

Although there was an increase in capital assets (page 29) by $192,754, the total of capital assets (net of 

depreciation) decreased by $361,444 due to acquisitions and improvements growing at a slower rate than 

accumulated depreciation, asset disposals, and adjustments. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 
 

 

10 

 

Long-Term Liabilities 

 

2019 2020

Net Pension Liability 15,859,776$            17,757,533$         

Net OPEB Liability 380,676                  425,222               

Capital Leases 14,291                    -                      

Compensated Absences 107,184                  136,697               

     Totals 16,361,927$            18,319,452$         

Governmental

Activities

Comparative Schedule of Long Term Liabilities

 
 

Although there was a slight decrease in liabilities due to capital leases being retired, the total long-term 

liabilities increased by $1,957,525 (11.96%) to reflect the increase in the net pension and Other Post-

Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability. This number will continue to climb as county offices are required to 

recognize the impact of the liability for OPEB, CalPERS and STRS.   

 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial presentation and contain more 

detailed information as to interest, principal, retirement amounts, and future debt retirement dates. 

 

ECONOMIC FACTORS BEARING ON THE COUNTY OFFICE’S FUTURE 

 

 Student enrollment and attendance are primary factors in the computation of most funding formulas for 

public schools in the State of California. Due to COVID-19, a hold harmless on enrollment funding to 

2019-20 figures will keep funding relatively stable in fiscal year 2020-21. 

 The State’s COVID-19 related economic recession that began in early 2020 is expected to continue 

through 2020-21 and possibly beyond. Additionally, the cost of ongoing salary and increases in 

CalPERS and STRS are outpacing the flat funding that the State provides to County Offices of 

Education. 

 Future predictions require management to plan carefully and prudently to provide resources to meet 

student needs over the next several years. 

 

CONTACTING THE COUNTY OFFICE’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, investors, and creditors with a 

general overview of the County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability for the money it receives. 

If you have questions regarding this report or need additional financial information, contact the Colusa 

County Office of Education, 345 5
th
 Street, Suite A, Colusa, California 95932. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 11 

 

Governmental

Activities

Cash and cash equivalents 3,511,121$     

Receivables 3,229,596       

Prepaid expenses 36,415           

Inventory 10,480           

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 18,972,198     

Total Assets 25,759,810     

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions (note 6) 7,540,958       

Deferred outflows of resources relating to OPEB (note 7) 28,158           

Total Deferred Outflows 7,569,116       

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 700,473         

Unearned revenue 651,961         

Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 136,697         

Due in more than one year 18,182,755     

Total Liabilities 19,671,886     

Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (note 6) 2,912,100       

Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB (note 7) 4,010             

Total Deferred Inflows 2,916,110       

Net investment in capital assets 18,972,198     

Restricted 521,198         

Unrestricted (8,752,466)      

Total Net Position 10,740,930$   

NET POSITION

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 12 

Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities

Governmental Activities

Instruction 9,602,622$    2,587,876$    5,292,799$    -$             (1,721,947)$               

Instruction - related services:

   Instructional supervision and

       administration 3,940,367      68,434          3,451,109      -               (420,824)                   

   School site administration 2,051,998      240,185        926,166        -               (885,647)                   

Pupil Services:

   Home-to-school transportation 100,528        -               -               -               (100,528)                   

   Food services 944,816        10,747          873,338        -               (60,731)                     

   All other pupil services 2,157,438      739,984        990,858        -               (426,596)                   

General administration:

   Centralized data processing 480,982        13,971          13,709          -               (453,302)                   

   All other general administration 2,055,555      263,637        817,326        -               (974,592)                   

Plant services 1,020,734      55,484          539,109        -               (426,141)                   

Ancillary services 21,741          -               -               -               (21,741)                     

Other outgo 36,483          -               -               -               (36,483)                     

Depreciation (unallocated) 554,198        -               -               -               (554,198)                   

Total governmental activities 22,967,462$  3,980,318$    12,904,414$  -$             (6,082,730)$               

General Revenues

Taxes and subventions:

   Taxes levied for general purposes 490,865                    

Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 2,272,105                  

Interest and investment earnings 153,755                    

Interagency revenues 192,284                    

Miscellaneous 264,627                    

Total General Revenues 3,373,636                  

Change in Net Position (2,709,094)                

Net Position - beginning July 1, 2019 13,450,024                

Net Position, June 30, 2020 10,740,930$              

Program Revenues

Revenues and 

Changes in Net 

Position



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

BALANCE SHEET 

 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 13 

Child Non-Major

General Development Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Total

Cash and cash equivalents 3,046,460$      336,473$         128,188$         3,511,121$      

Accounts receivable 2,550,073       633,121           46,402             3,229,596       

Due from other funds 138,268          -                  4,704              142,972          

Prepaid expenses 30,983            5,432               -                 36,415            

Stores inventory 10,480            -                  -                 10,480            

Total Assets 5,776,264$      975,026$         179,294$         6,930,584$      

Liabilities

Accounts payable 402,621$        295,226$         2,626$             700,473$        

Due to other funds 4,704             132,320           5,948              142,972          

Unearned revenue 184,895          467,066           -                 651,961          

Total Liabilities 592,220          894,612           8,574              1,495,406       

Fund balances

Nonspendable 41,813            5,432               -                 47,245            

Restricted 371,515          18,755             130,928           521,198          

Committed 4,163,608       56,227             39,792             4,259,627       

Unassigned 607,108          -                  -                 607,108          

Total Fund Balances 5,184,044       80,414             170,720           5,435,178       

Total liabilities and fund balances 5,776,264$      975,026$         179,294$         6,930,584$      

ASSETS

FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES AND



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITON 

 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  
14 

Total fund balances - governmental funds 5,435,178$     

Capital assets at historical cost: 24,493,726$   

Accumulated depreciation: (5,521,528)      

Net: 18,972,198     

Net OPEB liability 425,222$        

Net pension liability 17,757,533     

Compensated absences payable 136,697         

Net: (18,319,452)    

Deferred outflows of resources relating to OPEB 28,158           

Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB (4,010)            

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions 7,540,958       

Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (2,912,100)      

Total net position, governmental activities: 10,740,930$   

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions: In

governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating

to pensions are not reported because they are applicable to future

periods. In the statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of

resources relating to pensions are reported. 

Long-term liabilities: In governmental funds, only current liabilities are

reported. In the statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-

term liabilities, are reported. Long-term liabilities relating to

governmental activities consist of:

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the

statement of net position are different from amounts reported in

governmental funds because:

Capital assets: In governmental funds, only current assets are reported.

In the statement of net position, all assets are reported, including capital

assets and accumulated depreciation.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to other

postemployment benefits (OPEB): In governmental funds, deferred

outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB are not reported

because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net

position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
 

 

 

15 

Child All

General Development Non-Major

Fund Fund Funds Total

REVENUES

            Total Revenue LimitLCFF sources 2,669,132$       -$                4,704$             2,673,836$       

Federal revenue 1,507,718         3,541,336 78,362             5,127,416         

Other state revenues 3,815,357         3,677,849 6,919               7,500,125         

Other local revenues 4,647,056         126,193 183,737           4,956,986         

            Total RevenuesTotal revenues 12,639,263       7,345,378         273,722           20,258,363       

EXPENDITURES

    Certificated SalariesCertificated salaries 3,981,459         1,183,348 117,690           5,282,497         

    Classified SalariesClassified salaries 3,380,203         1,631,241 17,389             5,028,833         

    Employee BenefitsEmployee benefits 3,126,261         1,148,644 33,184             4,308,089         

    Books and SuppliesBooks and supplies 673,936           418,215 33,709             1,125,860         

    Services and Other OperatingServices and other operating expenditures 1,353,196         2,409,102 19,510             3,781,808         

    Capital OutlayCapital outlay 78,183             99,371 -                  177,554           

    Other OutgoOther outgo 14,998             -                  36,483             51,481             

            Total ExpendituresTotal expenditures 12,608,236       6,889,921         257,965           19,756,122       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

   over expenditures 31,027             455,457           15,757             502,241           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in 471,277           -                  -                  471,277           

Operating transfers out -                  (457,469)          (13,808)            (471,277)          

            Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)Total other financing sources (uses) 471,277           (457,469)          (13,808)            -                  

                Expenditures and Other UsesNet change in fund balances 502,304           (2,012)              1,949               502,241           

Fund balances, July 1, 2019 4,681,740         82,426 168,771           4,932,937         

Fund balances, June 30, 2020 5,184,044$       80,414$           170,720$          5,435,178$       



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

 
16 

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds 502,241$     

Expenditures for capital outlay: 192,754$     

Depreciation expense: (554,198)      (361,444)      

14,291         

707             

(29,513)        

(37,641)        

(2,797,735)   

Total change in net position - governmental activities (2,709,094)$  

Pensions: In government funds, pension costs are recognized when

employer contributions are made. In the statement of activities, pension

costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference

between accrual-basis pension costa and actual employer contributions

was:

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on

long-term debt is recognized in the period that it becomes due. In the

government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that it

is incurred. Unmatured interest owing at the end of the period, less

matured interest paid during the period but owing from the prior period was:

Compensated absences in governmental funds are measured by the

amounts paid during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated

absences are measured by the amounts earned. The difference between

compensated absences paid and compensated absences earned was:

Debt service: In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are

reported as expenditures. In the government-wide statements, repayments

of long-term debt are reported as reductions of liabilities. Expenditures for

repayment of the principal portion of long-term debt were:

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB): In government funds, OPEB

expenses are recognized when employer OPEB contributions are made. In

the statement of activities, OPEB expenses are recognized on the accrual

basis. This year, the difference between OPEB expenses and actual

employer OPEB contributions was:

Capital outlay: In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are

reported as expenditures in the period when the assets are acquired. In the

statement of activities, costs of capital assets are allocated over their

estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The difference between

capital outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities

are different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

 
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

 

JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

 
17 

 

Scholarship Fund

ASSETS

Cash in County Treasury 67,346$                      

Total Assets 67,346                        

NET POSITION

Restricted 67,346$                      



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

 
18 

 

Scholarship Fund

ADDITIONS

Other local 1,069$                        

Investment earnings 1,539

Total Additions 2,608                          

DEDUCTIONS

Student Activities -                             

Total Deductions -                             

Change in Net Position 2,608

Net Position - Beginning 64,738

Net Position - Ending 67,346$                      

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

19 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

A. HISTORY OF THE ORGANIZATION 

 

The Colusa County Office of Education (the "County Office") is a public educational agency 

operating under the applicable laws and regulations of the State of California. It is governed by a 

five-member Governing Board elected by registered voters of the County Office, which comprises 

an area in Colusa County. The County Office serves students in pre-kindergarten, grades nine 

through twelve and adults. 

 

B. REPORTING ENTITY 

 

The County Office was organized under the laws of the State of California. It is a public agency 

operating a variety of programs for children, youth, and families, and supporting schools with 

academic, business, consulting and vocational services. 

 

The County Office educates children with special needs, children who are referred by other public 

agencies, and youth who are wards of the Juvenile Court. The County Office programs also provide 

educational services for adults, preschool children and youth through specific categorical programs. 

As the intermediary between the California Department of Education and local school districts, the 

Colusa County Office of Education represents the local districts on appropriate matters before the 

State government, and carries out responsibilities mandated by statutes and regulations.  

 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the County Office is financially 

accountable. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the 

County Office, in that the County Office approves their budget, the issuance of their debt or the 

levying of their taxes. In addition, component units are other legally separate organizations for 

which the County Office is not financially accountable but the nature and significance of the 

organization’s relationship with the County Office is such that exclusion would cause the County 

Office’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The County Office has no component 

units. 

 

C. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office”) accounts for its financial statements in 

accordance with policies and procedures of the Department of Education’s California School 

Accounting Manual. The accounting policies of the County Office conform to generally accepted 

accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and 

the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). 

 

D. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

 

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement 

focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This differs from the manner in which governmental 

fund financial statements are prepared.  

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

20 

D. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED) 

 

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between expenses, both direct 

and indirect, of the County Office and for each governmental function, and excludes fiduciary 

activity. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or 

department and are, therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function. The County Office does 

not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the Statement of Activities.  Program revenues 

include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants 

and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 

particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general 

revenues. The comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each 

program or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the County 

Office. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities.  

 

Net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either 

externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or 

regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 

legislation. The net position restricted for other activities results from special revenue funds and the 

restrictions on their net position use. 

 

Fund Financial Statements 

 

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the County Office. The focus of 

governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting 

funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated 

and presented in a single column. 

 

Governmental Funds 

 

All governmental funds are accounted for using the flow of current financial resources 

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, 

only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement 

of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance reports on the sources (revenues and other 

financing sources) and uses (expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. 

This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-

wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include 

reconciliations with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-

wide financial statements, prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the 

accrual basis of accounting, and the governmental fund financial statements, prepared using the 

flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 

accounting. 

 

Fiduciary Funds 

 

Fiduciary funds are accounted for using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the 

accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial 

statements because they do not represent resources of the County Office. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

21 

E. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and 

reported in the financial statements. Government -wide financial statements are prepared using the 

accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting. 

 

Revenues (Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions) 

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially 

equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual 

basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become 

available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year, or are 

expected to be collected soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal 

year. Generally, available is defined as collectible within 45 to 60 days. However, to achieve 

comparability of reporting among California districts and so as not to distort normal revenue 

patterns, with specific respect to reimbursement grants and corrections to State-aid apportionments, 

the California Department of Education has defined available for districts as collectible within one 

year. The following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and available at fiscal 

year-end: State apportionments, interest, certain grants, and other local sources. 

 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the County Office receives value without directly giving 

equal value in return, include property taxes, certain grants, entitlements, and donations. Revenue 

from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year in which the taxes are received. Revenue from 

certain grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 

requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include time and purpose restrictions. On 

a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it 

can be recognized. 

 

Unearned Revenue – Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the 

“measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current period or when resources are 

received by the County Office prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent 

periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the County Office has a legal 

claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet and 

revenue is recognized. 

 

Expenses/Expenditures – On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time 

they are incurred. The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net 

financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in 

the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Principal and 

interest on long-term obligations, which has not matured, are recognized when paid in the 

governmental funds. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized 

in the governmental funds.   
                                             



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

22 

F. FUND ACCOUNTING 
 

The accounts of the County Office are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered 

to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set 

of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues, and 

expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. County Office resources are allocated to and accounted 

for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by 

which spending activities are controlled. The County Office's accounts are organized into major, 

non-major, and fiduciary funds as follows: 

 

Major Governmental Funds 
 

General Fund – The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County Office. It is used to 

account for the ordinary operations of the County Office. All transactions, except those accounted 

for in another fund, are accounted for in this fund. 

 

Child Development Fund – This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local 

revenues to operate child development programs. All moneys received by the County Office for, or 

from the operation of, child development services covered under the Child Care and Development 

Services Act (Education Code Section 8200 et seq.) is deposited into this fund. The moneys may be 

used only for expenditures for the operation of child development programs. The costs incurred in 

the maintenance and operation of child development services shall be paid from this fund, with 

accounting to reflect specific funding sources (Education Code Section 8328). 

 

Non-Major Governmental Funds 

  

Adult Education Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues received and expenditures 

made to operate the County Office's adult education. 

 

County School Facilities Fund – This fund is established pursuant to Education Code Section 

17070.43 to receive apportionments from the 1998 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 1A), 

the 2002 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 47), or the 2004 State School Facilities Fund 

(Proposition 55) authorized by the State Allocation Board for new school facility construction, 

modernization projects, and facility hardship grants, as provided in the Leroy F. Greene School 

Facilities Act of 1998 (Education Code Section 17070 et seq.). 

 

Forest Reserve Fund (County Offices) – This fund exists to account separately for federal forest 

reserve funds received by offices of county superintendents for distribution to school districts and 

community college districts (Education Code Section 2300; Government Code Section 29484). 

 

Fiduciary Funds 
 
Agency funds are used to account for assets for which the County Office acts as an agent. The 

County Office maintains the following Agency fund: 

 

Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund: This fund is used to account separately for gifts or 

bequests per Education Code Section 41031 that benefit individuals, private organizations, or other 

governments and under which neither principal nor income may be used for purposes that support 

the County Office's own programs. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

23 

G. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

   

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the California Education Code and requires 

the governing board to hold a public hearing and adopt an operating budget no later than July 1 of 

each year. The County Office governing board satisfied these requirements. The adopted budget is 

subject to amendment throughout the year to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and 

expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at the time of budget adoption with the legal 

restriction that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations by major object account. 

 

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the 

amount when the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted 

amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been 

accounted for. For budget purposes, on-behalf payments have not been included as revenue and 

expenditures as required under generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

H. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 

The County Office’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 

deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date 

of acquisition. Cash equivalents also include cash with county treasury balances for purposes of the 

statement of cash flows. 

 

I.          INVESTMENTS 
 

Investments held at June 30, 2020, with original maturities greater than one year, are stated at fair 

value. Fair value is estimated based on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not 

required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost or amortized cost. Fair values of investments 

in county and state investment pools are determined by the program sponsor. 
 

Governmental agencies in the State of California are authorized under California Government 

Code to make direct investments in local agency bonds, notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. 

Treasury instruments; registered State warrants or treasury notes; securities of the U.S. 

Government or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit placed 

with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase 

agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest by diversified management 

companies; certificates of participation; obligations with first priority security; and collateralized 

mortgage obligations. Investments of debt proceeds held by trustees are governed by the provisions 

of the applicable agreements rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code. 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

24 

J. INVENTORIES AND PREPAID EXPENDITURES 
 

Inventories are recorded using the consumption method, in that the cost is recorded as expenditure 

at the time individual inventory items are withdrawn from stores inventory for consumption. 

Inventories in the applicable funds consist primarily of expendable supplies held for consumption. 

Reported inventories are equally offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates that these 

amounts are not “available for appropriation and expenditure” even though they are a component of 

net position. 
 

The County Office has the option of reporting expenditures for prepaid items in governmental 

funds either when paid or during the benefiting period. The County Office has chosen to report the 

expenditure during the benefiting period. 
 

K. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 
 

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are 

determined by its measurement focus. Capital assets are long-lived assets of the County Office. The 

County Office maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000. The County Office does not possess 

any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that 

do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized, but are 

expenses as incurred. 
 

When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and 

capitalized. The valuation basis for general capital assets is historical cost, or where historical cost 

is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement costs. Donated capital assets are 

capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date donated. 
 

Depreciation is computed and recorded using the straight-line method. 
 

Asset Class  Estimated Useful Life (in years) 

Buildings and Improvements  5-50 

Furniture and Equipment  2-15 

Vehicles  8 

   

L. INTERFUND BALANCES 

 

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans 

are classified as “interfund receivables/payables”. These amounts are eliminated in the 

governmental and business-type activities columns of the statement of net position, except for the 

net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented 

as internal balances. 

 

M. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

 

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements. 

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the County Office. The County 

Office's policy is to record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken, since such 

benefits do not vest, nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable 

service period for calculation of retirement benefits when the employee retires. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

25 

N. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

 

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide 

and fund financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, 

once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported 

as obligations of the governmental funds. 

 

However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefits, and 

contractually required pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reported 

as a liability in the governmental fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for 

payment during the current year. Bonds, capital leases, and other long-term obligations are 

recognized as liabilities in the governmental fund financial statements when due. 

 

O. NET POSITION 

 

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 

and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations 

imposed on their use either through enabling legislation adopted by the County Office or through 

external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws and regulations of other governments. 

The County Office first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for 

which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available. 

 

P. PROPERTY TAX 

 

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable 

in two installments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and 

April 10, respectively. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 

31. The County of Colusa bills and collects the taxes on behalf of the County Office. Local 

property tax revenues are recorded when received. 

 

Q. USE OF ESTIMATES 

 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 

that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from 

those estimates. 

 

R. PENSIONS  

 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 

related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Colusa 

County Office of Education’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and 

California State Teachers Retirement System (CalSTRS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions 

from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported 

by CalPERS and CalSTRS, respectively. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 

employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 

terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

26 

S. FUND BALANCE – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, "Fund 

Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”, the County Office is required to 

report fund balances in the following categories: Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned 

and/or Unassigned.   

 

Nonspendable Fund Balance reflects assets not in spendable form, either because they will never 

convert to cash (e.g. prepaid expense) or must remain intact pursuant to legal or contractual 

requirements. 

 

Restricted Fund Balance reflects amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated 

by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. 

 

Committed Fund Balance reflects amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes 

determined by a formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority: the 

Superintendent. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions 

approved by the Superintendent. 

 

Assigned Fund Balance reflects amounts intended to be used by the government for specific 

purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Under the County 

Office’s adopted policy, only the Superintendent is authorized to assign amounts for specific 

purposes. 

 

Unassigned Fund Balance represents the residual classification for the government's general fund 

and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. 

 

When expenditures are incurred for purposes of which restricted, committed, assigned and 

unassigned fund balances are available, the County Office considers committed funds to have been 

spent first, followed by assigned and finally, unassigned, as needed, unless the governing board has 

provided for otherwise in its commitment or assignment functions. 

 

The governing board maintains a minimum fund balance policy for the County School Service 

Fund in order to protect the County Office against revenue shortfalls or unpredicted one-time 

expenditures. The policy requires a Reserve for Economic Uncertainties consisting of unassigned 

amounts equal to no less than five percent of County School Service Fund expenditures and other 

financing uses. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

27 

S. DEFERRED INFLOWS/OUTFLOWS 

 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred outflows 

of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 

consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and as such will not be recognized as 

an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then.  

 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred 

inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 

represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such, will not be 

recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  

 

T. POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 

 

For purposes of measuring the County Office of Education’s OPEB liability, deferred outflows of 

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information 

about the fiduciary net position of the County Office of Education’s OPEB Plan (OPEB Plan) and 

additions to/deductions from the County Office of Education’s fiduciary net position have been 

determined on the same basis as they are reported by the OPEB Plan. For this purpose, the OPEB 

Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 

Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments and participating 

interest earning investment contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or 

less, which are reported at cost. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

28 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2020 consist of the following: 
 
 

Governmental Fiduciary

Activities Activities Total

Cash in County Treasury 3,510,771$      67,346$        3,578,117$    

Cash in Revolving Fund 350                 -              350              

3,511,121$      67,346$        3,578,467$    
 

 

A. Cash in County Treasury 

 

County pool investments consist of County Office’s cash held by the Colusa County Treasury that 

is invested in the county investment pool. The fair value of the County Office’s investment in the 

pool is reported in the financial statements at amounts that are based upon the County Office’s pro-

rata share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to 

the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The weighted average maturity of the pool is 1,492 days.  

The pool is rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s. 

 

Interest Rate Risk.  California Government Code Section 53601 limits the County Office’s 

investments to maturities of five years.  The County Office does not have a formal investment 

policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses 

arising from increasing interest rates. 

 

Credit Risk.  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to 

the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally 

recognized statistical rating organization. Presented in the next page is the actual rating as of the 

year-end for each investment type. 

 

A. Cash in Revolving Funds 

 

Cash in revolving fund consists of all cash maintained in commercial bank accounts that are used 

as revolving funds.  Cash balances held in banks are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal 

Depository Insurance Corporation. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

29 

3. INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 

  

Interfund activity is reported as loans, service-provided reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are 

reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 

consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues 

and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the 

appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund 

transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers among governmental or proprietary funds are netted as 

part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. 

 

Due From/Due to Other Funds 

 

Amounts Due From/Due To other funds, at June 30, 2020, were as follows: 

 

Interfund Interfund

Receivables Payables

Major Funds:

General Fund 138,268$           4,704$              

Child Development Fund -                   132,320             

Nonmajor Funds:

Adult Education Fund 4,704                5,948                

Total 142,972$           142,972$           

 
 

Interfund Transfers 

 

Amounts transferred, for the year ended June 30, 2020, were as follows: 

 

Transfer from Adult Education Fund to the General fund for indirect cost

apportionments. 8,623$              

Transfer from Child Development Fund to the General fund for indirect cost

apportionments. 457,469             

5,185                

Total Transfers 471,277$           

Transfer from Forest Reserve Fund  to the General Fund for the forest 

reserve apportionment.

 
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

30 

4. CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows: 

 

Additions Deductions

Balance and and Balance

July 1, 2019 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2020

Non-depreciable assets:

     Land 3,621,725$     -$             -$             3,621,725$     

     Work in progress -                -              -              -                

3,621,725       -              -              3,621,725       

Depreciable assets:

     Land improvements 246,135         104,733        -              350,868         

     Building and improvements 19,555,753     -              -              19,555,753     

     Furniture and equipment 877,359         88,021          -              965,380         

20,679,247     192,754        -              20,872,001     

Accumulated depreciation:

     Land improvements (79,694)          (26,309)        -              (106,003)        

     Building and improvements (4,407,206)      (427,844)       -              (4,835,050)      

     Furniture and equipment (480,430)        (100,045)       -              (580,475)        

(4,967,330)      (554,198)       -              (5,521,528)      

Depreciable assets, net 15,711,917     (361,444)       -              15,350,473     

Capital assets, net 19,333,642$   (361,444)$     -$             18,972,198$   
 

 

The entire amount of depreciation expense was unallocated. 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

31 

5. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

 

The changes in the County Office’s long-term obligations during the year consisted of the following: 

 

Due

Balance Balance Within

July 1, 2019 Additions Deductions June 30, 2020 One Year

Capital Leases 14,291$        -$             14,291$        -$               -$             

Compensated Absences 107,184        29,513          -              136,697           136,697        

Net Pension Liability 15,859,776    1,897,757     -              17,757,533      -              

Net OPEB Liability 380,676        44,546          -              425,222           -              

16,361,927$  1,971,816$    14,291$        18,319,452$     136,697$      

 
Payments on the compensated absences, pensions and other postemployment benefits are made from the fund 

for which the related employee worked. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

32 

6. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

 

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained 

by agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers' 

Retirement System (STRS), and classified employees are members of the California Public 

Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). 

 

Plan Description 

 

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) 

 

The County Office of Education contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public 

Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee 

retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides 

retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan 

members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively 

amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive 

annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. 

Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Headquarters, 400 

Q Street, Sacramento, California 95811. 

 

State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS) 

 

The County Office of Education contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost-

sharing, multiple-employer, public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan 

administered by STRS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor benefits to 

beneficiaries.  Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within 

the State Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report 

that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the STRS 

annual financial report may be obtained from the STRS Headquarters, 100 Waterfront Place, West 

Sacramento, California 95605. 

 

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows: 

 

Hire date

Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62 2% @ 60 2% @ 62

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service

Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life

Retirement age 55 62 60 62

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Required employee contribution rates 7% 7% 10.25% 10.205%

Required employer contribution rates 19.721% 19.721% 17.10% 17.10%

On or after 

January 1, 2013

Prior to

January 1, 2013

Prior to

January 1, 2013

On or after 

January 1, 2013

CalPERS CalSTRS

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

33 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

 

Contributions  

 

CalPERS 

 

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer 

contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be 

effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are 

determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is 

the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, 

with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The County Office of Education is 

required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of 

employees. 

 

STRS 

 

Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature and 

Governor and detailed in Teachers’ Retirement Law. Contribution rates are expressed as a level 

percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. 

 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the contributions reported as deferred outflows of resources related to 

pensions recognized as part of pension expense for each Plan were as follows: 
 

CalPERS STRS Total

1,047,351$     819,688$        1,867,039$     

-                567,884         567,884         

1,047,351$     1,387,572$     2,434,923$     

Contributions - employer

Total

On behalf contributions - state

 
 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions 

 

As of June 30, 2020, the County Office of Education’s reported net pension liabilities for its 

proportionate share of the net pension liability of each Plan as follows: 
 

Proportionate Share 

of Net Pension Liability

CalPERS 10,295,564$                     

STRS 7,461,969                        

Total Net Pension Liability 17,757,533$                     
  

 

The County Office of Education’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate 

share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 

30, 2019, and the total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was 

determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 rolled forward to June 30, 2019 using standard 

update procedures. The County Office of Education’s proportion of the net pension liability was based 

on a projection of the County Office of Education’s long-term share of contributions to the pension 

plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.  



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

34 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 
 

The County Office of Education’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of 

June 30, 2018 and 2019 measurement dates was as follows. 
 

Fiscal Year CalPERS STRS

2018-19 0.03342% 0.00756%

2019-20 0.03533% 0.00826%

Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00190% 0.00070%

Measurement 

Dates

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2019

  
 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the County Office of Education recognized pension expense of 

$2,797,735. At June 30, 2020, the County Office of Education reported deferred outflows of resources 

and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

 

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources

1,047,351$   -$            1,387,572$   -$            2,434,923$   -$            

-              250,403        1,085           307,369        1,085           557,772        

1,105,006     23,339         2,304,880     -              3,409,886     23,339         

928,591        -              46,007         399,529        974,598        399,529        

91,201         395,823        336,733        1,161,101     427,934        1,556,924     

292,532        -              -              374,536        292,532        374,536        

Total 3,464,681$   669,565$      4,076,277$   2,242,535$   7,540,958$   2,912,100$   

Net differences between projected 

and actual investment earnings on 

pension plan investments

Change in employer's proportion 

and differences between the 

employer’s contributions and the 

employer’s proportionate share of 

contributions

Differences between Expected 

and Actual Experience

Changes of Assumptions

Difference between proportionate 

share of aggregate employer 

contributions and actual 

contributions for 2018-19

Pension contributions subsequent 

to measurement date

CalPERS STRS Total

 
 

 

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 

30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to pensions will 

be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
 

1,116,773$        40,857$             1,157,630$        

498,582             114,843             613,425             

137,327             8,562                145,889             

(4,918)               157,599             152,681             

-                   115,606             115,606             

-                   8,704                8,704                

1,747,764$        446,171$           2,193,935$        

CalPERS STRS

Total Deferred 

Outflows/

(Inflows) of 

Resources

Year Ended

June 30

2024

Thereafter

Total

2021

2022

2023

2025

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

35 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

 

Actuarial Assumptions 

 

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuations were determined using the 

following actuarial assumptions: 

 

CalPERS STRS

Valuation Date June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018

Measurement Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Entry-Age Normal Cost

Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.10%

Inflation 2.50% 2.75%

Payroll Growth Rate 2.75% 3.50%

Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service Varies by Entry Age and Service

Investment Rate of Return 
(1)

7.15% 7.10%

Mortality

(1)
 Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

Derived using CalPERS' 

Membership Data for all Funds

Derived using STRS' 

Membership Data for all Funds

 
 

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 15 years of 

mortality improvements using the Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016. For more details 

on this table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS 

demographic data from 1997 to 2015) that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

 

CalSTRS changed the mortality assumptions based on the July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2015, 

experience study adopted by the board in February 2017. CalSTRS uses a generational mortality 

assumption, which involves the use of a base mortality table and projection scales to reflect expected 

annual reductions in mortality rates at each age, resulting in increases in life expectancies each year into 

the future. The base mortality tables are CalSTRS custom tables derived to best fit the patterns of 

mortality among our members. The projection scale was set equal to 110% of the ultimate improvement 

factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP2016) table issued by the Society of Actuaries. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

36 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

 

Discount Rate 

 

CalPERS 

 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for Plan was 7.15%. The projection of cash 

flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made 

at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at 

statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net 

position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 

members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all 

periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-

block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 

investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 

long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 

returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over 

the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the 

expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was 

calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single 

equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one 

calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal 

to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative 

expenses. 

 

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 

calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 

allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 
 

Assumed

Asset Real Return Real Return

Allocation Years 1 - 10 
(a)

Years 11+ 
(b)

Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%

Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%

Inflation Assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%

Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%

Real Estate 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%

Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%

100.0%

(a)
 An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period

(b)
 An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period

Asset Class

CalPERS

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

37 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

 

Discount Rate 

 

STRS 

 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10%. The projection of cash flows 

used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers are 

made at statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate increases, actuarially determined. 

Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment 

rate of return (7.10%) and assuming that contributions, benefit payments and administrative expenses 

occur midyear. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be 

available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-

term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 

determine the total pension liability. 

 

The long-term investment rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-

block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 

of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best-

estimate ranges were developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS’ general investment 

consultant (Pension Consulting Alliance) as inputs to the process. The actuarial investment rate of 

return assumption was adopted by the board in February 2017 in conjunction with the most recent 

experience study. For each future valuation, CalSTRS’ independent consulting actuary (Milliman) 

reviews the return assumptions for reasonableness based on the most current capital market 

assumptions. Best estimates of 20-year geometrically linked real rates of return and the assumed asset 

allocation for each major asset class, are summarized in the following table. 
 

Long-Term

Assumed Expected

Asset Real Rate of

Allocation Return 
(a)

Global Equity 47.0% 4.80%

Fixed Income 12.0% 1.30%

Real Estate 13.0% 3.60%

Private Equity 13.0% 6.30%

Risk Mitigating Strategies 9.0% 1.80%

Inflation Sensitive 4.0% 3.30%

Cash/Liquidity 2.0% -0.40%

Total 100%

(a)
 20-year average

Asset Class

STRS

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

38 

6.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate  

 

The following presents the County Office of Education’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 

for each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the County Office of 

Education’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 

discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 

 

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%

(6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%)

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 14,840,379$           10,295,564$           6,525,327$             

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%

(6.10%) Rate (7.10%) (8.10%)

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 11,111,490$           7,461,969$             4,435,822$             

CalPERS

STRS

 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position  

 

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately 

issued CalPERS and STRS comprehensive annual financial reports.  

 

Payable to the Pension Plan 

 

As of June 30, 2020, the County Office of Education had no outstanding required contributions to the 

pension plans. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

39 

7. OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

 

General Information About the OPEB PLAN 

 

Plan description: The plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan. The plan provides other 

postemployment benefits for eligible certificated, classified and management employees of the County 

Office of Education. The authority to establish and amend the benefit terms and financing requirements 

are governed by collective bargaining agreements with plan members. No assets are accumulated in a 

trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75. The Plan does not issue financial 

statements. 

 

Benefits provided: The postretirement health plans and the County Office of Education’s obligation 

vary by employee group as described below: 

 

Benefit types provided

Duration of Benefits

Required Service

Minimum Age

Maximum Age

Dependent Coverage

County Office Contribution %

County Office Cap

Not more than 63 at the end of the school year of retirement

$50,000 prorated over period from retirement to age 65

Certificated

100% of cap

Yes

55

20 years

To age 65

Medical, dental, and vision

 
 

Contributions: The contribution requirements of Plan member and the County Office of Education are 

established and may be amended by the County Office of Education and the Educators of the Colusa 

County Office of Education (ECCOE). The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go 

financing requirements. For fiscal year 2019/20, the County Office of Education contributed $28,012 to 

the Plan, of which $28,012 was used for current premiums. 

 

Employees covered by benefit terms. At June 30, 2019, the following employees were covered by the 

benefit terms: 

 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 2           

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments -        

Active employees 38         

40         
 

Net OPEB Liability 

 

The County Office of Education’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total 

OPEB liability was used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 

of that date. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

40 

7.  OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

 

Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was 

determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 

measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

 

Salary Increases 2.75% per year

Inflation 2.75% per year

Investment rate of return

Healthcare cost trend rates 4% per year

3.5% per year net of expenses based on the Bond 

Buyer 20 Bond Index

 
 

The discount rate of 3.8% is based on the Bond Buyer 20 Bond Index. We assumed that contributions 

would be sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed 30 years. The mortality 

assumptions are based on the 2009 CalSTRS mortality table created by CalSTRS. CalSTRS 

periodically studies mortality for participating agencies and establishes mortality tables that are 

modified versions of commonly used tables. This table incorporates mortality projection as deemed 

appropriate based on CalPERS analysis. 

 

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 
 

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at June 30, 2019 380,676$          -$                380,676$          

Expected changes for the year:

Service cost 12,953             -                  12,953             

Interest 14,448             -                  14,448             

Contributions - employer -                  28,018             (28,018)            

Net investment income -                  -                  -                  

Benefit payments (28,018)            (28,018)            -                  

Expected minus actual benefit payments 14,158             -                  14,158             

Administrative expense -                  -                  -                  

Net expected changes 13,541             -                  13,541             

Expected balances at June 30, 2020 394,217           -                  394,217           

Actual changes for the year:

Experience (gains)/losses (18,409)            -                  (18,409)            

Changes in assumptions 11,812             -                  11,812             

Changes in benefit terms 37,602             -                  37,602             

Net actual changes 31,005             -                  31,005             

Actual balance at June 30, 2020 425,222$          -$                425,222$          

Increase (Decrease)

Net OPEB 

Liability

Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position

Total OPEB 

Liability

 
 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates: 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the County Office of Education, as well as what the 

County Office of Education’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 

that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.5 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (4.5 percent) that the current 

healthcare cost trend rates: 
  

Net OPEB liability (asset) 466,617$            425,222$            388,119$            

1% Increase 

(4.50%)

Discount Rate 

(3.50%)

1% Decrease 

(2.50%)

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

41 

7.  OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following 

presents the net OPEB liability of the County Office of Education, as well as what the County Office of 

Education’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 

1-percentage-point lower (3.0 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (5.0 percent) that the current 

healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

Net OPEB liability (asset) 425,222$            425,222$            425,222$            

1% Decrease 

(3.0%)

Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 

(4.0%)

1% Increase 

(5.0%)

 
 

OPEB plan fiduciary net position: The plan has no assets. 

 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 

to OPEB 

 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the County Office of Education recognized OPEB expense of 

$37,641. At June 30, 2020, the County Office of Education reported deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

-$              4,010$           

146                -                

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

OPEB plan investments -                -                

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 28,012           -                

Total 28,158$          4,010$           

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions

 
 

The County Office of Education will recognize the contributions made subsequent to the measurement 

date in the next fiscal year. In addition, future recognition of these deferred resources is shown below: 
 

Year ended June 30

2021 (265)$                      

2022 (265)                        

2023 (265)                        

2024 (265)                        

2025 (7,803)                     

Thereafter 4,999                      

Total (3,864)$                   

Total Deferred 

Outflows/(Inflows) 

of Resources

 
 

Payable to the OPEB Plan 

 

At June 30, 2020, the County Office of Education had no outstanding amount of contributions to 

the OPEB plan required for the year ended June 30, 2020. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

42 

8. FUND BALANCES 

 

The County Office reports fund balances in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board Statement No. 54. All fund balance categories are reported in the aggregate on the face of the 

balance sheet. All components of those fund balances and specific purposes are identified as follows: 

 
Child

Development Non-Major

General Fund Funds Funds Total

Nonspendable:

Prepaid Expenses 30,983$       5,432$        -$           36,415$       

Inventory 10,480        -             -             10,480        

Revolving Cash 350             -             -             350             

Total Nonspendable 41,813        5,432          -             47,245        

Restricted:

Adult Education: Adults in Correctional Facilities -             -             25,931        25,931        

Adult Education: Adult Education Program -             -             104,997       104,997       

Special Ed: Mental Health Services 292,873       -             -             292,873       

Special Ed: Project Workability I LEA 11,160        -             -             11,160        

Child Nutrition: CFP Claims-Centers and Family Day Care Homes 2,055          5,409          -             7,464          

Child Nutrition: CCFP Family Day Care Sponsor Admin -             3,265          -             3,265          

Child Development: Center-Based Reserve Account -             2                -             2                

Child Development: Resource & Referral Reserve Account -             5,368          -             5,368          

Child Development: Alternative Payment Reserve Account -             4,711          -             4,711          

Other Restricted State 65,427        -             -             65,427        

Total Restricted 371,515       18,755        130,928       521,198       

Committed:

Solay Payoff 75,000        -             -             75,000        

Technology Upgrades 100,000       -             -             100,000       

Community School Set Aside 316,779       -             -             316,779       

CCOE 2,691,919    -             -             2,691,919    

Deferred Maintenance 979,910       -             -             979,910       

Child Development Program Requirements -             56,227        -             56,227        

Distributions due to other LEA -             -             39,792        39,792        

Total Committed 4,163,608    56,227        39,792        4,259,627    

Unassigned:

607,108       -             -             607,108       

Total Unassigned 607,108       -             -             607,108       

Total Fund Balances 5,184,044$  80,414$       170,720$     5,435,178$  

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties

 
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

43 

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 

The County Office has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review 

and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances 

under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement would not be material. 

 

10. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The County Office is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and 

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County 

Office’s risk management activities are recorded in the County School Service Fund. The County 

Office participates in various public entity risk pools (JPAs) for its health and welfare benefits, 

workers’ compensations benefits, and property/liability insurance. Refer to Note 11 for additional 

information regarding the JPAs. 

 

11. JOINT VENTURES 

 

The County Office participates in three joint ventures under joint powers agreements (JPAs); the North 

Valley Schools Insurance Group (NVSIG) for worker’s compensation coverage, the Schools Excess 

Liability Fund (SELF) for excess liability coverage, and the Tri-County School Insurance Group for 

property and liability coverage. The relationships between the County Office and the JPAs are such that 

the JPAs are not component units of the County Office for financial reporting purposes. 

 

These entities have budgeting and financial reporting requirements independent of member units and 

their financial statements are not presented in these financial statements; however, fund transactions 

between the entities and the County Office are included in these statements. Audited financial 

statements are available from the respective entities. 

 

Condensed financial information for the JPAs is as follows: 

 

Tri-Counties SIG NVSIG SELF

June 30, 2019* June 30, 2019* June 30, 2019*

Total Assets 27,218,314$        3,371,324$          121,323,694$      

Deferred Outflows of Resources 195,350              -                     423,181              

Total Liabilities 8,123,306            1,639,652            101,851,136        

Deferred Inflows of Resources 70,938                -                     31,467                

Net Position 19,219,420          1,731,672            19,864,272          

Revenues 44,200,830$        15,010,503$        25,735,366$        

Expenditures 38,071,785          14,848,552          23,968,407          

Change in Net Position 6,129,045$          161,951$            1,766,959$          
 

 

 * Most recent information available. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  

 

44 

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) a global 

pandemic and recommended containment and mitigation measures worldwide. This contagious disease 

outbreak, which has continued to spread, and any related adverse public health developments, has 

adversely affected public education, workforces, economies, and financial markets globally, potentially 

leading to an economic downturn. It has also disrupted the normal operations of many businesses and 

organizations. It is not possible for management to predict the duration or magnitude of the adverse 

results of the outbreak and its disruptive effects on the County Office’s operations and financial results 

at this time. 

 

The County Office’s management has reviewed its financial statements and evaluated subsequent 

events for the period of time from its year ended June 30, 2020 through October 7, 2020, the date the 

financial statements were issued. Management is not aware of any subsequent events, other than those 

described above, that would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying financial statements. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

 

GENERAL FUND 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

 45 

 

Variance with

Final Budget

Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

LCFF Revenue 2,568,424$     2,706,265$     2,669,132$     (37,133)$        

Federal revenue 1,106,484       1,666,582       1,507,718       (158,864)        

Other state revenues 3,669,921       4,140,202       3,815,357       (324,845)        

Other local revenues 4,504,638       4,674,700       4,647,056       (27,644)          

   Total revenues 11,849,467     13,187,749     12,639,263     (548,486)        

EXPENDITURES

    Certificated SalariesCertificated salaries 3,744,589       4,058,889       3,981,459       77,430           

    Classified SalariesClassified salaries 3,444,400       3,507,573       3,380,203       127,370          

    Employee BenefitsEmployee benefits 3,163,633       3,476,618       3,126,261       350,357          

    Books and SuppliesBooks and supplies 362,133          714,800          673,936          40,864           

    Services and Other OperatingServices and other operating 

   expenditures 1,638,168       1,931,022       1,353,196       577,826          

    Capital OutlayCapital outlay 38,432           81,432           78,183           3,249             

    Other OutgoOther outgo 14,998           14,998           14,998           -                

   Total expenditures 12,406,353     13,785,332     12,608,236     1,177,096       

   Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

      over expenditures (556,886)        (597,583)        31,027           628,610          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in 450,703.00     523,476          471,277 (52,199)          

   Total other financing sources (uses) 450,703.00     523,476          471,277          (52,199)          

                Expenditures and Other Uses   Net change in fund balances (106,183)        (74,107)          502,304          576,411          

Fund balances, July 1, 2019 4,681,740       4,681,740       4,681,740       -                

Fund balances, June 30, 2020 4,575,557$     4,607,633$     5,184,044$     576,411$        

Budget



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

 

CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

 46 

 

Variance with

Final Budget

Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Federal revenue 3,334,639$     3,542,539$     3,541,336$     (1,203)$          

Other state revenues 3,615,789       4,236,415       3,677,849       (558,566)        

Other local revenues 257,718          454,038          126,193          (327,845)        

   Total revenues 7,208,146       8,232,992       7,345,378       (887,614)        

EXPENDITURES

    Certificated SalariesCertificated salaries 1,207,717       1,227,487       1,183,348       44,139           

    Classified SalariesClassified salaries 1,759,539       1,755,387       1,631,241       124,146          

    Employee BenefitsEmployee benefits 1,155,224       1,269,638       1,148,644       120,994          

    Books and SuppliesBooks and supplies 328,020          482,066          418,215          63,851           

    Services and Other OperatingServices and other operating 

   expenditures 2,315,061       2,955,336       2,409,102       546,234          

    Capital OutlayCapital outlay 55,290           112,962          99,371           13,591           

   Total expenditures 6,820,851       7,802,876       6,889,921       912,955          

   Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

      over expenditures 387,295          430,116          455,457          25,341           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers out (438,212)        (499,556)        (457,469)        42,087           

   Total other financing sources (uses) (438,212)        (499,556)        (457,469)        42,087           

                Expenditures and Other Uses   Net change in fund balances (50,917.00)      (69,440)          (2,012)            67,428           

Fund balances, July 1, 2019 82,426           82,426           82,426           -                

Fund balances, June 30, 2020 31,509$          12,986$          80,414$          67,428$          

Budget

 
 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

 47 

 

0.03615% 0.03550% 0.03514% 0.03321% 0.03342% 0.03533%

4,103,985$     5,232,628$     6,939,299$     7,929,087$     8,911,759$     10,295,564$    

3,688,854$     3,904,896$     3,595,752$     3,787,393$     3,790,782$     4,481,421$     

Proportionate Share of the net pension liability (asset) 

as a percentage of covered payroll 111.25% 134.00% 192.99% 209.35% 235.09% 229.74%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability (asset) 83.38% 79.43% 73.90% 71.87% 70.85% 70.05%

434,215$        462,613$        499,378$        588,220$        684,691$        883,781$        

0.00798% 0.00638% 0.00691% 0.00740% 0.00756% 0.00826%

4,660,857$     4,296,519$     5,590,612$     6,847,798$     6,948,017$     7,461,969$     

3,300,439$     2,451,407$     2,938,227$     3,421,275$     3,566,910$     4,227,959$     

Proportionate Share of the net pension liability (asset) 

as a percentage of covered payroll 141.22% 175.27% 190.27% 200.15% 194.79% 176.49%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability (asset) 76.52% 74.02% 70.04% 69.46% 70.99% 72.56%

293,079$        263,036$        369,629$        493,690$        580,693$        722,981$        

(1)
Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.

(2)
Covered payroll is the payroll on which contributions to a pension plan are based.

(3)

June 30, 

2019 
(1)

June 30, 

2019 
(1)

The Plan's proportionate share of aggregate contributions may not match the actual contributions made by the employer during the measurement period. The

Plan's proportionate share of aggregate contributions is based on the Plan's proportion of fiduciary net position as well as any additional side fund (or

unfunded liability) contributions made by the employer during the measurement period.

Proportionate share of aggregate employer contributions 
(3)

Covered payroll 
(2)

June 30, 

2014 
(1)

June 30, 

2017 
(1)

June 30, 

2017 
(1)

June 30, 

2016 
(1)

June 30, 

2015 
(1)

June 30, 

2018 
(1)

June 30, 

2018 
(1)

June 30, 

2016 
(1)

June 30, 

2015 
(1)

Covered payroll 
(2)

CalPERS

Proportionate share of aggregate employer contributions 
(3)

STRS

June 30, 

2014 
(1)

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset)

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset)

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)

 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

 48 

 

434,215$        462,613$        499,378$        588,220$        684,691$        883,781$        

Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution 
(2)

(460,668)        (500,579)        (586,447)        (690,542)        (886,986)        (1,047,351)      

(26,453)$        (37,966)$        (87,069)$        (102,322)$       (202,295)$       (163,570)$       

3,688,854$     3,904,896$     3,595,752$     3,787,393$     3,790,782$     4,481,421$     

11.771% 11.847% 13.888% 15.531% 18.062% 19.721%

293,079$        263,036$        369,629$        493,690$        580,693$        722,981$        

Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution 
(2)

(285,487)        (370,510)        (496,687)        (582,388)        (704,778)        (819,688)        

7,592$           (107,474)$       (127,058)$       (88,698)$        (124,085)$       (96,707)$        

3,300,439$     2,451,407$     2,938,227$     3,421,275$     3,566,910$     4,227,959$     

8.880% 10.730% 12.580% 14.430% 16.280% 17.100%

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.
(2)

(3) Covered payroll is the payroll on which contributions to a pension plan are based.

Fiscal Year 

2019-20 
(1)

Fiscal Year 

2019-20 
(1)

Employers are assumed to make contributions equal to the contractually required contributions. However, some employers may choose to make additional

contributions towards their side fund or their unfunded liability. Employer contributions for such plans exceed the contractually required contributions.

CalPERS has determined that employer obligations referred to as "side funds" do not conform to the circumstances described in paragraph 120 of GASB 68,

therefore are not considered separately financed specific liabilities.

Fiscal Year 

2018-19 
(1)

Fiscal Year 

2018-19 
(1)

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered payroll 
(3)

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 
(3)

Covered payroll 
(3)

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 
(3)

Contractually required contribution 
(2)

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

STRS

Fiscal Year 

2014-15 
(1)

Fiscal Year 

2017-18 
(1)

Fiscal Year 

2016-17 
(1)

Fiscal Year 

2015-16 
(1)

Contractually required contribution 
(2)

CalPERS

Fiscal Year 

2014-15 
(1)

Fiscal Year 

2015-16 
(1)

Fiscal Year 

2016-17 
(1)

Fiscal Year 

2017-18 
(1)

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION’S  

NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

 49 

 

2020* 2019* 2018*

Total OPEB liability

Service cost 12,953$       13,398$       13,039$       

Interest 14,448         14,271         12,477         

Changes of benefit terms 37,602         -              -              

Differences between expected and actual experience (18,409)        -              -              

Changes of assumptions 11,812         (12,382)        -              

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (13,860)        (6,930)         (6,663)         

Net change in total OPEB liability 44,546         8,357           18,853         

Total OPEB liability - beginning 380,676       372,319       353,466       

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 425,222$     380,676$     372,319$     

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer 28,018$       6,930$         6,663$         

Net investment income -              -              -              

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (28,018)        (6,930)         (6,663)         

Administrative expense -              -              -              

Net change in plan fiduciary net position -              -              -              

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning -              -              -              

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) -$            -$            -$            

District's net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) 425,222$     380,676$     372,319$     

0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Covered-employee payroll 10,110,478$ 9,242,384$   8,467,656$   

District's net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 4.2% 4.1% 4.4%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability

* GASB 75 requires presentation of the 10-year history of changes in the Net OPEB Liability. Since this is the third year of 

implementation, only results for fiscal years 2018, 2019 and 2020 are shown in this table.  
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

 50 

 

1. PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 

 

A. Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget (Non-

GAAP) and Actual – General Fund and Child Development Fund 

 

The County Office employs budget control by object codes and by individual appropriation 

accounts. Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed 

by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The budgets are revised during the year 

by the Board of Education to provide for revised priorities. Expenditures cannot legally 

exceed appropriations by major object code. The originally adopted and final revised budgets 

for the General Fund and the Child Development Fund are presented as Required 

Supplementary Information. The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP. 

 

As of June 30, 2020, the County Office of Education did not incur any excess of 

expenditures over appropriations by major object code in the individual major funds 

presented in the schedules. 

 

B    - Schedule of Changes  in the County Office of Education’s Net OPEB Liability and Related 

Ratios 

 

GASB 75 requires presentation of the 10-year history of changes in the Net OPEB Liability. 

However, since this is the initial year of implementation, only one year is currently available. 

 

Changes in Assumptions 

The investment rate of return changed from 3.8% to 3.5%. 

 

Changes in Benefit Terms 

There were no changes to benefits.  

 

Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown. 

 

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal (EAN) cost method

Amortization method Level percentage of pay

Amortization period 17.7 years

Asset valuation method There are no plan assets

Inflation 2.75% per year

Healthcare cost trend rates 4% per year

Salary increases 2.75% per year

Investment rate of return

Retirement age Minimum retirement age of 55

Mortality Certificated: 2009 CalSTRS Mortality

3.5% per year net of expenses based on the Bond 

Buyer 20 Bond Index

Classified: 2014 CalPERS Retiree Mortality for 

Miscellaneous Employees  
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

 51 

 

1. PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES (CONTINUED) 

 

C    - Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
 

This schedule presents information on the County Office of Education's proportionate share 

of the net pension liability (NPL), the Plans' fiduciary net position and, when applicable, the 

State's proportionate share of the NPL associated with the County Office of Education. In the 

future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented. 

 

Changes in Assumptions  

There were no changes in the assumptions used in the calculation of both the PERS and 

STRS collective net pension liabilities.  

 

Changes in Benefit Terms 

There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for both CalPERS and 

CalSTRS. 
 

Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown. 

 

 D    - Schedule of Pension Contributions 

 

If an employer's contributions to the plans are actuarially determined or based on statutory or 

contractual requirements, the employer's actuarially determined contribution to the pension 

plans (or, if applicable, its statutorily or contractually required contribution), the employer's 

actual contributions, the difference between the actual and actuarially determined 

contributions (or statutorily or contractually required), and a ratio of the actual contributions 

divided by covered-employee payroll. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of 

information will be presented. 

 

Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown. 
 
 

CalPERS STRS

Valuation Date June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018

Measurement Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Entry-Age Normal Cost

Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.10%

Inflation 2.50% 2.75%

Payroll Growth Rate 2.75% 3.50%

Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service Varies by Entry Age and Service

Investment Rate of Return 
(1)

7.15% 7.10%

Mortality

(1)
 Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

Derived using CalPERS' 

Membership Data for all Funds

Derived using STRS' 

Membership Data for all Funds

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

 

NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

 

 JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

. 52 

 

Adult Forest

Education Reserve 

Fund Fund Total

Cash and cash equivalents 88,396$       39,792$       128,188$      

Accounts receivable 46,402 -              46,402         

Due from other funds 4,704           -              4,704           

Total Assets 139,502$      39,792$       179,294$      

Liabilities

Accounts payable 2,626$         -$            2,626$         

Due to other funds 5,948           -              5,948           

Total Liabilities 8,574           -              8,574           

Fund balances

Restricted 130,928       -              130,928       

Committed -              39,792         39,792         

Total Fund Balances 130,928       39,792         170,720       

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 139,502$      39,792$       179,294$      

FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES AND

ASSETS



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

 

NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

 

 JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

. 53 

 

Adult Forest

Education Reserve

Fund Fund Total

REVENUES

            Total Revenue LimitLCFF sources 4,704$           -$              4,704$           

Federal revenue 38,905           39,457           78,362           

Other state revenues 6,919            -               6,919            

Other local revenues 183,087 650               183,737         

            Total RevenuesTotal revenues 233,615         40,107           273,722         

EXPENDITURES

    Certificated SalariesCertificated salaries 117,690 -               117,690         

    Classified SalariesClassified salaries 17,389 -               17,389           

    Employee BenefitsEmployee benefits 33,184 -               33,184           

    Books and SuppliesBooks and supplies 33,709 -               33,709           

    Services and Other OperatingServices and other operating

expenditures 19,510 -               19,510           

    Other OutgoOther outgo -               36,483           36,483           

            Total ExpendituresTotal expenditures 221,482         36,483           257,965         

            Excess of Revenues OverExcess (deficiency) of revenues 

                Expendituresover expenditures 12,133           3,624            15,757           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers out (8,623)           (5,185)           (13,808)         

            Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)Total other financing sources (uses) (8,623)           (5,185)           (13,808)         

                Expenditures and Other UsesNet change in fund balances 3,510            (1,561)           1,949            

Fund balances, July 1, 2019 127,418 41,353           168,771         

Fund balances, June 30, 2020 130,928$       39,792$         170,720$       



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

 ORGANIZATION 

 

 JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 54 

 

The Colusa County Office of Education is a public agency operating a variety of programs for children, 

youth, and families, and supporting schools with academic, business, consulting and vocational services. 

 

The Colusa County Office of Education educates children with special needs, children who are referred by 

other public agencies, and youth who are wards of the Juvenile Court. County Office programs also provide 

educational services for adults, preschool children and youth through specific categorical programs. As the 

intermediary between the California Department of Education and local school districts, the Colusa County 

Office of Education represents the local districts on appropriate matters before the State government, and 

carries out responsibilities mandated by statutes and regulations. 

 

 GOVERNING BOARD 

       Term Expires 

 Name   Office   December  

 

Brenda Miller   Member   2020 

 

Ed Conrado   President   2022 

 

Lynn Bowen Burnham   Vice President   2020 

 

Jason McMullan   Member   2022 

 

Barry Morrell   Member   2020 

 

ADMINISTRATION 
 

Michael P. West 

Superintendent 

 

Aaron Heinz 

Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

 SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

 

 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 55 

 

Second

Period Annual

Report Report

Elementary and Secondary

Community Day Schools 12.32 10.67

Total K - 12 12.32 10.67

Adult Education

Adults in Correctional Facilities 4.05 3.51

16.37 14.18

 
 

 

  

 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 56 

 

There were no special day classes offered, in accordance with Education code 46201.5, by the County Office 

of Education.  

  
 

 

     

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS 

 

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 57 

 

The County Office is not the sponsoring local educational agency for any charter schools. 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL AND BUDGET FINANCIAL  

REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 58 

 

 
There were no adjustments made to any funds of the County Office. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 
 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 59 

 

 

Pass-

Through

Federal Entity

Catalog Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Federal

Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education

Passed through California Department of Education

Special Education Cluster:

84.027 Special Education:  Basic Local Assistance 13379 * 854,044$        

84.173 Special Education: IDEA Preschool Grants 13430 * 29,259           

84.027A Special Education: IDEA Mental Health Allocation 15197 * 51,166           

84.173A Special Education: IDEA Preschool Staff Development 13431 * 1,000             

84.181 Special Ed: IDEA Early Intervention Grants, Part C 23761 * 82,210           

Subtotal Special Education Cluster 1,017,679       

84.367  ESEA (ESSA): Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective 

Instruction Local Grants 14341 1,576             

84.002A Adult Education: Adult Basic Education & ELA 14508 11,160           

84.002 Adult Education: Adult Secondary Education 13978 4,950             

84.002 Adult Education: English Literacy & Civics Education 14750 2,875             

84.002 Adult Education: Institutionalized Adults 13971 19,920           

84.215G Innovative Approaches to Literacy Program ** * 402,866          

84.358A Small Rural Achievement Grant ** 18,768           

84.196  NCLB: Title X McKinney-Vento Homeless Children Assistance Grant 14332 21,304           

      Total U.S. Department of Education 1,501,098       

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Passed through California Department of Education

Child Nutrition Cluster

10.558 Child Care Food Program 13666 398,849          

10.558 FDCH Food Administration 13393 59,202           

10.855 Distance Learning and Telemedicine Loans and Grants ** 26,464           

10.665 Forest Reserve Funds 10044 39,457           

      Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 523,972          

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Passed through California Department of Education

Child Care Development Cluster

93.596 Child Development: Federal Child Care Center Bases 13609 * 192,958          

93.596 Child Development: Local Planning Councils 15136 * 54,499           

93.575 Child Development: Quality Improvement Activities 13942 * 119,667          

93.575 Child Development: Federal Alternative Payment Stage III 13881 * 240,747          

93.575 Child Development: Federal Alternative Payment 13694 * 383,508          

93.575 Child Development: Federal Alternative Payment Stage II 14178 * 53,994           

      Total Child Care Development Cluster 1,045,373       

Head Start Cluster

93.600 Head Start 10016 1,238,789       

93.600 Head Start T&TA 10016 24,025           

93.600 Early Head Start 10016 677,147          

93.600 Early Head Start T&TA 10016 15,768           

93.600 Early Head Start Facility Grant 10016 5,356             

93.600 Head Start Facility 10016 95,888           

      Total Head Start Cluster 2,056,973       

      Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 3,102,346       

      Total Federal Programs 5,127,416$     

* Tested as a major program.

** Pass-Through entity Identifying Number not available



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information. 60 

 

Adopted

Budget Actuals Actuals Actuals

2020/2021 2019/2020 2018/2019 2017/2018

General Fund

Revenues and Other Financing

    Sources 12,932,277$    12,619,156$    11,200,288$    9,963,642$     

Expenditures 13,205,576     12,142,144 10,815,322     9,489,990       

Other Uses and Transfers Out -                -                -                -                

Total Outgo 13,205,576     12,142,144     10,815,322     9,489,990       

Change in Fund Balance (273,299)        477,012          384,966          473,652          

Ending Fund Balance 3,892,818$     4,166,117$     3,689,105$     3,304,139$     

Available Reserves 660,279$        607,108$        540,766$        526,902$        

Reserve for Economic

    Uncertainties 660,279$        607,108$        540,766$        526,902$        

Unassigned Fund Balance -$              -$              -$              -$              

Available Reserves as a 

    Percentage of Total Outgo 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.6%

Total Long-Term Debt 18,182,755$    18,319,452$    16,361,927$    15,285,560$    

Average Daily Attendance at P-2 15 15 15 13
 

   

This schedule reflects only the County School Service Fund on a budgetary fund basis, which does not 

include the changes in fund balance of the Deferred Maintenance Fund and Special Revenue for Other Than 

Capital Outlay Fund. 

 

The fund balance for the General Fund has increased $1,335,630 over the past three years. The fiscal year 

2020-21 projects a fund balance decrease of $273,299. For a County Office this size, the state recommends 

available reserves of at least 4% of total general fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses. The County 

Office met this requirement. 

 

The County School Service Fund had an operating surplus in all of the previous three years. 

 

Long-term debt has increased over the past two years by $3,333,892 primarily due to increases in the net 

pension liability and increases to the Net OPEB liability. 

 

Average Daily Attendance increased by 2 ADA over the past two years and the ADA budgeted to remain 

consistent for 2020-21.  



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

  
 

61 

1. Schedule of Average Daily Attendance 

 

Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the 

County Office. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis 

on which apportionments of State funds are made to the County Office. This schedule provides 

information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs. 

 

2. Schedule of Instructional Time 

 

This schedule is not required for County Offices of Education for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

 

3. Schedule of Charter Schools 

  

This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education to monitor financial 

reporting by Charter Schools. 

 

4. Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements 

 

This schedule provides information necessary to reconcile the Unaudited Actual Fund Financial 

Reports to the audited financial statements. 

 

5. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes federal grant activity of the 

County Office and is presented under the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The August 2020 

Edition of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) 

requires a disclosure of the financial activities of all federally funded programs.  This schedule was 

prepared to comply with the Uniform Guidance and state requirements.  Therefore, some amounts 

presented in this schedule may differ from amounts used in the preparation of the general purpose 

financial statements. The County Office has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost 

rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

  

6. Schedule of Financial Trends And Analysis 

 

This schedule discloses the County Office's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with 

current year budget information.  These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the County 

Office's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS 



 James Marta & Company LLP 
           Certified Public Accountants 
 

                 Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax 
 

 

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825   (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489 

e-mail:  jmarta@jpmcpa.com     www.jpmcpa.com 

62 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 

WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

 

 

Board of Education 

Colusa County Office of Education 

Colusa, California   

 

Report on Compliance for Each State Program 

 

We have audited the compliance of Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office”) with the types 

of compliance requirements described in the State of California’s 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 

Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting (the “Audit Guide”) to the state laws and 

regulations listed below for the year ended June 30, 2020.   

 

Management’s Responsibility 

 

Compliance with the requirements of state laws and regulations is the responsibility of County Office’s 

management.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County Office’s compliance based on our audit.  

 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State of California’s 2019-20 Guide for 

Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Those standards require 

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the state 

laws and regulations listed below occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 

County Office’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 

necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 

audit does not provide a legal determination of the County Office’s compliance with those requirements. 
 

mailto:jmarta@jpmcpa.com


 

 63 

Procedures

Performed

Attendance Yes

Teacher Certification and Misassignments No, see below

Kindergarten Continuance No, see below

Independent Study No, see below

Continuation Education No, see below

Instructional Time for School Districts No, see below

Instructional Materials

General Requirements Yes

Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers No, see below

Classroom Teacher Salaries No, see below

Early Retirement Incentive Program No, see below

Gann Limit Calculation Yes

School Accountability Report Card Yes

Juvenile Court Schools No, see below

Middle or Early College High Schools No, see below

K-3 Grade Span Adjustment No, see below

Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes

Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction No, see below

Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes

District of Choice No, see below

Procedures

Performed

California Clean Energy Jobs Act No, see below

After/Before Schools Education and Safety Program

General requirements No, see below

After School No, see below

Before School No, see below

Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes

Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes

Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes

Independent Study-Course Based No, see below

Procedures

Performed

Attendance No, see below

Mode of Instruction No, see below

Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study No, see below

Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based

Instruction No, see below

Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based No, see below

Charter School Facility Grant Program No, see below

Description

Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools

School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools

Description

Charter Schools

Description

 



 

 64 

 

We did not perform any procedures related to Kindergarten Continuance, Continuation Education, or Middle 

or Early College High School because the County Office does not report ADA for these programs.  

 

We did not perform any procedures for Teacher Certification and Misassignments, Independent Study and 

Juvenile Court Schools because ADA for these programs was below the materiality threshold. 

 

We did not perform any procedures related to Instructional Time for School Districts, Ratio of 

Administrative Employees to Teachers, Classroom Teacher Salaries and K-3 Grade Span Adjustment 

because these compliance requirements do not apply to County Offices of Education.  

 

We did not perform any procedures related to California Clean Energy Jobs Act as there were no 

expenditures in the current year. 

 

We did not perform any procedures related to Early Retirement Incentive Program, Apprenticeship: Related 

and Supplemental Instruction, After/Before Schools Education and Safety Program, District of Choice and 

Independent Study-Course Based because the County Office did not offer these programs. 

 

We did not perform any procedures related to Attendance Reporting for Charter Schools, Mode of 

Instruction for Charter Schools, Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study for Charter Schools, 

Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction for Charter Schools, Annual Instructional 

Minutes-Classroom Based for Charter Schools, and Charter School Facility Grant Program because the 

County Office did not have any charter schools. 

 

Opinion on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations 

 

In our opinion, Colusa County Office of Education complied, in all material respects, with the state laws and 

regulations referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

Sacramento, California 

October 7, 2020 

 



                James Marta & Company LLP 
             Certified Public Accountants 

  

 Accounting, Auditing, Consulting and Tax 
 

 

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825   (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489 

e-mail:  jmarta@jpmcpa.com     www.jpmcpa.com 

65 

 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON  

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

Board of Education 

Colusa County Office of Education 

Colusa, California 

 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major 

fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Colusa County Office of Education (the “County 

Office”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 

collectively comprise the County Office’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 

October 7, 2020.  

 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered County Office's internal 

control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of County Office’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 

express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County Office’s internal control. 

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 

or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 

misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 

internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 

statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a 

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 

yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 

or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 

not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 

that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 

identified. 

 

mailto:jmarta@jpmcpa.com


 

 66 

 

 

Compliance and Other Matters 

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County Office's financial statements are free 

from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 

determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 

provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 

of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 

Government Auditing Standards.  

 

Purpose of this Report 

 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 

the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or 

on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 

suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

Sacramento, California 

October 7, 2020 

 

  



                James Marta & Company LLP 
             Certified Public Accountants 

  

 Accounting, Auditing, Consulting and Tax 
 

 

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825   (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489 

e-mail:  jmarta@jpmcpa.com     www.jpmcpa.com 

 

67 

 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF 

EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE  

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

Board of Education 

Colusa County Office of Education 

Colusa, California 

 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

 

We have audited Colusa County Office of Education (the “County Office”) compliance with the types of 

compliance requirements described in the August 2020 Edition of the OMB Compliance Supplement that 

could have a direct and material effect on each of the County Office’s major federal programs for the year 

ended June 30, 2020.  The County Office’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s 

results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

 

Management’s Responsibility 

 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and terms and conditions of its 

federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County Office’s major federal 

programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our 

audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of the August 2020 Edition of the Title 

2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 

Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-

Profit Organizations. Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit 

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County Office’s compliance with those requirements 

and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.   

 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 

program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County Office’s compliance. 

 

mailto:jmarta@jpmcpa.com


 

 

 68 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

 

In our opinion, the County Office complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 

programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

 

Internal Control Over Compliance  

 

Management of the County Office is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 

over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing 

our audit of compliance, we considered the County Office’s internal control over compliance with the types of 

requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 

auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 

compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 

accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

County Office’s internal control over compliance. 

 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 

functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 

program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 

that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 

prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 

compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 

of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 

over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 

that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 

control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 

that have not been identified. 

 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform 

Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

Sacramento, California 

October 7, 2020 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

 SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

  69 

Section I – Summary of Audit Results 

 

Financial Statements 

 

Type of auditor’s report issued:  Unmodified 

 

Internal control over financial reporting:  

 Material weakness(es) identified?     Yes  X   No 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?     Yes  X   None reported 
 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 

 noted?     Yes  X   No 
 

Federal Awards 

 

Internal control over major programs: 

 Material weakness(es) identified?     Yes  X   No  

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?     Yes  X   None reported 

 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance 

 for major programs: Unmodified 

 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to 

 be reported in accordance with the Uniform  

 Guidance Section 200.516(a)?     Yes  X   No 
 

Identification of major programs: 
 

  CFDA Number(s)  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

   84.027, 84.027A, 84.173, 84.181, 84.173A Special Education Cluster 

                 93.575, 93.596 Child Care Development Cluster 

  93.600 Head Start Cluster 

  

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 

 Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 

 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?     Yes  X   No 

 

State Awards 

 

Internal control over state programs: 

 Material weakness(es) identified?     Yes  X   No 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?     Yes  X   None reported 

 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance 

 for state programs:  Unmodified 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

 SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

 70 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

 

No matters were reported.    

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

 SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

 71 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

 

No matters were reported. 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

 SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 

 72 

Section IV – State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

 

No matters were reported. 

 

 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 

 73 

 

2019-1 Comprehensive School Safety Plan (40000) 

 

Condition: 

The Comprehensive School Safety Plan did not have all of the required information included in the Plan. This 

includes the following: 

 An assessment of the current status of crime at the school 

 Child abuse reporting procedures 

 Use of school buildings for a public agency during an emergency 

 Suspension and expulsion procedures 

 Discrimination and harassment policies 

 Rules and procedures on school procedures 

 Bullying prevention procedures 

 

Effect: 

The County Office of Education’s plan did not comply with all elements of the Comprehensive School Safety 

Plan by not including all required information. 

 

Recommendation: 

We recommend the County Office of Education update the Comprehensive School Safety Plan to include of 

the required information as detailed in Education Code Sections 32280-32289. 

 

Status: 

Implemented. 

 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

Board Approved:  December __, 2020 

11.2.1 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
2021 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 

Meetings are usually held the 2nd Wednesday of the month 
beginning at 4:00 p.m., unless otherwise noted with an asterisk (*), 

in the 

CCOE Large Conference Room 
345 5th Street 

Colusa, CA  95932 

Please call to verify time and location 

    Date   

January 13 – Regular Meeting 

February 10 – Regular Meeting 

March 10 – Regular Meeting, 2nd Interim Report 

April 14 – Regular Meeting 

May 12 – Regular Meeting 

June 8 – Public Hearing for LCAP & Budget 

June 9 – Regular Meeting, LCAP & Budget 

July 14 – Regular Meeting 

August 11 – Regular Meeting 

September 8 – Regular Meeting 

October 13 – Regular Meeting, Gann Limits & Unaudited Actuals 

November 10 – Regular Meeting 

*December 14 – Regular Meeting, Annual Organizational Meeting & 1st Interim Report 

* Contingency Meeting December 15 – Regular and Annual Organizational Meetings & 

1st Interim Report 

*AB 2449 shifted the prescribed window for holding the annual organizational meeting. The 15‐day window for 2021 is Friday, December 

10 to Saturday, December 25, 2021. Additionally the First Interim Report must be reviewed and approved by December 15. The December 
15 meeting is contingent upon the December 14 meeting consisting of a quorum, and Board business being successfully conducted, and if 
so the December 15 meeting may be cancelled. 



Board Approved:  December __, 2020 COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board President Rotation
11.2.2

YEAR LOCATION AREA PRESIDENT YEAR LOCATION AREA PRESIDENT

2025 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1998 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2024 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1997 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2023 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1996 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2022 Williams 3 Jason McMullan 1995 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

2021 Maxwell 4 Lynn Bowen Burnham 1994 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

2020 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1993 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2019 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1992 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2018 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1991 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2017 Williams 3 Nancy G. Marshall 1990 Colusa 5 Mary Winters

2016 Maxwell 4 Virginia Frias 1989 Colusa/Grimes 2 Jim Davison

2015 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1988 Arbuckle 1 Patti Scofield

2014 Colusa 2 Gary Teragawa 1987 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2013 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1986 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2012 Maxwell 4 Randall Roberts 1985 Colusa 5 Trish Knoll

2011 Williams 3 Tim Wright 1984 Colusa/Grimes 2 Ellen Armstrong

2010 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1983 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2009 Colusa 2 Julissa Silva‐Garcia 1982 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2008 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1981 Maxwell 4 Sam Etchepare

2007 Maxwell 4 Olga Cain 1980 Colusa 5 Bernice Dommer

2006 Williams 3 Addie Maupin 1979 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2005 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1978 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2004 Colusa 2 Mike Cunningham

2003 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller

2002 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2001 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2000 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

1999 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

TRUSTEE TRUSTEE

https://ccoe‐my.sharepoint.com/personal/tmaxwell_ccoe_net/Documents/Administrative/Board CCOE/Board Terms/Rotation/Rotation Draft



https://ccoe‐my.sharepoint.com/personal/tmaxwell_ccoe_net/Documents/Administrative/Board CCOE/Liaison Assignments/2021 Liaison Assignments.docx 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 2021 
Accepted December __, 2020 

 
 

ASSIGNMENT  LIAISON  ALTERNATE 

Access to Community College Services 
2020  Brenda Miller
2021 

2020  Barry Morrell
2021 

Administrative Services 
2020  Ed Conrado
2021 

2020  Barry Morrell
2021 

Business Services 
  Budget Subcommittee 

2020  Jason McMullan 

2021 
2020  Jason McMullan & Ed Conrado 
2021 

2020  Brenda Miller
2021 

Children’s Services & Head Start Policy Council 
2020  Jason McMullan
2021 

2020  Brenda Miller
2021 

Colusa County Agriculture Foundation Board 
2020  Brenda Miller & Barry Morrell
2021 

2020  Lynn Bowen Burnham
2021 

Special Education & SELPA Council 
2020  Ed Conrado
2021 

2020  Jason McMullan
2021 

Educational Services 
2020  Lynn Bowen Burnham
2021 

2020  Jason McMullan
2021 

Superintendent’s Salary 
2020  Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell
2021 

2020  No Alternate
2021 

 
 

BOARD  REPRESENTATIVE(S) 

Colusa Unified School District  Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell 

Maxwell Unified School District  Lynn Bowen Burnham 

Pierce Joint Unified School District  Brenda Miller 

Williams Unified School District  Jason McMullan 

 

11.2.3 



 

 

REPORT TO THE 
Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees 

November 10, 2020 
Williams Settlement Agreement Compliance  

And 
State of Education and CCOE’s Current Role in Colusa County 

 
 
Lawsuit Background 
 
The Williams vs. State of California lawsuit, settled in 2004 by special agreement, 
as well as the California Education Code Section 1240 and Assembly Bill 1761, 
requires that all public school students are provided equally with appropriate 
instructional materials, safe and adequate school facilities, and qualified teachers.  
The settlement also requires that parents be notified of the Uniform Complaint 
Procedure (UCP) process for reporting deficiencies, and it requires districts to 
complete annual physical inspections of each school site to report the conditions of 
the schools using a Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT). 
 
County Superintendent Oversight and Compliance Responsibilities 
 
The County Superintendent in each county is responsible for visiting district sites 
whose pupils scored in the lowest three deciles on the Academic Performance Index 
(API) to verify that provision of textbooks, materials, and teachers meets the 
requirements established in the Williams Settlement Agreement; to observe that 
the UCP is posted; and to complete a non-partisan FIT.  These features must also 
be compared to the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) to confirm that 
parents and community members are receiving accurate information when they 
access the SARC on the district website. 
 
Results of Williams Settlement Agreement Site Reviews  
 
During these unprecedented times of the Corona Virus, it has not been business as 
usual.  By this time, as Colusa County Superintendent of Schools, I would have 
visited all school sites, regardless of whether they were designated by the State for 
review under the Williams Settlement Agreement or not. However, this process has 
been segmented and revised and will take place over several months and 
eventually into the New Year as conditions of the virus subside.  My review of all 
schools of Colusa County has been coordinated with all local Superintendents.  This 
inspection will be performed for school sites that are under the direct supervision of 
the Colusa County Office of Education.  The CCOE visits will include the S. William 
Abel Academy, Coastal Buttes Academy, and all Head Start and State Pre-school 
operations through the County. 
 
CCOE will continue to monitor all the required areas of:   
 Teacher quality,  
 Sufficient instructional materials, and  



Report to the Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees Page 2 
 

 

 Safe facilities.   
 
In all areas, CCOE continues to verify that each school meet the requirements of 
the law: 
 
 Teachers met all the requirements of the California Commission on Teacher 

Credentialing (CTC). 
 All students have adequate books or digital curriculum and instructional 

materials for use in school and at home, and the adopted texts meet State 
standards. 

 Facilities are well maintained and present no emergency or urgent threat to 
the safety of students and staff. 

 
Visitations of School Sites will continue throughout the school year as prescribed by 
this variation of the law permits. 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure (UCP) 
 
The State of California requirement that each Local Education Agency (LEA) 
establish a Uniform Complaint Procedure was expanded as part of the Williams 
Settlement Agreement.  The new UCP must be, and is posted in every classroom 
and provide specific information on teacher quality, instructional materials, and safe 
facilities issues that were addressed by the Williams settlement. Districts are 
required to complete summaries of the complaints received quarterly, and to submit 
those reports to the County Superintendent. 
 
For the 2019/2020 school year, no complaints were filed in any of the four districts 
or for the Colusa County Office of Education.  
 
Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT) 
  
The Facilities Inspection Tool is used by the County Superintendent to assess the 
safety and health status of school sites.  The tool includes verification in each of 15 
areas; such as, gas leaks, hazardous materials, fire safety, drinking fountains, and 
restrooms.  All items are evaluated during the site visit to confirm the condition of 
the school. 
 
Districts are required to complete the FIT and to report the conditions in the SARC.  
The County Superintendent is mandated to compare the district’s site inspection 
results with the report posted in the district’s SARC. 
 
For the 2020 inspections, facilities were reported by the districts with results 
displayed on their SARCs and will be compared for consistency with the findings of 
the County Superintendent. 
 



Report to the Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees Page 3 
 

 

These comparisons by my office will be an ongoing effort throughout the school 
year and will be effected by the overall impact of the China Virus.  Visitations to 
each of the school district sites will be made sporadically through the beginning of 
2021 and will be completed by the end of the 2020-2021 school year. 
 
General Information 
 
In the 2019/20 school year, districts were given direction to develop a Learning 
Continuity and Attendance Plan (LCP) along with the LCAP Federal Addendum plan, 
the Consolidated Application or Con App, all designed to follow the guidelines set 
out within the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), which all serves to meet the 
Federal requirement of the Every Student Succeeds Act.   
 
The LCFF requires a review component of the LCAP via a template and rubric to 
utilize as a measure of conforming to each District’s plan, which is the responsibility 
of each County Superintendent of Schools.  This process has been amended for one 
year only due to the effects of the pandemic.   
 
The school districts will resume their LCAP activities for the 2021-2022 school year 
this spring.  All requirements of the LCAP within the framework of the Local Control 
Funding Formula, will be reviewed and approved in June 2021.  These revisions and 
reviews are essential for using this document as a dynamic planning tool for 
districts; an assessment tool for schools and staff; and a working document that 
allows ample opportunities for input by any and all stakeholders. 
 
The LCAP process requires the district to hold public stakeholder meetings for the 
community to provide input regarding plan priorities; and to address the sub-
groups of students in the district, including low socio-economic groups, English 
Language Learners, students with specific needs and Homeless & Foster Youth.  The 
established priorities must be included in an implementation plan, with 
corresponding funding included in the district budget.  The final plan must be 
presented at a public hearing, and the district board must approve the plan and the 
budget, including the LCAP priority budget.  
 
Since the passage of AB 1200 on October 14, 1991, the County Superintendent was 
given the responsibility of reviewing district budgets to ensure fiscal solvency for 
the current budget year and for two subsequent years.  This requirement was 
passed into law after the State took over the operation of a few school districts that 
were bankrupt. 
 
As was previously stated, the Colusa County Office of Education is mandated to 
assist all Districts’, LCAP, as well as our own.  Our job is to provide guidance and to 
review the material that is entered into the template.  More specifically, to 
determine how the rubric is used to evaluate the LCAP as well as its effectiveness to 
fulfill requirements of the State Department of Education.  The Superintendent of 



Report to the Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees Page 4 
 

 

Schools has the fiduciary responsibility to monitor and approve all LCAP and budget 
submissions to ensure District solvency for each three-year period of review. 
 
California School Dashboard, Dashboard Alternative School Status & 
Statewide System of Support  
 
The dashboard will be an ineffective tool for all of us to utilize during the pandemic.  
The data collected will be incomplete and therefore provide an inaccurate picture of 
how a district is performing.  This dashboard process will be resurrected beginning 
the 2021-2022 school year. 

 
Assembly Bill 1840 – Education Finance 
 
Additional Oversight Issues have been placed into a Bill that will greatly enhance 
the fiscal oversight and maintenance of districts that fall into fiscal distress and may 
be in danger of failing financially.  This duty of the County Superintendent of 
Schools will be a very important area of focus during this pandemic as the 
gubernatorial threat of deferrals will definitely impact the cash flow of all districts 
and the County Office of Education.  The State legislature has plans to create a 
statewide fund for districts to draw down money until the deferrals are paid into the 
New Year.  As a review of the assigned duties of the Superintendent of the Colusa 
County Office of Education, please consider the following: 
 
 Through existing law of AB 1200, the COE superintendent is required by law 

to take certain actions if, at any time during the fiscal year, he or she 
determines that a school district may be unable to meet its financial 
obligations for the current or two subsequent fiscal years.  

• Existing law requires the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SSPI) to 
monitor the efforts of a COE in exercising its authority under these 
provisions. 

 AB 1840 would require the county superintendent of schools to additionally 
notify, and report to, the president of the State Board of Education or the 
president’s designee concerning matters noticed and reported to the 
Superintendent pursuant to these provisions.  

• The bill, if the county superintendent of schools is relieved of certain 
powers assumed by the Superintendent pursuant to those provisions, 
would require the county superintendent to provide support and 
assistance to the Superintendent in the exercise of those powers.  

• The bill would require the Superintendent to also request that the 
County Office Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team identify 
the circumstances that led to the ineffectiveness of the county 
superintendent of schools in resolving the financial problems of the 
school district, and to require the county office of education to 
demonstrate, in a manner determined by the Superintendent, 
remediation of those deficiencies. 



Report to the Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees Page 5 
 

 

 
In essence, this bill takes the oversight of failed school districts out of the hands of the State 
Superintendent of Public Instruction and places that authority onto the County Office of 
Education. 
 
Current School District Opening Re-Plans due to COVID Restrictions 
 
Currently, all school districts are in the process of reopening schools.  Some 
districts are already open with forms of face-to-face learning, while others are 
staggering their approach to the process. 
 
All school districts are following the guidance set up by your Colusa County 
Department of Health as well as Federal CDC and California Department of Public 
Health along with all protocols of a safe and secure campus for all students, and 
staff.   
 
These are current plans and dates for school re-openings with attendance 
breakdowns of in person vs. distance learning and corresponding percentages.  All 
schools are participating in forms of blended/face to face learning as well as 
incorporating synchronous and asynchronous delivery of instruction. 
 
 Maxwell Unified School District October 27 

o Open for face to face instruction  
 Maxwell Elementary School  –  138/152  = 91% 
 Maxwell Middle School  - 89/93  = 96% 
 Maxwell High School  - 80/90  = 89% 

 Princeton Joint Unified School District November 2 
o Open for face to face instruction 

 Princeton Elementary School - 46/60  = 77% 
 Princeton High School  - 54/79  = 68%  

 Pierce Joint Unified School District 
o Open for face to face instruction November 2 

 Arbuckle Elementary School - 416/567 = 73.7% 
 Grand Island Elementary  - 25/52  = 48.0% 
 Johnson Junior High School - 243/343 = 70.8% 
 Pierce High School  - 317/473 = 42.8% 
 Arbuckle Alternative High - 3/7  = 42.8% 

 Colusa Unified School District 
o Open November 5 – TK – 8th Grade 
o Open November 19 – 9-12 
o Hybrid Blended Burchfield  - 316/102 = 75.6% 
o Egling Middle School   - 457/105 = 81.3% 
o Colusa High School   - 269/130 = 67.4% 
o Colusa Home School   - 33 

 
 



Report to the Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees Page 6 
 

 

 Williams Unified School District 
o Williams Elementary School will open for face to face/hybrid instruction 

on November 16, 2020 
o Williams Jr./Sr. High School will open for face to face/hybrid instruction 

on January 12, 2021 
 
Colusa County Office of Education  
 
The focus of the Colusa County Office of Education, continues to grow and develop.  
Monitoring of existing programs and visions of new programs include: 

 Adult Transition Students, ages 18 to 23, at the Education Village to prepare 
them for independent living 

 To keep open communication and collaboration with all the districts of Colusa 
County to continue to build trust and confidence  

 At the S. William Abel Community School, with accreditation from the 
Western Association of Schools and Colleges, was renamed to the S. William 
Abel Academy as of July 1, 2019.  We continue to serve students from the 
districts and the county in a variety of areas, including 

o Independent Study 
o Blended Learning programs and online support programs 
o Resulting in four high school graduates from our program last year 

 The Adult Education Program at the Education Village through  
o ESL & Citizenship classes for adults  
o Microsoft Office Suite and Office Clerical Skills training  
o Medical Assistant Training  
o Medical Records Training   
o Beginning Court Reporter Training 
o Continuity to promote and provide Professional Development 

collaborating with all districts on a regular basis 
o We will achieve WASC accreditation for the Adult program in the 

Summer of 2021 
o At the end of the 2019-2020 school year, CCOE graduated 15 adults 

who were unable to achieve their high school diploma 
o EMT course on slate for January 2021 
o CNA Colusa Medical Center – awaiting approval from CDPH  
o Culinary Program at WUSD via K-12 Strong work force partnering with 

Sutter COE 
o WCC  
o Precision Agricultural Management with SCOE beginning 2021 

 Continued Pursuit of the Colusa County Ed-u-Net  
o Visualizing ISP Education Services for Rural Families 
o Students of Colusa County are continually challenged by their lack of 

internet access 
o National averages state that 50% of students do not have access to 

internet at home 



Report to the Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees Page 7 
 

 

o Our program will allow near free access to the Educational Broadband 
system  

o Sprint has changed their position and we have begun to actively 
partake in Wi-Fi access on the Educational Spectrum  

o CCOE is currently working in collaboration with the: 
 County of Colusa 
 Maxwell 
 City of Colusa 
 City of Williams 
 Arbuckle 

o We believe that this pursuit will lead us to point to point access and 
blossoming into full Wi-Fi access within 2 years 

 CCOE is continuing its relationship with Butte COE and the Migrant Education 
Program and its implementation 

 CCOE continues to enjoy support from all Colusa County Departments . . . all 
we need to do is to ask 

o CC Dept. of Health & Human Services 
o CAL Works 
o Behavioral Health  
o Colusa County Sheriff’s Office 
o Colusa County Probation  
o Judicial System of Colusa County 
o Colusa County Administrative Personnel 
o & of course all of the elected officials and their departments 

 Wildland Fire Academy 
o To begin again with our 6th Class in January 2021 
o Last year saw 20 students with two alternates 
o 19 graduated with many receiving assignments through Cal Fire 
o Cadet enrollment has been completed with 24 cadets signed up for the 

2021 class 
 Colusa One Stop is a continuing partner with their support of   

o Wildland Fire Academy tuition & Equipment 
o Adult Ed Clerical  

 Through our Educational Services Department, we continuing our grant aimed 
at stopping the sale and marketing of tobacco products to minors  

o $427,000 awarded to assist in this effort 
o Placed a County School Resource Officer officers at campuses 

throughout the County to assist current efforts to reduce access and 
use of tobacco to underage youth 

 “And Literacy For All,” CCOE Literacy Outreach through a Footsteps2Brilliance 
grant has qualified and transitioned to a perpetual lifelong license accessibility 
to the F2B and Clever Kids University programs 

o Bilingual reading platform utilizing electronic media  
o $600 K Grant 
o FREE for ALL Colusa County Residents ages 0 to 120  



Report to the Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees Page 8 
 

 

o CCOE has developed a literacy certification program to certify Licensed 
Child Care Providers   

o China Virus has crippled our Literacy outreach via internet as we 
continue to struggle to get our students back into the educational 
mode. 

o Clever Kids University in now available for free to all residents of Colusa 
County and gives parents an opportunity to read with their children 
utilizing a prepackaged program of only 15 minutes a day 

 Innovative Approaches to Literacy (IAL) Grant - $2.25 million 
o CCOE has just completed year one of a three year Federal Grant to 

improve the literacy outreach in Colusa County for all youth birth to 3rd 
grade 

o This grant has impacted all libraries in the county 
 All County of Colusa Libraries 
 All District Elementary Libraries 
 First Five  
 Colusa Indian Community through Hand in Hand 
 State Preschool  
 Early Head Start and Head Start  

 Will provide $500,000 toward the purchase of books in both 
English and Spanish 

 After School access to the AWE Early Literacy Stations for 
all sites 

o iPad access for all 3 year old within the CCOE reach 
 200 iPads purchased & delivered with an additional 500 scheduled 

to distribute for use 
o Books:  

 7,715 given away via outreach 
 32,225 purchased for the schools 
 396 donated to County Library for Raising A Reader book sharing 

program 
 $1,000 additional funds granted to County Library for purchase of 

manipulatives for children’s area 
o Other items:  

 66 out of 73 educators received 50+ hours of professional 
development from IAL team 

 Digital Literacy Specialist provided 28 hours of professional 
development for Literacy Liaison and 18.5 hours of professional 
development for Project Director 

 152 out of 159 preschool students doubled their time on 
Footsteps2Brilliance from beginning of school year to end of 
school year 

 Two 30-minute interactive virtual parent trainings conducted in 
May, and three 30-minute virtual parent trainings conducted in 
the September 

 Sixteen Cuddle Up Colusa Story Times via Facebook 



Report to the Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees Page 9 
 

 

 Twenty Reading With Pinky Story Times via Facebook 
o Consummated a perpetual license to allow access to 

 Footsteps2Brilliance 
 Clever Kids University pre-readers 
 Clever Kids University readers 

o All total $750,000 per year for three years     
 Farm to School Planning Grant & County wide Partnership 

CCOE was granted a planning grant for the USDA Farm to School Grant 
Program to start the Farm to School (F2S) Program and now is working 
with Sutter County Supt of Schools/Tri County ROP to fund further F2S 
efforts 

o CCOE is working with county businesses and experts to develop a plan 
for guidance to grow and harvest certain crops to be utilized by the 
students of Colusa County in the local school district’s lunch programs 

 Vegetables were harvested last year and used in student meals at 
the S. William Abel Academy and CBA.  

 Efforts were guided by partnerships established with the Colusa 
County Resource Conservation District.  

 Plans to increase supply to share with other school district’s lunch 
programs are being considered.   

 Fall vegetables have been planted just recently by SWAA 
students.   

 Plans for this harvest are to provide the school cafeteria and 
students with fresh, healthy vegetables.  

o Greenhouse use and development continues with plans to grow Plant 
starts in the greenhouse for Spring Plant sales in 2021 

o The 2021 (this coming year) plant sale will be changed to include 
customer’s request to have certain vegetables grown according to 
their order.  

o Plant Sale Order Requests will soon be made available and shared on 
our social media and website. 

o Woodland Community College allows use of land between the Education 
Village and the Colusa County Campus (WCC) 

 CCOE brought on board a project manager, Craig Richards, long 
time Colusa High School Biology teacher, and Laboratory 
Supervisor, Nancy Cutter, who are currently in the process of 
hiring a Student Helper to assist in planting and maintenance 
while earning money and gaining Plant Science experience.   

 Craig and Nancy work with the S. William Abel Academy students 
in all stages of planting, weeding, irrigation, etc. to maintain the 
F2S areas.   

 In addition, another round of gathering, germinating and planting 
acorns from Valley Oaks is scheduled for this fall.   

 These seedlings will be made available to the public like the 
previous starts and will also be planted in additional areas at the 
Education Village.  



Report to the Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees Page 10 
 

 

 This includes Phase 4 which will start this year with the planting of 
natives to establish the walking trail around the retention pond 
and area between the Ed. Village and CHP. Sitting benches will 
also be installed for those utilizing the walking path to have a 
place to rest. 

 While the Raised Bed plantings along with the necessary irrigation 
infrastructure is already in place and in use, changes to other 
phases have occurred since the last update.   

 The Native Plant area has been planted and a Monarch Butterfly 
way-station has been established in the area.  

 The Butterfly station was a recent Colusa HS Student Senior 
Project. Plans for the native garden this current year include 
establishing a more defined pathway, providing educational 
information and signage for native species and installing 
benches for visitors to enjoy the native area.    

 The area that originally was proposed to be the Mini Orchard was 
used this past year as a community garden area for families or 
organizations to apply to utilize the space.   

 One space has been dedicated to the Colusa County Master 
Gardeners for use as a demonstration area for their events. 
One area was used this past year by a local school to 
provide gardening opportunities and experiences for its 
students.   

o Applications for these areas will be made available 
again next year for others wishing to have a space for 
growing.  

o Irrigation access is provided for each of the growing 
areas. 

o The Colusa Environmental Academy recently assisted in the planting of 
native California grasses and shrubs in the area to the north of the MPR 
building and hopes that future collaborative efforts will resume.  This is 
all contingent upon the pandemic situation. 

o All irrigation plans and raised beds are in operation. 
o Plans to coordinate F2S growing efforts with the recently established 

Culinary Program at Williams Unified are in the making, more details to 
follow. 

o CCOE’s recent purchase of a Mahindra Tractor is making F2S efforts 
easier. The use of the tractor and its many implements will allow the 
F2S Program to make faster strides in implementing the next F2S 
Phases. 

 Expansion of Children’s Services Programs 
o 8 sites, 17 classrooms continuing to serve 300+ children with a waiting 

listing of over 150 
o Received funding for continued expansion of Head Start Programs 

 Continued expansion to full day Head Start  



Report to the Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees Page 11 
 

 

 Concern about limitation of income being so low which limits 
people who need the program but do not qualify 

 Continue to ask the Federal Head Start Department for a waiver 
for such a low ceiling of wages 

o State Preschool Program Expansion to Increase Access for children with 
Exceptional Needs Grant 

 Coastal Buttes Academy Addition 
o In operation since 2018 
o To Serve the needs of Emotionally Disturbed Students 
o Students were being shipped to Sacramento daily at a cost of over $50K 

per year 
o Now housed at the Village and attend class daily and have a greater 

focus on student achievement 
o 6 total students at CBA  

 
My continued vision for Colusa County Office of Education is echoed within the 
Mission Statement of the CCOE to Communicate, Collaborate, Operate and Educate 
all who would seek a path to better themselves through the education process. 
 
Thank you for allowing me the time to address and apprise you of the current 
activities and roles of the Colusa County Office of Education.  I encourage you to 
call, email, or stop by if you have any questions of concerns about the CCOE. 
 
 
Regards,  
 
 
Michael P. West 
Superintendent of Schools 
Colusa County Office of Education 
345 5th Street 
Colusa, CA  95932 
(530) 458-0350 - Ext. 10365 
(530) 682-3310 Cell 
mwest@ccoe.net  
www.ccoe.net  
 
Colusa County Education Village 
499 Marguerite Street – Suite B 
Williams, CA  95987 
(530) 473-1350  

 

 

 



Report to the Colusa County Office of Education Board of Trustees Page 12 
 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 
As an advocate for educated, socially responsible citizens,  

Colusa County Office of Education will   
Communicate Effectively 
Collaborate Cooperatively 

Operate Efficiently  
And  

Educate Totally 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Friday, December 11, 2020 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID: 956 848 001 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/956848001  Meeting ID:  956 848 001 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 11, 2020, Agenda 
Page 2 

 
2.0 ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD 

2.1 Certificates of Election and Appointment and Oath of Office  action 
2.1.1 Trustee Area 1, In Lieu of Election – Brenda Miller 
2.1.2 Trustee Area 2, In Lieu of Election – Richard Morrell 
2.1.3 Trustee Area 4, Election – Cristy Edwards 

2.2 Oath of Office Trustee Areas 1, 2, & 4  action 

2.3 Accept President Rotation Schedule  action 

2.4 Accept the 2021 Schedule of Meetings  action 

2.5 Set 2021 Liaison Assignments  action 

3.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

4.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

5.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

6.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

7.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

7.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
7.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
7.1.2 Superintendents Council – No November Meeting 

8.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
8.1 Board President’s Report  information 

9.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

9.1 Approve Minutes of the November 10, 2020, Regular Board Meeting  action 

10.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

11.0 OLD BUSINESS 
11.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

11.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

11.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

11.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 
   



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 11, 2020, Agenda 
Page 3 

13.0 NEW BUSINESS 
13.1 Approve First Interim Report  action 

13.2 Cancel December 15, 2020, Contingency Meeting  action 

14.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
14.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

14.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
  Pending 2021 Schedule of Meetings Approval – January 13, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room 

15.0 ADJOURNMENT 



CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT IN LIEU OF ELECTION 
OF GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER 

(Ed. Code 5326, 5328)(E.C. 10515) 

This Certifies that the undersigned, being the remaining members of the governing board 
of the COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

of Colusa County, California, have appointed 

BRENDA C. MILLER 

to the office of MEMBER OF THE GOVERNING BOARD, TRUSTEE AREA 'I 
of the above named district to hold the office. 

Term: December 11, 2020 to December 13, 2024 

Dated: December 11, 2020 

OATH OF OFFICE 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Count-  of Colusa 

I, BRENDA C. MILLER, do so!E.,,]mily swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend 
the Constitution of the United Si:ates and the Constitution of the State of California 
against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that 1 will bear true faith and allegiance to 
the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that 
I take this obligation freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and 
that I will well and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter, 

GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER 
COL USA CC)UNI-Y BOARD OF E! 
TRIPS-FE AREA 1 

U/A HL  

 

  

(SIGNATURE) 

376 Johns School Rd., Arbuckle, CA  95912 
(ADDRESS) 

Subscribed and sworn to Or a firined) before me, this 11th day of December 2020 

Colusa County Clerk-Recorder Registrar 
(SIGNATURE AND TITLE OF PERSON ADMINISTERING OATH) 

Before taking office, each member must take and subscribe this Oath of Office before a governing board member, other school officer, state or 
county officer, judicial officer or notary public. 

Original to be filed with the County Clerk.. 

2.1.1 



CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT IN LIEU OF ELECTION 
OF GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER 

(Ed. Code 5326, 5328)(E.C. 10515) 

This Certifies that the undersigned, being the remaining members of the governing board 
of the COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

of Colusa County, California, have appointed 

RICHARD B. MORRELL 

to the office of MEMBER OF THE GOVERNING BOARD, TRUSTEE AREA 2 
of the above named district to hold the office. 

Term: December 11, 2020 to December 13, 2024 

Dated: December 11, 2020 

2.1.2 

OATH OF OFFICE 
ATP OF CALIFORNIA 

ss. 
County of Colusa 

I, RICHARD B. MORRELL, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend 
the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California 
against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to 
the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that 
I take this obligation freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and 
that I will well and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter. 

GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER 
COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
TRUSTEE AREA 2 

SIGNATURE) 

23 Walnut  Tree Drive, Colusa CA 95932 
(ADDRESS) 

Subsci-ibed and sworn to (or affiTmed) before me, this 11th day of December 2020 

Colusa County Clerk-Recorder Registrar 
(SIGNATURE  AND TITLE OF PERSON A MINISTERING OATH) 

Before taking office, each member must take and subscribe this Oath of Office before a governing board member, other school officer, state or 
county officer, judicial officer or notary public. 

Original to be filed with the County Clerk.. 



Rose Gallo-Vasquez 
Colusa County Clerk-Recorder Registrar cif-Vdters 

2.1.3 

Certificate of Election and Oath of Office 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
County of Colusa SS. 

I, Rose Gallo-Vasquez, County Clerk-Recorder and Registrar of Voters in and for 
the County of Colusa, State of California, do hereby certify, that at a General Election 
held in and for said County on the 3rd day of November, 2020 

Cristy Jayne Edwards was elected to the office of 
Governing Board Member of the County Board of Education 
Trustee Area 4. TERM: 12111/2020 to 12/012022 

as appears by the official returns of said election now on file in my office. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my hand 
and seal this 1st day of December 2020 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
County of Colusa SS. 

I, Cristy Jayne Edwards, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and 
defend the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California 
against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the 
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take 
this obligation freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will 
well and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter. 

Cristy Jayne Edwards 

Subscribed and sworn to before me, this  day of  

Signature and title of person administering the oath 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board President Rotation
 2.3

YEAR LOCATION AREA PRESIDENT YEAR LOCATION AREA PRESIDENT

2025 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1998 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2024 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1997 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2023 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1996 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2022 Williams 3 Jason McMullan 1995 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

2021 Maxwell 4 Cristy Edwards 1994 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

2020 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1993 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2019 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1992 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2018 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1991 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2017 Williams 3 Nancy G. Marshall 1990 Colusa 5 Mary Winters

2016 Maxwell 4 Virginia Frias 1989 Colusa/Grimes 2 Jim Davison

2015 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1988 Arbuckle 1 Patti Scofield

2014 Colusa 2 Gary Teragawa 1987 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2013 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1986 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2012 Maxwell 4 Randall Roberts 1985 Colusa 5 Trish Knoll

2011 Williams 3 Tim Wright 1984 Colusa/Grimes 2 Ellen Armstrong

2010 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1983 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2009 Colusa 2 Julissa Silva‐Garcia 1982 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2008 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1981 Maxwell 4 Sam Etchepare

2007 Maxwell 4 Olga Cain 1980 Colusa 5 Bernice Dommer

2006 Williams 3 Addie Maupin 1979 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2005 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1978 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2004 Colusa 2 Mike Cunningham

2003 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller

2002 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2001 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2000 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

1999 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

TRUSTEE TRUSTEE

C:\Users\tmaxwell\OD\Administrative\Board CCOE\Board Terms\Rotation\Rotation



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

Board Approved:  December __, 2020 

2.4 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
2021 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 

Meetings are usually held the 2nd Wednesday of the month 
beginning at 4:00 p.m., unless otherwise noted with an asterisk (*), 

in the 

CCOE Large Conference Room 
345 5th Street 

Colusa, CA  95932 

Please call to verify time and location 

    Date   

January 13 – Regular Meeting 

February 10 – Regular Meeting 

March 10 – Regular Meeting, 2nd Interim Report 

April 14 – Regular Meeting 

May 12 – Regular Meeting 

June 8 – Public Hearing for LCAP & Budget 

June 9 – Regular Meeting, LCAP & Budget 

July 14 – Regular Meeting 

August 11 – Regular Meeting 

September 8 – Regular Meeting 

October 13 – Regular Meeting, Gann Limits & Unaudited Actuals 

November 10 – Regular Meeting 

*December 14 – Regular Meeting, Annual Organizational Meeting & 1st Interim Report 

*Contingency Meeting December 15 – Regular and Annual Organizational Meetings & 

1st Interim Report 

*AB 2449 shifted the prescribed window for holding the annual organizational meeting. The 15‐day window for 2021 is Friday, December 

10 to Saturday, December 25, 2021. Additionally the First Interim Report must be reviewed and approved by December 15. The December 
15 meeting is contingent upon the December 14 meeting consisting of a quorum, and Board business being successfully conducted, and if 
so the December 15 meeting may be cancelled. 



https://ccoe‐my.sharepoint.com/personal/tmaxwell_ccoe_net/Documents/Administrative/Board CCOE/Liaison Assignments/2021 Liaison Assignments.docx 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 2021 
Accepted December __, 2020 

 
 

ASSIGNMENT  LIAISON  ALTERNATE 

Access to Community College Services 
2020  Brenda Miller
2021 

2020  Barry Morrell
2021 

Administrative Services 
2020  Ed Conrado
2021 

2020  Barry Morrell
2021 

Business Services 
  Budget Subcommittee 

2020  Jason McMullan 

2021 
2020  Jason McMullan & Ed Conrado 
2021 

2020  Brenda Miller
2021 

Children’s Services & Head Start Policy Council 
2020  Jason McMullan
2021 

2020  Brenda Miller
2021 

Colusa County Agriculture Foundation Board 
2020  Brenda Miller & Barry Morrell
2021 

2020  Lynn Bowen Burnham
2021 

Special Education & SELPA Council 
2020  Ed Conrado
2021 

2020  Jason McMullan
2021 

Educational Services 
2020  Lynn Bowen Burnham
2021 

2020  Jason McMullan
2021 

Superintendent’s Salary 
2020  Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell
2021 

2020  No Alternate
2021 

 
 

BOARD  REPRESENTATIVE(S) 

Colusa Unified School District  Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell 

Maxwell Unified School District  Lynn Bowen Burnham 

Pierce Joint Unified School District  Brenda Miller 

Williams Unified School District  Jason McMullan 

 

2.5 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting November 10, 2020 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Cristy Edwards, Alex Evans, Aaron Heinz, 

Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, 
Chuck Wayman, Michael West, and Karisa Williams 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Ed Conrado called the meeting to order at 4:07 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, 
Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and 
made the following announcements. 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
Move 11.1, Accept 2019‐20 Financial Audit Report to follow 3.0, Staff Questions and 
Comments. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

Agenda item 11.1 was heard immediately following agenda item 3.0. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Assembly Members' Letter to CHHS Secretary Ghaly Re: Reopening Schools 
4.2 Superintendents of the Sacramento, Santa Ana, Long Beach, Los Angeles, 

Oakland, San Diego and Fresno School Districts to Governor Newsom Re:  
Common Standards 
Michael West reported on advocacy letters regarding standards for safe school 
re‐openings.  He also spoke about CSR3’s advocacy for a different set of metrics 
that are specific to that region’s communities. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Reports 

   

9.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West reported on continuing issues regarding school health and 
safety, preparation and planning, and testing concerns.  He also provided 
information on district school re‐openings, including the following: 

District  School Re‐opening 
MUSD  Opened for face‐to‐face instruction with 94% in person 

attendance on 10/27/2020. 

Princeton  Opened for face‐to‐face instruction with 75% in person 
attendance on 11/02/2020. 

PJUSD  Opened for face‐to‐face instruction with a distance 
learning option and with 65–70% in person attendance 
on 11/5/2020. 

CUSD  TK‐8th opened for face‐to‐face instruction with 78% in 
person attendance on 11/5/2020, and 9th‐12th will re‐
open on 11/19/2020. 

WUSD 

 

Plans are to open for face‐to‐face/hybrid Instruction in 
TK‐1st on 11/16/2020, 1st‐3rd on 11/30/2020, 4th‐6th on 
12/7/2020, and 7th‐12th on 01/12/2021. 

Michael said that so far no issues were reported regarding re‐openings, and that 

schools were doing their best to follow the State’s July and August 2020 

guidelines (e.g., social distancing, masking, and keeping cohorts in order). 

 

Michael spoke about CCOE’s distribution of State OES provided PPEs to 
meet the needs of the districts and the County Office.  He also reported 
that Colusa County transitioned to the less restrictive orange tier of the 
CDPH Blueprint; however based upon rising local numbers, Michael said 
he anticipates that the county will transition back to the more restrictive 
red tier next week.  Michael also said that he expects to see distance 
learning, blended learning, and face‐to‐face instruction offered at 
differing levels throughout the County and the State, and he believes 
those learning types will continue to be a part of education post COVID 
19.  Michael reported that he has been working closely with CDPH and he 
presented the annual Williams Settlement Act Report to the Board of 
Supervisors today.  He explained that safety protocols are continuing to 
be implemented at the Village, administrative offices, and preschool 
sites.  Michael reported on his participation in several IAL book giveaways 
and meetings to discuss CDE’s focus of embedding VAPA into all curricula 
moving forward.  He said that CCOE’s Bob Kirkman will take the lead for 
implementing art into Special Education, CBA, Adult Transition, and 
SWAA curricula.  Michael said that he met with Jerry Brown, Executive 
Director of the Sites Joint Powers Authority, regarding project plans, 
outreach, and their plans to see the project completed within ten years. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – October Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the district Superintendents in 
October and discussed safety protocols, the EduNet’s progress, and the 
probable move to the more restrictive tier, which will not affect schools 
that have already reopened.  Discussion was held on Dr. Lampkin’s 
reopening plan for WUSD. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz spoke to his November/December 2020 Administrative Services 
report to the Board saying that the department is continuing to do the work 
behind the scenes to see that everyone gets paid, facilities are clean, and all 
students are fed. He also reported on Human Resource Specialist II Rachel 
Webb’s recent baby shower. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss distributed her November/December 2020 Children’s Services 
written report to the Board.  Vicki added that she is excited about WUSD schools 
re‐opening because of Children’s Services sites on those campuses. 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Maria Arvizu‐
Espinoza’s November/December 2020 Educational Services written report.  
Maria said that students are back on sites, parents’ are excited, staff and 
students are following safety protocols, students are being transported to and 
from school, staff are cleaning classrooms and vehicles, and all are monitored by 
the recently installed thermoscan system.  Maria added that to mitigate the 
learning loss caused by time away from school, staff are using project based 
learning to get more value from the learning experience.   

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman spoke to his November/December 2020 Special Education and 
SELPA report to the Board saying that CBA re‐opened and is operating five days a 
week with no blended learning. 

6.5.1 SELPA ‐ October Meeting 
Chuck Wayman reported that during the October 27, SELPA meeting, the 
group passed the budget revision. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Alex Evans presented his November/December 2020 Technology Services 
written report to the Board that focused on EduNet; including equipment that 
will be used to broadcast signal, current deployment status, CCOE’s access to the 
spectrum, sites for deployment, project delays and limitations, and next phases.  
Michael West reminded the Board that the EduNet is an education based system 
and it is run through CCOE’s filter, so it is not a replacement for entertainment 
based internet usage.   



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Barry Morrell/Moved, Jason McMullan/Seconded, and the motion 
carried four ayes (Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), one 
absent (Lynn Bowen Burnham) to approve the following Consent Agenda item: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the October 14, 2020, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that he met with Woodland Community College 
President Dr. Artemio Pimentel, both via Zoom and in‐person, to discuss 
programs and projects of interest to both WCC and CCOE; including the EMT 
class, the Farm 2 School Program, and both agencies utilizing classrooms at the 
Village and at WCC’s Colusa County Campus. 

10.1.1 Woodland Community College – President’s College Report 
Brenda Miller thanked Michael West for including the WCC President’s Report in 
the packet, and Michael said that he will include that report in future Board 
packets as well. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported that projects are continuing with Jared Robinett and the 
maintenance team working very diligently to complete those prior to inclement 
weather. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that the LCAP is still on hold, and she does not 
have an update.  Maria added that she will probably have a template in January. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Project Director Karisa Williams reported on 
end‐of‐year one data, including 7,715 books given directly to children, 32,000 
books purchased by schools, 396 books donated to the Raising a Reader 
program, and 200 iPads provided through the iPad Lending Program.  For year 
two, Karisa said that the group is getting ready for AWE Stations, which are plug 
and play bilingual devices for children two to eight years‐old that will be installed 
at three county libraries and three school sites; Jennifer Jelavich will continue 



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

the Reading with Pinky story times; and IAL will continue to collaborate with First 
5 Colusa on upcoming events.  Karisa reported that F2B data indicated 1,200 
hours of literacy.  Discussion was held on participation in upcoming holiday 
events. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 

Agenda item 11.1 was heard immediately following agenda item 3.0. 

11.1 Accept 2019‐20 Financial Audit Report, Presented by James Marta & Co. – 
Mario da Costa 
Aaron Heinz spoke about CCOE’s relationship with auditors, and he introduced 
Mario da Costa, an independent CPA with James Marta & Co.  Mario presented 
the Independent Auditor’s Report for the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2020.  
He said that the auditors’ opinion is, as stated in their report to the Board, 
unmodified in that the financial statements are presented fairly as of 2020, 
adding that it is a “clean” audit.  Mario outlined the Statement of Net Position 
that indicated a $1.6 million revenue increase, a $5.6 million increase in 
expenses, and a negative change in net position of $2.7 million as a result of the 
pension liability.  Mario reviewed the Financial Trends and Analysis that indicates 
available reserves (5%) and long‐term liabilities, which he said also increased 
because of the pension liability, and Government‐Wide Revenues and 
Expenditures.  Mario continued with his Comparative Analysis and Statement of 
Activities of Similar Counties, and the Economic Outlook that showed that CCOE 
compared favorably with surrounding counties.  Discussion was held on the 
percentage of salaries and benefits (83%).  Mario reported on economic outlook 
and budget highlights, information on the pension liability, financial trends and 
analysis, on compliance reports that indicated no matters were reported, on an 
unmodified opinion (zero deficiencies), and on internal controls and federal 
compliance with no findings in the previous year.  In conclusion, Mario stated 
that CCOE’s financial condition is improving and that CCOE has a great 
management team. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), one absent 
(Lynn Bowen Burnham) to accept the 2019‐20 Financial Audit Report, Presented 
by James Marta & Co. – Mario da Costa. 
 
Discussion was held on future budgets. 

11.2 Upcoming December Annual Organizational Meeting Considerations 
11.2.1 Draft Schedule of 2021 Regular Meetings 
11.2.2 Draft President Rotation Schedule 
11.2.3 Draft Liaison Assignments 

Tina Maxwell explained that the above three documents would be on the 
December 11, 2020, Board agenda for approval. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
November 10, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

11.3 Approve setting December 14, 2021, 4:00 pm, as the Date and Time for the 
Colusa County Board of Education Annual Organizational Meeting as Required 
by EC 35143 
Tina Maxwell explained that the Annual Organizational Meeting must be set 30 
days prior to the upcoming organizational meeting 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), one absent 
(Lynn Bowen Burnham) to approve setting December 14, 2021, 4:00 pm, as the 
Date and Time for the Colusa County Board of Education Annual Organizational 
Meeting as Required by EC 35143. 

11.4 Williams Settlement Act Report to the County Board of Education 
Michael West reported on his WSA Annual Report to the Board of Supervisors.  
He explained that he delivered his Annual Report to the districts in a written 
report because the State pushed out facilities inspections until the spring, after 
which time he will deliver an in‐person report to those Boards.  Because facilities 
inspections were not viable, Michael said he relied upon affidavits from 
administrators to determine whether schools met WSA requirements.  Michael 
reviewed his written report to the Board.  Brenda Miller thanked Michael for his 
passion for the students. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

Budget salaries and benefits percentage discussion in January or February. 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
Annual Organizational Meeting and First Interim Report 
Friday, December 11, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
(Note:  Not the second Wednesday due to the EC 35143 mandated 
window of dates and the First Interim Report submission deadline) 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
Michael introduced Cristy Edwards, Trustee Area 4 Representative Elect. 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:43 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Ed Conrado, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

AWE Station  Early Learning Station 

CBA  Coastal Buttes Academy 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CDE  California Department of Education 

CDPH  California Department of Public Health 

CHHS  California Health and Human Services 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

CPA  Certified Public Accountant 

CSR3  Capital Service Region 

CUSD  Colusa Unified School District 

EC  Education (or Ed) Code 

EMT  Emergency Medical Technician 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

IAL  Innovative Approach to Literacy 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

MUSD  Maxwell Unified School District 

OES  Office of Emergency Services 

PJUSD  Pierce Joint Unified School District 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

SWAA  S. William Abel Academy 

TK  Transitional Kindergarten 

VAPA  Visual And Performing Arts 

WCC  Woodland Community College 

WSA  Williams Settlement Agreement 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
FIRST INTERIM REPORT 
As of October 31, 2020 

 
Presented for Approval December 11, 2020 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 

General Fund Assumptions .................................................................................................... 1 

COE Certification (Form CI) ................................................................................................... 7 

Average Daily Attendance-Form A ................................................................................... 11 

General Fund 01 .................................................................................................................... 13 

Multi Year Projection Report ................................................................................................ 41 

Adult Education Fund11 ....................................................................................................... 48 

Child Development Fund-Form 12 ...................................................................................... 58 

Forest Reserve Fund-Form 16 ............................................................................................... 68 

Sp. Reserve Fund 17 .............................................................................................................. 74 

Foundation for Private Purpose Trust Fund-Form 73 ......................................................... 80 

Miscellaneous Forms ............................................................................................................. 88 

       Summary of Interfund Activities-Form SIAA ................................................................ 89 

       Form ESMOE .................................................................................................................... 91 

       Form CASH ...................................................................................................................... 94  

Criteria and Standards Report ............................................................................................ 96 

 

1 of 121



General Fund Financial Assumptions 
 

2020-21 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

The assumptions used and listed in this document are the most current and 

accurate information we have available at the time of the preparation of the First 

Interim Report for the year 2020-21. 

 

Throughout the fiscal year we continually strive to improve the budget 

information. Per Education Code 16222 no later than 45 days after the governor 

signs the annual budget we will make available for public review any revisions 

made to the budget to reflect funding made available by the budget act.  The 

monthly report brought to the board reflects the current budget projections.  We 

also report to the board at First Interim (December), and Second Interim (March) 

report periods. 

 

This Interim Report is presented by major object account classification, reflecting 

the original adopted budget in Column “A” of SACS Form.  Column “B” is the 

current Board approved 45-day adopted budget.  Column “C” represents the 

actual revenue and expenditures as of October 31, 2020.  Column “D” is the 

projected year totals (First Interim), and Column “E” is the difference between 

current adopted budget and the projected year totals.   After the interim report 

is approved by the board, the projected year totals become the adopted 

budget for the next reporting period. 

 
Multi-year projections assume a 0% cost of living increase based on the School 

Services’ Dartboard and flat attendance funding for the current and future two 

years.   

 

Currently, the U.S. is battling a global wide pandemic, COVID-19. The impact of 

this pandemic has led to a major recession and is currently the worst global 

economic crisis since the Great Depression. Unemployment rates are at an all-

1 of 120



time high and education funding has been reduced to deferrals. This pandemic 

has created both a worldwide health and economic crisis.    

 

During this pandemic, the County Office is seeing an increase in emergency 

related expenditures, while at the same time managing these costs with flat 

funding levels from the state.  With increasing program requirements, and 

requirements for the County Superintendent to oversee District LCAPs and offer 

Differentiated Assistance, salary increases for step and column are included in 

these projections. 

 

Looking ahead to 2020-21 and beyond, the County Office recognizes that 

increased employee costs, including step and column, and STRS and PERS 

employer rate increases outpace LCFF funding.  This will be an ongoing issue 

across the state as employer paid retirement rates are scheduled to reach record 

levels over the next few years. 

 

To that end, the County Office is making a concerted effort to reduce 

organizational costs to better prepare for the lean economic times, all revolving 

around the belief that the students we help educate today are our future 

tomorrow. 

 

General Fund Revenue 
 

 

Revenue is generated by various State, Federal, and Local sources as well as 

transfers 

from other 

funds within 

the County 

Office. 

 

Enrollment 

projections 

are based 

on historical 

trends 

adjusted for 

any known 

information 

LCFF
20%

Federal
13%

Other State
29%

Local
38%

2020-21 Revenues

LCFF Federal Other State Local

2 of 120



on current population.  Current projections are for flat enrollment for the current 

and future years.  

 

Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) is refined at each reporting period with the 

most current attendance data and the latest projections from CDE. 

 

The LCFF funds consist of Local Property Taxes, Education Protection Act (Prop 30) 

Funds, and State Aid.  LCFF funding equates to about 20% of the general fund 

revenue. Many programs previously funded through categorical dollars have 

been included with the funding formula to bring the LCFF revenue to fully funded 

status.  Additionally, the transportation dollars that are an add-on to the formula 

and are unrestricted, are being spent on transportation—the original intent of the 

dollars. 

 

Federal revenue comprises 13% of the general fund revenue.  Federal revenues 

are projected to increase $182,386 due to CARES ACT Funding and Education for 

Homeless grants compared to the 45-day adopted budget. 

 

State revenue is 29% of the general fund revenue.  State revenues are projected 

to increase by $77,485 over the 45-day adopted budget.  This increase is the result 

of an increase to the Special Education Mental Health Grants and the Tobacco 

Use Prevention Grants. 

 

Local revenue makes up 38% of the general fund revenue.  Local revenues are 

projected to increase compared to the 45-day adopted budget by $150,617. The 

majority of this increase results from Footsteps to Brilliance and carryover of local 

grants from 19-20. 

 

As we implement our Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), the County Office 

needs to provide even greater levels of service and support in many areas 

including fiscal oversight, accountability, information technology, staff 

development, curriculum & instruction, student programs and human resources. 

By managing the County Office resources, the agency has built reasonable 

reserves and a shared understanding of the challenges ahead.  Programs have 

been asked to be prudent and conservative with resources in order to manage 

reserves.   

 

 

3 of 120



General Fund Expenditures 
 
 

The 2020-21 expenditures in the general fund are projected to increase.  Much of 

the increase is attributed to Special Education and Administrative Services 

additional staff in response to COVID-19, grant funding expenditures and mental 

health carryover dollars budgeted to be fully spent. 

 
As we implement 

our Local Control 

Accountability Plan 

(under COVID, 

Learning Continuity 

& Attendance 

Plan), the County 

Office needs to 

provide even 

greater levels of 

service and support 

in many areas 

including fiscal 

oversight, 

accountability, 

information 

technology, staff 

development, curriculum & instruction, student programs and human resources. 

 

Salaries and Benefits 

 
Certificated salaries are 32% of all general fund expenditures.  This amount has 

increased by $96,408 from the 45-day adopted budget. T h e  b u d g e t  h a s  

i n c r e a s e d  d u e  t o  a d d i n g  additional staff to Special Education and 

the addition of the Federal Literacy Grant. 

 
Classified salaries make up 28% of all expenditures.  Classified salaries have 

increased by $222,142 since the 45-day adopted budget. The budget has 

increased due to adding additional staff to Administrative Services in response to 

COVID-19. 

 

Certificated 
Salaries

32%

Classified 
Salaries

28%

Employee 
Benefits

26%

Books & 
Supplies

5%

Other Services
11%

Equipment
1%

Indirect/Debt 
Payment

-3%

2020-21 Expenditures

Certificated Salaries Classified Salaries Employee Benefits

Books & Supplies Other Services Equipment

Indirect/Debt Payment

4 of 120



Employer paid benefit costs are 26% of all expenditures.  The benefit costs have 

increased $89,131 compared to the 45-day adopted budget as a result of the 

corresponding salary increases referenced above.  Continuing increases in STRS 

and PERS employer paid rates, and statutory benefit rate increases are additional 

drivers of these rising costs. 

 
Books and Supplies total 5% of all expenditures.  The overall increase in program 

budgets for supplies compared to the 45-day adopted budget is $178,131.  This 

increase is primarily the inclusion of special education and CARES funds carryover 

dollars into the current year budget as well as supplies for Edunet. 

 
Services and Other Operating Expenses are 11% of all expenditures.  Budgets for 

services and other operating expenditures are projected to increase by $389,596 

compared to the 45-day adopted budget. 

 
Equipment – Capital Outlay is 1% of all expenditures. The budget has increased 

$136,774 for technology and maintenance equipment compared to the 45-day 

adopted budget. 

 

Other Outgo Indirect Costs & Debt Payments reduced expenditures by 3%.  

Children services indirect increased due to additional grant funding.  

 

The Indirect Cost Rate  
 
ICR for the budget year is 10.10%. 

 
Programs will be charged the full state-approved rate unless program guidelines 

prohibit the full rate or special arrangements for a cap have been arranged with 

the Superintendent. The negotiated or capped ICR for 20-21 are as follows: 

  

 Special Education –  Not to exceed 7.00% 

 Children Services – Not to exceed 7.25% 

 First 5  – Not to exceed 7.00% 

 Food Services – Not to exceed 5.00% 

 IAL – Not to exceed 8.07% 
 

The amount of Indirect charged to programs/grants reduces overall expenditures.  

This amount has increased by $40,546 since the 45-day adopted budget. 

 

 

5 of 120



Fund Balance 

 

The Colusa County Office of Education is in sound financial standing as this interim 

budget update is presented, and the County Office will continue to work 

diligently to maintain this standing. 

 

The County Office is budgeting to spend $223,533 more than it will receive in 

revenue in the current fiscal year 2020-21.  This amount is referred to as deficit 

spending.  The most recent multi-year budget projection illustrates that there are 

trying times ahead over the next two years, and the projected decrease in fund 

balance continues but is manageable. 

 

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a massive shock to our economy. It created 

worldwide shut downs, all time high unemployment rates, and large deferrals to 

education funding. The impact to our economy has been seen both in supply 

and demand as well as financially.  

 

Probably the most significant fiscal concern the County Office has continues to 

be the cap on LCFF growth competing with fixed costs such as step and column, 

and PERS and STRS costs, which are growing at a minimum pace estimated at 3%-

5% per year.  This increase outpaces our office’s LCFF funding, which is projected 

to remain at 2019-20 levels for the foreseeable future.  Educational agencies 

across the state are struggling with managing this imbalance.   

The County Office will continue to provide the very best educational opportunities 

possible for the students of Colusa County.  As such, the Colusa County Office of 

Education is committed to finding ways to control costs without impairing services, 

and further enrich the lives of our students. 

 

6 of 120



 

 

 

COE Certification Form CI  
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2020-21
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 1 of 3 Printed:  12/7/2020   2:38 PM

NOTICE OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW. This interim report was based upon and reviewed using the
state-adopted Criteria and Standards pursuant to Education Code sections 33129 and 42130.

Signed: Date:
County Superintendent or Designee

NOTICE OF INTERIM REVIEW. All action shall be taken on this report during a regular or authorized special
meeting of the County Board of Education.

To the State Superintendent of Public Instruction:
This interim report and certification of financial condition are hereby filed by the County Board 
of Education pursuant to Education Code sections 1240 and 33127.

Meeting Date: 12.11.2020 Signed:
County Superintendent of Schools

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

X POSITIVE CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will 
meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office may
not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will
not meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the subsequent fiscal year.

Contact person for additional information on the interim report:

Name: Aaron Heinz Telephone: 530.458.0350

Title: Associate Superintendent of Admin Serv E-mail: aheinz@ccoe.net

Criteria and Standards Review Summary

The following summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards Review
form (Form 01CSI). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met," and supplemental information and additional fiscal
indicators that are "Yes," may indicate areas of potential concern, which could affect the interim report certification,
and should be carefully reviewed.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met
Not
Met

1 Average Daily Attendance Projected ADA for County Operations Grant or county operated
programs has not changed for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years by more than two percent since budget adoption.

X

8 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2020-21
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 2 of 3 Printed:  12/7/2020   2:38 PM

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS (continued) Met
Not
Met

2 Local Control Funding
Formula (LCFF) Revenue

Projected LCFF revenue for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years has not changed by more than two percent since budget
adoption.

X

3 Salaries and Benefits Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current or two
subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than five percent
since budget adoption.

X

4a Other Revenues Projected operating revenues (federal, other state, other local) for the
current and two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more
than five percent since budget adoption.

X

4b Other Expenditures Projected operating expenditures (books and supplies, services and
other expenditures) for the current and two subsequent fiscal years
have not changed by more than five percent since budget adoption. X

5 Ongoing and Major
Maintenance Account

If applicable, changes occurring since budget adoption meet the
required contribution to the ongoing and major maintenance account
(i.e., restricted maintenance account).

X

6 Deficit Spending Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard
in any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years. X

7a Fund Balance Projected county school service fund balance will be positive at the
end of the current and two subsequent fiscal years. X

7b Cash Balance Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at
the end of the current fiscal year. X

8 Reserves Available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic uncertainties,
unassigned/unappropriated amounts) meet minimum requirements
for the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

X

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION No Yes
S1 Contingent Liabilities Have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program

audits, litigation, state compliance reviews) occurred since budget
adoption that may impact the budget?

X

S2 Using One-time Revenues
to Fund Ongoing
Expenditures

Are there ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded
with one-time revenues that have changed since budget adoption by
more than five percent?

X

S3 Temporary Interfund
Borrowings

Are there projected temporary borrowings between funds?
X

S4 Contingent Revenues Are any projected revenues for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government,
special legislation, or other definitive act (e.g., parcel taxes, forest
reserves)?

X

S5 Contributions Have contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or
transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating
deficits, changed since budget adoption by more than $20,000 and
more than 5% for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years?

X

9 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2020-21
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 3 of 3 Printed:  12/7/2020   2:38 PM

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) No Yes
S6 Long-term Commitments Does the county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments or

debt agreements? X

• If yes, have annual payments for the current or two subsequent
fiscal years increased over prior year's (2019-20) annual
payment?

X

• If yes, will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments
decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or
are they one-time sources?

X

S7a Postemployment Benefits
Other than Pensions

Does the county office provide postemployment benefits other than
pensions (OPEB)? X

• If yes, have there been changes since budget adoption in OPEB
liabilities? X

S7b Other Self-insurance
Benefits

Does the county office operate any self-insurance programs (e.g.,
workers' compensation)? X

• If yes, have there been changes since budget adoption in self-
insurance liabilities? n/a

S8 Status of Labor Agreements As of first interim projections, are salary and benefit negotiations still
unsettled for:
• Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 1b) X
• Classified? (Section S8B, Line 1b) X
• Management/supervisor/confidential? (Section S8C, Line 1b) X

S9 Status of Other Funds Are any funds other than the county school service fund projected to
have a negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? X

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS No Yes
A1 Negative Cash Flow Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the

current fiscal year with a negative cash balance in the county school
service fund?

X

A2 Independent Position
Control

Is personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
X

A3 County Operations Grant
ADA

Is County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and
current fiscal year? X

A4 New Charter Schools
Impacting County Office
ADA

Are any new charter schools operating in county office boundaries
that are impacting the county office's ADA, either in the prior or
current fiscal years?

X

A5 Salary Increases Exceed
COLA

Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any
of the current or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would
result in salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected
state funded cost-of-living adjustment?

X

A6 Uncapped Health Benefits Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid)
health benefits for current or retired employees? X

A7 Fiscal Distress Reports Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress?
If yes, provide copies to the CDE. X

A8 Change of CBO or
Superintendent

Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief
business official (CBO) positions within the last 12 months? X

10 of 120



 

 

 

ANNUAL ATTENDANCE (ADA) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 06 10066 0000000

Form AI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: adai (Rev 02/03/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:10 PM

Description

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Original
Budget

(A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

ESTIMATED
P-2 REPORT

ADA
Projected Year

Totals
(C)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

DIFFERENCE
(Col. D - B)

(E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE

(Col. E / B)
(F)

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
 1.  County Program Alternative Education ADA 
      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
         Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 12.32 10.67 10.67 10.67 0.00 0%
      d. Total, County Program Alternative Education
          ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through B1c) 12.32 10.67 10.67 10.67 0.00 0%
 2.  District Funded County Program ADA
      a.  County Community Schools 0.14 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.00 0%
      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 14.55 14.55 14.55 14.55 0.00 0%
      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      d.  Special Education Extended Year 0.00 1.55 1.55 1.55 0.00 0%
      e.  Other County Operated Programs:
           Opportunity Schools and Full Day
           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
           Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      f.  County School Tuition Fund 
           (Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      g.  Total, District Funded County Program ADA
           (Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 14.69 16.23 16.23 16.23 0.00 0%
 3.  TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
      (Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 27.01 26.90 26.90 26.90 0.00 0%
 4.  Adults in Correctional Facilities 4.05 3.51 3.51 3.51 0.00 0%
 5.  County Operations Grant ADA 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.00 0%
 6.  Charter School ADA
      (Enter Charter School ADA using
      Tab C. Charter School ADA)

12 of 120



 

 

 

COUNTY SERVICE FUND - General Fund 01   
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13 of 120



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd   

Starting Balance

3,696,035 3,696,035 4,304,135 608,100.00 9700

Revenue

2,495,351 2,706,265 2,706,265 8000 LCFF/Property Taxes

1,070,029 1,070,029 1,070,029 8100 Federal Revenue (Summary)

544,378 544,378 726,764 182,386.00 8200 Federal Revenue (Summary)

2,453,403 2,453,403 2,453,403 8300 Other State Revenue (Summary)

1,513,680 1,513,680 1,591,165 77,485.00 8500 Other State Revenue (Summary)

664,247 964,247 1,114,864 150,617.00 8600 Other Local Revenue (Summary)

4,185,189 4,185,189 4,185,189 8700 Other Local Revenue (Summary)

6,000 6,000 6,000 8900 Other Sources (Summary)

410,488.00 13,853,679 13,443,191 12,932,277 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

2,373,875 2,373,875 2,450,205 76,330.00 1100 Teacher Salaries

1,233,058 1,233,058 1,233,058 1200 Certificated Pupil Support Sal

693,350 693,350 713,428 20,078.00 1300 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

108,705 108,705 108,705 1900 Other Certificated

Total for Object 1000 96,408.00 4,505,396 4,408,988 4,408,988 

1,325,957 1,325,957 1,424,310 98,353.00 2100 Para Educator Salaries

565,419 565,419 565,419 2200 Classified Support

685,597 685,597 715,825 30,228.00 2300 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

845,708 845,708 939,269 93,561.00 2400 Clerical And Office Salaries

249,842 249,842 249,842 2900 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 222,142.00 3,894,665 3,672,523 3,672,523 

1,189,837 1,189,837 1,203,765 13,928.00 3100 State Teachers Retirement Sys

853,911 853,911 870,522 16,611.00 3200 Public Employee Retirement Sys

348,292 348,292 359,251 10,959.00 3300 Social Security/Medicare

870,254 870,254 909,492 39,238.00 3400 Health & Welfare

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Nov 30 2020  1:02PM 

Page 1 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2020, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 14 of 120



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd    (continued)

Expense (continued)

8,792 8,792 8,831 39.00 3500 State Unemployment Insurance

242,503 242,503 250,859 8,356.00 3600 Workers  Compensation

10,000 10,000 10,000 3700 Retiree Benefits

Total for Object 3000 89,131.00 3,612,720 3,523,589 3,523,589 

443,869 443,869 496,937 53,068.00 4300 Materials and Supplies

88,167 88,167 213,230 125,063.00 4400 Noncapitalized Equipment

61,887 61,887 61,887 4700 Food

Total for Object 4000 178,131.00 772,054 593,923 593,923 

190,297 190,297 207,039 16,742.00 5200 Travel And Conference

35,073 35,073 35,073 5300 Dues And Memberships

80,000 80,000 80,000 5400 Insurance

116,586 116,586 116,586 5500 Utilities

113,621 113,621 113,623 2.00 5600 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

289,726- 289,726- 289,726-5700 Direct Costs Transfers

1,030,310 830,310 1,201,021 370,711.00 5800 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

143,310 143,310 145,451 2,141.00 5900 Communications

Total for Object 5000 389,596.00 1,609,067 1,219,471 1,419,471 

36,432 36,432 173,206 136,774.00 6400 Equipment

449,350- 449,350- 489,896- 40,546.00-7300 Direct Support/indirect Costs

1,071,636.00 14,077,212 13,005,576 13,205,576 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

3,422,736 3,422,736 4,080,602 657,866.00 9700

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Nov 30 2020  1:02PM 

Page 2 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2020, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 15 of 120



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Total for Fund 01

Starting Balance 3,696,035 3,696,035 4,304,135 608,100.00 

Revenue 13,443,191 12,932,277 13,853,679 410,488.00 

Expense 13,205,576 13,005,576 14,077,212 1,071,636.00 

Ending Balance Acct Type 3,422,736 3,422,736 4,080,602 657,866.00 

Calc Ending Balance 3,422,736 4,133,650 4,080,602 53,048.00-

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Nov 30 2020  1:02PM 

Page 3 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2020, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 16 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:14 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,098,913.00 2,309,827.00 598,543.78 2,309,827.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 2,014.57 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 22,800.00 22,800.00 835.53 22,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 374,679.00 674,679.00 351,061.19 669,679.00 (5,000.00) -0.7%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,496,392.00 3,007,306.00 952,455.07 3,002,306.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 519,757.00 519,757.00 173,627.57 525,741.00 (5,984.00) -1.2%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,379,669.00 1,379,669.00 493,260.16 1,461,258.00 (81,589.00) -5.9%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 832,944.00 832,944.00 264,038.04 867,209.00 (34,265.00) -4.1%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 170,867.00 170,867.00 56,751.42 215,667.00 (44,800.00) -26.2%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 640,653.00 440,653.00 464,927.85 540,653.00 (100,000.00) -22.7%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 28,432.00 28,432.00 39,973.98 53,406.00 (24,974.00) -87.8%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299
           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,080,012.00) (1,080,012.00) (43,396.62) (1,151,621.00) 71,609.00 -6.6%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,492,310.00 2,292,310.00 1,449,182.40 2,512,313.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 4,082.00 714,996.00 (496,727.33) 489,993.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 (283,381.00) (283,381.00) 0.00 (337,531.00) (54,150.00) 19.1%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (277,381.00) (277,381.00) 0.00 (331,531.00)

17 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:14 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
    BALANCE (C + D4) (273,299.00) 437,615.00 (496,727.33) 158,462.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 3,696,035.00 3,696,035.00 3,922,140.00 226,105.00 6.1%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 3,696,035.00 3,696,035.00 3,922,140.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 3,696,035.00 3,696,035.00 3,922,140.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 3,422,736.00 4,133,650.00 4,080,602.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
            Revolving Cash 9711 350.00 350.00 350.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) Committed
            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 2,762,107.20 3,483,021.20 3,376,391.30

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,170,328.20

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,891,242.20

Solay Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,784,612.30
        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 660,278.80 650,278.80 703,860.70  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

18 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 3 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:14 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES
 
  Principal Apportionment
    State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,642,049.00 1,852,963.00 480,853.78 1,852,963.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 415,339.00 415,339.00 117,690.00 415,339.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tax Relief Subventions
    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,601.00 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 0.00 0.0%

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  County & District Taxes
    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 400,076.00 400,076.00 0.00 400,076.00 0.00 0.0%

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 28,192.00 28,192.00 0.00 28,192.00 0.00 0.0%

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 5,746.00 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Revenue Augmentation
     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Community Redevelopment Funds
     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Penalties and Interest from
     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)
    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,348.00 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 0.00 0.0%

    Less: Non-LCFF
          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,495,351.00 2,706,265.00 598,543.78 2,706,265.00 0.00 0.0%
  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF
     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other LCFF
     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 (396,438.00) (396,438.00) 0.00 (396,438.00) 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,098,913.00 2,309,827.00 598,543.78 2,309,827.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 
   Programs 3025 8290
  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

   Instruction 4035 8290

19 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 4 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:14 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 
   Program 4201 8290

  Title III, Part A, English Learner
   Program 4203 8290

  Public Charter Schools Grant
   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3020, 3040, 3041,
3045, 3060, 3061,
3110, 3150, 3155,
3177, 3180, 3181,
3182, 3183, 3185,
4037, 4050, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5510,

5630 8290

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 2,014.57 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 2,014.57 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement
      Prior Years 6360 8319

    Special Education Master Plan
      Current Year 6500 8311

      Prior Years 6500 8319

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 9,800.00 9,800.00 0.00 9,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 8,000.00 8,000.00 835.53 8,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions
      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 
     Program 6387 8590

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 22,800.00 22,800.00 835.53 22,800.00 0.00 0.0%

20 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 5 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:14 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue
    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies
         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes
         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds
       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF
       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 75,000.00 75,000.00 32,623.20 75,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts
      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 20,250.00 20,250.00 0.00 20,250.00 0.00 0.0%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 108,324.00 408,324.00 314,248.99 403,324.00 (5,000.00) -1.2%

  Tuition 8710 10,367.00 10,367.00 4,189.00 10,367.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 160,738.00 160,738.00 0.00 160,738.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments
      Special Education SELPA Transfers
        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791

        From County Offices 6500 8792

        From JPAs 6500 8793

      ROC/P Transfers
        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791

        From County Offices 6360 8792

        From JPAs 6360 8793

      Other Transfers of Apportionments

        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 374,679.00 674,679.00 351,061.19 669,679.00 (5,000.00) -0.7%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,496,392.00 3,007,306.00 952,455.07 3,002,306.00 (5,000.00) -0.2%

21 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 6 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:14 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 57,628.00 57,628.00 19,645.43 57,628.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 16,150.00 16,150.00 3,136.50 16,150.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 445,979.00 445,979.00 150,845.64 451,963.00 (5,984.00) -1.3%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 519,757.00 519,757.00 173,627.57 525,741.00 (5,984.00) -1.2%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 214,676.00 214,676.00 70,405.31 214,676.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 493,528.00 493,528.00 187,783.37 523,756.00 (30,228.00) -6.1%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 671,465.00 671,465.00 234,896.50 722,826.00 (51,361.00) -7.6%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 174.98 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,379,669.00 1,379,669.00 493,260.16 1,461,258.00 (81,589.00) -5.9%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
 

  STRS 3101-3102 85,790.00 85,790.00 26,522.44 85,790.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 315,734.00 315,734.00 94,950.07 330,514.00 (14,780.00) -4.7%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 111,768.00 111,768.00 38,271.97 117,727.00 (5,959.00) -5.3%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 252,334.00 252,334.00 81,647.02 263,402.00 (11,068.00) -4.4%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 836.00 836.00 289.79 875.00 (39.00) -4.7%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 56,482.00 56,482.00 20,006.77 58,901.00 (2,419.00) -4.3%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 10,000.00 10,000.00 2,349.98 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 832,944.00 832,944.00 264,038.04 867,209.00 (34,265.00) -4.1%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 135,329.00 135,329.00 41,375.09 130,129.00 5,200.00 3.8%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 35,538.00 35,538.00 15,376.33 85,538.00 (50,000.00) -140.7%

  Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 170,867.00 170,867.00 56,751.42 215,667.00 (44,800.00) -26.2%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 86,133.00 86,133.00 7,175.22 86,133.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 32,522.00 32,522.00 29,758.33 32,522.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 80,000.00 80,000.00 106,878.41 80,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 105,000.00 105,000.00 25,850.20 105,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 91,187.00 91,187.00 36,812.99 91,187.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 (69,150.00) (69,150.00) 0.00 (69,150.00) 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (289,726.00) (289,726.00) (95,076.40) (289,726.00) 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 470,815.00 270,815.00 268,592.97 370,815.00 (100,000.00) -36.9%

  Communications 5900 133,872.00 133,872.00 84,936.13 133,872.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 640,653.00 440,653.00 464,927.85 540,653.00 (100,000.00) -22.7%

22 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 7 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:14 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY
 

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries
   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 28,432.00 28,432.00 24,973.98 53,406.00 (24,974.00) -87.8%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 28,432.00 28,432.00 39,973.98 53,406.00 (24,974.00) -87.8%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
 

  Tuition
    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict
     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments
      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221

      To County Offices 6500 7222

      To JPAs 6500 7223

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments
      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221

      To County Offices 6360 7222

      To JPAs 6360 7223

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Debt Service
      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 (630,662.00) (630,662.00) (43,396.62) (661,725.00) 31,063.00 -4.9%

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (449,350.00) (449,350.00) 0.00 (489,896.00) 40,546.00 -9.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (1,080,012.00) (1,080,012.00) (43,396.62) (1,151,621.00) 71,609.00 -6.6%
 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,492,310.00 2,292,310.00 1,449,182.40 2,512,313.00 (220,003.00) -9.6%

23 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 8 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:14 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/
     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES
    State Apportionments
      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of
       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources
      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of
       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds
      Proceeds from Certificates
       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from
      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 (283,381.00) (283,381.00) 0.00 (337,531.00) (54,150.00) 19.1%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (283,381.00) (283,381.00) 0.00 (337,531.00) (54,150.00) 19.1% 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) (277,381.00) (277,381.00) 0.00 (331,531.00) (54,150.00) 19.5%

24 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:16 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 396,438.00 396,438.00 0.00 396,438.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 1,614,407.00 1,614,407.00 509,089.76 1,796,793.00 182,386.00 11.3%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 3,944,283.00 3,944,283.00 1,077,166.16 4,021,768.00 77,485.00 2.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 4,474,757.00 4,474,757.00 2,139,124.10 4,630,374.00 155,617.00 3.5%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 10,429,885.00 10,429,885.00 3,725,380.02 10,845,373.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 3,889,231.00 3,889,231.00 1,249,702.62 3,979,655.00 (90,424.00) -2.3%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 2,292,854.00 2,292,854.00 680,629.29 2,433,407.00 (140,553.00) -6.1%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 2,690,645.00 2,690,645.00 641,687.64 2,745,511.00 (54,866.00) -2.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 423,056.00 423,056.00 330,971.45 556,387.00 (133,331.00) -31.5%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 778,818.00 778,818.00 147,510.43 1,068,414.00 (289,596.00) -37.2%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 8,000.00 8,000.00 72,149.83 119,800.00 (111,800.00) -1397.5%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299
           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 630,662.00 630,662.00 43,396.62 661,725.00 (31,063.00) -4.9%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 10,713,266.00 10,713,266.00 3,166,047.88 11,564,899.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (283,381.00) (283,381.00) 559,332.14 (719,526.00)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 283,381.00 283,381.00 0.00 337,531.00 54,150.00 19.1%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 283,381.00 283,381.00 0.00 337,531.00

25 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:16 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
    BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 559,332.14 (381,995.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 0.00 0.00 381,995.00 381,995.00 New

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 0.00 0.00 381,995.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 0.00 0.00 381,995.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 0.00 0.00 0.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
            Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) Committed
            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

26 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 3 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:16 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES
 
  Principal Apportionment
    State Aid - Current Year 8011 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Tax Relief Subventions
    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  County & District Taxes
    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Education Revenue Augmentation
     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Community Redevelopment Funds
     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Penalties and Interest from
     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)
    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Less: Non-LCFF
          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF
     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091

    All Other LCFF
     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 396,438.00 396,438.00 0.00 396,438.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 396,438.00 396,438.00 0.00 396,438.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 854,044.00 854,044.00 0.00 854,044.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 215,985.00 215,985.00 1,000.00 215,985.00 0.00 0.0%

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 95,000.00 95,000.00 0.00 82,465.00 (12,535.00) -13.2%

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 

   Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

   Instruction 4035 8290 610.00 610.00 210.00 610.00 0.00 0.0%

27 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 4 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:16 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 
   Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title III, Part A, English Learner
   Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Public Charter Schools Grant
   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3020, 3040, 3041,
3045, 3060, 3061,
3110, 3150, 3155,
3177, 3180, 3181,
3182, 3183, 3185,
4037, 4050, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5510,

5630 8290 30,000.00 30,000.00 9,197.75 72,702.00 42,702.00 142.3%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 418,768.00 418,768.00 498,682.01 570,987.00 152,219.00 36.3%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 1,614,407.00 1,614,407.00 509,089.76 1,796,793.00 182,386.00 11.3%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement
      Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education Master Plan
      Current Year 6500 8311 2,373,980.00 2,373,980.00 845,932.22 2,373,980.00 0.00 0.0%

      Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 79,423.00 79,423.00 0.00 79,423.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 3,700.00 3,700.00 905.33 3,700.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions
      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 
     Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590 92,669.00 92,669.00 61,957.02 130,410.00 37,741.00 40.7%

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,387,511.00 1,387,511.00 168,371.59 1,427,255.00 39,744.00 2.9%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 3,944,283.00 3,944,283.00 1,077,166.16 4,021,768.00 77,485.00 2.0%

28 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 5 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:16 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue
    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies
         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes
         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds
       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF
       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 28,090.00 28,090.00 0.00 28,090.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts
      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 87,893.00 87,893.00 182,924.16 238,510.00 150,617.00 171.4%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 344,690.00 344,690.00 40,247.94 349,690.00 5,000.00 1.5%

  Tuition 8710 4,014,084.00 4,014,084.00 1,915,952.00 4,014,084.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments
      Special Education SELPA Transfers
        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      ROC/P Transfers
        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Transfers of Apportionments
        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%0.00  

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 4,474,757.00 4,474,757.00 2,139,124.10 4,630,374.00 155,617.00 3.5%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 10,429,885.00 10,429,885.00 3,725,380.02 10,845,373.00 415,488.00 4.0%

29 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 6 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:16 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,316,247.00 2,316,247.00 687,192.44 2,392,577.00 (76,330.00) -3.3%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 1,216,908.00 1,216,908.00 427,134.77 1,216,908.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 247,371.00 247,371.00 100,716.94 261,465.00 (14,094.00) -5.7%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 108,705.00 108,705.00 34,658.47 108,705.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 3,889,231.00 3,889,231.00 1,249,702.62 3,979,655.00 (90,424.00) -2.3%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 1,325,957.00 1,325,957.00 358,218.55 1,424,310.00 (98,353.00) -7.4%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 350,743.00 350,743.00 126,393.99 350,743.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 192,069.00 192,069.00 69,698.13 192,069.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 174,243.00 174,243.00 65,552.14 216,443.00 (42,200.00) -24.2%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 249,842.00 249,842.00 60,766.48 249,842.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 2,292,854.00 2,292,854.00 680,629.29 2,433,407.00 (140,553.00) -6.1%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
 

  STRS 3101-3102 1,104,047.00 1,104,047.00 173,181.55 1,117,975.00 (13,928.00) -1.3%

  PERS 3201-3202 538,177.00 538,177.00 144,273.12 540,008.00 (1,831.00) -0.3%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 236,524.00 236,524.00 72,005.79 241,524.00 (5,000.00) -2.1%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 617,920.00 617,920.00 193,407.56 646,090.00 (28,170.00) -4.6%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 7,956.00 7,956.00 909.54 7,956.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 186,021.00 186,021.00 57,910.08 191,958.00 (5,937.00) -3.2%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,690,645.00 2,690,645.00 641,687.64 2,745,511.00 (54,866.00) -2.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 308,540.00 308,540.00 223,525.88 366,808.00 (58,268.00) -18.9%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 52,629.00 52,629.00 64,024.89 127,692.00 (75,063.00) -142.6%

  Food 4700 61,887.00 61,887.00 43,420.68 61,887.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 423,056.00 423,056.00 330,971.45 556,387.00 (133,331.00) -31.5%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 15,724.54 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 104,164.00 104,164.00 5,284.71 120,906.00 (16,742.00) -16.1%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 2,551.00 2,551.00 3,951.56 2,551.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 11,586.00 11,586.00 1,785.26 11,586.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 22,434.00 22,434.00 7,765.61 22,436.00 (2.00) 0.0% 

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 69,150.00 69,150.00 0.00 69,150.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 559,495.00 559,495.00 107,039.25 830,206.00 (270,711.00) -48.4%

  Communications 5900 9,438.00 9,438.00 5,959.50 11,579.00 (2,141.00) -22.7%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 778,818.00 778,818.00 147,510.43 1,068,414.00 (289,596.00) -37.2%

30 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 7 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:16 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY
 

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries
   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 8,000.00 8,000.00 72,149.83 119,800.00 (111,800.00) -1397.5%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 8,000.00 8,000.00 72,149.83 119,800.00 (111,800.00) -1397.5%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
 

  Tuition
    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict
     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments
      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments
      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Debt Service
      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 630,662.00 630,662.00 43,396.62 661,725.00 (31,063.00) -4.9%

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 630,662.00 630,662.00 43,396.62 661,725.00 (31,063.00) -4.9%
 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 10,713,266.00 10,713,266.00 3,166,047.88 11,564,899.00 (851,633.00) -7.9%

31 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 8 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:16 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/
     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES
    State Apportionments
      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of
       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources
      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of
       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds
      Proceeds from Certificates
       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from
      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 283,381.00 283,381.00 0.00 337,531.00 54,150.00 19.1%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 283,381.00 283,381.00 0.00 337,531.00 54,150.00 19.1% 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 283,381.00 283,381.00 0.00 337,531.00 (54,150.00) 19.1%

32 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:17 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,495,351.00 2,706,265.00 598,543.78 2,706,265.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 1,614,407.00 1,614,407.00 511,104.33 1,796,793.00 182,386.00 11.3%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 3,967,083.00 3,967,083.00 1,078,001.69 4,044,568.00 77,485.00 2.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 4,849,436.00 5,149,436.00 2,490,185.29 5,300,053.00 150,617.00 2.9%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 12,926,277.00 13,437,191.00 4,677,835.09 13,847,679.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,408,988.00 4,408,988.00 1,423,330.19 4,505,396.00 (96,408.00) -2.2%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 3,672,523.00 3,672,523.00 1,173,889.45 3,894,665.00 (222,142.00) -6.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,523,589.00 3,523,589.00 905,725.68 3,612,720.00 (89,131.00) -2.5%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 593,923.00 593,923.00 387,722.87 772,054.00 (178,131.00) -30.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,419,471.00 1,219,471.00 612,438.28 1,609,067.00 (389,596.00) -31.9%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 36,432.00 36,432.00 112,123.81 173,206.00 (136,774.00) -375.4%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299
           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (449,350.00) (449,350.00) 0.00 (489,896.00) 40,546.00 -9.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 13,205,576.00 13,005,576.00 4,615,230.28 14,077,212.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (279,299.00) 431,615.00 62,604.81 (229,533.00)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00

33 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:17 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
    BALANCE (C + D4) (273,299.00) 437,615.00 62,604.81 (223,533.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 3,696,035.00 3,696,035.00 4,304,135.00 608,100.00 16.5%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 3,696,035.00 3,696,035.00 4,304,135.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 3,696,035.00 3,696,035.00 4,304,135.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 3,422,736.00 4,133,650.00 4,080,602.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
            Revolving Cash 9711 350.00 350.00 350.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) Committed
            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 2,762,107.20 3,483,021.20 3,376,391.30

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,170,328.20

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,891,242.20

Solay Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,784,612.30
        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 660,278.80 650,278.80 703,860.70  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

34 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 3 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:17 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES
 
  Principal Apportionment
    State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,642,049.00 1,852,963.00 480,853.78 1,852,963.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 415,339.00 415,339.00 117,690.00 415,339.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tax Relief Subventions
    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,601.00 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 0.00 0.0%

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  County & District Taxes
    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 400,076.00 400,076.00 0.00 400,076.00 0.00 0.0%

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 28,192.00 28,192.00 0.00 28,192.00 0.00 0.0%

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 5,746.00 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Revenue Augmentation
     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Community Redevelopment Funds
     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Penalties and Interest from
     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)
    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,348.00 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 0.00 0.0%

    Less: Non-LCFF
          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,495,351.00 2,706,265.00 598,543.78 2,706,265.00 0.00 0.0%
  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF
     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other LCFF
     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,495,351.00 2,706,265.00 598,543.78 2,706,265.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 854,044.00 854,044.00 0.00 854,044.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 215,985.00 215,985.00 1,000.00 215,985.00 0.00 0.0%

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 95,000.00 95,000.00 0.00 82,465.00 (12,535.00) -13.2%

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 
   Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective
   Instruction 4035 8290 610.00 610.00 210.00 610.00 0.00 0.0%

35 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 4 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:17 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 
   Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title III, Part A, English Learner
   Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Public Charter Schools Grant
   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3020, 3040, 3041,
3045, 3060, 3061,
3110, 3150, 3155,
3177, 3180, 3181,
3182, 3183, 3185,
4037, 4050, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5510,

5630 8290 30,000.00 30,000.00 9,197.75 72,702.00 42,702.00 142.3%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 418,768.00 418,768.00 500,696.58 570,987.00 152,219.00 36.3%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 1,614,407.00 1,614,407.00 511,104.33 1,796,793.00 182,386.00 11.3%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement
      Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education Master Plan
      Current Year 6500 8311 2,373,980.00 2,373,980.00 845,932.22 2,373,980.00 0.00 0.0%

      Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 79,423.00 79,423.00 0.00 79,423.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 9,800.00 9,800.00 0.00 9,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 11,700.00 11,700.00 1,740.86 11,700.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions
      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 
     Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590 92,669.00 92,669.00 61,957.02 130,410.00 37,741.00 40.7%

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,392,511.00 1,392,511.00 168,371.59 1,432,255.00 39,744.00 2.9%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 3,967,083.00 3,967,083.00 1,078,001.69 4,044,568.00 77,485.00 2.0%

36 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 5 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:17 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue
    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies
         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes
         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds
       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF
       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 28,090.00 28,090.00 0.00 28,090.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 75,000.00 75,000.00 32,623.20 75,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts
      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 108,143.00 108,143.00 182,924.16 258,760.00 150,617.00 139.3%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 453,014.00 753,014.00 354,496.93 753,014.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tuition 8710 4,024,451.00 4,024,451.00 1,920,141.00 4,024,451.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 160,738.00 160,738.00 0.00 160,738.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments
      Special Education SELPA Transfers
        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      ROC/P Transfers
        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Transfers of Apportionments
        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 4,849,436.00 5,149,436.00 2,490,185.29 5,300,053.00 150,617.00 2.9%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 12,926,277.00 13,437,191.00 4,677,835.09 13,847,679.00 410,488.00 3.1%

37 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 6 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:17 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,373,875.00 2,373,875.00 706,837.87 2,450,205.00 (76,330.00) -3.2%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 1,233,058.00 1,233,058.00 430,271.27 1,233,058.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 693,350.00 693,350.00 251,562.58 713,428.00 (20,078.00) -2.9%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 108,705.00 108,705.00 34,658.47 108,705.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 4,408,988.00 4,408,988.00 1,423,330.19 4,505,396.00 (96,408.00) -2.2%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 1,325,957.00 1,325,957.00 358,218.55 1,424,310.00 (98,353.00) -7.4%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 565,419.00 565,419.00 196,799.30 565,419.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 685,597.00 685,597.00 257,481.50 715,825.00 (30,228.00) -4.4%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 845,708.00 845,708.00 300,448.64 939,269.00 (93,561.00) -11.1%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 249,842.00 249,842.00 60,941.46 249,842.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 3,672,523.00 3,672,523.00 1,173,889.45 3,894,665.00 (222,142.00) -6.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
 

  STRS 3101-3102 1,189,837.00 1,189,837.00 199,703.99 1,203,765.00 (13,928.00) -1.2%

  PERS 3201-3202 853,911.00 853,911.00 239,223.19 870,522.00 (16,611.00) -1.9%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 348,292.00 348,292.00 110,277.76 359,251.00 (10,959.00) -3.1%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 870,254.00 870,254.00 275,054.58 909,492.00 (39,238.00) -4.5%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 8,792.00 8,792.00 1,199.33 8,831.00 (39.00) -0.4%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 242,503.00 242,503.00 77,916.85 250,859.00 (8,356.00) -3.4%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 10,000.00 10,000.00 2,349.98 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3,523,589.00 3,523,589.00 905,725.68 3,612,720.00 (89,131.00) -2.5%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 443,869.00 443,869.00 264,900.97 496,937.00 (53,068.00) -12.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 88,167.00 88,167.00 79,401.22 213,230.00 (125,063.00) -141.8%

  Food 4700 61,887.00 61,887.00 43,420.68 61,887.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 593,923.00 593,923.00 387,722.87 772,054.00 (178,131.00) -30.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 15,724.54 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 190,297.00 190,297.00 12,459.93 207,039.00 (16,742.00) -8.8%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 35,073.00 35,073.00 33,709.89 35,073.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 80,000.00 80,000.00 106,878.41 80,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 116,586.00 116,586.00 27,635.46 116,586.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 113,621.00 113,621.00 44,578.60 113,623.00 (2.00) 0.0%0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (289,726.00) (289,726.00) (95,076.40) (289,726.00) 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 1,030,310.00 830,310.00 375,632.22 1,201,021.00 (370,711.00) -44.6%

  Communications 5900 143,310.00 143,310.00 90,895.63 145,451.00 (2,141.00) -1.5%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 1,419,471.00 1,219,471.00 612,438.28 1,609,067.00 (389,596.00) -31.9%

38 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 7 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:17 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY
 

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries
   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 36,432.00 36,432.00 97,123.81 173,206.00 (136,774.00) -375.4%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 36,432.00 36,432.00 112,123.81 173,206.00 (136,774.00) -375.4%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
 

  Tuition
    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict
     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments
      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments
      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Debt Service
      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (449,350.00) (449,350.00) 0.00 (489,896.00) 40,546.00 -9.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (449,350.00) (449,350.00) 0.00 (489,896.00) 40,546.00 -9.0%
 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 13,205,576.00 13,005,576.00 4,615,230.28 14,077,212.00 (1,071,636.00) -8.2%

39 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 8 Printed:  12/3/2020  10:17 AM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/
     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES
    State Apportionments
      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of
       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources
      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of
       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds
      Proceeds from Certificates
       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from
      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

40 of 120



 

 

 

Multi Year Projection (MYP) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2020  9:46 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5) 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
  current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,309,827.00 0.00% 2,309,827.00 0.00% 2,309,827.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 22,800.00 0.00% 22,800.00 0.00% 22,800.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 669,679.00 -44.80% 369,679.00 0.00% 369,679.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 (337,531.00) 28.74% (434,526.00) 0.00% (434,526.00)
  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 2,670,775.00 -14.86% 2,273,780.00 0.00% 2,273,780.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
  1.  Certificated Salaries
     a.  Base Salaries 525,741.00 533,627.00
     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 7,886.00 8,004.00
     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment
     d.  Other Adjustments
     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 525,741.00 1.50% 533,627.00 1.50% 541,631.00
  2.  Classified Salaries
     a.  Base Salaries 1,461,258.00 1,483,177.00
     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 21,919.00 22,248.00
     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment
     d.  Other Adjustments
     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 1,461,258.00 1.50% 1,483,177.00 1.50% 1,505,425.00
  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 867,209.00 5.34% 913,530.00 8.18% 988,286.00
  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 215,667.00 0.00% 215,667.00 0.00% 215,667.00
  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 540,653.00 0.00% 540,653.00 0.00% 540,653.00
  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 53,406.00 0.00% 53,406.00 0.00% 53,406.00
  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,151,621.00) 0.67% (1,159,310.00) 0.91% (1,169,916.00)
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
10.  Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below)
11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 2,512,313.00 2.72% 2,580,750.00 3.66% 2,675,152.00
C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE
 (Line A6 minus line B11) 158,462.00 (306,970.00) (401,372.00)

D. FUND BALANCE
  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 3,922,140.00 4,080,602.00 3,773,632.00
  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 4,080,602.00 3,773,632.00 3,372,260.00

  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)
      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 350.00 350.00 350.00
      b. Restricted 9740
      c. Committed
          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00
          2. Other Commitments 9760 3,376,391.30 3,055,934.75 2,633,309.55
      d. Assigned 9780 0.00
      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated
          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 703,860.70 717,347.25 738,600.45
          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance
          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 4,080,602.00 3,773,632.00 3,372,260.00

42 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2020  9:46 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)
E. AVAILABLE RESERVES
  1. County School Service Fund
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 703,860.70 717,347.25 738,600.45
      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Enter other reserve projections in Columns C and E for subsequent
  years 1 and 2; current year - Column A - is extracted)
  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00
      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00
      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00
  3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c) 703,860.70 717,347.25 738,600.45
F. ASSUMPTIONS
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and 
second subsequent fiscal years.  Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments 
projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10.  For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

43 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2020  9:47 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5)

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
   current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 396,438.00 0.00% 396,438.00 0.00% 396,438.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 1,796,793.00 0.00% 1,796,793.00 0.00% 1,796,793.00
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 4,021,768.00 0.00% 4,021,768.00 0.00% 4,021,768.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 4,630,374.00 10.50% 5,116,670.00 6.46% 5,447,331.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 337,531.00 28.74% 434,526.00 0.00% 434,526.00
  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 11,182,904.00 5.22% 11,766,195.00 2.81% 12,096,856.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
  1.  Certificated Salaries
     a.  Base Salaries 3,979,655.00 4,039,350.00
     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 59,695.00 60,590.00
     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment
     d.  Other Adjustments
     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 3,979,655.00 1.50% 4,039,350.00 1.50% 4,099,940.00
  2.  Classified Salaries
     a.  Base Salaries 2,433,407.00 2,469,908.00
     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 36,501.00 37,049.00
     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment
     d.  Other Adjustments
     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 2,433,407.00 1.50% 2,469,908.00 1.50% 2,506,957.00
  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 2,745,511.00 3.35% 2,837,443.00 7.45% 3,048,832.00
  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 556,387.00 0.00% 556,386.00 0.00% 556,387.00
  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,068,414.00 0.00% 1,068,414.00 0.00% 1,068,414.00
  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 119,800.00 0.00% 119,800.00 0.00% 119,800.00
  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 661,725.00 1.99% 674,894.00 3.21% 696,526.00
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
10.  Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below)
11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 11,564,899.00 1.74% 11,766,195.00 2.81% 12,096,856.00
C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE
 (Line A6 minus line B11) (381,995.00) 0.00 0.00

D. FUND BALANCE
  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 381,995.00 0.00 0.00
  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 0.00 0.00 0.00
  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)
      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 0.00
      b. Restricted 9740 0.00
      c. Committed
          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750
          2. Other Commitments 9760
      d. Assigned 9780
      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated
          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789
          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance
          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 0.00 0.00 0.00

44 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2020  9:47 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)
E. AVAILABLE RESERVES
  1. County School Service Fund 
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750
      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789
      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790
(Enter current year reserve projections in Column A, and other reserve
  projections in Columns C and E for subsequent years 1 and 2)
  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750
      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789
      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790
  3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c)
F. ASSUMPTIONS
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and
second subsequent fiscal years.  Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments
projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10.  For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

45 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted/Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/09/2016) Page 1 Printed:  12/3/2020  9:48 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5) 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93
(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
   current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,706,265.00 0.00% 2,706,265.00 0.00% 2,706,265.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 1,796,793.00 0.00% 1,796,793.00 0.00% 1,796,793.00
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 4,044,568.00 0.00% 4,044,568.00 0.00% 4,044,568.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 5,300,053.00 3.51% 5,486,349.00 6.03% 5,817,010.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 13,853,679.00 1.34% 14,039,975.00 2.36% 14,370,636.00
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
  1.  Certificated Salaries
     a.  Base Salaries 4,505,396.00 4,572,977.00
     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 67,581.00 68,594.00
     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00
     d.  Other Adjustments 0.00 0.00
     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 4,505,396.00 1.50% 4,572,977.00 1.50% 4,641,571.00
  2.  Classified Salaries
     a.  Base Salaries 3,894,665.00 3,953,085.00
     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 58,420.00 59,297.00
     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00
     d.  Other Adjustments 0.00 0.00
     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 3,894,665.00 1.50% 3,953,085.00 1.50% 4,012,382.00
  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,612,720.00 3.83% 3,750,973.00 7.63% 4,037,118.00
  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 772,054.00 0.00% 772,053.00 0.00% 772,054.00
  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,609,067.00 0.00% 1,609,067.00 0.00% 1,609,067.00
  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 173,206.00 0.00% 173,206.00 0.00% 173,206.00
  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (489,896.00) -1.12% (484,416.00) -2.28% (473,390.00)
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
10.  Other Adjustments 0.00 0.00
11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 14,077,212.00 1.92% 14,346,945.00 2.96% 14,772,008.00
C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE
 (Line A6 minus line B11) (223,533.00) (306,970.00) (401,372.00)
D. FUND BALANCE
  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 4,304,135.00 4,080,602.00 3,773,632.00
  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 4,080,602.00 3,773,632.00 3,372,260.00
  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)
      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 350.00 350.00 350.00
      b. Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
      c. Committed
          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
          2. Other Commitments 9760 3,376,391.30 3,055,934.75 2,633,309.55
      d. Assigned 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00
      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated
          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 703,860.70 717,347.25 738,600.45
          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance
          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 4,080,602.00 3,773,632.00 3,372,260.00

46 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted/Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/09/2016) Page 2 Printed:  12/3/2020  9:48 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)
E. AVAILABLE RESERVES (Unrestricted except as noted)
  1. County School Service Fund 
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 703,860.70 717,347.25 738,600.45
      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
      d. Negative Restricted Ending Balances
         (Negative resources 2000-9999) 979Z 0.00 0.00
  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00
      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
  3. Total Available Reserves - by Amount (Sum lines E1 thru E2c) 703,860.70 717,347.25 738,600.45
  4. Total Available Reserves - by Percent (Line E3 divided by Line F3c) 5.00% 5.00%  5.00%
F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES
  1. Special Education Pass-through Exclusions
      For counties that serve as the administrative unit (AU) of a 
      special education local plan area (SELPA):
      a. Do you choose to exclude from the reserve calculation
           the pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members? No
      b. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special
          education pass-through funds:
          1. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

          2. Special education pass-through funds
              (Column A: Fund 10, resources 3300-3499 and 6500-6540,
               objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223; enter projections for
               subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E) 0.00 0.00 0.00
  2. County Office's Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 
       Used to determine the reserve standard percentage level on line F3d
       (Line B11, plus line F1b2 if line F1a is No) 14,077,212.00 14,346,945.00 14,772,008.00
  3. Calculating the Reserves
      a. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line B11) 14,077,212.00 14,346,945.00 14,772,008.00
      b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Line F1b2, if Line F1a is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00
      c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
          (Line F3a plus line F3b) 14,077,212.00 14,346,945.00 14,772,008.00
      d. Reserve Standard Percentage Level
         (Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 4% 4% 4%
      e. Reserve Standard - By Percent (Line F3c times F3d) 563,088.48 573,877.80 590,880.32
      f. Reserve Standard - By Amount
         (Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 316,000.00 316,000.00 316,000.00
      g. Reserve Standard (Greater of Line F3e or F3f) 563,088.48 573,877.80 590,880.32
      h. Available Reserves (Line E3) Meet Reserve Standard (Line F3g) YES YES YES

47 of 120



 

ADULT EDUCATION FUND 11 
 

The Adult Education Fund is used to account 
separately for revenues for the adult education 
programs. 
 
The principal revenues in this fund are the following: 
 
 Workforce Investment Opportunity Act (WIOA) 
         Adult Education Block Grant 

Adult Education in Correctional Facilities 
 
Expenditures in this fund must be for adult 
education purposes only; money received for 
programs other than adult education shall not be 
expended for adult education (Education Code 
sections 52616 (b) and 52501). 
 
Expenditures in this fund may be made only for 
direct instructional costs and direct support costs 
and indirect costs as specified in Education Code 
Section 52616.4. 
 
Colusa County Office of Education has committed 
to the continued education of adult learners with 
this funding. 

48 of 120



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund   

Starting Balance

44,907 44,907 130,930 86,023.00 9700

Revenue

31,624 31,624 31,624 8200 Federal Revenue (Summary)

8,753 8,753 8,753 8500 Other State Revenue (Summary)

169,227 169,227 169,227 8600 Other Local Revenue (Summary)

.00 209,604 209,604 209,604 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

39,652 39,652 39,652 1100 Teacher Salaries

22,394 22,394 22,394 1300 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 .00 62,046 62,046 62,046 

18,250 18,250 18,250 2400 Clerical And Office Salaries

19,365 19,365 19,365 3100 State Teachers Retirement Sys

4,144 4,144 4,144 3200 Public Employee Retirement Sys

3,047 3,047 3,047 3300 Social Security/Medicare

6,978 6,978 6,978 3400 Health & Welfare

44 44 44 3500 State Unemployment Insurance

2,411 2,411 2,411 3600 Workers  Compensation

Total for Object 3000 .00 35,989 35,989 35,989 

48,362 48,362 48,362 4300 Materials and Supplies

15,724 15,724 15,724 4400 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 .00 64,086 64,086 64,086 

6,188 6,188 6,188 5200 Travel And Conference

12,957 12,957 12,957 5700 Direct Costs Transfers

1,000 1,000 1,000 5800 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

Total for Object 5000 .00 20,145 20,145 20,145 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Nov 30 2020  1:02PM 

Page 4 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2020, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 49 of 120



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

9,088 9,088 9,088 7300 Direct Support/indirect Costs

.00 209,604 209,604 209,604 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

44,907 44,907 130,930 86,023.00 9700

Total for Fund 11

Starting Balance 44,907 44,907 130,930 86,023.00 

Revenue 209,604 209,604 209,604 .00 

Expense 209,604 209,604 209,604 .00 

Ending Balance Acct Type 44,907 44,907 130,930 86,023.00 

Calc Ending Balance 44,907 44,907 130,930 86,023.00 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Nov 30 2020  1:02PM 

Page 5 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2020, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 50 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:10 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      
      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 31,624.00 31,624.00 8,045.00 31,624.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 169,227.00 169,227.00 15,067.91 169,227.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 209,604.00 209,604.00 23,112.91 209,604.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 62,046.00 62,046.00 34,489.01 62,046.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 18,250.00 18,250.00 6,630.52 18,250.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 35,989.00 35,989.00 5,227.53 35,989.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 64,086.00 64,086.00 11,033.41 64,086.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 20,145.00 20,145.00 5,570.69 20,145.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 9,088.00 9,088.00 0.00 9,088.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 209,604.00 209,604.00 62,951.16 209,604.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 (39,838.25) 0.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

51 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 2 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:10 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 (39,838.25) 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 44,907.00 44,907.00 130,930.00 86,023.00 191.6%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 44,907.00 44,907.00 130,930.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 44,907.00 44,907.00 130,930.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 44,907.00 44,907.00 130,930.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 44,848.00 44,848.00 130,930.00
        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 59.00 59.00 0.00  

Adult Ed 0000 9760 59.00
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

52 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 3 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:10 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

LCFF SOURCES
 

LCFF Transfers

    LCFF Transfers - Current Year 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 31,624.00 31,624.00 8,045.00 31,624.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 31,624.00 31,624.00 8,045.00 31,624.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Adult Education Program 6391 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts
      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 146,766.00 146,766.00 15,067.91 146,766.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 22,461.00 22,461.00 0.00 22,461.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 169,227.00 169,227.00 15,067.91 169,227.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 209,604.00 209,604.00 23,112.91 209,604.00

53 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 4 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:10 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 39,652.00 39,652.00 25,967.71 39,652.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 22,394.00 22,394.00 8,521.30 22,394.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 62,046.00 62,046.00 34,489.01 62,046.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 18,250.00 18,250.00 6,630.52 18,250.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 18,250.00 18,250.00 6,630.52 18,250.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 19,365.00 19,365.00 (652.96) 19,365.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 4,144.00 4,144.00 1,259.16 4,144.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 3,047.00 3,047.00 995.96 3,047.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 6,978.00 6,978.00 2,371.32 6,978.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 44.00 44.00 20.48 44.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 2,411.00 2,411.00 1,233.57 2,411.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 35,989.00 35,989.00 5,227.53 35,989.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 48,362.00 48,362.00 11,033.41 48,362.00 0.00 0.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 15,724.00 15,724.00 0.00 15,724.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 64,086.00 64,086.00 11,033.41 64,086.00 0.00 0.0%

54 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 5 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:10 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 6,188.00 6,188.00 0.00 6,188.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 976.95 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 284.15 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 12,957.00 12,957.00 0.00 12,957.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,939.78 1,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 1,369.81 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 20,145.00 20,145.00 5,570.69 20,145.00 0.00 0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Tuition

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Transfers Out

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 9,088.00 9,088.00 0.00 9,088.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 9,088.00 9,088.00 0.00 9,088.00 0.00 0.0%
  

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 209,604.00 209,604.00 62,951.16 209,604.00  

55 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 6 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:10 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: State School Building Fund/
     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds
      Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

56 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:54 PM

2020/21
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

6015 Adults in Correctional Facilities 25,932.00
6391 Adult Education Program 104,998.00

Total, Restricted Balance 130,930.00

57 of 120



 

CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 12 
 
The Child Development Fund is used to 
account separately for federal, state, and local 
revenues to operate child development 
programs.  

The principal revenues and other sources in this 
fund are the following: 

 Child Nutrition Programs (Federal) 
 State Preschool 
      Child Nutrition Programs (State) 
 Child Development Apportionments  
 Interest 
 Child Development Parent Fees 
  
 
The Child Development Fund may be used only 
for expenditures for the operation of child 
development programs. 

 

58 of 120



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund   

Starting Balance

80,418 80,418.00 9700

Revenue

3,316,918 3,316,918 3,929,160 612,242.00 8200 Federal Revenue (Summary)

3,763,300 3,763,300 3,996,550 233,250.00 8500 Other State Revenue (Summary)

206,247 206,247 440,381 234,134.00 8600 Other Local Revenue (Summary)

1,079,626.00 8,366,091 7,286,465 7,286,465 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

933,277 933,277 933,277 1100 Teacher Salaries

264,779 264,779 276,779 12,000.00 1300 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 12,000.00 1,210,056 1,198,056 1,198,056 

711,261 711,261 711,261 2100 Para Educator Salaries

271,714 271,714 274,714 3,000.00 2300 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

243,782 243,782 243,782 2400 Clerical And Office Salaries

356,281 356,281 356,281 2900 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 3,000.00 1,586,038 1,583,038 1,583,038 

414,617 414,617 416,472 1,855.00 3100 State Teachers Retirement Sys

361,498 361,498 361,498 3200 Public Employee Retirement Sys

134,731 134,731 135,759 1,028.00 3300 Social Security/Medicare

289,583 289,583 289,783 200.00 3400 Health & Welfare

1,377 1,377 1,382 5.00 3500 State Unemployment Insurance

81,067 81,067 81,269 202.00 3600 Workers  Compensation

Total for Object 3000 3,290.00 1,286,163 1,282,873 1,282,873 

173,627 173,627 353,275 179,648.00 4300 Materials and Supplies

3,702 3,702 135,834 132,132.00 4400 Noncapitalized Equipment

550 550 550 4700 Food

Total for Object 4000 311,780.00 489,659 177,879 177,879 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Nov 30 2020  1:02PM 

Page 6 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2020, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 59 of 120



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

57,971 57,971 57,578 393.00-5200 Travel And Conference

15,141 15,141 15,141 5300 Dues And Memberships

1,732 1,732 1,732 5400 Insurance

126,904 126,904 128,024 1,120.00 5500 Utilities

112,526 112,526 115,926 3,400.00 5600 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

276,769 276,769 276,769 5700 Direct Costs Transfers

1,878,367 1,878,367 2,379,754 501,387.00 5800 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

104,947 104,947 105,444 497.00 5900 Communications

Total for Object 5000 506,011.00 3,080,368 2,574,357 2,574,357 

144,999 144,999.00 6100 Land

30,000 30,000 88,000 58,000.00 6400 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 202,999.00 232,999 30,000 30,000 

440,262 440,262 480,808 40,546.00 7300 Direct Support/indirect Costs

1,079,626.00 8,366,091 7,286,465 7,286,465 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

80,418 80,418.00 9700

Total for Fund 12

Starting Balance 0 0 80,418 80,418.00 

Revenue 7,286,465 7,286,465 8,366,091 1,079,626.00 

Expense 7,286,465 7,286,465 8,366,091 1,079,626.00 

Ending Balance Acct Type 0 0 80,418 80,418.00 

Calc Ending Balance 0 0 80,418 80,418.00 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Nov 30 2020  1:02PM 

Page 7 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2020, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 60 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:08 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      
      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 3,316,918.00 3,316,918.00 876,614.84 3,929,160.00 612,242.00 18.5%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 3,763,300.00 3,763,300.00 2,053,177.31 3,996,550.00 233,250.00 6.2%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 206,247.00 206,247.00 250,741.90 440,381.00 234,134.00 113.5%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 7,286,465.00 7,286,465.00 3,180,534.05 8,366,091.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,198,056.00 1,198,056.00 371,181.19 1,210,056.00 (12,000.00) -1.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,583,038.00 1,583,038.00 462,397.58 1,586,038.00 (3,000.00) -0.2%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,282,873.00 1,282,873.00 318,764.10 1,286,163.00 (3,290.00) -0.3%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 177,879.00 177,879.00 170,131.11 489,659.00 (311,780.00) -175.3%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 2,574,357.00 2,574,357.00 789,919.01 3,080,368.00 (506,011.00) -19.7%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 232,999.00 (202,999.00) -676.7%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 440,262.00 440,262.00 0.00 480,808.00 (40,546.00) -9.2%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 7,286,465.00 7,286,465.00 2,112,392.99 8,366,091.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 1,068,141.06 0.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

61 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 2 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:08 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 1,068,141.06 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 0.00 0.00 80,418.00 80,418.00 New

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 0.00 0.00 80,418.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 0.00 0.00 80,418.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 0.00 0.00 80,418.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 18,758.00
        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 61,660.00  

Child Development Programs 0000 9760 61,660.00
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

62 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 3 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:08 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 332,060.00 332,060.00 68,279.91 332,060.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 2,984,858.00 2,984,858.00 808,334.93 3,597,100.00 612,242.00 20.5%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 3,316,918.00 3,316,918.00 876,614.84 3,929,160.00 612,242.00 18.5%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 9,032.00 9,032.00 970.23 9,032.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Development Apportionments 8530 734,448.00 734,448.00 637,047.11 804,714.00 70,266.00 9.6%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Preschool 6105 8590 1,745,418.00 1,745,418.00 819,836.68 1,796,270.00 50,852.00 2.9%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,274,402.00 1,274,402.00 595,323.29 1,386,534.00 112,132.00 8.8%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 3,763,300.00 3,763,300.00 2,053,177.31 3,996,550.00 233,250.00 6.2%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 14,143.00 14,143.00 6,307.31 14,143.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Child Development Parent Fees 8673 4,800.00 4,800.00 1,670.00 4,800.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 95,404.00 95,404.00 242,764.59 329,538.00 234,134.00 245.4%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 91,900.00 91,900.00 0.00 91,900.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 206,247.00 206,247.00 250,741.90 440,381.00 234,134.00 113.5%

TOTAL, REVENUES 7,286,465.00 7,286,465.00 3,180,534.05 8,366,091.00

63 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 4 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:08 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 933,277.00 933,277.00 290,455.14 933,277.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 264,779.00 264,779.00 80,726.05 276,779.00 (12,000.00) -4.5%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1,198,056.00 1,198,056.00 371,181.19 1,210,056.00 (12,000.00) -1.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 711,261.00 711,261.00 174,956.59 711,261.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 271,714.00 271,714.00 88,137.08 274,714.00 (3,000.00) -1.1%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 243,782.00 243,782.00 79,012.39 243,782.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 356,281.00 356,281.00 120,291.52 356,281.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,583,038.00 1,583,038.00 462,397.58 1,586,038.00 (3,000.00) -0.2%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 414,617.00 414,617.00 46,454.12 416,472.00 (1,855.00) -0.4%

  PERS 3201-3202 361,498.00 361,498.00 108,656.87 361,498.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 134,731.00 134,731.00 43,736.50 135,759.00 (1,028.00) -0.8%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 289,583.00 289,583.00 94,508.34 289,783.00 (200.00) -0.1%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 1,377.00 1,377.00 400.87 1,382.00 (5.00) -0.4%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 81,067.00 81,067.00 25,007.40 81,269.00 (202.00) -0.2%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,282,873.00 1,282,873.00 318,764.10 1,286,163.00 (3,290.00) -0.3%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 173,627.00 173,627.00 83,846.41 353,275.00 (179,648.00) -103.5%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 3,702.00 3,702.00 86,284.70 135,834.00 (132,132.00) -3569.2%

  Food 4700 550.00 550.00 0.00 550.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 177,879.00 177,879.00 170,131.11 489,659.00 (311,780.00) -175.3%

64 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 5 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:08 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 57,971.00 57,971.00 5,455.16 57,578.00 393.00 0.7%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 15,141.00 15,141.00 11,668.12 15,141.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 1,732.00 1,732.00 0.00 1,732.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 126,904.00 126,904.00 38,124.27 128,024.00 (1,120.00) -0.9%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 112,526.00 112,526.00 40,259.15 115,926.00 (3,400.00) -3.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 276,769.00 276,769.00 95,076.40 276,769.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 1,878,367.00 1,878,367.00 556,361.66 2,379,754.00 (501,387.00) -26.7%

  Communications 5900 104,947.00 104,947.00 42,974.25 105,444.00 (497.00) -0.5%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 2,574,357.00 2,574,357.00 789,919.01 3,080,368.00 (506,011.00) -19.7%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 144,999.00 (144,999.00) New

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 88,000.00 (58,000.00) -193.3%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 232,999.00 (202,999.00) -676.7%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Other Transfers Out

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 440,262.00 440,262.00 0.00 480,808.00 (40,546.00) -9.2%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 440,262.00 440,262.00 0.00 480,808.00 (40,546.00) -9.2%
  

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 7,286,465.00 7,286,465.00 2,112,392.99 8,366,091.00  

65 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 6 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:08 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: General Fund 8911 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds
      Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

66 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
Child Development Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:55 PM

2020/21
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

5320 Child Nutrition: Child Care Food Program (CCFP) Claims-Centers and Family Day Ca5,410.00
5350 Child Nutrition: CCFP Family Day Care Sponsor Admin 3,265.00
6130 Child Development: Center-Based Reserve Account 2.00
6131 Child Development: Resource & Referral Reserve Account 5,369.00
6132 Child Development: Alternative Payment Reserve Account 4,712.00

Total, Restricted Balance 18,758.00

67 of 120



 

 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 
 

This fund exists to account separately for 
federal forest reserve funds received by offices 
of county superintendents for distribution to 
school districts and community college 
districts (Education Code Section 2300; 
Government Code Section 29484).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

68 of 120



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 16 - Forest Reserve Fund   

Starting Balance

39,793 39,793.00 9700

Revenue

41,354 41,354 41,354 8200 Federal Revenue (Summary)

200 200 200 8600 Other Local Revenue (Summary)

.00 41,554 41,554 41,554 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

35,554 35,554 35,554 7200 Other Transfers Out

6,000 6,000 6,000 7600 Other Financing Uses

.00 41,554 41,554 41,554 Total for Expense 

accounts and Object 

7000

Ending Balance

39,793 39,793.00 9700

Total for Fund 16

Starting Balance 0 0 39,793 39,793.00 

Revenue 41,554 41,554 41,554 .00 

Expense 41,554 41,554 41,554 .00 

Ending Balance Acct Type 0 0 39,793 39,793.00 

Calc Ending Balance 0 0 39,793 39,793.00 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Nov 30 2020  1:02PM 

Page 8 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2020, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 69 of 120



70 of 120



71 of 120



72 of 120



73 of 120



 

 

 

 

SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 17 
 
 
The Special Reserve Fund for other than Capital 
Outlay Projects is used primarily to provide for 
the accumulation of General Fund money for 
general operating purposes (Education Code 
Section 42840 – Amounts from this special 
reserve fund must first be transferred into the 
General Fund or other appropriate fund of the 
LEA before expenditures can be made). 

 

This fund is used to set aside funds for future 
purchases of large items such as copy 
machines, vehicles, equipment, software and 
hardware upgrades. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

74 of 120



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 17 - Spc.resrv.for Othr.th.cptl.prj   

Starting Balance

872,619 872,619 879,911 7,292.00 9700

Revenue

18,000 18,000 18,000 8600 Other Local Revenue (Summary)

Ending Balance

890,619 890,619 897,911 7,292.00 9700

Total for Fund 17

Starting Balance 872,619 872,619 879,911 7,292.00 

Revenue 18,000 18,000 18,000 .00 

Ending Balance Acct Type 890,619 890,619 897,911 7,292.00 

Calc Ending Balance 890,619 890,619 897,911 7,292.00 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Nov 30 2020  1:02PM 

Page 9 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2020, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 75 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      
      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 18,000.00 18,000.00 7,540.87 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 18,000.00 18,000.00 7,540.87 18,000.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 18,000.00 18,000.00 7,540.87 18,000.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

76 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 2 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 18,000.00 18,000.00 7,540.87 18,000.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 872,619.00 872,619.00 879,911.00 7,292.00 0.8%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 872,619.00 872,619.00 879,911.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 872,619.00 872,619.00 879,911.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 890,619.00 890,619.00 897,911.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 890,619.00 890,619.00 897,911.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

77 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 3 Printed:  12/1/2020  1:57 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 18,000.00 18,000.00 7,540.87 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 18,000.00 18,000.00 7,540.87 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 18,000.00 18,000.00 7,540.87 18,000.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    From: General Fund/CSSF 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: General Fund/CSSF 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/
     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

78 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:04 PM

2020/21
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

79 of 120



 

 

 

FOUNDATION FOR PRIVATE PURPOSE 
TRUST FUND 73 
 
This fund is used to account separately for gifts 
or bequests per Education Code Section 41031 
that benefit individuals, private organizations, 
or other governments and under which neither 
principal nor income may be used for purposes 
that support the LEA’s own programs.  

This fund should be used when there is a formal 
trust agreement with the donor. Donations not 
covered by a formal trust agreement should be 
accounted for in the general fund. Amounts in 
the Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund shall 
be expended only for the specific purposes of 
the gift or bequest (Education Code Section 
41032).  

 

This fund is used for scholarships for the CCOE 
Agriculture Educational Foundation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80 of 120



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Budget

Change

Account

Object Code

Fund 73 - Foundation Trust Fund   

Starting Balance

67,271 67,271 67,346 75.00 9700

Revenue

3,000 3,000 3,000 8600 Other Local Revenue (Summary)

Ending Balance

70,271 70,271 70,346 75.00 9700

Total for Fund 73

Starting Balance 67,271 67,271 67,346 75.00 

Revenue 3,000 3,000 3,000 .00 

Ending Balance Acct Type 70,271 70,271 70,346 75.00 

Calc Ending Balance 70,271 70,271 70,346 75.00 

Total for Org 001 - Colusa County Office of Education

Starting Balance 4,680,832 4,680,832 5,502,533 821,701.00 

Revenue 20,490,900 21,001,814 22,491,928 1,490,114.00 

Expense 20,743,199 20,543,199 22,694,461 2,151,262.00 

4,428,533 4,428,533 5,300,000 871,467.00 Ending Balance Acct Type

Calc Ending Balance 4,428,533 160,553.00 5,300,000 5,139,447 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), Nov 30 2020  1:02PM 

Page 10 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 10/31/2020, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 81 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:06 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES     
      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00

B. EXPENSES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Depreciation 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

82 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 2 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:06 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
     NET POSITION (C + D4) 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00

F. NET POSITION
 
    1) Beginning Net Position
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 67,271.00 67,271.00 67,346.00 75.00 0.1%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 67,271.00 67,271.00 67,346.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) 67,271.00 67,271.00 67,346.00

    2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) 70,271.00 70,271.00 70,346.00

        Components of Ending Net Position

        a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00  0.00

        b) Restricted Net Position 9797 70,271.00 70,271.00  70,346.00

        c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

83 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 3 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:06 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

OTHER STATE REVENUE

    STRS On-Behalf Pension Contributions 7690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 500.00 500.00 577.78 500.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00

84 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 4 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:06 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

85 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 5 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:06 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

DEPRECIATION

  Depreciation Expense 6900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, DEPRECIATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
  

TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

86 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund
Exhibit: Restricted Net Position Detail

06 10066 0000000
Form 73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 04/19/2012) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:08 PM

2020/21
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

9010 Other Restricted Local 70,346.00

Total, Restricted Net Position 70,346.00

87 of 120



 

 

 

MISCELLANEOUS FORMS 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

88 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2020-21 Projected Year Totals

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES
FOR ALL FUNDS

06 10066 0000000
Form SIAI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: siai (Rev 04/13/2020) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:38 PM

Direct Costs - Interfund Indirect Costs - Interfund Interfund Interfund Due From Due To

Description
Transfers In

5750
Transfers Out

5750
Transfers In

7350
Transfers Out

7350
Transfers In
8900-8929

Transfers Out
7600-7629

Other Funds
9310

Other Funds
9610

01I  COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 (289,726.00) 0.00 (489,896.00)
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 6,000.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
08I  STUDENT ACTIVITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
09I  CHARTER SCHOOLS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
10I  SPECIAL EDUCATION PASS-THROUGH FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation
11I  ADULT EDUCATION FUND
       Expenditure Detail 12,957.00 0.00 9,088.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
12I  CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 276,769.00 0.00 480,808.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
13I  CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
14I  DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
15I  PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
16I  FOREST RESERVE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 6,000.00
       Fund Reconciliation
17I  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR OTHER THAN CAPITAL OUTLAY
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
18I  SCHOOL BUS EMISSIONS REDUCTION FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
19I  FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
20I  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
21I  BUILDING FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
25I  CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
30I  STATE SCHOOL BUILDING LEASE/PURCHASE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
35I COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
40I  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
53I  TAX OVERRIDE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
56I  DEBT SERVICE FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
57I  FOUNDATION PERMANENT FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation

89 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2020-21 Projected Year Totals

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES
FOR ALL FUNDS

06 10066 0000000
Form SIAI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: siai (Rev 04/13/2020) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:38 PM

Direct Costs - Interfund Indirect Costs - Interfund Interfund Interfund Due From Due To

Description
Transfers In

5750
Transfers Out

5750
Transfers In

7350
Transfers Out

7350
Transfers In
8900-8929

Transfers Out
7600-7629

Other Funds
9310

Other Funds
9610

61I  CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
62I  CHARTER SCHOOLS ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
63I  OTHER ENTERPRISE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
66I  WAREHOUSE REVOLVING FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
67I  SELF-INSURANCE FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
71I  RETIREE BENEFIT FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
73I  FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND
       Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
       Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
       Fund Reconciliation
76I  WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation
95I  STUDENT BODY FUND
       Expenditure Detail
       Other Sources/Uses Detail
       Fund Reconciliation
             TOTALS 289,726.00 (289,726.00) 489,896.00 (489,896.00) 6,000.00 6,000.00

90 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2020-21 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 1 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:18 PM

Funds 01, 09, and 62
Section I - Expenditures Goals Functions Objects

2020-21
Expenditures

A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 1000-7999 14,077,212.00

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE
(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 1000-7999 2,051,452.00

C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:
(All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)
1. Community Services All 5000-5999 1000-7999 0.00

2. Capital Outlay
All except
7100-7199

All except
5000-5999 6000-6999 115,556.00

3. Debt Service All 9100

5400-5450,
5800, 7430-

7439 0.00

4. Other Transfers Out All 9200 7200-7299 0.00

5. Interfund Transfers Out All 9300 7600-7629 0.00
9100 7699

6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 7651 0.00

7. Nonagency 7100-7199

All except
5000-5999,
9000-9999 1000-7999 234.00

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received)

All All 8710 4,024,451.00

9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a
Presidentially declared disaster

Manually entered. Must not include
expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or

D2. 0.00

10. Total state and local expenditures not  
allowed for MOE calculation
(Sum lines C1 through C9) 4,140,241.00

1000-7143,
D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439

1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services
(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) All All

minus
8000-8699 0.00

2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities
Manually entered. Must not include

expenditures in lines A or D1. 0.00

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE
(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 7,885,519.00

91 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2020-21 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 2 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:18 PM

Section II - Expenditures Per ADA

2020-21
Annual ADA/

Exps. Per ADA

A. Average Daily Attendance
(Form AI, Column D, sum of lines B1d and C9)*

10.67
B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A) 739,036.46

Section III - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final
determination will be done by CDE) Total Per ADA

A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures extracted from prior year
Unaudited Actuals MOE calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not
met, in its final determination, CDE will adjust the prior year base to 90
percent of the preceding prior year amount rather than the actual prior year
expenditure amount.) 6,328,341.30 487,545.55
1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for

LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 0.00 0.00
2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1)  6,328,341.30 487,545.55

B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 5,695,507.17 438,791.00

C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line II.B) 7,885,519.00 739,036.46

D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)
(If negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00

E. MOE determination
(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement MOE Met
is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If
either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is
incomplete.)

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero
(Line D divided by Line B)
(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2022-23 may
be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 0.00% 0.00%

*Interim Periods - Annual ADA not available from Form AI. For your convenience, Projected Year Totals Estimated
  Funded ADA has been preloaded. Manual adjustment may be required to reflect estimated Annual ADA.

92 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2020-21 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 3 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:18 PM

SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section III, Line A.1)

Description of Adjustments
Total

Expenditures
Expenditures

Per ADA

Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00

93 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2020-21 INTERIM REPORT

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1)
06 10066 0000000

Form CASH

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  12/1/2020 2:11 PM

Beginning

Object
Balances

(Ref. Only) July August September October November December January February
ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF

(Enter Month Name):
A. BEGINNING CASH 2,171,199.26 3,514,375.74 4,182,712.50 3,874,491.92 3,706,545.42 3,670,035.80 3,595,177.20 3,424,485.10
B. RECEIPTS
    LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
           Principal Apportionment 8010-8019 85,866.72 85,866.72 272,250.17 154,560.17 154,560.00 154,560.00 154,560.00 72,643.00
           Property Taxes 8020-8079 218,307.50
           Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099
    Federal Revenue 8100-8299 5,695.75 152,219.00 353,189.58 162,270.00 162,270.00 162,270.00 162,270.00
    Other State Revenue 8300-8599 154,277.88 151,328.87 433,731.83 338,663.11 293,080.90 293,080.90 293,080.90 293,080.90
    Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 1,287,879.67 405,264.18 36,545.10 742,207.40 355,000.00 355,000.00 355,000.00 355,000.00
    Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929
    All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979
    TOTAL RECEIPTS 1,528,024.27 648,155.52 894,746.10 1,588,620.26 964,910.90 1,183,218.40 964,910.90 882,993.90
C. DISBURSEMENTS
    Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 91,966.88 400,609.75 401,774.18 528,979.38 400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00
    Classified Salaries 2000-2999 165,553.27 307,096.90 311,706.52 389,532.76 345,000.00 345,000.00 345,000.00 345,000.00
    Employee Benefits 3000-3999 99,117.50 255,989.18 257,522.65 293,096.35 338,427.00 338,427.00 338,427.00 338,427.00
    Books and Supplies 4000-4999 34,656.76 101,765.87 181,321.46 69,978.78 46,650.00 46,650.00 46,650.00 46,650.00
    Services 5000-5999 271,662.09 100,374.72 50,628.29 189,773.18 120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00
    Capital Outlay 6000-6599 15,000.00 0.00 29,175.85 67,947.96 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00
    Other Outgo 7000-7499 (122,474.00) (122,474.00)
    Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629
    All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699
    TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 677,956.50 1,165,836.42 1,232,128.95 1,539,308.41 1,135,603.00 1,258,077.00 1,135,603.00 1,258,077.00
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Assets and Deferred Outflows
    Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199 350.00
    Accounts Receivable 9200-9299 2,545,072.78 807,317.66 954,899.37 29.00
    Due From Other Funds 9310 138,268.06 138,268.06
    Stores 9320 10,479.80
    Prepaid Expenditures 9330 30,983.25 19,494.37
    Other Current Assets 9340
    Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490
    SUBTOTAL 2,725,153.89 826,812.03 1,093,167.43 0.00 29.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
    Accounts Payable 9500-9599 402,620.43 333,703.32 (97,554.23) (29,162.27) 32,392.33 (134,182.48)
    Due To Other Funds 9610 4,704.00 4,704.00
    Current Loans 9640
    Unearned Revenues 9650 184,895.02 184,895.02
    Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690
    SUBTOTAL 592,219.45 333,703.32 (92,850.23) (29,162.27) 217,287.35 (134,182.48) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Nonoperating
    Suspense Clearing 9910
    TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 2,132,934.44 493,108.71 1,186,017.66 29,162.27 (217,258.35) 134,182.48 0.00 0.00 0.00
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 1,343,176.48 668,336.76 (308,220.58) (167,946.50) (36,509.62) (74,858.60) (170,692.10) (375,083.10)
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 3,514,375.74 4,182,712.50 3,874,491.92 3,706,545.42 3,670,035.80 3,595,177.20 3,424,485.10 3,049,402.00
G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS

94 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

First Interim
2020-21 INTERIM REPORT

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1)
06 10066 0000000

Form CASH

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  12/1/2020 2:11 PM

Object
ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF

(Enter Month Name):
A. BEGINNING CASH
B. RECEIPTS
    LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
           Principal Apportionment 8010-8019
           Property Taxes 8020-8079
           Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099
    Federal Revenue 8100-8299
    Other State Revenue 8300-8599
    Other Local Revenue 8600-8799
    Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929
    All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979
    TOTAL RECEIPTS
C. DISBURSEMENTS
    Certificated Salaries 1000-1999
    Classified Salaries 2000-2999
    Employee Benefits 3000-3999
    Books and Supplies 4000-4999
    Services 5000-5999
    Capital Outlay 6000-6599
    Other Outgo 7000-7499
    Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629
    All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699
    TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Assets and Deferred Outflows
    Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199
    Accounts Receivable 9200-9299
    Due From Other Funds 9310
    Stores 9320
    Prepaid Expenditures 9330
    Other Current Assets 9340
    Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490
    SUBTOTAL
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
    Accounts Payable 9500-9599
    Due To Other Funds 9610
    Current Loans 9640
    Unearned Revenues 9650
    Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690
    SUBTOTAL 
Nonoperating
    Suspense Clearing 9910
    TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D)
F. ENDING CASH (A + E)
G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS

March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL BUDGET

3,049,402.00 2,529,496.90 2,350,373.33 1,845,468.21

27,821.00 27,821.00 27,821.00 1,049,972.22 2,268,302.00 2,268,302.00
218,307.50 436,615.00 436,615.00

1,348.00 1,348.00 1,348.00
162,270.00 162,270.00 162,270.00 149,798.67 1,796,793.00 1,796,793.00
193,080.90 193,080.93 208,080.88 1,200,000.00 4,044,568.00 4,044,568.00
355,000.00 355,000.00 355,000.00 343,156.65 5,300,053.00 5,300,053.00

6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
0.00 0.00

738,171.90 956,479.43 753,171.88 500,303.32 2,249,972.22 0.00 13,853,679.00 13,853,679.00

400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 254,192.81 27,873.00 4,505,396.00 4,505,396.00
345,000.00 345,000.00 345,000.00 290,775.55 15,000.00 3,894,665.00 3,894,665.00
338,427.00 338,427.00 338,427.00 330,005.32 8,000.00 3,612,720.00 3,612,720.00
46,650.00 46,650.00 46,650.00 37,781.13 20,000.00 772,054.00 772,054.00

120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 81,201.72 75,427.00 1,609,067.00 1,609,067.00
8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 5,082.19 173,206.00 173,206.00

(122,474.00) (122,474.00) (489,896.00) (489,896.00)
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

1,258,077.00 1,135,603.00 1,258,077.00 999,038.72 23,826.00 0.00 14,077,212.00 14,077,212.00

0.00
1,762,246.03

138,268.06
0.00

19,494.37
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,920,008.46

105,196.67
4,704.00

0.00
184,895.02

0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 294,795.69

0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,625,212.77

(519,905.10) (179,123.57) (504,905.12) (498,735.40) 2,226,146.22 0.00 1,401,679.77 (223,533.00)
2,529,496.90 2,350,373.33 1,845,468.21 1,346,732.81

3,572,879.03

95 of 120



 

 

 

Criteria and Standards Report 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

96 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 1 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

Provide methodology and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enrollment, revenues, expenditures, reserves and fund balance, and multiyear 
commitments (including cost-of-living adjustments).

Deviations from the standards must be explained and may affect the interim certification.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS 

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance

STANDARD: Projected County Operations Grant average daily attendance (ADA) has not changed for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years by more than
two percent since budget adoption. Projected ADA for county operated programs has not changed for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years by more than two
percent since budget adoption.

County Office ADA Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

1A. Calculating the County Office's ADA Variances

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise enter data into the first column for all fiscal years. If Form MYPI exists, County Operations Grant ADA will be
extracted for the two subsequent years; otherwise enter this data. First Interim Projected Year Totals data for Current Year are extracted; enter data for the remaining two subsequent years
into the second column.

Estimated Funded ADA
Budget Adoption First Interim

Budget Projected Year Totals
Program / Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 1B-2) (Form AI) (Form MYPI) Percent Change Status

County and Charter School
Alternative Education Grant ADA
(Form A/AI, Lines B1d and C2d)

Current Year (2020-21) 10.79 10.67 -1.1% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 10.79 10.67 -1.1% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 10.79 10.67 -1.1% Met

District Funded County Program ADA
(Form A/AI, Line B2g)

Current Year (2020-21) 14.55 16.23 11.5% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 14.55 16.23 11.5% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 14.55 16.23 11.5% Not Met

County Operations Grant ADA
(Form A/AI, Line B5)

Current Year (2020-21) 4,471.01 4,466.93 -0.1% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 4,471.01 4,466.93 -0.1% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 4,471.01 4,466.93 -0.1% Met

Charter School ADA and Charter School
Funded County Program ADA
(Form A/AI, Lines C1 and C3f)

Current Year (2020-21) 0.00 0.00 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.0% Met

1B. Comparison of County Office ADA to the Standard

DATA ENTRY:  Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected ADA for County Operations Grant or county operated programs has changed since budget adoption by more than two percent in any of the
current year or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard, a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting ADA, and
what changes will be made to improve the accuracy of projections in this area.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

Actual ADA was higher than projected.

97 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 2 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

2. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue

STANDARD:  Projected LCFF revenue, for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years, has not changed by more than two percent
since budget adoption.

County Office LCFF Revenue Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

2A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue 

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the First Interim column, Current Year data are extracted; enter data for the
two subsequent years.

LCFF Revenue  
(Fund 01, Objects 8011, 8012, 8020-8089)  

Budget Adoption First Interim
Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 2C) Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Current Year (2020-21) 2,495,351.00 2,706,265.00 8.5% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 2,495,351.00 2,706,265.00 8.5% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 2,495,351.00 2,706,265.00 8.5% Not Met

2B. Comparison of County Office LCFF Revenue to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected LCFF revenue has changed since budget adoption by more than two percent in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide
reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting LCFF revenue.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

Adopted budget was based on the Governors May Revise budget projections, which included reductions to LCFF revenue. The actual adopted state
budget removed these reductions, and restored prior year funding.

98 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 3 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

3. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits

STANDARD: Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than five
percent since budget adoption.

County Office Salaries and Benefits Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

3A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in Salaries and Benefits

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the First Interim column, Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI
exists, Projected Year Totals data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; otherwise, enter this data.

Salaries and Benefits
First Interim

Budget Adoption Projected Year Totals
(Form 01, Objects 1000-3999) (Form 01I, Objects 1000-3999)

Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 3B) (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B3) Percent Change Status
Current Year (2020-21) 11,605,100.00 12,012,781.00 3.5% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 11,853,129.00 12,277,035.00 3.6% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 12,226,047.00 12,691,071.00 3.8% Met

3B. Comparison of County Office Salaries and Benefits to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Total salaries and benefits have not changed since budget adoption by more than the standard for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

99 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 4 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

4. CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures

STANDARD: Projected operating revenues (including federal, other state, and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and services
and other operating) for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more than five percent since budget
adoption.

Changes that exceed five percent in any major object category must be explained.

County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Explanation Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

4A. Calculating the County Office's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. First Interim data for Current Year are extracted. If First Interim Form MYPI
exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the second column.

Explanations must be entered for each category if the percent change for any year exceeds the county office's explanation percentage range.

Budget Adoption First interim
Budget Projected Year Totals  Change Is Outside

Object Range / Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 4B) (Fund 01/Form MYPI) Percent Change Explanation Range

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-8299) (MYPI, Line A2)
Current Year (2020-21) 1,614,407.00 1,796,793.00 11.3% Yes
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 1,614,407.00 1,796,793.00 11.3% Yes
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,614,407.00 1,796,793.00 11.3% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

CARES monies was added.

Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MYPI, Line A3)
Current Year (2020-21) 3,967,083.00 4,044,568.00 2.0% No
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 3,967,083.00 4,044,568.00 2.0% No
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 3,967,083.00 4,044,568.00 2.0% No

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) (Form MYPI, Line A4)
Current Year (2020-21) 4,849,436.00 5,300,053.00 9.3% Yes
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 5,042,272.00 5,486,349.00 8.8% Yes
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 5,348,112.00 5,817,010.00 8.8% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Increase in SELPA excess cost to districts.

Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MYPI, Line B4)
Current Year (2020-21) 593,923.00 772,054.00 30.0% Yes
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 593,923.00 772,053.00 30.0% Yes
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 593,923.00 772,054.00 30.0% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

CARES money added. 

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MYPI, Line B5)
Current Year (2020-21) 1,419,471.00 1,609,067.00 13.4% Yes
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 1,419,471.00 1,609,067.00 13.4% Yes
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,419,471.00 1,609,067.00 13.4% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

CARES money added. 

100 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 5 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

4B. Calculating the County Office's Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Budget Adoption First Interim
Object Range / Fiscal Year Budget Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenues (Section 4A)
Current Year (2020-21) 10,430,926.00 11,141,414.00 6.8% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 10,623,762.00 11,327,710.00 6.6% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 10,929,602.00 11,658,371.00 6.7% Not Met

Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 4A)
Current Year (2020-21) 2,013,394.00 2,381,121.00 18.3% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 2,013,394.00 2,381,120.00 18.3% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 2,013,394.00 2,381,121.00 18.3% Not Met

4C. Comparison of County Office Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked from Section 4A if the status in Section 4B is not met; no entry is allowed below.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating revenues have changed since budget adoption by more than the standard in one or more of the current or two subsequent fiscal
years. Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, will be made to bring the projected
operating revenues within the standard must be entered in Section 4A above and will also display in the explanation box below.

Explanation:
Federal Revenue
(linked from 4A

if NOT met)

CARES monies was added.

Explanation:
Other State Revenue

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Explanation:
Other Local Revenue

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Increase in SELPA excess cost to districts.

1b. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating expenditures have changed since budget adoption by more than the standard in one or more of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years. Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, will be made to bring the projected
operating expenditures within the standard must be entered in Section 4A above and will also display in the explanation box below.

Explanation:
Books and Supplies

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

CARES money added. 

Explanation:
Services and Other Exps

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

CARES money added. 

101 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 6 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

5. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance

STANDARD: Identify changes that have occurred since budget adoption in the projected contributions for facilities maintenance funding as required
pursuant to Education Code Section 17070.75, or in how the county office is providing adequately to preserve the functionality of its facilities for their
normal life in accordance with Education Code sections 52066(d)(1) and 17002(d)(1).

Determining the County Office's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75 - Ongoing and Major
Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account (OMMA/RMA)

NOTE: EC Section 17070.75 requires the county office to deposit into the account a minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent of the total unrestricted general fund
expenditures and other financing uses for that fiscal year.

DATA ENTRY:  Enter the Required Minimum Contribution if Budget data does not exist. Budget data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter budget data into lines 1, if applicable, and
2. All other data are extracted.

First Interim Contribution
Projected Year Totals

Required Minimum (Fund 01, Resource 8150,
Contribution Objects 8900-8999) Status

1. OMMA/RMA Contribution 74,769.30 217,376.00 Met

2. Budget Adoption Contribution (information only) 163,226.00
(Form 01CS, Criterion 5)

If status is not met, enter an X in the box that best describes why the minimum required contribution was not made:

  Not applicable (county office does not participate in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998)
  Other (explanation must be provided)

Explanation:
(required if NOT met
and Other is marked)

102 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 7 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

6. CRITERION: Deficit Spending

STANDARD: Unrestricted deficit spending (total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses is greater than total unrestricted revenues and
other financing sources) as a percentage of total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses, has not exceeded one-third of the county office's
available reserves¹ as a percentage of total expenditures and other financing uses² in any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

¹ Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County
School Service Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted
resources in the County School Service Fund.

² A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its
participating members.

6A. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

County Office's Available Reserves Percentage
(Criterion 8B, Line 9) 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

County Office's Deficit Standard Percentage Levels
(one-third of available reserves percentage): 1.7% 1.7% 1.7%

6B. Calculating the County Office's Special Education Pass-through Exclusions (only for county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA)

DATA ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted including the Yes/No button selection. If not, click the appropriate Yes or No button for item 1 and, if Yes,
enter data for item 2a and for the two subsequent years in item 2b; Current Year data are extracted.

For county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA (Form MYPI, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2):
1. Do you choose to exclude pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members from the 

calculations for deficit spending and reserves? No
2. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through funds:

a.  Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

Current Year
Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)
b.  Special Education Pass-through Funds 
     (Fund 10, resources 3300-3499 and 6500-6540, 
     objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223) 0.00 0.00 0.00

6C. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Percentages

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the first and
second columns.

Projected Year Totals
Net Change in Total Unrestricted Expenditures

Unrestricted Fund Balance and Other Financing Uses Deficit Spending Level
(Form 01I, Section E) (Form 01I, Objects 1000-7999) (If Net Change in Unrestricted Fund

Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Line C) (Form MYPI, Line B11) Balance is negative, else N/A) Status
Current Year (2020-21) 158,462.00 2,512,313.00 N/A Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) (306,970.00) 2,580,750.00 11.9% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) (401,372.00) 2,675,152.00 15.0% Not Met

6D. Comparison of County Office Deficit Spending to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Unrestricted deficit spending has exceeded the standard percentage level in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons for
the deficit spending, a description of the methods and assumptions used in balancing the unrestricted budget, and what changes will be made to ensure that the budget deficits are
eliminated or are balanced within the standard.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

Revenues are projected to be flat, but staff salaries and benefits will increase. CCOE has sufficient reserves to cover deficits at this level. 

103 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 8 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

7. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances

A. FUND BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund balances will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year and two subsequent
fiscal years.

7A-1. Determining if the County Office's County School Service Fund Ending Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Ending Fund Balance
County School Service Fund  

Projected Year Totals  
Fiscal Year (Form 01I, Line F2 )/(Form MYPI, Line D2) Status

Current Year (2020-21) 4,080,602.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 3,773,632.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 3,372,260.00 Met

7A-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Fund Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund ending balance is positive for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

B. CASH BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

7B-1. Determining if the County Office's Ending Cash Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: If Form CASH exists, data will be extracted; if not, data must be entered below.

Ending Cash Balance
County School Service Fund 

Fiscal Year (Form CASH, Line F, June Column) Status
Current Year (2020-21) 1,346,732.81 Met

7B-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

104 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 9 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

8. CRITERION: Reserves

STANDARD: Available reserves¹ for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years are not less than the following percentages or
amounts as applied to total expenditures and other financing uses²:

Percentage Level³
County Office Total Expenditures

and Other Financing Uses³
5% or      $71,000 (greater of)                                  0   to             $6,317,999
4% or    $316,000 (greater of)                  $6,318,000   to           $15,794,999
3% or    $632,000 (greater of)                $15,795,000   to           $71,078,000
2% or $2,132,000 (greater of)                $71,078,001 and                 over

¹ Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for
Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County School Service Fund
and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced
by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the County School Service Fund.

² A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area
(SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members.

³ Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually by the prior year statutory cost-of-living adjustment (EC Section
2574), rounded to the nearest thousand.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

County Office's Expenditures and Other Financing
 Uses (Criterion 8A1), plus SELPA Pass-through

(Criterion 6B2b) if Criterion 6B, Line 1 is No: 14,077,212 14,346,945 14,772,008

County Office's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: 4% 4% 4%

105 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 10 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

8A. Calculating the County Office's Reserve Standard

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYPI exists, all data are extracted or calculated. If not, enter data for line 1 for the two subsequent years; Current Year data are extracted.

Current Year
Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)
1. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Form 01I, objects 1000-7999) (Form MYPI, Line B11) 14,077,212.00 14,346,945.00 14,772,008.00
2. Plus: Special Education Pass-through

(Criterion 6B, Line 2b if Criterion 6B, Line 1 is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00
3. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Line A1 plus Line A2) 14,077,212.00 14,346,945.00 14,772,008.00
4. Reserve Standard Percentage Level 4% 4% 4%
5. Reserve Standard - by Percent

(Line A3 times Line A4) 563,088.48 573,877.80 590,880.32
6. Reserve Standard - by Amount

(From percentage level chart above) 316,000.00 316,000.00 316,000.00
7. County Office's Reserve Standard

(Greater of Line A5 or Line A6) 563,088.48 573,877.80 590,880.32

8B. Calculating the County Office's Available Reserve Amount

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted from fund data and Form MYPI. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Current Year
Reserve Amounts Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except line 4) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. County School Service Fund - Stabilization Arrangements
(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E1a) 0.00

2. County School Service Fund - Reserve for Economic
Uncertainties (Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E1b) 703,860.70 717,347.25 738,600.45

3. County School Service Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount
(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E1c) 0.00 30.00 30.00

4. County School Service Fund - Negative Ending Balances in
Restricted Resources (Fund 01, Object 979Z, if negative,
for each of resources 2000-9999) (Form MYPI, Line E1d) 0.00 0.00

5. Special Reserve Fund - Stabilization Arrangements
(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E2a) 0.00

6. Special Reserve Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties
(Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E2b) 0.00

7. Special Reserve Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount
(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E2c) 0.00

8. County Office's Available Reserve Amount     
(Lines B1 thru B7) 703,860.70 717,377.25 738,630.45

9. County Office's Available Reserve Percentage (Information only)
(Line 8 divided by Section 8A, Line 3) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

County Office's Reserve Standard 
(Section 8A, Line 7): 563,088.48 573,877.80 590,880.32

Status: Met Met Met

8C. Comparison of County Office Reserve Amount to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Available reserves have met the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

106 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 11 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation for each Yes answer.

S1. Contingent Liabilities

1a. Does your county office have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program audits, litigation,
state compliance reviews) that have occurred since budget adoption that may impact the budget? No

1b. If Yes, identify the liabilities and how they may impact the budget:

S2. Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures

1a. Does your county office have ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded with one-time 
revenues that have changed since budget adoption by more than five percent? No

1b. If Yes, identify the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue funding the ongoing expenditures in the following fiscal years:

S3. Temporary Interfund Borrowings

1a. Does your county office have projected temporary borrowings between funds?
(Refer to Education Code Section 42603) No

1b. If Yes, identify the interfund borrowings:

S4. Contingent Revenues

1a. Does your county office have projected revenues for the current fiscal year or either of the two subsequent 
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act 
(e.g., parcel taxes, forest reserves)? No

1b. If Yes, identify any of these revenues that are dedicated for ongoing expenses and explain how the revenues will be replaced or expenditures reduced:

107 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 12 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

S5. Contributions

Identify projected contributions from unrestricted resources in the county school service fund to restricted resources in the county school service fund for the current fiscal year and
two subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if contributions have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since budget adoption.

Identify projected transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund for the current fiscal year
and two subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if transfers have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since budget adoption.

Identify capital project cost overruns that have occurred since budget adoption that may impact the county school service fund budget.

County Office's Contributions and Transfers Standard:
-5.0% to +5.0%

or -$20,000 to +$20,000

S5A. Identification of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the County School Service Fund

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. For Contributions, the First Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. Enter
First Interim Contributions for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. For Transfers In and Transfers Out, the First Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. If Form MYPI exists, the data
will be extracted into the First Interim column for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Click on the appropriate
button for Item 1d; all other data will be calculated.

Budget Adoption First Interim Percent
Description / Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item S5A) Projected Year Totals Change Amount of Change Status

1a. Contributions, Unrestricted County School Service Fund
(Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8980)

Current Year (2020-21) (283,381.00) (337,531.00) 19.1% 54,150.00 Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) (283,381.00) (434,526.00) 53.3% 151,145.00 Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) (283,381.00) (434,526.00) 53.3% 151,145.00 Not Met

1b. Transfers In, County School Service Fund *
Current Year (2020-21) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1c. Transfers Out, County School Service Fund *
Current Year (2020-21) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1d. Capital Project Cost Overruns
Have capital project cost overruns occurred since budget adoption that may impact the
county school service fund operational budget? No

* Include transfers used to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund.

S5B. Status of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Not Met for items 1a-1c or if Yes for item 1d.

1a. NOT MET - The projected contributions from the unrestricted county school service fund to restricted county school service fund programs have changed since budget adoption by
more than the standard for any of the current year or subsequent two fiscal years. Identify restricted programs and contribution amount for each program and whether contributions
are ongoing or one-time in nature. Explain the county office's plan, with timeframes, for reducing or eliminating the contribution.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

Budget increase in SELPA excess costs to districts.

1b. MET - Projected transfers in have not changed since budget adoption by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

108 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 13 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

1c. MET - Projected transfers out have not changed since budget adoption by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

1d. NO - There have been no capital project cost overruns occurring since budget adoption that may impact the county school service fund operational budget.

Project Information:
(required if YES)

109 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 14 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

S6. Long-term Commitments

Identify all existing and new multiyear commitments¹ and their annual required payment for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explain how any increase in annual payments will be funded. Also, explain how any decrease to funding sources used to pay long-term commitments will be replaced.

¹Include multiyear commitments, multiyear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations.

S6A. Identification of the County Office's Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: If Budget Adoption (Form 01CS, Item S6A) data exist, long-term commitment data will be extracted and it will only be necessary to click the appropriate button for Item 1b.
Extracted data may be overwritten to update long-term commitment data in item 2, as applicable. If no Budget Adoption data exist, click the appropriate buttons for items 1a and 1b, and
enter all other data, as applicable.

1. a.  Does your county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments?
     (If No, skip items 1b and 2 and sections S6B and S6C) Yes

b.  If Yes to Item 1a, have new long-term (multiyear) commitments been incurred
     since budget adoption? No

2. If Yes to Item 1a, list (or update) all new and existing multiyear commitments and required annual debt service amounts. Do not include long-term commitments for postemployment
benefits other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in Item S7A.

# of Years SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: Principal Balance
Type of Commitment Remaining Funding Sources (Revenues) Debt Service (Expenditures) as of July 1, 2020

Capital Leases
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences Resource 0000 136,697

Other Long-term Commitments (do not include OPEB):

TOTAL: 136,697

Prior Year Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2019-20) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment
Type of Commitment (continued): (P & I) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I)

Capital Leases 14,000
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

Other Long-term Commitments (continued):

Total Annual Payments: 24,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Has total annual payment increased over prior year (2019-20)? No No No

110 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 15 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

S6B. Comparison of the County Office's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Yes.

1a. No - Annual payments for long-term commitments have not increased in one or more of the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if Yes to
increase in total

annual payments)

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in Item 1; if Yes, an explanation is required in Item 2.

1. Will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources?

No

2. No - Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, and one-time funds are not being used for long-term commitment annual payments.

Explanation:
(Required if Yes)

111 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 16 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

S7. Unfunded Liabilities

Identify any changes in estimates for unfunded liabilities since budget adoption, and indicate whether the changes are the result of a new actuarial valuation.

S7A. Identification of the County Office's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. Budget Adoption data that exist (Form 01CS, Item S7A) will be extracted; otherwise, enter Budget Adoption
and First Interim data in items 2-4.

1. a.  Does your county office provide postemployment benefits
     other than pensions (OPEB)? (If No, skip items 1b-4) Yes

b.  If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since
     budget adoption in OPEB liabilities?

No

c.  If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since
     budget adoption in OPEB contributions?

No

Budget Adoption
2. OPEB Liabilities (Form 01CS, Item S7A) First Interim

a.   Total OPEB liability 425,222.00 425,222.00
b.   OPEB plan(s) fiduciary net position (if applicable) 0.00 0.00
c.   Total/Net OPEB liability (Line 2a minus Line 2b) 425,222.00 425,222.00
d.   Is total OPEB liability based on the county office's
      estimate or an actuarial valuation? Actuarial Actuarial
e.   If based on an actuarial valuation, indicate the measurement
     date of the OPEB valuation Apr 16, 2020 Apr 16, 2020

3. OPEB Contributions
a.   OPEB actuarially determined contribution (ADC) if available, Budget Adoption
      per actuarial valuation or Alternative Measurement Method (Form 01CS, Item S7A) First Interim
          Current Year (2020-21) 0.00 0.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00

b.   OPEB amount contributed (for this purpose, include premiums paid to a self-insurance fund)
      (Funds 01-70, objects 3701-3752)
          Current Year (2020-21) 10,000.00 10,000.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 10,000.00 10,000.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 10,000.00 10,000.00

c.   Cost of OPEB benefits (equivalent of "pay-as-you-go" amount)
          Current Year (2020-21) 0.00 0.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00

d.   Number of retirees receiving OPEB benefits
          Current Year (2020-21) 1 1
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 1 1
          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1 1

4. Comments:

112 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 17 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

S7B. Identification of the County Office's Unfunded Liability for Self-insurance Programs

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. Budget Adoption data that exist (Form 01CS, Item S7B) will be extracted; otherwise, enter Budget Adoption
and First Interim data in items 2-4.

1. a.  Does your county office operate any self-insurance programs 
     such as workers' compensation, employee health and
     welfare, or property and liability? (Do not include OPEB,
     which is covered in Section S7A) (If No, skip items 1b-4) No

b.  If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since
     budget adoption in self-insurance liabilities? n/a

c.  If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since
     budget adoption in self-insurance contributions?

n/a

Budget Adoption
2. Self-Insurance Liabilities (Form 01CS, Item S7B) First Interim

a.  Accrued liability for self-insurance programs 0 0
b.  Unfunded liability for self-insurance programs 0 0

3. Self-Insurance Contributions Budget Adoption
a.  Required contribution (funding) for self-insurance programs (Form 01CS, Item S7B) First Interim
          Current Year (2020-21) 0 0
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0 0
          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0 0

b.  Amount contributed (funded) for self-insurance programs
          Current Year (2020-21) 0 0
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0 0
          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0 0

4. Comments:

NVSIG is JPA for Worker's Compensation. Claims after 1995 are covered by Protected Insurance Program for Schools (PIPS). 

113 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 18 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

S8. Status of Labor Agreements

Analyze the status of all employee labor agreements. Identify new labor agreements that have been ratified since budget adoption, as well as new commitments provided as part of
previously ratified multiyear agreements; and include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the date of
the required board meeting. Compare the increase in new commitments to the projected increase in ongoing revenues, and explain how these commitments will be funded in future
fiscal years.

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff:

The county office of education must determine the cost of the settlement, including salaries, benefits, and any other agreements that change costs, and provide the California
Department of Education (CDE) with an analysis of the cost of the settlement and its impact on the operating budget.

The CDE shall review the analysis relative to the criteria and standards, and may provide written comments to the president of the governing board and the county superintendent
of schools.

S8A. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all certificated labor negotiations settled as of budget adoption? No

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8B.
If No, continue with section S8A.

Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations
Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2019-20) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Number of certificated (non-management) full-
time-equivalent (FTE) positions 49.6 45.9 45.9 45.9

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since budget adoption? 
If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents 
have not been filed with the CDE, complete questions 2-4. Yes

If No, complete questions 5 and 6.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?
If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. No

Negotiations Settled Since Budget Adoption
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: Oct 14, 2020

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date:  Jul 01, 2020 End Date:  Jun 30, 2021

4. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)? Yes Yes Yes

One Year Agreement
Total cost of salary settlement 115,779 0 0

% change in salary schedule from prior year 3% one time off schedule
or

Multiyear Agreement
Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled
5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 38,593

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 0 0 0

114 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 19 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes
2. Total cost of H&W benefits 472,311 472,311 472,311
3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer Hard CAP (10,290 per FTE) Hard CAP (10,290 per FTE) Hard CAP (10,290 per FTE)
4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 2.9% 0.0% 0.0%

Certificated (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated
Since Budget Adoption
Are any new costs negotiated since budget adoption for prior year
settlements included in the interim? No

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Certificated (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes
2. Cost of step & column adjustments 45,000 59,695 60,590
3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Certificated (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MYPs? Yes No No

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the interim and MYPs? No No No

Certificated (Non-management) - Other
List other significant contract changes that have occurred since budget adoption and the cost impact of each change (i.e., class size, hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses,
etc.):

115 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 20 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

S8B. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Classified (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all classified labor negotiations settled as of budget adoption?

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8C. No
If No, continue with section S8B.

Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations
Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2019-20) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Number of classified (non-management) FTE
positions 49.6 57.5 57.5 57.5

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since budget adoption? 
If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents 
have not been filed with the CDE, complete questions 2-4. Yes

If No, complete questions 5 and 6.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?
If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. No

Negotiations Settled Since Budget Adoption
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: Oct 14, 2020

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date:  Jul 01, 2020 End Date:  Jun 30, 2020

4. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)? Yes Yes Yes

One Year Agreement
Total cost of salary settlement 82,628 83,867 85,125

% change in salary schedule from prior year 4.0%
or

Multiyear Agreement
Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:

General Fund

Negotiations Not Settled

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 20,657

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 0 0 0

116 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 21 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes
2. Total cost of H&W benefits 591,675 591,675 591,675
3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer Hard CAP (10,290 per FTE) Hard CAP (10,290 per FTE) Hard CAP (10,290 per FTE)
4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 2.9% 0.0% 0.0%

Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated
Since Budget Adoption
Are any new costs negotiated since budget adoption for prior year
settlements included in the interim? No

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes
2. Cost of step & column adjustments 39,224 36,501 37,049
3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MYPs? Yes No No

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the interim and MYPs? No No No

Classified (Non-management) - Other
List other significant contract changes that have occurred since budget adoption and the cost impact of each (i.e., hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.):

117 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 22 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

S8C. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period."  There are no
extractions in this section.

Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all managerial/confidential labor negotiations settled as of budget adoption? Yes

If Yes or n/a, complete number of FTEs, then skip to S9.
If No, continue with section S8C.

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Salary and Benefit Negotiations
Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2019-20) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Number of management, supervisor, and
confidential FTE positions 11.6 10.0 10.0 10.0

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since budget adoption? 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents
have not been filed with the CDE, complete question 2. n/a

If No, complete questions 3 and 4.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled? No
If Yes, complete questions 3 and 4.

Negotiations Settled Since Budget Adoption
2. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)? Yes Yes Yes

Total cost of salary settlement 57,975 0 0

Change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener") 3% one time off schedule

Negotiations Not Settled
3. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 19,325

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

4. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 0 0 0

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes
2. Total cost of H&W benefits 102,900 102,900 102,900
3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer Hard CAP (10,290 per FTE) Hard CAP (10,290 per FTE) Hard CAP (10,290 per FTE)
4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 2.9% 0.0% 0.0%

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Step and Column Adjustments (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interm and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes
2. Cost of step & column adjustments 30,000 30,000 30,000
3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Other Benefits (mileage, bonuses, etc.) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are costs of other benefits included in the interim and MYPs? No No No
2. Total cost of other benefits
3. Percent change in cost of other benefits over prior year

118 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 23 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

S9. Status of Other Funds

Analyze the status of other funds that may have negative fund balances at the end of the current fiscal year. If any other fund has a projected negative fund balance, prepare an
interim report and multiyear projection for that fund. Explain plans for how and when the negative fund balance will be addressed.

S9A. Identification of Other Funds with Negative Ending Fund Balances

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in Item 1. If Yes, enter data in Item 2 and provide the reports referenced in Item 1.

1. Are any funds other than the county school service fund projected to have a 
negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? No

If Yes, prepare and submit to the reviewing agency a report of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (e.g., an interim fund report) and a multiyear projection report
for each fund.

2. If Yes, identify each fund, by name and number, that is projected to have a negative ending fund balance for the current fiscal year. Provide reasons for the negative balance(s)
and explain the plan for how and when the problem(s) will be corrected.

119 of 120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 First Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 24 of 24 Printed:  12/1/2020  2:40 PM

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS

The following fiscal indicators are designed to provide additional data for reviewing agencies. A "Yes" answer to any single indicator does not necessarily suggest a cause for concern, but
may alert the reviewing agency to the need for additional review.

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items A2 through A8; Item A1 is automatically completed based on data from Criterion 7.

A1. Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the current fiscal year with a
negative cash balance in the county school service fund? (Data from Criterion 7B-1, Cash Balance, No
are used to determine Yes or No)

A2. Is the system of personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
No

A3. Is the County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal years? 
No

A4. Are new charter schools operating in county office boundaries that impact the county office's
ADA, either in the prior or current fiscal year? No

A5. Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the current
or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would result in salary increases that No
are expected to exceed the projected state funded cost-of-living adjustment?

A6. Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health benefits for current or
retired employees? No

A7. Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? 
(If Yes, provide copies to the CDE.) No

A8. Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business
official positions within the last 12 months? Yes

When providing comments for additional fiscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment.

Comments:
(optional)

A8 - New CBO started 11/2019, replaced retiring CBO. 

End of County Office First Interim Criteria and Standards Review

120 of 120



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, January 13, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81933072723  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

 



Colusa County Board of Education 
January 13, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 None 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No December Meeting 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the December 11, 2020, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Salary as a Percentage of Budget Discussion  information 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
February 10, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting December 11, 2020 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Cristy Edwards, Alex Evans, Aaron Heinz, 

Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Chuck Wayman, and 
Karisa Williams 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Ed Conrado called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 345 5th Street, 
Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and 
made the following announcements. 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD 
2.1 Certificates of Election and Appointment and Oath of Office 

2.1.1 Trustee Area 1, In Lieu of Election – Brenda Miller 
2.1.2 Trustee Area 2, In Lieu of Election – Richard Morrell 
2.1.3 Trustee Area 4, Election – Cristy Edwards 

The Board certified the appointment of Brenda Miller, Trustee Area 1, 
and Richard Morrell, Trustee Area 2, and accepted the County Clerk 
election certification for Cristy Edwards, Trustee Area 4. 

2.2 Oath of Office Trustee Areas 1, 2, & 4 
Colusa County Clerk‐Recorder, Rose Gallo‐Vasquez administered the Oath of 
Office to Brenda Miller – Trustee Area 1, Richard Morrell – Trustee Area 2, and 
Cristy Edwards – Trustee Area 4. 
 
The Board was asked to sign the Combined Certificate of Appointment in Lieu of 
Election and Oath of Office for Brenda Miller and for Richard Morrell, and the 
Certificate of Election and Oath of Office for Cristy Edwards, which will be 
completed and sent to the Colusa County Clerk‐Recorder, Rose Gallo‐Vasquez. 

2.3 Accept President Rotation Schedule 
Discussion was held on newly elected Area 4 Trustee Cristy Edwards becoming 
the 2021 President of the Board. 

Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell) 
and zero noes to accept the President Rotation Schedule (Attachment B). 

As of this action, Cristy Edwards assumed the Presidency, and began leading the meeting.

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 11, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

2.4 Accept the 2021 Schedule of Regular Meetings 
Discussion was held on scheduling the meeting later in the evening to allow 
members of the public to attend after work.  Discussion was also held on reasons 
to keep the 4:00 pm meeting time, such as the impact on staff, the added cost of 
later meetings, COE vs. district public interest, and on the Board’s ability to re‐
schedule meeting dates and times as they see fit. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell) and one no 
(Jason McMullan) to accept the 2021 Schedule of Regular Meetings with the 
option of changing the date and/or time of future meetings if the Board deems it 
necessary (Attachment C). 

2.5 Set 2021 Liaison Assignments 
Discussion was held on keeping the 2021 Liaison Assignments the same as 2020 
with Cristy Edwards taking over Lynn Bowen Burnham’s assignments. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell) 
and zero noes to set the 2021 Liaison Assignments the same as 2020 with Cristy 
Edwards taking over Lynn Bowen Burnham’s assignments (Attachment D). 

3.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

4.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

5.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
No letters or communications. 

6.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

7.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
7.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Reports 

7.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West was absent, and Aaron Heinz orally delivered Michael’s 
report in his stead.  In his report Michael indicated that he participated in 
Zoom meetings with many organizations and staff on COVID 19 health 
and safety, preparation and planning, and testing concerns.  He reported 
that CCOE signed an agreement with Curative, Inc. to provide saliva 
based self‐testing for our educational staff at the Village multipurpose 
room one or two days per week.  Discussion was held on the cost per 
test, which is $120 and is covered by health insurance.  Michael shared 
Jennifer Jelavich’s Colusa County Schools Reopening Status report, and 
Michael’s belief that with the County’s position in the purple tier and 



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 11, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

beyond, schools will remain at the same state of opening, that districts 
will follow guidelines and protocols suggested to be followed as much as 
practicable, that district superintendents are communicating closely as 
issues arise, and that we will still see distance learning, blended learning, 
and face to face instruction at differing levels throughout the County and 
the State.  Evaluations will take place weekly as to levels of safety, 
monitoring of students and staff, overall activity, and need or not for 
continued protocols, with CCOE working closely with Colusa County 
Public Health.  Michael participated in luncheons with five Beginning Day 
Golden Ticket winners.  Discussion was held on the reopening status of all 
districts. 

7.1.2 Superintendents Council – No November Meeting 

8.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

8.1 Board President’s Report 
Ed Conrado said that he enjoyed leading the meetings, and he did not have a 
Board President’s Report. 

9.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Brenda Miller/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion 
carried five ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry 
Morrell) and zero noes to approve the following Consent Agenda item: 

9.1 Approve Minutes of the November 10, 2020, Regular Board Meeting 

10.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

11.0 OLD BUSINESS 
11.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Aaron Heinz read from Michael West’s report, which indicated that CCOE is 
continuing work in partnership with WCC and YCCD on the EduNet, Farm to 
School, and upcoming EMT classes. 

11.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Aaron Heinz read from Michael West’s report, which indicated that facilities 
projects are continuing with no new items. 

11.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that the CDE will host an LCAP webinar on 
December 15, 2020, to solicit stakeholder input on version 2 of the annual 
update, and that the template is not yet ready for review.   



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 11, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

11.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Project Director Karisa Williams reported on 
grant activities, including Literacy Kit distributions, Book Sharing book giveaways, 
and virtual story times in English and in Spanish on Facebook. 

The December 11, 2020, Board Agenda was misnumbered from this point forward, incorrectly 
identifying each item as being one digit higher in sequence (e.g., 12.0 was identified as 13.0). 

12.0 NEW BUSINESS 
12.1 Approve First Interim Report 

Aaron Heinz began his presentation of the First Interim Report by providing a 
synopsis of the budget, and a review of the General Fund Assumptions, the CCOE 
Certification Form that is positive, and the County Service Fund ‐ General Fund 
01 that has an ending balance of $4 million, but will need to be closely 
monitored in expectation of economic uncertainties.  Discussion was held on 
Noncapitalized Equipment Expenditures and Aaron will provide Brenda Miller 
with a detail of those expenditures; on expense 6400, Equipment Increases, 
which Aaron previously reported as facility and technology outlays; on whether 
the State is paying COE in a timely manner, which Aaron said no major delays in 
payments had occurred, but deferrals will begin in February and will continue 
through the end of the year; and on expense 5800 Consulting Services/Operating 
Expense increase, which Aaron believes are Special Education mental health 
dollars and he will provide Jason McMullan with additional information.  Aaron 
reviewed the Combined Multi‐Year Projections that indicate CCOE can meet the 
financial obligations of the current fiscal year, and two out years; however, he 
cautioned the group to be mindful of retirement costs that are expected to 
increase significantly in future years during a time of flat funding and zero COLA.  
Discussion was held on the Governor’s one time pay down to the STRS fund in 
2019, and on the possibility of the State paying down deferrals.  Aaron drew the 
Board’s attention to the Multi‐Year Projections Fund Balance (Section D) that 
indicates CCOE’s ending fund balance will be reduced from $4 million in 2020‐21, 
to $3.7 million in 2021‐22, and then to $3.3 million in 2022‐23, and that these 
balances were conservatively determined by assuming flat funding.  Discussion 
was held on knowing when program reductions are necessary, and on CCOE’s 
reserve rate (currently CCOE is moving from a 30% to a 21‐22% reserve, which is 
greater than the State mandated 5% reserve).  Aaron acknowledged Angelina 
Guizar and Sheryl Parker for their work on the budget.  Discussion was held on 
whether the State is still supporting LEA’s full pre‐COVID 19 payroll, and Aaron 
said he will know better in January after the first Governor’s Budget is released. 

Brenda Miller/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell) 
and zero noes to approve the First Interim Report. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
December 11, 2020, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

12.2 Cancel December 15, 2020, Contingency Meeting 
Tina Maxwell reported that the December 15, 2020, meeting is contingent upon 
the December 11, 2020, meeting consisting of a quorum, and Board having the 
ability to successfully conduct Board Business.  She said in her view the 
December 11, 2020, meeting was successful, and the December 15 meeting is 
unnecessary. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Jason McMullan/Seconded, and the motion carried five 
ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry 
Morrell) and zero noes to cancel the December 15, 2020, Contingency Meeting. 

13.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
13.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

Salary as a Percentage of Budget Discussion  information 

13.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
January 13, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

14.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:15 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CDE  California Department of Education 

COE  County Office of Education 

COLA  Cost of Living Adjustment 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

EMT  Emergency Medical Technician 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

STRS  California State Teachers Retirement System 

Village  Colusa County Office of Education's Education Village in Williams, CA 

WCC  Williams Children's Center 

YCCD  Yuba Community College District 

 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Board President Rotation
Attachment B 

YEAR LOCATION AREA PRESIDENT YEAR LOCATION AREA PRESIDENT

2025 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1998 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2024 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1997 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2023 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1996 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2022 Williams 3 Jason McMullan 1995 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

2021 Maxwell 4 Cristy Edwards 1994 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

2020 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1993 Arbuckle 1 Greg Ramos

2019 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1992 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2018 Colusa 2 Barry Morrell 1991 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2017 Williams 3 Nancy G. Marshall 1990 Colusa 5 Mary Winters

2016 Maxwell 4 Virginia Frias 1989 Colusa/Grimes 2 Jim Davison

2015 Colusa 5 Ed Conrado 1988 Arbuckle 1 Patti Scofield

2014 Colusa 2 Gary Teragawa 1987 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2013 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1986 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2012 Maxwell 4 Randall Roberts 1985 Colusa 5 Trish Knoll

2011 Williams 3 Tim Wright 1984 Colusa/Grimes 2 Ellen Armstrong

2010 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1983 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2009 Colusa 2 Julissa Silva‐Garcia 1982 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2008 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller 1981 Maxwell 4 Sam Etchepare

2007 Maxwell 4 Olga Cain 1980 Colusa 5 Bernice Dommer

2006 Williams 3 Addie Maupin 1979 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2005 Colusa 5 David Scroggins 1978 Arbuckle 1 Norman Collignon

2004 Colusa 2 Mike Cunningham

2003 Arbuckle 1 Brenda Miller

2002 Williams 3 Bill Sommerville

2001 Maxwell 4 George Cain

2000 Colusa 5 David Scroggins

1999 Colusa 2 Jim Davison

TRUSTEE TRUSTEE

C:\Users\tmaxwell\OD\Administrative\Board CCOE\Board Terms\Rotation\Rotation



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

Board Approved:  December 11, 2020 

Attachment C 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
2021 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 

Meetings are usually held the 2nd Wednesday of the month 
beginning at 4:00 p.m., unless otherwise noted with an asterisk (*), 

in the 

CCOE Large Conference Room 
345 5th Street 

Colusa, CA  95932 

Please call to verify time and location 

    Date   

January 13 – Regular Meeting 

February 10 – Regular Meeting 

March 10 – Regular Meeting, 2nd Interim Report 

April 14 – Regular Meeting 

May 12 – Regular Meeting 

June 8 – Public Hearing for LCAP & Budget 

June 9 – Regular Meeting, LCAP & Budget 

July 14 – Regular Meeting 

August 11 – Regular Meeting 

September 8 – Regular Meeting 

October 13 – Regular Meeting, Gann Limits & Unaudited Actuals 

November 10 – Regular Meeting 

*December 14 – Regular Meeting, Annual Organizational Meeting & 1st Interim Report 

*Contingency Meeting December 15 – Regular and Annual Organizational Meetings & 

1st Interim Report 

*AB 2449 shifted the prescribed window for holding the annual organizational meeting. The 15‐day window for 2021 is Friday, December 

10 to Saturday, December 25, 2021. Additionally the First Interim Report must be reviewed and approved by December 15. The December 
15 meeting is contingent upon the December 14 meeting consisting of a quorum, and Board business being successfully conducted, and if 
so the December 15 meeting may be cancelled. 



https://ccoe‐my.sharepoint.com/personal/tmaxwell_ccoe_net/Documents/Administrative/Board CCOE/Liaison Assignments/2021 Liaison Assignments.docx 

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 

Accepted December 11, 2020 

 
 

ASSIGNMENT  LIAISON  ALTERNATE 

Access to Community College Services  Brenda Miller  Barry Morrell 

Administrative Services  Ed Conrado  Barry Morrell 

Business Services 
  Budget Subcommittee 

Jason McMullan 
Jason McMullan & Ed Conrado 

Brenda Miller 

Children’s Services & Head Start Policy Council  Jason McMullan  Brenda Miller 

Colusa County Agriculture Foundation Board  Brenda Miller & Barry Morrell  Cristy Edwards 

Special Education & SELPA Council  Ed Conrado  Jason McMullan 

Educational Services  Cristy Edwards  Jason McMullan 

Superintendent’s Salary  Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell  No Alternate 

 
 

BOARD  REPRESENTATIVE(S) 

Colusa Unified School District  Ed Conrado & Barry Morrell 

Maxwell Unified School District  Cristy Edwards 

Pierce Joint Unified School District  Brenda Miller 

Williams Unified School District  Jason McMullan 

 

Attachment D 



2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 

REVENUES 
Total Revenues 12,639,263 11,214,274 9,975,426 9,654,343 8,689,931 7,527,625 7,739,087 7,851,890 8,269,077 8,316,038 

EXPENDITURES 
Certificated Salaries 3,981,459 3,590,772 3,395,800 3,411,137 3,196,135 2,912,618 3,266,024 3,378,198 3,374,790 3,573,032 
Classified Salaries 3,380,203 3,123,750 2,897,380 2,687,090 2,460,228 2,264,625 2,215,497 2,062,340 2,205,774 2,270,710 
Employee Benefits 3,126,261 2,792,255 2,097,575 1,939,641 1,670,389 1,498,221 1,281,570 1,333,938 1,388,380 1,490,746 
Subtotal S&B 10,487,923 9,506,777 , 8,390,755 8,037,868 7,326,752 6,675,464 6,763,091 6,774,476 6,968,944 7,334,488 

Total Expenditures 12,608,236 11,257,718 9,875,226 10,248,721 8,970,656 7,933,086 8,232,848 7,954,843 7,963,896 8,308,644 

Other Sources (In & Out) 471,277 447,663 385,518 195,894 383,655 6,292 269,632 257,734 10,053 11,591 

Net Change in Fund Balance 502,304 404,219 485,718 (398,484) 102,930 (399,169) (224,129) 154,781 315,234 18,985 

PY Fund Balance 4,681,740 4,277,521 3,791,803 4,190,287 4,498,559 4,722,688 4,567,907 4,252,673 4,233,686 

CY Fund Balance 5,184,044 4,681,740 4,277,521 3,791,803 4,190,287 4,498,559 4,722,688 4,567,907 4,252,671 

% S&B of total Expenditures 83.18% 84.45% 84.97% 78.43% 81.67% 84.15% 82.15% 85.16% 87.51% 88.28% 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

REVENUES 

Budget 
Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) Original Final 

LCFF Revenue $ 2,568,424 $ 2,706,265 $ 2,669,132 $ (37,133) 
Federal revenue 1,106,484 1,666,582 1,507,718 (158,864) 
Other state revenues 3,669,921 4,140,202 3,815,357 (324,845) 
Other local revenues 4,504,638 4,674,700 4,647,056 (27,644) 

Total revenues 11,849,467 13,187,749 12,639,263 (548,486) 

EXPENDITURES 
Certificated salaries 3,744,589 4,058,889 3,981,459 77,430 
Classified salaries 3,444,400 3,507,573 3380,203 127,370 
Employee benefits 3,163,633 3,476,618 3,126,261 350,357 
Books and supplies 362,133 714,800 673,936 40,864 
Services and other operating 

expenditures 1,638,168 1,931,022 1,353,196 577,826 
Capital outlay 38,432 81,432 78,183 3,249 
Other outgo 14,998 14,998 14,998 - 

Total expenditures 12,406,353 13,785,332 12,608,236 1,177,096 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (556,886) (597,583) 31,027 628,610 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 450,703.00 523,476 471,277 (52,199) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 450,703.00 523,476 471,277 (52,199) 

•Net change in fund balances (106,183) (74,107) 502,304 576,411 

Fund balances, July 1,2019 4,681,740 4,681,740 4,681,740 

Fund balances, June 30, 2020 $ 4,575,557 $ 4,607,633 $ 5,184,044 $ 576,411 

45 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

REVENUES 

Budget 
Actual 

Valiance with 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) Original Final 

LCFF Revenue $ 2,400,261 $ 2,448,008 $ 2,708,927 $ 260,919 
Federal revenue 1,065,274 1,138,215 1,105,461 (32,754) 
Other state revenues 3,295,319 3,437,116 3,324,163 (112,953) 
Other local revenues 3,628,792 4,074,510 4,075,723 1,213 

Total revenues 10,389,646 11,097,849 11,214,274 116,425 

EXPENDITURES 
Certificated salaries 3,449,440 3,624,363 3,590,772 33,591 
Classified salaries 3,106,350 3,190,389 3,123,750 66,639 
Employee benefits 2,490,518 2,807,231 2,792,255 14,976 
Books and supplies 285,763 491,062 349,845 141,217 
Services and other operating 

expenditures 1,530,492 1,741,563 1,339,112 402,451 
Capital outlay 85,000 51,602 46,983 4,619 
Other outgo (409,524) (437,411) 15,001 (452,412) 

Total expenditures 10,538,039 11,468,799 11,257,718 211,081 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (148,393) (370,950) (43,444) 327,506 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 167,600.00 447,663 447,663 

Total other financing sources (uses) 167,600.00 447,663 447,663 

Net change in fund balances 19,207 (370,950) 404,219 775,169 

Fund balances, July 1, 2018 4,277,521 4,277,521 4,277,521 

Fund balances, June 30, 2019 $ 4,296,728 $ 3,906,571 $ 4,681,740 $ 775,169 

45 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

REVENUES 

Budget 
Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavo ra ble) Oiiginal Final 

LCFF Revenue $ 2,138,323 $ 2,137,539 $ 2,111,637 $ (25,902) 
Federal revenue 938,345 1,207,019 1,149,931 (57,088) 
Other state revenues 2,977,969 3,212,585 3,341,477 128,892 
Other local revenues 3,346,219 3,412,784 3,372,381 (40,403) 

Total revenues 9,400,856 9,969,927 9,975,426 5,499 

EXPENDITURES 
Certificated salaries 3,314,778 3,506,416 3,395,800 110,616 
Classified salaries 2,806,605 2,910,725 2,897,380 13,345 
Employee benefits 2,111,397 2,185,619 2,097,575 88,044 
Books and supplies 598,012 319,088 234,744 84,344 
Services and other operating 

expenditures 1,897,739 1,670,963 1,090,105 580,858 
Capital outlay 55,000 150,000 144,623 5,377 
Other outgo (372,154) (402,113) 14,999 (417,112) 

Total expenditures 10,411,377 10,340,698 9,875,226 465,472 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (1,010,521) (370,771) 100,200 470,971 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 167,600.00 385,518 385,518 

Total other financing sources (uses) 167,600.00 385,518 385,518 

Net change in fund balances (842,921) (370,771) 485,718 856,489 

Fund balances, July I, 2017 3,791,803 3,791,803 3,791,803 

Fund balances, June 30, 2018 $ 2,948,882 $ 3,421 032 $ 4,277,521 $ 856,489 

48 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

REVENUES 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) Original Final 

LCFF Revenue $ 2,036,864 $ 1,957,434 $ 1,992,721 $ 35,287 
Federal revenue 995,661 1,536,932 1,157,625 (379,307) 
Other state revenues 3,023,021 3,232,848 3,144,589 (88,259) 

Other local revenues 3,060,590 3,722,839 3,359,408 (363,431) 

Total revenues 9,116,136 10,450,053 9,654,343 (795,710) 

EXPENDITURES 

Certificated salaries 3,319,862 3,514,328 3,411,137 103,191 
Classified salaries 2,690,101 2,763,806 2.687.090 76,716 
Employee benefits 1,764,855 2,002,593 1,939,641 62,952 
Books and supplies 557,158 673,854 322,110 351,744 
Services and other operating 

expenditures 2,136,899 2,879,365 1,588,337 1,291,028 
Capital outlay 55,000 525,805 281,578 244,227 

Other outgo (343,012) (355,923) 18,828 (374,751) 

Total expenditures 10,180,863 12,003,828 10,248,721 1,755,107 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures (1,064,727) (1,553,775) (594,378) 959,397 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from Capital Leases 40,884 (40,884) 

Other financing uses (138,017) (138,017) 

Operating transfers in 235,548 351,874 116,326 
Operating transfers out (247,380) (17,963) 229,417 

Total other financing sources (uses) (108,965) 195,894 304,859 

Net change in fund balances (1,064,727) (1,662,740) (398,484) 1,264,256 

Fund balances, July 1, 2016 4,190,287 4,190,287 4,190,287 

Fund balances, June 30, 2017 $ 3,125,560 $ 2,527,547 $ 3,791,803 $ 1,264256 

46 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

REVENUES 

Budget 
Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) Original Final 

LCFF Revenue $ 2,013,290 $ 1,546,586 $ 1,967,279 $ 420,693 
Federal revenue 1,029,015 995,661 941,084 (54,577) 
Other state revenues 2,959,674 3,264,835 3,158,055 (106,780) 
Other local revenues 2,790,008 2,660,993 2,623,513 (37,480) 

Total revenues 8,791,987 8,468,075 8,689,931 221,856 

EXPENDITURES 

Certificated salaries 3,291,990 3,271,399 3,196,135 75,264 
Classified salaries 2,432,855 2,499,038 2,460,228 38,810 
Employee benefits 1,579,117 1,713,084 1,670,389 42,695 
Books and supplies 279,731 755,246 293,365 461,881 
Services and other operating 

expenditures 1,766,015 2,528,468 1,492,365 1,036,103 
Capital outlay 40,000 (116,885) (143,191) 26,306 
Other outgo (287,708) 17,974 1,365 16,609 

Total expenditures 9,102,000 10,668,324 8,970,656 1,697,668 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (310,013) (2,200,249) (280,725) 1,919,524 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 5,910 328,230 322,320 
Other sources 55,425 55,425 

Total other financing sources (uses) 5,910 383,655 377,745 

Net change in fund balances (310,013) (2,194,339) 102,930 2,297,269 

Fund balances, July 1, 2015 4,087,357 4,087,357 4,087,357 

Fund balances, June 30, 2016 $ 3,777,344 $ 1,893,018 $ 4,190,287 $ 2,297,269 

40 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) Original Final 

REVENUES 

LCFF Revenue $ 1,900,538 $ 1,810,994 $ 1,810,995 $ 1 
Federal revenue 966,222 965,326 965,326 
Other state revenues 2,551,664 2,863,615 2,863,615 
Other local revenues 2,246,012 1,887,688 1,887,689 1 

Total revenues 7,664,436 7,527,623 7,527,625 2 

EXPENDITURES 

Certificated salaries 3,094,031 2,912,617 2,912,618 (1) 
Classified salaries 2,254,699 2,264,622 2,264,625 (3) 
Employee benefits 1,384,030 1,498,203 1,498,221 (18) 
Books and supplies 316,488 221,265 221,271 (6) 
Services and other operating 

expenditures 1,729,584 1,270,787 1,270,760 27 
Capital outlay 25,000 50,020 50,021 (1) 
Other outgo (159,722) (284,429) (284,430) 1 

Total expenditures 8,644,110 7,933,085 7,933,086 (1) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures (979,674) (405,462) (405,461) 1 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Operating transfers in 6,292 6,292 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 6,292 6,292 

Net change in fund balances (979,674) (399,170) (399,169) 1 

Fund balances, July 1, 2014 4,498,559 4,498,559 4,498,559 

Fund balances, June 30, 2015 $ 3,518,885 $ 4,099,389 $ 4,099,390 $ 1 

43 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Budget 
Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) Original Final 

REVENUES 
LCFF sources: 

State apportionment $ 1,221,834 $ 1,418,729 $ 1,447,129 $ 28,400 
Local sources 400,820 399,823 397,576 (2,247) 

Total LCFF 1,622,654 1,818,552 1,844,705 26,153 

Federal revenue 965,736 1,011,617 920,983 (90,634) 
Other state revenues 2,721,713 2,645,630 2,751,670 106,040 
Other local revenues 2,374,664 2,532,993 2,221,729 (311,264) 

Total revenues 7,684,767 8,008,792 7,739,087 (269,705) 

EXPENDITURES 
Certificated salaries 3,244,709 3,258,266 3,266,024 (7,758) 
Classified salaries 2,101,616 2,256,512 2,215,497 41,015 
Employee benefits 1,374,739 1,386,648 1,281,570 105,078 
Books and supplies 362,665 628,624 316,863 311,761 
Services and other operating 

expenditures 1,403,195 2,197,656 1,118,154 1,079,502 
Capital outlay 27,423 44,787 34,740 10,047 
Other outgo (247,914) (272,057) - (272,057) 

Total expenditures 8,266,433 9,500,436 8,232,848 1,267,588 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (581,666) (1,491,644) (493,761) 997,883 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 435,131 742,341 (307,210) 
Operating transfers out (472,709) 472,709 

Total other financing sources (uses) 435,131 269,632 (165,499) 

Net change in fund balances (581,666) (1,056,513) (224,129) 832,384 

Fund balances, July 1, 2013 4,722,688 4,722,688 4,722,688 

Fund balances, June 30, 2014 _$ 4,141,022  $ 3,666,175  4,498,559  $ 832,384  

34 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Budget 
Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) Original Final 

REVENUES 
Revenue limit sources: 

State apportionment $ 1,153,932 $ 1,268,061 $ 1,127,673 $ (140,388) 
Local sources 389,572 400,820 424,772 23,952 

Total revenue limit 1,543,504 1,668,881 1,552,445 (116,436) 

Federal revenue 970,715 1,124,104 1,029,905 (94,199) 
Other state revenues 2,689,053 2,721,970 2,755,346 33,376 
Other local revenues 2,596,629 2,668,758 2,514,194 (154,564) 

Total revenues 7,799,901 8,183,713 7,851,890 (331,823) 

EXPENDITURES 
Certificated salaries 3,282,122 3,401,029 3,378,198 22,831 
Classified salaries 2,151,160 2,112,593 2,062,340 50,253 
Employee benefits 1,418,239 1,418,084 1,333,938 84,146 
Books and supplies 213,486 369,008 207,684 161,324 
Services and other operating 

expenditures 1,229,578 1,858,899 920,290 938,609 
Capital outlay 25,000 27,423 12,423 15,000 
Other outgo - 29,617 39,970 (10,353) 

Total expenditures 8,319,585 9,216,653 7,954,843 1,261,810 

Excess (defriency) of revenues 
over expenditures (519,684) (1,032,940) (102,953) 929,987 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 274,290 309,736 327,933 18,197 
Operating transfers out (9,028) (68,680) (70,199) (1,519) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 265,262 241,056 257,734 16,678 

Net change in fund balances (254,422) (791,884) 154,781 946,665 

Fund balances, J141 1, 2012 4,567,907 4,567,907 4,567,907 

Fund balances, June 30, 2013 $ 4,313,485 S 3,776,023 $ 4,722,688 $ 946,665 

34 



Colusa County Office of Education 

County School Service Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

REVENUES 

Budgeted Amounts 
(GAAP Basis) 

Actual 
Amounts 

(a) 
Budget to 

GAAP 

Actual 
Amounts 

Original Final 
Budgetary 

Basis Differences 
GAAP 
Basis 

Revenue limit sources $ 2,442,977 $ 1,883,376 $ 1,679,382 $ 1 $ 1,679,383 
Federal sources 1,112,398 1,308,917 1,144,454 20,710 1,165,164 
Other State sources 2,501,778 2,955,438 2,949,695 3,498 2,953,193 
Other local sources 2,100,454 2,282,171 2,377,405 93,932 2,471,337 

Total Revenues 8,157,607 8,429,902 8,150,936 118,141 8,269,077 

EXPENDITURES 

Current 
Certificated Salaries 3,627,355 3,395,532 3,347,851 26,939 3,374,790 
Classified Salaries 2,216,415 2,185,129 2,205,774 2,205,774 
Employee Benefits 1,509,653 1,444,691 1,384,302 4,078 1,388,380 
Books and Supplies 253,556 387,627 211,320 820 212,140 
Services and Other Operating Expenditures 1,112,994 1,868,399 956,001 2,174 958,175 
Capital Outlay 25,000 25,000 14,710 14,710 
Other outgo (152,530) (146,910) (190,980) 907 (190,073) 

Total Expenditures 8,592,443 9,159,468 7,928,978 34,918 7,963,896 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (434,836) (729,566) 221,958 83,223 305,181 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in 9,700 9,700 97,590 (87,537) 10,053 
Transfers out (9,700) (9,700) (33,570) 33,570 

Net Financing Sources (Uses) 64,020 (53,967) 10,053 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (434,836) (729,566) 285,978 29,256 315,234 

Fund Balance - Beginning 2,833,240 2,833,240 2,833,240 1,419,433 4,252,673 

Fund Balance - Ending $ 2,398,404 $ 2,103,674 $ 3,119,218 $ 1,448,689 $ 4,567,907 

(a) Differences are the result of the General Fund including activity of the Adult Education Fund, the Deferred Maintenance 
Fund, and the Special Reserve for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects Fund. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

-33- 



Colusa County Office of Education 

County School Service Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

REVENUES 

Budgeted Amounts 
(GAAP Basis) Actual* 

(GAAP Basis) 

Variances - 
Positive 

(Negative) 
Final 

to Actual Original Final 

Revenue limit sources $ 2,556,148 $ 2,515,488 $ 2,263,272 $ (252,216) 
Federal sources 1,543,748 1,623,032 1,560,168 (62,864) 
Other State sources 2,788,020 2,797,257 2,877,355 80,098 
Other local sources 1,705,692 1,792,733 1,615,243 (177,490) 

Total Revenues 8,593,608 8,728,510 8,316,038 (412,472) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Certificated Salaries 3,549,564 3,557,978 3,573,032 (15,054) 
Classified Salaries 2,387,276 2,345,862 2,270,710 75,152 
Employee Benefits 1,536,614 1,539,864 1,490,746 49,118 
Books and Supplies 295,099 405,648 261,633 144,015 
Services and Other Operating Expenditures 1,440,042 1,773,207 883,282 889,925 
Capital Outlay 25,000 25,000 14,710 10,290 
Other Outgo (151,001) (152,794) (185,469) 32,675 

Total Expenditures 9,082,594 9,494,765 8,308,644 1,186,121 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (488,986) (766,255) 7,394 773,649 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in 10,900 11,500 189,235 177,735 
Transfers out (10,900) (11,500) (177,644) (166,144) 
Other uses - - 

Net Financing Sources (Uses) 11,591 11,591 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (488,986) (766,255) 18,985 785,240 

Fund Balance - Beginning, As Restated 4,233,686 4,233,686 4,233,686 
Fund Balance - Ending 3,744,700 $ 3,467,431 $ 4,252,671 $ 785,240 

*Beginning July 1, 2010, the District adopted GASB No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, which redefined the definition of a special revenue fund. As a result, the Adult Education Fund activities, the 
Deferred Maintenance Fund activities and the Special Reserve for Other Than Capital Outlay Fund activities are now 
included in the County School Service Fund rather than a separate fund. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 34 - 



© James Marta & Company LLP

Comparative Analysis

• Shown below are few key comparison points between Colusa County and its neighboring counties. In terms 
of demographics and geography, Glenn County is the most comparable to Colusa County. 

• The Total Assets, Liabilities and Net Position in the table below are from the respective County Offices of 
Education June 30, 2019 Government‐Wide Financial Statements.

• The demographic information below was retrieved from the United States Census Bureau website and is 
presented as of June 30, 2019.

8

Colusa Glenn Lake Sutter Yolo Butte

Area (sq. mi.) 1,151                  1,314                  1,256                  602                     1,015                  1,636                 

Population Estimates (July 1, 2019) 21,547               28,393               64,386               96,971               220,500             219,186            

Population under 18 (%) 27.10% 26.60% 21.20% 25.80% 20.80% 20.30%

Gov't‐Wide Financial Statements

Total Assets 25,043,916$     26,358,748$     23,331,271$     41,620,222$     42,014,820$     56,715,520$    

Deferred Outflows of Resources 7,641,827         6,075,910         3,288,199         9,310,932         7,810,939         16,938,580      

Total Liabilities 17,139,971       30,424,398       16,026,370       37,348,227       48,109,516       72,847,538      

Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,095,748         1,677,915         962,495             1,668,526         800,781             2,526,192        

Total Net Position 13,450,024$     332,345$           9,630,605$       11,914,401$     915,462$           (1,719,630)$    



© James Marta & Company LLP

Comparative Statement of Activities

Colusa Glenn Lake Sutter* Yolo Butte

Program Revenues

Charges for Services 3,553,959$         3,900,859$         1,616,029$         9,786,320$         4,491,922$         9,364,660$        

Operating Grants and Contributions 11,551,512         15,600,500         12,689,908         26,733,303         29,155,933         59,811,387        

General Revenues

Property Taxes 463,755               1,617,797            2,360,115            1,518,658            7,594,759            10,482,571        

Unrestricted Federal and State Aid 2,326,778            6,276,912            2,654,202            8,631,064            3,851,966            12,770,111        

Other 680,167               1,386,027            1,458,999            2,890,509            1,776,337            3,403,927           

Total Revenues 18,576,171         28,782,095         20,779,253         49,559,854         46,870,917         95,832,656        

Expenses

Instruction 7,168,409            10,234,868         2,878,907            15,131,438         13,373,277         15,927,283        

Instruction‐related services 4,469,857            4,222,977            3,593,225            9,355,355            5,015,740            13,752,396        

Pupil Services 2,283,391            2,562,307            1,778,193            4,127,547            4,325,766            24,509,363        

General Administration 1,986,227            3,982,891            3,269,195            5,937,491            4,952,120            10,953,640        

Plant Services 864,875               458,602               353,772               1,697,019            2,037,653            2,370,282           

Ancillary and Community Services 17,154                  5,910,962            623,268               2,597,575            10,399                  17,536,709        

Other 482,310               1,390,194            7,380,839            10,772,173         17,754,243         13,883,706        

Total Expenses 17,272,223         28,762,801         19,877,399         49,618,598         47,469,198         98,933,379        

Change in Net Position 1,303,948$         19,294$               901,854$             (58,744)$              (598,281)$           (3,100,723)$       

* Excludes Business Activity

9



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, February 10, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81933072723  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
   



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 10, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – January Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the January 13, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 10, 2021, Agenda 
Page 3 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve School Accountability Report Cards (SARC) for the 2019‐20  action 

School Year 
11.1.1 Coastal Buttes 
11.1.2 S. William Abel Community School 

11.2 Approve Certifying Candidate for Supervisor of Attendance  action 
  for her LEA 

11.3 Approve 2021‐22 Year Three Funding Application for Federal Assistance  action 

11.4 Sale of CCOE Property in Williams  information 

11.5 Brown Act Change –Board Members’ Social Media Usage  information 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
2nd Interim Report 
March 10, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 

mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350    f 530.458.8054 

 

Administrative Services Update – February 2021 

 

 

Business Services completed reviews of our districts’ first interim budgets and sent letters out attesting 

to CCOE’s agreement of each of the districts’ positive certifications.  The team now pivots to working on 

completing the County Office’s second interim budget report, with actual expenditures being reported 

through January 31, and presented at the March Board meeting.  The business department continues to 

excel at normal day to day operations, including payroll, accounts payable, and district support, and is 

following and tracking upcoming budget proposals for California’s 2021-22 fiscal year. 

 

Human Resources has kept up with an ever-changing set of rules and recommendations related to the 

COVID-19 pandemic, and consistently produces up to date guidance that CCOE staff can utilize, as well 

as our districts.  HR has helped lead the way in setting up COVID testing for CCOE employees, 

coordinated with Colusa County Public Health on vaccine distributions, and made COVID-related 

materials available on our website.  This is all on top of completing normal tasks such as job postings and 

screenings, employee questions, and staying up to date on all other workplace related issues. 

 

The Food Services team has provided nutritious meals to the children of Colusa County throughout the 

pandemic, and the recent January storms and resulting power outages didn’t slow them down one bit.  

Despite having freezers and refrigerators go down, the team quickly adjusted and responded, and 

served food to all students as scheduled.  The foundations of a successful learning day begin with a 

healthy meal, and our staff has performed nothing short of outstanding in this regard. 

 

CCOE’s Facilities department keeps our infrastructure up and running and in tiptop shape.  From 

cleaning our classrooms and offices, to troubleshooting normal maintenance issues and working on 

special projects, Facilities is the backbone of our entire operation.  On top of normal repairs and 

maintenance, the team has also taken on COVID-related tasks such as classroom and office disinfections, 

and has been the point of contact with CalOES for distribution of PPE to our staff and all of our districts. 

 

The Innovative Approach to Literacy (IAL) team continues the ongoing battle against illiteracy in Colusa 

County, and has done a multitude of events to help this cause.  This includes in-person book giveaways 

across the county, as well as online reading events and activities that encourage and teach our youngest 

learners how to be proficient readers.  Keep up the good work! 

 

Our Communications & Public Relations team of one has done an amazing job in getting the word out 

about the great things CCOE does for the families and children of Colusa County.  The inspiring and fun 

social media posts highlight all of the great things that our organization does, and provides a window to 

those who have asked themselves, “what does the county office of education actually do?”  CCOE 

benefits greatly from these articles and promotions, and is stronger for it. 

 

 



  6.3 

CCOE - Children’s Services                                           

Vicki Markss, Director           

Report for CCOE Board of Education 

Month:  January/February 2021 

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission. 
 Parent Policy Council meeting. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Monthly meetings with Office of Head Start Program Specialist and Region 8 Cluster. 
 Cabinet meeting. 
 Office Team meetings. 
 Plan and conduct annual Self-Assessment. 
 Social Emotional Learning Community of Practice with Yolo County Office of Ed. 
 Fierce Leadership.  
 NHSA Director’s Leadership Academy virtual cohort. 
 Employee One-on-One meetings for goal planning. 
 Advertise and interview for 7 vacant positions. Plan for Division Director retirement. 
 Compassionate Systems Workshop.  
 State and Federal Webinars on navigating through Covid-19. 
 Virtual training with Galen Emanuele:  Navigating Change and Reducing Burnout. 
 Child Plus data systems training. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 Head Start Quality Improvement funding:  Planning to complete funded projects. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 

School Readiness: 

 Following strict health and safety protocols for open/reopening plan and modifying 
classrooms as needed. 

 Providing virtual parenting and educational learning concepts through Learning Genie 
Family Engagement app. To promote distance learning experiences. 

 Footsteps2Brilliance and Clever Kids University programs. 
 Implemented Coaching Plan system to support teachers. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 “It Takes a Village” Publication with community agencies. 



  Educational Services Board Report 

January and February 2021 

  

 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 

 Students at S. William Abel Academy have been busy since they returned to school on January 11th, 

2021. The students have been studying the importance of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr and his 

contributions to the Civil Rights Movement. The SWAA students will also be learning about civic 

responsibilities and how to utilize them to become positive/responsible citizens in the community. 

 Along with Mr. Kirkman, the students placed a duck decoy, which the class built last year, in a rice field 

along Highway 20. 

Colusa County Adult School 

 The Colusa County Adult School is offering its very first Certified Nursing Assistant Program currently.  

The theory portion of the program will be completed by February 1st, and then clinicals at the Colusa 

Medical Center will start immediately after. 

 20 cadets are currently participating in the Basic Wildland Fire Academy. 

 

Farm to School 

 The Farm to School Plant Sale has changed to a grow-to-order plant sale also.  Plants will still be 

available for those that do not preorder. Check out the 2021 Plant Sale on the CCOE website. 

 Students harvested cauliflower from the F2S Garden and recently made cauliflower tacos. 

 Broccoli was harvested on January 27th and given to cafeteria staff to use in student meals. 

 The Farm to School Program is applying for the CDFA Innovation Tier I Grant. 

 

Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 

 Regular and Advisory Zoom meetings have taken place monthly to discuss how county offices are 

working with the districts in providing technical assistance during these unprecedented times. Forecast 5 

licenses, a data software program, have been purchased by the Geo Lead for each county office as a tool 

that offers a faster, easier, more flexible, and versatile alternative to traditional spreadsheet-based 

methods to increase operational efficiency and strengthen decision-making processes. There is a series 

of three mandatory trainings for COEs.   

 A Small County Office of Education Work Group is being put together to support the unique needs of 

small COEs. One on one meetings with the consultant have been scheduled and Colusa COE will be 

meeting on 2/5/21.  

 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 

 The CCOE CSI grant application was submitted on 1/20/21 and approved by CDE five days later. The 

grant is not a large amount; however, the county office of education plays a major role in providing 

technical assistance and support to the LEAs that serve schools that meet the criteria for CSI. Due to the 

pandemic, any school identified for CSI last school year, rolled over into this year. Williams Upper 

Elementary School was identified for CSI due to low state test scores in math and English language arts. 

Educational Services has been working with the Williams USD administrations to build capacity in the 

areas of systems alignment, data review, and utilizing tools to improve student performance.   

 

 

 



Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

 Due to the pandemic, districts that were identified for DA last school year, rolled over into the current 

year.  Williams USD continued to obtain support from Educational Services.  Technical assistance is 

provided to all districts regardless of whether they were identified or DA or not.  

 

Health Education Framework 

 The Health Education Framework consortia with Yolo and Yuba COEs continue to provide professional 

development to the Tri-county schools.  The primary purpose of the Framework is to provide guidance 

to teachers of health education that will assist them in addressing significant changes to health education 

instruction. The CA Health Education Framework Rollout Project is a statewide effort to provide 

professional learning and resources to support the implementation of the Framework.  February 2nd will 

be the next training.  

 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

 CCSESA has been providing trainings to the COEs to assist county office personnel  in understanding 

the conceptual and aspirational foundations of the Local Control Funding Formula, the role the LCAP 

plays within our system of accountability, understand the nuanced role of COE in supporting the LCAP 

development process and in reviewing the document, identify  the elements/ sections  of the template 

and how they combine to create a cohesive plan, and to become familiar with  additional resources for 

deeper understanding.     

 The CDE is also hosting a series of eight trainings for LEAs related to the development of the 2021–22 

Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP).  

 Meetings have been scheduled with district superintendents in February to review the new LCAP and 

Annual Update templates. Educational Services and SELPA will be providing guidance on the purpose 

and process of the LCAP. The goal is to impact the quality of the programs for all students; especially 

those that have been underserved.  

 

North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 

 The partnership with Yolo and Yuba COEs continues with a series of four trainings on Educational and 

Racial Equity.  The purpose of the sessions is to build capacity of educational leaders in leading for 

educational and racial equity through taking a deep dive into concepts learned as well as develop a racial 

equity impact action plan through collaboration with county colleagues.  

 

School Improvement Grant (SIG) 

 This is the last year for SIG grant funding for Educational services and external partnership support for 

the Williams Elementary school.  A meeting took place on 1/25/21 with CDE and WUSD to discuss 

student progress and performance and full implementation of the Intervention Model for the 2020–21 

school year. Successes and challenges, the impact of expenditures on effective program implementation 

as measured by student performance and progress, and carryover funds were discussed.   

 

System of Support Expanded Learning Program (After School Programs) (SSELP) 

 Technical assistance continues for the afterschool programs as needed and upon request.  Professional 

development is being provided to the coordinators and their instructors as well. 

 

PREVENTION SERVICES 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 

 Second Step services are being provided both virtually and face to face for Preschool through 3rd grades 

at Williams Elementary.   During the first quarter, 424 students were provided services (see chart 



below). Teachers of students that participate in the program have expressed improved student behavior  

  
 

Foster Youth 

 The Title IV-E quarter 2 report has been submitted to the DHHS. The expenditure report for July-Dec. 

2020 has also been completed and will be submitted before January 31, 2021.  

 The Foster Youth program will host Dr. Pedro Nava on January 28, 2021 to present on Parent 

Engagement through a community cultural framework. 

 

Homeless/McKinney-Vento  

 The application for the Education for Homeless Children and Youth 3-year grant was submitted on 

January 19, 2021. The expenditure report for quarter 2 has also been finalized and will be submitted by 

January 31, 2021.  

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 

 Alejandra has been attending trainings to familiarizer herself with TUPE grants, as well as policies and 

data pertaining to tobacco use and available curriculums. So far, Alejandra has attended the Stanford 

Tobacco Prevention Education Toolkit and Catch my Breath. Alejandra has also been attending TUPE 

Coordinator meetings in order to tough basis with key TUPE grant contacts.  

 

Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

 Alejandra has been in close contact with Deputy Valdivia from the Sheriff’s Department to strategize 

and create an action plan to better serve the community regarding tobacco use. They will both be joining 

Tobacco education committees through the Department of Public Health to discuss retail enforcement.  

 The quarter 2 claims were submitted to the DOJ for reimbursement. Alejandra plans to complete a 

budget modification in the near future, so that the SRO can participate in more outreach. Alejandra has 

been attending working groups through the DOJ to become familiar with the grant and how other 

counties have worked to continue providing tobacco enforcement through COVID-19. 



  6.5 
Colusa County Office of Education 

SELPA/Special Ed Board Report 
February 10, 2021 

 
Special Ed Report 

1. Staffing- we are currently fully staffed.  
 

2. Staff has continued to work diligently at meeting the needs of our 
Special Education students during this time. There is both in-person 
instruction and distance learning occurring on all sites.   
 

3. Para Educators continue to complete monthly training courses on 
Special Education topics through our distance learning platform, 
Exceptional Child. 
 

4. Office staff have successfully transitioned all employee handbooks to 
a Padlet online. 
 

5. The Program Specialists are developing PLC’s to target specific 
groups of staff and topics that are relevant to them. The first meetings 
will cover our Unique/SANDI curriculum and IEP writing. The 
materials covered during these meetings will eventually lead to a 
Teacher Resource Padlet/webpage.  
 

6. The new Moderate/Severe classroom at Coastal Buttes is up a 
running. There are 3 students and the transitions have gone well. 
Staff have currently developed a work group to go through a Strategic 
Implementation Guide to update the vision, goals, and student 
handbooks for Coastal Buttes.  
 

CCOE SELPA 

1. Executive Committee meeting schedule for end of February. We will 
be reviewing staffing, student numbers, and benefits of being in 
SELPA.  

STATE SELPA 

1. Next State SELPA is being held in March. There is no February 
meeting due to ACSA conference. 



   6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report February 10, 2020 

 

We have been moving forward with EduNet installations.  Williams has replaced the 
10watt LTE radios on top of the Williams water tower with the 20watt radios.  We have 
also replaced their existing point to point uplink with a private licensed point to point 
connection for additional bandwidth. WUSD is now moving out of a test pilot role and 
into a production mode.  They plan to hand out student devices in the coming weeks. 
 
The EduNet equipment has been installed on the Maxwell water tower as well.  We are 
currently in the process of programming their LTE routers to get them ready for student 
use.   
 
Both Colusa and Arbuckle have scheduled LTE installations in the coming weeks as the 
weather permits.  Configuration of their routers will begin once the equipment is 
deployed. 
 
We have completed our MOU with Yuba Community College District and partnered with 
them to share and leverage their LTE spectrum in the areas of Stonyford and Lodoga.  
We are working on plans for backhaul to supply the connection. 
 
The recent power outages from storm damage caused some server disruptions.  We 
lost a hard drive in a server at the CCOE Education Village.  We also had an operating 
system corruption on a server at our data center.  Both issues have been resolved. 
 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting January 13, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Aaron Heinz, Vicki Markss, 

Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Chuck Wayman, 
Michael West, and Karisa Williams 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m. in the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the 
Pledge of Allegiance, and made the following announcements. 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
No letters or communications. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West reported on his participation in Zoom meetings with many 
organizations and staff regarding health and safety and preparation and 
planning.  Michael spoke about reviews from several District 
Superintendents on their school openings.  He added that because the 
County is in the State’s Purple Tier, the schools’ opening statuses will 
remain the same as before the lockdown.  Michael provided a COVID 19 
update, saying that Governor Gavin Newsom changed the vaccine 
standard’s first release to include individuals 65 years‐old and older, and 
that the greater Sacramento region was removed from the lockdown 
yesterday because ICU availability has increased and new cases did not 
surge high as the California Department of Public Health estimated.  

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
January 13, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

Michael added that he is still working closely with the Colusa County 
Public Health Office.  Michael reviewed the Governor’s projected Budget 
that he said included a hint of Federal funding and support, and a chance 
to see significant changes to Special Education and Head Start/State Pre‐
School programs.  Michael reviewed the greater than expected revenues 
that were generated since the last budget update and types of 
Proposition 98 spending (K‐12 and Community Colleges) that included 
funds for Summer School and Extra Learning Time, the Teacher 
Development Program, Student Anxiety and Depression programs, and 
additional monies for Special Education.  He said that the budget includes 
an increase in ADA spending of $2,000 per student.  He added that 
deferrals would slowly go away, and that the CalPERS/STRS employer 
contribution rates will be reduced by using other previously set aside 
monies to pay down the shortfall.  Michael said that the ADA for 2020‐21 
was held‐harmless, and the 2021‐22 budget includes a 3.84% COLA, 
which previously was expected to be zero.  Aaron Heinz clarified that 
deferrals happening between now and June are still in play, but that the 
State is buying down next year’s deferrals, with a small amount of 
deferrals ($3 billion) happening between June 2022 to July 2022, and he 
emphasized the importance of CalPERS/STRS buy downs in the coming 
years.  Michael spoke about Federal monies that were included in the 
budget, and he said that CCSESA is advocating full funding for Special 
Education, and that because of upcoming changes to the Federal 
Government climate he is hopeful that we will see increases to Special 
Education and Head Start funding. Overall, he said that he is optimistic 
for the 2020‐21 budget, and he is happy to report that there will be no 
planned staff reductions in the upcoming budget year.  Michael reported 
that Communications Director Jennifer Jelavich participated in a 
nationwide presentation of CCOE’s early literacy outreach programs (F2B 
and IAL), which included about 2,100 participants from around the world.  
Michael reported on Colusa County vaccine outreach efforts, saying that 
the Education Village in Williams hosted CCPHO’s first round of 
vaccinations for front line workers, and the second shot should take place 
approximately 28 days later.  He also mentioned that so far participation 
rates have been about 50%, and if that trend continues then education 
may be in line to receive their vaccinations earlier than anticipated.  
Michael reviewed the Governor’s plan to reopen, which is an incentive 
program (or a grant) for districts to open schools.  He said that these 
monies come with many challenges including restrictions levied on school 
districts, Cal‐OSHA protocols that may not work in the education 
environment, and monies provided for surveillance testing that would 
not be enough to meet the Governor’s criteria.  Currently, expectations 
of the grant program are that it is not feasible for most districts; and as a 
result, many districts have indicated that they will pass on the program. 
 



Colusa County Board of Education 
January 13, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

Discussion was held on the possibility of emergency passage of parts of 
the State budget prior to its normal passage timeframe, which Michael 
said is uncertain at this time. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No December Meeting 
Michael West reported that he will meet with the District Superintendents 
next Wednesday to discuss many items including safe school operation 
and next steps to plan for normalization of education. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No Board President’s Report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Brenda Miller/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion 
carried four ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), one 
absent (Jason McMullan), and zero noes to approve the following Consent Agenda item: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the December 11, 2020, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that he was invited to a Woodland Community College 
strategic planning meeting to focus on the educational needs of Colusa County, 
and that YCCD is still eager to work with CCOE’s technology team on utilizing the 
spectrum that the district controls and making it work for all of Colusa County. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported that work was finished on the Village MPR audio visual 
upgrade and he invited the Board to visit the Village to tour Farm to School 
improvements. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu Espinoza reported that she sent email invitations to District 
Superintendents to meet and discuss, among other things, an updated schedule 
of trainings.  Maria said that she will attend a CCSESA training next week, and 
she should have a template from the State prior to her meeting with the 
superintendents. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
January 13, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Project Director Karisa Williams reported on 
grant activities since the last Board meeting including distribution of literacy bags 
during the City of Williams Drive Through Santa event, and work with FBLA 
students to place IAL stickers on 3,500 books that were distributed in December.  
Future activities include hosting of an F2B training for WUSD staff, providing 
math training for Impact Day Care Providers, and upcoming Wednesday Reads 
that will focus on kindness.  Karisa reported on an IAL meeting this morning, 
during which the group reviewed strategic goals with Dr. Simon Earle.  Aaron 
Heinz added that Dr. Earle is the Federal IAL Program Director in Washington DC, 
and he will use CCOE’s IAL template to present progress reports. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Salary as a Percentage of Budget Discussion 

Aaron Heinz presented a ten‐year history of CCOE revenues and expenditures, 
which included a percent of salary and benefit expenditure analysis, and a 
comparative statement of activities featured in the November audit report.  
Discussion was held on the current year salary percent of budget (84%), on 
Michael West’s beginning date with CCOE (2015) and the spending trend prior to 
his tenure, on staying transparent, on the CalPERS/STRS effect on upcoming 
budgets, and on a request that the Board be informed of any new positions to be 
funded out of the general fund (not categorical) in the future, which Aaron said 
he will do. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

Sale of CCOE Property in Williams 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
February 10, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 4:48 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

ADA  Average Daily Attendance 

CalOSHA  California Occupational Safety and Health Act 

CalPERS  California Public Employees Retirement System ‐ Also known as PERS

CalSTRS  California State Teachers Retirement System 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

COLA  Cost of Living Adjustment 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

DC  District of Columbia 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

FBLA  Future Business Leaders of America 

IAL  Innovative Approach to Literacy 

ICU  Intensive Care Unit 

MPR  Muli‐Purpose Room 

Village  Colusa County Office of Education's Education Village in Williams, CA 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

YCCD  Yuba Community College District 

 



Yuba Community College District 
425 Plumas Blvd., Suite 200 

Yuba City, CA 95991 www.yccd.edu 

Memorandum of Understanding Between Yuba Community College (YCCD) and 
Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE) MOU 

1. This MOU shall become effective as of October 1, 2020 and shall remain in 
 

2. YCCD will provide CCOE use of its EBS LTE Spectrum in the Stonyford, 
Lodoga, and Leesville populated regions within Colusa County for the use of 
Educational Distance Learning Opportunities. 

3. YCCD and CCOE will enter a zero-cost partnership to endeavor to share and 

content to students. 

4. CCOE will share the use of its deployed LTE Educational equipment in the 

long as it remains at zero cost to CCOE. YCCD will furnish any LTE Routers 
or devices that are needed to leverage the CCOE connection. 

5. CCOE will assist YCCD with the implementation of an LTE deployment in 

recommendations, and guidance. 

6. CCOE and YCCD will notify each other of placement of any new radios and or 
antennas in this area before turning on equipment to help communicate new 
service and eliminate potential conflicts. 

7. Neither party shall commercialize to the public or other agencies through the 
use established in this agreement. 

8. CCOE and YCCD shall hold each other harmless for liability, claims, actions, 
costs, damages, or other losses of any kind. 

 
YCCD Representative Signature 

 
CCOE Representative Signature 

 
YCCD Representative Printed Name 

 
CCOE Representative Printed Name 

 
Date 

 
Date 

 



���������	�
���������������
���������	�����
��
 ���������
� !"
#	�� !"
#	�

$$
"	�����
%�����
 �����"	�����
%�����
 �����&'()*&'&'
+,-..�
/,,.0���12�2�3
4�5.��
6��7
%�
8�������
9
	:
���;
����<
�=���
��;		�
��
"���:	����
��
��>�����
��
�����
���
�	
?�����;
�
��;		�
 ��	����������
!�?	��
"���
@� !"AB�;�
� !"
�	������
��:	����	�
��	��
�;��	�����	�
���
?��:	�����
	:
���;
"���:	����
?�����
��;		�B
C����
�;�
�	���
"	���	�
8������
8	����
@�"88A
���
�	���
�������	���
��������
@�D �A
���
��>�����
�	
?��?���
��	���
"	���	�
���
 ��	����������
����
@�" �A<
�;��;
���������
;	�
�;��
������
�	
���
������
��;		�E�?���:��
�	���
:	�
���
?�?���<
���;
�?���:��
����=�����
�	
�������
�����
����	���
?��	������B
 �����	�����<
����
��?	����
��
��
�" �
��
�	
��
�	��������
���;
����
��?	����
��
�;�
� !"B8	�
	��
��:	����	�
��	��
� !"
��>��������<
���
�;�
"���:	����
��?������
	:
D������	�
@"�DA
� !"
���
?���
��
;��?�FGG���B���B��B�	=G��G��G��GB8	�
	��
��:	����	�
��	��
�;�
�"88
	�
�" �<
���
�;�
"�D
�"88
���
?���
��
;��?�FGG���B���B��B�	=G:�G��G��GB8	�
������	���
��:	����	�
��	��
�;�
��;		�<
?������G���������
���
�	�����
�����
�;	���
�	�����
�;�
��;		�
?�����?��
	�
�;�
��������
	::���BH���I0���

+,-..�
/,,.0���12�2�3
4�5.��
6��74�5.���7
J�2�K
H���
L�.M
�-�
&'()*&'&'
+,-..�
N���6��2L.��2�
H�5���M���
.L
O70,��2.�



��������	�
��������������������������������������������� !�"#�$%� �&'%%($�)��*(+,
����-�������������.���/����0�%�1'($%��$����#� ��(�*�%��%## � #��%(*�#��%2(�"03�0�%�1'($%�4(5���6(��%�2%%�$788*9:�*(:��:6#;8*�%�9'($%8�%2�%��#�%���$��**�%�#�� ���<#�+�%�#���5#'%�%2�$�$�2## ��*��#+����$#�$�#<�%2(�$�2## �%#�%2(�*�$%���%���*�%2(��#'�%,:�=�(��<���  ,!�0�%�1'($%��$���*,��+���$,$%(+�%2�%���#;�*($��(�#�%$�<#�����#'�%�5� �%,�>(:6:!�%($%�*�%�!(��#  +(�%!�2�62�$�2## �6��*'�%($!�*�#�#'%$!��#'�$(�(��#  +(�%$!�$%�<<��6!���*�*�%���(6��*��6�3�6 �$2� (���(�$?:
@2(�"� �<#�����=�2## �0�$25#��*�>0�$25#��*?�2%%�$788444:��$�2## *�$25#��*:#�68��(< (�%$�"� �<#����A$��(4����#'�%�5� �%,���*��#�%��'#'$��+��#;(+(�%�$,$%(+���*���#;�*($��<#�+�%�#���5#'%�2#4�B3)$���*�$�2## $���(�+((%��6�%2(��((*$�#<�"� �<#����A$�*�;(�$(�$%'*(�%��#�' �%�#�:�@2(�0�$25#��*��#�%���$��(�#�%$�%2�%�*�$� �,�%2(��(�<#�+���(�#<B3)$!�$�2## $!���*�$%'*(�%�6�#'�$�#����$(%�#<�$%�%(���*� #�� �+(�$'�($�%#��$$�$%�����*(�%�<,��6�$%�(�6%2$!��2�  (�6($!���*���(�$�����((*�#<��+��#;(+(�%:

�/����C����������/����C���������



�����������	�
��
����������
������	�
��
����������
��������
�����������
������������������������������������������������ �!�����������
�����
���"�	�
��
����������
����������������"����������"���������������
�"������������"����
����
����#���"���
���������� �$�����������
����������������������������������
���������������������
�������%����
�������������������������� �!�������������#������������
���������
��&������
��������"���������'��������
����(������"����������� ����#����������#����������������������������������������
��������������
���#��
������"�#��
����
��
�������
�)�������
�����������#
������
�������������������������������
������������
����(���� ���	�
��
�������*��������������#���+�������������
����#
������������
���
�������������
�������
��������������������
�
�������(���� �!����������������"�������
�
������(�����
������
�����������������
�����#
�(��������������%�������������� �!���������������������
��������*�,��'��-�
������������*����./*�
���0������������������
��� 	�
��
�������������
�����""���
��
�������"������������
����������������
������
������"�������������� �1
������+�������������"�����"������������������
��
��������
������*��������*2���*�
����
�
�� �!��������������������������������
����
����������3�������(���
��������
����
���
������
����������� �!����������������
�������������������&���������
���""��������
���������
������*�������
�������(�������#��
����
��
�������
�)�������
����
�� !�����
""�
��	�
��
����������������(���������������
������������
#�����
����(�#��������������
������� �4
����"�����������#������������
��������������
������
�����
""�����������(���������������
������������������������������ �/��
�������*�	�
��
����������
""��������
����������
�������
��������������������*�����
#��
�����
�����
������"��������������������������������
��������
��������#
�(������������������� 	�
��
����������
�����566�2
��������� *���� ��������
��*�	��67689�78:;�4����<�7:;�59:��:7;�=�
��<������
����
����>���� ����
?@ABCDB�EAF@GHCBI@A�JKDL@@M�NOCG�PQPQRPQPST
?@ABCDB?@ABCDB
UV@WB�XLIY�KDL@@MUV@WB�XLIY�KDL@@MZIYBGIDB�?@ABCDB�EAF@GHCBI@A�JKDL@@M�NOCG�PQPQRPQPSTZIYBGIDB�[CHO 	���
�	�����$""�����"�=��
����



��������	
�� ������������������������� �������� �!"#	$�%�&����'' ()�!"*��+�,-�".�
'��� ))),��+�,-�"�/���%�0���$/��1�2��	$�����3�/���%�4�$��5656756589�/���%��$	� :+�!"���;<""�!�=��>�(?������ �@@���AB<A�"��C",D�C"�,�=0��EF���$��F�G��  �����(!D�:�D�@@�H������������	
�� ����H��I������/��$% :��A��!� �?(�-D�=!!",�C<J�A�-",�CJ������K><��"�+-#	$�%�&����'' !J������><��"�+-*��+�,-�".�
'��� ))),��+�,-�"0����ELM�'���/�L�/���%30M�9�0��� �NI��NN�I�N��



����������	�
������������������������������������������� ����!�������"����#$#$%#$#&'()*�+,-.�/0�12345*6*7�897�4*97/9:�;28<7�844<2=85�29�>*;<?8<@�ABC�DBDAE�FGH���I�J�KLMHHN�.280685�O?66*0�,187*3@�/0�8�PQAD�+4*1/85�R**70�01)225�0*<=/9:�06?7*960�S/6)�0*=*<*�9**70E�()*�3/00/29�897�:285�2T�.280685�O?66*0�,187*3@�/0�4<2=/7*�T2<�9**702T�6)*�1)/57�?0/9:�8�T?55�1296/9??3�2T�*7?186/29855@�;*9*T/1/85�0*<=/1*0E�U?<�0*<=/1*0�8<*�7*0/:9*7�62�0?442<6�6)*�<*/96*:<86/29�/962�6)*�/97/=/7?85�1)/57V0�5*806<*06</16/=*�*9=/<293*96E�()/0�S/55�211?<�;@�4<2=/7/9:�89�/97/=/7?85/W*7�*7?186/29�62�T/6�6)*�?9/X?*�9**70�897�0Y/550�2T�2?<�06?7*960E�Z*�;*5/*=*�/9�;?/57/9:�29�6)*/9)*<*96�<*0/5/*91@�S/6)�*81)�1)/57�?0/9:�8�123;/986/29�2T�;*)8=/2<85�897�021/85[*326/2985�*=/7*91*�;80*7�4<816/1*0�S)/5*�7*=*524/9:�/97/=/7?85�06<*9:6)0�897�0Y/550E�,6�.280685�O?66*0C�06?7*960�S/55�;*�*\420*7�62�<*0*8<1)�;80*7�1?<</1?5?3�897�800*003*960�6)86�S/55�800/06�/9�7*=*524/9:�8187*3/1�0Y/550E�()*�7*=*5243*96�2T�6)*0*8187*3/1�0Y/550�8<*�=/685�62�6)*�<*/96*:<86/29�;81Y�62�6)*�06?7*96V0�)23*�01)2250E�()*0*�S/55�/915?7*�+2978@�+@06*3C�]9/X?*�̂*8<9/9:�+@06*3C�-*98/00891*�>52S_̀BC�+,RabC�897�>22606*40�62�O</55/891*E�.280685�O?66*0�S/55�8502�2TT*<�8�=8</*6@�2T�*9</1)3*96�816/=/6/*0�62�*9)891*�5*8<9/9:�T2<�6)*�06?7*960E�c8</2?0�*\4*<60�/9�6)*�T/*57�T<23�6)*�0?<<2?97/9:�8<*8�S/55�6*81),<6C�+1/*91*C�d?0/1C�897�P8<86*E�()*�01/*91*�1?<</1?5?3�S/55�/915?7*�389@�)8970�29�4<2e*160�5/Y*�:8<7*9/9:�897�38/968/9/9:�8�:<**9�)2?0*E�()*0*�*9</1)3*96816/=/6/*0�S/55�?6/5/W/9:�0*=*<85�7/TT*<*96�5*8<9/9:�32785/6/*0C�S)/5*�8502�S2<Y/9:�29�;*)8=/2<85�897�021/85[*326/2985�:2850E�()*�068TT�86�.280685�O?66*0�S/55�S2<Y�1520*5@�S/6)�48<*960�62�*068;5/0)�8�5/9Y�;*6S**9�01)225�897�)23*E�f8<6�2T�6)/0�S/55�;*�3296)5@�6<8/9/9:0�S)*<*�48<*960�897�068TT:*6�62�S2<Y�62:*6)*<�29�06<86*:/*0�)2S�62�)*54�6)*/<�1)/57E�b9�877/6/29C�.280685�O?66*0�068TT�S/55�068@�/9�12906896�1296816�S/6)�)23*�01)2250C�12558;2<86/9:�897�45899/9:T2<�6)*�6/3*�S)*9�6)*�06?7*96�/0�<*87@�62�6<890/6/29�;81Y�62�6)*�)23*�01)225E�gh��hHi�K���	j	i��f<2=/7*�T2<�6)*�/97/=/7?85�9**70�2T�6)*�1)/57�?0/9:�8�T?55�1296/9??3�2T�*7?186/29855@�;*9*T/1/85�0*<=/1*0E�U?<�0*<=/1*0�8<*�7*0/:9*7�62�0?442<6�6)*�<*/96*:<86/29�/962�6)*/97/=/7?85�1)/57V0�5*806�<*06</16/=*�*9=/<293*96E�kH�Nf<2=/7/9:�/97/=/7?85/W*7�*7?186/29�62�06?7*960�S/6)�?9/X?*�9**70�897�0Y/550E�Z*�;*5/*=*�/9�;?/57/9:�29�6)*�/9)*<*96�<*0/5/*91@�S/6)/9�*81)�1)/57�?0/9:�8�123;/986/29�2T;*)8=/2<85�897�021/85�*326/2985�*=/7*91*�;80*7�4<816/1*0�S)/5*�7*=*524/9:�/97/=/7?85�06<*9:6)0�897�0Y/550E�



����������	�
�������������������������������� !"#�$%&'()�*�+���,&--&.(/0�(/,&%12+(&/�%�-�'2/+�+&�+��� +2+��$%(&%(+34�52*(6�78%(&%(+3�9:4;�0%���+&�.�(6��+�26��%*�2%��2$$%&$%(2+�-3�2**(0/�)�2/)�,<--3�6%�)�/+(2-�)�(/�+���*<=>�6+�2%�2�2/)�,&%�+���$<$(-*�+��3�2%��+�26�(/0?8<$(-*��2'��266�**�+&�*+2/)2%)*@2-(0/�)�(/*+%<6+(&/2-�12+�%(2-*?�2/) 6�&&-�,26(-(+(�*�2%��12(/+2(/�)�(/�0&&)�%�$2(%A���B���C��D�E���F� A���B��� ��B��FGHIJKGHIL ��B��FGHILKGHGH ��B��F�GHGHKGHGI M��������GHGHKGHGIN(+��O<--�#%�)�/+(2- 9 9 PN(+�&<+�O<--�#%�)�/+(2- Q Q Q��26��%*���26�(/0�R<+*()�� <=>�6+�!%�2�&,�#&1$�+�/6��7.(+��,<--�6%�)�/+(2-: Q Q Q



����������	�
�������������������������������������������������� ���� ��!"!! #"!! $"!!!"!!"%#"!
#"%$"!$"%
&"!&"% '()*+(,-�./0+�1233�4,(5(60/)3'()*+(,-�./0+720�1233�4,(5(60/)3'()*+(,-�'()*+/68�920-/5(�:2;<(*0�=,()�7>�47?@(0(6*(

A������ � BCDEFBCDG BCDGFBCBC BCBCFBCBDH/-)--/86?(60-�7>�'()*+(,-�7>�I683/-+�J(),6(,- ! ! !'70)3�'()*+(,�H/-)--/86?(60-K ! ! !L)*)60�'()*+(,�M7-/0/76- ! ! !



����������	�
����������������������������������������� ���!�"������#�����������$$�%�"&����' ����( ��$�')�$���$��!� ���*������������' �� ������%��$�+�$,��!"-�'������,���!%�������!#,���'.�/�0���$�0��' ��������������������'$!%���� ���!�"������������������������0��' �������1��$�� �2�������.�3456789:�;4<<=>?9:�@A5765B76789�CD�E=F8BCCGH�5>I�J8K=<�L>H8<4?87C>56�M58=<756H�NO?KCC6�P=5<�QRQRSQRQTUV������%����� ����( �' �� ��%����(����'�$$�'��%��W��!��&�XYXZ
XYZ[\XYZ] XYZ]\XYXY XYXY\XYXZẐ.YŶ._

Y.YY._
Z.Y ������������������0��' �������1��$�� �2�������0���$�0��' �����������������/�̀'����0��' ���a��������

O4Bb=?8 E=F8BCCGH�5>I�J8K=<�L>H8<4?87C>56�M58=<756Hc9=5<�CD�@ICd87C> e<Cf�MCH8g=?=>8@ICd87C>h i=<?=>8�O84I=>8H�j5?G7>kJl>�@HH7k>=I�;Cd9m��%���n2���!���o��� p�� �+���#�'���'��������%������+������������m��%������%�2���!����o���,�1q�'��a�� ���$������%����%%�����,���!%����� �+���''�������� ���������%�#��%���q�"��)�������� ����%�����'�. V�� Y.YY�r



����������	�
����������������������������������� ��!���"�#��"�� ���$�%&'(()�*+&,),-.�/(01,-,(02�+01�3)+0041�5678(94640-2

%:;<4&- =4>-;((?2�+01�@-'48�502-8:&-,(0+)�A+-48,+)2B.4+8�(C�D1(7-,(0 *8(6�A(2-E4&40-D1(7-,(0F 348&40-�%-:140-2�G+&?,0H@I0�D22,H041�/(7.J����K���L� M��������N�L�O�L���"P��� ��!��"��!���!��O�"�J����K���L�Q�RS�L��T�����!��!���! ��!��  ����!Q���� �!��������LL������������������ �N�� ���S�U��V��O"�K�����"� ���"�L�$ W�� X$XX�YZL��!L� M��������N�L�O�L���"P��� ��!��"��!���!��O�"�ZL��!L�Q��! ��!��  ����!Q���� �!���������LL����������������� �N�� ���S�U��V��O"�K�����"� ���"�L�$ W�� X$XX�Y[����"\]Z�L���ZL��!L� M��������N�L�O�L���"P��� ��!��"��!���!��O�"�[����"\]Z�L����ZL��!L���! ��!��  ����!Q���� �!��������LL������������������ �N�� ���S�U��V��O"�K�����"� ���"�L�$ W�� X$XX�Y�̂"��P!�_�!P��P� ��� X$XX�Y[����� M��������N�L�O�L���"P��� ��!��"��!���!��O�"�[�������! ��!��  ����!Q���� �!���������LL����������������� �N�� ���S�U��V��O"�K�����"� ���"�L�$ W�� X$XX�Y�̀������! T�"O�"K�!P��"�� M��������N�L�O�L���"P��� ��!��"��!���!��O�"�̀�������! �T�"O�"K�!P��"����! ��!��  ����!Q���� �!��������LL������������������ �N�� ���S�U��V��O"�K�����"� ���"�L�$ W�� X$X�YZL��!L��_�UR#NK��ab"� ���c]def ��� ��� X$X�Y
g���!P��O�����R �L����!�̀����P�����"�������b�� �ch$icY� ������"�N��"��������"��������!�L����"\�O"�K�N����L�!��"�L���!��! � ���P!�������$�j�����"�N��"���!L�� ����������O�����O"�!����! �����������V���!�U��� �!P�kl�����U�LV���! �����������V���!�U��� �!P��l����!�"��!�!PQ�L����"��K����"��� �"���]�N� ��"��N�����m�" ����������"��!�"� ��O"�K��\�U"������"��!P�Q���N��! �U����� ��"���"����� ���! �������"��������!�U��� �!P��kQ��Q�nQ�R��! �̂$�o!L��"�N��"���"��O�!���m� Q��������"����"���!P������ �U��S�KN��"\$�j������!�\�oOO�L������N���L�����!�N��L���  "����!P�L�KN���!L�������������K�! ����l�"�N��"��! �K��!��!�!L�����N"��� � �U\���������������!�\J��!��!�!L���! �oN�"����!�n�N�"�K�!�$�����U��� �!P�������!����!��"��"��! ��S��"��"�_Rn���P���!P��!������ $



����������	�
��������������������������������������� !"#$%&�'()�*�!������+��������������,-.$/$'0�1%#2).'$3%�433/�5,146�7-'-�538�)9:$;-/)%'6<�283;$7)�'()�=3//3>$%&?@)')8A$%-'$3%�3=�8)2-$8�#'-':#�=38�#0#')A#�/$#')7@)#.8$2'$3%�3=�-%0�%))7)7�A-$%')%-%.)�'3�)%#:8)�&337�8)2-$84()�0)-8�-%7�A3%'(�$%�>($.(�'()�7-'-�>)8)�.3//).')74()�8-')�=38�)-.(�#0#')A�$%#2).')74()�3;)8-//�8-'$%&B)-8�-%7�A3%'(�3=�'()�A3#'�8).)%'�,14�8)238'?�C.'3D)8�EFEF��!��*�G+!������ ����+H �������I�������+��J����+�K�L�+����M��++����!��*!N�O-#�P)-Q#<�R).(-%$.-/STUVW<X)>)8 O337 Y3%)�%))7)7ZG+������N�1%')8$38�X:8=-.)# O337 Y3%)�%))7)7Z[���+��+�!!N�C;)8-//�W/)-%/$%)##<\)#'SU)8A$%�1%=)#'-'$3% O337 Y3%)�%))7)7Z]���������N�̂/).'8$.-/ O337 Y3%)�%))7)7Z��!����*!_�� +���+!N�̀)#'833A#<X$%Q#S,3:%'-$%# O337 Y3%)�%))7)7Z��a���N�,$8)�X-=)'0<�T-b-873:#�R-')8$-/# O337 Y3%)�%))7)7Z��� �� ���N�X'8:.':8-/�@-A-&)<�̀33=# O337 Y3%)�%))7)7Z]c���+��?�\/-0&83:%7SX.(33/�O83:%7#<d$%73>#S@338#SO-')#S,)%.)# \338 d()%�8-$%$%&<�./-##833A�3;)8()-7�83//e:2�7338#�23#)�(-b-87�=83A�3:'#$7)�)0)D83>�3;)8(-%&#<�'32�-%7�D)/3>7338�'(8)#(3/7#�-%7�>)-'()8�#)-/#Z�V/#3�'>3�=83%'�>$%73>�#)-/#�/)-QZ



����������	�
�������
��������������������������� !�"# $%�#&�$%��"#'$���(� $�)*+���,#�$-�.($#/���01012�����3��4����5�367���8�9����:�;�+%��<=>?�,�#@A!�'�$%��&#BB#CA D�A &#�"�$A# ���B�@� $�$#�$%��<$�$��,�A#�A$E-�FG,AB�=(%A�@�"� $�HF�A#�A$E�IJ-2����K�L���MM�MM:�;�M�HAN�NO�?�BA&#� A��=''�''"� $�#&�<$G!� $�F��&#�"� (��� !�F�#D��''�P?==<FFQ�<E'$�"O�C%A(%�A (BG!�'�$%��<"��$���R�B� (�!�<G""�$A@�=''�''"� $'�&#��'$G!� $'�A �$%��D� ���B��!G(�$A# �,#,GB�$A# �� !�$%��?�BA&#� A��=B$�� �$��=''�''"� $'�P?=='Q�&#��S DBA'%�B� DG�D����$'TBA$���(E�PSU=Q�� !�"�$%�"�$A('DA@� �A �D��!�'�$%����$%�#GD%��AD%$�� !�D��!���B�@� N�. BE��BADA/B��'$G!� $'�"�E�,��$A(A,�$��A �$%���!"A A'$��$A# �#&�$%��?=='N�?=='�A$�"'������BAD �!�CA$%��B$�� �$��(%A�@�"� $�'$� !��!'O�C%A(%�����BA V�!�CA$%�$%��?#""# �?#���<$�$��<$� !��!'�P??<<Q�&#��'$G!� $'�CA$%�$%��"#'$�'AD A&A(� $�(#D A$A@��!A'�/ABA$A�'JW�� !+%��,��(� $�D��#&�'$G!� $'�C%#�%�@��'G((�''&GBBE�(#",B�$�!�(#G�'�'�$%�$�'�$A'&E�$%����XGA��"� $'�&#��� $�� (��$#�$%��Y A@��'A$E�#&�?�BA&#� A��� !�$%��?�BA&#� A��<$�$�Y A@��'A$EO�#��(������$�(% A(�B��!G(�$A# �'�XG� (�'�#��,�#D��"'�#&�'$G!EN2�����3��4����5���9���367����6��4:�M+%��<=>?�,�#@A!�'�$%��&#BB#CA D�A &#�"�$A# ���B�@� $�$#�$%��<$�$��,�A#�A$E-�.$%���FG,AB�.G$(#"�'�HF�A#�A$E�ZJ-FG,AB�#G$(#"�'�A �$%��'G/[�($������#&�,%E'A(�B��!G(�$A# 2�����3��4����5�3���;����\;�4���:�;�+%��<=>?�,�#@A!�'�$%��&#BB#CA D�A &#�"�$A# ���B�@� $�$#�$%��<$�$��,�A#�A$E-�F��� $�B�* @#B@�"� $�HF�A#�A$E�]J-S&&#�$'�$%��'(%##B�!A'$�A($�"�V�'�$#�'��V�,��� $�A ,G$�A �"�VA D�!�(A'A# '�&#��$%��'(%##B�!A'$�A($�� !���(%�'(%##B�'A$�

.@���BB�>�$A D #̂#!



����������	�
�������
���������������������������������� ����!"#$����%����&'&'(&'&)*
"������������+,�������-�.�.� ���/01�2345�6789:;1<�=01�>8??8@:AB�:A>87CD=:8A�71?19DA=�=8�=01�2=D=1�67:87:=EF�GH6:?�IABDB1C1A=�JG7:87:=E�KLFM:B0�<N088?�;7868H=�7D=1<O�DA;M:B0�<N088?�B7D;HD=:8A�7D=1<"������������+,�"#$����P�� ���/01�2345�6789:;1<�=01�>8??8@:AB�:A>87CD=:8A�71?19DA=�=8�=01�2=D=1�67:87:=EF�2N088?�5?:CD=1�JG7:87:=E�QLFGH6:?�<H<61A<:8A�7D=1<OGH6:?�1R6H?<:8A�7D=1<O�DA;S=017�?8ND?�C1D<H71<�8A�=01�<1A<1�8>�<D>1=E"#$����"����+������!"#$����%����&'&'(&'&)*

GD71A=<�D71�6789:;1;�BH:;1?:A1<T�678N1;H71<�DA;�UH1<=:8AAD:71<�=8�H6;D=1�<=D>>�8A�NH771A=�<=H;1A=�<=D=H<�D=�=01�V1B:AA:AB�8>�1DN0�E1D7�87�6?DN1C1A=W�3AAHD??ET�6D71A=<6D7=:N:6D=1�:A�=01:7�<=H;1A=<�XA;:9:;HD?:Y1;�I;HND=:8A�G78B7DC�JXIGL�D<�@1??�D<�6D71A=Z=1DN017�N8A>171AN1<�D<�A11;1;W�GD71A=<�D71�N8A=DN=1;�;D:?E�DA;Z87�@11[?E71BD7;:AB�<=H;1A=�678B71<<�VE�608A1T�1CD:?�87�=1R=�671>171AN1�8>�6D71A=<W�GD71A=<�D71�D?<8�:A9:=1;�=8�D==1A;�58CCHA:=E�3;9:<87E�58CC:==11�J535L�\11=:AB<�@0:N0678C8=1�N8CCHA:=E�D@D71A1<<�DA;�<H6687=�=078HB0�@87[<086<�DA;�:A>87CD=:8AD?�C11=:AB<W�/7DA<?D=87<�8A�<:=1�D71�D9D:?DV?1W

58?H<D�58HA=E�S>>:N1�8>�I;HND=:8A]<�58C67101A<:91�2D>1=E�G?DA�0D<�V11A�;191?861;�DA;�719:1@1;�VE�=01�2D>1=E�G?DAA:AB�58CC:==11�@0:N0�:AN?H;1;�=01�>8??8@:ABC1CV17<F�\D7:D�379:YĤI<6:A8YDT�3<<:<=DA=�2H617:A=1A;1A=�_87:?11�̀:1<1AT�a:71N=87�8>�I;HND=:8AD?�2179:N1<�3D78A�M1:AYT�3<<8N:D=1�2H617:A=1A;1A=�T�55SI�



����������	�
����������������������������������������� ��!�"����#$%&'#$#$(
)*+,-�./01/23�45678�9:;<,=>;�?/=*0�@>2<A3�B</,*<;�@<A+A�C/1>A3�8D1:2:A=;/=:E<�8AA:A=/2=�@<FF�G:HI<;=3�)/J=/:2�.:HH:/1A�K:;<�9<J/;=1<2=�)*;:A�L:HH<;3�4<;M</2=3�.:HH:/1A�7>H:,<�9<J/;=1<2=�L/;-�)>2=;<;/A3�6:<+=<2/2=3�)>H+A/�)>+2=0�4*<;:FFNA�9<J/;=1<2=�B*<�,>11:==<<�,>2A+H=<D�/2D�,>>;D:2/=<D�O:=*�A/F<=0�JH/22:2M�M;>+JA�F;>1�>=*<;�A,*>>HA�:2�D<E<H>J:2M�=*:A�JH/2�/A�/JJ;>J;:/=<P��8�J+IH:,�1<<=:2M�O/A�*<HD�F>;�:2=<;<A=<D�J/;=:<A�=>�;<E:<O�=*<�JH/2�>2�K<I;+/;0�QR3�QSQS�/=�=*<�5D+,/=:>2�T:HH/M<3�;>>1�)UVP�B*:A�JH/2�:A�=>�I<�/1<2D<D�/A�2<<D<DP�W=�A*/HH�I<�+JD/=<D�/22+/HH0�O:=*�;<E:<O�/2D�/JJ;>E/H�D+<�I0�L/;,*�VP�8�,>J0�>F�=*<�,+;;<2=�JH/2�O:HH�I<�-<J=�>2�*/2D�:2�=*<A,*>>H�>FF:,<�/2D�1/D<�/E/:H/IH<�F>;�:2AJ<,=:>2�+J>2�;<X+<A=PY �������Z���������� ����������������[���������\������ ���]̂ _�\�������������!��������� �����������������������̀_aabY �������Z���������� ����������������[���������\������ ���]̂ _�\�������������!��������� �����������������������̀_aab� c�Z\������aYde�]���f��������� ��!)>+2A<H>;�g8,/D<1:,3�4>,:/Hhi<*/E:>;/H�>;�)/;<<;�9<E<H>J1<2=j SPSS6:I;/;0�L<D:/�B</,*<;�g6:I;/;:/2j SPSS6:I;/;0�L<D:/�4<;E:,<A�4=/FF�g7/;/J;>F<AA:>2/Hj SPSS7A0,*>H>M:A= SPSS4>,:/H�.>;-<; SPSSk+;A< SPSS4J<<,*h6/2M+/M<hl</;:2M�4J<,:/H:A= SPSSC<A>+;,<�4J<,:/H:A=�g2>2U=</,*:2Mj SPSSm=*<; SPSS



����������	�
�������

����������	�
�������

����������������������������� !������"�#���"��������$�%�&#%'��(����������)�#����� �*#��+���"#�%�,%�"�����&#�"��������$�%"�&-#���*-�&#%'�./�,�%*����#�����������0123456789:4;�<4:�<937=�>56�?@ABB=�?784�C4>@A4:�?>=>:74;�DE7;@>=�F4>:�GHIJKGHILM
N#��O�P���"�&��-�NQR������"�+#��#��%����%��+���0

S4T4= CB8>=�123456789:4;�<4:�<937= 123456789:4;�<4:�<937=�DU4;8:7@846M 123456789:4;�<4:�<937=�DV5:4;8:7@846M WT4:>X4�C4>@A4:�?>=>:YZ*-##��Z��� [\\]̂\0// [_]./0// [\_̀\0// [̀a_//0//b�"�%�*� NQR NQR cc ccd�%*����b����%��*��e�Z*-##��Z������+�b�"�%�*� NQR NQR cc ccZ���� NQR NQR []]./0\a ccd�%*����b����%��*��e�Z*-##��Z������+�Z���� NQR NQR cc cc



����������	�
	�������������������������������������������

����� !"#$ ��#%&��'"!#�%��%�("$"�# ()�(  �!* �+,-�+ �!#&#."! ��/"$"�# (�0�1 % &#!(�2 3�4"5 �"!�*!!4(6772228.� 8."85�97�(7&�7.(7�8

:���;<�= >�������
�<?�� ������
����;���<��>�������@�������:���;<�=1 5#%%#%5�A ".* ��/"$"�B CC CCD#�CE"%5 �A ".* ��/"$"�B CC CCF#5* (!�A ".* ��/"$"�B CC CCG9 �"5 �H�#%.#4"$�/"$"�B�I-$ ' %!"�BJ CC CCG9 �"5 �H�#%.#4"$�/"$"�B�ID#��$ J CC CCG9 �"5 �H�#%.#4"$�/"$"�B�IF#5*J CC CC/K4 �#%! %� %!�/"$"�B CC CCH �. %!��&�1K�5 !�&���A ".* ��/"$"�# ( CC CCH �. %!��&�1K�5 !�&���G�'#%#(!�"!#9 �/"$"�# ( CC CC�������������=�:����



�������������	
�������� �������������	
�������� ���
�������	
����������������
������
���

������� !�" ! �#�$% �&



���������	
���
����
�
���������������
�
�������� ! �
"#$%&'()%#
*+,#(-.+)-
'&
/012#-%')
3456
7
8-(++-

9:;<
=>?:<@?A
BCDECDFDBGHIJKLLMINOP
QKRKPISTKNUVWXYV
ZW[\][̂X_
̀X_XWa
bc_VdV\eXWaf ghVWXYV
ZW[\][̂X_
̀X_XWa
bi[jj_Vf ghVWXYV
ZW[\][̂X_
̀X_XWa
bk[Ylfmnopmpoq

poppoq
nop

rKOLsHK tuvwxtuvy tuvyxtutu tutuxtutvz{d|VW
}~
�]l}}_
jXa�
jVj[]XeVj
e}
̀eX~~
�VhV_}̂dV\e
X\j
�}\e[\{}{�
�d̂ W}hVdV\e � � �



���������	
��������



���������	�
���������������
���������	�����
��
 ���������
� !"
#	�� !"
#	�

$$
"	�����
%�����
 �����"	�����
%�����
 �����&'()*&'&'
+,-..�
/,,.0���12�2�3
4�5.��
6��7/8
6.�72�2.��
.9
:����2�;+����
<�2.�2�3=
>��2,�?�
� !"
@�	A����
�?�
B	��	����
��B	����	�
����A���
�	
�?�
�����
@��	����C
%����
D���	����
EFC������
�	
�?��?
����?���
���
�@@�	@�������
��������
���
B����
������������
��
�?�
���G���
����
���
B	�
�?�
@�@���
�?��
���
����?���H��@���
?�A�
������
�	
���������I�������
���������	���
��������H
�����?		�
B���������
���
���������
��
�		�
��@������,-��
6��7���2��� 
���,-��� +,-..�&'(J*&'() +,-..�
&'()*&'&' +,-..�
&'&'*&'&( K2���2,�
&'&'*&'&(L��?
M���
"��������� E E NL��?	��
M���
"��������� O O O����?���
����?���
P������
���G���
 ���
	B
"	@������
D���?
B���
����������F O O O



����������	�
�������������������������������������������������� ���� ��!������ � "#$%&"#$' "#$'&"#"# "#"#&"#"$()*+**),-./-0*�12�3/+45/6*�12�7-,8)*5�9/+6-/6* : : :310+8�3/+45/6�()*+**),-./-0*; : : :<+4+-0�3/+45/6�=1*)0)1-* : : :
:>:: ?>:: @>:::>::>A?>:

?>A@>:@>A
B>:B>A 3/+45/6*�C)05�DE88�F6/G/-0)+83/+45/6*�C)051E0�DE88�F6/G/-0)+83/+45/6*�3/+45)-,�HE0*)G/�IEJK/40�L6/+�12�F1.M/0/-4/



����������	�
����������������������������������������� ���!�"������#�����������$$�%�"&����' ����( ��$�')�$���$��!� ���*������������' �� ������%��$�+�$,��!"-�'������,���!%�������!#,���'.�/�0���$�0��' ��������������������'$!%���� ���!�"������������������������0��' �������1��$�� �2�������.�3456789:�;4<<=>?9:�@A5765B76789�CD�E=F8BCCGH�5>I�J8K=<�L>H8<4?87C>56�M58=<756H�NO?KCC6�P=5<�QRQRSQRQTUV������%����� ����( �' �� ��%����(����'�$$�'��%��W��!��&�XYXZO4B[=?8 E=F8BCCGH�5>I�J8K=<�L>H8<4?87C>56�M58=<756H\9=5<�CD�@IC]87C> <̂C_�MCH8=̀?=>8@IC]87C>a b=<?=>8�O84I=>8H�c5?G7>dJe>�@HH7d>=I�;C]9f��%���g2���!���h��� i�� �+���#�'���'��������%������+������������f��%������%�2���!����h���,�1j�'��k�� ���$������%����%%�����,���!%����� �+���''�������� ���������%�#��%���j�"��)�������� ����%�����'�. V�� Y.YY�l��� �����'� i�� �+���#�'���'��������%������+��������������� �����'�,�1j�'��k�� ���$������%�����%%�����,���!%���� �+���''�������� ���������%�#��%���j�"��)�������� ����%�����'�. V�� Y.YY�l
XYZmnXYZo XYZonXYXY XYXYnXYXZpZ.YpY.q

Y.YY.q
Z.Y ������������������0��' �������1��$�� �2�������0���$�0��' �����������������/r�'����0��' ���k��������



����������	�
�������
����������	�
�������

������� ���������������� �!�"���!���#���$�%���!#�$�&'��!��(�)��*�#�� +!�,�%���-�����)��*�#��. /�!��������������0���#�1�2��)��#1����3�*'4567857 97�:;<7�=>756?65�@;AB7@7C�68@7A<78@6D8=�?DA�4567857E�;8C�68�;CC6@6D8E�=@FC78@=�:;<7�;557==�@D�@:7=@;@7�;CD>@7C�@7G@HDDI=�?ADJ�@:76A�C6=@A65@K L7= MKMM�NO6=@DAPQ4D56;R4567857 97�:;<7�=>756?65�@;AB7@7C�68@7A<78@6D8=�?DA�O6=@DAPQ4D56;R�4567857�;8C�68�;CC6@6D8E�=@FC78@=�:;<7;557==�@D�@:7�=@;@7�;CD>@7C�@7G@HDDI=�?ADJ�@:76A�C6=@A65@K L7= MKMM�NSDA76B8�T;8BF;B7 UVW MKMM�NO7;R@: 97�:;<7�=>756?65�@;AB7@7C�68@7A<78@6D8=�?DA�O7;R@:�;8C�68�;CC6@6D8E�=@FC78@=�:;<7�;557==�@D�@:7�=@;@7;CD>@7C�@7G@HDDI=�?ADJ�@:76A�C6=@A65@K L7= MKMM�NX6=F;R�;8CY7A?DAJ68B�WA@= 97�:;<7�=>756?65�@;AB7@7C�68@7A<78@6D8=�?DA�X6=F;R�;8C�Y7A?DAJ68B�WA@=�;8C�68�;CC6@6D8E�=@FC78@=:;<7�;557==�@D�@:7�=@;@7�;CD>@7C�@7G@HDDI=�?ADJ�@:76A�C6=@A65@K L7= MKM�N4567857�T;HZ[>J@�\]A;C7=�̂Q_̀a UVW UVW MKM�NUD@7b�c7RR=�d6@:�UVW�<;RF7=�CD�8D@�A7[F6A7�C;@;K��� ��$�+��#$#�'�3���#�#��������/$������",*!�e�,����f;@68B�D?�@:7�ZCF5;@6D8�X6RR;B7�D<7A;RR�;=�]DDC�̂gKĥN�CF7�@D�A7>;6A=�@:;@�;A7�=@6RR�8757==;AP�?ADJ�>;=@�5D8=@AF5@6D8�;8C�C7=6B8�6==F7=K�i:D=7�A7>;6A=�685RFC7�;�@D@;R�D?�@dD�?AD8@d68CDd�=7;R�R7;I=�68�HF6RC68B�jk�@dD�H;5I�d68CDd�=7;R�R7;I=�68�HF6RC68B�ck�d:78�A;6868BE�5R;==ADDJ�D<7A:7;C�ADRRQF>�CDDA=�>=7�:;l;AC�;=�d7;@:7A�68@AFC7=�?ADJ�7P7HADdD<7A:;8B=E�@D>�;8C�H7RDd�CDDA�@:A7=:DRC=�;8C�d7;@:7A�=7;R=�68�HF6RC68B=�jE�cE�mE�Z�;8C�SK�n857�A7>;6A=�;A7�?68;R6l7CE�@:7�D<7A;RR�A;@68B�=:DFRC�H7�7G7J>R;APK�i:7�cDF8@P�n??657:;=�>DR6567=�68�>R;57�;CCA7==68B�5DJ>R6;857�d6@:�=@;@7�J;8C;@7=k�A7>;6A�;8C�J;68@78;857�6=�>AD<6C7C�HP�@:7�cDRF=;�cDF8@P�o;68@78;857�;8C�n>7A;@6D8�m7>;A@J78@K�WRRHF6RC68B=�:;<7�87d�68@7A6DA�;8C�7G@7A6DA�TZm�R6B:@68B�68=@;RR7CK�� ��$�+��#$#�'�p����-�*�#!�������q=68B�@:7�,����!�����$'���$$������S;56R6@P�r8=>75@6D8�iDDR�\Sria�C;@;�\DA�7[F6<;R78@aE�>AD<6C7�@:7�?DRRDd68Bbm7@7AJ68;@6D8�D?�A7>;6A�=@;@F=�?DA�=P=@7J=�R6=@7C



����������	�
�������

������������������������������������������������ ����������!"���������������"����#"��"��"�������#������$$�����!"��������������"�����������������!"���%���$$������ &������������"�����"��������������'(!�������)�*���+���,-,-./0123�450627128 9:1;5< 926:;=�>22828�:58�?71;@5�A:B25�@=�CD:5528./01230E�F���G��H�I�J��"�����$KLMNOIP�#�� F��� Q����������R4512=;@=E�(��������P������� F��� Q����������RSD2:5D;5200E�*%���$$�O$���$�����IT���KM������(���������� F��� Q����������RUD271=;7:DE�V$�������$ F��� Q����������R9201=@@30WX@Y51:;50E�Z��������IP��H�K'�������� F��� Q����������R.:[21/E�'����P�����I�L�\�������J������$� F��� Q����������R.1=Y71Y=:DE�P��������$����� �I�Z���� F��� Q����������RU]12=5:D)�T$�� �����KP�"��$�F������I^����#�K�����KF����K'����� T��� ^"��������� I��$���������%��"������$$_��������������"�\��������������������+��#��%��"�� �I���������+�$�#������"���"�$�������#���"������$�R�N$����#��������#����#����$��$��HRà2=:DD�X:7;D;1/�9:12&������������"�����"��������������'(!�������)�*���+���,-,-*%���$$�Z���� F���



���������	
���
����
�
���������������
�
�������� ! �
"#$%&'()%#
*+,#(-.+)-
'&
/012#-%')
3456
7
8-(++-
8#2(#.+)-'9
":
;<=34



���������	�
���������������
���������	�����
��
 ���������
� !"
#	�� !"
#	�

$$
"	�����
%�����
 �����"	�����
%�����
 �����&'()*&'&'
+,-..�
/,,.0���12�2�3
4�5.��
6��789
:052�
;0�,.<��+����
:�2.�2�3=
:052�
/,-2�>�<����?�
� !"
@�	A����
�?�
B	��	����
��B	����	�
����A���
�	
�?�
�����
@��	����C
��@��
 �?��A����
D���	����
EFC+����G27�
������<����
D�H�HI
"���B	����
 ��������
	B
�������
���B	�����
���
��	�����
J"  ���K
�����I
�?��?
��������
�?�
������
%�������
�����A� ���������
B	�
��������
��
�?�
�������
�������	�
@	@�����	�
���
�?�
"���B	����
 ��������
 ���������
J"  �K
B	�
L�����?
��������
����M��������
JL� K
���
��?��������A��
��
������
�?���
�?�	��?
���?�
���
�����
���A��H
N���
��������
��������
��
@������@���
��
�?�
�����������	�
	B
�?�
"  �H
"  �
����
���
�������
���?
�����������?��A����
���������I
�?��?
���
���O��
���?
�?�
"		�
"	��
�����
���������
J""��K
B	�
��������
���?
�?�
	��
�����B�����
�	�����A�
������������FP
����?�
@���������
	B
��������
�?	
?�A�
�������B����
�	@�����
�	�����
�?��
�����B�
�?�
��Q��������
B	�
��������
�	
�?�
R��A������
	B
"���B	����
���
�?�
"���B	����
�����R��A������I
	�
������
���?�����
�������	�
��Q������
	�
@�	����
	B
�����H+����
:�2.�2�3=
;�-��
:052�
;0�,.<���?�
� !"
@�	A����
�?�
B	��	����
��B	����	�
����A���
�	
�?�
�����
@��	����C
N�?��
��@��
N���	��
D���	����
SFC��@��
	���	��
��
�?�
���T���
����
	B
@?������
�������	�



���������	
���
����
�
���������������
�
�������� ! �
"#$%&'()%#
*+,#(-.+)-
'&
/012#-%')
3456
7
8-(++-
8#2(#.+)-'9
":
;<=34



����������	�
�������
��������������������������������� ���!�"���#�$%� &'()*+(,-

�./0�1����./0�1�����22�0�������3 �����.��#��%0�������3 �����.��#��%456784545�9:;<<+�=::<>),(?@+@,A�B-C<',�D('EDF�G)H(H-I-),9,(,-�J'@<'@,AK�J('-),(+�L)M<+M-I-),�N���./0�O��P�#����N��Q����"������Q�������������P��������N��������O������%R�!��������S�P��P������T!������%�UVRWQQ������N����N����#����������X���������X�O��������O �������X����#���������Q����N����N����#����������#����N���N��������YCC<',>)@,@-*�Z<'�J('-),(+�L)M<+M-I-),�[9:;<<+�\-('�454584546]!�����������O��P�#�#�� �#������̂�O����# ������#�_ ���������������� O#�������QQ����� �������� #�������� ������N��$����������Q����N�%�������O��������̀�.�� ���%̂�O������O������O��������N������ #�����S�#�P�# ���a�#�W# �������!�������TSW!V����"�������O�����b����N������Q��������������#�#̀�!�������������������#�#���%���#b���"��X�%������#����� #����O��������$%�ON���̂������������c��O��Q��������Q�O������̀�!������������������P���#���������#�0��� ���%�.#P����%�0���������T0.0V�d��������"N��N�O����������� ���%�"����������#�� OO�����N�� �N�"��X�N�O����#���Q�������������������̀��������������������������P����$��̀9,(,-�J'@<'@,AK�J>C@+�G)H(H-I-),�N���./0�O��P�#����N��Q����"������Q�������������P��������N��������O������%R�! O���W����������T!������%�eVR1��N���N����#��O� �������f���#1��N���N�������# �����������9,(,-�J'@<'@,AK�9:;<<+�D+@I(,-�N���./0�O��P�#����N��Q����"������Q�������������P��������N��������O������%R���N����0�������T!������%�gVR! O���� �O������������f



���������	
���
����
�
���������������
�
�������� ! �
"#$%&'()%#
*+,#(-.+)-
'&
/012#-%')
3456
7
8-(++-
8#2(#.+)-'9
":
;<=34 >?@A
BCD?AEDF
GHIJHIKIG

LMNOP
QRNMPSOTU
VWXQSY
WUZ[X\QV
PT]WP
̂QWSMVQS
TU
X\Q
SQUSQ
T_
SW_QX̀abcdde
afghij
kefl
mabcdde
nhfo
pqpqrpqpstuTPMSW
uTMUX̀
[__O]Q
T_
vZM]WXOTUwS
uT̂ NVQ\QUSOxQ
yW_QX̀
LPWU
\WS
zQQU
ZQxQPTNQZ
WUZ
VQxOQ{QZ
z̀
X\Q
yW_QX̀
LPWUUOU|
uT̂ ÔXXQQ
{\O]\
OU]PMZQZ
X\Q
_TPPT{OU|
̂Q̂ zQVS}
~WVOW
�VxO�M�vSNOUT�W�
�SSOSXWUX
yMNQVOUXQUZQUX
�TVOPQQ
�OQSQU�
�OVQ]XTV
T_
vZM]WXOTUWP
yQVxO]QS
�WVTU
�QOU��
�SST]OWXQ
yMNQVOUXQUZQUX
�
uu[v
u\M]�
�Ẁ ŴU�
yv�L�
�OVQ]XTV
�WX\̀
�TUQS�
�QW]\QV
�QSMS
�Ŵ TS�
�Ẑ OUOSXVWXOxQ
�SSOSXWUX
�Q__
�OPzQVX�
uWNXWOU
�OPPOŴ S
�OVQ
�QNWVX̂QUX
u\VOS
~OPPQV�
yQV|QWUX�
�OPPOŴ S
LTPO]Q
�QNWVX̂QUX
~WV�
uTUXVQVWS�
�OQMXQUWUX�
uTPMSW
uTMUX̀
y\QVO__wS
�QNWVX̂QUX
�\Q
]T̂ ÔXXQQ
]TUSMPXQZ
WUZ
]TTVZOUWXQZ
{OX\
SW_QX̀
NPWUUOU|
|VTMNS
_VT̂ 
TX\QV
S]\TTPS
OU
ZQxQPTNOU|
X\OS
NPWU
WS
WNNVTNVOWXQ�

�
NMzPO]
̂QQXOU|
{WS
\QPZ
_TV
OUXQVQSXQZ
NWVXOQS
XT
VQxOQ{
X\Q
NPWU
TU
�QzVMWV̀
���
����
WX
X\Q
vZM]WXOTU
�OPPW|Q�
VTT̂ 
u���
�\OS
NPWU
OS
XT
zQ
Ŵ QUZQZ
WS
UQQZQZ�
�X
S\WPP
zQ
MNZWXQZ
WUUMWPP̀
{OX\
VQxOQ{
WUZ
WNNVTxWP
ZMQ
z̀
~WV]\
��
�
]TǸ
T_
X\Q
]MVVQUX
NPWU
{OPP
zQ
�QNX
TU
\WUZ
OU
X\Q
S]\TTP
T__O]QWUZ
̂WZQ
WxWOPWzPQ
_TV
OUSNQ]XOTU
MNTU
VQ�MQSX�



���������	�
���������������
���������	�����
��
 ���������
� !"
#	�� !"
#	�

$$
"	�����
%�����
 �����"	�����
%�����
 �����&'()*&'&'
+,-..�
/,,.0���12�2�3
4�5.��
6��789
:�-��
+/46
;�<.�=��2.��>�
��?	����	�
��
�>��
�����	�
��
��@�����
�	
��
��
�>�
� !"
���
��
�	�
��������
��
�>�
�����
A��	������
?	�
�"BBC+�07���
+055.��
+��D2,��
+��<<
E+,-..�
F���
&'()*&'&'G
 H0=1��
.<
I�JK
/��2L��7
�.
+,-..�"	�����	�
M ������N
�	����O%�>�P�	���
	�
"�����
��P��	A���Q RCRR�������
S����
����>��
M���������Q RCRR�������
S����
���P����
���??
M����A�	?����	���Q RCRR����>	�	���� RCRR�	����
T	�U�� RCRRV���� RCRR�A���>O��������O#������
�A�������� RCRR!��	����
�A��������
M�	�W����>���Q RCRR



����������	�
�������

����������	�
�������

� �������������������� �!�"��#$%��&'()*+ ,-,,.'/*�0122�(34*�*513672*/(�89:;<�*5172=�>/*�=(700�4*4?*+�@>+A3/B�0122�(34*C�>/*�9:;�D>12E�72=>�+*F+*=*/(�(@>�=(700�4*4?*+=�@)>�*7D)�@>+A�G,�F*+D*/(�>0�0122�(34*-�HI� !�"�����J���J�I�&�K !�#$%��&�#�"����K$%���#K&K�����L���$K&�M�K��NOPQRNOPSTU�V�& ��"K&��HI� !�"�����J���J�I�& �HI� !�"�����J���J�I�&�LW��"��$"�!T �HI� !�"�����J���J�I�&�LX ���"��$"�!T �V��K�����K$%���#K&K�YZD)>>2�Z3(* [\\]̂\-,, [_]G,-,, [\_̀\-,, [̀a_,,-,,b3=(+3D( cde cde ff ffg*+D*/(�b300*+*/D*�h�ZD)>>2�Z3(*�7/E�b3=(+3D( cde cde ff ffZ(7(* cde cde []]G,-\a ffg*+D*/(�b300*+*/D*�h�ZD)>>2�Z3(*�7/E�Z(7(* cde cde ff ffc>(*i�j*22=�@3()�cde�6721*=�E>�/>(�+*513+*�E7(7-



����������	�
	������������������������������������������� ��������  �������
��!�� ������
����������� �������"���������������#$%&''&'%�($)*+$,�-).),/ 00 001&203)'%$�($)*+$,�-).),/ 00 004&%+$56�($)*+$,�-).),/ 00 0078$,)%$�9,&'*&:).�-).),/�;<.$=$'6),/> 00 0078$,)%$�9,&'*&:).�-).),/�;1&22.$> 00 0078$,)%$�9,&'*&:).�-).),/�;4&%+> 00 00-?:$,&'6$'2$'6�-).),/ 00 009$,*$'6�@A�#?2%$6�A@,�($)*+$,�-).),&$5 00 009$,*$'6�@A�#?2%$6�A@,�72=&'&56,)6&8$�-).),&$5 00 00B@,�2$6)&.$2�&'A@,=)6&@'�@'�5).),&$5C�5$$�6+$�DE<�D$,6&A&*)6$2�-).),&$5�F�#$'$A&65�G$H�:)%$�)6�+66:5IJJGGGK*2$K*)K%@8J25JA2J*5J�K($)*+$,�-).),/�D+),6



���������	
�����	�����������	������	
����� ���������	������	
����� ������	������	
�������������
������
���



���������	
���
����
�
���������������
�
�������� ! �
"#$%&'()%#
*+,#(-.+)-
'&
/012#-%')
3456
7
8-(++-
8#2(#.+)-'9
":
;<=34
>?@A
BCD?AEDF
GHIJHIKIGLMNOPQQRNSTU
VPWPUNXYPSZ [PTQ\MP ]̂_̀a]̂_b ]̂_ba]̂]̂ ]̂]̂a]̂]_cdefgh
ij
klmiin
opqk
ogorlpsgo
si
tspjj
ugvgniwegxs
pxo
yixsrxdidk
zewhivgegxs { { {

|hrxlrwpn
tpnphq
}~ngegxsphq� �vghp�g
|hrxlrwpn
tpnphq
}�roong� �vghp�g
|hrxlrwpn
tpnphq
}�r�m���������
������
���



���������	�
���������������
���������	�����
��
 ���������
� !"
#	�� !"
#	�

$$
�%
&�����
 ���
 ������%
&�����
 ���
 �����'()*+'('(
,-.//�
0--/1���23�3�4
5�6/��
7��8
9�
:�������
;
	<
���=
����>
�?���
��=		�
��
"���<	����
��
��@�����
��
�����
���
�	
A�����=
�
��=		�
 ��	����������
!�A	��
"���
B� !"C%�=�
� !"
�	������
��<	����	�
��	��
�=��	�����	�
���
A��<	�����
	<
���=
"���<	����
A�����
��=		�%
D����
�=�
�	���
"	���	�
:������
:	����
B�"::C
���
�	���
�������	���
��������
B�E �C
���
��@�����
�	
A��A���
��	���
"	���	�
���
 ��	����������
����
B�" �C>
�=��=
���������
=	�
�=��
������
�	
���
������
��=		�F�A���<��
�	���
<	�
���
A�A���>
���=
�A���<��
����?�����
�	
�������
�����
����	���
A��	������%
 �����	�����>
����
��A	����
��
��
�" �
��
�	
��
�	��������
���=
����
��A	����
��
�=�
� !"%:	�
	��
��<	����	�
��	��
� !"
��@��������>
���
�=�
"���<	����
��A������
	<
E������	�
B"�EC
� !"
���
A���
��
=��A�GHH���%���%��%�	?H��H��H��H%:	�
	��
��<	����	�
��	��
�=�
�"::
	�
�" �>
���
�=�
"�E
�"::
���
A���
��
=��A�GHH���%���%��%�	?H<�H��H��H%:	�
������	���
��<	����	�
��	��
�=�
��=		�>
A������H���������
���
�	�����
�����
�=	���
�	�����
�=�
��=		�
A�����A��
	�
�=�
��������
	<<���%I���J1���

,-.//�
0--/1���23�3�4
5�6/��
7��85�6/���8
K�3�L
I���
M�/N
�.�
'()*+'('(
,-.//�
O���7��3M/��3�
I�6���N���
/M
P81-��3/�



��������	

���
�
������������������������������������� !"�� ��#"�$
%�	�&������'()��	�*��)+����,�-�./"0-��0����1����"�#�-��-11���1��-"#�1��-2"�3,4�,�-�./"0-�5"!���6"��-�2--�0788#9��#"����61:8#�-�9/"0-8�-2�-��1�-���0��##�-�1������;1���-�1���!1/-�-2�0�0�211���#��1�����01�0�1;�-2"�0�211��-1�-2"�#�0-���-���#�-2"��1/�-$����"��;�����$��,�-�./"0-��0���#$������0$0-"��-2�-���1:�#"0��"�1�-0�;1�����1/�-�!���-$�<"�6���-"0-�#�-��"��1���"�-��2�62�0�211��6��#/�-"0��#�1�1/-0���1/�0"�"��1���"�-0��0-�;;��6����#�#�-���"6��#��6�4�6��02��"���"�0=�
>2"�3���;1�������211��,�02!1��#�<,�02!1��#=�2--�0788555���0�211�#�02!1��#�1�68��";�"�-0�3���;1����?0��"5����1/�-�!���-$���#��1�-��/1/0�����1:"�"�-�0$0-"����#���1:�#"0��;1���-�1���!1/-�215�@4 0���#�0�211�0���"��""-��6�-2"��""#0�1;�3���;1����?0�#�:"�0"�0-/#"�-��1�/��-�1���>2"�,�02!1��#��1�-���0��"�1�-0�-2�-�#�0���$�-2"��"�;1�����"�1;@4 0��0�211�0����#�0-/#"�-�6�1/�0�1����0"-�1;�0-�-"���#��1�����"�0/�"0�-1��00�0-�����#"�-�;$��6�0-�"�6-20���2���"�6"0����#���"�0�����""#�1;�����1:"�"�-�



��������	
���������������������
����������	�
��
	��
��
��������
����
��	������	����	������	����
���
��	��������������
���������
������������	����
����
����������
��������
�����������
�	�
��� ������	�
�����
�������
�������  ���������	�����	������	������
��	�!"#$�%���
����& �����������	��������	�����	'������"�������'�����������(
�" ����	�(��������������	�
��������
		�����
�������	�����������������������������
�	�������	������������
���	������	'�����	������
�	�� ������	�
��)��� ������������*����
��
	
�������
�����
����������	�����+	��
�����		�����	�������
���
�	������
���	����		������
�	����������	������	���������������������������	�����	��,
��	�  ���	�
������ �
��������� ���
������	���
�	�������*-)��	��
�����	�
����	���������
���
� �	��������������
������	���������
������
���	����"�������
��	�  ����
���
�	�� ����������������	��������.�������� 	
��� �
���������	������	�����& �������������
����
������ ����	�
���
������������������ �������������
�����������	��
���& ����������
���	�� �����	�����������������������������
/��������,������	�
���	�������
	�
����������%����������
����
���������	�*��	������)�������%	��)��
������������  ���������	���� 
����� 
���
	�
����� '��
���	������������� 	
��)�������
��0�
������*�
����������������	 �����������	�
�����
�	������ �
���	���	���������� �������	�����������������
��������� 
����������	������+	���
������ �
������	�	���
�
��������
�	'��������	���	���
��������������������������	�
����������	�
���	�
��
��	��)��
�������'����������	������	�
��
��	�������	�	������	�	����
�����%�������������������
��
��������������������������������������	
�������-�
������������
��������������������������
�1
������������'�	������	�
����������������  �����������������������
��
���������
���������	�	'����	����
�������
��������������  ���������	�������	
������+	�.
�������������*����
�'�%������	�
�	�����	���
����������
���������
��'�
�����	����	������	������  �����������%��/����	����
������%����	�������
���	���������	����	�
����������
������
�������
���� �	������	����	�������	����		��� �������������	�����'��
�	'���
�	 ���
����'�
�
������
���	���'�
���
� �	������	����������������������
���������
����233�,
�����������������
�	'����3435!"45#4�*����6�478"2!7"#748���
��6�����	��9���������
:;<=>?=�@<A;BC>=D;<�EF?G;;H�IJ>B�KLKLMKLKNOPGJ��FQR:�DS�?;CTHJ=JU�><U�TJ<UD<V�W;>BU�>TTB;X>H�;<�YJWBZ>B[�NL\�KLKN]

QW;Z=�̂ZB�F?G;;HQW;Z=�̂ZB�F?G;;H
:;<=>?=:;<=>?=
QW;Z=�PGDS�F?G;;HQW;Z=�PGDS�F?G;;H_DS=BD?=�:;<=>?=�@<A;BC>=D;<�EF?G;;H�IJ>B�KLKLMKLKNO_DS=BD?=�̀>CJ ����	
���������������������
����



��������	
�� ������������������������� �������� �!"#	$�%�&����'' ()�!"*��+�,-�".�
'��� ))),��+�,-�"�/���%�0���$/��1�2��	$�����3�/���%�4�$��5656756589�/���%��$	� :,� �����(�;<���;��=�(>������ �??���@AB@�"��:",0��CD���$��D�E��  �����(!F�G�F�??�H��I��������	
�� ����H��I������/��$% �!,�J+@�����K��!�-F�;=(�-�!"@�"+@#	$�%�&����'' �-��!�-*��+�,-�".�
'��� ))),��+�,-�"0����CLM�'���/�L�/���%30M�9�0��� �NI��NN�N��III



����������	�
�������

����������	�
�������

����������������������� ������������!����"�������#����$%$%&$%$'(

��)�����*�����!����+,�-�����.�/���"�������#����$%'0&$%$%(1234543678�9:63;2:�;2<=88>;2:�26>?;<9�7<;�2=:�@78@687:;3�AB;2�:B;�26>?;<�=C�9:63;2:9�7<;�:;2�=<�8;99�:=�D<=:;@:�9:63;2:�D<457@EF

GB;�HF�I48847>�J?;8�J@73;>E�49�72�7@@<;34:;3�78:;<27:45;�9@B==8�D<4>7<48E�3;94K2;3�:=�9;<5;�;LD;88;3�723�7:MD<=>49;�E=6:BF�GB;�@=>>624:E�9@B==8�73>4:9�;LD;88;39:63;2:9�C<=>�@=62:E�9@B==8�349:<4@:9N�HJOPQRJOG�<;C;<<789N�723�9:63;2:9�2;;342K�7�>=<;�9:<6@:6<;3�;254<=2>;2:F�J88�@<;34:9�;7<2;3�7<;�:<729C;<7?8;�:=�D6?84@9@B==89FS1HH1TU�HGJGVSVUGW���XG=�D<=543;�72�;36@7:4=278�D<=K<7>�AB4@B�<;42C=<@;9�:B;�DBE94@78N�;>=:4=278N�723�42:;88;@:678�K<=A:B�=C�788�9:63;2:9N�79�A;88�79�26<:6<42K�78=5;�=C�8;7<242K�:B7:�D<=36@;9�D=94:45;�723�D<=36@:45;�>;>?;<9�=C�9=@4;:EFYZ1H1TU�HGJGVSVUGW���J:�HIJJN�H:63;2:9�7<;�;>D=A;<;3�AB48;�A=<[42K�:=A7<3�J@73;>4@N�\=88;K;�723�\7<;;<�O;7342;99�H6@@;99]TĴHW���GB;�K=789�=C�:B;�HF�I48847>�J?;8�J@73;>E�7<;�:B;�C=88=A42KW�_�1>D<=5;�788�9:63;2:9̀�7?484:E�:=�8;7<2N�A=<[�42�7�@==D;<7:45;�>722;<�A4:B�=:B;<9N�723�96@@;;3�42�9@B==8F�_�H6@@;99C688E�<;42:;K<7:;�9:63;2:9�42:=�:B;4<�B=>;N�D6?84@�9@B==8F�_�P6483�D;<9=278�<;9D=294?484:E�723�7�9;29;�=C�@=>>624:E�A4:B�:B;�9:63;2:�?=3EF�_�129:488�7�9;29;�=C�:=8;<72@;�723�;>D7:BE�C=<�=:B;<9F�_�a<;D7<;�9:63;2:9�C=<�:B;�A=<83�=C�A=<[�723�B4KB;<�;36@7:4=2F
-�����.�/��b)!+����c���)����� ]<73;�de �]<73;�fg �]<73;�hi �]<73;�eje �]<73;�eek �]<73;�egl �G=:78�V2<=88>;2:em



����������	�
��������������������������������������������� !����"�#��$%&'($%$%)*+,-.�/ *+,-.�0 *+,-.�1 *+,-.�23 *+,-.�22 *+,-.�24353253
453653
753853
953

�������������:�� �����;�<��#������������ =>,?@�A+�BC+D?,E�BF.+D?,EG �BF.+D?,E�HE-D,E�A+�B>,I@,�J,KDL.G �BID,EG �MD>DNDEAG �ODIN,ED?�A+�P,KDEA6/583�G �J,KDL.�O,Q,DD,E�A+�R,?DCD?�HI>,E-.+G �ST94���������������U�!��):�� �����;�<��#������������ VA?DA.?AEAFD?,>>W�XDI,-L,EK,Y.-02548�G �ZEY>DIT�P.,+E.+I9548�G �VK[-.EKI�QDKT�XDI,\D>DKD.I48533�G �MAIK.+�]A[KT24583�G �OAF.>.II24583�G



���������	���
��������������������������������� �!"��!���#$���!������$!�����������$����������%&�'$��(�)*������%�+,&-�"������� ��(����$(�����$���$�������$���%�$���"!���$!���.��%�(����!��$�����!������./0�(��$��$�$!�����������.��������%�$�����$(��!"1*.������$���$((���������$!�$���2$��"!����!���.(���!$��#$����$��1�$!��(������$(��������$���#$�!�$�!����!�"�������$��3���4���5��6�7���8 3���4�� ��4		89:;<=9:;> ��4		89:;>=9:9: ��4		8�9:9:=9:9; ?�������9:9:=9:9;@����A.��������!��$� B C B B@����.��A.��������!��$� D D + +��$(�������$(��!"�E.�������./0�(�����$������#����!(��) �����.���(����!��$�, D + D D



����������	�
�������������������������������������������������� ���� ��!"!! #"!! $"!!!"!!"%#"!
#"%$"!$"%
&"!&"%'"!
'"% ()*+,)-.�/01,�2344�5-)6)710*4()*+,)-.�/01,831�2344�5-)6)710*4()*+,)-.�()*+,079�:31.06)�;3<=)+1�>-)*�8?�58@A)1)7+)

B������ � CDEFGCDEH CDEHGCDCD CDCDGCDCEI0.*..097@)71.�8?�()*+,)-.�8?�J7940.,�K)*-7)-. ! ! !(81*4�()*+,)-�I0.*..097@)71.L ! ! !M*+*71�()*+,)-�N8.01087. ! ! !



����������	�
����������������������������������������� ���!�"������#�����������$$�%�"&����' ����( ��$�')�$���$��!� ���*������������' �� ������%��$�+�$,��!"-�'������,���!%�������!#,���'.�/�0���$�0��' ��������������������'$!%���� ���!�"������������������������0��' �������1��$�� �2�������.�3456789:�;4<<=>?9:�@A5765B76789�CD�E=F8BCCGH�5>I�J8K=<�L>H8<4?87C>56�M58=<756H�NO?KCC6�P=5<�QRQRSQRQTUV������%����� ����( �' �� ��%����(����'�$$�'��%��W��!��&�XYXZ
XYZ[\XYZ] XYZ]\XYXY XYXY\XYXZẐ.YŶ._

Y.YY._
Z.Y ������������������0��' �������1��$�� �2�������0���$�0��' �����������������/�̀'����0��' ���a��������

O4Bb=?8 E=F8BCCGH�5>I�J8K=<�L>H8<4?87C>56�M58=<756Hc9=5<�CD�@ICd87C> e<Cf�MCH8g=?=>8@ICd87C>h i=<?=>8�O84I=>8H�j5?G7>kJl>�@HH7k>=I�;Cd9



������� ��	��

�������������������
�����������������
���
���
� ��
��
����������
���
� !��������������"�����#�$�����#���%
��&'()*+,-.(+,/(,'0123 4)5'+2/56+7*+'86+7*+'9/11*:/7/5*+(77:;1'3/<=':2(1'(32>(2*3(??1;@')2;5''208A&'B/*1'5'+234+,7*3>C0-D4+,7*3>E0-D4+,7*3>F0-D4+,7*3>GH0-D4+,7*3>GG0-D4+,7*3>GI0-DJ;720)(?2')K+2'1(:2*@'&'()'139;/13'G8L
M'3 HNHHO

P(2>'5(2*:3 4)5'+2/56+7*+'86+7*+'9/11*:/7/5*+(77:;1'3/<=':2(1'(32>(2*3(??1;@')2;5''208A&'B/*1'5'+23P(2>C0-DP(2>E0-D07,'<1(G0-D07,'<1(I0-D9;+3/5'1P(2>'5(2*:3A';5'21Q0-D
M'3 HNHHO

R:*'+:' 4)5'+2/56+7*+'86+7*+'9/11*:/7/5*+(77:;1'3/<=':2(1'(32>(2*3(??1;@')2;5''208A&'B/*1'5'+23(+)SARRR:*'+:'R2(+)(1)3R:*'+:'C0-DR:*'+:'E0-D4(12>(+)R?(:'R:*'+:'0-DT>Q3*:(7R:*'+:'0-DD*;7;,Q0-D.*U'R:*'+:'0-D
M'3 HNHHO



����������	�
����������������������������������� ��!���"�#��"�� ���$�%&'(()�*+&,),-.�/(01,-,(02�+01�3)+0041�5678(94640-2

%:;<4&- =4>-;((?2�+01�@-'48�502-8:&-,(0+)�A+-48,+)2B.4+8�(C�D1(7-,(0 *8(6�A(2-E4&40-D1(7-,(0F 348&40-�%-:140-2�G+&?,0H@I0�D22,H041�/(7.J����"KLM�N���MN��!N� O P�!��P�Q!��!�L�Q!��!����""�N���P��!�����N�"����RS�N���"�������������TT"��� ����P�����LUV�#��"�P�!������W�"!���X�"� �J����"K��! �U��Y"�T�K�Z� ������[�O�"�K�Z� �"!�\�P���]���̂Z�  ���MN�����_M�J����"K���̂����W�"!���X�"� �J����"K̀������"���! �U��Y"�T�K���̂_$M$�J����"K���̂ON�!�P�N�_$M$�U���"!P�!�
a�� b$bb�c

d�"��Y!�e�!Y��Y� MX��� ����!����WW�"�d�"��Y!�e�!Y��Y�����"���̀�R������ �!����!��"���� ��!�������"��������NN�������X�� ��! ���PP�!��K������Y������!"�����!���N��N��"���$ a�� b$bb�cJ����� O P�!��P�Q!��!�L�Q!��!����""�N���P��!�����N�"����RS�N���"�������������TT"��� ����P�����LUV�#��"�P�!��J�������! �f�"��!���X���!��� a�� b$bb�cg�������! f�"W�"P�!Y��"�� O P�!��P�Q!��!�L�Q!��!����""�N���P��!�����N�"����RS�N���"�������������TT"��� ����P�����LUV�#��"�P�!��h!�"� �N���!����g�������"���"��\��ì�U��!N�� a�� b$b�cMN��!N��e�R�O#TP�jU"� ���kLlmn ��� ��� b$b�c



����������	�
��������������������������������������� !"#$%&�'()�*�!������+��������������,-.$/$'0�1%#2).'$3%�433/�5,146�7-'-�538�)9:$;-/)%'6<�283;$7)�'()�=3//3>$%&?@)')8A$%-'$3%�3=�8)2-$8�#'-':#�=38�#0#')A#�/$#')7@)#.8$2'$3%�3=�-%0�%))7)7�A-$%')%-%.)�'3�)%#:8)�&337�8)2-$84()�0)-8�-%7�A3%'(�$%�>($.(�'()�7-'-�>)8)�.3//).')74()�8-')�=38�)-.(�#0#')A�$%#2).')74()�3;)8-//�8-'$%&B)-8�-%7�A3%'(�3=�'()�A3#'�8).)%'�,14�8)238'?�C.'3D)8�EFEF
G-#)7�3%�'()�,-.$/$'0�1%#2).'$3%�433/�5,146<�28)2-8)7�D0�'()�HHCI�,-.$/'$)#�J:2)8;$#38<�H3/:#-�H3:%'0�C==$.)�3=�I7:.-'$3%�8).)$;)7�-%�3;)8-//�8-'$%&�3=�KLMNKO$%7$.-'$%&�'()�#.(33/�8-'$%&�>-#�PCC@M�C:8�=-.$/$'0�8).)$;)7�'()�8-'$%&�3=�PCC@�$%�-//�-8)-#�)Q.)2'�$%�'()�H-')&380�3=�R$%73>#S@338#SP-')#S�,)%.)#M

��!��*�T+!������ ����+U �������V�������+��W����+�X�Y�+����Z��++����!��*![�P-#�\)-]#<)̂.(-%$.-/S_̀ aH<�J)>)8 P337T+������[�1%')8$38�J:8=-.)# P337b���+��+�!![�C;)8-//�H/)-%/$%)##<c)#'S̀)8A$%�1%=)#'-'$3% P337d���������[�I/).'8$.-/ P337��!����*!e�� +���+![f)#'833A#<�J$%]#S,3:%'-$%# P337��g���[�,$8)�J-=)'0<�_-h-873:#-̂')8$-/# P337��� �� ���[�J'8:.':8-/�@-A-&)<f33=# P337



����������	�
�������
��������������������������� !�"# $%�#&�$%��"#'$���(� $�)*+���,#�$-�.($#/���01012�����3��4����5�367���8�9����:�;�+%��<=>?�,�#@A!�'�$%��&#BB#CA D�A &#�"�$A# ���B�@� $�$#�$%��<$�$��,�A#�A$E-�FG,AB�=(%A�@�"� $�HF�A#�A$E�IJ-2����K�L���MM�MM:�;�M�HAN�NO�?�BA&#� A��=''�''"� $�#&�<$G!� $�F��&#�"� (��� !�F�#D��''�P?==<FFQ�<E'$�"O�C%A(%�A (BG!�'�$%��<"��$���R�B� (�!�<G""�$A@�=''�''"� $'�&#��'$G!� $'�A �$%��D� ���B��!G(�$A# �,#,GB�$A# �� !�$%��?�BA&#� A��=B$�� �$��=''�''"� $'�P?=='Q�&#��S DBA'%�B� DG�D����$'TBA$���(E�PSU=Q�� !�"�$%�"�$A('DA@� �A �D��!�'�$%����$%�#GD%��AD%$�� !�D��!���B�@� N�. BE��BADA/B��'$G!� $'�"�E�,��$A(A,�$��A �$%���!"A A'$��$A# �#&�$%��?=='N�?=='�A$�"'������BAD �!�CA$%��B$�� �$��(%A�@�"� $�'$� !��!'O�C%A(%�����BA V�!�CA$%�$%��?#""# �?#���<$�$��<$� !��!'�P??<<Q�&#��'$G!� $'�CA$%�$%��"#'$�'AD A&A(� $�(#D A$A@��!A'�/ABA$A�'JW�� !+%��,��(� $�D��#&�'$G!� $'�C%#�%�@��'G((�''&GBBE�(#",B�$�!�(#G�'�'�$%�$�'�$A'&E�$%����XGA��"� $'�&#��� $�� (��$#�$%��Y A@��'A$E�#&�?�BA&#� A��� !�$%��?�BA&#� A��<$�$�Y A@��'A$EO�#��(������$�(% A(�B��!G(�$A# �'�XG� (�'�#��,�#D��"'�#&�'$G!ENZ88233�[�M����M6��M��;�\]8��;L�̂��9�:����M�_4��8���2�6L�;�M��̀�L�M�[9�����9�46a9�\�a9���;L�̀��L��\����;�3����;��a��4_�2�6L�;�M�̂����;a�4��\b���L�;a��9��2�����2��;L��Lc�$������ #$�(�B(GB�$�!�C%� �$%�� G"/���#&�'$G!� $'�$�'$�!�A'�$� �#��B�''O��A$%���/�(�G'��$%�� G"/���#&�'$G!� $'�A �$%A'�(�$�D#�E�A'�$##�'"�BB�&#��'$�$A'$A(�B��((G��(E�#��$#�,�#$�($'$G!� $�,�A@�(EN�

2�M��:�d;M7����L ����;a ��7����e��L�L��;L�8���4;�[�f�;�4��3��;;�L\b���;��-�FB�ED�#G !T<(%##Bg�#G !'OhA !#C'Tc##�'Tg�$�'T)� (�' )�A� h%� ���A A DO�'#"��(B�''�##"�#@��%��!��#BBiG,�!##�'�,#'��%�j��!�&�#"�#G$'A!���E�/�#C�#@��%� D'O�$#,�� !�/�B#C�!##�$%��'%%#B!'�� !�C��$%���'��B'N�=B'#O�$C#�/�(V�CA !#C�'��B'�B��VN��k�C�A $��A#��� !��l$��A#��USc�BAD%$A D�%�'�/�� �A '$�BB�!N
.@���BB�>�$A D g##!

26mn��� 2�944���opqrsopqt 2�944���opqtsopop u�M������opqrsopqt u�M������opqtsopop 2�����opqrsopqt 2�����opqtsopop



����������	�
�������
���������������������������� ��!���"�#��"�� ���$�������%���&'()*&'&'� �����"��!���������+��$�,�����������-./,0()�1�! �2�34�56�3������-" �"��07'0&'���������� ����3������� �����"�#��"�2�!��8�"�������� �������!9�8�"����&'()*&'&'��3�����:��"$�������;�"3�!��9����"��!���3��3����� ����!�����!�2+�"��8���� �!�������� ������!��"�����4������"�+�3���������!�2+�"��8���� �!����!������3���9�":���������2����8�"���������3���33�"�3:��"����1"���3����� �!��1"���3:$�������5<���! �2����2���3�������"��������!3�� ������=2�"��"�>���!3� �=�22������������2�!���! ��������$�%���?;�"3�!��@����"�563�� � ?����3��3����� �+:���A�!9����������!�2+�"��8���� �!�������2����"��63�� � ��������! �" ��!�����=2�"��"�>���!3� �=�22������������2�!��1��������������!�2+�"��8���� �!�������2����������! �" �B�$�$4��3����� <�����70����"!���C��!���������� ��� � �+:�����������!�2+�"��8���� �!�������1�"��3�1��� ��!�+����������2�!��$

DEFGHIJ DIKLLM��NOPQRNOPS DIKLLM��NOPSRNONO TUVJWUIJ�NOPQRNOPS TUVJWUIJ�NOPSRNONO DJXJH�NOPQRNOPS DJXJH�NOPSRNONO5!9�����<�!9��9���"�����<���"�3:�B9"� ���70Y��! �((C '$'Z ��� '$'Z ��� ['Z ���@����2���3��B9"� ���70Y��! �((C '$'Z ��� '$'Z ��� 7)Z ���



����������	�
����	������������	����	���������������������	����������	�������������������������������� !"#� � $�	����	������ ��	���������%��	 &�%�������	�� ������	����	�� ������	�&�	����	�� ������	�'�	�����(������)**�+,-./0,1 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)45*/ 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)6/75*/ 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)8*59:�;<�)=<>950�)7/<>950 23) 23) 23) 23) 23))7/<>950�?0.>50�;<�)*51:5�25,>@/ 23) 23) 23) 23) 23))1>50 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)6>*>A>0; 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)B>1A50>9�;<�C5,>0; 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)25,>@/�B5D5>>50�;<�E59>=>9�?1*50./< 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)FG>,/ 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)HD;�;<�4;</�I59/1 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)+;9>;/9;0;7>95**J�K>15.@50,5L/. 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)M0L*>1G�C/5<0/<1 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)+,-./0,1�D>,G�K>15N>*>,>/1 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)+,-./0,1�I/9/>@>0L�4>L<50,�M.-95,>;0�+/<@>9/1 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)6;1,/<�O;-,G 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)B;7/*/11 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)



����������	�
����������������������������������� ��!���"�#��"�� ���$�������%���&'()*&'&'� �����"��!���������+��$�,�����������-./,0()�1�! �2�34�56�3������-" �"��07'0&'���������� ����3������� �����"�#��"�2�!��8�"�������� �������!9�8�"����&'()*&'&'��3�����:��"$



����������	�
����	������	����	�������	����	��������������������	����������	������������������������������� !"#$ ! !%�	����	������ ��	������������	 &���������	�� ������	����	�� ������	�&�	����	�� ������	���	�����'������())�*+,-./+0 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(34). 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(5.64). 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(7)489�:;�(<;=84/�(6.;=84/ 12( 12( 12( 12( 12((6.;=84/�>/-=4/�:;�()4094�14+=?. 12( 12( 12( 12( 12((0=4/ 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(5=)=@=/: 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(A=0@4/=8�:;�B4+=/: 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(14+=?.�A4C4==4/�:;�D48=<=8�>0)4/-.; 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(EF=+. 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(GC:�:;�3:;.�H48.0 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(*:8=:.8:/:6=84))I�J=04-?4/+4K.- 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(L/K)=0F�B.4;/.;0 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(*+,-./+0�C=+F�J=04M=)=+=.0 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(*+,-./+0�H.8.=?=/K�3=K;4/+�L-,84+=:/�*.;?=8.0 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(5:0+.;�N:,+F 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(A:6.).00 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(



����������	�
����������������������������������� ��!���"�#��"�� ���$�������%���&'()*&'&'� �����"��!���������+��$�,�����������-./,0()�1�! �2�34�56�3������-" �"��07'0&'���������� ����3�������������"�#��"�2�!��8�"�������� �������!9�8�"����&'()*&'&'��3�����:��"$



����������	�
�������
��������������������������������� ��������!�����" #!���$�%�&�'�()��#�!�*�()���)������ ����#(��������!�����+�����(�� �',���!��(��)����#�����#�!# !
-./01�20334�56/7�-89�:;3<04�=.�>./�?0@<6?0�=;/;A�-./01�B70�CDEFGCDCD�=;/;�;?0�>./�;:;63;H30A�I<0�/.�/70�2JKLIMEF�N;>=0O6PQ�RS0P</6:0�J?=0?�-MTDMCD�5;4�644<0=�576P7�5;6:0=�/70�?0@<6?0O0>/�U.?�4/;/056=0�/04/6>V�U.?�/70CDEFGCDCD�4P7..3�W0;?A�-./01�B70�>05�2;36U.?>6;�XP60>P0�B04/�Y29XBZ�5;4�U6?4/�;=O6>64/0?0=�.N0?;/6.>;33W�6>�/70�CDE[GCDEF�4P7..3�W0;?A��������������������������������\]����!����" ��̂�" #!���$�%�&�'�()��#�!�*�()���)����_��)����̀�# �abcdeababf

���\g��� ��)����abcheabcd ��)����abcdeabab i��� ����abcheabcd i��� ����abcdeabab ��#���abcheabcd ��#���abcdeababXP60>P0�YV?;=04�jQ�[Q�;>=�76V7�4P7..3Z MM -89 MM -89 TD -89
���!����" ��̂ ���#��'� ���k��� l�k\� ������! �� ����������! �� �����l��������! �� �����+���� �',���!�!933�X/<=0>/4 -89 -89 -89 -89 -89m;30 -89 -89 -89 -89 -89n0O;30 -89 -89 -89 -89 -89o3;Pp�.?�9U?6P;>�9O0?6P;> -89 -89 -89 -89 -899O0?6P;>�L>=6;>�.?�93;4p;�-;/6:0 -89 -89 -89 -89 -89946;> -89 -89 -89 -89 -89n636N6>. -89 -89 -89 -89 -89q64N;>6P�.?�r;/6>. -89 -89 -89 -89 -89-;/6:0�q;5;66;>�.?�s;P6U6P�L43;>=0? -89 -89 -89 -89 -89



����������	�
����������������������������������� ��!���"�#��"�� ���$�������%���&'()*&'&'� �����"��!���������+��$�,�����������-./,0()�1�! �2�34�56�3������-" �"��07'0&'���������� ����3������� �����"�#��"�2�!��8�"�������� �������!9�8�"����&'()*&'&'��3�����:��"$�

;<=>?@<�ABC=D EC<FG�H@BCGGI?@< J=IK?B�E?L<?> M?BN?@<�E?L<?> M?BN?@<�JC<�E?L<?> M?BN?@<�O?<�CB�HPN??>?>Q���� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���%����"�R�"��S�3�� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���T�3���3�!�2�3���:�,��� ��!��9� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���5!9�����U��"!�"� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���T�� �!��������,���+������� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���T�� �!���S�3����!9�R�9"�!��5 �3����!�T�"��3�� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���V����"�W���� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���X�2����� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���



����������	�
�������

������������������������������� �!��"��#$��%������&����'()*+'('( 

������������������������������� �!������,�������%������&����'()*+'('( 

-./�01�02/�.345./�360.7/�18�02/�9:�;4<<46=�>?/<�>@6A/=B�C9;>>D�63A�02/�=1?4<40B�18�02/�E0.A/30E�F21�600/3A�40G�02/�E@211<�26E�.04<4H/A�@67//7�0/@234@6<�7/E1.7@/E�01I71J4A/��6�=.<040.A/�18�1II170.3404/E�817�@67//7�/KI<1760413:��L102�=4AA</�E@211<�63A�24M2�E@211<�E0.A/30E�26J/�02/�@263@/�01�/KI<17/�6�J674/0B�18�43A.E07B�E/@017E�1J/702/�@1.7E/�18�02/47�04=/�60�9;>>:�N2/�E@211<�I71J4A/E�O/0�P1@.E/AG�906B�P1@.E/A�=60/746<E�817�E0.A/30E�01�@7/60/�6�E1<4A�81.3A60413�817�@67//7�/KI<1760413:��Q</@04J/E63A�263AER13�6@04J404/E�67/�A/E4M3/A�01�188/7�6�763M/�18�1I0413E�817�E0.A/30E:��90.A/30E�26J/�02/�1II170.340B�01�M643�@/70484@60413�43�9/7J968/�63A�-74J/7SE�QA.@60413F24@2�F4<<�6EE4E0�02/=�43�?/43M�I7/I67/A�817�02/�F17<A�18�F17T:U3�6AA40413G�02/�P67=�01�9@211<�V71M76=G�6<E1�21.E/A�60�02/�QA.@60413�W4<<6M/G�I71J4A/E�=.<04I</�1II170.3404/E�817�E0.A/30E�01�/KI<17/�6M74@.<0.7/G�EI/@484@6<<B21704@.<0.7/G�F402�X263AER13X�6@04J404/E:��N2/�764E/A�M67A/3�?/AE�?.4<0�?B�E0.A/30E�@1=?43/A�F402�02/�=1A/73�M7//321.E/�6<<1F�E0.A/30E�01�M643�6M74@.<0.7/�/KI/74/3@/F24</�600/3A43M�9;>>:�N2/�P67=�01�9@211<�906T/21<A/7�Y//043ME�E/7J/�6E�6AJ4E17B�@1==400//�=//043ME�817�02/�P67=�01�9@211<Z>M74@.<0.7/�V602F6B:��N2/�U3A.E07BE/@017E�7/I7/E/30/A�?B�02/E/�43A4J4A.6<E�43@<.A/�>M74@.<0.7/G�L.E43/EE�[�P4363@/G�\/6<02G�63A�>AJ63@/A�Y63.86@0.743M:�]67//7�P647EG�84/<A�074IE�63A�M./E0�EI/6T/7EI71J4A/�E0.A/30E�02/�1II170.340B�01�I6704@4I60/�43�F17TR?6E/A�</67343M�6@04J404/E:943@/�02/�E0.A/30�I1I.<60413�60�9;>>�4E�0763E4/30�63A�02/�/371<<=/30�E=6<<G�40�4E�A4884@.<0�01�188/7�@67//7�I602F6B�E/5./3@/A�@1.7E/E�63A�02/7/817/G�A4884@.<0�01�26J/I71M76=�@1=I</0/7E:��;24</�]NQ�@<6EE/E�67/�6<4M3/A�01�]NQ�Y1A/<�].774@.<.=�9063A67AEG�02/�E0.A/30E�/3̂1B�02/�1II170.340B�01�I6704@4I60/�43�02/�X263AER13X�</67343M/3J4713=/30:�
_��$��� ����!��"��#�!������,�����.̀=?/7�18�V.I4<E�V6704@4I6043M�43�]NQ aV/7@/30�18�V.I4<E�0260�]1=I</0/�6�]NQ�V71M76=�63A�Q673�6�\4M2�9@211<�-4I<1=6 b:bbcV/7@/30�18�]NQ�]1.7E/E�0260�67/�9/5./3@/A�17�>704@.<60/A�L/0F//3�02/�9@211<�63A�U3E040.0413E�18�V1E0E/@13A67B�QA.@60413 b:bbc



����������	�
�������
����������	�
������

����������	�
������

���������������������������������������� ���!"��������������#������������������#� �$!%������
#�����&�������'�(�)���&�*���(��+�%��,-.�/012�345678.9�:-.�;5<<5=7>?�7>;54@A:75>�4.<.6A>:�:5�:-.�/:A:.�347547:BC�D:-.4�EF37<�DF:G5@.9�HE47547:B�IJCEF37<�5F:G5@.9�7>�:-.�9FKL.G:�A4.A�5;�3-B97GA<�.8FGA:75>�����������&)���+���M�������N����O��������#+)����P����QRSTUQRQR VA:A�A4.�>5:�GA<GF<A:.8�=-.>�:-.�>F@K.4�5;�9:F8.>:9�:.9:.8�79�:.>�54�<.99W�.7:-.4�K.GAF9.�:-.�>F@K.4�5;�9:F8.>:9�7>�:-79�GA:.?54B�79�:55�9@A<<�;54�9:A:79:7GA<�AGGF4AGB�54�:5�345:.G:9:F8.>:�3476AGBX�Y5:.C�2.<<9�=7:-�YZ0�6A<F.9�85�>5:�4.[F74.�8A:AX�Y5:.C�,-.�\]̂_̀\]\]�8A:A�A4.�>5:�A6A7<AK<.X�VF.�:5�:-.�2DabVĉ_�3A>8.@7GW�de.GF:76.�D48.4�Ycfgc\]�=A9�799F.8�=-7G-�=A76.8�:-.�4.[F74.@.>:�:5�A8@7>79:.4�:-.�3-B97GA<;7:>.99�3.4;54@A>G.�:.9:�;54�:-.�\]̂_̀\]\]�9G-55<�B.A4X#�����&�������'�&��������h������%���,-.�/012�345678.9�:-.�;5<<5=7>?�7>;54@A:75>�4.<.6A>:�:5�:-.�/:A:.�347547:BC�EA4.>:A<�b>65<6.@.>:�HE47547:B�iJCd;;54:9�:-.�9G-55<�879:47G:�@Aj.9�:5�9..j�3A4.>:�7>3F:�7>�@Aj7>?�8.G7975>9�;54�:-.�9G-55<�879:47G:�A>8�.AG-�9G-55<�97:.(**���������������&��������h������%�����#+)����P����QRQRUQRQS 

��"�#���������k������ &��+���\]̂_̀\]\]�EF37<9�d>45<<.8�7>�25F49.9�1.[F74.8�;54�l2Z2/l�08@79975> ]X]]m\]̂Ì\]̂_�n4A8FA:.9�o-5�25@3<.:.8�0<<�25F49.9�1.[F74.8�;54�l2Z2/l�08@79975> ]X]]m
p��!�q���� &��+����r�����#��!�����k�����r�M�������#�sM�������#���!��!� &��+����r�����#��!�����k�����r�M�������#�sM�������#���!��!� &��+����r�����#��!�����k�����r�#�s����#�sM�������#���!��!�



����������	�
����������������������������������� ���!"#�$%&'�()*+,-#.�/"#�0*11*2,34�,30*)56/,*3�)#1#+63/�/*�/"#�$/6/#�(),*),/78�9:(,1�;3464#5#3/�<9),*),/7�=>8?,4"�.@"**1�-)*(*:/�)6/#.A�63-?,4"�.@"**1�4)6-:6/,*3�)6/#.B�������C������D�E��D�������C����FG���HI����J�K����C���LM6/6�6)#�3*/�@61@:16/#-�2"#3�/"#�3:5N#)�*0�./:-#3/.�/#./#-�,.�/#3�*)�1#..O�#,/"#)�N#@6:.#�/"#�3:5N#)�*0�./:-#3/.�,3�/",.�@6/#4*)7�,.�/**�.5611�0*)�./6/,./,@61�6@@:)6@7�*)�/*�()*/#@/./:-#3/�(),+6@7P��

96)#3/.�6)#�,3+,/#-�/*�(6)/,@,(6/#�,3�.@"**1�6@/,+,/,#.�63-�6)#�61.*�,3+*1+#-�,3�/"#,)�./:-#3/Q.�1#6)3,34�()*4)#..�6/�/"#�$P�R,11,65�%N#1�%@6-#57P��96)#3/�,3+*1+#5#3/�,3(6)#3/�@*30#)#3@#.O�S;9Q.O�$/:-#3/�$/:-7�!#65�5##/,34.O�T'%9�'*55,//##�U##/,34.O�63-�/"#�*((*)/:3,/7�/*�+*1:3/##)�,3�/"#�@16..)**5�6)#�V:./�6�0#2�267.�(6)#3/.(6)/,@,(6/#P��96)#3/�@*30#)#3@#.�N#4,3�6/�/"#�N#4,33,34�*0�/"#�.@"**1�7#6)�2,/"�63�,3/6W#�5##/,34O�0*11*2#-�,55#-,6/#17�2,/"�$/:-#3/�S3-,+,-:61,X#-�T#6)3,34�9163�<ST9>5##/,34.��2",@"�/"#3�*@@:)�#+#)7�.,Y�2##W.�63-��6�@*30#)#3@#�60/#)�#6@"�4)6-,34�(#),*-P��R"#3�(6)#3/.�6)#�:36N1#�/*�6//#3-O�6�0*11*2�:(�5##/,34�,.�)#.@"#-:1#-63-Z*)�("*3#�@611.�6)#�56-#�/*�@*55:3,@6/#�/"#�,30*)56/,*3P��?*5#�+,.,/.�6)#�.@"#-:1#-�*3�63�6.�3##-#-�N6.,.O�N:/��(6)#3/.�"6+#�/"#�*((*)/:3,/7�/*�()*+,-#0##-N6@W�2"#3�5#61.�6)#�-#1,+#)#-�/*�./:-#3/.�#6@"�2##WP��!)63.16/,*3�63-�,3/#)()#/6/,*3�6)#�6+6,16N1#�0*)�/"*.#�(6)#3/.�2"*�-*�3*/�.(#6W�;341,."P�%11�./:-#3/.�63-(6)#3/.�)#@#,+#�6�$/:-#3/�?63-N**W�6/�/"#�,3,/,61�,3/6W#�5##/,34�"#1-�6/�/"#�N#4,33,34�*0�/"#�.@"**1�7#6)P��96)#3/.�6)#�,3+,/#-�/*�(6)/,@,(6/#�,3�0,#1-�/),(.�61.*P�[((*)/:3,/7�0*)�0##-N6@W�*3�"*2�/*�,5()*+#�/"#�$P�R,11,65�%N#1�%@6-#57�,.�()*+,-#-�/")*:4"�.:)+#7.�6.�2#11�6.�6/�T'%9�$/6W#"*1-#)�U##/,34.PM:#�/*�/"#�/)63.,#3@7�*0�/"#�./:-#3/�(*(:16/,*3�6�.@"**1�.,/#�@*:3@,1�,.�-,00,@:1/�/*�56,3/6,3O�N:/�2,11�N#�6�0:/:)#�0*@:.�*0�$R%%P

�\�D�]���� �]K���_̂̀ab̂_̀c �]K���_̂̀cb̂_̀d �]K���_̂̀db̂_̀e B�f���]��_̂̀ab̂_̀c B�f���]��_̂̀cb̂_̀d B�f���]��_̂̀db̂_̀e ������_̂̀ab̂_̀c ������_̂̀cb̂_̀d ������_̂̀db̂_̀eM)*(*:/�&6/# gg h=Pijk hlPmjk gg h=Pijk hlPmjk nPojk nPljk nPjjkp)6-:6/,*3�&6/# gg =iPojk m=P=jk jPjjk =iPojk m=P=jk qrPijk qhPjjk qmP=jkB������sE��D�������C����FG���HI����J�K����C���L�JK���



����������	�
�������������������������������������� !�"#$%�&'()*+!,�- !�.(//(0*12�*1.('34-*(1�'!/!)41-�-(�- !�"-4-!�&'*('*-56�"7 ((/�%/*34-!�89'*('*-5�:;69<&*/�,<,&!1,*(1�'4-!,=9<&*/�!>&</,*(1�'4-!,=�41+?- !'�/(74/�3!4,<'!,�(1�- !�,!1,!�(.�,4.!-5@4-4�4'!�1(-�74/7</4-!+�0 !1�- !�1<3A!'�(.�,-<+!1-,�-!,-!+�*,�-!1�('�/!,,B�!*- !'�A!74<,!�- !�1<3A!'�(.�,-<+!1-,�*1�- *,�74-!2('5�*,�-((�,34//�.('�,-4-*,-*74/�477<'475�('�-(�&'(-!7-,-<+!1-�&'*)475C
DEF:GDEFH DEFHGDEFI DEFIGDEFJKLME

MLLE
LL:E @'(&(<-�$4-!N'4+<4-*(1�$4-!

�OPQ�RP��RP��RS�TUQO�P��RPVS������������S�W��X��R�YO�������OZ��YOR�[������\O���P�������������PQ����]���̂



����������	�
���������������������������������� ����!�"��#��$� ����%!���"!�!�!%������&�'�!%!($������% �%�)�!%�"!�!�(�&!�������������������&���$�)�!%� ��!��!%� !$��&���$�)�!%�"���������*+,-./���&% � �0�1����&�2� ��3��$"�(�� �!��%��% !������'!4��!�)�&�'�!% ����� ��%!�����5�������� ����!�"��#��$� ���� �����������������&���$�)�!%�&�'�!%�"�����% �%�)�!%�067899:�6;<=>?�@:;A�B67899:�C=;D�EFEFGEFEHI

��6JKL=AKM9AK�;AN�OPLJ:KM9AK�<9D�67899:�C=;D�EFHQGEFEF�RA:?BN;>;�79::=7>=N�S=>T==A�UJ:?�>8D9JV8�W=SDJ;D?X�L;D>M;:�K7899:�?=;D�NJ=�>9�>8=�YRZ[\]HQ�L;AN=̂ M7I
_;>=67899:�EFH̀GEFHa67899:�EFHaGEFHQ\MK>DM7>�EFH̀GEFHa\MK>DM7>�EFHaGEFHQ6>;>=�EFH̀GEFHa6>;>=�EFHaGEFHQ

b������ ����0c�d�e0��df0g�d��0h�di0g�di0g�d
�j#��$� ����0��d�0��d�0��d�0��d�0��d�0��d_;>=67899:�EFHQGEFEF\MK>DM7>�EFHQGEFEF6>;>=�EFHQGEFEF
b������ ����0��d�0��d�0g�d �j#��$� ����0��d�0��d�0��d

����*�'�%����� k��b&���$�b!5��)�l$!��5�%������3!��!��%�k�"����m�(%�!%)��e2�����0����������/���b&���$�b!5��)�l$!�� ���&��"�$�"����(��" �&����"�!�"%�&�''��"�"�&�!�n���'!"�����m�(%�!%)��f2�����0��o�"!������������!5��)��$!�� �&$�" �n�*+,-./����b!5��)�l%���&�$��!%��(� �n�!""�"0�������!5��)��$!�� �&$�"���&�%� �5�%'!� ���%�n!%" �n������&���$2� ���&$ '!��2�!�"�����"�'�n%!�� &���5������&���$0��-��!"" � ��2�����4�)��$�'������5������$!�� �&$�"��



����������	
	��������������	
	�������������������������������������������������������	
	���	����������	�������	������������	� ���	!�������	���������������"��������������#�$������	����������������	��������$���	%���������	������&���'��	���������(�)���	��������	������������� ���	!�������������	����



����������	�
�������
����������������������������  !�"#��#�!#������ �$#���%��$�!�&��!$��'�����()*�+,-./012+.,�+,�2)+3�3*42+.,�+3�/*56+/*7�2.�8*�+,�2)*�9:;<�862�+3�,.2�+,4=67*7�+,�2)*�3212*�>/+./+2+*3�-./�?<@@A()*�+,-./012+.,�+,�2)+3�3*42+.,�+3�/*56+/*7�2.�8*�+,�2)*�9:;<�862�+3�,.2�+,4=67*7�+,�2)*�3212*�>/+./+2+*3�-./�?<@@A:B*/1C*�<=133�9+D*�1,7�<=133�9+D*�E+32/+862+.,�FG=*0*,21/HI�94)..=�J*1/�FKLMNOKLMPI

�Q�'��R��� S��!������#��#��$���� T����U��!������S�!!�#�$ �������#V����$�� �U�W�������� S�$ $�!��$����$�������!���XY�QQ�Z[$���Z���$�� �U�#��S ����!$#\������!�]�!��!�����Y�:B*/1C*�<=133�9+D*�1,7�<=133�9+D*�E+32/+862+.,�FG=*0*,21/HI�94)..=�J*1/�FKLMPOKLM̂I
_/17*�?*B*=:B*/1C*�<=133�9+D*6̀08*/�.-�<=133*3�a�MbKL6̀08*/�.-�<=133*3�a�KMbcK6̀08*/�.-�<=133*3�a�ccd

efYfffff
� gfYfffff

� hfYfffff
� ifYfffff

� jfYfffff
� kfYfkgff

� lfYfffff
�[$���QQhYffgff



����������	�
��������������������������������� ���!�"����#���������������� �����!���$���� �%��#�&�����%����� � ���� ���� ��'��������()�����*+ !��*��� �%��#����������� �,%�������-����������)./01230�45266�7890�2:;�45266�7890�<86=18>?=8@:�A70B@:;21CD�A7BE@@5�F021�GHIJKGHILD

��������������������������� ���!�"����#���������������� �����!���$���� �%��#�&�����%����� � ���� ���� ��'��������()����*+ !��*��� �%��#����������� �,%�������-����������)�./01230�45266�7890�2:;�45266�7890�<86=18>?=8@:�AM50N0:=21CD�7BE@@5�F021�AGHIOKGHGHD
P12;0�Q0/05./01230�45266�7890R?N>01�@S�4526606�T�IUGHR?N>01�@S�4526606�T�GIUVGR?N>01�@S�4526606�T�VVW

XY)YYYYY
� ZY)YYYYY

� [Y)YYYYY
� \Y)YYYYY

� ]Y)YYYYY
�Ŷ)YYYYY

� _Y)YYYYY
�+ !����\)YY[YY

P12;0�Q0/05./01230�45266�7890R?N>01�@S�4526606�T�IUGHR?N>01�@S�4526606�T�GIUVGR?N>01�@S�4526606�T�VVW
XY)YYYYY
� ZY)YYYYY

� [Y)YYYYY
� \Y)YYYYY

� ]Y)YYYYY
�Ŷ)YYYYY

� _Y)YYYYY
�+ !����[)YY[YY



����������	
������������������	�����������		���
������	��������������	����������	
��	���������������������		��������������	��������		���������������
	����	��������	����������������������������������������� !"#$%"�&'$((�)*+"�$,-�&'$((�)*+"�.*(/#*01/*2,�3)"42,-$#56�3)4722'�8"$#�9:;<=9:;>6
����������	
������������������	�����������		���
������	��������������	����������	
��	���������������������		��������������	��������		���������������
	����	��������	����������������������������������������� !"#$%"�&'$((�)*+"�$,-�&'$((�)*+"�.*(/#*01/*2,�3)"42,-$#56�3)4722'�8"$#�9:;>=9:9:6

)10?"4/ !"#$%"�&'$((�)*+"@1A0"#�2B�&'$(("(�C�;D99@1A0"#�2B�&'$(("(�C�9EDE9@1A0"#�2B�&'$(("(�C�EEF
G������HI�IIJII

�K��������HI�IIJII
�L������HI�IIJII

�L	����L������HI�IIJII
)10?"4/ !"#$%"�&'$((�)*+"@1A0"#�2B�&'$(("(�C�;D99@1A0"#�2B�&'$(("(�C�9EDE9@1A0"#�2B�&'$(("(�C�EEF

G������M�IINII
�K��������O�IIOII

�L������M�IIOII
�L	����L������M�IINII



����������	�
�������
����������	�
�������

�������������������������� ���!�"����#������������������� �����!���$���� �%��#�&�����%����� � ���� ���� ��'������������()�* � !����������#���!������+��,� !���������� ��������'�� ����#����-�� �������� !��� !���%�������+��)./012�23�456178�02�9:/;<=1:�>25?8<72@�AB:C227�D</@�EFGHIEFEFJ
�K�������� �����L��+���� �&MNO(��L���������� �����������"��P��%������ ���Q�����MNO��������������'����� � "��� ������������"!�����!�"��P�RS�'����� ��������� ���)�B05;<?0�B5662@0�B<@T1:<8�B0/33�AB:C227�D</@�EFGHIEFEFJU�������� ����"� !�V�!�+����W��� !� �P���'����� ��'��+������������������������%������� ��+�� ����'��%�������������� ���� �)��X'������O���� ����� ���� ������'��+��������+����+��� !����YOZ)�

B5[\<:09T<@/]<�>7/88�B1̂<_5=[<@�23�>7/88<8�̀�GaEE_5=[<@�23�>7/88<8�̀�EbabE_5=[<@�23�>7/88<8�̀�bbc
O�%���!d)SSeSSS

�f� !��� ���d)SSgSS
�X������d)SSRSS

�X������X������d)SShSS
i107< ./012Z�'���� ��*��������U��������� S)ej

� _5=[<@�23�kil̀�9881]?<;�02�B:C227U���������&*�������,�X�����mV�!�+���������U������n�+���'��� ( S)ejo�����#�f�����N���!���&o��������( S)SSo�����#�f�����X��+�����X ����&Z���'�����������( S)SS



����������	�
�������

����������	�
�������

���������������������������� !"������#�$���#��������%�&�'$&(��)����������*�$���� !�+$��,���#$�&�-&�#�����'$�#��������%�&#�'.$���+.�'$&(�/0�-�&+����$�����������123456789:;5<�=5;�=:48>�?67�@ABCC>�@895�D5?AB5;�@?>?;85<�EF8<A?>�G5?;�HIJKLHIJMN
O$��P�Q���#�'��.�ORS������#�,$��$��&����&��,���1

� T:UV5;�CW�FD2X�Y<<8Z657�9C�@ABCC>[#\+.$�$)�#� 0100]$+����̂$&(�& 0100O�&#� 0100]-��+.R_��)��)�R̀��&��)�]-�+����#� 0100a�#$�&+��]-�+����#����$�b���+.��)" 0100��.�& 01/0
c5d5> DC9?>�23456789:;5<�=5;�=:48> 23456789:;5<�=5;�=:48>�Ee5<9;8A957N 23456789:;5<�=5;�=:48>�Ef6;5<9;8A957N Yd5;?Z5�D5?AB5;�@?>?;g]+.$$��]��� hijkl1ji bb hijkl1ji hi//jm1n0o�#�&�+� ORS ORS hijkl1ji hi//jm1n0[�&+����o����&��+��p�]+.$$��]������,�o�#�&�+� ORS ORS 0100q 0100q]���� ORS ORS hkk/01mr bb[�&+����o����&��+��p�]+.$$��]������,�]���� ORS ORS bmm1rnq brm100q



����������	�
�������

������������������������� ����!"�#�!��$%&'($%$%)*+,-./0�0,+12�+/1�34.55�526253�78�2+9:�3;<12/;�+;�;:2�=>�?.55.+@�AB25�A9+12@-�,2C<.,2�;:+;�;:2�;2+9:2,�126257D�./1.6.1<+5.E21�52+,/./0�7DD7,;</.;.23>��F:2�G/1.6.1<+5.E21H2+,/./0�I5+/3�JGHIK3L�+,2�9,.;.9+5�./�D,76.1./0�+�9:+552/0./0�+/1�,2526+/;�21<9+;.7/�9<3;7@.E21�87,�2+9:�./1.6.1<+5�3;<12/;>�F:2�GHI�.3�,26.2M21�262,-�3.N�M2243�M.;:3;<12/;3�+/1�D+,2/;3>�O/�+�@7/;:5-�B+3.3P�3;+88�@22;3�M.;:�./1.6.1<+5�3;<12/;3�;7�,26.2M�D,70,233�;7M+,13�0,+1<+;.7/�+/1�;7�@71.8-�GHI3>��Q<,;:2,@7,2P�+D+,2/;R;2+9:2,R3;<12/;�97/82,2/92�.3�:251�+;�;:2�2/1�78�2+9:�0,+1./0�D2,.71�;7��,26.2M�D,70,233�+/1�07+53�+997@D5.3:21>��F:2�95+33,77@�;2+9:2,�@+./;+./3�<D1+;219,21.;�,2D7,;3�87,�3;<12/;K3�D,70,233�+/1�D,76.123�0,+1<+;.7/�3;+;<3�,2D7,;3�;7�3;<12/;3�97/3.3;2/;5->A�97</3257,�.3�D,76.121�;7�=?AA�3;<12/;3�87,�+9+12@.9�+3�M255�+3�379.7S2@7;.7/+5�3<DD7,;>��F:2�97</3257,�D,76.123�<D1+;21�T�USV2+,�I5+/3T�+;�;:2�2/1�78�2+9:32@23;2,�;7�2+9:�3;<12/;�;7�1.39<33�97<,32�,2C<.,2@2/;3�87,�0,+1<+;.7/�+/1�8<;<,2�D5+/3>�F:2�97</3257,�+537�D,76.123�7/2S7/S7/2�3<DD7,;�87,�2+9:�=?AA�3;<12/;>F:2�;2+9:2,�+/1�D,./9.D+5�M7,4�9755+B7,+;.625-�;7�./1.6.1<+5.E2�2+9:�3;<12/;K3�52+,/./0�D5+/�B+321�7/�26+5<+;.7/�78�;,+/39,.D;3P�34.55�52625P�52+,/./0�@71+5.;.23�+/1./;2,23;3>��=;<12/;3�:+62�+99233�;7�W1@2/;<@P�+/�7/5./2�9<,,.9<5<@�;:+;�D,76.123�./3;,<9;.7/�+;�+55�526253�+/1�D,78.9.2/9.23>��F:2�;2+9:2,�9+/�B52/1�./3;,<9;.7/�37�;:+;3;<12/;3�9+/�<32�B7;:�;29:/7570-�+/1�;,+1.;.7/+5�./3;,<9;.7/+5�@+;2,.+53�;7�@22;�;:2.,�52+,/./0�/2213>��A/�G/12D2/12/;�=;<1-�OD;.7/�.3�+6+.5+B52�;7�3;<12/;3�M.3:./0�;797@D52;2�;:2.,�97<,32�M7,4�7<;3.12�78�;:2�1+.5-�95+33,77@�32;;./0>�X<2�;7�YO*GXSZ[�=:25;2,S./SI5+92�O,12,3�./�\+,9:�]̂]̂P�+55�3;<12/;3�M2,2�D,76.121�126.923�+/1�G/;2,/2;�97//29;.6.;-�;7�D+,;.9.D+;2�./�X.3;+/92�H2+,/./0�G/3;,<9;.7/>I,./;21�@+;2,.+53�M2,2�+537�D,76.121�D2,�3;<12/;�+/1�D+,2/;�,2C<23;>��G/�+11.;.7/P�@2+53�M2,2�125.62,21��;7�3;<12/;3�:7@23�;M.92�M2245-�;7�2/3<,2�;:+;�3;<12/;3�M2,2D,76.121�8771>��GHI�@22;./03�M2,2�97/62/21�B<;�17/2�37�6.,;<+55->



����������	�
	����������������������������������������������� !" #$�%&'�%'()&'*�(�+�,*-�)-,(.�,/0-%-/�0�1'*'�)/23-�'+�-�%/�/�'�,/0-%-/�4

5/*�+'%(-.'+�-�6/*2(%-/��/��0(.(*-'0$�0''�%&'�789�7'*%-6-)(%'+�:(.(*-'0�;�<'�'6-%0�1'3�,(='�(%�&%%,0>??1114)+'4)(4=/@?+0?6+?)0?�4

A���BC�D E�������
�CF�� ������
����B���C��E�������G�������A���BC�D<'=-��-�=�H'()&'*�:(.(*I J!�$#!K ""L-+"M(�='�H'()&'*�:(.(*I J#N$NKO ""P-=&'0%�H'()&'*�:(.(*I J �O$��� ""Q@'*(='�R*-�)-,(.�:(.(*I�S9.'2'�%(*IT "" ""Q@'*(='�R*-�)-,(.�:(.(*I�SL-++.'T J#N$NKO ""Q@'*(='�R*-�)-,(.�:(.(*I�SP-=&T J#N$NKO "":U,'*-�%'�+'�%�:(.(*I J OK$VNW ""R'*)'�%�/6�<U+='%�6/*�H'()&'*�:(.(*-'0 "" ""R'*)'�%�/6�<U+='%�6/*�Q+2-�-0%*(%-@'�:(.(*-'0 "" ""�������������D�A����



�������������	
�������� �������������	
�������� ���
�������	
�����������������������������������������

���� �!"#�$"#"�%�&'"�(



����������	�
������������������������������������ ��!���" ��������������������������#�$$��" ��������������������������%��&"'('''')''''*''''+'''','''''



���������	
���
����
�
���������������
�
�������� ! �
"#$%&'()%#
*+,#(-.+)-
'&
/012#-%')
3456
7
8-(++-

9:;<
=>?:<@?A
BCDECDFDB

GHIJKLMH
NOJLMPMKQ
RGNS
TUVWXMX
RYLZUUO
[MJW
\]̂_̀\]\]S

abcded
fcded
ged
hfijdkf
lmiehd
dkemnnodkfh
mp
gf
ndghf
mkd
hfijdkfqNWUrMXXsUKJO
tMIMOUuPMKQ

NMWLMKQ
Ur
YQVHMKQX
sK
GN
TUVWXMX
vqvvw
YVxyMLQ zVPxMW
Ur
GN
TUVWXMX
{rrMWMH|}mo~ifde
�l�dkld v�k�n�hc v��kd
gkj
�depmeo�k�
�efh v�med��k
�gk�ig�d v�gfcdogf�lh v�l�dkld v�ml�gn
�l�dkld v�mfgn
��
}miehdh
�ppdedja v
�MJXVWM \]̂�̀\]̂_ \]̂_̀\]\] \]\]̀\]\̂�io�de
mp
hlcmmn
jg�h
jdj�lgfdj
fm
�fgpp
�d�dnm~odkf
gkj
}mkf�kimih
�o~em�dodkf � � �



���������	
��������



���������	�
���������������
���������	�����
��
 ���������
� !"
#	�� !"
#	�

$$
�%
&�����
 ���
 ������%
&�����
 ���
 �����'()*+'('(
,-.//�
0--/1���23�3�4
5�6/��
7��809
7/�83�3/��
/:
;����3�<,����
=�3/�3�4>
?��3-�@�
� !"
A�	B����
�@�
C	��	����
��C	����	�
����B���
�	
�@�
�����
A��	����D
E����
F���	����
GHD������
�	
�@��@
����@���
���
�AA�	A�������
��������
���
C����
������������
��
�@�
���I���
����
���
C	�
�@�
A�A���
�@��
���
����@���J��A���
@�B�
������
�	
���������K�������
���������	���
��������J
�����@		�
C���������
���
���������
��
�		�
��A������-.��
7��8���3��� 
���-.��� ,-.//�'()L+'()* ,-.//�
'()*+'('( ,-.//�
'('(+'(') M3���3-�
'('(+'(')&��@
N���
"��������� O P O O&��@	��
N���
"��������� Q Q G G����@���
����@���
R������
���I���
 ���
	C
"	A������
F���@
C���
����������H Q G Q Q



����������	�
�������������������������������������������������� ���� ��!������ � "#$%&"#$' "#$'&"#"# "#"#&"#"$()*+**),-./-0*�12�3/+45/6*�12�7-,8)*5�9/+6-/6* : : :310+8�3/+45/6�()*+**),-./-0*; : : :<+4+-0�3/+45/6�=1*)0)1-* : : :
:>:: ?>:: @>:::>::>A?>:

?>A@>:@>A
B>:B>AC>:
C>A 3/+45/6*�D)05�EF88�G6/H/-0)+83/+45/6*�D)051F0�EF88�G6/H/-0)+83/+45/6*�3/+45)-,�IF0*)H/�JFKL/40�M6/+�12�G1.N/0/-4/



����������	�
����������������������������������������� ���!�"������#�����������$$�%�"&����' ����( ��$�')�$���$��!� ���*������������' �� ������%��$�+�$,��!"-�'������,���!%�������!#,���'.�/�0���$�0��' ��������������������'$!%���� ���!�"������������������������0��' �������1��$�� �2�������.�3456789:�;4<<=>?9:�@A5765B76789�CD�E=F8BCCGH�5>I�J8K=<�L>H8<4?87C>56�M58=<756H�NO?KCC6�P=5<�QRQRSQRQTUV������%����� ����( �' �� ��%����(����'�$$�'��%��W��!��&�XYXZO4B[=?8 E=F8BCCGH�5>I�J8K=<�L>H8<4?87C>56�M58=<756H\9=5<�CD�@IC]87C> <̂C_�MCH8=̀?=>8@IC]87C>a b=<?=>8�O84I=>8H�c5?G7>dJe>�@HH7d>=I�;C]9
XYZfgXYZh XYZhgXYXY XYXYgXYXZiZ.YiY.j

Y.YY.j
Z.Y ������������������0��' �������1��$�� �2�������0���$�0��' �����������������/k�'����0��' ���l��������



������� ��	��

�������������������
�����������������
���
���
� ��
��
����������
���
� !��������������"�����#�$�����#���%
��&'()*+,-.(+,/(,'0123 4)5'+2/56+7*+'86+7*+'9/11*:/7/5*+(77:;1'3/<=':2(1'(32>(2*3(??1;@')2;5''208A&'B/*1'5'+234+,7*3>C0-D4+,7*3>E0-D4+,7*3>F0-D4+,7*3>GH0-D4+,7*3>GG0-D4+,7*3>GI0-DJ;720)(?2')K+2'1(:2*@'&'()'139;/13'G8L
M'3 HNHHO

P(2>'5(2*:3 4)5'+2/56+7*+'86+7*+'9/11*:/7/5*+(77:;1'3/<=':2(1'(32>(2*3(??1;@')2;5''208A&'B/*1'5'+23P(2>C0-DP(2>E0-D07,'<1(G0-D07,'<1(I0-D9;+3/5'1P(2>'5(2*:3A';5'21Q0-D
M'3 HNHHO

R:*'+:' 4)5'+2/56+7*+'86+7*+'9/11*:/7/5*+(77:;1'3/<=':2(1'(32>(2*3(??1;@')2;5''208A&'B/*1'5'+23(+)SARRR:*'+:'R2(+)(1)3R:*'+:'C0-DR:*'+:'E0-D4(12>(+)R?(:'R:*'+:'0-DT>Q3*:(7R:*'+:'0-DD*;7;,Q0-D.*U'R:*'+:'0-D
M'3 HNHHO



����������	�
�������
����������	�
�������

������� ���������������� �!�"���!���#���$�%���!#�$�&'��!��(�)��*�#�� +!�,�%���-�����)��*�#��. /�!��������������0���#�1�2��)��#1����3�*'456789:;<8=5>?<=5@A=@ BCD@A7ED�FA?5A@;�FA?5A@�GE995=E?ED�5A�>??�=89@�6EHI@=7�>9@>6�7J>7�56�>KK98L@C�78�D@@7�M;NO@PE59@D@A76G>?5Q89A5>�R89?C�456789:�>AC�N@8S9>KJ:TU@C5@L>?�V�B>9?:�U8C@9A�W5D@6�X�MYZU5CC?@�<=J88?�[<�456789:�MYZG>?5Q89A5>�R89?C�456789:\�GE?7E9@�>AC�N@8S9>KJ:�MYZ[]<]�456789:�MYZB=8A8D5=6[]<]�N8L@9AD@A7
@̂6 _]__�̀

a89@5SA�b>ASE>S@ <RMM�C8@6�A87�8QQ@9�a89@5SA�b>ASE>S@�G8E96@6\�HE7�67EC@A76�5A7@9@67@C�5A�7J56�>9@>�J>L@>==@66�78�R88C?>AC�G8DDEA57:�G8??@S@�78�@A98??�5A�6E=J�=8E96@6] @̂6 _]__�̀4@>?7J BCD@A7ED�FA?5A@;�FA?5A@�GE995=E?ED�5A�>??�=89@�6EHI@=7�>9@>6�7J>7�56�>KK98L@C�78�D@@7�M;NO@PE59@D@A764@>?7J�>AC�c@968A>?�R@??A@66 @̂6 _]__�̀d56E>?�>ACc@9Q89D5AS�M976 BCD@A7ED�FA?5A@;�FA?5A@�GE995=E?ED�5A�>??�=89@�6EHI@=7�>9@>6�7J>7�56�>KK98L@C�78�D@@7�M;NO@PE59@D@A76eA798CE=758A�78�d56E>?�M976M97�W>?f\�N?@A=8@ @̂6 _]_�̀<=5@A=@�b>H�BPKD7gN9>C@6�h;ijk lYM lYM _]_�̀l87@T�G@??6�m57J�lYM�L>?E@6�C8�A87�9@PE59@�C>7>]��� ��$�+��#$#�'�3���#�#��������/$������",*!�n�,����Z>6@C�8A�7J@�a>=5?57:�eA6K@=758A�W88?�gaeWk\�K9@K>9@C�H:�7J@�GGFB�a>=5?75@6�<EK@9L5689\�G8?E6>�G8EA7:�FQQ5=@�8Q�BCE=>758A�9@=@5L@C�>A�8L@9>??�9>75AS�8Q�ho]Xh̀ �5AC5=>75AS�7J@6=J88?�9>75AS�m>6�NFFp]�FE9�Q>=5?57:�9@=@5L@C�7J@�9>75AS�8Q�NFFp�5A�>??�>9@>6�@q=@K7�5A�7J@�G>7@S89:�8Q�R5AC8m6Yp8896YN>7@6Y�a@A=@6]



����������	�	
����������	���
�
���������������
������
���������
���� �!��"�#��$� ��%��&%%!�'�#&(�)����'%*��+,�-�!���(.�$*%-�)������/%!!%0���12���*3�����%��%/�*�$��*�����,��/%*��"���3��!����)2�� *�$��%��%/���"����)�)�3�������� ���%����,*���%%)�*�$��*&���"��*���)�3%�������0�� ������)����0�*�� %!!� ��)&���*����/%*��� ���"���3����$� ��)&���%-�*�!!�*�����4��*���)�3%����%/�����3%���*� �����#&�*�$%*�1�5 �%6�*�7878���
���9�����
� ��
	�: ����	��;�������<�
	���=�>������?��������
���@�A���B��C�.D� ���� �!EFGHI.�J�0�* A%%)9�
��	��@�#���*�%*�J,*/� �� A%%)K�����	����@�5-�*�!!�I!���!�����.L���EG�*3���#�/������%� A%%)M���
�	���@�N!� �*� �! A%%)���
�����O����
�	��@P���*%%3�.�J��C�E�%,������ A%%)��Q�
�@���*��J�/��".�F�R�*)%,�D���*��!� A%%)�
���
����@�J�*, �,*�!�2�3���.P%%/� A%%)MS
�����1�L!�"�*%,�)EJ �%%!A*%,�)�.T��)%0�E2%%*�EA����E��� �� ���* T����*������.��%3�� !���*%%3�%-�*���)�*%!!U,$�)%%*��$%�����R�*)�/*%3�%,���)���"�6*%0�%-�*�����.��%$���)�6�!%0�)%%*��*����%!)����)�0�����*����!�V�H!�%.��0%�6� C�0��)%0����!��!��CV��W�0�����*�%*���)��X��*�%*�BN2�!������������6���������!!�)VYZ���������	�	
����
�4��*���)�3%����%/�����3%���*� �����#&�*�$%*�1�5 �%6�*�7878



���������	
���
����
�
���������������
�
�������� ! �
"#$%&'()%#
*+,#(-.+)-
'&
/012#-%')
3456
7
8-(++-
8#2(#.+)-'9
":
;<=34 >?@A
BCD?AEDF
GHIJHIKIGLMNOPQQ
RPSTUV WXXY



���������	�
���������������
���������	�����
��
 ���������
� !"
#	�� !"
#	�

$$
�%
&�����
 ���
 ������%
&�����
 ���
 �����'()*+'('(
,-.//�
0--/1���23�3�4
5�6/��
7��89:
;163�
<1�-/=��,����
;�3/�3�4>
;163�
0-.3�?�=����@�
� !"
A�	B����
�@�
C	��	����
��C	����	�
����B���
�	
�@�
�����
A��	����D
��A��
 �@��B����
E���	����
FGD,����H38�
������=����
E�%�%I
"���C	����
 ��������
	C
�������
���C	�����
���
��	�����
J"  ���K
�����I
�@��@
��������
�@�
������
L�������
�����B� ���������
C	�
��������
��
�@�
�������
�������	�
A	A�����	�
���
�@�
"���C	����
 ��������
 ���������
J"  �K
C	�
M�����@
��������
����N��������
JM� K
���
��@��������B��
��
������
�@���
�@�	��@
���@�
���
�����
���B��%
O���
��������
��������
��
A������A���
��
�@�
�����������	�
	C
�@�
"  �%
"  �
����
���
�������
���@
�����������@��B����
���������I
�@��@
���
���P��
���@
�@�
"		�
"	��
�����
���������
J""��K
C	�
��������
���@
�@�
	��
�����C�����
�	�����B�
������������GQ
����@�
A���������
	C
��������
�@	
@�B�
�������C����
�	A�����
�	�����
�@��
�����C�
�@�
��R��������
C	�
��������
�	
�@�
S��B������
	C
"���C	����
���
�@�
"���C	����
�����S��B������I
	�
������
���@�����
�������	�
��R������
	�
A�	����
	C
�����%700,;;
����
5��1���
3�
TU0
��8
V��.�=��3-�
W/�
0��
,�18����
X��8��
�.���
�.�/1Y.
T3Y.�
��8
X��8�
T��?��
;��-����Y�
/W
,�18����
V���3�Y
/�
TZ-��83�Y
�.�
,����
,���8��8����
���
�	�
����������
�@��
�@�
�����
	C
��������
������
��
���
	�
����I
���@��
�������
�@�
�����
	C
��������
��
�@��
�����	��
��
�		
����
C	�
�����������
��������
	�
�	
A�	�����������
A��B���%
 
,12[�-� ,-.//�

'()\+'()* ,-.//�

'()*+'('( ]3���3-�
'()\+'()* ]3���3-�
'()*+'('( ,����
'()\+'()* ,����
'()*+'('(



����������	�
�������
�������� ����������������� �����������������  !"�#!������������  !"�#!������������ ��$������������ ��$������������%&'()*+�,-&'.-'/�012*�3�,)2/1-45�6'1-7/*�89:�-&7�;;< =>=? @30 =>=? @30 A=? @30B-2+/C-2)4*�6'1-7/*�89:�-&7�;;< =>=? @30 =>=? @30 8D? @30@E2/F�G/((*�H)2+�@30�I-(./*�7E�&E2�1/J.)1/�7-2->�@E2/F�K+/�L=;DML=L=�7-2-�-1/�&E2�-I-)(-N(/>�O./�2E�2+/�GPQRO9;D�S-&7/C)4T�%U/4.2)I/�P17/1�@98=9L=�H-*�)**./7�H+)4+�H-)I/7�2+/�1/J.)1/C/&2�VE1�*2-2/H)7/�2/*2)&'�VE1�2+/L=;DML=L=�*4+EE(�5/-1>�@E2/F�W/14/&2-'/*�-1/�&E2�4-(4.(-2/7�H+/&�2+/�&.CN/1�EV�*2.7/&2*�2/*2/7�)*�2/&�E1�(/**T�/)2+/1�N/4-.*/�2+/�&.CN/1�EV�*2.7/&2*�)&�2+)*�4-2/'E15�)*�2EE�*C-((�VE1�*2-2)*2)4-(-44.1-45�E1�2E�S1E2/42�*2.7/&2�S1)I-45>�@E2/F�%,0�-&7�C-2+/C-2)4*�2/*2�1/*.(2*�)&4(.7/�2+/�XC-12/1�Y-(-&4/7�X.CC-2)I/�0**/**C/&2�-&7�2+/�G00>�K+/�ZW/14/&2�B/2�E1�%U4//7/7Z�)*�4-(4.(-2/7�N5�2-[)&'�2+/�2E2-(&.CN/1�EV�*2.7/&2*�H+E�C/2�E1�/U4//7/7�2+/�*2-&7-17�E&�2+/�XC-12/1�Y-(-&4/7�X.CC-2)I/�0**/**C/&2�S(.*�2+/�2E2-(�&.CN/1�EV�*2.7/&2*�H+E�C/2�2+/�*2-&7-17�6)>/>T�-4+)/I/7,/I/(�890(2/1&-2/<�E&�2+/�G00*�7)I)7/7�N5�2+/�2E2-(�&.CN/1�EV�*2.7/&2*�H+E�S-12)4)S-2/7�)&�NE2+�-**/**C/&2*>



����������	�
����	������������	����	���������������������	����������	�������������������������������� !"#� � $�	����	������ ��	���������%��	 &�%�������	�� ������	����	�� ������	�&�	����	�� ������	�'�	�����(������)**�+,-./0,1 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)45*/ 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)6/75*/ 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)8*59:�;<�)=<>950�)7/<>950 23) 23) 23) 23) 23))7/<>950�?0.>50�;<�)*51:5�25,>@/ 23) 23) 23) 23) 23))1>50 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)6>*>A>0; 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)B>1A50>9�;<�C5,>0; 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)25,>@/�B5D5>>50�;<�E59>=>9�?1*50./< 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)FG>,/ 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)HD;�;<�4;</�I59/1 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)+;9>;/9;0;7>95**J�K>15.@50,5L/. 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)M0L*>1G�C/5<0/<1 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)+,-./0,1�D>,G�K>15N>*>,>/1 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)+,-./0,1�I/9/>@>0L�4>L<50,�M.-95,>;0�+/<@>9/1 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)6;1,/<�O;-,G 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)B;7/*/11 23) 23) 23) 23) 23)2;,/P�Q/**1�D>,G�23)�@5*-/1�.;�0;,�</R-></�.5,5S�2;,/P�HG/�TUVWXTUTU�.5,5�5</�0;,�5@5>*5N*/S�K-/�,;�,G/�QYZ?K[VW�A50./7>9\�M]/9-,>@/�Y<./<�2[̂U[TU�D51�>11-/.�DG>9G�D5>@/.�,G/�</R-></7/0,�=;<�1,5,/D>./�,/1,>0L�=;<�,G/



����������	�
�����������������������������



����������	�
����	������	����	�������	����	��������������������	����������	������������������������������� !"#$ ! !%�	����	������ ��	������������	 &���������	�� ������	����	�� ������	�&�	����	�� ������	���	�����'������())�*+,-./+0 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(34). 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(5.64). 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(7)489�:;�(<;=84/�(6.;=84/ 12( 12( 12( 12( 12((6.;=84/�>/-=4/�:;�()4094�14+=?. 12( 12( 12( 12( 12((0=4/ 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(5=)=@=/: 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(A=0@4/=8�:;�B4+=/: 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(14+=?.�A4C4==4/�:;�D48=<=8�>0)4/-.; 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(EF=+. 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(GC:�:;�3:;.�H48.0 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(*:8=:.8:/:6=84))I�J=04-?4/+4K.- 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(L/K)=0F�B.4;/.;0 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(*+,-./+0�C=+F�J=04M=)=+=.0 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(*+,-./+0�H.8.=?=/K�3=K;4/+�L-,84+=:/�*.;?=8.0 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(5:0+.;�N:,+F 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(A:6.).00 12( 12( 12( 12( 12(1:+.O�P.))0�C=+F�12(�?4),.0�-:�/:+�;.Q,=;.�-4+4R�1:+.O�GF.�STUVWSTST�-4+4�4;.�/:+�4?4=)4M).R�J,.�+:�+F.�PXY>JZUV�@4/-.6=8[�L\.8,+=?.�X;-.;�1Z]TZST�C40�=00,.-�CF=8F�C4=?.0�+F.�;.Q,=;.6./+�<:;�0+4+.C=-.�+.0+=/K�<:;�+F.



����������	�
�����������������������������



����������	�
�������
��������������������������������� ��������!�����" #!���$�%�&�'�()��#�!�*�()���)������ ����#(��������!�����+�����(�� �',���!��(��)����#�����#�!# !���-.��� ��)����/0123/014 ��)���/0143/0/0 5��� ����/0123/014 5��� ����/0143/0/0 ��#���/0123/014 ��#���/0143/0/06789:79�;<=>?9@�AB�CB�>:?�D8<D�@7DEEFG HH IJK HH IJK LM IJKIEN9O�P9FF@�Q8ND�IJK�R>FS9@�?E�:EN�=9TS8=9�?>N>U�IEN9O�VD9�WMXYZWMWM�?>N>�>=9�:EN�>R>8F>[F9U�\S9�NE�ND9�P]̂ _\HXY�̀>:?9a87B�bc97SN8R9�]=?9=�IHLMHWM�Q>@�8@@S9?�QD87D�Q>8R9?�ND9�=9TS8=9a9:N�dE=�@N>N9Q8?9�N9@N8:<�dE=�ND9WMXYZWMWM�@7DEEF�e9>=U�IEN9O�VD9�:9Q�P>F8dE=:8>�6789:79�V9@N�;PK6VG�Q>@�d8=@N�>?a8:8@N9=9?�È9=>N8E:>FFe�8:�ND9�WMXCZWMXY�@7DEEF�e9>=U��������������������������������-f����!����" ��g�" #!���$�%�&�'�()��#�!�*�()���)����h��)����i�# �/0143/0/0j���!����" ��g ���#��'� ���k��� l�k-� ������! �� ����������! �� �����l��������! �� �����+���� �',���!�!KFF�6NS?9:N@ IJK IJK IJK IJK IJKm>F9 IJK IJK IJK IJK IJKn9a>F9 IJK IJK IJK IJK IJKoF>7p�E=�Kd=87>:�Ka9=87>: IJK IJK IJK IJK IJKKa9=87>:�_:?8>:�E=�KF>@p>�I>N8R9 IJK IJK IJK IJK IJKK@8>: IJK IJK IJK IJK IJKn8F8̀8:E IJK IJK IJK IJK IJKq8@̀>:87�E=�r>N8:E IJK IJK IJK IJK IJKI>N8R9�q>Q>88>:�E=�s>78d87�_@F>:?9= IJK IJK IJK IJK IJK



����������	�
�������

������������� ���������������� ��� �����!��� "��#������!��� "��#����������!��� "��#����$�������%#�����&'()* +,- +,- +,- +,- +,-./0�01�201*�345*6 +,- +,- +,- +,- +,-705(0*50809(54::;�<(64=>48)4?*= +,- +,- +,- +,- +,-@8?:(6'�A*418*16 +,- +,- +,- +,- +,-7)B=*8)6�/()'�<(64C(:()(*6 +,- +,- +,- +,- +,-7)B=*8)6�3*5*(>(8?�2(?148)�@=B54)(08�7*1>(5*6 +,- +,- +,- +,- +,-D06)*1�E0B)' +,- +,- +,- +,- +,-F09*:*66 +,- +,- +,- +,- +,-+0)*G�H*::6�/()'�+,-�>4:B*6�=0�80)�1*IB(1*�=4)4J�+0)*G�.'*�KLMNOKLKL�=4)4�41*�80)�4>4(:4C:*J�<B*�)0�)'*�HPQR<SMN�T48=*9(5U�@V*5B)(>*�P1=*1�+SWLSKL�/46�(66B*=�/'(5'�/4(>*=�)'*�1*IB(1*9*8)�X01�6)4)*/(=*�)*6)(8?�X01�)'*KLMNOKLKL�65'00:�;*41J�



����������	�
�������
����������	�
�������

��������������������������� ���!�"��#��$%� &������'����()*+,()()!-./�01�02/�.345./�360.7/�18�02/�9:�;4<<46=�>?/<�>@6A/=B�C9;>>D�63A�02/�=1?4<40B�18�02/�E0.A/30E�F21�600/3A�40G�02/�E@211<�26E�.04<4H/A�@67//7�0/@234@6<�7/E1.7@/E�01�I71J4A/��6=.<040.A/�18�1II170.3404/E�817�@67//7�/KI<1760413:��L102�=4AA</�E@211<�63A�24M2�E@211<�E0.A/30E�26J/�02/�@263@/�01�/KI<17/�6�J674/0B�18�43A.E07B�E/@017E�1J/7�02/�@1.7E/�18�02/4704=/�60�9;>>:�N2/�E@211<�I71J4A/E�O/0�P1@.E/AG�906B�P1@.E/A�=60/746<E�817�E0.A/30E�01�@7/60/�6�E1<4A�81.3A60413�817�@67//7�/KI<1760413:��Q</@04J/E�63A�263AER13�6@04J404/E�67/A/E4M3/A�01�188/7�6�763M/�18�1I0413E�817�E0.A/30E:��90.A/30E�26J/�02/�1II170.340B�01�M643�@/70484@60413�43�9/7J968/�63A�-74J/7SE�QA.@60413�F24@2�F4<<�6EE4E0�02/=�43�?/43M�I7/I67/A817�02/�F17<A�18�F17T:U3�6AA40413G�02/�P67=�01�9@211<�V71M76=G�6<E1�21.E/A�60�02/�QA.@60413�W4<<6M/G�I71J4A/E�=.<04I</�1II170.3404/E�817�E0.A/30E�01�/KI<17/�6M74@.<0.7/G�EI/@484@6<<B�21704@.<0.7/G�F402X263AER13X�6@04J404/E:��N2/�764E/A�M67A/3�?/AE�?.4<0�?B�E0.A/30E�@1=?43/A�F402�02/�=1A/73�M7//321.E/�6<<1F�E0.A/30E�01�M643�6M74@.<0.7/�/KI/74/3@/�F24</�600/3A43M�9;>>:�N2/P67=�01�9@211<�906T/21<A/7�Y//043ME�E/7J/�6E�6AJ4E17B�@1==400//�=//043ME�817�02/�P67=�01�9@211<Z>M74@.<0.7/�V602F6B:��N2/�U3A.E07B�E/@017E�7/I7/E/30/A�?B�02/E/�43A4J4A.6<E43@<.A/�>M74@.<0.7/G�L.E43/EE�[�P4363@/G�\/6<02G�63A�>AJ63@/A�Y63.86@0.743M:�]67//7�P647EG�84/<A�074IE�63A�M./E0�EI/6T/7E�I71J4A/�E0.A/30E�02/�1II170.340B�01�I6704@4I60/�43F17TR?6E/A�</67343M�6@04J404/E:943@/�02/�E0.A/30�I1I.<60413�60�9;>>�4E�0763E4/30�63A�02/�/371<<=/30�E=6<<G�40�4E�A4884@.<0�01�188/7�@67//7�I602F6B�E/5./3@/A�@1.7E/E�63A�02/7/817/G�A4884@.<0�01�26J/�I71M76=@1=I</0/7E:��;24</�]NQ�@<6EE/E�67/�6<4M3/A�01�]NQ�Y1A/<�].774@.<.=�9063A67AEG�02/�E0.A/30E�/3̂1B�02/�1II170.340B�01�I6704@4I60/�43�02/�X263AER13X�</67343M�/3J4713=/30:���������������������������� ���!�"������_������ &������'����()*+,()()!�̀�%��� ����"��#��$�"������_�����a.=?/7�18�V.I4<E�V6704@4I6043M�43�]NQ bV/7@/30�18�V.I4<E�0260�]1=I</0/�6�]NQ�V71M76=�63A�Q673�6�\4M2�9@211<�-4I<1=6 c:ccdV/7@/30�18�]NQ�]1.7E/E�0260�67/�9/5./3@/A�17�>704@.<60/A�L/0F//3�02/�9@211<�63A�U3E040.0413E�18�V1E0E/@13A67B�QA.@60413 c:ccd



���������	
���
����
�
���������������
�
�������� ! �
"#$%&'()%#
*+,#(-.+)-
'&
/012#-%')
3456
7
8-(++-
8#2(#.+)-'9
":
;<=34

>?@A
BCD?AEDF
GHIIHIJIG

>?@A
BCD?AEDF
GHIIHIJIG

KLMNOPO
QLN
RSTUPNOTVW
LQ
KXYTQLNSTX
ZRK[
XS\]LN
KXYTQLNSTX
̂VXVP
RSTUPNOTVW
ZK̂ R[
_\̀ TOOTLSRK]K̂ R
KLMNOP
aPXOMNP bPNcPSVdefghdede
ijklmn
opqrmmst
lp
urjqnsn
vswjlqst
xrq
yuzu{y
|t}lnnlrp e~ee�def�hdefg
�q�tj��sn
��r
ur}kms�st
|mm
urjqnsn
vswjlqst
xrq
yuzu{y
|t}lnnlrp e~ee�V̂XVP
bNTLNTVW�
�V�PN
bM�TY
�MVcL̀ PO��s
{|vu
kqr�ltsn
��s
xrmmr�lp�
lpxrq}��lrp
qsms��p�
�r
��s
{���s
kqlrql���
���sq
ijklm
�j��r}sn
�iqlrql��
���ijklm
rj��r}sn
lp
��s
nj��s��
�qs�
rx
k��nl��m
stj���lrpKXYTQLNSTX
b�WOTcXY
�TVSPOO
�POV
�POMYVO
Ẑc�LLY
�PXN
���������[����
�qs
pr�
��m�jm��st
��sp
��s
pj}�sq
rx
n�jtsp�n
�sn�st
ln
�sp
rq
msnn 
sl��sq
�s��jns
��s
pj}�sq
rx
n�jtsp�n
lp
��ln
���s�rq�
ln
�rr
n}�mm
xrq
n���ln�l��m
���jq���
rq
�r
kqr�s��n�jtsp�
kql����~
¡NX\P¢PUPY bPNcPSVX£P
LQ
̂VM\PSVO
aPPVTS£
�LMN
LQ
̂T¤�TVSPOO
̂VXS\XN\O bPNcPSVX£P
LQ
̂VM\PSVO
aPPVTS£
�TUP
LQ
̂T¤�TVSPOO
̂VXS\XN\O bPNcPSVX£P
LQ
̂VM\PSVO
aPPVTS£
̂T¤
LQ
̂T¤�TVSPOO
̂VXS\XN\O¥r�s�
usmmn
�l��
¥z|
��mjsn
tr
pr�
qswjlqs
t���~
¥r�s�
��s
defghdede
t���
�qs
pr�
���lm��ms~
�js
�r
��s
u�¦§�̈fg
k�pts}l� 
o©s�j�l�s
�qtsq
¥̈ª«̈de
��n
lnnjst
��l��
��l�st
��s
qswjlqs}sp�
�r
�t}lpln�sq
��s
k��nl��mxl�psnn
ksqxrq}�p�s
�sn�
xrq
��s
defghdede
n��rrm
�s�q~



����������	�
�������

��������������������������������� ���!�"���#�$%� &'()*+(,-
�./0�1����./0�1�����22��3�4�������.$���.��#��%�3�4�������.$���.��#��%567895656�:;<==+�>;;=?),(@A+A,B�C-D=',�E('FEG�H)I(I-J-),:,(,-�K'A='A,BL�K('-),(+�M)N=+N-J-),�O���./0�P��Q�#����O��R����"������R�������������Q��������O��������P������%S�!��������T�Q��Q������U!������%�VWSXRR������O����O����#����������Y���������Y�P��������P �������Y����#���������R����O����O����#����������#����O���O��������ZDD=',?)A,A-*�[='�K('-),(+�M)N=+N-J-),�\:;<==+�]-('�565695657̂!�������������Q���#����P������P���������O��������Q��������#������������Q��Q�#�����O������ #���_�����������P������������O���3�4�������.$���.��#��%3��!��������Q��Q���������P��������R�������̀�TX!_�̀��� #������ #%��������������̀��0.!�0���������a�������̀���#��O���PP��� ���%����Q�� ����������O����������������b �����R�"�"�%��P�������P������P���3��!��������R��������$���������O��$����������R��O����O����%����"��O��������Y���������̀�R����"�#�����#�����%�"��O��� #����T�#�Q�# ���c�#����������!����UT�!W�����������"O��O��O������ ��Q��%���d�"��Y����#�������R��������R�������O����#����P����#3��4O���P����������� ��$�����������#̀���R����"� P����������������O�# ��#���#e���PO����������������#�������� ��������O����R��������3��1����Q������������O�# ��#�������������#�#�$����̀�$ ���P�������O�Q���O���PP��� ���%����P��Q�#��R��#$��Y�"O�������������#���Q���#������ #�������O�"��Y3����������������#������P��������������Q����$���R����O����P�������"O��#�������P��Y�X�����O3�.����� #�������#�P������������Q������ #����1��#$��Y�����O��������������Y���������O��#�����O��$����������R��O����O����%���3��!�������������Q���#����P������P�������R���#����P������3��fPP��� ���%�R���R��#$��Y����O�"������P��Q���O���3�4�������.$���.��#��%���P��Q�#�#��O�� �O�� �Q�%�����"�����������0.!����Y�O��#���a�������3� ������O�����������%��R��O���� #����P�P �����������O����������� ��������#�RR�� ��������������̀�$ ��"����$����R � ���R�� ���R��4..3:,(,-�K'A='A,BL�K?DA+�H)I(I-J-),�O���./0�P��Q�#����O��R����"������R�������������Q��������O��������P������%S�! P���X����������U!������%�gWS1��O���O����#��P� �������h���#1��O���O�������# �����������



����������	�
�������

��������������������������������������� ����!�"��������#$%&%�%'(�)*&�+%,+-,%&(.�/0()�&0(�)-12('�*3�4&-.()&4�&(4&(.�54�&()�*'�,(446�(5&0('�2(+%-4(�&0(�)-12('�*3�4&-.()&4�5)�&054�+%&(7*'8�54�&**�41%,,�3*'�4&%&54&5+%,�%++-'%+8�*'�&*�9'*&(+&4&-.()&�9'5:%+8;�� �<���=���� >="��?@ABCD@ABE >="��?@ABED@ABF >="��?@ABFD@ABG ��H���=��@ABCD@ABE ��H���=��@ABED@ABF ��H���=��@ABFD@ABG >�����@ABCD@ABE >�����@ABED@ABF >�����@ABFD@ABG$'*9*-&�I%&( JJ KL;MNO KP;QNO JJ KL;MNO KP;QNO R;SNO R;PNO R;NNOT'%.-%&5*)�I%&( JJ LM;SNO QL;LNO N;NNO LM;SNO QL;LNO UV;MNO UK;NNO UQ;LNO$'*9*-&WT'%.-%&5*)�I%&(�XY*-'JZ(%'�[*0*'&�I%&(\�[0%'&

>�����]������̂_�>="��?�!?�̀���a0(�bcI[�9'*:5.(4�&0(�3*,,*/5)7�5)3*'1%&5*)�'(,(:%)&�&*�&0(�b&%&(�9'5*'5&8d�b+0**,�[,51%&(�Xe'5*'5&8�P\de-95,�4-49()45*)�'%&(4fe-95,�(g9-,45*)�'%&(4f�%).
VNSPhVNSM VNSMhVNSU VNSUhVNSRKLQN

QLLN
LLPN $'*9*-&�I%&(T'%.-%&5*)�I%&(



����������	�
�������

����������������������������������������������������������������� �!�����������"��������� ���������� �#�������������$��#�����"��������������"��������� �����#����#������%����#��������������������#��#�������������������&��������� ����&�#'���()*+,-.+/0.+�1.2�34,*5+/0.+62171�8055-87-2�9-7:--.�;*5<�7=>0*?=�;*.-@�-18=�A*55�+8=005�<-1>�>-+,-87/B-5<CD17- )8=005EFGHIEFGJ )8=005EFGJIEFGK L/+7>/87�EFGHIEFGJ L/+7>/87�EFGJIEFGK )717-�EFGHIEFGJ )717-�EFGJIEFGKM��&���#��� N(OPQ RS(RPQ T(UPQ NP(VPQ W(UPQ W(UPQXY&���#��� P(PPQ P(PPQ P(PPQ P(PPQ P(RPQ P(RPQ)*+,-.+/0.+�1.2�34,*5+/0.+�A0>�)8=005�Z-1>�EFGKIEFEF�[.5<62171�8055-87-2�9-7:--.�;*5<�7=>0*?=�\-9>*1><@�,1>7/15�+8=005�<-1>�2*-�70�7=-�][̂ _L̀GK�,1.2-a/8CD17- )8=005EFGKIEFEF L/+7>/87�EFGKIEFEF )717-�EFGKIEFEFM��&���#��� P(PPQ P(PPQ N(UPQXY&���#��� P(PPQ P(PPQ P(RPQb���c�d���NPRefNPNP����&���#������ ��Y&���#��������� ���������������&���"������&�#�������� ����"�����������NPRefNPNP�������������#����&���#��������������� ���������g�hi�jRe���#�#�(�k������$�#��!��� �"��#��&&��&�#���������l���������&��#�����#��������������&���#������ ��Y&���#����#������NPRefNPNP����������������&��� ����&�#��������()8=005�)1A-7<�m51.�6)8=005�Z-1>�EFEFIEFEGCd���g��&������#'��M������M������n��������NPNP�!����&&��'� ����o�"������NS$�NPNP(�d����NPNPjNR�M������M������n����#������ ��� ����"�� #������ ��� ��������� � ����%����� �����o�"������NT$�NPNR(��p& �������������������&����#���� #�%�g�hi�jRe��M������n�������������"�#�%��  � (��d����������&����#���� ��������#�������#�����%�� #�%����������$�#�����#����$��� ����� ���%��&�#����������������(��i���  #�#��$�����l�������������������&����#���� �c



���������	
���
����
�
���������������
�
�������� ! �
"#$%&'()%#
*+,#(-.+)-
'&
/012#-%')
3456
7
8-(++-
8#2(#.+)-'9
":
;<=34 >?@A
BCD?AEDF
GHIJHIKIG

LMNOPQRMPS
T
LMUOVWOPS
XMUWYWYZ
T
LMP[UMUVWNY
\N]]RYWOUVWNY
N̂O_QǸ YS
abPcVPMdWYd[cUOP
efUORUVWNYS
T
gWMP
hMWccS
iOVWfP
abNNVPM
aWVRUVWNYS
\bWcQ
ijRSP
kP[NMVWYZ
LMNOPQRMPS
eUMVblRU_PS
aRS[PYSWNYmen[RcSWNY
LNcWOWPS
hWSOMW]WYUVWNY
LNcWOWPS
aPnRUc
oUMUSS]PYV
LNcWOWPS
pRccqWYZ
LMPfPYVWNY
rYWsNM]
\N][cUWYV
LMNOPQRMPS
LMNjcP]
kPSNcRVWNY
hMPSS
\NQP
\U][RS
tYZMPSS
UYQ
eZMPSS
aObNNc
hWSOW[cWYP
aR[[NMVWYZ
uPYVUc
oPUcVb
vPPQS



���������	�
���������������
���������	�����
��
 ���������
� !"
#	�� !"
#	�

$$
�%
&�����
 ���
 ������%
&�����
 ���
 �����'()*+'('(
,-.//�
0--/1���23�3�4
5�6/��
7��89:
;�.��
,057
<�=/�>��3/��?�
��@	����	�
��
�?��
�����	�
��
��A�����
�	
��
��
�?�
� !"
���
��
�	�
��������
��
�?�
�����
B��	������
@	�
�"CC%0D���E�
7����
,3F�
��8
7����
,3F�
93���321�3/�
GH��>�����4I
,-.//�
J���
G'()K+'()LIM��8�
N�D�� 0D���E�
7����
,3F� O1>2��
/=
7������
P
)Q'( O1>2��
/=
7������
P
')QR' O1>2��
/=
7������
P
RRST U%UU U U UV U%UU U U UW U%UU U U UX U%UU U U UY U%UU U U UZ U%UZ V U U[ U%UU U U U\�?��]] W%UU V U U



���������	
������������������	�������������
������	��������������	����������	
��	��������������������������������������	������
	��������������������������� !"#$%"�&'$((�)*+"�$,-�&'$((�)*+"�.*(/#*01/*2,�34'"5",/$#67�)8922'�:"$#�3;<=>?;<=@7A#$-"�B"!"'  !"#$%"�&'$((�)*+" C150"#�2D�&'$(("(�E�=F;< C150"#�2D�&'$(("(�E�;=FG; C150"#�2D�&'$(("(�E�GGHI J�JJ J J JK J�JJ J J JL J�JJ J J JM J�JJ J J JN J�JJ J J JO J�JJ J J JP J�JJ J J J������� M�JJ L J J���������	
������������������	�������������
������	��������������	����������	
��	��������������������������������������	������
	��������������������������� !"#$%"�&'$((�)*+"�$,-�&'$((�)*+"�.*(/#*01/*2,�34'"5",/$#67�)8922'�:"$#�3;<=@?;<;<7A#$-"�B"!"'  !"#$%"�&'$((�)*+" C150"#�2D�&'$(("(�E�=F;< C150"#�2D�&'$(("(�E�;=FG; C150"#�2D�&'$(("(�E�GGHI J�JJ J J JK J�JJ J J J



����������	�
�������
����������� ������������������ � !"���#$���������%�&'() � !"���#$���������%�(&'*( � !"���#$���������%�**+, -.-- - - -/ -.-- - - -0 -.-- - - -1 -.-- - - -2 -.-- - - -3456788 ,.-- , - -8�9:;<67�=>�?@ABB6B�CDEC?A46B�5=F�;ADG�?@ABB6B�>A@@�CD4=�6A?5�BCH6�?A46I=7G�JA�7ADI6�=>�4=4A@�B4:E6D4B�K67�?@ABBL.��88�M34567M�?A46I=7G�CB�>=7�;:@4CNI7AE6�@6O6@�?@ABB6B.��������������������P�������������Q��R��" R�#P�S��T#P���UV�S�TW##��X����()&YZ()&[V� "\�TR ������������������ � !"���#$���������%�&'(( � !"���#$���������%�(*'*( � !"���#$���������%�**+]DI@CB5 ,-.-- 2 - -Â456;A4C?B ,-.-- 2 - -_?C6D?6 ,-.-- 2 - -_=?CA@�_?C6D?6 ,-.-- 2 - -8�9:;<67�=>�?@ABB6B�CDEC?A46B�5=F�;ADG�?@ABB7==;B�>A@@�CD4=�6A?5�BCH6�?A46I=7G�JA�7ADI6�=>�4=4A@�B4:E6D4B�K67�?@ABB7==;L.�̀4�456�B6?=DEA7G�B?5==@�@6O6@a�45CB�CD>=7;A4C=D�CB76K=746E�<G�B:<b6?4�A76A�7A4567�45AD�I7AE6�@6O6@.�



����������	�
�������

���������������������������������������� !��"��#��$"����%&�#�$'""��(����)*+,-)*+.&�! /�$� ������������������ 0!1 ���"2���������3�+4)) 0!1 ���"2���������3�)545) 0!1 ���"2���������3�556789:;<= >?@@ A @ @BCD=EFCD;G< H?@@ H @ @IG;E8GE >?@@ H @ @IJG;C:�IG;E8GE >?@@ A @ @K�LMFNEO�JP�G:C<<E<�;8Q;GCDE<�=JR�FC8S�G:C<<OJJF<�PC::�;8DJ�ECG=�<;TE�GCDE9JOS�UC�OC89E�JP�DJDC:�<DMQE8D<�VEO�G:C<<OJJFW?�XD�D=E�<EGJ8QCOS�<G=JJ:�:EYE:Z�D=;<�;8PJOFCD;J8�;<OEVJODEQ�NS�<MN[EGD�COEC�OCD=EO�D=C8�9OCQE�:EYE:?����������������������������������������� !��"��#��$"����%&�#�$'""��(����)*+.-)*)*&�! /�$� ������������������ 0!1 ���"2���������3�+4)) 0!1 ���"2���������3�)545) 0!1 ���"2���������3�556789:;<= \?@@ ]@ @ @BCD=EFCD;G< \?@@ ^ @ @IG;E8GE \?@@ _ @ @IJG;C:�IG;E8GE \?@@ A @ @K�LMFNEO�JP�G:C<<E<�;8Q;GCDE<�=JR�FC8S�G:C<<OJJF<�PC::�;8DJ�ECG=�<;TE�GCDE9JOS�UC�OC89E�JP�DJDC:�<DMQE8D<�VEO�G:C<<OJJFW?�XD�D=E�<EGJ8QCOS�<G=JJ:�:EYE:Z�D=;<�;8PJOFCD;J8�;<OEVJODEQ�NS�<MN[EGD�COEC�OCD=EO�D=C8�9OCQE�:EYE:?�̀��"�"2�a!b�����"��$���1�$��"!����"��#�$'""��(����)*+.-)*)*&



����������	�
�������

����������	�
�������

����� ���������� ��������������� !"#$%�!�&��'�$��() *+,-).'$�/������%$�$0��1"�$'��23456�$0�"����'$���"//�%$%7$(�8�(9�':�/������%$;��'$�345�!���#�"����($�($�$'���8����"//�%$%7$(��8<��$"!<�8�(9�=*��$(!$'���/�/������%$+�>�?@�A��>?BB�C��>�CD�E�F�>��GG�H>EI����J��C�KLMNOKLKLP&���"7�("���'�8��<�Q$<"1��(�R$"��<��"9$����"!$�����(�1�#$��'$��'��'$�!��'�$��':�"'#��'�$(1$'���'��(�:("%��/�(�"������#$'��+��S�$!�"��5#�!"���'����#$'���"($��(�1�#$#��$(1�!$�1�"��<$�(�T5�+� � U?VW�C��G�X�YZ�[FF�\A�@����>EI���&��'�$��(�2 !"#$%�!]�S�!�"�̂Q$<"1��("���(�&"($$(�_$1$���%$'�6 *+,-�̀7("(a�b$#�"�4$"!<$(�2̀�7("(�"'6 *+**�̀7("(a�b$#�"�S$(1�!$��S�"//�2�"("�(�/$����'"�6 *+**��a!<���:��� *+**S�!�"��c�(9$( *+**d�(�$ *+**S�$$!<̂̀ "':�":$̂R$"(�':�S�$!�"���� *+**e$���(!$�S�$!�"�����2'�'f�$"!<�':6 *+**.�<$( *+=*).'$�/������%$�$0��1"�$'��23456�$0�"����'$���"//�%$%7$(�8�(9�':�/������%$;��'$�345�!���#�"����($�($�$'���8����"//�%$%7$(��8<��$"!<�8�(9�=*��$(!$'���/�/������%$+YgB�A@��?C�F�h�C�h?B����A@�>EI����>�������EI�C�>���C��F�HX�FE���J��C�KLMiOKLMNP



����������	�
�������

����������	�
�������

����� ����������������� �!���!���� ����������� �!���!�����"#� ���$���% ����������� �!���!�����"&��� ���$���% '����(�����$)���*����+����� ����������������� �!���!���� ����������� �!���!�����"#� ���$���% ����������� �!���!�����"&��� ���$���% '����(�����$)���*����+,-.//0�,123 45678965 :: 45678965 45;;6<9=>?1@2A1-2 BCD BCD 45678965 45;;6<9=>E3A-3F2�?1GG3A3F-3�H�,-.//0�,123�IFJ�?1@2A1-2 BCD BCD >9>>K >9>>K,2I23 BCD BCD 477;>9<L ::E3A-3F2�?1GG3A3F-3�H�,-.//0�,123�IFJ�,2I23 BCD BCD :<<9L=K :L<9>>KB/23M�N300@�O12.�BCD�PI0Q3@�J/�F/2�A3RQ1A3�JI2I9�+�� ��S�*����$� �T������"T� $���U����VWXYZVWVW%[IA\1F]�]AIJ3�IFJ�@̂100�03P30@�/G�3I-.�@2QJ3F2�I2�2.3�,9�_1001Ì �Da30�D-IJ3̀ \�A3RQ1A3�2.I2�2.3�23I-.3A�J3P30/b�1FJ1P1JQI01c3J�03IAF1F]�/bb/A2QF1213@9��d.3�eFJ1P1JQI01c3J�f3IAF1F]E0IF@�gefEh@i�IA3�-A121-I0�1F�bA/P1J1F]�I�-.I003F]1F]�IFJ�A303PIF2�3JQ-I21/F�-Q@2/̀ 1c3J�G/A�3I-.�1FJ1P1JQI0�@2QJ3F29�d.3�efE�1@�A3P13O3J�3P3A\�@1j�O33̂@�O12.�@2QJ3F2@�IFJbIA3F2@9�kF�I�̀/F2.0\�aI@1@l�@2IGG�̀332@�O12.�1FJ1P1JQI0�@2QJ3F2@�2/�A3P13O�bA/]A3@@�2/OIAJ@�]AIJQI21/F�IFJ�2/�̀/J1G\�efE@9��mQA2.3À/A3l�I�bIA3F2C23I-.3AC@2QJ3F2�-/FG3A3F-31@�.30J�I2�2.3�3FJ�/G�3I-.�]AIJ1F]�b3A1/J�2/��A3P13O�bA/]A3@@�IFJ�]/I0@�I--/̀ b01@.3J9��d.3�-0I@@A//̀ �23I-.3A�̀I1F2I1F@�QbJI23J�-A3J12�A3b/A2@�G/A�@2QJ3F2h@�bA/]A3@@�IFJbA/P1J3@�]AIJQI21/F�@2I2Q@�A3b/A2@�2/�@2QJ3F2@�-/F@1@23F20\9D�-/QF@30/A�1@�bA/P1J3J�2/�,_DD�@2QJ3F2@�G/A�I-IJ3̀ 1-�I@�O300�I@�@/-1/:3̀ /21/FI0�@Qbb/A29��d.3�-/QF@30/A�bA/P1J3@�QbJI23J�n�8:o3IA�E0IF@n�I2�2.3�3FJ�/G�3I-.�@3̀ 3@23A�2/3I-.�@2QJ3F2�2/�J1@-Q@@�-/QA@3�A3RQ1A3̀ 3F2@�G/A�]AIJQI21/F�IFJ�GQ2QA3�b0IF@9�d.3�-/QF@30/A�I0@/�bA/P1J3@�/F3:/F:/F3�@Qbb/A2�G/A�3I-.�,_DD�@2QJ3F29d.3�23I-.3A�IFJ�bA1F-1bI0�O/Â�-/00Ia/AI21P30\�2/�1FJ1P1JQI01c3�3I-.�@2QJ3F2h@�03IAF1F]�b0IF�aI@3J�/F�3PI0QI21/F�/G�2AIF@-A1b2@l�@̂100�03P30l�03IAF1F]�̀/JI01213@�IFJ�1F23A3@2@9�,2QJ3F2@�.IP3�I--3@@�2/�pJ̀ 3F2Q̀ l�IF�/F01F3�-QAA1-Q0Q̀ �2.I2�bA/P1J3@�1F@2AQ-21/F�I2�I00�03P30@�IFJ�bA/G1-13F-13@9��d.3�23I-.3A�-IF�a03FJ�1F@2AQ-21/F�@/�2.I2�@2QJ3F2@�-IF�Q@3a/2.�23-.F/0/]\�IFJ�2AIJ121/FI0�1F@2AQ-21/FI0�̀I23A1I0@�2/�̀332�2.31A�03IAF1F]�F33J@9��DF�eFJ3b3FJ3F2�,2QJ\�kb21/F�1@�IPI10Ia03�2/�@2QJ3F2@�O1@.1F]�2/�-/̀ b0323�2.31A�-/QA@3�O/Â/Q2@1J3�/G�2.3�JI10\�-0I@@A//̀ �@3221F]9�?Q3�2/�Nk[e?:<=�,.3023A:1F:E0I-3�kAJ3A@�1F�qIA-.�L>L>l�I00�@2QJ3F2@�O3A3�bA/P1J3J�J3P1-3@�IFJ�eF23AF32�-/FF3-21P12\�2/�bIA21-1bI23�1F�?1@2IF-3�f3IAF1F]�eF@2AQ-21/F9�EA1F23JÌ23A1I0@�O3A3�I0@/�bA/P1J3J�b3A�@2QJ3F2�IFJ�bIA3F2�A3RQ3@29��eF�IJJ121/Fl�̀3I0@�O3A3�J301P3A3J�2/�@2QJ3F2@h�./̀ 3@�2O1-3�O33̂0\�2/�3F@QA3�2.I2�@2QJ3F2@�O3A3�bA/P1J3J�G//J9�efE�̀3321F]@�O3A3�-/FP3F3J�aQ2�J/F3�@/�P1A2QI00\9



����������	�
	����������������������������������������������� !" #$�%&'�%'()&'*�(�+�,*-�)-,(.�,/0-%-/�0�1'*'�)/23-�'+�-�%/�/�'�,/0-%-/�45���67�8 9�������
�7:�� ������
����6���7��9�������;�������5���67�8<'=-��-�=�>'()&'*�?(.(*@ A!�$#!B ""C-+"D(�='�>'()&'*�?(.(*@ A#E$EBF ""G-=&'0%�>'()&'*�?(.(*@ A �F$��� ""HI'*(='�J*-�)-,(.�?(.(*@�KL.'2'�%(*@M "" ""HI'*(='�J*-�)-,(.�?(.(*@�KC-++.'M A#E$EBF ""HI'*(='�J*-�)-,(.�?(.(*@�KG-=&M A#E$EBF ""?N,'*-�%'�+'�%�?(.(*@ A FB$OEP ""J'*)'�%�/Q�<N+='%�Q/*�>'()&'*�?(.(*-'0 "" ""J'*)'�%�/Q�<N+='%�Q/*�H+2-�-0%*(%-I'�?(.(*-'0 "" ""R/*�+'%(-.'+�-�Q/*2(%-/��/��0(.(*-'0$�0''�%&'�STL�S'*%-Q-)(%'+�?(.(*-'0�U�<'�'Q-%0�1'3�,(='�(%�&%%,0VWW1114)+'4)(4=/IW+0WQ+W)0W�4>'()&'*�?(.(*@�S&(*%



���������	
�����	�������������	������	
����� ���������	������	
����� ������	������	
��������������������������������������



����������	�
��������������������������������������� !"������������������������#�$$�� !"������������������������%��& '('''')''''*''''+'''','''''



���������	
���
����
�
���������������
�
�������� ! �
"#$%&'()%#
*+,#(-.+)-
'&
/012#-%')
3456
7
8-(++-
8#2(#.+)-'9
":
;<=34
>?@A
BCD?AEDF
GHIJHIKIG

LMNOPQRM
STOQRURPV
WLSX
YZ[\]R]
ŴQ_ZZT
̀RO\
abcdeababXSR\QRPV
Zf
̂V[MRPV]
gP
LS
YZ[\]R]
hihhj
[̂klRQV m[UkR\
Zf
LS
YZ[\]R]
nffR\RMopqrstuvw
xyzv{yv h|{}~z�� h�z{v
�{�
�vw�qwrz{}
�wu� h�qwvz}{
��{}t�}v h��u�vr�uzy� hxyzv{yv hxqyz�~
xyzv{yv h�qu�~
��
pqtw�v�
���vwv�� h���vwv
u�vwv
�wv
�ut�v{u
yqtw�v
v{wq~~rv{u�
q�
�u
~v��u
q{v
�ut�v{uiS\ZfR]]gZPOT
�RNRTZ�URPV �RO][\R abc�eabcd abcdeabab ababeabac�tr�vw
q�
�y�qq~
����
�v�zy�uv�
uq
xu���
�v�v~qsrv{u
�{�
pq{uz{tqt�
�rswq�vrv{u � � �



Event Title Start Date First Name Last Name Position Category Position/Title District/Department

Supervisors of Attendance Certification Training 1/15/2021 Kelley Hickel County Office Student Data Coordinator Special Education

Supervisors of Attendance Certification Training

Event Date 1/15/2021

Time 11:30 pm - 12:30 pm



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  





* 1. Type of Submission: * 2. Type of Application:

* 3. Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:

5a. Federal Entity Identifier: 5b. Federal Award Identifier:

6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier:

* a. Legal Name:

* b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): * c. Organizational DUNS:

* Street1:

Street2:

* City:

County/Parish:

* State:

Province:

* Country:

* Zip / Postal Code:

Department Name: Division Name:

Prefix: * First Name:

Middle Name:

* Last Name:

Suffix:

Title:

Organizational Affiliation:

* Telephone Number: Fax Number:

* Email:

* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):

* Other (Specify):

State Use Only:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

d. Address:

e. Organizational Unit:

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

Preapplication

Application

Changed/Corrected Application

New

Continuation

Revision

OMB Number: 4040-0004 

Expiration Date: 10/31/2019

956846828

09CH011054

CA: California

946002149

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

(530) 458-0350 x10313

Ste B

Markss

09CH011054

N/A

USA: UNITED STATES

Colusa

Colusa County

345 5th St

Director

95932-2445

Vicki

vmarkss@ccoe.net



* 9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:

* Other (specify):

* 10. Name of Federal Agency:

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

CFDA Title:

* 12. Funding Opportunity Number:

* Title:

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title:

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

* 15. Descriptive Title of Applicant's Project:

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

Head Start and Early Head Start Year Three Funding Application.

Other (specify)

N/A

County Office of Education

93.600

Not Applicable

eGrants-N/A

Head Start

ACF-Head Start

Not Applicable

Colusa County



* a. Federal

* b. Applicant

* c. State

* d. Local

* e. Other

* f.  Program Income

* g. TOTAL

.

Prefix: * First Name:

Middle Name:

* Last Name:

Suffix:

* Title:

* Telephone Number:

* Email:

Fax Number:

* Signature of Authorized Representative: * Date Signed:

18. Estimated Funding ($):

21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements

herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I also provide the required assurances** and agree to

comply with any resulting terms if I accept an award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims  may

subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency
specific instructions.

Authorized Representative:

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

* a. Applicant

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed.

 b. Program/Project

* a. Start Date: * b. End Date:

16. Congressional Districts Of:

17. Proposed Project:

a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on

b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.

c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.

Yes No

** I AGREE

* 20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?  (If "Yes," provide explanation in attachment.)

* 19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

If "Yes", provide explanation and attach

2,049,048

2,561,310

CA-003

mwest@ccoe.net

Mr.

West

CA-003

(530) 458-0350 x10365

07/01/2021

512,262

Michael

Superintendent of Schools

06/30/2022



2.23 AC 





 
 
 
 
 

P. Addison Covert. 
acovert@parkercovert.com 
 
Sacramento 

 
127372v1 / LH.99 

TUSTIN 
17862 East Seventeenth Street 
Suite 204 • East Building 
Tustin, CA 92780-2164 

(714) 573-0900  Tel 
(714) 573-0998  Fax 
 
SACRAMENTO 
2520 Venture Oaks Way 
Suite 190 
Sacramento, CA 95833-4228 

(916) 245-8677  Tel 
(916) 333-1115  Fax 

www.parkercovert.com 

*A Professional Corporation 

Ref Our File No.: 
 

January 22, 2021 

 
VIA E-MAIL ONLY 

  
 
Re: Recent Brown Act Legislation Regarding Communication on Social 

Media Platforms, District Business 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Effective January 1, 2021, AB 992 (Stats. 2020, Ch. 89) amended Government Code 
section 54952.2 of the Ralph M. Brown Act to permit public officials to communicate on 
social media platforms to answer questions, provide information to the public, or to solicit 
information from the public regarding matters within the legislative body’s subject matter 
jurisdiction. This amendment is in recognition of issues regarding “serial meetings” 
through social media.  

Such social media communications are now explicitly allowed with the public so 
long as a majority of the members of the legislative body do not use a social media platform 
to discuss official business among themselves. 

However, section 54952.2 also adds a prohibition for such social media 
communications involving other members of the legislative body: “A member of the 
legislative body shall not respond directly to any communication on an internet-based 
social media platform regarding a matter that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
legislative body that is made, posted, or shared by any other member of the legislative 
body.” 

In other words, caution is advised in responding to, commenting about, or even 
liking, another member’s post or comment when that post involves district-related 
business, even if members of the public have commented on that post. 



PARKER & COVERT LLP 
 
January 22, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

 
127372v1 / LH.99 

On the other hand, a member may like another member’s posting about personal 
matters, such as members of his family, without violating section 54952.2. 

By its terms, Section 54952.2 only applies to social media communications and does 
not apply to other forms of communication such as texts or emails between legislative body 
members. 

Since this is a new area for the Brown Act, issues will arise regarding its application. 
For example, are such social media posts and comments by legislative body members 
subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act? This in turn raises questions 
about whether a district has “custody and control” over the social media posts. 

Our office will continue to monitor developments created by section 54952.2. 

Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Addison Covert 

 
 
Enclosure 
 
 



http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/printCodeSectionWindow.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54952.2.&op_statues=2020&op_chapter=89&op_section=1[1/22/2021 9:41:34 AM]

DIVISION 2. CITIES, COUNTIES, AND OTHER AGENCIES [53000 - 55821]  ( Division 2 added by Stats. 1949, Ch. 81. )
PART 1. POWERS AND DUTIES COMMON TO CITIES, COUNTIES, AND OTHER AGENCIES [53000 - 54999.7]  (

Part 1 added by Stats. 1949, Ch. 81. )

54952.2.  

TITLE 5. LOCAL AGENCIES [50001 - 57607]  ( Title 5 added by Stats. 1949, Ch. 81. )

GOVERNMENT CODE - GOV

  
  

CHAPTER 9. Meetings [54950 - 54963]  ( Chapter 9 added by Stats. 1953, Ch. 1588. )

(a) As used in this chapter, “meeting” means any congregation of a majority of the members of a legislative body at the same time and location, including
teleconference location as permitted by Section 54953, to hear, discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of
the legislative body.

(b) (1) A majority of the members of a legislative body shall not, outside a meeting authorized by this chapter, use a series of communications of any kind,
directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item of business that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body.

(2) Paragraph (1) shall not be construed as preventing an employee or official of a local agency, from engaging in separate conversations or communications outside of a
meeting authorized by this chapter with members of a legislative body in order to answer questions or provide information regarding a matter that is within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the local agency, if that person does not communicate to members of the legislative body the comments or position of any other member or members
of the legislative body.

(3) (A) Paragraph (1) shall not be construed as preventing a member of the legislative body from engaging in separate conversations or communications on an internet-
based social media platform to answer questions, provide information to the public, or to solicit information from the public regarding a matter that is within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the legislative body provided that a majority of the members of the legislative body do not use the internet-based social media platform to discuss
among themselves business of a specific nature that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. A member of the legislative body shall not respond
directly to any communication on an internet-based social media platform regarding a matter that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body that is
made, posted, or shared by any other member of the legislative body.

(B) For purposes of this paragraph, all of the following definitions shall apply:

(i) “Discuss among themselves” means communications made, posted, or shared on an internet-based social media platform between members of a legislative body,
including comments or use of digital icons that express reactions to communications made by other members of the legislative body.

(ii) “Internet-based social media platform” means an online service that is open and accessible to the public.

(iii) “Open and accessible to the public” means that members of the general public have the ability to access and participate, free of charge, in the social media platform
without the approval by the social media platform or a person or entity other than the social media platform, including any forum and chatroom, and cannot be blocked
from doing so, except when the internet-based social media platform determines that an individual violated its protocols or rules.

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/printCodeSectionWindow.xhtml


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/printCodeSectionWindow.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54952.2.&op_statues=2020&op_chapter=89&op_section=1[1/22/2021 9:41:34 AM]

(c) Nothing in this section shall impose the requirements of this chapter upon any of the following:

(1) Individual contacts or conversations between a member of a legislative body and any other person that do not violate subdivision (b).

(2) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative body at a conference or similar gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of issues of general
interest to the public or to public agencies of the type represented by the legislative body, provided that a majority of the members do not discuss among themselves, other
than as part of the scheduled program, business of a specified nature that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the local agency. Nothing in this paragraph is intended
to allow members of the public free admission to a conference or similar gathering at which the organizers have required other participants or registrants to pay fees or
charges as a condition of attendance.

(3) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative body at an open and publicized meeting organized to address a topic of local community concern by a
person or organization other than the local agency, provided that a majority of the members do not discuss among themselves, other than as part of the scheduled program,
business of a specific nature that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body of the local agency.

(4) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative body at an open and noticed meeting of another body of the local agency, or at an open and noticed
meeting of a legislative body of another local agency, provided that a majority of the members do not discuss among themselves, other than as part of the scheduled
meeting, business of a specific nature that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body of the local agency.

(5) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative body at a purely social or ceremonial occasion, provided that a majority of the members do not discuss
among themselves business of a specific nature that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body of the local agency.

(6) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative body at an open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of that body, provided that the members of
the legislative body who are not members of the standing committee attend only as observers.

(d) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2026, and as of that date is repealed.

(Amended by Stats. 2020, Ch. 89, Sec. 1. (AB 992) Effective January 1, 2021. Repealed as of January 1, 2026, by its own provisions. See later operative version added by
Sec. 2 of Stats. 2020, Ch. 89.)



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, March 10, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81933072723  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 10, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 
2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas – Colusa County Adult School 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – February Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 
6.5.1 SELPA – February Meeting 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the February 10, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Second Interim Report  action 

11.2 Statement of Economic Interests Form 700 due April 1, 2021  Information



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 10, 2021, Agenda 
Page 3 

        DECISION 
12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 

12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
April 14, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



  6.3 

CCOE - Children’s Services                                           

Vicki Markss, Director           

Report for CCOE Board of Education 

Month:  March 2021 

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission. 
 Parent Policy Council meeting. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Monthly meetings with Office of Head Start Program Specialist and Region 8 Cluster. 
 Cabinet meeting. 
 Office Team meetings. 
 Plan and conduct annual Self-Assessment. 
 Social Emotional Learning Community of Practice with Yolo County Office of Ed. 
 Fierce Leadership.  
 Plan Children’s Services In-Service Day, March 5, 2021. 
 NHSA Director’s Leadership Academy virtual cohort. 
 Employee One-on-One meetings for goal planning. 
 Advertise and interview for current vacant positions. 
 Compassionate Systems Workshop.  
 State and Federal Webinars on navigating through Covid-19. 
 Child Plus data systems training. 
 Planning for monitoring review of State funded program, review April 12-16h, 2021. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 Head Start Quality Improvement Grant:  Planning to complete funded projects. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 
 Office of Head Start refunding application for 2021-2022. 

School Readiness: 

 Following strict health and safety protocols for open/reopening plan and modifying 
classrooms as needed. 

 Providing virtual parenting and educational learning concepts through Learning Genie 
Family Engagement app. To promote distance learning experiences. 

 Footsteps2Brilliance and Clever Kids University programs, virtual learning opportunities. 
 Implement Coaching Plan system to support teachers. 
 Begin recruitment planning for next program year.   

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 “It Takes a Village” Publication with community agencies. 
 Recruitment planning and events. 
 Planning community drive thru Family Fair, April 17th, 2021. 



  Educational Services Board Report 

March 2021 

  

 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 

• SWAA students participated in a community field trip, where they delivered Kindness Hearts to various 

community organizations.  

• SWAA students have been studying about World War I events. The class participated in a virtual field 

trip to the WWI museum in Kansas City, Missouri. Along with studying about WW1, the class has been 

learning real-life skills. The students have been working on budgeting strategies and learning how they 

apply to different aspects of life. 

• The SWAA students continue to thrive in academics with the hybrid model, as well as gaining the Social 

Emotional connection through in school instruction.  

 

Colusa County Adult School 

• The Colusa County Adult School has two graduates this month.  

•  More than 208 students have enrolled in this program year. 2019-20 total enrollment was 393 

• The first CNA Cohort will be graduating on March 11, 2021.  

 

Farm to School 

• CCOE applied for a CDFA Grant that includes partnering with the four local districts to bring Farm to 

School Activities to the district sites.  The grant focuses on TK-8  Agricultural Education. 

 

Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 

• Regular and Advisory Zoom meetings continue to take place. Five Colusa County Administrators are 

participating in the 21st Century California School Leadership Academy. The academy is a robust 

professional learning opportunity designed to support and develop the capacity of central office, site, 

and teacher leaders to improve student achievement, lead for equity, and ensure every student has a 

dynamic learning experience every day. Participants engage in professional learning and utilize 

improvement science to advance their leadership skills, knowledge, and behavior to lead for equity and 

digital learning to better meet the needs of all students.     

• The Small County Office of Education Work Group had its second meeting with small COEs. 

Discussion was held on the school reopening guidelines and how this impacts small COEs.  

Considerations for future funding was discussed with the biggest need being more staffing to continue to 

support the districts.   

 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 

• Ed Services continues to provide technical support to the Williams Upper Elementary School in the 

development and implementation of intervention programs to increase student achievement as well as 

build their capacity.  The implementation of the Sobrato Early Academic Language model to have a 

seamless transition from the elementary school to the upper elementary school.    

 

Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

• Technical assistance is provided to all districts regardless of whether they were identified or DA or not.  

 

 



Health Education Framework 

• The Health Education Framework consortia with Yolo and Yuba COEs continue to provide professional 

development to the Tri-county schools.  The third training had limited participation; therefore, the 

presentation and technical support were provided individually to each participant that registered.   

 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

• CCSESA has completed the trainings for the COEs.  The trainings were in-depth and provided a wealth 

of information to build the COEs capacity as they provide support for the districts when they write their 

LCAPS. 

The CDE has also completed their training for LEAs.   The resources from both CCSESA and CDE 

have been instrumental in providing resources to the COEs.    

• The Initial LCAP meetings with the Colusa Superintendents have been completed.  This was a great 

opportunity to listen to the superintendents and understand what their needs are and how the COE can 

provide support. Ongoing meetings will continue as requested by the superintendents.  

• The LCAP Stakeholder Meeting was held on February 25th with agency representative present.  

Recommendations for the writing of the 2021-24 LCAP were provided.   

 

Math and Science CoP 

• Math and Science CoP influencers will be receiving a training on using Jamboard in March that focuses 

on math. 

• In April, SCOE Science specialist, Phil Romig, will be providing a training to Science teachers on 

Power Standards in NGSS. 

 

 

North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 

• The partnership with Yolo and Yuba COEs continues with a series of four trainings on Educational and 

Racial Equity.  The purpose of the sessions is to build capacity of educational leaders in leading for 

educational and racial equity through taking a deep dive into concepts learned as well as develop a racial 

equity impact action plan through collaboration with county colleagues.  The next training will take 

place March 15.   

 

School Improvement Grant (SIG) 

• This is the last year of the SIG grant with Williams Elementary School.   Educational Services serves as 

the external partner and continues to provide technical assistance in the areas of curriculum and 

instruction, Dual Immersion and Sobrato Early Academic Language programs. Student academic data 

has been analyzed to measure growth.  

 

System of Support Expanded Learning Program (After School Programs) (SSELP) 

• Technical assistance continues for the afterschool programs as needed and upon request. A county wide 

meeting took place on March 3 for the afterschool program coordinators. Additional funding for the 

programs was discussed, however, the district needs to apply for the funding, and it is very important for 

the coordinators to be involved in the planning for the extended learning programs in their districts.  

 

 

PREVENTION SERVICES 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 

• The second step program continue to provide virtual and face to face instruction to TK – 3rd grades. 

Students are learning “Problem Solving Skills”, they are engaged, and attendance is high. Teachers 

completed a survey regarding improved student behaviors.  72.7% showed a decrease in negative 

student behaviors and 81.8% have seen an increase in student engagement.  



 

Foster Youth 

• The Title IV-E MOU and Transportation MOU will need to be revised and taken up for consideration 

for 2021-2024 because both MOUs expire on 6/30/2021.  

Homeless/McKinney-Vento  

• From data collected in CALPADS Fall 2020 reporting, 366 K-12 students were flagged as homeless. 

The number does not include students ages 0-5. The number of students flagged as homeless is expected 

to rise above 400, once all the data is collected.  

• School districts have also been reaching out to receive support to determine McKinney-Vento eligibility 

for their students.  

 

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 

• The Tobacco Free Certification instructions have been sent out to all districts. Alejandra has started the 

Tobacco Free Certification process for CCOE. All certifications for Colusa County expire on 6/30/2021.  

• Alejandra has also partnered with PJUSD and SWAA to conduct the CA Healthy Kids Survey. All other 

the local school districts were invited to participate and we are currently waiting hear back from them.    

Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

• A budget modification was submitted to the DOJ. We will wait 4 to 6 weeks to hear if it was approved 

or denied.  

• Alejandra has continued to work with Deputy Valdivia, and both been collaborating with the Colusa 

County Department of Public Health to delve into retailer education.  

 



Colusa County Office of Education 
February 23, 2021, SELPA Executive Committee 
Page 1 

 
 
 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of SELPA Executive Committee February 23, 2021 

 

Present: Mike West, Aaron Heinz, Chuck Wayman, Argelia Casorla, Carol Geyer, Bill 
Cornelius, Summer Shadley, and Jeff Turner 

 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting began at 3:30 p.m. 

2.0 SELPA Overview 
Chuck Wayman presented the SELPA Overview PowerPoint that was previously emailed 
to all Superintendents. He briefly summarized the current areas of growth in student 
qualifications. Chuck also reviewed the cost of services per district compared to actual 
costs paid. If further questions arise regarding the PowerPoint, Chuck has offered to 
meet individually and address any concerns. 

3.0 Staffing Guidelines 
Chuck presented a document where staff guidelines are broken down. Staff is 
distributed throughout the district depending on student needs and behavior support. 
Currently there has been an increase in caseloads for Occupational Therapists and it will 
be decided if an Occupational Therapy Assistant position will be added. Superintendents 
were also made aware of an in increase in transportation needs due to Nonpublic School 
placements transferring to our county Coastal Buttes Academy program. 

4.0 Caseloads 
4.1 Current 2020/2021 

Chuck pointed out the table adjustment made on the spreadsheet, that being 
that Occupational Therapy student count will now be split per district. An 
updated version will be available after the April 1 student count. 

4.2 Projected 2021/2022 
Superintendents were made aware that currently caseload projections are not 
accurate due to referrals still being made. An updated version will be available 
after the April 1 student count and when all pending eligibilities have been 
updated. 

5.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 4:20 p.m. 



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report March 10, 2020 

 

We have been moving forward with EduNet installations.  Williams is continuing to 
exchange carrier hotspots with EduNet routers for their students.   
 
All of Maxwell’s internal routers have been programmed and they are in the process of 
rolling them out to students.   
 
The radios and antennas have been mounted at Arbuckle.  All of PJUSD’s indoor 
routers have been programmed.  A test group of staff members at PJUSD are testing 
the connections and working to build a best practice for student hand out.   
 
Colusa’s installation of the EduNet ran into some tower structural concerns.  We have 
redesigned our approach to mounting the radios and antennas.  We are continuing to 
work with the Engineers that designed the Reclamation District tower to ensure that our 
approach will work well moving forward. 
 
We are exploring the possibility of expanding our partnership with Yuba Community 
College District further into Colusa County.   
 
We are planning potential phase 2 options to expand the EduNet in Colusa County.  
Plans include the possibility of using CBRS (a technology that is nicknamed Super Wifi), 
potential of installing towers on district and county property, and the possibility of 
building our own private internal network to server as a resilient uplink when Frontier’s 
school services go down in our county. 
 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting February 10, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and 
Barry Morrell 

 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Aaron Heinz, Vicki Markss, 

Tina Maxwell, Lorilee Niesen, Chuck Wayman, Michael West, 
and Karisa Williams 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, made the 
following announcements, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
No letters or communications. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West reported on his participation and attendance in activities, 
such as Zoom meetings with many organizations and staff regarding 
health and safety, including preparation and planning, and sorting 
through the plethora of plans designed to open all schools. He provided 
an update on school openings that have not changed since last month.  
Michael also provided an Arts Education update, including his meeting 
with California Rainforest Project CEO Dan Evers and CCOE Arts Project 
Coordinator Bob Kirkman to discuss the Colusa County Arts Initiative 

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

(CCAI) as it fits into the CDE’s plan to embed arts in the classroom at each 
grade level.  The CCAI, which will use project‐based learning (PBL) 
through art, will be headed by Bob, who was a long‐time art educator at 
CHS. Bob will be the County’s Arts Project Coordinator, and as such, will 
lead professional development for the districts as well as work directly 
with staff to assist in the delivery.  Michael presented sample art items 
that will be a part of the PBL curriculum, which will be made using a laser 
engraver.  These projects will be included in Adult Transition, SWAA and 
CBA curriculums.  Michael described the beta test that was conducted in 
the Village MPR to explore COVID 19 testing protocols through Curative 
Labs, which he said went well, and he asked Aaron Heinz to provide an 
update.  Aaron described the second day of testing, and he provided a 
virtual tour of the test facility.  Michael added that several districts will 
use the same system.  Michael said that CCOE provided the facility for 
CCPH’s vaccination clinic in the MPR on Saturday for the first of a series 
of vaccination clinics for the County’s education workforce, which he said 
was an extremely efficient and professional vaccine delivery protocol that 
was smooth and seamless.  Michael participated in a meeting with US 
Representative John Garamendi and all County Superintendents in his 
district, about issues including Head Start and Special Education 
sustainable funding.  Michael also met with California Assemblyman 
James Gallagher (Assistant Chair to the Education Committee) and 
County Superintendents in the Assemblyman’s district about current and 
future concerns regarding all the plans, processes, and protocols 
presented by so many agencies.  Michael attended a virtual CCSESA 
Quarterly Meeting, which was held during the last week of January.  
Michael provided a COVID 19 update, saying that he participated in bi‐
weekly meetings with the CDPH, CDE, CalOSHA, and the Governor’s 
office, to discuss the Governor’s reopening plan, a plan from all major 
union groups, and a potential deal between the Governor and the 
Legislature to open schools.  Issues for reopening continue to include 
testing protocols, vaccinations still not congruent to all the groups, 
vaccine availability, and labor negotiations.  Discussion was held on using 
academic summer school to make up learning loss that is currently under 
consideration and would still need to be negotiated, on CCESP’s position 
being the same as CTA’s, on the possibility of allowing high school seniors 
to repeat their school year and transportation issues arising from that 
idea, on advocates for rural students, on individual learning plans, and on 
grading assessments that are instituted by the district and the teacher.  
Michael publicly acknowledged CCPH, and discussion was held on the 
positive affect of CCOE’s making its buildings available to other public 
agencies. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – January Meeting 
No report. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz presented his January and February 2021 Administrative Services 
report to the Board.  He highlighted the affect that COVID 19 testing and 
vaccinations had on the Business Office and in HR, and the windstorm power 
outage impact to Food Services, saying that both teams rose to the challenges.  
Aaron spoke about Facilities staff being the backbone of the operation; the IAL 
team powering through, getting books out, and making literacy a priority for 
students; and Communications Director Jennifer Jelavich, getting word out on 
the work of the COE.  Discussion was held on generators for critical systems. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Vicki Markss’ January 
and February 2021 Children’s Services written report.   

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza and Lorilee Niesen answered the Board’s questions 
regarding the January and February 2021 Educational Services written report, 
including an inquiry about the number of students in SWAA (five) and Adult 
Education (greater than 100); the type of instruction at SWAA, which is a hybrid 
of face to face and distance learning; the amount of hours required for the CNA 
program, which is 61 hours of theory and 100 hours of clinical work while 
instructors observe; types of job search services offered to CNA students 
through partners such as Colusa County One‐Stop and the Colusa Medical 
Center, and the length of time for the CNA course, which lasted five weeks.  

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman answered the Board’s question regarding his January and 
February 2021 Special Education and SELPA written report, regarding how 
students are faring with distance learning in Special Education at the primary 
school level.  Chuck said that all primary schools in the county are open and 
parents have the option for their student to attend.  For those parents who 
chose distance learning, Special Education staff developed distance learning 
plans to provide services to those students, and the process is working well. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Alex Evans’ added to his January and February 2021 Technology Services written 
report, saying that Arbuckle and Maxwell are completely online with the EduNet 
and the process of distributing routers to students in those towns began this 
week.  Alex said that his team conducted the farthest distance test yet (6.5 
miles) in Williams with great results.  Discussion was held on the importance of 
those six miles once access is provided to Stonyford; on the 2.5 EBS spectrum, 
which was previously owned by Sprint and is now owned by T‐Mobile; and the 
future of the EBS spectrum, which Alex believes will be increased rather than 
retired. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
Ed Conrado thanked Cristy Edwards for running the meetings efficiently. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
Cristy Edwards did not have a report, but she thanked Michael West for a recent 
video that he sent to staff and to the Board. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried five ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and 
Barry Morrell), zero noes to approve the following Consent Agenda item: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the January 13, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported on his participation in a WCC strategic planning meeting 
to focus on the educational needs of Colusa County, and on the MOU between 
CCOE and YCCD for use of their EBS spectrum. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
No new update.  Discussion was held on how well the facility fared during the 
recent wind and rainstorm.  Michael West reported that Facilities installed a stop 
gap measure for the rollup doors, and plans are in the works to replace several 
of those doors. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported on the three‐year LCAP, saying that emphasis is 
being placed on the COVID 19 slide and on stakeholder involvement.  Maria said 
that several trainings for District Superintendents are planned by CCOE and 
CCSESA.  Maria also reported that she met with CUSD, MUSD, PJUSD 
Superintendents and she will reach out to WUSD for their meeting; the annual 
updates are in place; and that the metrics will be a challenge because of the lack 
of data.  Lorilee Niesen announced that the LCAP stakeholder meeting will be 
held on February 25 at 6:00 pm, and she encouraged Board input during that 
meeting.  Discussion was held on developing plans that cannot be compared to 
assessment pieces to determine if those plans are accurate or even expect to 
enact, the possibility of legislatively postponing the LCAP for one year, on 
summer school funding in the LCAP, on the complexity of building a good 
summer school program, on the LCAP becoming a compliance document, and 
approval dates (July for Board approval and October for County approval). 



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Project Director Karisa Williams reported on 
grant activities, including decorating a local business with a “fall in love with 
farming” theme, Facebook readings, and rolling out the book sharing and iPad 
loaning program in Williams that includes a parent training component. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve School Accountability Report Cards (SARC) for the 2019‐20 School Year 

Michael West reported on the two report cards for CBA and SWAA, and Lorilee 
Niesen added the LCAP that they are currently writing will match the 
information presented in the two SARCs. 
11.1.1 Coastal Buttes 

Ed Conrado/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried five 
ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and 
Barry Morrell), zero noes to approve the Coastal Buttes Academy School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC) for the 2019‐20 School Year. 

11.1.2 S. William Abel Community School 
Ed Conrado/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried five 
ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and 
Barry Morrell), zero noes to approve the S. William Abel Academy School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC) for the 2019‐20 School Year. 

11.2 Approve Certifying Candidate for Supervisor of Attendance for her LEA 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), 
zero noes to approve certifying Kelley Hickel for Supervisor of Attendance for 
Coastal Buttes Academy. 

11.3 Approve 2021‐22 Year Three Funding Application for Federal Assistance 
Vicki Markss explained the need for re‐applying for this non‐competitive five‐
year Head Start grant. 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell), 
zero noes to approve the 2021‐22 year three funding application for federal 
assistance. 

11.4 Sale of CCOE Property in Williams 
Michael West reported that the CCOE Board previously approved the sale of the 
property in Williams that was deeded to CCOE when the LEA became fiscally 
independent from the County.  Michael said that next steps will be to survey 
government agencies to determine if they have interest in purchasing the 
property, then if none, it will be opened to the public for interest.  Michael said 
that a commercial entity has shown interest in the property and has indicated 



Colusa County Board of Education 
February 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

that they will submit a bid to purchase the property.  Discussion was held on 
revenue and tax liability from the sale, which Michael said there should be no 
special tax liability, and that the monies could possibly be used for physical plant 
improvements; on placing the monies in a separate fund to allow it to grow; on 
the history of the gift of property from the County to CCOE, as a nest egg for 
separation; on non‐commercial groups expressing interest, not yet but CCOE will 
need to query those entities again; and on whether the districts were required to 
pay in to the Village construction costs, and Michael said they were not, but 
added that the districts were and are still being charged rent for housing Special 
Education staff per the SELPA agreement. 

11.5 Brown Act Change –Board Members’ Social Media Usage 
Tina Maxwell reported on a recent change to the Brown Act relating to Board 
members’ use of social media to engage in Board business conversations or 
communication with the public.  However, she said that the change restricts how 
fellow Board members may respond to these conversations, and she strongly 
encouraged the Board not to use personal accounts and devices when engaging 
in Board business. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

No items added. 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
2nd Interim Report 
March 10, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:38 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

CalOSHA  California Occupational Safety and Health Act 

CBA  Coastal Buttes Academy 

CCAI  Colusa County Arts Initiative 

CCESP  Colusa County Educational Support Professionals 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCPH  Colusa County Public Health 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

CDE  California Department of Education 

CDPH  California Department of Public Health 

CEO  Chief Executive Officer 

CHS  Colusa High School 

CNA  Certified Nursing Assistant 

COE  County Office of Education 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

CTA  California Teachers Association 

CUSD  Colusa Unified School District 

EBS  Educational Broadband Service 

HR  Human Resources 

IAL  Innovative Approaches to Literacy 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LEA  Local Educational Agency 

MOU  Memorandum of Understanding 

MPR  Muli‐Purpose Room 

MUSD  Maxwell Unified School District 

PBL  Project‐Based Learning 

PJUSD  Pierce Joint Unified School District 

SARC  School Accountability Report Card 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

SWAA  S. William Abel Academy 

US  United States 

WCC  Woodland Community College 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

YCCD  Yuba Community College District 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SECOND INTERIM REPORT 
As of January 31, 2021 

 
Presented for Approval March 10, 2021 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  

 

General Fund Assumptions...................................................................................................... 1 

COE Certification (Form CI) .................................................................................................... 7 

Average Daily Attendance-Form A ..................................................................................... 11 

General Fund 01 ...................................................................................................................... 13 

Multi Year Projection ............................................................................................................... 42 

Adult Education Fund11 ........................................................................................................ 49 

Child Development Fund-Form 12 ....................................................................................... 59 

Forest Reserve Fund-Form 16 ................................................................................................ 69 

Special Reserve Fund 17 ........................................................................................................ 75 

Foundation for Private Purpose Trust Fund-Form 73 .......................................................... 81 

Miscellaneous Forms ............................................................................................................... 89 

       Form ESMOE ...................................................................................................................... 90 

       Form CASH ........................................................................................................................ 93 

Criteria and Standards Report .............................................................................................. 95 

 



General Fund Financial Assumptions 
Second Interim Report 

2020-21 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
The assumptions used and listed in this document are the most current and 
accurate information we have available at the time of the preparation of the 
Second Interim Report for the year 2020-21. 
 
Throughout the fiscal year we continually strive to improve the budget 
information. Per Education Code 16222 no later than 45 days after the governor 
signs the annual budget we will make available for public review any revisions 
made to the budget to reflect funding made available by the budget act.  We 
also report to the board at First Interim (December), and Second Interim (March) 
report periods. 
 
This Interim Report is presented by major object account classification, reflecting 
the original adopted budget in Column “A” of SACS Form.  Column “B” is the 
current Board approved operating budget.  Column “C” represents the actual 
revenue and expenditures as of January 31, 2021.  Column “D” is the projected 
year totals (Second Interim), and Column “E” is the difference between the First 
Interim and the projected year totals (Second Interim).   After the interim report is 
approved by the board, the projected year totals become the adopted budget 
for the next reporting period. 
 
Multi-year projections assume a modest cost of living increase based on the 
School Services Dartboard and flat attendance funding for the current and future 
two years.  Salary increases for step and column are included in these projections. 
 

Currently, the U.S. is battling a global wide pandemic, COVID-19. The impact of 
this pandemic has led to a major recession and is currently the worst global 
economic crisis since the Great Depression. Unemployment rates are at an all-

Page 1 of 123



time high and school funding has been reduced to deferrals. This pandemic has 
created both a worldwide health and economic crisis.    
 
During this pandemic, the County Office is seeing an increase in emergency 
related expenditures, while at the same time managing these costs with flat 
funding levels from the state.  With increasing program requirements, and 
requirements for the County Superintendent to oversee District LCAPs and offer 
Differentiated Assistance, salary increases for step and column are included in 
these projections. 
 
Looking ahead to 2021-22 and beyond, the County Office recognizes that 
increased employee costs, including step and column, and STRS and PERS 
employer rate increases, outpace any gains made through LCFF funding.  The 
County Office is making a concerted effort to reduce organizational costs to 
better prepare for lean economic times, all revolving around the belief that the 
students we help educate today are our future tomorrow. 
 

General Fund Revenue 
 

 

Revenue is generated by various State, Federal, and Local sources as well as 
transfers from other funds within the County Office. 
 
Enrollment projections are based on historical trends adjusted for any known 
information on current population.  Current projections are for flat enrollment for 
the current and future years. 
 
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) is refined at each reporting period with the 
most current attendance data and the latest projections from CDE.  

Page 2 of 123



 
The LCFF funds consist 
of Local Property Taxes, 
Education Protection 
Act (Prop 30) Funds, 
and State Aid.  LCFF 
funding equates to 18% 
of the general fund 
revenue.  
 
Federal Revenue 
comprises 17% of the 
general fund revenue.  
The budget for Federal 
Funds increased 
$703,711 from First 
Interim to Second 

Interim.  The majority of this increase was the IAL Literacy Grant. 
 

State Revenue is 31% of the general fund revenue. Budget for State Revenue 
increased $501,950 from First Interim to Second Interim for Special Education. 
 
Local Revenue makes up 34% of the general fund revenue.  Budget for Local 
Revenue decreased $363,150 from First Interim to Second Interim.  The billback to 
the school districts for Special Education decreased as State Revenues for Special 
Education increased. 
 
 

General Fund Expenditures 
 
 
The 2020-21 expenditures in the general fund are projected to increase.  Much of 
the increase is attributed to Special Education additional staff, grant funding 
expenditures and carryover dollars budgeted to be fully spent, 

Page 3 of 123



 

Salaries and Benefits 
Certificated salaries 
are 30% of all general 
fund expenditures.  
This amount has 
increased by $57,375 
since First Interim.  This 
increase is mainly due 
to increased staffing 
for grants. 
 
Classified salaries 
make up 27% of all 
expenditures.  Class-
ified salaries have 
increased by $55,028 
since First Interim.  This 
increase is mainly due 
to increased staffing 
for grants. 
 

Employer paid benefit costs are 25% of all expenditures.  The benefit costs have 
increased $41,749 as a result of the changes mentioned above for Certificated 
and Classified salaries.  
 
Books and Supplies total 8% of all expenditures.  The overall increase in program 
budgets for supplies is $452,603 more than First Interim mainly due to grants.  The 
majority of these funds are in the IAL Literacy Grant. 
 

Services and Other Operating Expenses are 12% of all expenditures.  Budgets for 
services and other operating expenditures are projected to increase by $144,568 
more than First Interim.  This is an increase in grant expenditure budgets. 
 

Equipment – Capital Outlay is 1% of all expenditures.  The budget has increased 
$77,500 since First Interim.  A sprinkler system and sidewalk expansion were added 
at the Education Village facility along with improved technology and safety 
equipment. 
 
Other Outgo Indirect Costs & Debt Payments reduced expenditures by over 3%.   

Page 4 of 123



The negative change of $14,961 reduced expenditures for Indirect Costs more 
than First Interim. 
 

The Indirect Cost Rate  
 
ICR for the budget year is 10.1%. 
 
Programs will be charged the full state-approved rate unless program guidelines 
prohibit the full rate or special arrangements for a cap have been arranged with 
the Superintendent. The negotiated or capped ICR for 2020-21 are as follows: 
  

 Special Education –  Not to exceed 7.00% 
 Children Services – Not to exceed 7.25% 
 First 5  – Not to exceed 7.00% 
 Food Services – Not to exceed 5.00% 
 IAL – Not to exceed 8.07% 

 
 
Fund Balance 
 
The Colusa County Office of Education is in sound financial standing as this 
budget interim update is presented, and the County Office will continue to work 
diligently to maintain this standing. 
 
The County Office is budgeting to spend $200,884 more than it will receive in 
revenue in the current fiscal year 2020-21.  This amount is referred to as deficit 
spending.  The Multiple Year Projection (MYP) projects deficit spending during 
2021-22 and 2022-23.  CCOE has sufficient reserves if these projections materialize. 
 
The Covid-19 pandemic has had a massive shock to our economy. It created 
worldwide shut downs, all time high unemployment rates, and large deferrals to 
education funding. The impact to our economy has been seen both in supply 
and demand as well as financially.  
 
Probably the most significant fiscal concern the County Office has continues to 
be the cap on LCFF growth competing with fixed costs such as step and column, 
and PERS and STRS costs, which are growing at a minimum pace estimated at 3%-
5% per year.  This increase outpaces our office’s LCFF funding, which is projected 
to remain at 2019-20 levels for the foreseeable future.  Educational agencies 
across the state are struggling with managing this imbalance.   

Page 5 of 123



The County Office will continue to provide the very best educational opportunities 
possible for the students of Colusa County.  As such, the Colusa County Office of 
Education is committed to finding ways to control costs without impairing services, 
and further enrich the lives of our students. 

 

Page 6 of 123



 

 

 

COE Certification Form CI  
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2020-21
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 1 of 3 Printed:  2/13/2021   3:42 PM

NOTICE OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW. This interim report was based upon and reviewed using the
state-adopted Criteria and Standards pursuant to Education Code sections 33129 and 42130.

Signed: Date:
County Superintendent or Designee

NOTICE OF INTERIM REVIEW. All action shall be taken on this report during a regular or authorized special
meeting of the County Board of Education.

To the State Superintendent of Public Instruction:
This interim report and certification of financial condition are hereby filed by the County Board 
of Education pursuant to Education Code sections 1240 and 33127.

Meeting Date: March 10, 2021 Signed:
County Superintendent of Schools

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

X POSITIVE CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will 
meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office may
not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION
As County Superintendent of Schools, I certify that based upon current projections this county office will
not meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the subsequent fiscal year.

Contact person for additional information on the interim report:

Name: Aaron Heinz Telephone: 530-458-0350

Title: Assoc. Supt. Administrative Services E-mail: aheinz@ccoe.net

Criteria and Standards Review Summary

The following summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards Review
form (Form 01CSI). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met," and supplemental information and additional fiscal
indicators that are "Yes," may indicate areas of potential concern, which could affect the interim report certification,
and should be carefully reviewed.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met
Not
Met

1 Average Daily Attendance Projected ADA for County Operations Grant or county operated
programs has not changed for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years by more than two percent since first interim.

X

Page 8 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2020-21
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 2 of 3 Printed:  2/13/2021   3:42 PM

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS (continued) Met
Not
Met

2 Local Control Funding
Formula (LCFF) Revenue

Projected LCFF revenue for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years has not changed by more than two percent since first
interim.

X

3 Salaries and Benefits Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current or two
subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than five percent
since first interim.

X

4a Other Revenues Projected operating revenues (federal, other state, other local) for the
current and two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more
than five percent since first interim.

X

4b Other Expenditures Projected operating expenditures (books and supplies, services and
other expenditures) for the current and two subsequent fiscal years
have not changed by more than five percent since first interim. X

5 Ongoing and Major
Maintenance Account

If applicable, changes occurring since first interim meet the required
contribution to the ongoing and major maintenance account (i.e.,
restricted maintenance account).

X

6 Deficit Spending Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard
in any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years. X

7a Fund Balance Projected county school service fund balance will be positive at the
end of the current and two subsequent fiscal years. X

7b Cash Balance Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at
the end of the current fiscal year. X

8 Reserves Available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic uncertainties,
unassigned/unappropriated amounts) meet minimum requirements
for the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

X

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION No Yes
S1 Contingent Liabilities Have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program

audits, litigation, state compliance reviews) occurred since first
interim that may impact the budget?

X

S2 Using One-time Revenues
to Fund Ongoing
Expenditures

Are there ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded
with one-time revenues that have changed since first interim by more
than five percent?

X

S3 Temporary Interfund
Borrowings

Are there projected temporary borrowings between funds?
X

S4 Contingent Revenues Are any projected revenues for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government,
special legislation, or other definitive act (e.g., parcel taxes, forest
reserves)?

X

S5 Contributions Have contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or
transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating
deficits, changed since first interim by more than $20,000 and more
than 5% for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years?

X

Page 9 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

For the Fiscal Year 2020-21
06 10066 0000000

Form CI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: ci-c (Rev 04/03/2017) Page 3 of 3 Printed:  2/13/2021   3:42 PM

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) No Yes
S6 Long-term Commitments Does the county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments or

debt agreements? X

• If yes, have annual payments for the current or two subsequent
fiscal years increased over prior year's (2019-20) annual
payment?

X

• If yes, will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments
decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or
are they one-time sources?

X

S7a Postemployment Benefits
Other than Pensions

Does the county office provide postemployment benefits other than
pensions (OPEB)? X

• If yes, have there been changes since first interim in OPEB
liabilities? X

S7b Other Self-insurance
Benefits

Does the county office operate any self-insurance programs (e.g.,
workers' compensation)? X

• If yes, have there been changes since first interim in self-
insurance liabilities? n/a

S8 Status of Labor Agreements As of second interim projections, are salary and benefit negotiations
still unsettled for:
• Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 1b) X
• Classified? (Section S8B, Line 1b) X
• Management/supervisor/confidential? (Section S8C, Line 1b) X

S9 Status of Other Funds Are any funds other than the county school service fund projected to
have a negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? X

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS No Yes
A1 Negative Cash Flow Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the

current fiscal year with a negative cash balance in the county school
service fund?

X

A2 Independent Position
Control

Is personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
X

A3 County Operations Grant
ADA

Is County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and
current fiscal year? X

A4 New Charter Schools
Impacting County Office
ADA

Are any new charter schools operating in county office boundaries
that are impacting the county office's ADA, either in the prior or
current fiscal years?

X

A5 Salary Increases Exceed
COLA

Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any
of the current or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would
result in salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected
state funded cost-of-living adjustment?

X

A6 Uncapped Health Benefits Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid)
health benefits for current or retired employees? X

A7 Fiscal Distress Reports Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress?
If yes, provide copies to the CDE. X

A8 Change of CBO or
Superintendent

Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief
business official (CBO) positions within the last 12 months? X

Page 10 of 123



 

 

 

AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE (ADA) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 06 10066 0000000

Form AI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: adai (Rev 02/03/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:41 PM

Description

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Original
Budget

(A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

ESTIMATED
P-2 REPORT

ADA
Projected Year

Totals
(C)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

DIFFERENCE
(Col. D - B)

(E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE

(Col. E / B)
(F)

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
 1.  County Program Alternative Education ADA 
      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
         Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 12.32 10.67 10.67 10.67 0.00 0%
      d. Total, County Program Alternative Education
          ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through B1c) 12.32 10.67 10.67 10.67 0.00 0%
 2.  District Funded County Program ADA
      a.  County Community Schools 0.14 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.00 0%
      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 14.55 14.55 14.55 14.55 0.00 0%
      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      d.  Special Education Extended Year 0.00 1.55 1.55 1.55 0.00 0%
      e.  Other County Operated Programs:
           Opportunity Schools and Full Day
           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
           Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      f.  County School Tuition Fund 
           (Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
      g.  Total, District Funded County Program ADA
           (Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 14.69 16.23 16.23 16.23 0.00 0%
 3.  TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
      (Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 27.01 26.90 26.90 26.90 0.00 0%
 4.  Adults in Correctional Facilities 4.05 3.51 3.51 3.51 0.00 0%
 5.  County Operations Grant ADA 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.00 0%
 6.  Charter School ADA
      (Enter Charter School ADA using
      Tab C. Charter School ADA)

Page 12 of 123



 

 

 

COUNTY SERVICE FUND - General Fund 01   
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13 of 123



Page 14 of 123



Page 15 of 123



Page 16 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:34 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,495,351.00 2,706,265.00 1,468,394.91 2,706,265.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 1,614,407.00 1,796,793.00 668,898.75 2,500,504.00 703,711.00 39.2%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 3,967,083.00 4,044,568.00 2,017,059.89 4,546,518.00 501,950.00 12.4%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 4,849,436.00 5,300,053.00 2,594,586.46 4,936,903.00 (363,150.00) -6.9%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 12,926,277.00 13,847,679.00 6,748,940.01 14,690,190.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 4,408,988.00 4,505,396.00 2,650,988.80 4,562,771.00 (57,375.00) -1.3%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 3,672,523.00 3,894,665.00 2,119,408.33 3,949,693.00 (55,028.00) -1.4%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,523,589.00 3,612,720.00 1,702,166.52 3,654,469.00 (41,749.00) -1.2%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 593,923.00 772,054.00 933,326.28 1,224,657.00 (452,603.00) -58.6%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,419,471.00 1,609,067.00 1,004,282.72 1,753,635.00 (144,568.00) -9.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 36,432.00 173,206.00 168,369.66 250,706.00 (77,500.00) -44.7%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299

           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (449,350.00) (489,896.00) (215,869.95) (504,857.00) 14,961.00 -3.1%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 13,205,576.00 14,077,212.00 8,362,672.36 14,891,074.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (279,299.00) (229,533.00) (1,613,732.35) (200,884.00)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00

Page 17 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 2 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:34 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

    BALANCE (C + D4) (273,299.00) (223,533.00) (1,613,732.35) (194,884.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 3,696,035.00 4,304,135.00 4,304,135.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 3,696,035.00 4,304,135.00 4,304,135.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 3,696,035.00 4,304,135.00 4,304,135.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 3,422,736.00 4,080,602.00 4,109,251.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

            Revolving Cash 9711 350.00 350.00 350.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) Committed

            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 2,762,107.00 3,376,391.00 3,364,347.00

Sloar Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,270,328.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,784,612.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,772,568.00

        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 660,279.00 703,861.00 744,554.00  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

Page 18 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 3 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:34 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES

 

  Principal Apportionment

    State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,642,049.00 1,852,963.00 982,951.29 1,852,963.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 415,339.00 415,339.00 235,381.00 415,339.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tax Relief Subventions

    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,601.00 2,601.00 1,264.11 2,601.00 0.00 0.0%

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 100.39 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  County & District Taxes

    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 400,076.00 400,076.00 209,750.82 400,076.00 0.00 0.0%

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 28,192.00 28,192.00 32,877.59 28,192.00 0.00 0.0%

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 584.17 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 5,746.00 5,746.00 5,350.73 5,746.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Revenue Augmentation

     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Community Redevelopment Funds

     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Penalties and Interest from

     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,348.00 1,348.00 134.81 1,348.00 0.00 0.0%

    Less: Non-LCFF

          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,495,351.00 2,706,265.00 1,468,394.91 2,706,265.00 0.00 0.0%

  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,495,351.00 2,706,265.00 1,468,394.91 2,706,265.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 854,044.00 854,044.00 0.00 854,044.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 215,985.00 215,985.00 61,357.00 215,985.00 0.00 0.0%

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 95,000.00 82,465.00 128,418.08 100,465.00 18,000.00 21.8%

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 

   Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

   Instruction 4035 8290 610.00 610.00 218.00 610.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 19 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 4 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:34 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 

   Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title III, Part A, English Learner

   Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Public Charter Schools Grant

   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3020, 3040, 3041,
3045, 3060, 3061,
3110, 3150, 3155,
3177, 3180, 3181,
3182, 3183, 3185,
4037, 4050, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5510,

5630 8290 30,000.00 72,702.00 27,197.75 72,702.00 0.00 0.0%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 418,768.00 570,987.00 451,707.92 1,256,698.00 685,711.00 120.1%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 1,614,407.00 1,796,793.00 668,898.75 2,500,504.00 703,711.00 39.2%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement

      Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education Master Plan

      Current Year 6500 8311 2,373,980.00 2,373,980.00 1,661,652.71 2,833,024.00 459,044.00 19.3%

      Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 79,423.00 79,423.00 0.00 79,423.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 7,000.00 7,000.00 6,576.30 9,000.00 2,000.00 28.6%

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 9,800.00 9,800.00 6,290.00 9,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 11,700.00 11,700.00 546.87 11,700.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions

      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

     Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590 92,669.00 130,410.00 78,990.67 130,410.00 0.00 0.0%

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,392,511.00 1,432,255.00 263,003.34 1,473,161.00 40,906.00 2.9%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 3,967,083.00 4,044,568.00 2,017,059.89 4,546,518.00 501,950.00 12.4%

Page 20 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 5 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:34 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue

    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies

         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds

       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF

       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 28,090.00 28,090.00 0.00 28,090.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 75,000.00 75,000.00 17,623.20 75,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 108,143.00 258,760.00 218,287.60 287,020.00 28,260.00 10.9%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 453,014.00 753,014.00 427,174.51 744,610.00 (8,404.00) -1.1%

  Tuition 8710 4,024,451.00 4,024,451.00 1,920,141.00 3,641,445.00 (383,006.00) -9.5%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 160,738.00 160,738.00 11,360.15 160,738.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments

      Special Education SELPA Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      ROC/P Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Transfers of Apportionments

        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 4,849,436.00 5,300,053.00 2,594,586.46 4,936,903.00 (363,150.00) -6.9%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 12,926,277.00 13,847,679.00 6,748,940.01 14,690,190.00 842,511.00 6.1%

Page 21 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 6 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:34 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,373,875.00 2,450,205.00 1,358,381.05 2,478,240.00 (28,035.00) -1.1%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 1,233,058.00 1,233,058.00 800,206.66 1,271,579.00 (38,521.00) -3.1%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 693,350.00 713,428.00 427,366.75 704,247.00 9,181.00 1.3%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 108,705.00 108,705.00 65,034.34 108,705.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 4,408,988.00 4,505,396.00 2,650,988.80 4,562,771.00 (57,375.00) -1.3%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 1,325,957.00 1,424,310.00 714,988.85 1,451,726.00 (27,416.00) -1.9%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 565,419.00 565,419.00 361,424.70 596,406.00 (30,987.00) -5.5%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 685,597.00 715,825.00 417,138.59 721,538.00 (5,713.00) -0.8%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 845,708.00 939,269.00 517,015.71 942,418.00 (3,149.00) -0.3%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 249,842.00 249,842.00 108,840.48 237,605.00 12,237.00 4.9%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 3,672,523.00 3,894,665.00 2,119,408.33 3,949,693.00 (55,028.00) -1.4%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 

  STRS 3101-3102 1,189,837.00 1,203,765.00 381,320.16 1,204,945.00 (1,180.00) -0.1%

  PERS 3201-3202 853,911.00 870,522.00 437,146.64 887,991.00 (17,469.00) -2.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 348,292.00 359,251.00 199,880.61 365,218.00 (5,967.00) -1.7%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 870,254.00 909,492.00 533,658.95 923,478.00 (13,986.00) -1.5%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 8,792.00 8,831.00 2,200.75 8,865.00 (34.00) -0.4%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 242,503.00 250,859.00 143,109.44 253,972.00 (3,113.00) -1.2%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 10,000.00 10,000.00 4,849.97 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3,523,589.00 3,612,720.00 1,702,166.52 3,654,469.00 (41,749.00) -1.2%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 443,869.00 496,937.00 554,561.61 799,884.00 (302,947.00) -61.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 88,167.00 213,230.00 314,748.13 362,886.00 (149,656.00) -70.2%

  Food 4700 61,887.00 61,887.00 64,016.54 61,887.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 593,923.00 772,054.00 933,326.28 1,224,657.00 (452,603.00) -58.6%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 190,297.00 207,039.00 30,040.06 203,524.00 3,515.00 1.7%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 35,073.00 35,073.00 35,827.89 35,148.00 (75.00) -0.2%

  Insurance 5400-5450 80,000.00 80,000.00 106,878.41 80,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 116,586.00 116,586.00 49,398.96 116,586.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 113,621.00 113,623.00 73,642.87 117,623.00 (4,000.00) -3.5%0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (289,726.00) (289,726.00) (115,320.60) (289,726.00) 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and

   Operating Expenditures 5800 1,030,310.00 1,201,021.00 716,974.28 1,344,029.00 (143,008.00) -11.9%

  Communications 5900 143,310.00 145,451.00 106,840.85 146,451.00 (1,000.00) -0.7%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 1,419,471.00 1,609,067.00 1,004,282.72 1,753,635.00 (144,568.00) -9.0%

Page 22 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 7 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:34 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

 

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 11,385.00 55,000.00 (55,000.00) New

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries

   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 36,432.00 173,206.00 141,984.66 195,706.00 (22,500.00) -13.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 36,432.00 173,206.00 168,369.66 250,706.00 (77,500.00) -44.7%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

 

  Tuition

    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Debt Service

      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (449,350.00) (489,896.00) (215,869.95) (504,857.00) 14,961.00 -3.1%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (449,350.00) (489,896.00) (215,869.95) (504,857.00) 14,961.00 -3.1%

 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 13,205,576.00 14,077,212.00 8,362,672.36 14,891,074.00 (813,862.00) -5.8%

Page 23 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:23 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,098,913.00 2,309,827.00 1,468,394.91 2,309,827.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 2,014.57 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 22,800.00 22,800.00 6,681.54 22,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 374,679.00 669,679.00 373,233.52 669,679.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,496,392.00 3,002,306.00 1,850,324.54 3,002,306.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 519,757.00 525,741.00 296,717.05 506,267.00 19,474.00 3.7%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,379,669.00 1,461,258.00 846,223.18 1,468,958.00 (7,700.00) -0.5%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 832,944.00 867,209.00 462,719.24 867,209.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 170,867.00 215,667.00 155,204.43 215,667.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 640,653.00 540,653.00 545,858.07 540,653.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 28,432.00 53,406.00 51,358.98 108,406.00 (55,000.00) -103.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299

           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,080,012.00) (1,151,621.00) (567,890.63) (1,223,496.00) 71,875.00 -6.2%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,492,310.00 2,512,313.00 1,790,190.32 2,483,664.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 4,082.00 489,993.00 60,134.22 518,642.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 (283,381.00) (337,531.00) 0.00 (337,531.00) 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (277,381.00) (331,531.00) 0.00 (331,531.00)

Page 24 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 2 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:23 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

    BALANCE (C + D4) (273,299.00) 158,462.00 60,134.22 187,111.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 3,696,035.00 3,922,140.00 3,922,140.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 3,696,035.00 3,922,140.00 3,922,140.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 3,696,035.00 3,922,140.00 3,922,140.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 3,422,736.00 4,080,602.00 4,109,251.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

            Revolving Cash 9711 350.00 350.00 350.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) Committed

            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 2,762,107.00 3,376,391.00 3,364,347.00

Sloar Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,270,328.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,784,612.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9760 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9760 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9760 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9760 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9760 2,772,568.00

        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 660,279.00 703,861.00 744,554.00  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

Page 25 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 3 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:23 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES

 

  Principal Apportionment

    State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,642,049.00 1,852,963.00 982,951.29 1,852,963.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 415,339.00 415,339.00 235,381.00 415,339.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tax Relief Subventions

    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,601.00 2,601.00 1,264.11 2,601.00 0.00 0.0%

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 100.39 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  County & District Taxes

    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 400,076.00 400,076.00 209,750.82 400,076.00 0.00 0.0%

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 28,192.00 28,192.00 32,877.59 28,192.00 0.00 0.0%

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 584.17 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 5,746.00 5,746.00 5,350.73 5,746.00 0.00 0.0%

    Education Revenue Augmentation

     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Community Redevelopment Funds

     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Penalties and Interest from

     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,348.00 1,348.00 134.81 1,348.00 0.00 0.0%

    Less: Non-LCFF

          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,495,351.00 2,706,265.00 1,468,394.91 2,706,265.00 0.00 0.0%

  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 (396,438.00) (396,438.00) 0.00 (396,438.00) 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,098,913.00 2,309,827.00 1,468,394.91 2,309,827.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 

   Programs 3025 8290

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

   Instruction 4035 8290

Page 26 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 4 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:23 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 

   Program 4201 8290

  Title III, Part A, English Learner

   Program 4203 8290

  Public Charter Schools Grant

   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3020, 3040, 3041,
3045, 3060, 3061,
3110, 3150, 3155,
3177, 3180, 3181,
3182, 3183, 3185,
4037, 4050, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5510,

5630 8290

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 2,014.57 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 2,014.57 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement

      Prior Years 6360 8319

    Special Education Master Plan

      Current Year 6500 8311

      Prior Years 6500 8319

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 9,800.00 9,800.00 6,290.00 9,800.00 0.00 0.0%

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 8,000.00 8,000.00 391.54 8,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions

      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

     Program 6387 8590

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 22,800.00 22,800.00 6,681.54 22,800.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 27 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 5 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:23 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue

    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies

         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds

       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF

       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 75,000.00 75,000.00 17,623.20 75,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 20,250.00 20,250.00 10,000.00 20,250.00 0.00 0.0%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 108,324.00 403,324.00 330,061.17 403,324.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tuition 8710 10,367.00 10,367.00 4,189.00 10,367.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 160,738.00 160,738.00 11,360.15 160,738.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments

      Special Education SELPA Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791

        From County Offices 6500 8792

        From JPAs 6500 8793

      ROC/P Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791

        From County Offices 6360 8792

        From JPAs 6360 8793

      Other Transfers of Apportionments

        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 374,679.00 669,679.00 373,233.52 669,679.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,496,392.00 3,002,306.00 1,850,324.54 3,002,306.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 28 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 6 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:23 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 57,628.00 57,628.00 33,853.39 57,628.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 16,150.00 16,150.00 5,941.50 16,150.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 445,979.00 451,963.00 256,922.16 432,489.00 19,474.00 4.3%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 519,757.00 525,741.00 296,717.05 506,267.00 19,474.00 3.7%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 214,676.00 214,676.00 138,087.73 214,676.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 493,528.00 523,756.00 305,746.00 523,756.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 671,465.00 722,826.00 402,214.47 730,526.00 (7,700.00) -1.1%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 174.98 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,379,669.00 1,461,258.00 846,223.18 1,468,958.00 (7,700.00) -0.5%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 

  STRS 3101-3102 85,790.00 85,790.00 45,647.76 85,790.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 315,734.00 330,514.00 165,301.13 330,514.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 111,768.00 117,727.00 66,005.21 117,727.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 252,334.00 263,402.00 146,130.80 263,402.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 836.00 875.00 497.12 875.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 56,482.00 58,901.00 34,287.25 58,901.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 10,000.00 10,000.00 4,849.97 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 832,944.00 867,209.00 462,719.24 867,209.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 135,329.00 130,129.00 59,106.36 130,129.00 0.00 0.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 35,538.00 85,538.00 96,098.07 85,538.00 0.00 0.0%

  Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 170,867.00 215,667.00 155,204.43 215,667.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 86,133.00 86,133.00 13,636.48 86,133.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 32,522.00 32,522.00 31,548.33 32,522.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 80,000.00 80,000.00 106,878.41 80,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 105,000.00 105,000.00 45,595.24 105,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 91,187.00 91,187.00 60,232.23 91,187.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 (69,150.00) (69,150.00) 0.00 (69,150.00) 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (289,726.00) (289,726.00) (115,320.60) (289,726.00) 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and

   Operating Expenditures 5800 470,815.00 370,815.00 305,011.19 370,815.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 133,872.00 133,872.00 98,276.79 133,872.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 640,653.00 540,653.00 545,858.07 540,653.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 29 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 7 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:23 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

 

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 11,385.00 55,000.00 (55,000.00) New

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries

   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 28,432.00 53,406.00 24,973.98 53,406.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 28,432.00 53,406.00 51,358.98 108,406.00 (55,000.00) -103.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

 

  Tuition

    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221

      To County Offices 6500 7222

      To JPAs 6500 7223

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221

      To County Offices 6360 7222

      To JPAs 6360 7223

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Debt Service

      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 (630,662.00) (661,725.00) (352,020.68) (718,639.00) 56,914.00 -8.6%

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (449,350.00) (489,896.00) (215,869.95) (504,857.00) 14,961.00 -3.1%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (1,080,012.00) (1,151,621.00) (567,890.63) (1,223,496.00) 71,875.00 -6.2%

 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,492,310.00 2,512,313.00 1,790,190.32 2,483,664.00 28,649.00 1.1%

Page 30 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999)
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/15/2020) Page 8 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:23 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES

    State Apportionments

      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of

       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources

      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of

       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates

       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from

      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 (283,381.00) (337,531.00) 0.00 (337,531.00) 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (283,381.00) (337,531.00) 0.00 (337,531.00) 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

  (a - b + c - d + e) (277,381.00) (331,531.00) 0.00 (331,531.00) 0.00 0.0%

Page 31 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:33 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 396,438.00 396,438.00 0.00 396,438.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 1,614,407.00 1,796,793.00 666,884.18 2,500,504.00 703,711.00 39.2%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 3,944,283.00 4,021,768.00 2,010,378.35 4,523,718.00 501,950.00 12.5%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 4,474,757.00 4,630,374.00 2,221,352.94 4,267,224.00 (363,150.00) -7.8%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 10,429,885.00 10,845,373.00 4,898,615.47 11,687,884.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 3,889,231.00 3,979,655.00 2,354,271.75 4,056,504.00 (76,849.00) -1.9%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 2,292,854.00 2,433,407.00 1,273,185.15 2,480,735.00 (47,328.00) -1.9%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 2,690,645.00 2,745,511.00 1,239,447.28 2,787,260.00 (41,749.00) -1.5%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 423,056.00 556,387.00 778,121.85 1,008,990.00 (452,603.00) -81.3%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 778,818.00 1,068,414.00 458,424.65 1,212,982.00 (144,568.00) -13.5%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 8,000.00 119,800.00 117,010.68 142,300.00 (22,500.00) -18.8%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299

           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 630,662.00 661,725.00 352,020.68 718,639.00 (56,914.00) -8.6%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 10,713,266.00 11,564,899.00 6,572,482.04 12,407,410.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (283,381.00) (719,526.00) (1,673,866.57) (719,526.00)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 283,381.00 337,531.00 0.00 337,531.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 283,381.00 337,531.00 0.00 337,531.00

Page 32 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 2 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:33 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

    BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 (381,995.00) (1,673,866.57) (381,995.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 0.00 381,995.00 381,995.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 0.00 381,995.00 381,995.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 0.00 381,995.00 381,995.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 0.00 0.00 0.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

            Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) Committed

            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

            Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

        d)  Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00  

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00  

Page 33 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 3 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:33 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

LCFF SOURCES

 

  Principal Apportionment

    State Aid - Current Year 8011 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Tax Relief Subventions

    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  County & District Taxes

    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Education Revenue Augmentation

     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Community Redevelopment Funds

     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Penalties and Interest from

     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Less: Non-LCFF

          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091

    All Other LCFF

     Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 396,438.00 396,438.00 0.00 396,438.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 396,438.00 396,438.00 0.00 396,438.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 854,044.00 854,044.00 0.00 854,044.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 215,985.00 215,985.00 61,357.00 215,985.00 0.00 0.0%

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 95,000.00 82,465.00 128,418.08 100,465.00 18,000.00 21.8%

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic  3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 

   Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

   Instruction 4035 8290 610.00 610.00 218.00 610.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 34 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 8 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:34 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES

    State Apportionments

      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of

       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources

      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of

       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates

       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from

      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

  (a - b + c - d + e) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 35 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 4 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:33 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 

   Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title III, Part A, English Learner

   Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Public Charter Schools Grant

   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3020, 3040, 3041,
3045, 3060, 3061,
3110, 3150, 3155,
3177, 3180, 3181,
3182, 3183, 3185,
4037, 4050, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5510,

5630 8290 30,000.00 72,702.00 27,197.75 72,702.00 0.00 0.0%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 418,768.00 570,987.00 449,693.35 1,256,698.00 685,711.00 120.1%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 1,614,407.00 1,796,793.00 666,884.18 2,500,504.00 703,711.00 39.2%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement

      Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education Master Plan

      Current Year 6500 8311 2,373,980.00 2,373,980.00 1,661,652.71 2,833,024.00 459,044.00 19.3%

      Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 79,423.00 79,423.00 0.00 79,423.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 7,000.00 7,000.00 6,576.30 9,000.00 2,000.00 28.6%

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 3,700.00 3,700.00 155.33 3,700.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tax Relief Subventions

      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 

     Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590 92,669.00 130,410.00 78,990.67 130,410.00 0.00 0.0%

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,387,511.00 1,427,255.00 263,003.34 1,468,161.00 40,906.00 2.9%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 3,944,283.00 4,021,768.00 2,010,378.35 4,523,718.00 501,950.00 12.5%

Page 36 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 5 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:33 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue

    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies

         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds

       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF

       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 28,090.00 28,090.00 0.00 28,090.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 87,893.00 238,510.00 208,287.60 266,770.00 28,260.00 11.8%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 344,690.00 349,690.00 97,113.34 341,286.00 (8,404.00) -2.4%

  Tuition 8710 4,014,084.00 4,014,084.00 1,915,952.00 3,631,078.00 (383,006.00) -9.5%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers Of Apportionments

      Special Education SELPA Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      ROC/P Transfers

        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Transfers of Apportionments

        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%0.00  

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 4,474,757.00 4,630,374.00 2,221,352.94 4,267,224.00 (363,150.00) -7.8%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 10,429,885.00 10,845,373.00 4,898,615.47 11,687,884.00 842,511.00 7.8%

Page 37 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 6 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:33 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,316,247.00 2,392,577.00 1,324,527.66 2,420,612.00 (28,035.00) -1.2%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 1,216,908.00 1,216,908.00 794,265.16 1,255,429.00 (38,521.00) -3.2%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 247,371.00 261,465.00 170,444.59 271,758.00 (10,293.00) -3.9%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 108,705.00 108,705.00 65,034.34 108,705.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 3,889,231.00 3,979,655.00 2,354,271.75 4,056,504.00 (76,849.00) -1.9%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 1,325,957.00 1,424,310.00 714,988.85 1,451,726.00 (27,416.00) -1.9%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 350,743.00 350,743.00 223,336.97 381,730.00 (30,987.00) -8.8%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 192,069.00 192,069.00 111,392.59 197,782.00 (5,713.00) -3.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 174,243.00 216,443.00 114,801.24 211,892.00 4,551.00 2.1%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 249,842.00 249,842.00 108,665.50 237,605.00 12,237.00 4.9%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 2,292,854.00 2,433,407.00 1,273,185.15 2,480,735.00 (47,328.00) -1.9%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 

  STRS 3101-3102 1,104,047.00 1,117,975.00 335,672.40 1,119,155.00 (1,180.00) -0.1%

  PERS 3201-3202 538,177.00 540,008.00 271,845.51 557,477.00 (17,469.00) -3.2%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 236,524.00 241,524.00 133,875.40 247,491.00 (5,967.00) -2.5%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 617,920.00 646,090.00 387,528.15 660,076.00 (13,986.00) -2.2%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 7,956.00 7,956.00 1,703.63 7,990.00 (34.00) -0.4%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 186,021.00 191,958.00 108,822.19 195,071.00 (3,113.00) -1.6%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,690,645.00 2,745,511.00 1,239,447.28 2,787,260.00 (41,749.00) -1.5%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 308,540.00 366,808.00 495,455.25 669,755.00 (302,947.00) -82.6%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 52,629.00 127,692.00 218,650.06 277,348.00 (149,656.00) -117.2%

  Food 4700 61,887.00 61,887.00 64,016.54 61,887.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 423,056.00 556,387.00 778,121.85 1,008,990.00 (452,603.00) -81.3%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 104,164.00 120,906.00 16,403.58 117,391.00 3,515.00 2.9%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 2,551.00 2,551.00 4,279.56 2,626.00 (75.00) -2.9%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 11,586.00 11,586.00 3,803.72 11,586.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 22,434.00 22,436.00 13,410.64 26,436.00 (4,000.00) -17.8% 

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 69,150.00 69,150.00 0.00 69,150.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and

   Operating Expenditures 5800 559,495.00 830,206.00 411,963.09 973,214.00 (143,008.00) -17.2%

  Communications 5900 9,438.00 11,579.00 8,564.06 12,579.00 (1,000.00) -8.6%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 778,818.00 1,068,414.00 458,424.65 1,212,982.00 (144,568.00) -13.5%

Page 38 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 7 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:33 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

 

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries

   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 8,000.00 119,800.00 117,010.68 142,300.00 (22,500.00) -18.8%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 8,000.00 119,800.00 117,010.68 142,300.00 (22,500.00) -18.8%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

 

  Tuition

    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Debt Service

      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 630,662.00 661,725.00 352,020.68 718,639.00 (56,914.00) -8.6%

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 630,662.00 661,725.00 352,020.68 718,639.00 (56,914.00) -8.6%

 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 10,713,266.00 11,564,899.00 6,572,482.04 12,407,410.00 (842,511.00) -7.3%

Page 39 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Restricted (Resources 2000-9999)
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

06 10066 0000000
Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 8 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:33 PM

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Original Budget
(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
(E/B)
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES

    State Apportionments

      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of

       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources

      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of

       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates

       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from

      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 283,381.00 337,531.00 0.00 337,531.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 283,381.00 337,531.00 0.00 337,531.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

  (a - b + c - d + e) 283,381.00 337,531.00 0.00 337,531.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 40 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form 01I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/24/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:35 PM

2020-21
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

Page 41 of 123



 

 

 

Multi Year Projection (MYP) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted/Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/09/2016) Page 1 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:09 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5) 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93
(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
   current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,706,265.00 3.50% 2,800,909.00 1.28% 2,836,762.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,500,504.00 0.00% 2,500,504.00 0.00% 2,500,504.00
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 4,546,518.00 0.00% 4,546,518.00 0.00% 4,546,518.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 4,936,903.00 3.77% 5,123,147.00 6.45% 5,453,807.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 14,696,190.00 1.91% 14,977,078.00 2.45% 15,343,591.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 4,562,771.00 4,631,213.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 68,442.00 69,468.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments 0.00 0.00

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 4,562,771.00 1.50% 4,631,213.00 1.50% 4,700,681.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 3,949,693.00 4,008,938.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 59,245.00 60,134.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments 0.00 0.00

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 3,949,693.00 1.50% 4,008,938.00 1.50% 4,069,072.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,654,469.00 3.73% 3,790,840.00 7.62% 4,079,756.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,224,657.00 0.00% 1,224,657.00 0.00% 1,224,657.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,753,635.00 0.00% 1,753,635.00 0.00% 1,753,635.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 250,706.00 0.00% 250,706.00 0.00% 250,706.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (504,857.00) -1.10% (499,325.00) -2.29% (487,909.00)
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

10.  Other Adjustments 0.00 0.00

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 14,891,074.00 1.81% 15,160,664.00 2.84% 15,590,598.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) (194,884.00) (183,586.00) (247,007.00)

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 4,304,135.00 4,109,251.00 3,925,665.00
  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 4,109,251.00 3,925,665.00 3,678,658.00
  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)

      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 350.00 350.00 350.00

      b. Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

      c. Committed

          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

          2. Other Commitments 9760 3,364,347.00 3,167,281.00 2,898,778.00

      d. Assigned 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 744,554.00 758,034.00 779,530.00

          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 4,109,251.00 3,925,665.00 3,678,658.00

Page 43 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted/Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/09/2016) Page 2 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:09 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES (Unrestricted except as noted)

  1. County School Service Fund 
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 744,554.00 758,034.00 779,530.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      d. Negative Restricted Ending Balances

         (Negative resources 2000-9999) 979Z 0.00 0.00

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
  3. Total Available Reserves - by Amount (Sum lines E1 thru E2c) 744,554.00 758,034.00 779,530.00

  4. Total Available Reserves - by Percent (Line E3 divided by Line F3c) 5.00% 5.00%  5.00%

F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES

  1. Special Education Pass-through Exclusions

      For counties that serve as the administrative unit (AU) of a 

      special education local plan area (SELPA):

      a. Do you choose to exclude from the reserve calculation

           the pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members? No

      b. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special

          education pass-through funds:
          1. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

          2. Special education pass-through funds

              (Column A: Fund 10, resources 3300-3499 and 6500-6540,

               objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223; enter projections for
               subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E) 0.00 0.00 0.00

  2. County Office's Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

       Used to determine the reserve standard percentage level on line F3d

       (Line B11, plus line F1b2 if line F1a is No) 14,891,074.00 15,160,664.00 15,590,598.00

  3. Calculating the Reserves
      a. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line B11) 14,891,074.00 15,160,664.00 15,590,598.00

      b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Line F1b2, if Line F1a is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00

      c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
          (Line F3a plus line F3b) 14,891,074.00 15,160,664.00 15,590,598.00

      d. Reserve Standard Percentage Level

         (Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 4% 4% 4%

      e. Reserve Standard - By Percent (Line F3c times F3d) 595,642.96 606,426.56 623,623.92

      f. Reserve Standard - By Amount

         (Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 316,000.00 316,000.00 316,000.00

      g. Reserve Standard (Greater of Line F3e or F3f) 595,642.96 606,426.56 623,623.92

      h. Available Reserves (Line E3) Meet Reserve Standard (Line F3g) YES YES YES

Page 44 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:08 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5) 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
  current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,309,827.00 3.84% 2,398,524.00 1.28% 2,429,226.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 22,800.00 0.00% 22,800.00 0.00% 22,800.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 669,679.00 -44.80% 369,679.00 0.00% 369,679.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 (337,531.00) 27.05% (428,828.00) 0.03% (428,950.00)

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 2,670,775.00 -11.33% 2,368,175.00 1.29% 2,398,755.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 506,267.00 513,861.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 7,594.00 7,708.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 506,267.00 1.50% 513,861.00 1.50% 521,569.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 1,468,958.00 1,490,992.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 22,034.00 22,365.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 1,468,958.00 1.50% 1,490,992.00 1.50% 1,513,357.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 867,209.00 5.32% 913,328.00 8.16% 987,817.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 215,667.00 0.00% 215,667.00 0.00% 215,667.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 540,653.00 0.00% 540,653.00 0.00% 540,653.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 108,406.00 0.00% 108,406.00 0.00% 108,406.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,223,496.00) 0.63% (1,231,146.00) 0.86% (1,241,707.00)
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

10.  Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below)

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 2,483,664.00 2.74% 2,551,761.00 3.68% 2,645,762.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) 187,111.00 (183,586.00) (247,007.00)

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 3,922,140.00 4,109,251.00 3,925,665.00

  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 4,109,251.00 3,925,665.00 3,678,658.00

  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)
      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 350.00 350.00 350.00

      b. Restricted 9740

      c. Committed

          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00

          2. Other Commitments 9760 3,364,347.00 3,167,281.00 2,898,778.00

      d. Assigned 9780 0.00  
      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 744,554.00 758,034.00 779,530.00

          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 4,109,251.00 3,925,665.00 3,678,658.00

Page 45 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:08 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

  1. County School Service Fund

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 744,554.00 758,034.00 779,530.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

(Enter other reserve projections in Columns C and E for subsequent
  years 1 and 2; current year - Column A - is extracted)

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00

  3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c) 744,554.00 758,034.00 779,530.00

F. ASSUMPTIONS
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and 
second subsequent fiscal years.  Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments 
projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10.  For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

Page 46 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:09 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form AI, Line B5)

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
   current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 396,438.00 1.50% 402,385.00 1.28% 407,536.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,500,504.00 0.00% 2,500,504.00 0.00% 2,500,504.00
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 4,523,718.00 0.00% 4,523,718.00 0.00% 4,523,718.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 4,267,224.00 11.39% 4,753,468.00 6.96% 5,084,128.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 337,531.00 27.05% 428,828.00 0.03% 428,950.00

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 12,025,415.00 4.85% 12,608,903.00 2.66% 12,944,836.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 4,056,504.00 4,117,352.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 60,848.00 61,760.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 4,056,504.00 1.50% 4,117,352.00 1.50% 4,179,112.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 2,480,735.00 2,517,946.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 37,211.00 37,769.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 2,480,735.00 1.50% 2,517,946.00 1.50% 2,555,715.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 2,787,260.00 3.24% 2,877,512.00 7.45% 3,091,939.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,008,990.00 0.00% 1,008,990.00 0.00% 1,008,990.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,212,982.00 0.00% 1,212,982.00 0.00% 1,212,982.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 142,300.00 0.00% 142,300.00 0.00% 142,300.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 718,639.00 1.83% 731,821.00 3.00% 753,798.00
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

10.  Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below)

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 12,407,410.00 1.62% 12,608,903.00 2.66% 12,944,836.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) (381,995.00) 0.00 0.00

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 381,995.00 0.00 0.00

  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 0.00 0.00 0.00
  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)

      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 0.00

      b. Restricted 9740 0.00
      c. Committed

          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

          2. Other Commitments 9760

      d. Assigned 9780

      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 47 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYPI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:09 AM

Description
Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2021-22
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2022-23
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

  1. County School Service Fund 
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790

(Enter current year reserve projections in Column A, and other reserve
  projections in Columns C and E for subsequent years 1 and 2)

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790

  3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c)
F. ASSUMPTIONS
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and
second subsequent fiscal years.  Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments
projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10.  For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

Page 48 of 123



 

ADULT EDUCATION FUND 11 
 

The Adult Education Fund is used to account 
separately for revenues for the adult education 
programs. 
 
The principal revenues in this fund are the following: 
 
 Workforce Investment Opportunity Act (WIOA) 
         Adult Education Block Grant 

Adult Education in Correctional Facilities 
 
Expenditures in this fund must be for adult 
education purposes only; money received for 
programs other than adult education shall not be 
expended for adult education (Education Code 
sections 52616 (b) and 52501). 
 
Expenditures in this fund may be made only for 
direct instructional costs and direct support costs 
and indirect costs as specified in Education Code 
Section 52616.4. 
 
Colusa County Office of Education has committed 
to the continued education of adult learners with 
this funding. 

Page 49 of 123



Page 50 of 123



Page 51 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      
      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 31,624.00 31,624.00 0.00 7,815.00 (23,809.00) -75.3%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 169,227.00 169,227.00 106,821.71 189,227.00 20,000.00 11.8%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 209,604.00 209,604.00 106,821.71 205,795.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 62,046.00 62,046.00 61,195.24 72,452.00 (10,406.00) -16.8%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 18,250.00 18,250.00 15,646.18 10,950.00 7,300.00 40.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 35,989.00 35,989.00 12,619.77 34,506.00 1,483.00 4.1%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 64,086.00 64,086.00 18,128.03 60,525.00 3,561.00 5.6%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 20,145.00 20,145.00 5,896.33 18,649.00 1,496.00 7.4%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 9,088.00 9,088.00 0.00 8,713.00 375.00 4.1%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 209,604.00 209,604.00 113,485.55 205,795.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 (6,663.84) 0.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 52 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 2 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 (6,663.84) 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 44,907.00 130,930.00 130,930.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 44,907.00 130,930.00 130,930.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 44,907.00 130,930.00 130,930.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 44,907.00 130,930.00 130,930.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 44,848.00 130,930.00 130,930.00

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 59.00 0.00 0.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 53 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 3 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

LCFF SOURCES
 

LCFF Transfers

    LCFF Transfers - Current Year 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 31,624.00 31,624.00 0.00 7,815.00 (23,809.00) -75.3%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 31,624.00 31,624.00 0.00 7,815.00 (23,809.00) -75.3%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Adult Education Program 6391 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.00 8,753.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 146,766.00 146,766.00 92,067.49 146,766.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 22,461.00 22,461.00 14,754.22 42,461.00 20,000.00 89.0%

  Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 169,227.00 169,227.00 106,821.71 189,227.00 20,000.00 11.8%

TOTAL, REVENUES 209,604.00 209,604.00 106,821.71 205,795.00

Page 54 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 4 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 39,652.00 39,652.00 45,919.80 50,058.00 (10,406.00) -26.2%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 22,394.00 22,394.00 15,275.44 22,394.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 62,046.00 62,046.00 61,195.24 72,452.00 (10,406.00) -16.8%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 4,453.38 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 18,250.00 18,250.00 11,192.80 10,950.00 7,300.00 40.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 18,250.00 18,250.00 15,646.18 10,950.00 7,300.00 40.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 19,365.00 19,365.00 1,752.81 21,660.00 (2,295.00) -11.9%

  PERS 3201-3202 4,144.00 4,144.00 2,203.53 2,486.00 1,658.00 40.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 3,047.00 3,047.00 2,066.41 2,710.00 337.00 11.1%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 6,978.00 6,978.00 4,253.49 4,977.00 2,001.00 28.7%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 44.00 44.00 38.31 46.00 (2.00) -4.5%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 2,411.00 2,411.00 2,305.22 2,627.00 (216.00) -9.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 35,989.00 35,989.00 12,619.77 34,506.00 1,483.00 4.1%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 48,362.00 48,362.00 13,544.29 44,801.00 3,561.00 7.4%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 15,724.00 15,724.00 4,583.74 15,724.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 64,086.00 64,086.00 18,128.03 60,525.00 3,561.00 5.6%

Page 55 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 5 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 6,188.00 6,188.00 0.00 4,692.00 1,496.00 24.2%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 976.95 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 479.51 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 12,957.00 12,957.00 0.00 12,957.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 1,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.33 1,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 1,439.54 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 20,145.00 20,145.00 5,896.33 18,649.00 1,496.00 7.4%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Tuition

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Transfers Out

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 9,088.00 9,088.00 0.00 8,713.00 375.00 4.1%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 9,088.00 9,088.00 0.00 8,713.00 375.00 4.1%
  

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 209,604.00 209,604.00 113,485.55 205,795.00  

Page 56 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 6 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 57 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  11I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:35 PM

2020/21
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

6015 Adults in Correctional Facilities 25,932.00

6391 Adult Education Program 104,998.00

Total, Restricted Balance 130,930.00

Page 58 of 123



 

CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 12 
 
The Child Development Fund is used to 
account separately for federal, state, and local 
revenues to operate child development 
programs.  

The principal revenues and other sources in this 
fund are the following: 

 Child Nutrition Programs (Federal) 
 State Preschool 
      Child Nutrition Programs (State) 
 Child Development Apportionments  
 Interest 
 Child Development Parent Fees 
  
 
The Child Development Fund may be used only 
for expenditures for the operation of child 
development programs. 

 

Page 59 of 123



Page 60 of 123



Page 61 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 3,316,918.00 3,929,160.00 1,704,418.05 3,965,201.00 36,041.00 0.9%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 3,763,300.00 3,996,550.00 2,662,500.07 4,167,366.00 170,816.00 4.3%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 206,247.00 440,381.00 252,817.39 440,381.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 7,286,465.00 8,366,091.00 4,619,735.51 8,572,948.00

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,198,056.00 1,210,056.00 665,071.16 1,210,056.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,583,038.00 1,586,038.00 816,801.05 1,586,038.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,282,873.00 1,286,163.00 562,956.16 1,286,163.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 177,879.00 489,659.00 226,961.70 534,686.00 (45,027.00) -9.2%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 2,574,357.00 3,080,368.00 1,352,688.01 3,226,862.00 (146,494.00) -4.8%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 30,000.00 232,999.00 20,500.00 232,999.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 440,262.00 480,808.00 215,869.95 496,144.00 (15,336.00) -3.2%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 7,286,465.00 8,366,091.00 3,860,848.03 8,572,948.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 758,887.48 0.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 62 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 2 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 758,887.48 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 0.00 80,418.00 80,418.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 0.00 80,418.00 80,418.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 0.00 80,418.00 80,418.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 0.00 80,418.00 80,418.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 18,758.00 18,758.00

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 61,660.00 61,660.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 63 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 3 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 332,060.00 332,060.00 68,279.91 332,060.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 2,984,858.00 3,597,100.00 1,636,138.14 3,633,141.00 36,041.00 1.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 3,316,918.00 3,929,160.00 1,704,418.05 3,965,201.00 36,041.00 0.9%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 9,032.00 9,032.00 970.23 9,032.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Development Apportionments 8530 734,448.00 804,714.00 629,534.41 804,714.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Preschool 6105 8590 1,745,418.00 1,796,270.00 1,117,924.68 1,967,086.00 170,816.00 9.5%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,274,402.00 1,386,534.00 914,070.75 1,386,534.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 3,763,300.00 3,996,550.00 2,662,500.07 4,167,366.00 170,816.00 4.3%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 14,143.00 14,143.00 (226.79) 14,143.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Child Development Parent Fees 8673 4,800.00 4,800.00 2,584.00 4,800.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 95,404.00 329,538.00 246,437.78 329,538.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 91,900.00 91,900.00 4,022.40 91,900.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 206,247.00 440,381.00 252,817.39 440,381.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 7,286,465.00 8,366,091.00 4,619,735.51 8,572,948.00

Page 64 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 4 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 933,277.00 933,277.00 516,942.76 933,277.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 264,779.00 276,779.00 148,128.40 276,779.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1,198,056.00 1,210,056.00 665,071.16 1,210,056.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 711,261.00 711,261.00 312,753.43 711,261.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 271,714.00 274,714.00 154,239.89 274,714.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 243,782.00 243,782.00 137,598.86 243,782.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 356,281.00 356,281.00 212,208.87 356,281.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,583,038.00 1,586,038.00 816,801.05 1,586,038.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 414,617.00 416,472.00 81,603.82 416,472.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 361,498.00 361,498.00 192,647.42 361,498.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 134,731.00 135,759.00 78,643.88 135,759.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 289,583.00 289,783.00 164,891.53 289,783.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 1,377.00 1,382.00 712.70 1,382.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 81,067.00 81,269.00 44,456.81 81,269.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,282,873.00 1,286,163.00 562,956.16 1,286,163.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 173,627.00 353,275.00 138,787.49 344,571.00 8,704.00 2.5%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 3,702.00 135,834.00 88,174.21 142,434.00 (6,600.00) -4.9%

  Food 4700 550.00 550.00 0.00 47,681.00 (47,131.00) -8569.3%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 177,879.00 489,659.00 226,961.70 534,686.00 (45,027.00) -9.2%

Page 65 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 5 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 57,971.00 57,578.00 9,306.01 47,378.00 10,200.00 17.7%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 15,141.00 15,141.00 11,748.12 15,141.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 1,732.00 1,732.00 0.00 1,732.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 126,904.00 128,024.00 67,189.39 162,824.00 (34,800.00) -27.2%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 112,526.00 115,926.00 65,885.05 115,926.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 276,769.00 276,769.00 115,320.60 276,769.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 1,878,367.00 2,379,754.00 1,022,302.91 2,487,320.00 (107,566.00) -4.5%

  Communications 5900 104,947.00 105,444.00 60,935.93 119,772.00 (14,328.00) -13.6%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 2,574,357.00 3,080,368.00 1,352,688.01 3,226,862.00 (146,494.00) -4.8%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 144,999.00 20,500.00 144,999.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 30,000.00 88,000.00 0.00 88,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 30,000.00 232,999.00 20,500.00 232,999.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Other Transfers Out

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 440,262.00 480,808.00 215,869.95 496,144.00 (15,336.00) -3.2%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 440,262.00 480,808.00 215,869.95 496,144.00 (15,336.00) -3.2%
  

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 7,286,465.00 8,366,091.00 3,860,848.03 8,572,948.00  

Page 66 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 6 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: General Fund 8911 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 67 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
Child Development Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  12I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:36 PM

2020/21
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

5320 Child Nutrition: Child Care Food Program (CCFP) Claims-Centers and Family Day Ca5,410.00

5350 Child Nutrition: CCFP Family Day Care Sponsor Admin 3,265.00

6130 Child Development: Center-Based Reserve Account 2.00

6131 Child Development: Resource & Referral Reserve Account 5,369.00

6132 Child Development: Alternative Payment Reserve Account 4,712.00

Total, Restricted Balance 18,758.00

Page 68 of 123



 

 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 
 

This fund exists to account separately for 
federal forest reserve funds received by offices 
of county superintendents for distribution to 
school districts and community college 
districts (Education Code Section 2300; 
Government Code Section 29484).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 69 of 123



Page 70 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:37 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.00 41,354.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 200.00 200.00 316.55 200.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 41,554.00 41,554.00 316.55 41,554.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 6,000.00 6,000.00 316.55 6,000.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (6,000.00) (6,000.00) 0.00 (6,000.00)

Page 71 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 2 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:37 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 316.55 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 0.00 39,793.00 39,793.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 0.00 39,793.00 39,793.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 0.00 39,793.00 39,793.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 0.00 39,793.00 39,793.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 39,793.00 39,793.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 72 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 3 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:37 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Forest Reserve Funds 8260 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.00 41,354.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.00 41,354.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Interest 8660 200.00 200.00 316.55 200.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 200.00 200.00 316.55 200.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 41,554.00 41,554.00 316.55 41,554.00

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Other Transfers Out

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00 0.00 0.0%
  

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.00 35,554.00  

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 73 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
Forest Reserve Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  16I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:37 PM

2020/21
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

Page 74 of 123



 

 

 

 

SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 17 
 
 
The Special Reserve Fund for other than Capital 
Outlay Projects is used primarily to provide for 
the accumulation of General Fund money for 
general operating purposes (Education Code 
Section 42840 – Amounts from this special 
reserve fund must first be transferred into the 
General Fund or other appropriate fund of the 
LEA before expenditures can be made). 

 

This fund is used to set aside funds for future 
purchases of large items such as copy 
machines, vehicles, equipment, software and 
hardware upgrades. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75 of 123



Page 76 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:39 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES      

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 18,000.00 18,000.00 2,540.87 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 18,000.00 18,000.00 2,540.87 18,000.00

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 18,000.00 18,000.00 2,540.87 18,000.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 77 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 2 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:39 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 18,000.00 18,000.00 2,540.87 18,000.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 872,619.00 879,911.00 879,911.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 872,619.00 879,911.00 879,911.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 872,619.00 879,911.00 879,911.00

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 890,619.00 897,911.00 897,911.00

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

             Other Commitments 9760 890,619.00 897,911.00 897,911.00  
        d) Assigned

             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 78 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 03/17/2020) Page 3 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:39 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
 B & D

(F)

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 18,000.00 18,000.00 2,540.87 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 18,000.00 18,000.00 2,540.87 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 18,000.00 18,000.00 2,540.87 18,000.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    From: General Fund/CSSF 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: General Fund/CSSF 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/

     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 79 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  17I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:39 PM

2020/21
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

Page 80 of 123



 

 

 

FOUNDATION FOR PRIVATE PURPOSE 
TRUST FUND 73 
 
This fund is used to account separately for gifts 
or bequests per Education Code Section 41031 
that benefit individuals, private organizations, 
or other governments and under which neither 
principal nor income may be used for purposes 
that support the LEA’s own programs.  

This fund should be used when there is a formal 
trust agreement with the donor. Donations not 
covered by a formal trust agreement should be 
accounted for in the general fund. Amounts in 
the Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund shall 
be expended only for the specific purposes of 
the gift or bequest (Education Code Section 
41032).  

 

This fund is used for scholarships for the CCOE 
Agriculture Educational Foundation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81 of 123



Page 82 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:40 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES     

      

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00

B. EXPENSES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Depreciation 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 83 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 2 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:40 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

     NET POSITION (C + D4) 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00

F. NET POSITION
 
    1) Beginning Net Position

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 67,271.00 67,346.00 67,346.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 67,271.00 67,346.00 67,346.00

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) 67,271.00 67,346.00 67,346.00

    2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) 70,271.00 70,346.00 70,346.00

        Components of Ending Net Position

        a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00  0.00

        b) Restricted Net Position 9797 70,271.00 70,346.00  70,346.00

        c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 84 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 3 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:40 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

OTHER STATE REVENUE

    STRS On-Behalf Pension Contributions 7690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

    Sales

      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 500.00 500.00 577.78 500.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 3,000.00 3,000.00 577.78 3,000.00

Page 85 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 4 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:40 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 86 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
06 10066 0000000

Form  73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 5 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:40 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
Original Budget

(A)

Board Approved
Operating Budget

(B)
Actuals To Date

(C)

Projected Year
Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D

(F)

DEPRECIATION

  Depreciation Expense 6900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, DEPRECIATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
  

TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 87 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund
Exhibit: Restricted Net Position Detail

06 10066 0000000
Form 73I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fundi-e (Rev 04/19/2012) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:40 PM

2020/21
Resource Description Projected Year Totals

9010 Other Restricted Local 70,346.00

Total, Restricted Net Position 70,346.00

Page 88 of 123



 

 

 

MISCELLANEOUS FORMS 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2020-21 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 1 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:42 PM

Funds 01, 09, and 62

Section I - Expenditures Goals Functions Objects

2020-21
Expenditures

A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 1000-7999 14,891,074.00

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE
(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 1000-7999 2,757,163.00

C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:
(All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)
1. Community Services All 5000-5999 1000-7999 0.00

2. Capital Outlay
All except
7100-7199

All except
5000-5999 6000-6999 193,056.00

3. Debt Service All 9100

5400-5450,
5800, 7430-

7439 0.00

4. Other Transfers Out All 9200 7200-7299 0.00

5. Interfund Transfers Out All 9300 7600-7629 0.00

9100 7699

6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 7651 0.00

7. Nonagency 7100-7199

All except
5000-5999,
9000-9999 1000-7999 234.00

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received)

All All 8710 3,641,445.00

9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a
Presidentially declared disaster

Manually entered. Must not include
expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or

D2.

10. Total state and local expenditures not  
allowed for MOE calculation
(Sum lines C1 through C9) 3,834,735.00

1000-7143,

D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439

1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services
(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) All All

minus
8000-8699 0.00

2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities
Manually entered. Must not include

expenditures in lines A or D1.

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE
(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 8,299,176.00

Page 90 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2020-21 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 2 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:42 PM

Section II - Expenditures Per ADA

2020-21
Annual ADA/

Exps. Per ADA

A. Average Daily Attendance
(Form AI, Column D, sum of lines B1d and C9)*

10.67

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A) 777,804.69

Section III - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final
determination will be done by CDE) Total Per ADA

A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures extracted from prior year
Unaudited Actuals MOE calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not
met, in its final determination, CDE will adjust the prior year base to 90
percent of the preceding prior year amount rather than the actual prior year
expenditure amount.) 6,611,752.84 619,658.19
1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for

LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 0.00 0.00

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1)  6,611,752.84 619,658.19

B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 5,950,577.56 557,692.37

C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line II.B) 8,299,176.00 777,804.69

D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)
(If negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00

E. MOE determination
(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement MOE Met
is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If
either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is
incomplete.)

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero
(Line D divided by Line B)
(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2022-23 may
be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 0.00% 0.00%

*Interim Periods - Annual ADA not available from Form AI. For your convenience, Projected Year Totals Estimated
  Funded ADA has been preloaded. Manual adjustment may be required to reflect estimated Annual ADA.

Page 91 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2020-21 Projected Year Totals

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
06 10066 0000000

Form ESMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page 3 Printed:  2/13/2021  3:42 PM

SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section III, Line A.1)

Description of Adjustments
Total

Expenditures
Expenditures

Per ADA

Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00

Page 92 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2020-21 INTERIM REPORT

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1)
06 10066 0000000

Form CASH

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  2/13/2021 3:42 PM

Beginning

Object

Balances
(Ref. Only) July August September October November December January February

ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF
(Enter Month Name):

A. BEGINNING CASH 2,171,199.26 3,514,107.74 4,182,444.50 3,874,092.92 3,726,719.53 3,346,195.73 3,178,606.69 2,726,995.81
B. RECEIPTS
    LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
           Principal Apportionment 8010-8019 85,866.72 85,866.72 272,250.17 154,560.17 154,560.17 272,251.17 192,977.14 72,643.00
           Property Taxes 8020-8079 2,442.99 33,636.21 213,848.61
           Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099 134.81
    Federal Revenue 8100-8299 5,695.75 152,219.00 353,189.58 128,263.55 53,596.88 (24,066.01) 300,000.00
    Other State Revenue 8300-8599 154,277.88 151,328.87 433,731.83 338,663.11 318,575.47 279,513.33 340,969.40 300,000.00
    Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 1,272,879.67 405,264.18 36,545.10 760,363.98 18,172.15 23,003.65 78,357.73 355,000.00
    Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929
    All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979
    TOTAL RECEIPTS 1,513,024.27 648,155.52 894,746.10 1,609,219.83 653,342.36 842,213.64 588,238.26 1,027,643.00
C. DISBURSEMENTS
    Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 91,966.88 400,609.75 401,774.18 528,979.38 408,941.59 409,115.92 409,601.10 400,000.00
    Classified Salaries 2000-2999 165,553.27 307,096.90 311,706.52 389,532.76 309,849.84 310,762.01 324,907.03 345,000.00
    Employee Benefits 3000-3999 99,117.50 255,989.18 257,522.65 293,096.35 264,236.16 266,237.71 265,966.97 338,427.00
    Books and Supplies 4000-4999 34,656.76 101,765.87 181,321.46 69,846.42 226,800.87 177,781.29 141,153.61 50,000.00
    Services 5000-5999 271,930.09 100,374.72 50,759.29 189,932.00 57,738.98 289,821.41 43,726.23 120,000.00
    Capital Outlay 6000-6599 15,000.00 0.00 29,175.85 67,947.96 8,000.00 7,235.42 49,010.43 8,000.00
    Other Outgo 7000-7499 (122,474.00) (215,869.95) (122,474.00)
    Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629
    All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699
    TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 678,224.50 1,165,836.42 1,232,259.95 1,539,334.87 1,153,093.44 1,245,083.81 1,111,891.37 1,261,427.00
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Assets and Deferred Outflows
    Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199 350.00
    Accounts Receivable 9200-9299 2,545,072.78 822,317.66 954,899.37 29.00 121,353.00 275,850.42
    Due From Other Funds 9310 138,268.06 138,268.06
    Stores 9320 10,479.80
    Prepaid Expenditures 9330 30,983.25 19,494.37
    Other Current Assets 9340
    Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490
    SUBTOTAL 2,725,153.89 841,812.03 1,093,167.43 0.00 29.00 0.00 121,353.00 275,850.42 0.00
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
    Accounts Payable 9500-9599 402,620.43 333,703.32 (97,554.23) (29,162.27) 32,392.33 (119,227.28) (113,928.13) 203,808.19 192,588.50
    Due To Other Funds 9610 4,704.00 4,704.00
    Current Loans 9640
    Unearned Revenues 9650 184,895.02 184,895.02
    Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690
    SUBTOTAL 592,219.45 333,703.32 (92,850.23) (29,162.27) 217,287.35 (119,227.28) (113,928.13) 203,808.19 192,588.50
Nonoperating
    Suspense Clearing 9910
    TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 2,132,934.44 508,108.71 1,186,017.66 29,162.27 (217,258.35) 119,227.28 235,281.13 72,042.23 (192,588.50)
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 1,342,908.48 668,336.76 (308,351.58) (147,373.39) (380,523.80) (167,589.04) (451,610.88) (426,372.50)
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 3,514,107.74 4,182,444.50 3,874,092.92 3,726,719.53 3,346,195.73 3,178,606.69 2,726,995.81 2,300,623.31

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS

Page 93 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

Second Interim
2020-21 INTERIM REPORT

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1)
06 10066 0000000

Form CASH

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  2/13/2021 3:42 PM

Object
ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF

(Enter Month Name):
A. BEGINNING CASH
B. RECEIPTS
    LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
           Principal Apportionment 8010-8019
           Property Taxes 8020-8079
           Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099
    Federal Revenue 8100-8299
    Other State Revenue 8300-8599
    Other Local Revenue 8600-8799
    Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929
    All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979
    TOTAL RECEIPTS
C. DISBURSEMENTS
    Certificated Salaries 1000-1999
    Classified Salaries 2000-2999
    Employee Benefits 3000-3999
    Books and Supplies 4000-4999
    Services 5000-5999
    Capital Outlay 6000-6599
    Other Outgo 7000-7499
    Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629
    All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699
    TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Assets and Deferred Outflows
    Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199
    Accounts Receivable 9200-9299
    Due From Other Funds 9310
    Stores 9320
    Prepaid Expenditures 9330
    Other Current Assets 9340
    Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490
    SUBTOTAL
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
    Accounts Payable 9500-9599
    Due To Other Funds 9610
    Current Loans 9640
    Unearned Revenues 9650
    Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690
    SUBTOTAL 
Nonoperating
    Suspense Clearing 9910
    TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D)
F. ENDING CASH (A + E)

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS

March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL BUDGET

2,300,623.31 2,022,017.31 2,111,718.81 1,841,112.81

27,821.00 27,821.00 27,821.00 893,863.74 2,268,302.00 2,268,302.00
218,307.50 (31,620.31) 436,615.00 436,615.00

1,348.00 (134.81) 1,348.00 1,348.00
300,000.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 200,000.00 431,605.25 2,500,504.00 2,500,504.00
300,000.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 1,029,458.11 4,546,518.00 4,546,518.00
355,000.00 355,000.00 355,000.00 450,000.00 472,316.54 4,936,903.00 4,936,903.00

6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
0.00 0.00

982,821.00 1,201,128.50 982,821.00 925,727.69 2,827,108.83 0.00 14,696,190.00 14,696,190.00

400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 275,000.00 36,782.20 4,562,771.00 4,562,771.00
345,000.00 345,000.00 345,000.00 300,000.00 150,284.67 3,949,693.00 3,949,693.00
338,427.00 338,427.00 338,427.00 350,000.00 248,594.48 3,654,469.00 3,654,469.00
50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 41,330.72 1,224,657.00 1,224,657.00

120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 149,352.28 1,753,635.00 1,753,635.00
8,000.00 8,000.00 0.00 50,336.34 250,706.00 250,706.00

(150,000.00) 105,960.95 (504,857.00) (504,857.00)
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

1,261,427.00 1,111,427.00 1,253,427.00 1,145,336.34 732,305.30 0.00 14,891,074.00 14,891,074.00

0.00
370,623.33 2,545,072.78

138,268.06
0.00

19,494.37
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 370,623.33 0.00 0.00 2,702,835.21

402,620.43
4,704.00

0.00
184,895.02

0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 592,219.45

0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 370,623.33 0.00 0.00 2,110,615.76

(278,606.00) 89,701.50 (270,606.00) 151,014.68 2,094,803.53 0.00 1,915,731.76 (194,884.00)
2,022,017.31 2,111,718.81 1,841,112.81 1,992,127.49

4,086,931.02

Page 94 of 123



 

 

 

Criteria and Standards Report 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 95 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 1 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

Provide methodology and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enrollment, revenues, expenditures, reserves and fund balance, and multiyear 
commitments (including cost-of-living adjustments).

Deviations from the standards must be explained and may affect the interim certification.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS 

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance

STANDARD: Projected County Operations Grant average daily attendance (ADA) has not changed for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years by more than
two percent since first interim projections. Projected ADA for county operated programs has not changed for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years by more
than two percent since first interim projections.

County Office ADA Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

1A. Calculating the County Office's ADA Variances

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise enter data into the first column for all fiscal years. If Form MYPI exists, County Operations Grant ADA will be
extracted for the two subsequent years; otherwise enter this data. Second Interim Projected Year Totals data for Current Year are extracted; enter data for the remaining two subsequent
years into the second column.

Estimated Funded ADA

First Interim Second Interim

Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals

Program / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 1A) (Form AI) (Form MYPI) Percent Change Status

County and Charter School
Alternative Education Grant ADA
(Form AI, Lines B1d and C2d)

Current Year (2020-21) 10.67 10.67 0.0% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 10.67 10.67 0.0% Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 10.67 10.67 0.0% Met

District Funded County Program ADA
(Form AI, Line B2g)

Current Year (2020-21) 16.23 16.23 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 16.23 16.23 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 16.23 16.23 0.0% Met

County Operations Grant ADA
(Form AI, Line B5)

Current Year (2020-21) 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 4,466.93 4,466.93 0.0% Met

Charter School ADA and Charter School
Funded County Program ADA
(Form AI, Lines C1 and C3f)

Current Year (2020-21) 0.00 0.00 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.0% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.0% Not Met

1B. Comparison of County Office ADA to the Standard

DATA ENTRY:  Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected ADA for County Operations Grant or county operated programs has changed since first interim projections by more than two percent in any of
the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard, a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting ADA,
and what changes will be made to improve the accuracy of projections in this area.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

There are no charter schools in Colusa County.  I could not correct current year blanks under charter schools.

Page 96 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 2 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

2. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue

STANDARD:  Projected LCFF revenue, for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years, has not changed by more than two percent
since first interim projections.

County Office LCFF Revenue Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

2A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue 

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the Second Interim column, Current Year data are extracted; enter data for the
two subsequent years.

LCFF Revenue  

(Fund 01, Objects 8011, 8012, 8020-8089)  

First Interim Second Interim

Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 2A) Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Current Year (2020-21) 2,706,265.00 2,706,265.00 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 2,706,265.00 2,800,909.00 3.5% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 2,706,265.00 2,836,761.00 4.8% Not Met

2B. Comparison of County Office LCFF Revenue to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected LCFF revenue has changed since first interim projections by more than two percent in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years.
Provide reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting LCFF revenue.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

Assumptions are based on School Services of California dartboard.

Page 97 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 3 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

3. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits

STANDARD: Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than five
percent since first interim projections.

County Office Salaries and Benefits Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

3A. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in Salaries and Benefits

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the Second Interim column, Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists,
Projected Year Totals data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; otherwise, enter this data.

Salaries and Benefits
Second Interim

First Interim Projected Year Totals

(Form 01I, Objects 1000-3999) (Form 01I, Objects 1000-3999)
Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 3A) (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B3) Percent Change Status

Current Year (2020-21) 12,012,781.00 12,166,933.00 1.3% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 12,277,035.00 12,430,991.00 1.3% Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 12,691,071.00 12,849,509.00 1.2% Met

3B. Comparison of County Office Salaries and Benefits to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Total salaries and benefits have not changed since first interim by more than the standard for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

Page 98 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 4 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

4. CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures

STANDARD: Projected operating revenues (including federal, other state, and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and services
and other operating) for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more than five percent since first interim
projections.

Changes that exceed five percent in any major object category must be explained.

County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Explanation Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

4A. Calculating the County Office's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. Second Interim data for Current Year are extracted. If Second Interim Form MYPI
exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the second column.

Explanations must be entered for each category if the percent change for any year exceeds the county office's explanation percentage range.

First Interim Second interim

Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals  Change Is Outside
Object Range / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 4A) (Fund 01/Form MYPI) Percent Change Explanation Range

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-8299) (MYPI, Line A2)

Current Year (2020-21) 1,796,793.00 2,500,504.00 39.2% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 1,796,793.00 2,500,504.00 39.2% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,796,793.00 2,500,504.00 39.2% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Federal Literacy Grant and CARES Funding were added between First Interim and Second Interim

Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MYPI, Line A3)

Current Year (2020-21) 4,044,568.00 4,546,518.00 12.4% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 4,044,568.00 4,546,518.00 12.4% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 4,044,568.00 4,546,518.00 12.4% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Special Education Grant budget was added between First Interim and Second Interim

Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) (Form MYPI, Line A4)

Current Year (2020-21) 5,300,053.00 4,936,903.00 -6.9% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 5,486,349.00 5,123,147.00 -6.6% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 5,817,010.00 5,453,807.00 -6.2% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Budgets for local grants were adjusted between First Interim and Second Interim

Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MYPI, Line B4)

Current Year (2020-21) 772,054.00 1,224,657.00 58.6% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 772,053.00 1,224,657.00 58.6% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 772,054.00 1,224,657.00 58.6% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Federal Literacy Grant and CARES Funding expenditure budgets were added between First Interim and Second Interim

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MYPI, Line B5)

Current Year (2020-21) 1,609,067.00 1,753,635.00 9.0% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 1,609,067.00 1,753,635.00 9.0% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,609,067.00 1,753,635.00 9.0% Yes

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Federal Literacy Grant and CARES Funding expenditure budgets were added between First Interim and Second Interim

Page 99 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 5 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

4B. Calculating the County Office's Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

First Interim Second Interim
Object Range / Fiscal Year Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenues (Section 4A)
Current Year (2020-21) 11,141,414.00 11,983,925.00 7.6% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 11,327,710.00 12,170,169.00 7.4% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 11,658,371.00 12,500,829.00 7.2% Not Met

Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 4A)
Current Year (2020-21) 2,381,121.00 2,978,292.00 25.1% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 2,381,120.00 2,978,292.00 25.1% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 2,381,121.00 2,978,292.00 25.1% Not Met

4C. Comparison of County Office Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked from Section 4A if the status in Section 4B is not met; no entry is allowed below.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating revenues have changed since first interim projections by more than the standard in one or more of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years. Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, will be made to bring the projected
operating revenues within the standard must be entered in Section 4A above and will also display in the explanation box below.

Explanation:

Federal Revenue

(linked from 4A

if NOT met)

Federal Literacy Grant and CARES Funding were added between First Interim and Second Interim

Explanation:
Other State Revenue

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Special Education Grant budget was added between First Interim and Second Interim

Explanation:
Other Local Revenue

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Budgets for local grants were adjusted between First Interim and Second Interim

1b. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating expenditures have changed since first interim projections by more than the standard in one or more of the current or two
subsequent fiscal years. Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, will be made to bring
the projected operating expenditures within the standard must be entered in Section 4A above and will also display in the explanation box below.

Explanation:
Books and Supplies

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Federal Literacy Grant and CARES Funding expenditure budgets were added between First Interim and Second Interim

Explanation:
Services and Other Exps

(linked from 4A
if NOT met)

Federal Literacy Grant and CARES Funding expenditure budgets were added between First Interim and Second Interim

Page 100 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 6 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

5. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance

STANDARD: Identify changes that have occurred since first interim projections in the projected contributions for facilities maintenance funding as
required pursuant to Education Code Section 17070.75, or in how the county office is providing adequately to preserve the functionality of its facilities
for their normal life in accordance with Education Code sections 52066(d)(1) and 17002(d)(1).

Determining the County Office's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75 - Ongoing and Major
Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account (OMMA/RMA)

NOTE: EC Section 17070.75 requires the county office to deposit into the account a minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent of the total unrestricted general fund
expenditures and other financing uses for that fiscal year.

DATA ENTRY:  Enter the Required Minimum Contribution if First Interim data does not exist. First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim data into lines 1, if
applicable, and 2. All other data are extracted.

Second Interim Contribution
Projected Year Totals

Required Minimum (Fund 01, Resource 8150,
Contribution Objects 8900-8999) Status

1. OMMA/RMA Contribution 74,769.30 217,376.00 Met

2. First Interim Contribution (information only) 217,376.00
(Form 01CSI, First Interim, Criterion 5, Line 1)

If status is not met, enter an X in the box that best describes why the minimum required contribution was not made:

  Not applicable (county office does not participate in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998)

  Other (explanation must be provided)

Explanation:

(required if NOT met

and Other is marked)

Page 101 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 7 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

6. CRITERION: Deficit Spending

STANDARD: Unrestricted deficit spending (total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses is greater than total unrestricted revenues and
other financing sources) as a percentage of total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses, has not exceeded one-third of the county office's
available reserves¹ as a percentage of total expenditures and other financing uses² in any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

¹ Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County
School Service Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted
resources in the County School Service Fund.

² A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its
participating members.

6A. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

County Office's Available Reserves Percentage
(Criterion 8B, Line 9) 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

County Office's Deficit Standard Percentage Levels
(one-third of available reserves percentage): 1.7% 1.7% 1.7%

6B. Calculating the County Office's Special Education Pass-through Exclusions (only for county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA)

DATA ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted including the Yes/No button selection. If not, click the appropriate Yes or No button for item 1 and, if Yes,
enter data for item 2a and for the two subsequent years in item 2b; Current Year data are extracted.

For county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA (Form MYPI, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2):
1. Do you choose to exclude pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members from the 

calculations for deficit spending and reserves? No
2. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through funds:

a.  Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

Current Year
Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)
b.  Special Education Pass-through Funds 
     (Fund 10, resources 3300-3499 and 6500-6540, 
     objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223) 0.00 0.00 0.00

6C. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Percentages

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the first and
second columns.

Projected Year Totals

Net Change in Total Unrestricted Expenditures

Unrestricted Fund Balance and Other Financing Uses Deficit Spending Level

(Form 01I, Section E) (Form 01I, Objects 1000-7999) (If Net Change in Unrestricted Fund

Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Line C) (Form MYPI, Line B11) Balance is negative, else N/A) Status

Current Year (2020-21) 187,111.00 2,483,664.00 N/A Met

1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) (183,586.00) 2,551,761.00 7.2% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) (247,007.00) 2,645,762.00 9.3% Not Met

6D. Comparison of County Office Deficit Spending to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Unrestricted deficit spending has exceeded the standard percentage level in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons for
the deficit spending, a description of the methods and assumptions used in balancing the unrestricted budget, and what changes will be made to ensure that the budget deficits are
eliminated or are balanced within the standard.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

Projected COLA does not cover increased costs for step/column in 21-22 and 22-23.  CCOE has large reserves to cover deficit spending if needed.

Page 102 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 8 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

7. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances

A. FUND BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund balances will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year and two subsequent
fiscal years.

7A-1. Determining if the County Office's County School Service Fund Ending Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Ending Fund Balance

County School Service Fund  

Projected Year Totals  

Fiscal Year (Form 01I, Line F2 )/(Form MYPI, Line D2) Status

Current Year (2020-21) 4,109,251.00 Met

1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 3,925,665.00 Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 3,678,658.00 Met

7A-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Fund Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund ending balance is positive for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

B. CASH BALANCE STANDARD: Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

7B-1. Determining if the County Office's Ending Cash Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: If Form CASH exists, data will be extracted; if not, data must be entered below.

Ending Cash Balance
County School Service Fund 

Fiscal Year (Form CASH, Line F, June Column) Status
Current Year (2020-21) 1,992,127.49 Met

7B-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

Page 103 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 9 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

8. CRITERION: Reserves

STANDARD: Available reserves¹ for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years are not less than the following percentages or
amounts as applied to total expenditures and other financing uses²:

Percentage Level³
County Office Total Expenditures

and Other Financing Uses³
5% or      $71,000 (greater of)                                  0   to             $6,317,999
4% or    $316,000 (greater of)                  $6,318,000   to           $15,794,999
3% or    $632,000 (greater of)                $15,795,000   to           $71,078,000
2% or $2,132,000 (greater of)                $71,078,001 and                 over

¹ Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for
Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County School Service Fund
and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced
by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the County School Service Fund.

² A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area
(SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members.

³ Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually by the prior year statutory cost-of-living adjustment (EC Section
2574), rounded to the nearest thousand.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

County Office's Expenditures and Other Financing
 Uses (Criterion 8A1), plus SELPA Pass-through

(Criterion 6B2b) if Criterion 6B, Line 1 is No: 14,891,074 15,160,664 15,590,598

County Office's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: 4% 4% 4%

Page 104 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 10 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

8A. Calculating the County Office's Reserve Standard

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYPI exists, all data are extracted or calculated. If not, enter data for line 1 for the two subsequent years; Current Year data are extracted.

Current Year

Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Form 01I, objects 1000-7999) (Form MYPI, Line B11) 14,891,074.00 15,160,664.00 15,590,598.00

2. Plus: Special Education Pass-through

(Criterion 6B, Line 2b if Criterion 6B, Line 1 is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00

3. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Line A1 plus Line A2) 14,891,074.00 15,160,664.00 15,590,598.00

4. Reserve Standard Percentage Level 4% 4% 4%

5. Reserve Standard - by Percent

(Line A3 times Line A4) 595,642.96 606,426.56 623,623.92

6. Reserve Standard - by Amount

(From percentage level chart above) 316,000.00 316,000.00 316,000.00
7. County Office's Reserve Standard

(Greater of Line A5 or Line A6) 595,642.96 606,426.56 623,623.92

8B. Calculating the County Office's Available Reserve Amount

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted from fund data and Form MYPI. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for the two subsequent years. 

Current Year

Reserve Amounts Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except line 4) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. County School Service Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E1a) 0.00

2. County School Service Fund - Reserve for Economic

Uncertainties (Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E1b) 744,554.00 758,034.00 779,530.00

3. County School Service Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E1c) 0.00 0.00 0.00
4. County School Service Fund - Negative Ending Balances in

Restricted Resources (Fund 01, Object 979Z, if negative,
for each of resources 2000-9999) (Form MYPI, Line E1d) 0.00 0.00

5. Special Reserve Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E2a) 0.00
6. Special Reserve Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties

(Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E2b) 0.00

7. Special Reserve Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E2c) 0.00

8. County Office's Available Reserve Amount     

(Lines B1 thru B7) 744,554.00 758,034.00 779,530.00
9. County Office's Available Reserve Percentage (Information only)

(Line 8 divided by Section 8A, Line 3) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

County Office's Reserve Standard 

(Section 8A, Line 7): 595,642.96 606,426.56 623,623.92

Status: Met Met Met

8C. Comparison of County Office Reserve Amount to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Available reserves have met the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

Page 105 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 11 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation for each Yes answer.

S1. Contingent Liabilities

1a. Does your county office have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program audits, litigation,
state compliance reviews) that have occurred since first interim projections that may impact the budget? No

1b. If Yes, identify the liabilities and how they may impact the budget:

S2. Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures

1a. Does your county office have ongoing county school service fund expenditures funded with one-time 
revenues that have changed since first interim projections by more than five percent? No

1b. If Yes, identify the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue funding the ongoing expenditures in the following fiscal years:

S3. Temporary Interfund Borrowings

1a. Does your county office have projected temporary borrowings between funds?

(Refer to Education Code Section 42603) No

1b. If Yes, identify the interfund borrowings:

S4. Contingent Revenues

1a. Does your county office have projected revenues for the current fiscal year or either of the two subsequent 
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act 
(e.g., parcel taxes, forest reserves)? No

1b. If Yes, identify any of these revenues that are dedicated for ongoing expenses and explain how the revenues will be replaced or expenditures reduced:

Page 106 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 12 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

S5. Contributions

Identify projected contributions from unrestricted resources in the county school service fund to restricted resources in the county school service fund for the current fiscal year and
two subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if contributions have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since first interim projections.

Identify projected transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund for the current fiscal year
and two subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if transfers have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since first interim projections.

Identify capital project cost overruns that have occurred since first interim projections that may impact the county school service fund budget.

County Office's Contributions and Transfers Standard:
-5.0% to +5.0%

or -$20,000 to +$20,000

S5A. Identification of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the County School Service Fund

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. For Contributions, the Second Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. Enter
Second Interim Contributions for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. For Transfers In and Transfers Out, the Second Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. If Form MYPI exists, the
data will be extracted into the Second Interim column for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Click on the
appropriate button for Item 1d; all other data will be calculated.

First Interim Second Interim Percent
Description / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item S5A) Projected Year Totals Change Amount of Change Status

1a. Contributions, Unrestricted County School Service Fund
(Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8980)

Current Year (2020-21) (337,531.00) (337,531.00) 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) (434,526.00) (428,828.00) -1.3% (5,698.00) Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) (434,526.00) (428,950.00) -1.3% (5,576.00) Met

1b. Transfers In, County School Service Fund *
Current Year (2020-21) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1c. Transfers Out, County School Service Fund *
Current Year (2020-21) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1d. Capital Project Cost Overruns

Have capital project cost overruns occurred since first interim projections that may impact
the county school service fund operational budget? No

* Include transfers used to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund.

S5B. Status of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Not Met for items 1a-1c or if Yes for item 1d.

1a. MET - Projected contributions have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

1b. MET - Projected transfers in have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

Page 107 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 13 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

1c. MET - Projected transfers out have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

1d. NO - There have been no capital project cost overruns occurring since first interim projections that may impact the county school service fund operational budget.

Project Information:

(required if YES)

Page 108 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 14 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

S6. Long-term Commitments

Identify all existing and new multiyear commitments¹ and their annual required payment for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explain how any increase in annual payments will be funded. Also, explain how any decrease to funding sources used to pay long-term commitments will be replaced.

¹Include multiyear commitments, multiyear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations.

S6A. Identification of the County Office's Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: If First Interim (Form 01CSI, Item S6A) data exist, long-term commitment data will be extracted and it will only be necessary to click the appropriate button for Item 1b.
Extracted data may be overwritten to update long-term commitment data in item 2, as applicable. If no First Interim data exist, click the appropriate buttons for items 1a and 1b, and enter
all other data, as applicable.

1. a.  Does your county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments?
     (If No, skip items 1b and 2 and sections S6B and S6C) Yes

b.  If Yes to Item 1a, have new long-term (multiyear) commitments been incurred
     since first interim projections? No

2. If Yes to Item 1a, list (or update) all new and existing multiyear commitments and required annual debt service amounts. Do not include long-term commitments for postemployment
benefits other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in Item S7A.

# of Years SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: Principal Balance
Type of Commitment Remaining Funding Sources (Revenues) Debt Service (Expenditures) as of July 1, 2020

Capital Leases
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences Resource 0000 136,697

Other Long-term Commitments (do not include OPEB):

TOTAL: 136,697

Prior Year Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2019-20) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment
Type of Commitment (continued): (P & I) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I)

Capital Leases 14,000
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

Other Long-term Commitments (continued):

Total Annual Payments: 24,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Has total annual payment increased over prior year (2019-20)? No No No

Page 109 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 15 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

S6B. Comparison of the County Office's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Yes.

1a. No - Annual payments for long-term commitments have not increased in one or more of the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if Yes to
increase in total

annual payments)

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in Item 1; if Yes, an explanation is required in Item 2.

1. Will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources?

No

2. No - Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, and one-time funds are not being used for long-term commitment annual payments.

Explanation:
(Required if Yes)

Page 110 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 16 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

S7. Unfunded Liabilities

Identify any changes in estimates for unfunded liabilities since first interim projections, and indicate whether the changes are the result of a new actuarial valuation.

S7A. Identification of the County Office's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim and
Second Interim data in items 2-4.

1. a.  Does your county office provide postemployment benefits

     other than pensions (OPEB)? (If No, skip items 1b-4) Yes

b.  If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since
     first interim in OPEB liabilities?

No

c.  If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since
     first interim in OPEB contributions?

No

First Interim
2. OPEB Liabilities (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) Second Interim

a.   Total OPEB liability 425,222.00 452,222.00
b.   OPEB plan(s) fiduciary net position (if applicable) 0.00 0.00

c.   Total/Net OPEB liability (Line 2a minus Line 2b) 425,222.00 452,222.00
d.   Is total OPEB liability based on the county office's
      estimate or an actuarial valuation? Actuarial Actuarial
e.   If based on an actuarial valuation, indicate the measurement
     date of the OPEB valuation Apr 16, 2020 Apr 16, 2020

3. OPEB Contributions
a.   OPEB actuarially determined contribution (ADC) if available, First Interim
      per actuarial valuation or Alternative Measurement Method (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) Second Interim
          Current Year (2020-21) 0.00 0.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00

b.   OPEB amount contributed (for this purpose, include premiums paid to a self-insurance fund)
      (Funds 01-70, objects 3701-3752)
          Current Year (2020-21) 10,000.00 10,000.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 10,000.00 10,000.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 10,000.00 10,000.00

c.   Cost of OPEB benefits (equivalent of "pay-as-you-go" amount)
          Current Year (2020-21) 0.00 0.00
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00
          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00

d.   Number of retirees receiving OPEB benefits
          Current Year (2020-21) 1 1
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 1 1
          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1 1

4. Comments:

Page 111 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 17 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

S7B. Identification of the County Office's Unfunded Liability for Self-insurance Programs

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim and
Second Interim data in items 2-4.

1. a.  Does your county office operate any self-insurance programs 
     such as workers' compensation, employee health and
     welfare, or property and liability? (Do not include OPEB,
     which is covered in Section S7A) (If No, skip items 1b-4)

No

b.  If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since
     first interim in self-insurance liabilities? n/a

c.  If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since
     first interim in self-insurance contributions?

n/a

First Interim

2. Self-Insurance Liabilities (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) Second Interim

a.  Accrued liability for self-insurance programs 0 0
b.  Unfunded liability for self-insurance programs 0 0

3. Self-Insurance Contributions First Interim
a.  Required contribution (funding) for self-insurance programs (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) Second Interim
          Current Year (2020-21) 0 0
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0 0
          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0 0

b.  Amount contributed (funded) for self-insurance programs
          Current Year (2020-21) 0 0
          1st Subsequent Year (2021-22) 0 0

          2nd Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0 0

4. Comments:

Page 112 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 18 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

S8. Status of Labor Agreements

Analyze the status of all employee labor agreements. Identify new labor agreements that have been ratified since first interim projections, as well as new commitments provided as
part of previously ratified multiyear agreements; and include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the
date of the required board meeting. Compare the increase in new commitments to the projected increase in ongoing revenues, and explain how these commitments will be funded
in future fiscal years.

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff:

The county office of education must determine the cost of the settlement, including salaries, benefits, and any other agreements that change costs, and provide the California
Department of Education (CDE) with an analysis of the cost of the settlement and its impact on the operating budget.

The CDE shall review the analysis relative to the criteria and standards, and may provide written comments to the president of the governing board and the county superintendent
of schools.

S8A. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all certificated labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections? Yes

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8B.

If No, continue with section S8A.

Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2019-20) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Number of certificated (non-management) full-
time-equivalent (FTE) positions 49.6 45.9 45.9 45.9

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents 

have not been filed with the CDE, complete questions 2-4. n/a

If No, complete questions 5 and 6.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?

If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. No

Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting:

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date:  End Date:  

4. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases

Page 113 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 19 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of H&W benefits

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year

Certificated (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated
Since First Interim Projections

Are any new costs negotiated since first interim projections for prior year
settlements included in the interim?

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Cost of step & column adjustments

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the interim and MYPs?

Certificated (Non-management) - Other
List other significant contract changes that have occurred since first interim projections and the cost impact of each change (i.e., class size, hours of employment, leave of absence,
bonuses, etc.):

Page 114 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 20 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

S8B. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Classified (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all classified labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections?

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8C. Yes
If No, continue with section S8B.

Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2019-20) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Number of classified (non-management) FTE
positions 49.6 57.5 57.5 57.5

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents 
have not been filed with the CDE, complete questions 2-4. n/a

If No, complete questions 5 and 6.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?

If Yes, complete questions 5 and 6. No

Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting:

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date:  End Date:  

4. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases

Page 115 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 21 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of H&W benefits

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year

Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated
Since First Interim

Are any new costs negotiated since first interim for prior year settlements
included in the interim?

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Cost of step & column adjustments

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the interim and MYPs?

Classified (Non-management) - Other
List other significant contract changes that have occurred since first interim and the cost impact of each (i.e., hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.):

Page 116 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 22 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

S8C. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period."  There are no
extractions in this section.

Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all managerial/confidential labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections? Yes

If Yes or n/a, complete number of FTEs, then skip to S9.
If No, continue with section S8C.

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2019-20) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Number of management, supervisor, and
confidential FTE positions 11.6 10.0 10.0 10.0

1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents
have not been filed with the CDE, complete question 2. n/a

If No, complete questions 3 and 4.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled? No

If Yes, complete questions 3 and 4.

Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections

2. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)?

Total cost of salary settlement

Change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Negotiations Not Settled

3. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

4. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of H&W benefits

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Step and Column Adjustments (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interm and MYPs?
2. Cost of step & column adjustments
3. Percent change in step & column over prior year

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Other Benefits (mileage, bonuses, etc.) (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23)

1. Are costs of other benefits included in the interim and MYPs?

2. Total cost of other benefits

3. Percent change in cost of other benefits over prior year

Page 117 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 23 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

S9. Status of Other Funds

Analyze the status of other funds that may have negative fund balances at the end of the current fiscal year. If any other fund has a projected negative fund balance, prepare an
interim report and multiyear projection for that fund. Explain plans for how and when the negative fund balance will be addressed.

S9A. Identification of Other Funds with Negative Ending Fund Balances

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in Item 1. If Yes, enter data in Item 2 and provide the reports referenced in Item 1.

1. Are any funds other than the county school service fund projected to have a 
negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? No

If Yes, prepare and submit to the reviewing agency a report of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (e.g., an interim fund report) and a multiyear projection report
for each fund.

2. If Yes, identify each fund, by name and number, that is projected to have a negative ending fund balance for the current fiscal year. Provide reasons for the negative balance(s)
and explain the plan for how and when the problem(s) will be corrected.

Page 118 of 123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2020-21 Second Interim
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CSI

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: csi-c (Rev 06/24/2020) Page 24 of 24 Printed:  2/17/2021  10:16 AM

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS

The following fiscal indicators are designed to provide additional data for reviewing agencies. A "Yes" answer to any single indicator does not necessarily suggest a cause for concern, but
may alert the reviewing agency to the need for additional review.

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items A2 through A8; Item A1 is automatically completed based on data from Criterion 7.

A1. Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the current fiscal year with a
negative cash balance in the county school service fund? (Data from Criterion 7B-1, Cash Balance, No
are used to determine Yes or No)

A2. Is the system of personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
No

A3. Is the County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal years? 
No

A4. Are new charter schools operating in county office boundaries that impact the county office's
ADA, either in the prior or current fiscal year? No

A5. Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the current
or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would result in salary increases that No
are expected to exceed the projected state funded cost-of-living adjustment?

A6. Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health benefits for current or
retired employees? No

A7. Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? 
(If Yes, provide copies to the CDE.) No

A8. Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business
official positions within the last 12 months? No

When providing comments for additional fiscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment.

Comments:
(optional)

End of County Office Second Interim Criteria and Standards Review

Page 119 of 123



Page 1

SACS2020ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
2/15/2021 1:28:39 PM 06-10066-0000000

Second Interim
2020-21 Original Budget
Technical Review Checks

Colusa County Office of Education                            Colusa County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and 
related requirements:

F    - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct, 

correct the data; if data are correct an explanation 
is required)

O    - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if 
data are correct an explanation is optional, 
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

Checks Completed.

Page 120 of 123



Page 1

SACS2020ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
2/15/2021 1:29:12 PM 06-10066-0000000

Second Interim
2020-21 Board Approved Operating Budget

Technical Review Checks
Colusa County Office of Education                            Colusa County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and 
related requirements:

F    - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct, 

correct the data; if data are correct an explanation 
is required)

O    - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if 
data are correct an explanation is optional, 
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS
CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTB - (O) - The following combinations for RESOURCE and 
OBJECT (objects 9791, 9793, and 9795) are invalid: EXCEPTION

           ACCOUNT
FD - RS - PY - GO - FN - OB RESOURCE OBJECT               VALUE

01-6520-0-0000-0000-9791 6520 9791           11,160.00
Explanation:Due to COVID, CDE Allowed carryover from 19-20 to 20-21.  All 
funds will be spent in 20-21.

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

Checks Completed.

Page 121 of 123



Page 1

SACS2020ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
2/15/2021 1:29:42 PM 06-10066-0000000

Second Interim
2020-21 Projected Totals
Technical Review Checks

Colusa County Office of Education                            Colusa County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and 
related requirements:

F    - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct, 

correct the data; if data are correct an explanation 
is required)

O    - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if 
data are correct an explanation is optional, 
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS
CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTB - (O) - The following combinations for RESOURCE and 
OBJECT (objects 9791, 9793, and 9795) are invalid: EXCEPTION

           ACCOUNT
FD - RS - PY - GO - FN - OB RESOURCE OBJECT               VALUE

01-6520-0-0000-0000-9791 6520 9791           11,160.00
Explanation:Due to COVID, CDE allowed carryover from 19-20 into 20-21.  All 
funds will be expended in 20-21.

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

Checks Completed.

Page 122 of 123



Page 1

SACS2020ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
2/15/2021 1:30:15 PM 06-10066-0000000

Second Interim
2020-21 Actuals to Date
Technical Review Checks

Colusa County Office of Education                            Colusa County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and 
related requirements:

F    - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct, 

correct the data; if data are correct an explanation 
is required)

O    - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if 
data are correct an explanation is optional, 
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS
CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTB - (O) - The following combinations for RESOURCE and 
OBJECT (objects 9791, 9793, and 9795) are invalid: EXCEPTION

           ACCOUNT
FD - RS - PY - GO - FN - OB RESOURCE OBJECT               VALUE

01-6520-0-0000-0000-9791 6520 9791           11,160.00
Explanation:Due to COVID, CDE allowed carryover from 19-20 into 20-21.  All 
funds will be expended in 20-21.

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

Checks Completed.

Page 122 of 122



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, April 14, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81933072723  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 14, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 
2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma(s) – Colusa County Adult School 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – March Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the March 10, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 
   



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 14, 2021, Agenda 
Page 3 

        DECISION 
11.0 NEW BUSINESS 

11.1 Approve Amended LCAP Federal Addendum for Title I, Part A Funds  action 

11.2 Acknowledge Receipt of Sunshine Proposal for 2021‐22 from  information 
  Colusa County Educational Support Professionals (CCESP) 

11.3 Superintendent’s Response to Sunshine Proposal for 2021‐22  information 
from Colusa County Educational Support Professionals (CCESP) 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
May 12, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



  6.3 

CCOE - Children’s Services                                           

Vicki Markss, Director           

Report for CCOE Board of Education 

Month:  March 2021 

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission meeting. 
 Parent Policy Council meeting. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 School Readiness call with Office of Head Start Program Specialist and Region 8 Cluster. 
 Cabinet meeting. 
 Office Team/Recruitment meetings. 
 Develop annual Self-Assessment report. 
 Social Emotional Learning Community of Practice with Yolo County Office of Ed. 
 Fierce Leadership book reading with Executive Team.  
 NHSA Director’s Leadership Academy virtual cohort. 
 Employee One-on-One meetings for goal planning. 
 Held interviews.  Onboarding new Division Director. 
 State and Federal Webinars on navigating through Covid-19. 
 Prepared for CDE Monitoring Review, April 12-16, 2021. 
 Implemented In-Service All Staff Day virtual training. 
 Child Plus data systems training. 

Grant Opportunities:   

 Head Start Quality Improvement funding:  Planning to complete funded projects. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 
 OHS Grant Application due April 1st, 2021. 
 OHS Grant for COLA andCOVID-19 funds due April 12th, 2021. 

School Readiness: 

 Seasonal staff returning, migrant season begins April 1st, 2021.  Farm Labor Housing 
opens April 20th, 2021.   

 Following strict health and safety protocols for open/reopening plan and modifying 
classrooms as needed. 

 Provide virtual parenting and educational learning concepts through Learning Genie 
Family Engagement app. To promote distance learning experiences. 

 Footsteps2Brilliance, Clever Kids University, and Learning Genie apps support distance 
learning  strategies. 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 “It Takes a Village” Publication with community agencies. 



  Educational Services Board Report 

April 2021 

  

 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 

• S. William Abel will be offering a Summer Academy for SWAA students.  Details regarding the 

program, dates, and logistics will be forthcoming. 

• ILP (Individualized Learning Plan) Meetings were held on March 30, 2021 with students. 

• SWAA Students will be enjoying Spring Break beginning on April 2nd and returning to school on April 

12th. 

• Students have been working hard in the classroom, they have been learning about the history of War II, 

household budgeting and the importance of the local ecosystems. Art activities with Mr. Kirkman have 

including making ceramic tiles to be placed at the Education Village. 

• Students required to take CASSP and ELPAC exams will do so during the final week in April.  

• A lock-down drill is scheduled for the Education Village and SWAA on April 28, 2021.  The Williams 

PD and Sheriff’s Department will be participating in the drill. 

 

Colusa County Adult School 

• CCOE completed its first CNA Cohort with 11 students completing the program.  All 11 students have 

been offered positions at either Valley West Post Acute or the Colusa Medical Center. CCOE will begin 

its 2nd CNA Cohort on April 28th.  Applications are available. Please encourage community members to 

apply. 

• The Wildland Fire Academy Graduation will be held on April 11, 2021 at 2:00 PM at the Ed Village 

MPR. Join us to celebrate the cadets that will be graduating this year’s academy. 

• In addition to Registered Nurse, Heather Wilson-Jensen and Licensed Vocational Nurse, Tina Perkins, 

CCOE has hired Jolynn Ferraiuolo to provide instruction in the CNA Program. All nurses are part-time 

due to their commitment at their current employment as nurses. We are happy to have all three assisting 

us with our CNA Program. 

 

Farm to School 

• Farm to School (F2S) Personnel have been busy working with SWAA students to finalize orders for the 

Spring Plant Sale. Plant pre-orders were filled and distributed on March 25th. The remaining plants will 

be offered at the plant sale at Griff’s Feed and Seed on April 3rd.  Great job Craig, Nancy and SWAA 

students! 

• Community Garden Plots are being utilized by families, Williams Junior High, Master Gardeners, and 

other community members. 

 

 

Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 

• Regular and Advisory Zoom meetings continue to take place.  The meeting took place on 3/23 and 

discussion was held on the continued capacity building model for the county offices. Learning Acceleration, 

Distance Learning including hybrid models were discussed. 

 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 

• Ed. Services continues to provide technical support to the Williams Upper Elementary School in the 

development and implementation of intervention programs to increase student achievement as well as build 



their capacity. Maria Arvizu-Espinoza provided a parent training on “Understanding Parent Involvement as it 

relates to school Associations – Committees – Councils”.  The presentation was well received, and Ed. 

Services was requested to provide a series of parent education trainings to build their leadership capacity.  

 

Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

• At this time, only Williams USD is identified as needing DA, however, technical assistance is provided 

to all districts regardless of whether they were identified or DA or not.  

 

Health Education Framework 

• Ed Services continues to participate in the statewide Health Education Framework trainings; however, the 

next CCOE training for the LEAs is scheduled for May.   

 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

• LCAP meetings with superintendents continue on an as needed basis.  A detailed LCAP training took place 

for the Williams USD leadership team on March 17th and customized support was provided to the Colusa 

USD superintendent as well. Ongoing meetings will continue as requested by the superintendents.  

• Development of the 2021-24 LCAP is in progress. Any recommendations regarding goals, actions, & 

services for the upcoming LCAP can be provided to either Lorilee or Maria.  

 

Math and Science CoP 

• Math and Science Community of Practice Meetings are usually held the first Tuesday of the month.  

Due to district’s vacation schedules, the April CoP meeting will be held on April 13th with SCOE 

Science Specialist, Phil Romig providing teachers guidance on the CAST (California Science Test). 

 

North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 

• The partnership with Yolo and Yuba COEs continues with a series of trainings on Educational and Racial 

Equity. The purpose of the sessions is to build capacity of educational leaders in leading for educational and 

racial equity through taking a deep dive into concepts learned as well as develop a racial equity impact action 

plan through collaboration with county colleagues. The next training will take place April 19.  

 

School Improvement Grant (SIG) 

• This is the last year of the SIG grant with Williams Elementary School. Educational Services serves as the 

external partner and continues to provide technical assistance in the areas of curriculum and instruction, Dual 

Immersion and Sobrato Early Academic Language programs. There have been no meetings currently.   

 

Social Emotional Learning Communities of Practice (SEL CoP) 

• Colusa COE went into partnership with Sacramento COE to build a Colusa Countywide SEL CoP also 

sponsored by The Cal-HOPE Student Support Project that delivers crisis support and is funded by the CA 

Mental Health Services Authority.  Each county office in our region will receive $100,000 as is earmarked to 

support the implementation and creating of Social Emotional Learning CoP. We have been in partnership 

with Yolo and Yuba COEs since May 2020 to implement an SEL CoP to provide support for LEAs due to 

the school’s shutdown.  WUSD, CUSD, Children’s Services, Ed. Services, and SELPA have participated in 

the trainings.  Ed. Services has completed the Planned Report and Detailed Budget and submitted to SCOE 

on March 29.   

 

System of Support Expanded Learning Program (After School Programs) (SSELP) 

• Technical assistance continues for the afterschool programs as needed and upon request. Afterschool 

coordinators continue to receive up to day information on professional development and funding for the 

upcoming school year.   

 

 

 



Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 

• This month we have been wrapping up “Problem Solving Skills” and started the “Bullying Unit.” The 

students are learning the meaning of bullying and the 3 “R’S”, “Recognize, Report and Refuse.” 

Teachers and students continue to be very engaged with the “Second Step” program and are practicing 

the skills they are learning. Students have expressed how the skills they are learning are helpful outside 

of the school setting and working in their personal lives and activities. Ed. Services continues to 

advocate for a three-year plan for continuity in the program and hiring of an additional person to provide 

services in the preschools and other school sites. 

• Also, the Prevention Services Department attended the Mental Health Stakeholder Townhall hosted by 

Behavioral Health to advocate the retention of the Second Step program and expand it up to 6th grade.  

Foster Youth 

• The Foster Grant’s due date is May 28th, 2021. A needs assessment is currently being conducted via 

Microsoft Forms and so far, there has been 22 responses submitted/received.  

• The drafting of the Title IV-E and Transportation MOUs has begun. Once the two MOUs are completed, 

they will be in effect from July 1, 2021– June 30, 2024.  

• Title IV-E Quarter 3 invoice is due on 4/15/2021 to the Department of Health and Human Services.  

• Through our partnership with the SELPA department, a “School Based Mental Health” training is being 

offered. The training is being presented by Girard, Edwards, Stevens & Tucker LLP. 

 

Homeless/McKinney-Vento  

• The Homeless Program has received an increasing amount of emails/phone calls from districts seeking 

support with technical questions about the rights of McKinney-Vento youth, it is believed that this is 

attributed to the impact of COVID19.  

• Additional “You can Enroll in School” posters have been distributed to all school districts and children’s 

services.  

• On March 15th, Maria Arvizu-Espinoza and Alejandra Lopez presented Colusa Unified a certificate of 

appreciation for their exemplary efforts in supports all students, especially McKinney-Vento students. 

An allocation of $9,600 has been made to provide students experiencing homelessness additional 

support.   

• Alejandra and the new Prevention Services Coordinator will virtually attend the CASCWA conference 

mid-April.  

• The Q3 Homeless Program Expenditure Reports are due 4/15/2021. 

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 

• The TUPE program has been extremely active recently 

• Alejandra Lopez attended the Marijuana Prevention Virtual Summit through Sacramento County.  

• TUPE has purchased stress balls shaped as brains and bended pencils to give out during outreach 

activities. Additionally, the program has purchased various tobacco education visuals and curriculum to 

distribute at the next district liaison meetings so that each district has a toolkit.  

• Alejandra and the new Prevention Services Coordinator will attend the virtual Annual Cannabis and 

Tobacco Prevention Conference in late April.  

• CCOE offered the CA Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) to districts to have pre- and post- COVID data, 

Colusa County Districts are not required to conduct the CHKS this year. Pierce Joint Unified, Maxwell 

Unified, and SWAA will be conducting the CHKS this year, Colusa Unified will be conducting the 

Youth Truth Survey, which is why they decided to not participate in the CHKS survey.  

• Lastly, the Tobacco-Free Certification for all Colusa County districts and CCOE expires on 6/30/2021. 

Prevention Services is currently working with all districts to complete the documentation needed to 



recertify. Prevention Services will also participate in the next tobacco subcommittee through Colusa 

County Partners for Health.  

Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

• Payment has been received from the DOJ for Q3 of 2019-2020 through Q1 of 2020-2021. We are still 

awaiting for budget modification to be approved to move forward with additional services through 

Colusa County Sheriff’s Department.  

• Currently, we are working on condensing our scope of work to report back to DOJ. Progress report and 

reimbursement invoices for Q3 are due 4/15/2021.  

 



  6.5 
Colusa County Office of Education 

SELPA/Special Ed Board Report 
April 14, 2021 

Special Ed Report 

1. Staffing- We are currently recruiting for Special Education Teachers for 
2020-2021 
 

2. All sites are currently open in some manner. 
 

3. Para Educators continue to complete monthly training courses on Special 
Education topics through our distance learning platform, Exceptional Child. 
 

4. Staff are currently dealing with the challenges of cohort restrictions and the 
increase in need of all students due to the school closure. 
 

5. Kevin Douglas, CCOE Behavior Specialist, delivered a training with Family 
Soup on evidence-based practices. 
 

6. The Program Specialists are developing PLC’s to target specific groups of 
staff and topics that are relevant to them. The first meetings will cover our 
Unique/SANDI curriculum and IEP writing. The materials covered during 
these meetings will eventually lead to a Teacher Resource 
Padlet/webpage. 
 

7. Coastal Buttes staff and stakeholders are currently working through a 
Strategic Implementation Guide to update the vision, goals, and student 
handbooks for Coastal Buttes. Also, a new playground will be installed for 
the students at Coastal Buttes. There are currently 16 students at Coastal 
Buttes. 
 

CCOE SELPA 

1. Meeting on April 27, 2021. 

STATE SELPA 

1. State SELPA discussed the changes in the Local Plan template, update on 
State budget, and current legislation that affects students with disabilities. 



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report April 14, 2021 

 

Our partnership with Yuba Community College District (YCCD) has allowed us the 
ability to leverage additional spectrum in Colusa County. YCCD’s spectrum was in 
danger of being forfeited back to the FCC if it was not used in our area by March 27th.  
In Williams, we were able to identify an area that needed additional coverage and were 
quickly able to deploy two more radios to solve the problems for WUSD and YCCD 
before the deadline.   
 
This 2nd LTE site in Williams has also helped us to learn how to provide solutions for 
better coverage in other districts with this new spectrum.  We now have a location for a 
second potential site at Arbuckle Elementary as well as a redesign of the deployment in 
Colusa that will be more efficient.  Maxwell is currently good without additional 
spectrum.  YCCD’s spectrum will also eventually be used in Stonyford.  
 
Williams and Maxwell are continuing to exchange carrier hotspots with EduNet routers 
for their students.  A test group of staff members at PJUSD are testing the connections 
and working to build a best practice for student hand out. 
 
Colusa’s installation of the EduNet ran into some tower structural concerns.  We have 
redesigned our approach to mounting the radios and antennas.  We are continuing to 
work with the Engineers that designed the Reclamation District tower to ensure that our 
new approach will work safely moving forward.  We now have access to use the top of 
Colusa City Hall building as an option as well.  We are currently working on a plan to 
cover Colusa from the Reclamation tower, City Hall, and the top of the Colusa High 
School Gym.  
 
Recently Microsoft released an update that corrupted the drivers for our Kyocera 
copiers on our computers.  We had been working on a way to block the update, 
however some of the computers in our county had already received the update.  When 
the staff that received this update try to print to a Kyocera copier, they get a blue screen 
that crashes the computer.  We have been rolling out the “update” to the update that 
caused the problem, and we are starting to get things resolved. 
 
We have installed a new server at the CCOE Datacenter and load balanced our virtual 
machines to leverage the new hardware.  



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting March 10, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Sandra Ambriz Medina, Daniela Armenta Galaviz, Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, 

Alex Evans, Aaron Heinz, Vicki Markss, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, 
Lorilee Niesen, Michael West, and Karisa Williams. 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the 
Pledge of Allegiance, and made the following announcements. 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diplomas 

Lorilee Niesen reported on two recent graduates from the Colusa County Adult 
School.  Lorilee introduced the graduates one at a time, presented them with 
diplomas, gave them a portfolio to organize their professional papers, and asked 
the two graduates in attendance to share with the Board their plans for the 
future and to introduce their guests. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West reported on his participation and attendance in activities, 
such as continuation of Zoom meetings with many organizations and staff 
regarding health and safety and preparation and planning.  Michael 
announced that all five school districts in the county are planning for 
opening with face‐to‐face classes after spring break, and that CCPH will 

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

be working with the schools to ensure proper social distancing in the 
classrooms.  Michael provided a CCSESA review of the compromise 
between the AB 86 and SB 86 grants ($2 billion and $4.6 billion 
respectively) that between the two will provide monies for classified 
training, professional development, measures to mitigate COVID 19 
issues, and learning loss measures such as extended learning 
opportunities (e.g., summer school, after school programs, Saturday 
school, and/or extended hours).  Discussion was held on submission 
deadlines, the impact on Special Education, the source of the funds 
(State), on the $4.6 billion funding all that needs to be done, on whether 
it included funding for parents to pay for online supplemental learning 
(not currently), and on getting staff who are already exhausted to commit 
for teaching in the summer.  Michael reviewed US Representative John 
Garamendi’s American Rescue Plan (HR 1391), which would provide an 
estimated $14 billion statewide, $4 million to Colusa County, $1 million 
each to the Cities of Colusa and Williams, and $6.2 million to Colusa 
County school districts.  Discussion was held on whether any of the 
monies would be used for Special Education, and Michael said that Rep. 
Garamendi is leading an effort to procure a 10‐year incremental catch‐up 
plan for full funding.  Michael mentioned that CCOE continued hosting 
the CCPH vaccination clinic in the Village MPR for education workers, and 
he publicly thanked CCPH, specifically Elizabeth Kelly, for their continued 
support.  Michael also thanked the Rite Aid Corporation for their support 
by providing the Johnson & Johnson vaccination to education workers at 
no cost.  He also said that within a few weeks CCPH will open vaccines to 
all county residents, and he also mentioned the State’s My Turn online 
vaccination scheduling system.  He also reported that Colusa County 
could possibly move to the State’s Tier 2 next week.  Michael said that he 
participated in CCSESA virtual meetings, the WUSD Superintendent 
Search, the statewide K12HSN technology committee meeting, presented 
a demonstration of the RFID security tracking system to several local 
agency staff at the Village, and he engaged in two Facebook live events 
featuring Colusa County Transit and the UC Master Gardeners of Colusa 
County.  Michael spoke about 12 to 14 school reopening plans that he 
and the districts received from various state agencies in the last few 
months.  He said that he and the district superintendents winnowed 
those down to a few plans that county schools will follow for summer 
school and the 2021‐22 school year. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – February Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the district Superintendents in 
February and discussed safe school operation, sports, and events such as 
graduations.  Discussion was held on how long the distance learning 
option will be maintained and Michael said that the State committed to 
through the end of this school year, but he expects there will be an 
option for the 2021‐22 school year as well. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Aaron Heinz’s March 
2021 Administrative Services written report.  Aaron updated his report by 
highlighting two recent maternity leaves in Administrative Services. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss presented her March 2021 Children’s Services report to the Board 
that featured all programs provided by Children’s Services.  She also presented 
data and information on CS’ budget, program goals, staff recruiting and 
retention, the number of preschool children that were prepared to enter 
kindergarten, curriculum and learning programs, children’s learning progress and 
their status at the beginning of the school year and at the end of the year, and 
parent involvement and family engagement.  Vicki answered the Board’s 
questions regarding the Bridge program for foster youth, which she said is a 
state program for children who have been removed from the home setting, and 
for whom CS Resource and Referral acts as a navigator of resources.  Vicki also 
reported on preschool parent requests for longer hours of operation, which she 
said that although CS does not have staff to expand, they can direct the parents 
to a network of providers who may be able to help. 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza added to her March 2021 report by speaking about the 
ACSA COVID 19 and Summer Learning Scenario Planning Guide, and an MOU 
with SCOE to participate in the CalHope Student Support Project that will provide 
crisis support to communities.  Maria answered the Board’s questions on 
enrollment at SWAA (five), and whether Maria sees a continuation of this low 
trend.  Maria said that low enrollment is a result of funding for Social/Emotional 
Learning of Students, which incentivizes districts to reduce expulsions and keep 
students at their home site. 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
Chuck Wayman was not in attendance, and Michael West reported on changes 
to the Special Education budget, and staff challenges with the IEP process. 

6.5.1 SELPA ‐ February Meeting 
No questions or comments. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
Alex Evans added to his March 2021 Technology Services written report by 
speaking about a conversation that he had with former Governor Jerry Brown on 
internet connectivity in Colusa County, about CCOE’s growing partnership with 
YCCD resulting in more options for different sites of the spectrum for the EduNet 
that should benefit Dunnigan, Kyle Gerhts’ usage of an RF mapping tool to better 
understand Colusa County’s coverage.  Discussion was held on securing coverage 
for the students on the western edge of Colusa County to eliminate the distance 
learning disparity.  Alex said that the plan is to cover every last student in the 



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

county.  Michael West added that the effort will involve educating legislators on 
coverage issues, which the K12HSN is aware of and is working on formulating a 
loud voice to draw attention to the problem.  Alex also reported on his effort to 
persuade the FCC to reverse ERate rules that currently do not allow bringing the 
internet that is on school property to the students’ homes, which reduces E‐rate 
funding that CCOE can receive. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried four ayes (Ed Conrado, Christy Edwards, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell), one 
absent (Jason McMullan) to approve the following Consent Agenda item: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the February 10, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Discussion was held on access to the spectrum for both K12 as well as 
community college classes, and on community college tuition. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West reported that he began an assessment of replacement of the 
Village’s automatic garage doors. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that all initial district superintendents’ LCAP 
meetings have taken place and the superintendents are moving forward with 
their LCAPs, but they are worried about the lack of student assessment data.  
Maria said that she will be providing a training to the WUSD leadership team 
next week, and she will also prepare districts for next round of Federal Program 
Monitoring.  She added that all sources of funding must be included in the LCAP 
budget. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Innovative Approaches to Literacy Project Director Karisa Williams reported on 
grant activities, including parent training for the iPad program, the book sharing 
program that involved 100 parents, IAL’s participation in the read across America 
week, and a math training that IAL conducted for Impact Daycare Providers.  



Colusa County Board of Education 
March 10, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

Karisa said that she needed Facebook Live guest readers and five volunteered to 
read to birth to third grade children.  Karisa also reported that via F2B, district 
students read over 2 million words and wrote over 1,200 books. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Second Interim Report 

Aaron Heinz reported on the changes between the First and Second Interim 
Reports and he said that the Second Report ended with a balance $29,000 higher 
than the First Report.  Discussion was held on Fund 6400 Equipment Capital 
Outlay expenditures, and Aaron said that he will bring those numbers to the next 
Board meeting.  Discussion was also held on the location of insurance settlement 
monies, and Aaron said those are included in the Comparative Object Summary 
starting balance 
 
Brenda Miller/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Christy Edwards, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell), one absent (Jason 
McMullan) to approve the Second Interim Report. 

11.2 Statement of Economic Interests Form 700 due April 1, 2021 
Tina Maxwell reminded the Board that the 2020‐21 Statement of Economic 
Interests Form 700 that she sent to them on March 1st is due back to her on 
April 1, 2021. 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

No items added. 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
April 14, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:49 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

AB  Assembly Bill 

ACSA  Association of California School Administrators 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCPH  Colusa County Public Health 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

FCC  Federal Communications Commission 

HR  House of Representatives Bill 

IAL  Innovative Approaches to Literacy 

IEP  Individualized Education Program 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

MPR  Muli‐Purpose Room 

RF  Radio‐Frequency 

RFID  Radio‐Frequency Identification 

SB  Senate Bill 

SCOE  Sacramento County Office of Education 

SWAA  S. William Abel Academy 

UC  University of California 

US  United States 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

YCCD  Yuba Community College District 

 



Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) 
Federal Addendum Template 

 

LEA name: 
 

 
Colusa County Office of Education 

 
 

CDS code: 
 

 
06 10066 0000000 

 
 
 

Link to the LCAP: 
(optional) 

 
 

http://www.ccoe.net/ 

 

For which ESSA programs 
will your LEA apply? 
 

Choose from: 
 

TITLE I, PART A 
 

Improving Basic Programs Operated by 
State and Local Educational Agencies 
 

TITLE I, PART D 
 

Prevention and Intervention Programs for 
Children and Youth Who Are Neglected, 
Delinquent, or At-Risk 
 

TITLE II, PART A 

Supporting Effective Instruction 

TITLE III, PART A 

Language Instruction for English Learners 
and Immigrant Students 
 

TITLE IV, PART A 
 

Student Support and Academic 
Enrichment Grants 
 
 

(NOTE: This list only includes ESSA 
programs with LEA plan requirements; 
not all ESSA programs.) 

 

 
 

TITLE I, PART A 

• Improving Basic Programs Operated by State and Local Educational Agencies 

TITLE II, PART A 
• Supporting Effective Instruction 

 
 
 
 
 
 

In the following pages, ONLY complete the sections for the corresponding programs. 

http://www.ccoe.net/


Instructions 
 

The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to 

supplement the LCAP to ensure that eligible 

LEAs have the opportunity to meet the Local 

Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions of 

the ESSA. 
 

The LCAP Federal Addendum Template 

must be completed and submitted to the 

California Department of Education (CDE) 

to apply for ESSA funding. LEAs are 

encouraged to review the LCAP Federal 

Addendum annually with their LCAP, as 

ESSA funding should be considered in 

yearly strategic planning. 
 

The LEA must address the Strategy and 

Alignment prompts provided on the 

following page. 
 

Each provision for each program must be 

addressed, unless the provision is not 

applicable to the LEA. 
 

In addressing these provisions, LEAs must 

provide a narrative that addresses the 

provision within the LCAP Federal 

Addendum Template. 
 

Under State Priority Alignment, state priority 

numbers are provided to demonstrate where 

an ESSA provision aligns with state 

priorities. This is meant to assist LEAs in 

determining where ESSA provisions may 

already be addressed in the LEA’s LCAP, as 

it demonstrates the LEA’s efforts to support 

the state priorities. 
 

The CDE emphasizes that the LCAP 

Federal Addendum should not drive 

LCAP development. ESSA funds are 

supplemental to state funds, just as the 

LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your 

LCAP. LEAs are encouraged to integrate 

their ESSA funds into their LCAP 

development as much as possible to 

promote strategic planning of all resources; 

however, this is not a requirement. In 

reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, 

staff will evaluate the LEA’s responses to the 

ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard 

length for the responses. LEAs will be asked 

to clarify insufficient responses during the 

review process. 



California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal 
resources in support of underserved student groups. This LCAP Federal Addendum provides LEAs 
with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in 
support of underserved students. 

 

The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for LEAs to innovate with their 
federally-funded programs and align them with the priority goals they are realizing under the state’s 
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 

 

LCFF provides LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of 
students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The LCAP planning 
process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. 

 

Please respond to the prompts below, and in the pages that follow, to describe the LEA’s plan for 
making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment with other federal, state, and local 
programs as described in the LEA’s LCAP. 

 

Strategy 
 
Explain the LEA’s strategy for using federal funds to supplement and enhance local priorities or 
initiatives funded with state funds, as reflected in the LEA’s LCAP. This shall include describing the 
rationale/evidence for the selected use(s) of federal funds within the context of the LEA’s broader 
strategy reflected in the LCAP. 

 
 

Student ADA is the primary funding source for all local priorities and actions/services in the LCAP. The 
amount of Title II, Part A received by the county office is minimal ($638) and continues to be 
supplementary to all funding. We have applied for Title I, Part A to enhance the services we provide to 
our alternative education students. The county has chosen to concentrate these funds in the areas of 
staff development for the new alternative education teacher in curriculum and assessment, data 
analysis, and the multi-tiered system of support (MTSS) framework. 

 

 

Alignment 
 
Describe the efforts that the LEA will take to align use of federal funds with activities funded by state 
and local funds and, as applicable, across different federal grant programs. 

 
 

To ensure we maximize services to students, we combine federal, state, and local funds. The amount 
of Title II, Part A received by the county office will we combine with the REAP for Title I activities for 
the alternative education school. The staff development activities align to LCAP Goal 2: “Provide 
current and relevant professional learning that supports effective instructional practices in all 
curricular areas including effective student engagement.” The funds will be spent to train the new 
alternative education teacher on evidence based instructional practices, formative and summative 
assessments, and how the three-tiered system works in the multi-tiered system of support (MTSS) 
framework. 



ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP 
 
Within the LCAP an LEA is required to describe its goals, and the specific actions to achieve those 
goals, for each of the LCFF state priorities. In an approvable LCAP it will be apparent from the 
descriptions of the goals, actions, and services how an LEA is acting to address the following ESSA 
provisions through the aligned LCFF state priorities and/or the state accountability system. 

 

 

TITLE I, PART A 
 

Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic 
Standards 

 
ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(1) (A–D) 1, 2, 4, 7, 8 (as applicable) 
 

Describe how the LEA will monitor students’ progress in meeting the challenging state 
academic standards by: 

 

(A) developing and implementing a well-rounded program of instruction to meet the 
academic needs of all students; 

 

(B) identifying students who may be at risk for academic failure; 
 

(C) providing additional educational assistance to individual students the LEA or school 
determines need help in meeting the challenging State academic standards; and 

 

(D) identifying and implementing instructional and other strategies intended to strengthen 
academic programs and improve school conditions for student learning. 

 

Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom 
 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(11) 6 (as applicable) 
 

Describe how the LEA will support efforts to reduce the overuse of discipline practices that 
remove students from the classroom, which may include identifying and supporting schools with 
high rates of discipline, disaggregated by each of the student groups, as defined in Section 
1111(c)(2). 

 

Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities 
 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(12)(A–B) 2, 4, 7 (as applicable) 
 

If determined appropriate by the LEA, describe how such agency will support programs that 
coordinate and integrate: 

 

(A) academic and career and technical education content through coordinated instructional 
strategies, that may incorporate experiential learning opportunities and promote skills 
attainment important to in-demand occupations or industries in the State; and 

 

(B) work-based learning opportunities that provide students in-depth interaction with industry 
professionals and, if appropriate, academic credit. 



TITLE II, PART A 
 

Title II, Part A Activities 
 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

2102(b)(2)(A) 1, 2, 4 (as applicable) 
 

Provide a description of the activities to be carried out by the LEA under this Section and how 
these activities will be aligned with challenging State academic standards. 

 

 

TITLE III, PART A 
 

Parent, Family, and Community Engagement 
 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

3116(b)(3) 3, 6 (as applicable) 
 

Describe how the eligible entity will promote parent, family, and community engagement in the 
education of English learners. 

 
 

ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application 
and Reporting System 

 
An LEA addresses the following ESSA provision as part of completing annual reporting through the 
Consolidated Application and Reporting System (CARS). 

 

 

TITLE I, PART A 
 

Poverty Criteria 
 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(4) N/A 

 

Describe the poverty criteria that will be used to select school attendance areas under Section 
1113. 



 

ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP 
 
For the majority of LEAs the ESSA provisions on the following pages do not align with state 
priorities. Each provision for each program provided on the following pages must be 
addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the LEA. In addressing these provisions, LEAs 
must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within this addendum. 

 
As previously stated, the CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive 
LCAP development. ESSA funds are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal 
Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are encouraged to integrate their ESSA funds into their 
LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic planning of all resources; however, 
this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff will evaluate the LEA’s 
responses to 
the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. LEAs will be asked to 
clarify insufficient responses during the review process. 

 

 

TITLE I, PART A 
 

Educator Equity 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(2) 

 

Describe how the LEA will identify and address, as required under State plans as described in 
Section 1111(g)(1)(B), any disparities that result in low-income students and minority students 
being taught at higher rates than other students by ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field 
teachers. 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

Data collected from CALPADS and CCOE Human Resources for the 2019-20 school year. 
 
Colusa County Office of Education operates an alternative school, S. William Abel Academy (SWAA). 
The population of students is characterized by low income, foster, homeless, migrant, English learner, 
and special education. SWAA enrolls students in grades 7th – 12th and due to the small student 
population (we currently have six students enrolled), we hire one full-time and two part-time teachers. 
At any given year, our attendance fluctuates between six to ten students to a one time high of 26 
students one year! Due to the small student population, all grades are in one classroom.  The county 
office has focused their efforts in providing targeted professional development in English language 
development, Social Emotional Learning, MTSS, curriculum and assessment to both certificated and 
classified personnel. All teachers possess the proper credentials to ensure there are no disparities 
that result in socio-economically disadvantaged students and minority students being taught at higher 
rates than other students of ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers.  CCOE defines 
ineffective, inexperienced, and out-of-field teachers using distinct criteria which included elements 
from the Fall 2017 ESSA Educator Equity Best Practices Guide. The definition of ineffective teachers 
was based on the California ESSA Educator Equity State Plan and the CCOE certificated employee 
performance review. California’s ESSA Educator Equity State Plan defined an ineffective teacher as 
one who is misassigned based on credentialing or teaching without a credential. The teacher 
evaluation included the California Standards for the Teaching Profession. The definition of 
inexperienced teacher was based on California’s classification of a teacher with less than two-years 
of teaching experience (2017, ESSA Best Practice Guide). An out-of-field teacher was defined as a 
teacher who was not highly qualified based on credentialing. Socio-economically disadvantaged 
students were defined as those who were eligible for free/reduced price meals program. Minority 



 

students were identified as Hispanic, American Indian/Alaska Native, and Asian. Data on teacher 
effectiveness, experience, and assignments is reviewed for our alternative school in collaboration with 
the COE Human Resources department as part of the LCAP development process. The SWAA 
teachers possess a general education credential (multiple subject or single subject).  They also 
possess a certification to teach English learners (CLAD or SDAIE/SB1292).  The teacher induction 
program is available for new teachers as well as ongoing coaching and support.  Stakeholders are 
encouraged to provide input in addressing educator equity by participating in the quarterly LCAP 
Stakeholder Committee meetings as well as providing feedback and considerations that assist in 
building the following year’s LCAP. The alternative education program addresses any disparities 
discovered during the data analysis and implements rigorous hiring practices to ensure that students 
benefit from highly qualified credential teachers.  
• Minority Students:  52% 
• Low Income Students:  83% 
• Ineffective, out-of-field, and inexperienced teachers: 0 
• Are low-income students taught at higher rates than other students by ineffective/misassigned 

teachers?  No. 
• Are low-income students taught at higher rates than other students by out-of-field teachers? No 
• Are low-income students taught at higher rates than other students by inexperienced teachers? 

No. 
• Are minority students taught at higher rates than other students by ineffective/misassigned 

teachers? No. 
• Are minority students taught at higher rates than other students by out-of-field teachers? No. 
• Are minority students taught at higher rates than other students by inexperienced teachers? No. 

 
 

Parent and Family Engagement 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(3) and 1112(b)(7) 

 

Describe how the LEA will carry out its responsibility under Section 1111(d). 
 

Describe the strategy the LEA will use to implement effective parent and family engagement under 
Section 1116. 

 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

Because this is the first year (March 2021) that our county office is applying for Title I, Part A, we are 

currently working on developing a Parent and Family Engagement policy utilizing one of the templates 

provided by CDE on their webpage. The Parent and Family Engagement policy will be included in the 

2021-22 student handbook in both English and Spanish and will encourage family participation at 

multiple levels. Currently, parents, guardians, and family members are encouraged to participate in all 

aspects of their student’s education. They attend an orientation meeting with administration to discuss 

the school’s mission, goals, status of graduation, academic needs, behavior, and attendance 

expectations. There is regular communication with parents by phone, email and six-week 

student/parent conferences. Parents are always encouraged to call or visit the school if they have 

concerns or need assistance. Translation in Spanish is always provided in all communications with 

parents and/or guardians. Due to the highly transient nature of our students, the formation of parent 

committees is challenging, but improving. Because our student subgroup is incredibly small, we do 

not have the percentage of students to form an ELAC or DELAC, however, we keep track of the 

percentage of English learner students see when we hit the required percentage to form an ELAC.  

We began the process of securing a SCC this year. Ballots were sent out, two were returned, then the 



 

pandemic was upon us.  We are in the process of resurrecting the SSC to ensure we have a functioning 

SCC by the upcoming school year. Pre and post surveys are conducted to evaluate the effectiveness 

of the school and instructional staff. These surveys are completed by students and parents and/or 

guardians. The student’s parents and/or guardians and friends are invited to attend a formal graduation 

ceremony to honor their student’s accomplishment. This is always a well-attended celebration that 

makes the county newspaper! Students are also recognized for various accomplishments throughout 

the year including celebrating them in our annual Caring Youth Counts.  Family members are 

encouraged to attend to honor their student that includes dinner and dessert for all attendees.  This 

celebration is also showcased in the county newspaper.  Our Community Garden Plots are another 

way to engage our parents and/or guardians as they encourage parents and/or guardians and their 

children to work together and take the fresh produce home.  Foster parents are encouraged to 

participate in the quarterly Executive Advisory Council meetings to provide valuable input from this 

specific and important lens. Parents and/or guardians are encouraged to participate in the quarterly 

LCAP Committee meetings as active stakeholders in their child’s education.  Parents and/or guardians 

are valuable contributors to the development of their child’s educational career and ongoing 

communication is part of the expectation on the part of the CCOE staff.  

CCOE leverages multiple opportunities for parents and/or guardians to partner in their students' 

educational experience including encouraging them to attend the CCOE adult education programs. 

Our county office offers Adult CTE, HiSET, high school diploma, ESL, citizenship, Basic Wildland Fire 

Academy, and Certified Nurse’s Assistant certification programs. Targeted support is provided to 

parents and/or guardians through a bilingual ESL Navigator and a bilingual representative from our 

partnership with Woodland Community college.  The college campus is housed a couple of hundred 

feet from our department which allows us to expand our adult education classes to our parents and/or 

guardians as well as concurrent enrollment for our students. CCOE implements systems of 

communication, involvement, and decision-making for parents and/or guardians to ensure that 

students experience success in school. School staff work with parents and/or guardians on the 

academic, physical, behavioral, and social emotional welfare of students, including how the school 

and parents and/or guardians can help students achieve academic and other standards of the school. 

Parents and/or guardians have the opportunity to work with schools in a mutually supportive 

partnership and to help their children succeed in school. The county office and school staff ensure that 

all parents and/or guardians who speak a language other than English are properly notified in English, 

and in their home language of the rights, responsibilities, and opportunities available to them pursuant 

to Education Code 48985.  

The CCOE Prevention Services Department, provides coordination, technical assistance, and support 

to assist SWAA in planning and implementing effective involvement activities to improve student 

academic achievement and school performance based on parent/guardian feedback from the results 

of our annual California Healthy Kids Survey.  

Communication with parents and/or guardians takes many forms to ensure they are well-informed of 

school activities and students' progress. The Annual Notification of Parent Rights and Responsibilities 

is provided at registration each year along with the student handbook, Technology Acceptable Use 

Policy, and other information that supports parents and/or guardians to understand the programs and 

to be part of the education of their students. Communication on school activities, meetings, and 

important events is provided through one on one phone calls to parents and/or guardians as well as 



 

notes sent home with the student. All written materials are translated into Spanish and English as 

these languages reflects the makeup of the school. The teacher and administration contact parents 

and/or guardians to discuss attendance, behavior, and student concerns or accomplishments. The 

teacher and administration communicate with parents and/or guardians through formal and informal 

conferences.  

CCOE provides professional development to support personnel and administration regarding the value 

and utility of contributions of parents and/or guardians, and in how to reach out to, communicate with, 

and work with all parents and/or guardians as equal partners, implement and coordinate programs, 

and build ties between parents and/or guardians and the school through weekly staff meetings, 

multidisciplinary team meetings, and through the trainings on stakeholder engagement through the 

LCAP process.  

 

Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected 
or Delinquent Children 

ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(5) and 1112(b)(9) 
 

Describe, in general, the nature of the programs to be conducted by the LEA’s schools under 
sections 
1114 and 1115 and, where appropriate, educational services outside such schools for children 
living in local institutions for neglected or delinquent children, and for neglected and delinquent 
children in community day school programs. 
 
Describe how teachers and school leaders, in consultation with parents, administrators, 

paraprofessionals, and specialized instructional support personnel, in schools operating a targeted 
assistance school program under Section 1115, will identify the eligible children most in need of 
services under this part. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

Title I Part A funds will be used to provide support staff (teachers, para educators, academic and 
mental health counselors) and supplemental formative assessments, instructional materials, 
professional development, academic/instructional interventions, MTSS, post-secondary transition 
programs, behavioral/mental health services, parent engagement, and after school tutoring and 
enrichment programs.  

SWAA provides a comprehensive instructional program for students who have been referred by their 
district of residence or by Colusa County Probation. The Administration of CCOE Educational 
Services, in conjunction with the four school districts in Colusa County, developed the countywide plan 
for providing education services to expelled students with the county pursuant to Education Code 
48926. SWAA services the educational needs of a unique and diverse student population for grades 
7th – 12th in classroom-based and Independent Study. The length of enrollment is dependent upon 
successfully meeting the terms and conditions of their rehabilitation plan and are in alignment with a 
student's Individualized Learning Plan. The instructional program is based on the California Common 
Core State Standards as well as research-based, relevant learning activities that include project-based 
learning, culturally relevant learning, and utilizing the CA MTSS framework. Students have an option 
to earn a high school diploma or complete the High School Equivalency exams (Hi-SET or GED) as 
an alternative to a high school diploma once they turn 18. 



 

 

Homeless Children and Youth Services 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(6) 

 

Describe the services the LEA will provide homeless children and youths, including services 
provided with funds reserved under Section 1113(c)(3)(A), to support the enrollment, attendance, 
and success of homeless children and youths, in coordination with the services the LEA is 
providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 United States Code 11301 et 
seq.). 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

The following services will be enhanced under CCOE LCAP Goal 1:  Provide a countywide structured 
positive instructional program in collaboration with county agencies that provides all students, including 
foster youth, English learners, economically disadvantaged, and expelled students, with academic 
support that promotes college and career readiness with academic and socio-emotional interventions 
to eliminate barriers for student success. Including Action/Service 4: Provide Foster and Homeless 
Liaison trainings to provide support and coordinate services to foster youth in the county. CCOE is 
committed to the continued improvement of the coordination of services for homeless students 
ensuring that homeless students have full and equal opportunity to enroll and succeed in their 
education placement. Eligible students are identified as McKinney-Vento through the registration 
packet during the enrollment process. In the first 30 days of placement, during the Individualized 
Learning Plan meeting, McKinney-Vento students are referred to the appropriate resources and 
services to provide education case management, transportation assistance, and outside referrals for 
stabilization. Homeless services are provided to all McKinney-Vento students, ensuring they can fully 
participate in school activities and programs for which they are eligible. The CCOE Prevention 
Services Supervisor works with school personnel and outside agencies to coordinate a shared, 
countywide process including training, attendance tracking and assessment for social emotional 
needs. CCOE Prevention Services Supervisor and the administration annually review policies and 
practices that may act as barriers to the identification, enrollment, attendance, and school success of 
homeless children, including barriers due to absences. Additionally, homeless parents, youths, and 
advocates are given the opportunity to provide regular input on policies and practices related to 
homeless youth to ensure that homeless youth receive the free, appropriate education to which they 
are entitled. Parents and/or guardians and stakeholders are invited to provide input on homeless 
policies and regulations at countywide LCAP Stakeholder meetings. The Annual Notification of Parent 
Rights and Responsibilities are distributed to all parents and students at the time of enrollment and 
are reviewed and revised annually. The process of reviewing and revising policies includes a review 
of school discipline policies that may disproportionately impact homeless students, including those 
who are also children and youths of color; those who identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, 
and queer or questioning (LGBTQ); English learners; and students with disabilities. Homeless children 
and youths who are eligible children with disabilities under Part B of the IDEA or qualified students 
with disabilities under section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504) retain the rights and 
protections of those laws, including their right to receive a free appropriate public education (FAPE). 
All homeless youth enrolled are offered the same free and appropriate public education that is provided 
to non-homeless students. Homeless youth are immediately enrolled, regardless of lack of academic 
and medical records. All staff are fully trained to identify and assist homeless youth with enrollment 
and are trained on the policies and requirements related to the education of homeless youth. The 
Prevention Services Supervisor and Prevention Services Coordinator provide indirect and direct 
services to students who are identified as foster or homeless. 

 
 
Student Transitions 



 

ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(8) and 1112(b)(10) (A–B) 
 

Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will support, coordinate, and integrate services provided 

under this part with early childhood education programs at the LEA or individual school level, 

including plans for the transition of participants in such programs to local elementary school 

programs. 
 

Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will implement strategies to facilitate effective transitions 

for students from middle grades to high school and from high school to postsecondary 

education including: 
 

(A) through coordination with institutions of higher education, employers, and other local 

partners; and 
 
(B) through increased student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent 

enrollment opportunities, or career counseling to identify student interests and skills. 
 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

Transition services are provided under Goal 1 Action/Service 15 and 20. Maintain an alternative to offer 
courses at comprehensive schools, community colleges where dual credit is desired, and/or online 
learning when not all courses are offered through independent study. Develop a continuum of Career 
Technical Education (CTE) and college readiness experiences for students including soft skills, 
personal planning and organizational skills trainings, career exploration, and field trips to colleges and 
business sites. The goal is to provide an instructional program that prepares students with relevant 
college and career readiness skills by assisting students in developing and implementing both short 
and long term Individualized Learning Plans focused on academic achievement, social/emotional 
development, and career planning. Administration and a counselor oversee these activities and works 
closely with Educational Services and community partners. Some transition services can include, 
resume and job application preparation, college registration support, and financial aid application 
support. 

 

Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(13) (A–B) 
 

Provide any other information on how the LEA proposes to use funds to meet the purposes of 
this part, and that the LEA determines appropriate to provide, which may include how the LEA 
will: 
 

(A) assist schools in identifying and serving gifted and talented students; and 
 

(B) assist schools in developing effective school library programs to provide students an 

opportunity to develop digital literacy skills and improve academic achievement. 

 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

N/A 

 

TITLE I, PART D 



 

 

Description of Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(1) 
 

Provide a description of the program to be assisted [by Title I, Part D]. 
 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

N/A 

 

Formal Agreements 
ESSA SECTION 1423(2) 
 

Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the 
 

(A) LEA; 
and 

 
(B) correctional facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth 

involved with the juvenile justice system, including such facilities operated by the 
Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 

 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

N/A 

 

Comparable Education Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(3) 
 

As appropriate, provide a description of how participating schools will coordinate with facilities 
working with delinquent children and youth to ensure that such children and youth are participating 
in an education program comparable to one operating in the local school such youth would attend. 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

N/A 

 

Successful Transitions 
ESSA SECTION 1423(4) 
 

Provide a description of the program operated by participating schools to facilitate the successful 
transition of children and youth returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, the types of 
services that such schools will provide such children and youth and other at-risk children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

 

N/A 



 

 

Educational Needs 
ESSA SECTION 1423(5) 
 

Provide a description of the characteristics (including learning difficulties, substance abuse problems, 
and other special needs) of the children and youth who will be returning from correctional facilities 
and, as appropriate, other at-risk children and youth expected to be served by the program, and a 
description of how the school will coordinate existing educational programs to meet the unique 
educational needs of such children and youth. 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

 

N/A 

 

 

Social, Health, and Other Services 
ESSA SECTION 1423(6) 
 

As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will coordinate with existing social, health, and 
other services to meet the needs of students returning from correctional facilities, at-risk children or 
youth, and other participating children or youth, including prenatal health care and nutrition services 
related to the health of the parent and the child or youth, parenting and child development classes, 
child care, targeted reentry and outreach programs, referrals to community resources, and scheduling 
flexibility. 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

N/A 

 

Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships 
ESSA SECTION 1423(7) 
 

As appropriate, provide a description of any partnerships with institutions of higher education or local 
businesses to facilitate postsecondary and workforce success for children and youth returning from 
correctional facilities, such as through participation in credit-bearing coursework while in secondary 
school, enrollment in postsecondary education, participation in career and technical education 
programming, and mentoring services for participating student. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

N/A 

 

Parent and Family Involvement 
ESSA SECTION 1423(8) 
 

As appropriate, provide a description of how the program will involve parents and family members in 
efforts to improve the educational achievement of their children, assist in dropout prevention activities, 
and prevent the involvement of their children in delinquent activities. 
 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 



 

 

N/A 

 

Program Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(9–10) 
 

Provide a description of how the program under this subpart will be coordinated with other Federal, 
State, and local programs, such as programs under title I of the Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act and career and technical education programs serving at-risk children and youth. 
 

Include how the program will be coordinated with programs operated under the Juvenile Justice and 
Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974 and other comparable programs, if applicable. 
 
 

 

 

 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

N/A 

 

Probation Officer Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(11) 
 

As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will work with probation officers to assist in 
meeting the needs of children and youth returning from correctional facilities. 
 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

N/A 

 

Individualized Education Program Awareness 
ESSA SECTION 1423(12) 
 
Provide a description of the efforts participating schools will make to ensure correctional facilities 
working with children and youth are aware of a child’s or youth’s existing individualized education 
program. 
 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

N/A 

 

Alternative Placements 
ESSA SECTIONS 1423(13) 
 

As appropriate, provide a description of the steps participating schools will take to find alternative 
placements for children and youth interested in continuing their education but unable to participate in 



 

a traditional public school program. 
 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

 

N/A 

 

TITLE II, PART A 
 

Professional Growth and Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(B) 

 

Provide a description of the LEA’s systems of professional growth and improvement, such as 
induction for teachers, principals, or other school leaders and opportunities for building the capacity 
of teachers and opportunities to develop meaningful teacher leadership. 

 
 

 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

The Title II, Part A funds are dedicated for professional development to assist the new community 
school teacher to continue to grow as an educator.  Curriculum alignment to the CA State Standards, 
formative and summative assessments, data systems and analysis, and continued implementation of 
the MTSS framework to support all students is the targeted professional development. The expectation 
is for the teacher to develop and implement a curriculum mapping progress, data analysis process to 
measure student learning and improve instructional practices, and to implement a multi- tiered system 
of support for early intervention and to provide targeted support to struggling students. 

 
 
 

Prioritizing Funding 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(C) 

 

Provide a description of how the LEA will prioritize funds to schools served by the agency that 
are implementing comprehensive support and improvement activities and targeted support and 
improvement activities under Section 1111(d) and have the highest percentage of children 
counted under Section 1124(c). 

 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

The CCOE community school had an average enrollment of 26 students in the 2018-19 school year, 
is a small, rural county office and the funds will be prioritized to benefit all students. The school has 
identified the need to implement professional development due to hiring a new teacher and the 
population of students who attend the school.  A clear professional learning plan supports the teacher 
and ensures quality instruction is provided for the students. Formative and summative data will be 
reviewed and instruction will be modified based on individual student need.  This includes the 
implementation of student Individual Learning Plans to set short and long-term goals academic goals. 

 
 
 

Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(D) 

 

Provide a description of how the LEA will use data and ongoing consultation described in Section 
2102(b)(3) to continually update and improve activities supported under this part. 



 

 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:  

Monthly data meetings take place to review, analyze, and discuss data.  Data is collected from multiple 
sources: annual state assessment, local assessments, attendance, behavior, and other relevant data to 
gain a deeper understanding of students’ learning needs. Based on the analysis, interventions are 
planned/implemented, instruction is modified, and goals are set based on individual student need. The 
curriculum has embedded formative and summative assessments that provide real-time achievement 
data and offer targeted assistance in a timely fashion to address educational gaps. Monthly student/staff 
stakeholder meetings take place as well as trimonthly community meetings to provide an update on the 
LCAP Goals and Actions/Services and obtain stakeholder feedback. When necessary, home visits are 
made to those hard to reach parents/guardians. Phone conferences are ongoing all year. Student/parent 
conferences take place twice a year where a survey is administered each time, face to face discussions 
are held, and recommendations are gathered. Pre and post surveys are provided for students, parents, 
and staff. 

 
 

TITLE III, PART A 
 

Title III Professional Development 
ESSA SECTION 3115(c)(2) 

 

Describe how the eligible entity will provide effective professional development to classroom 
teachers, principals and other school leaders, administrators, and other school or community-
based organizational personnel. 

 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

N/A 

 

Enhanced Instructional Opportunities 

ESSA SECTIONS 3115(e)(1) and 3116 
 

Describe how the eligible entity will provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant 
children and youth. 

 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

N/A 

 

Title III Programs and Activities 
ESSA SECTION 3116(b)(1) 
 

Describe the effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational programs, 
proposed to be developed, implemented, and administered under the subgrant that will help English 
learners increase their English language proficiency and meet the challenging State academic 
standards. 
 



 

 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

N/A 

 

English Proficiency and Academic Achievement 
ESSA SECTION 3116(b)(2)(A-B) 

 

Describe how the eligible entity will ensure that elementary schools and secondary schools receiving 
funds under Subpart 1 assist English learners in: 

 

(A) achieving English proficiency based on the State’s English language proficiency assessment 
under Section 1111(b)(2)(G), consistent with the State’s long-term goals, as described in 
Section 1111(c)(4)(A)(ii); and 

 

(B) meeting the challenging State academic standards. 
 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

N/A 

 

TITLE IV, PART A 
 

Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs 
ESSA SECTION 4106(e)(1) 
 

Describe the activities and programming that the LEA, or consortium of such agencies, will carry out 
under Subpart 1, including a description of: 
 

(A) any partnership with an institution of higher education, business, nonprofit organization, 
community-based organization, or other public or private entity with a demonstrated record of 
success in implementing activities under this subpart; 

 

(B) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting well-rounded education 
under Section 4107; 

 

(C) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting safe and healthy 
students under Section 4108; 

 

(D) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting the effective use of 
technology in schools under Section 4109; and 

 

(E) the program objectives and intended outcomes for activities under Subpart 1, and how the 
LEA, or consortium of such agencies, will periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the 
activities carried out under this section based on such objectives and outcomes. 

 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

 

N/A 



SUNSHINE PROPOSAL  

OF THE COLUSA COE EDUCATION SUPPORT PROFESSIONALS  

TO THE  

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

The Colusa COE Education Support Professionals (CCOE-ESP) and the Colusa County Office of Education 
(CCOE) are parties to a Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) which remains in full effect until a new 
contract is reached. Pursuant to the EERA the ECCOE wishes to explore changes to the following articles 
in bargaining for the 2021-2022 contract year.  

 

ARTICLE XVIII Salaries (and Appendices B-1, B-2, B –3) 

ARTICLE XIX Health and Fringe Benefits 

 

And other contract language that the parties mutually agree upon. 

 

Keri Cunha 
Keri Cunha, President 

March 24, 2021 

 



Micha =. - Y est 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA 95932 
mwest@ccoe.net  p 530.458.0350 f 530.458.0350 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Ken i Cunha, President 

Colusa County Educational Support Professionals 

FROM: Michael P. West 

Colusa County Superintendent of Schools 

DATE: March 29, 2021 

SUBJECT: Superintendent's Sunshine Proposal for Colusa County 

Educational Support Professionals (CCESP) for 2021-22 

The Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE) proposes the following items for 

negotiations for 2021-2022: 

1. Entire Agreement/Modification (Article 28) — Contract Review and 

Possible Revision 

CCOE reserves the right to present more detailed written proposals as 

negotiations commence in each of the articles identified in this initial proposal 

and reserves the right to open additional articles. 

Colusa County Supe intendent of Schools 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, May 12, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81933072723  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 12, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 
2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS  information 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma – Colusa County Adult School 
4.2 Graduation Ceremony at the Education Village Multi‐Purpose Room 
  Colusa County Adult School, Wednesday, May 26, 2021, 6:00 PM 
4.3 Board Member Upcoming June Absences – Ed Conrado 
4.4 Superintendent’s Salary Review Supporting Information Forthcoming 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – April Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 
6.5.1 SELPA – April Meeting 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the April 14, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 
8.2 Approve Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 12, 2021, Agenda 
Page 3 

        DECISION 
10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Children’s Services Inventory for Disposal  action 

11.2 Approve the Expanded Learning Opportunity Grant Plan  action 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Public Hearing  information 
LCAP & Budget 
June 8, 2021, 4:00 pm 

12.3 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
LCAP & Budget 
June 9, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



1

Tina Maxwell

From: Ed Conrado
Sent: Friday, April 16, 2021 10:14 AM
To: Michael P. West
Cc: Tina Maxwell
Subject: June 8 and 9

Hi, 
Unfortunately I will be out of town the week of June 8 and 9 and not able to Zoom the meetings  
Sorry, as I know you will need at least 3 Board members.  
Ed 
 
Get Outlook for Android 



1

Tina Maxwell

From: Serena Morrow
Sent: Tuesday, April 20, 2021 9:13 AM
To: Michael P. West
Cc: Tina Maxwell; Christina Estrada; Aaron Heinz
Subject: Superintendent's Salary Survey

Hello Mike, 
 
In the coming weeks Human Resources will be conducting the Superintendent’s Salary Survey for 2021-2022.  I 
anticipate that the information will be compiled and available to the Budget Committee members by no later 
than May 21, 2021. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential 
information.  Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is prohibited.  If you are not the intended recipient, please contact me by reply e-mail and destroy all 
copies of the original message.  

 



  Educational Services Board Report 
May 2021 

  
 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 
• S. William Abel will end its school year on May 21, 2021. Due to the school population being 9-11th 

graders and no high school graduates, there will not be a graduation this year. 
• S. William Abel will be offering a Summer School Academy May 24-June 11th.  Project Based Learning 

activities incorporating academic core disciplines will be the focus of the academy. Classes will be held 
8:30-12:00 with breakfast and lunch being provided. 

• Applications are currently being accepted for the S. William Abel Academy Teacher Position. 
 
Colusa County Adult School 

• Colusa County Adult School will be hosting their graduation on May 26th at 6:00 PM.  This will also 
include a recognition program for adult students in ESL and CTE classes. 

• Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA) Cohort #2 started on April 28th.  Currently there are 9 students 
enrolled in the program. 

• Jolynn Ferraiuolo was recently hired to provide instruction for the CNA Program. Jolynn is an LVN 
currently working at Valley West Post-Acute in Williams. 
 

Farm to School 
• CCOE recently received a California Department of Food and Ag grant for $51,000.  This grant will allow 

Farm to School activities to resume and create additional opportunities to partner with the four local school 
districts to implement Farm to School activities. 

• Potatoes, onions, cabbage and other vegetables are being harvested from the SWAA students garden plots. 
These fresh vegetables are being provided to the food services team to create tasty dishes for students. 

• CCOE hosted a plant sale at Griff’s Feed and Seed on April 3, 2021.  Proceeds will be used to purchase 
gardening supplies for SWAA students to continue to grow starts in the greenhouse. 

 
 
 

Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 
• Regular and Advisory Zoom meetings continue to take place. The meeting took place on 4/6 and discussion 

was held on how to support the districts with Accelerated Learning and Summer Programs as they draft their 
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grants.  

 
Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 

• Ed. Services continues to provide technical support to the Williams Upper Elementary School in the 
development and implementation of intervention programs to increase student achievement as well as build 
their capacity in curriculum and assessment. Maria Arvizu-Espinoza provided a “Parent Officer” training that 
included the officer’s roles and responsibilities, Brown and Green Acts, parliamentary procedures, bylaws, 
and how to plan for an effective meeting.  

 
Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

• Williams USD continues to be the only state identified district qualified for DA, however, technical 
assistance is provided to all districts regardless of whether they were identified for DA or not.  



 
Health Education Framework 

• Ed. Services continues to participate in the statewide Health Education Framework trainings.  A District 
Liaison training took place to go review the framework and provide resources for the health teacher in each 
district. 

 
Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

• LCAP meetings with superintendents continue as requested. Student Stakeholder Feedback was solicited 
from students at the Student Stakeholder Meeting on April 29, 2021. Students shared changes they 
wished to see at their school and ideas on how to spend LCFF monies.The information obtained is also 
being included in the Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant.  

 
Math and Science CoP 

• The final Math and Science CoP meeting will be held on May 4, 2021.  The meeting will feature a 
presentation from SCOE’s Science Coordinator, Mr. Phil Romig. 
 

North Central Counties Professional Learning Network (NCCPLN) 
• The partnership with Yolo and Yuba COEs continues with a series of trainings on Educational and Racial 

Equity. The purpose of the sessions is to build capacity of educational leaders in leading for educational and 
racial equity through taking a deep dive into concepts learned as well as develop a racial equity impact action 
plan through collaboration with county colleagues. The final session took place on April 19.    
 

School Improvement Grant (SIG) 
• This is the last year of the SIG grant with Williams Elementary School. Educational Services serves as the 

external partner and continues to provide technical assistance in the areas of curriculum and instruction, Dual 
Immersion and Sobrato Early Academic Language programs. A closing meeting took place with WES 
administration on 4/28.   

 
Social Emotional Learning Communities of Practice (SEL CoP) 

• At the last tri-counties SEL CoP, Colusa COE had 15 participants.  The group discussed Trauma and 
Adversity: Defining and Understanding Trauma and Adversity, Recognizing the signs of Childhood Trauma 
and adversity, Creating Healing-Centered Environments, Developmental and Other Strategies for Healing, 
and Mental Health Crisis Intervention – Steps and Strategies. Mini-Grants will be provided to the 
participating district and programs that participate in the SEL CoP to support them in implementing a SEL 
plan at their sites.   

 
System of Support Expanded Learning Program (After School Programs) (SSELP) 

• A countywide meeting took place on 5/5 to provide feedback and support to the expanded learning programs 
coordinators with budgeting, planning for the next school year, and how new funding will impact the 
services to students.  

 
 

 

Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 
• The Second Step program is coming to a close for the school year.  Post assessments are taking place 

and a final report will be written and shared with our participating schools and programs after May 7th.  
 
Foster Youth 

• The month of May is Foster Care Awareness Month.  



• The memorandum drafts to extend Foster Youth transportation and Title IV-E MOUs have been 
submitted to the county clerk and are awaiting approval from the board of supervisors. If approved, both 
MOUs will be extended to June 30, 2024.  

Homeless/McKinney-Vento  
• McKinney-Vento posters were distributed to local agencies throughout Colusa County. Additionally, the 

Prevention Services team participated in the Family Fair in April, where brochures on the McKinney 
Vento program were distributed.   

• 13 VSP vouchers have been distributed to eligible students for free eye exams and lenses. The 
Prevention Services Department is also working on brining Healing California to the Education Village 
on May 15-16th to provide free dental and vision care to the community on a first come first serve basis.  

• The Prevention Services team attended the CASCWA conference on 4/26-4/27.  
• The annual Migrant Camp Resource Fair will be held on 4/30 from 4:00pm-7:30pm. The goal of this 

resource fair is to provide McKinney-Vento information to eligible families. There are 25 agencies 
participating in the resource fair, including Colusa County Behavioral Health, DHHS, CA Human 
Development, CRLA, the Mexican Consulate, etc. We would love to see you there! 

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 
• The Prevention Services Department has delivered tobacco toolkits to each of the districts, Children 

Services and SELPA. Burchfield Elementary is currently displaying their kit in their main office!  
• The Tobacco-Free Campus recertifications have been submitted to CDE and are in the process of final 

approval.  
• The Prevention Services Department will be collaborating with Colusa County Public Health Tobacco 

Education Program in order to be able to provide cessation services to youths in Colusa County.  
• The Prevention Services Department, through TUPE, will be attending numerous trainings/ conferences 

in the near future, which include, BIP, Catch my Breath, Stanford Tobacco Toolkit trainings and the 
Teaching Cannabis Awareness Conference. 

• The County Technical Assistance (CTA) grant has officially been released and is accepting applications, 
the applications are due on May 14, 2021 and must be submitted through their online system of TUPE 
Gems.  

 
Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

• The quarterly TLEGP invoice was submitted to the DOJ on 4/14/2021. Currently, the Sheriff’s SRO has 
been addressing tobacco education and enforcement at the school districts and gathering a plan to 
provide retail education as well.  
 



4/29/2021

1

CCOE SELPA

Colusa County SELPA

• 115 employees

• Special Education Administration Office
• SELPA Director and 5 Office Staff

• Staff on sites throughout the county
• 45 Certificated Staff (Teachers and Related Service Providers)
• 64 Classified Para Educators, Translators, Transportation

Locations served

Education Village

• Adult Transition 
Program

• Community School

• Preschool

• Infants- In-home

• Coastal Buttes

13 Locations 
County-wide

• K-12 Classrooms in 
Colusa, Maxwell, Pierce 
and Williams Districts

Surrounding 
Areas

• Point Quest Education, Inc. -
NPS

• Land Park

• CCHAT School for the Deaf
• 16 Preschool 

Locations 
County-wide

• 11 CCOE Preschool sites
• 5 Private Preschool sites
• Migrant Education

1

2

3



4/29/2021

2

Colusa County CBEDS

• 4,728 students

• 658 students with disabilities (as of January 15, 2021)

• County average 13.9 %

Colusa County SELPA numbers

658
Students in the county receiving Special Education 

services.

658 students ( January 15, 2021)

CCOE-17
3%

CUSD-219
33%

MUSD-42
6%

PJUSD-206
31%

WUSD-174
27%

SWD

4

5

6



4/29/2021

3

SELPA 

2020/21 Proposed Budget

Revenue $5,035,345

Expenditures $8,505,322

Deficit and Excess Cost ($3,469,977)

Formula of billing- 670 as of April 1,2020

• CUSD 34.9254%

• MUSD 6.7164%

• PJUSD 31.1940%

• WUSD 26.5672 %

• CCOE 0.5970%

Inter District Allocation of Adopted 
2020/2021 Budget Excess Costs

Special Education Pupil Count as of April 1, 2020

Colusa Unified 234/670 34.9254% x ($3,469,977) = $1,211,902

Maxwell Unified 45/670 6.7164% x ($3,469,977) =$233,058

Pierce Joint Unified 209/670 31.1940% x ($3,469,977) =$1,082,426

Williams Unified 178/670 26.5672% x ($3,469,977) =$921,874

CCOE 4/670 0.5970% x ($3,469,977) =$20,715

Total $3,469,977

7

8

9



4/29/2021

4

CUSD Actual costs of service for PreK-Age 22

Actual Costs SELPA Bill-April 1,
2020

Difference

Personnel $2,071,866.25

Out of County/NPS $0

Coastal Buttes 
Placements- $35K 
per student

$245,000
7 students

Total $2,316,866.20 $1,211,902 $1,104,964.20

MUSD Actual costs of service for PreK-Age 22

Actual Costs SELPA Bill-April 1,
2018

Difference

Personnel $497,722.51

Out of County/NPS $0

Coastal Buttes 
Placements-$35K 
per student

$0

Total $497,722.51 $233,058 $264,66.51

PJUSD Actual costs of service for PreK-Age 22

Actual Costs SELPA Bill-April 1,
2020

Difference

Personnel $1,537,677.30

Out of 
County/NPS

$52,100- PQ 
(1 student)

$24,102-CHATT
(1 student)

(not including transportation)

Coastal Buttes 
Placements-$35K 
per student

$245,000
7 students

Total $1,858,879.30 $1,082,426 $776,453.30

10

11

12



4/29/2021

5

WUSD Actual costs of service for PreK-Age 22

Actual Costs SELPA Bill-April 1,
2020

Difference

Personnel $1,687,321.21

Out of County/NPS $0

Coastal Buttes 
Placements-$35K 
per student

$105,000
3 students

Total $1,792,321.20 $921,874 $870,447.20

Glenn County SELPA Bill Back
2020-2021

Capay $135,895
Hamilton $783,356
Lake $135,748
Orland
*DIS, transition, preschool, early 
start, regional SH and ED, 
transportation

$938,955

Plaza $101,512
Princeton $80,835
Stony Creek $72,577
Willows
*CBEDS 1,444

$1,617,921

Success One! $22,928
Walden Academy $113,918
William Finch $59,613
Total $4,065,258
CCOE $3,469,977

13

14



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report May 12, 2021 

 

We have received some good feedback from the Williams Migrant Camp about the 
EduNet.  Previously this location did not have adequate internet access.  We are now 
seeing a lot more devices working properly in Williams because the second deployment 
with Yuba Community College District’s spectrum has greatly improved coverage in 
Williams.   
 
We are in the process of getting things ready to deploy EduNet external routers on 
student’s homes that are outside of the coverage area for our indoor units.  We are 
working with vendors to get quotes and line out what must be done for this phase of the 
project.  Since many of these students do not have any access to internet options from 
Frontier or any of the LTE carriers, these students that were previously unreachable will 
see the greatest rewards from the EduNet project and give them internet access. 
 
We are working with CUSD to find all known costs for their EduNet installation.  We 
have a plan for the Reclamation District tower that will allow us to safely move forward.  
We have a mast solution that we plan on using on top of the Colusa High School Gym 
and City Hall.  We are finalizing our quotes to meet with administration.  
 
A phishing attack recently has made its way through our network. We have mitigated 
the attack and worked on ways to prevent future attacks from occurring.  We are also 
working to help train staff how to better spot phishing emails.    



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting April 14, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, and Barry Morrell 
 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Sara Marie Barron, Alex Evans, Aaron Heinz, 

Maria Iniguez, Jennifer Jelavich, Alejandra Lopez, Vicki Markss, Toni 
Marquez, Tina Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Toni Rangel, 
Chuck Wayman, and Michael West 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the 
Pledge of Allegiance, and made the following announcements. 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma(s) 

Lorilee Niesen reported on a recent graduate from the Colusa County Adult 
School.  Lorilee introduced the graduate, presented her with a diploma, and 
asked her to speak about the importance of her education and to introduce her 
guests.  Lorilee gave the graduate a portfolio to organize her professional papers. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West reported on his participation and attendance in activities, 
such as continuation of Zoom meetings with many organizations and staff 
regarding health and safety and preparation and planning.  He spoke 
about review of upcoming State legislative bills and trailer language to 
determine the impact of those on education.  Michael reported on 

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

CCSESA virtual meetings including those held with the Governor’s staff 
that are held weekly and one with SSPI Superintendent Thurmond.  
Michael reviewed the Everbridge security program that is an app‐based 
emergency notification system that because of state funding CCOE can 
provide to the districts at no cost through December 2021.  He 
highlighted two Facebook live events that Jennifer Jelavich hosted that 
featured the Wildland Firefighter Academy and the UC Master Gardeners 
of Colusa County, and he said that he attended the WFA graduation of 
eighteen cadets.  Michael also shared Jennifer’s chart on the status of 
schools in the county and he said that all districts will participate in 
CASPP testing.  He reported on the potential for summer schools in the 
county, saying that there is a certain amount of fatigue amongst 
educators and that they may need the summer to take a break.  Michael 
said that CCOE staff have been working the entire time during closures 
and he said that he, Aaron Heinz, and Serena Morrow are proud of all 
staff.  Discussion was held on the harm to students’ education if summer 
school does not occur, on taking care of staff, on distance learning 
helping the upcoming teacher shortage, on holding summer school 
before the start of the upcoming school year not at the end of this school 
year to allow for a break, on adjusting curriculum for the essentials, on 
extending school‐day minutes, and on Colusa County’s educational 
condition compared to other counties.  Discussion was also held on 
mental health resources, social emotional health and learning, proactive 
planning regarding behavioral health monies, and the future effect of 
agricultural related unemployment on the stress level of students’ 
families. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – Month Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with District Superintendents in April. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz presented his April 2021 Administrative Services report, including 
information on CCOE Food Services’ support for WUSD summer school students; 
Facilities projects including installation of a walk‐in freezer/refrigerator at CCC; 
and Business Services’ work on the budget, an application for Title I funds for 
ESSER II and III, Second Interim letters to be sent to Board Presidents that 
confirm a positive certification for all districts, and submission of the IAL Interim 
Report. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Vicki Markss’ April 
2021 Children’s Services written report.  Vicki updated her report regarding the 
week‐long State Monitoring Review and results of the mid‐week debriefing.  
Michael West added that Vicki and her staff are very purposeful in their 
spending, and that the State representatives indicated that they use CCOE’s 
Children’s Services as a model for other programs. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza began her April 2021 Educational Services report by 
introducing CCOE’s Prevention Services team, including Maria Iniguez, Alejandra 
Lopez, and Toni Rangel who presented information on CCOE’s Second Step Social 
and Emotional Learning (SEL) program at WUSD.  Their presentation included 
anecdotes of students using SEL skills in real life, a description of the program, 
reports on grade level participation, teachers’ testimonies and anecdotes of 
parents’ testimonies about the benefits of Second Step, and upcoming parent 
mental health trainings.  Maria spoke about a Behavioral Health Grant that she 
will use to expand Second Step throughout the county.  Michael West 
commented on the importance of teaching the very young and thanked the 
team for their passion.  Discussion was held on the program not having an 
academic component, on providing common core math education to parents so 
that they can help their children with schoolwork, and on the status of Second 
Step in the county (it was slowly phased out of all districts except WUSD and 
PJUSD has since developed its own program). 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Chuck Wayman’s April 
2021 Special Education and SELPA written report.  Chuck added to his report on 
preparing for next year and on playing catchup.  Discussion was held on whether 
Special Education will receive any federal monies, and Chuck said that he 
believes that will happen.  He said that the program has revenue but is having a 
hard time hiring teachers. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Alex Evans’ April 2021 
Technology Services written report.  Alex added to his report on a serious 
phishing attempt, which caused lost time for the department.  Discussion was 
held on the phishing attacks and on the potential benefits for phishers. 
 

Following agenda item 11.3, the group circled back to agenda item 6.6, Technology Services 
 
Alex provided a virtual look at real‐time attacks on CCOE’s system.  Discussion 
was held on bringing attention to broadband support to the federal level, and 
Michael said that US Representative John Garamendi is aware and is supportive.  
Discussion was also held on phone and power outages. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Brenda Miller/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried four ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell), one absent 
(Jason McMullan) to approve the following Consent Agenda item: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the March 10, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported that YCCD Chancellor Dr. Douglas Houston took another 
position in the central valley, and that current WCC President Dr. Art Pimentel 
will be the Interim Chancellor until the position is filled. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
Michael West said that Lorilee Niesen and Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza are leading 
expansion of CCOE’s offerings to adults in Colusa County.  He reported that 
Educational Services will erect a dual‐portable Adult Education classroom on the 
southeast corner of the Education Village for the purposes of separating adult 
students from juvenile students. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that she has been working with WUSD because 
of their Superintendent transition, providing customized technical assistance to 
the other districts, and writing the annual update to the 2019‐20 LCAP and 
summarizing it so that a new LCAP can be written. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Aaron Heinz presented Digital Literacy Specialist Alissa Maas’ recap of the first 
half of the Federal fiscal year, beginning October 1, 2020, and ending March 31, 
2021.  The report included data on F2B participation; distribution of iPads 
equipped with F2B to day care providers, CCOE preschools, First Five Action 
Centers, and WES; virtual story times in English and Spanish; fifteen previous 
countywide book giveaways and two future events; and data on book sharing 
participation.  Aaron said that plans include working with Hand in Hand Early 
Learning Center, and Williams and Arbuckle E‐Centers on bringing F2B training 
and iPads to those programs over the summer.  Discussion was held on guest 
reader story time volunteering. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Amended LCAP Federal Addendum for Title I, Part A Funds 

Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that the LCAP Federal Addendum for Title I, Part 
A Funds was to enable CCOE to apply for those funds.  Discussion was held on 
the new‐to‐CCOE funds and the hope that the funds will become continuous, 



Colusa County Board of Education 
April 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

and Maria reported on how the funds will be used.  Aaron Heinz reported on 
CCOE eligibility and seeking greater amounts of funds in the future. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried four ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell), one absent (Jason 
McMullan) to approve the Amended LCAP Federal Addendum for Title I, Part A 
Funds. 

11.2 Acknowledge Receipt of Sunshine Proposal for 2021‐22 from Colusa County 
Educational Support Professionals (CCESP) 
Michael West explained that this item provides notice at a public meeting of 
CCESP’s opening proposal. 

11.3 Superintendent’s Response to Sunshine Proposal for 2021‐22 from Colusa 
County Educational Support Professionals (CCESP) 
Michael West explained that this item provides notice at a public meeting of his 
opening proposal to CCESP. 
 

Following agenda item 11.3, the group circled back to agenda item 6.6, Technology Services 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 

No items added. 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting 
May 12, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:37 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

 

CASPP  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 

CCC  Colusa Children's Center 

CCESP  Colusa County Educational Support Professionals 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

ESSER  Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

IAL  Innovative Approaches to Literacy 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

PJUSD  Pierce Joint Unified School District 

SEL  Social and Emotional Learning 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

SSPI  State Superintendent of Public Instruction 

UC  University of California 

US  United States 

WCC  Woodland Community College 

WES  Williams Elementary School 

WFA  Wildland Firefighter Academy 

WUSD  Williams Unified School District 

YCCD  Yuba Community College District 

 



CL-500  12/2016 Page 1 of 3 

 

State of California 

Commission on Teacher Credentialing 

Certification Division 

1900 Capitol Avenue 

Sacramento, CA 95811-4213 

 Email: credentials@ctc.ca.gov 

Website: www.ctc.ca.gov 

 

 

 

DECLARATION OF NEED FOR FULLY QUALIFIED EDUCATORS 

 

   Original Declaration of Need for year: _____________  

   Revised Declaration of Need for year: _____________  

 
FOR SERVICE IN A SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Name of District:  District CDS Code:  

Name of County:  County CDS Code:  

 

 

 

By submitting this annual declaration, the district is certifying the following: 

 A diligent search, as defined below, to recruit a fully prepared teacher for the assignment(s) was made 

 If a suitable fully prepared teacher is not available to the school district, the district will make a reasonable effort 

to recruit based on the priority stated below 

The governing board of the school district specified above adopted a declaration at a regularly scheduled public meeting 

held on ____/____/____ certifying that there is an insufficient number of certificated persons who meet the district's 

specified employment criteria for the position(s) listed on the attached form.  The attached form was part of the agenda, 

and the declaration did NOT appear as part of a consent calendar.   

 Enclose a copy of the board agenda item   

With my signature below, I verify that the item was acted upon favorably by the board.  The declaration shall remain in 

force until June 30, _________. 

Submitted by (Superintendent, Board Secretary, or Designee): 

 __________________________________   __________________________________   __________________________________  
 Name Signature  Title 

 __________________________________  ___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Fax Number    Telephone Number  Date 

 __________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Mailing Address 

 __________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
EMail Address 

 
FOR SERVICE IN A COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, STATE AGENCY OR NONPUBLIC SCHOOL OR AGENCY 

Name of County ______________________________________________________  County CDS Code __________________  

Name of State Agency ______________________________________________________________________________________  

Name of NPS/NPA ___________________________________________________  County of Location _________________  

 

 

mailto:credentials@ctc.ca.gov
http://www.ctc.ca.gov/


__________________________________________

CL-500  12/2016 Page 2 of 3 

The Superintendent of the County Office of Education or the Director of the State Agency or the Director of the NPS/NPA 

specified above adopted a declaration on ____/____/____, at least 72 hours following his or her public announcement that 

such a declaration would be made, certifying that there is an insufficient number of certificated persons who meet the 

county's, agency's or school's specified employment criteria for the position(s) listed on the attached form. 

 
The declaration shall remain in force until June 30, _________. 

 Enclose a copy of the public announcement 

Submitted by Superintendent, Director, or Designee: 

 __________________________________   __________________________________   __________________________________  
 Name Signature Title 

 __________________________________     __________________________________  __________________________________ 
 Fax Number    Telephone Number 

 __________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

  Date 

 __________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Mailing Address 

EMail Address 

 This declaration must be on file with the Commission on Teacher Credentialing before any emergency permits will be 

issued for service with the employing agency 
 
AREAS OF ANTICIPATED NEED FOR FULLY QUALIFIED EDUCATORS 

Based on the previous year's actual needs and projections of enrollment, please indicate the number of emergency permits 

the employing agency estimates it will need in each of the identified areas during the valid period of this Declaration of 

Need for Fully Qualified Educators.  This declaration shall be valid only for the type(s) and subjects(s) identified below.   

 

This declaration must be revised by the employing agency when the total number of emergency permits applied for exceeds 

the estimate by ten percent.  Board approval is required for a revision. 

Type of Emergency Permit Estimated Number Needed 

CLAD/English Learner Authorization (applicant already 

holds teaching credential) 
 __________________________  

Bilingual Authorization (applicant already holds teaching 

credential) 

 

 __________________________

 List target language(s) for bilingual authorization: 

   

  

Resource Specialist  _________________________  

 __________________________  Teacher Librarian Services 

 

 

 

LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMITS 
Limited Assignment Permits may only be issued to applicants holding a valid California teaching credential based on a 

baccalaureate degree and a professional preparation program including student teaching. 

 

 

Based on the previous year’s actual needs and projections of enrollment, please indicate the number of Limited 

Assignment Permits the employing agency estimates it will need in the following areas: 



CL-500  12/2016 Page 3 of 3 

TYPE OF LIMITED ASSIGNMENT PERMIT ESTIMATED NUMBER NEEDED 

Multiple Subject  

Single Subject  

 

 

Special Education 

TOTAL 

 

 

 

EFFORTS TO RECRUIT CERTIFIED PERSONNEL 

The employing agency declares that it has implemented in policy and practices a process for conducting a diligent search 

that includes, but is not limited to, distributing job announcements, contacting college and university placement centers, 

advertising in local newspapers, exploring incentives included in the Teaching as a Priority Block Grant (refer to 

www.cde.ca.gov for details), participating in state and regional recruitment centers and participating in job fairs in 

California. 

If a suitable fully prepared teacher is not available to the school district, the district made reasonable efforts to recruit an 

individual for the assignment, in the following order: 

 A candidate who qualifies and agrees to participate in an approved internship program in the region of the school 

district 

 An individual who is scheduled to complete initial preparation requirements within six months 

EFFORTS TO CERTIFY, ASSIGN, AND DEVELOP FULLY QUALIFIED PERSONNEL 

Has your agency established a District Intern program?                      Yes         No 

If no, explain. ___________________________________________________________________________  

Does your agency participate in a Commission-approved 

college or university internship program? 

 Yes         No 

If yes, how many interns do you expect to have this year? _________________________________________  

If yes, list each college or university with which you participate in an internship program. 

 ______________________________________________________________________________________  

 _______________________________________________________________________________________  

 _______________________________________________________________________________________  

 

If no, explain why you do not participate in an internship program. 

 _______________________________________________________________________________________  

 _______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 

http://www.doc.da.gov/


Inventory for Disposal

May 12, 2021

Storage Unit

Tag # Manufacturer Make/Model Item/Year Serial # Original Cost Reason For Surplus

4 Chairs Unknown Unusable/Broken

11 Filing Cabinets 4 door Unknown Unusable/Broken

6 Tables Unknown Unusable/Broken

1 L‐Shaped Desk Unknown Unusable/Broken

2 Doors Unknown Unusable/Broken

1 Oven‐stove Unknown Unusable/Broken

2 Large Shelves Unknown Unusable/Broken

1 Mobile Dishwasher Unknown Unusable/Broken

1‐2 Door File Cabinet Unknown Unusable/Broken

1 Large Shelf Unknown Unusable/Broken

1 Piece of a Changing Table Unknown Unusable/Broken

1 Toddler Block Tray Unknown Unusable/Broken

Children's Services
Tag # Manufacturer Make/Model Item/Year Serial # Original Cost Reason For Surplus

3641 Ambco Electronics 650A/B3641 AMBCO Audiometer $674.00 Unusable/Replaced

3491 Ambco Electronics 650A/B3491 AMBCO Audiometer $674.00 Unusable/Replaced

3492 Ambco Electronics 650A/B3492 AMBCO Audiometer $674.00 Unusable/Replaced

Intended Disposition:

Children's Services Surplus Inventory

Items in Storage Unit will be thrown away. Audiometers will be e‐wasted by IT department. 



Page 1 of 2 
 

California Department of Education 
March 2021 

Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 

Colusa County Office of Education Maria Arvizu-Espinoza, Assistant Superintendent maespinoza@ccoe.net 
530-473-1350  

The following is the local educational agency’s (LEA’s) plan for providing supplemental instruction and support to students, including 
those identified as needing academic, social-emotional, and other supports, including the provision of meals and snacks. The plan will 
explain how the LEA will use the funds it receives through the Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant to implement a learning 
recovery program for at least the students included in one or more of the following groups: low-income students, English learners, foster 
youth, homeless students, students with disabilities, students at risk of abuse, neglect, or exploitation, disengaged students, and 
students who are below grade level, including, but not limited to, those who did not enroll in kindergarten in the 2020–21 school year, 
credit-deficient students, high school students at risk of not graduating, and other students identified by certificated staff. 
For specific requirements please refer to the Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan Instructions. 

Plan Descriptions 
A description of how parents, teachers, and school staff were involved in the development of the plan.  

The planned stakeholder consultation and engagement process for the Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE) outlines a systematic 
approach to stakeholder engagement that assists our county office to develop and maintain, over time effective and engaging extended 
learning programs for students throughout the duration of the grant and beyond. Parents, teachers, administrators, school staff, and our 
community based partners provided input in the development of the Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant plan through 
stakeholder meetings, surveys, and one-on-one phone calls. The survey results indicated 100% were in favor of increasing the 
instructional minutes. Additionally, students attend monthly student stakeholder meetings where they provide feedback on the 
instructional, intervention, and enrichment programs provided to them. With parent permission, students completed a survey specifically 
to obtain feedback for the ELO grant. Seventy five percent of students were in favor of participating in an in-person extended learning 
program, specifically a summer program that included CTE classes.  

 

mailto:maespinoza@ccoe.net


Page 2 of 2 
 

A description of how students will be identified and the needs of students will be assessed.   

The needs of participating students are identified and addressed by utilizing both state  (e.g., California Assessment for Student 
Performance [CAASPP] and English Language Proficiency Assessments [ELPAC]) and local assessments. Local assessments include 
individual student transcript review to determine credit deficiency, and  Exact Path diagnostics taken each quarter that help determine 
learning loss and provide direction in  reviewing core skills. In addition, needs are identified through attendance data, truancy and 
suspension data, educator recommendations, counselor recommendation, parent feedback regarding summer school, local probation 
department recommendation (probation youth), county liaison (foster and homeless youth) and a four year graduation plan update prior 
to the end of the school year.  

A description of how parents and guardians of students will be informed of the opportunities for supplemental instruction and support. 

Currently, the teachers, administrator, and support staff regularly communicate with parents/guardians in both English and Spanish 
through phone calls, text messages, letters, flyers, stakeholder meetings, and home visits.  All parents/guardians will continue to be  
contacted personally in English and/or Spanish by the administrator, support staff and teachers to inform the parents of the opportunities 
for supplemental instructional support for their children. The conversation will include the dates, times, transportation schedule, 
instruction/courses being provided, nutritional meals, and all logistics of the extended programs.  

A description of the LEA’s plan to provide supplemental instruction and support.  

To address the leaning loss due to COVID-19, CCOE plans to take the following measures. A planning team that consists of parents, 
teacher, school principal, counselor, the student, and the prevention services supervisor will evaluate each student’s current individualized 
learning plan (ILP) for achieving academic and personal goals.  These plans which have been visited every six weeks in the past, will 
continue with a focus of determining each student's individual performance and incorporating materials and methods that will work best 
for the student.  
CCOE plans to incorporate many supports for students. Based on the state and local assessments and ILP team recommendations, the 
team will develop plans for the academic and social emotional services that will be provided to the students during the regular school 
year including extended instructional times and summer programs.  In addition, students will be provided support from staff who will 
provide individual student assistance during class and make home visits to provide support to the student and family.  Furthermore, 
breakfast, lunch, and snacks will be served daily as well as transportation for every student. 
Instructional time will be extended during the regular school year as well as implementing a summer school program to provide additional 
opportunities for students. The academic focus is to improve basic skills and English language proficiency, expand awareness of career 
opportunities, and increase student’s self-esteem. The three principal areas of focus for extending instructional time include: remedial 
support, enrichment activities, and accelerated courses of study. The summer program centers around a project based learning hands 
on approach instructional model focused on career technical skills while incorporating core subject matter. Student field trips will be 
provided to expose them to career opportunities.  This model aligns to the feedback from the student/parent stakeholder meetings as well 



Page 3 of 2 
 

as teacher and support staff input. Curriculum will be continued to be offered to students on independent study throughout the summer 
as well as student access to laptops and internet access. Assessment and progress monitoring will be in effect to ensure on-going 
monitoring of student progress takes place. The successful completion of projects is also considered a measure of student progress. The 
ongoing partnership with community organizations strengthen the services provided to the students (e.g.  Behavioral Health, One Stop, 
Department of Health and Human Services, probation department, Colusa Advocates for Parents and Children (CAPC), Colusa 
Continuum of Care, Family Action Center, Ministerial Association of Colusa County, Victim Witness, and many more).  

 

Expenditure Plan 
The following table provides the LEA’s expenditure plan for how it will use ELO Grant funds to support the supplemental instruction and 
support strategies being implemented by the LEA. 

Supplemental Instruction and Support Strategies Planned Expenditures Actual Expenditures 
Extending instructional learning time Personnel cost for 

summer instructional 
program to address 
learning gaps:  $14,262 
Personnel cost to increase 
instructional minutes for 
after school support: 
$8,623  
Personnel cost for 
paraprofessional regular 
year: $45,000 
Instructional supplies for 
summer/regular year: 
$28,058 

[Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 



Page 4 of 2 
 

Supplemental Instruction and Support Strategies Planned Expenditures Actual Expenditures 
Accelerating progress to close learning gaps through the implementation, 
expansion, or enhancement of learning supports 

Supplemental curriculum 
as defined by student 
assessments: $6,430 
Professional development 
for certificated/classified 
personnel to address 
learning gaps and student 
engagement: $5,000 

[Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

Integrated student supports to address other barriers to learning Personnel to provide SEL 
support to students during 
the regular school year: 
$8,937 

[Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

Community learning hubs that provide students with access to technology, 
high-speed internet, and other academic supports 

N/A [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

Supports for credit deficient students to complete graduation or grade 
promotion requirements and to increase or improve students’ college 
eligibility 

Student college 
concurrent enrollment 
textbook/supplies: $3,000 
CTE materials/supplies: 
$3,000 
Personnel cost to provide 
additional core subject 
areas to bridge credit 
deficiency: $15,840 

[Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

Additional academic services for students N/A [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 

Training for school staff on strategies to engage students and families in 
addressing students’ social-emotional health and academic needs   

$4,000 [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available]   

Total Funds to implement the Strategies $142,150 [Actual expenditures will be 
provided when available] 



Page 5 of 2 
 

A description of how ELO Grant funds are being coordinated with other federal Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief 
Funds received by the LEA.  

ELO grant funds are used with other limited amounts of federal Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief funds to safely 
improve the learning conditions for the students of CCOE. This includes the addition of paraprofessional staff to enhance the learning 
opportunities for our students.   

 



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan Instructions: Introduction 
The Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan must be completed by school districts, county offices of education, or charter 
schools, collectively referred to as Local Educational Agencies (LEAs), that receive Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant 
funds under California Education Code (EC) Section 43521(b). The plan must be adopted by the local governing board or body of the 
LEA at a public meeting on or before June 1, 2021, and must be submitted to the county office of education, the California Department 
of Education, or the chartering authority within five days of adoption, as applicable. The plan must be updated to include the actual 
expenditures by December 1, 2022. 
For technical assistance related to the completion of the Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan, please contact 
ELOGrants@cde.ca.gov. 

Instructions: Plan Requirements 
An LEA receiving ELO Grant funds under EC Section 43521(b) is required to implement a learning recovery program that, at a 
minimum, provides supplemental instruction, support for social and emotional well-being, and, to the maximum extent permissible 
under the guidelines of the United States Department of Agriculture, meals and snacks to, at a minimum, students who are included in 
one or more of the following groups: 

• low-income,  
• English learners,  
• foster youth,  
• homeless students,  
• students with disabilities,  
• students at risk of abuse, neglect, or exploitation,  
• disengaged students, and  
• students who are below grade level, including, but not limited to, those who did not enroll in kindergarten in the 2020–21 school 

year, credit-deficient students, high school students at risk of not graduating, and other students identified by certificated staff. 
For purposes of this requirement  

• “Supplemental instruction” means the instructional programs provided in addition to and complementary to the LEAs regular 
instructional programs, including services provided in accordance with an individualized education program (IEP). 

• “Support” means interventions provided as a supplement to those regularly provided by the LEA, including services provided in 
accordance with an IEP, that are designed to meet students’ needs for behavioral, social, emotional, and other integrated 
student supports, in order to enable students to engage in, and benefit from, the supplemental instruction being provided. 

mailto:ELOGrants@cde.ca.gov


 

Page 2 of 5 
 

• “Students at risk of abuse, neglect, or exploitation” means students who are identified as being at risk of abuse, neglect, or 
exploitation in a written referral from a legal, medical, or social service agency, or emergency shelter. 

EC Section 43522(b) identifies the seven supplemental instruction and support strategies listed below as the strategies that may be 
supported with ELO Grant funds and requires the LEA to use the funding only for any of these purposes. LEAs are not required to 
implement each supplemental instruction and support strategy; rather LEAs are to work collaboratively with their community partners to 
identify the supplemental instruction and support strategies that will be implemented. LEAs are encouraged to engage, plan, and 
collaborate on program operation with community partners and expanded learning programs, and to leverage existing behavioral health 
partnerships and Medi-Cal billing options in the design and implementation of the supplemental instruction and support strategies being 
provided (EC Section 43522[h]). 
The seven supplemental instruction and support strategies are: 

1. Extending instructional learning time in addition to what is required for the school year by increasing the number of instructional 
days or minutes provided during the school year, providing summer school or intersessional instructional programs, or taking any 
other action that increases the amount of instructional time or services provided to students based on their learning needs.  

2. Accelerating progress to close learning gaps through the implementation, expansion, or enhancement of learning supports 
including, but not limited to, any of the following: 

a. Tutoring or other one-on-one or small group learning supports provided by certificated or classified staff. 
b. Learning recovery programs and materials designed to accelerate student academic proficiency or English language 

proficiency, or both. 
c. Educator training, for both certificated and classified staff, in accelerated learning strategies and effectively addressing 

learning gaps, including training in facilitating quality and engaging learning opportunities for all students. 
3. Integrated student supports to address other barriers to learning, such as the provision of health, counseling, or mental health 

services, access to school meal programs, before and after school programs, or programs to address student trauma and social-
emotional learning, or referrals for support for family or student needs.  

4. Community learning hubs that provide students with access to technology, high-speed internet, and other academic supports. 
5. Supports for credit deficient students to complete graduation or grade promotion requirements and to increase or improve 

students’ college eligibility. 
6. Additional academic services for students, such as diagnostic, progress monitoring, and benchmark assessments of student 

learning. 
7. Training for school staff on strategies, including trauma-informed practices, to engage students and families in addressing 

students’ social-emotional health needs and academic needs. 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

As a reminder, EC Section 43522(g) requires that all services delivered to students with disabilities be delivered in accordance with an 
applicable IEP. 

Fiscal Requirements 
The following fiscal requirements are requirements of the ELO grant, but they are not addressed in this plan. Adherence to these 
requirements will be monitored through the annual audit process.  

• The LEA must use at least 85 percent (85%) of its apportionment for expenditures related to providing in-person services in any 
of the seven purposes described above.  

• The LEA must use at least 10 percent (10%) of the funding that is received based on LCFF entitlement to hire paraprofessionals 
to provide supplemental instruction and support through the duration of this program, with a priority for full-time 
paraprofessionals. The supplemental instruction and support provided by the paraprofessionals must be prioritized for English 
learners and students with disabilities. Funds expended to hire paraprofessionals count towards the LEAs requirement to spend 
at least 85% of its apportionment to provide in-person services. 

• An LEA may use up to 15 percent (15%) of its apportionment to increase or improve services for students participating in 
distance learning or to support activities intended to prepare the LEA for in-person instruction, before in-person instructional 
services are offered.  

Instructions: Plan Descriptions 
Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broad understanding among the LEA’s 
local community. 

A description of how parents, teachers, and school staff were involved in the development of the plan 
Describe the process used by the LEA to involve, at a minimum, parents, teachers, and school staff in the development of the 
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan, including how the LEA and its community identified the seven supplemental instruction 
and support strategies that will be implemented. LEAs are encouraged to engage with community partners, expanded learning 
programs, and existing behavioral health partnerships in the design of the plan.  

A description of how parents and guardians of students will be informed of the opportunities for supplemental instruction and 
support. 
Describe the LEA’s plan for informing the parents and guardians of students identified as needing supplemental instruction and support 
of the availability of these opportunities, including an explanation of how the LEA will provide this information in the parents’ and 
guardians’ primary languages, as applicable. 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

A description of how students will be identified and the needs of students will be assessed 
Describe the LEA’s plan for identifying students in need of academic, social-emotional, and other integrated student supports, including 
the LEA’s plan for assessing the needs of those students on a regular basis. The LEA’s plan for assessing the academic needs of its 
students may include the use of diagnostic and formative assessments.  
As noted above in the Plan Requirements, “other integrated student supports” are any supports intended to address barriers to 
learning, such as the provision of health, counseling, or mental health services, access to school meal programs, before and after 
school programs, or programs to address student trauma and social-emotional learning, or referrals for support for family or student 
needs. 

A description of the LEA’s plan to provide supplemental instruction and support  
Describe the LEA’s plan for how it will provide supplemental instruction and support to identified students in the seven strategy areas 
defined in the Plan Requirements section. As a reminder, the LEA is not required to implement each of the seven strategies; rather the 
LEA will to work collaboratively with its community to identify the strategies that will be implemented. The plan must include a 
description of how supplemental instruction and support will be provided in a tiered framework that bases universal, targeted, and 
intensive supports on students’ needs for academic, social-emotional, and other integrated student supports. The plan must also 
include a description of how the services will be provided through a program of engaging learning experiences in a positive school 
climate.    
As a reminder, EC Section 43522(g) requires that all services delivered to students with disabilities be delivered in accordance with an 
applicable individualized education program. Additionally, LEAs are encouraged to collaborate with community partners and expanded 
learning programs, and to leverage existing behavioral health partnerships and Medi-Cal billing options in the implementation of, this 
plan (EC Section 43522[h]).  

Instructions: Expenditure Plan 
The ‘Supplemental Instruction and Support Strategies’ column of the Expenditure Plan data entry table lists the seven supplemental 
instruction and support strategies that may be supported with ELO Grant funds.  
Complete the Expenditure Plan data entry table as follows: 
In the ‘Planned Expenditures’ column of the data entry table, specify the amount of ELO Grant funds being budgeted to support each 
supplemental instruction and support strategies being implemented by the LEA and the total of all ELO Grant funds being budgeted. 
The plan must be updated to include the actual expenditures by December 1, 2022. In the ‘Actual Expenditures’ column of the data 
entry table the LEA will report the amount of ELO Grant funds that the LEA actually expended in support of the strategies that it 
implemented, as well as the total ELO Grant funds expended.   



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

A description of how these funds are being coordinated with other federal Elementary and Secondary School Emergency 
Relief Funds received by the LEA 
Describe how the LEA is coordinating its ELO Grant funds with funds received from the federal Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief (ESSER) Fund provided through the federal Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act of 
2021 (Public Law 116-260), also known as ESSER II, to maximize support for students and staff. 
 
California Department of Education 
March 2021 
 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA  95932 
mwest@ccoe.net    p 530.458.0350     f 530.458.8054 

   

COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  Wednesday, June 9, 2021 
 
TIME:  4:00 p.m.  Board Business Meeting 
 
PLACE:  345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 
 
NOTICES:  The Colusa County Office of Education encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 

meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530.458.0350 well in advance of the meeting that you 
wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you (Cal. Gov’t. Code, § 
54954.2, subd. (a)(1)). 

 
  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed at the Colusa County Office of Education 

located  at  345  5th  Street,  Colusa,  CA,  or  online  at  ccoe.net.  For  more  information,  please  call 
530.458.0350. 

   

NOTE: This meeting is being agendized to allow staff and the public to participate in the meeting via teleconference, 
pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N‐29‐20 dated March 17, 2020. 

Executive Order N‐29‐20 authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via teleconference and to make 
public meetings accessible telephonically to all members of the public and staff in effort to observe social distancing 
recommendations. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate in the teleconference. 

You can listen to the meeting by dialing the teleconference number below: 

Phone:  1.669.900.9128  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Or you can attend the meeting via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81933072723  Meeting ID:  819 3307 2723 

Please mute your phone or microphone when you are not speaking. 

If you would like to participate in the Public Input portions of the meeting, or comment on a specific agenda item, 
you can do so by  texting your NAME to 530.632.0263 and  the Clerk will notify  the Chair  that you would  like  to 
comment. Please wait for the Chair to recognize you before speaking. Remember to unmute your phone to speak. 

   

A G E N D A 

        DECISION 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 

1.2.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.2.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.2.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 9, 2021, Agenda 
Page 2 

        DECISION 

 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
Note:  Bold indicates oral report 

6.1 Superintendent’s Reports   information 
6.1.1 Superintendent's Monthly Report 
6.1.2 Superintendents Council – No May Meeting 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz  information 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss  information 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza  information 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman  information 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans  information 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
7.1 Board President’s Report  information 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
  (All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate discussion or action.) 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the May 12, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  action 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item)  information 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item)  information 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item)  information 
10.3.1 2021 LCAP Performance Priorities  information 
10.3.2 2021‐22 CCOE Annual System of Support Plan  information 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item)  information 
   



Colusa County Board of Education 
June 9, 2021, Agenda 
Page 3 

        DECISION 

 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve 2021‐24 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)  action 

11.2 Approve 2021‐22 Colusa County Office of Education Budget  action 

11.3 Approve Board Resolution No. 20/21‐03 Colusa County  action 
  Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa County Board of Education 
  Regarding the 2021‐22 Education Protection Account 

11.4 Annual Salary Review ‐ County Superintendent – Board Discussion  information 

11.5 Approve Children’s Services Inventory for Disposal  action 

11.6 Acknowledge Receipt of Sunshine Proposal for 2021‐22 from  information 
  Educators of Colusa County Office of Education (ECCOE) 

11.7 Superintendent’s Response to Sunshine Proposal for 2021‐22  information 
  Educators of Colusa County Office of Education (ECCOE) 

11.8 Approve Board Resolution No. 20/21‐04 of the  action 
Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa 
County Board of Education in Recognition and Profound 
Appreciation of Distinguished Years of Service by Colusa 
County One‐Stop 

11.9 Colusa County Consortium Plan for Serving Expelled Students  action 
  July 1, 2021‐June 30, 2024 

12.0 ADVANCED PLANNING 
12.1 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting  action 

12.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  information 
July 14, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



  6.3 

CCOE - Children’s Services                                           

Vicki Markss, Director           

Report for CCOE Board of Education 

Month:  May 2021 

Meetings, Trainings, and Professional Development: 

 Weekly meetings with Executive Team. 
 First 5 Colusa Children & Families Commission meeting. 
 CDE/OHS Weekly Webinars. 
 Develop Content Area Planning Meeting. 
 Cabinet meeting. 
 Office Team/Recruitment/Budget meetings. 
 Develop annual Self-Assessment report. 
 Social Emotional Learning Community of Practice with Yolo County Office of Ed. 
 NHSA Director’s Leadership Academy virtual cohort. 
 Employee One-on-One meetings for goal planning. 
 State and Federal Webinars. 
 Child Plus & NOHO data systems planning trainings to improve efficiency.  

Grant Opportunities:   

 Head Start Quality Improvement funding:  Planning to complete funded projects. 
 Quality Counts California – Quality Improvement Funds. 

School Readiness: 

 Next program year re-opening plan and recruitment efforts. 
 Planning Teaching Pyramid Social Emotional support and increased efforts for next year. 
 Developing a Staff Wellness Plan. 
 Provide virtual parenting and educational learning concepts through Learning Genie 

Family Engagement app. To promote distance learning experiences. 
 Footsteps2Brilliance, Clever Kids University, and Learning Genie apps support distance 

learning strategies. 
 

Family Engagement and Community Partnerships: 

 “It Takes a Village” Publication with community agencies. 
 Parent Policy Council Meeting. 
 Learning Genie Family App. 



  Educational Services Board Report 

June 2021 

  

 

Alternative Education  

S. William Abel Academy 

Regular school instruction ended on Friday, May 21st with an End of the Year Trip to John’s Incredible Pizza in 

Roseville the students earned with class points. 

 

The Summer School Academy began on Monday, May 24, 2021 with Bob Kirkman providing Project Based 

Learning lessons that span across multiple disciplines. 

 

SWAA Students will be presenting projects made for the community at the Colusa Rotary Meeting on June 1st.  

 

Colusa County Adult School 

Colusa County Adult School hosted its graduation on Wednesday, May 26th at the Ed Village’s MPR.  6 of the 

10 2020-21 Adult School Graduates participated in the ceremony.  Student recognition was also provided to 

ESL and Citizenship Students, CTE students and those participating in education programs at the Day 

Reporting Center. 

 

The CNA Program will be hosting a graduation for its 2nd Cohort on June 17, 2021 at 3:00 PM in the MPR.   

The CNA Program recently received notification from CDPH that the program renewal application was granted 

for 2 years. 

 

Farm to School 

Flowers have been planted for the CCOE Welcome Back Day in August. Get ready for the amazing flowers that 

Craig Richards, F2S Project Coordinator is growing for the event. 

 

Signage for the Native Plant Garden is in the works, soon the Native plants will be identified by common name, 

botanical name, agricultural and common uses. 

 

 

 

Curriculum and Instruction  

Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) - Geographic Lead 

Regular and Advisory Zoom meetings continue to take place. The meetings took place on 5/17 and 5/21 and 

discussion was held on what professional development and capacity building will be offered in the next school 

year. The 21st Century California School Leadership Academy will once again be offering three separate 

professional learning strands (Professional Learning Modules, Communities of Practice, and Individualized 

Leadership Coaching) at no cost to participants. Colusa districts participated in the module this school year and 

feedback from the participants was very positive.  

 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) 

Ed. Services continues to provide technical support to the Williams Upper Elementary School in the development 

and implementation of intervention programs to increase student achievement as well as build their capacity in 

curriculum and assessment.  A second “Parent Officer” training that included the officer’s roles and 

responsibilities, Brown and Green Acts, parliamentary procedures, bylaws, and how to plan for an effective 

meeting was provided to the School Site Council and PTO officers. 

 



Differentiated Assistance (DA) 

Currently the LCAP review has taken precedence with the districts as they are wrapping up the regular school 

year and preparing for summer school.  

 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

The review of the Annual Updates for the LCAP and Learning Continuity and Attendance Plans are ongoing. 

Pierce and Williams have submitted their LCAP and LCP updates for review and feedback. The review is 

ongoing. 

 

Math and Science CoP 

Meetings for the Math and Science Communities of Practice will resume in Fall 2021. 

 

School Improvement Grant (SIG) 

A Dual Immersion debrief meeting took place on 5/21 with the Williams Elementary teachers and administration 

to review the successes and areas of improvement. Curriculum consistency, transitioning from English to Spanish, 

teacher protected planning time, and administrative consistency were areas of consideration for the 2021-22 

school year. 

 

Social Emotional Learning Communities of Practice (SEL CoP) 

The Colusa SEL CoP team continues to meet monthly and seven “mini-grants” have been provided to Colusa 

USD, Maxwell USD, Pierce JUSD, Williams USD, Children’s Services, First 5, SELPA, and S. William Abel 

Academy to enhance the development and implementation of social and emotional learning (SEL) plan across 

district campus and/or program sites. Ed Services will be providing technical assistance to assist in developing 

their SEL plans. 

 

 

Prevention Services 

Early Mental Health Initiative (Second Step) 

See attached Second Step report. 

 

Foster Youth 

Michael West interviewed the Resource Family Approval team through Department of Health and Human 

Services. We invite you to see the video that Jennifer Jelavich is putting together.   

 

The memorandum drafts to extend Foster Youth transportation and Title IV-E MOUs have been submitted to the 

county clerk and are awaiting approval from the board of supervisors. If approved, both MOUs will be extended 

to June 30, 2024. 

 

Homeless/McKinney-Vento  

VSP® gift certificates provide children in need with access to eye care and new glasses at no cost through a VSP 

network doctor in neighboring communities. Gift certificates are distributed through the national network of 

community partners. Prevention Services still have VSP vouchers available for youth 19 and under. 

 

Ed Services hosted Healing California during the weekend of May 15 and 16. Three volunteer dentists and 

optometrist saw over 24 dental patients and 24 vision patients! That means that about $18,000 worth of services 

and time was donated to our community by the generous volunteers and Healing California. The optometrist and 

one dentist came from as far as San Francisco and the second dentist came from Eureka.  They are scheduled to 

return in November.  See link to the amazing photos. 

https://www.ccoe.net/cms/one.aspx?portalId=675832&pageId=44824322 

 

https://www.ccoe.net/cms/one.aspx?portalId=675832&pageId=44824322


 

The 6th Annual Migrant Camp Resource Fair was held on 4/30 from 4:00 pm-7:30 pm and it was a success! Thank 

you to all those that volunteered and the many agencies that participated to educate the community.  Children’s 

Services, Williams Unified School District, Prevention Services, Migrant Education, Innovative Approaches to 

Literacy, Colusa County Campus, Colusa County Free Library, Williams Family Action Center & First 5 Colusa, 

Williams PD, Colusa Medical Center, Ampla Health, Colusa County Behavioral Health, Public Health, 

Department of Health & Human Services, Indivisible Colusa, University of California Cooperative Extension, 

CA Health Collaborative – Every Women Counts, UC Davis Western Center for Agriculture Health & Safety, 

CA Human Development, CRLA – Marysville, Mexican Consulate, Starbucks, and NorCal Resist. 

  

We will be receiving American Rescue Plan Homeless- I funding beginning July 1. Amounts are tentative. 

 

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) 

The Prevention Services Department, through TUPE, has been attending different curriculum trainings to be able 

to offer school districts different curriculums that they could implement. 

 

The County Technical Assistance (CTA) grant has officially been submitted. 

 

Tobacco Law Enforcement Grant Program (TLEGP) 

We have had challenges spending the grant due to limited law enforcement personnel. Prevention Services will 

be meeting with the Colusa Sherriff Department to plan on how to strategically spend the funding.  



 
 

 

 
 

 
Second Step Intervention Program 

Evaluation Data Report 
 
 

2020/2021 
 
 

Colusa County Office of Education 
Educational Services 
499 Marguerite Street 
Williams, CA 95987 

530.473‐1350  
 
 
 



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 1 ‐ 
 

PROGRAM SUMMARY 
 

During 2020‐21 school year, Educational Services provided Second Step programs to schools 
and programs. The goal of local programs is to identify, select, and provide services to children 
who were experiencing mild‐to moderate school adjustment difficulties in terms of social 
behaviors related to peers and teachers, or with classroom study behaviors. Once students 
were identified, parents were contacted, informed of the program, and asked to provide 
written permission for their child to participate. To provide outcome evaluation information 
regarding the impact of program services, teachers were asked to rate their students who 
participated in the program both before and after services. 
 
Like  the  rest  of  the world,  our  county  suffered  greatly  due  to  the  COVID‐19  Pandemic.    The 
educational impact of COVID‐19 has been very evident in our small county as schools were not 
allowed to return to regular school instruction without specific instructions and timelines of how 
and when it was safe to return.  Virtual Second Step instruction may not have been as effective 
as in person instruction; however, virtual instruction took place was consistently provided. The 
lack  of  explicit  face‐to‐face  interaction with  students  further  regressed  student  learning  and 
engagement. Our Second Step providers made every attempt to adapt content to deliver on an 
online platform while parents juggle work (if fortunate to be employed), childcare, and lack of 
connectivity  in  remote  areas.  Many  students  were  struggling  with  isolation,  were  afraid  of 
contamination, had food insecurities, and the loss of a routine that may very well further added 
to  their anxiety. Absenteeism and  lack of engagement were expounded due  to COVID‐19. By 
April,  some  students  returned  to  school  in  person with  a  higher  degree  of  learning  loss  and 
engagement. The wider range of learning needs coupled with lack of in person learning created 
a greater challenge. 
 
For  the  purpose  of  this  report,  complete  evaluation  data  was  received  for  a  total  of  441 
participants  from  the Williams Children’s  Center, Williams  Elementary  School,  and  the Cachil 
Dehe Band of Wintun Indians Hand in the Hand preschool learning program.  The evaluation data 
revealed  an  increase  in  all measurable  categories which  included  Social  Competence,  School 
Adjustment, Social Behaviors (sensitivity, empathy, cooperation, and self‐control), appropriate 
Peer‐Related  Social  Behaviors  (interaction  with  peers,  helpfulness,  ability  to  make  friends, 
leadership, perceptiveness,  communication, and sharing with others), Classroom Work Habits 
(study habits, listening skills, participation, responsiveness, and quality of work).  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 2 ‐ 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Section                            Page 
 
I. INTRODUCTION                           3 

Purpose                              3 
Instruments and Methods                          3 
Walker Assessment Scale of Social Competence and School Adjustment              3 
SUBSCALE 1 ‐ TEACHER‐PREFERRED SOCIAL BEHAVIOR                  3 
SUBSCALE 2 ‐ PEER‐PREFERRED SOCIAL BEHAVIOR                    3 
SUBSCALE 3 ‐ CLASSROOM ADJUSTMENT BEHAVIOR                  4  
Use of Evaluation Data                          4 

 
II. PARTICIPATING CHARACTERISTICS                     5 

Participant Demographics                           5 
Table 1 – Gender of Participants                         5 
Table 2 – Grade Level of Participants                        6 

 
III. OUTCOME EVALUATION INFORMATION                                                        7 

Pre and Post Participation Ratings of School Adjustment                  7 
Table 3 ‐ Social Competence and School Adjustment                               7 
SUBSCALE 1 ‐ TEACHER‐PREFERRED SOCIAL BEHAVIOR                  8 
Table 4 ‐ Teacher ‐Preferred Social Behavior                                                                   8 
SUBSCALE 2 ‐ PEER‐PREFERRED SOCIAL BEHAVIOR                    9 
Table 5 ‐ Peer Preferred Social Behavior                       9 
SUBSCALE 3 ‐ CLASSROOM ADJUSTMENT BEHAVIOR                           10 
Table 6 ‐ Classroom Adjustment Behavior                     10 
 
 

IV. ATTACHMENTS (Charts)                               11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 3 ‐ 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 
Purpose 
The  purpose  of  this  report  is  to  present  the  grant  and  school‐level  program  evaluation  data 
collected during the 2020‐21 school year for the Second Step program. Findings contained in this 
report should help local program coordinators, staff, and other stakeholders to make informed 
decisions regarding program success, to identify areas for improvement and expansion, and to 
help build a strong basis for continuation of the Second Step program. 
 
Instrument and Methods 
The Walker Assessment Scale (WAS) was completed by teachers for each participating student in 
their class on a pre and post participation basis to show the impact of the services on various 
school adjustment factors. 

 
Walker Assessment Scale of Social Competence and School Adjustment 
The WAS consists of 19 positively worded descriptions of adaptive behavior and interpersonal 
social  competence, distributed across  three subscales. The  first  two subscales measure social 
skills, and the third measures adaptive behavior required for success in classroom instructional 
settings.  The WAS was  used  to  evaluate  the  impact  of  the  program  services  on  participants’ 
adaptive behavior and interpersonal social competence. Adaptive behavior refers to the set of 
skills  necessary  to  function  independently  in  a  classroom  instructional  setting.  Interpersonal 
social competence refers to the skills necessary to maintain adequate social  interactions with 
others.  The  advantage  of  this  instrument  is  that  it  is  completed  through  the  observation  of 
student  behaviors  that  are  easily  identifiable  in  the  day‐to‐day  classroom  setting.  A  brief 
description of each subscale is presented below. 
 
 

SUBSCALE 1 
TEACHER‐PREFERRED SOCIAL BEHAVIOR 

 
This  subscale  consists of  five  items  to measure  the  social behaviors  that are highly valued or 
preferred by teachers during non‐instructional interactions with students. Items in this subscale 
reflect  levels  of  sensitivity,  empathy,  cooperation,  self‐control,  and  socially mature  forms  of 
behavior in peer relations. 

 
SUBSCALE 2 

PEER‐PREFERRED SOCIAL BEHAVIOR 
 
This seven‐item subscale measures social behaviors that are highly valued by peers in terms of 
peer dynamics and social  relations  in  free play settings. The behavior content of  items  in this 
subscale reflects levels of interaction with peers, helpfulness, ability to make friends, leadership, 
perceptiveness, communication, and sharing with others. 

 



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 4 ‐ 
 

SUBSCALE 3 
CLASSROOM ADJUSTMENT BEHAVIOR 

 
This  seven‐item  subscale measures  adaptive  social‐behavioral  competencies  highly  valued  by 
teachers  in  classroom  instructional  contexts.  The  content  of  this  subscale  reflects  student 
competencies  which  teachers  feel  are  necessary  to  be  effective  in  the  management  of 
instructional environments  in areas such as student study habits,  listening skills, participation, 
responsiveness, and quality of work. 
 
Classroom  teachers  completed  the  WAS  for  all  students  who  received  parental  consent  to 
participate in the program. Teachers filled out a WAS within one week before students started 
the program and complete a post WAS within one week after students exit the program. These 
data were analyzed to determine whether changes in school adjustment factors have occurred 
during the period that participants receive services. 
 
Uses of Evaluation Data 

There are a variety of uses for the data contained in this report. These materials can be used to 
identify  strengths  and  weaknesses  of  the  program,  efficacy  of  student  selection  and  service 
delivery, and program impact. Parents, teachers, principals, and program staff usually welcome 
information  regarding  changes  in  school  adjustment  among  individual  students.  Individual 
student‐level reports were provided to program coordinators shortly after forms were submitted 
during the 2020‐21 school year. However, the aggregate data contained in this report can also 
be very useful  for presentations  to  school boards, parent groups,  teachers, media, and other 
stakeholders to help build support for the program.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 5 ‐ 
 

II. PARTICIPANT CHARACTERISTICS 

The  demographic  data  presented  in  this  section  provides  important  information  in  terms  of 
describing  the  characteristics  of  students who  participated  in  program  services.  In  reviewing 
these demographic data, program staff can easily determine whether service provision goals are 
met, identify trends in the types of students selected to participate, and, ultimately, determine 
the efficacy of participant identification and selection practices. All demographic information is 
completed after parent consent for participation is received.  
 
For purposes of reporting local program evaluation information, “participants” are defined as 
those students who completed four or more sessions. 
 
Participant Demographics 
Tables in this section present aggregate demographic data for participants. In addition, program 
staff can easily identify patterns of participant selection. For example, these data can be reviewed 
to see if participants were representative of all students enrolled at participating school sites.  
 

Table 1 
Gender of Participants 

      Gender 

School/Program  n 

Male  Female  MD 

#  %  #  %  # 

Williams Children’s Center  45  24  53%  21  47%  0 

  PK 45  24  53%  21  47%  0 

Williams Elementary School  365  180  49%  185  51%  0 

TK 13  9  69%  4  31%  0 

K 86  48  56%  38  44%  0 

1st 85  34  40%  51  60%  0 

2nd 92  48  52%  44  48%  0 

3rd 89  41  46%  48  54%  0 

Hand in Hand  31  19  61%  12  39%  0 

PK 24  15  63%  9  38%  0 

K 7  4  57%  3  43%  0 

Colusa Total/Avg  441  223  51%  218  49%  0 
n=Number of participants with complete information 
MD=Missing Data 
Rounded up if .5% 

   



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 6 ‐ 
 

 
 

Table 2 
Grade Level of Participants 

      Grade Level 

School/Program  n 

PK  TK ‐ K  1st‐3rd 

#  %  #  %  #  % 

Williams Children’s Center  45  45  100%  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

  PK 45  45  100%  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Williams Elementary School  365  ‐  ‐  99  27%  266  73% 

TK 13  ‐  ‐  13  100%  ‐  ‐ 

K 86  ‐  ‐  86  100%  ‐  ‐ 

1st 85  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  85  100% 

2nd 92  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  92  100% 

3rd 89  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  89  100% 

Hand in Hand  31  24  100%  7  100%  ‐  ‐ 

                                                                                     TK  24  24  100%  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

                                                                                       K  7  ‐  ‐  7  100%  ‐  ‐ 

Colusa Total/Avg  441  69  16%  106  24%  266  60% 
n=Number of participants with complete information 
Rounded up if .5% 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 7 ‐ 
 

III. OUTCOME EVALUATION INFORMATION 
 
This section of the report examines the changes in school adjustment characteristics 
participants exhibited over the period they received program services. 
 
Pre and Post Participation Ratings of School Adjustment 
Table  3  shows  the  total  average  WAS  scores  before  services  for  all  2020‐21  participants. 
Percentile equivalents indicate the percentage of all students throughout the nation who would 
score lower on the WAS (i.e., higher scores are better).  
 
 

Table 3 
Social Competence and School Adjustment  

      Average Scores for Total WAS Scale 

School/Program  n 

Before 
Participation 

After 
Participation 

Net Change 

#  %  #  %  #  % 

Colusa COE Total/Avg  410 53  17%  77  58%  +24  +41% 

Williams Children’s Center  45  47  8%  72  47%  +25  +39% 

  PK 45  47  8%  72  47%  +25  +39% 

Williams Elementary School  365 52  18%  78  60%  +24  +42% 

TK 13  44  5%  87  78%  +43  +73% 

K 86  48  10%  74  53%  +26  +43% 

1st 85  53  16%  84  70%  +31  +54% 

2nd 92  54  16%  79  61%  +25  +45% 

3rd 89  63  31%  75  53%  +12  +22% 

Hand in Hand                                                      31  77  58%  83  70%  +6  +12% 

PK 24  77  57%  83  70%  +6  +13% 

K 7  79  61%  ‐  ‐  ‐79  ‐61% 

Colusa Total/Avg  441 55  20%  78  59%  ‐23  +39% 

n=Number of participants with complete information 
Rounded up if .5% 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 8 ‐ 
 

SUBSCALE 1 
TEACHER‐PREFERRED SOCIAL BEHAVIOR 

This  subscale  consists of  five  items  to measure  the  social behaviors  that are highly valued or 
preferred by teachers during non‐instructional interactions with students. Items in this subscale 
reflect  levels  of  sensitivity,  empathy,  cooperation,  self‐control,  and  socially mature  forms  of 
behavior in peer relations. 
 

Table 4 
Teacher ‐Preferred Social Behavior 

 
      Average Scores for WAS Subscale 1 

School/Program  n 

Before 
Participation 

After 
Participation 

Net Change 

#  %  #  %  #  % 

Colusa COE Total/Avg  410  14  24%  20  63%  +6  +39% 

Williams Children’s Center  45  12  15%  18  47%  +6  +32% 

PK  45  12  15%  18  47%  +6  +32% 

Williams Elementary School  365  14  25%  20  65%  +6  +40% 

TK  13  11  9%  23  81%  +12  +72% 

K  86  13  17%  19  54%  +6  +37% 

1st  85  14  24%  23  77%  +9  +53% 

2nd  92  14  25%  21  67%  +7  +42% 

3rd  89  17  39%  20  61%  +3  +22% 

Hand in Hand                                              31  19  49%  20  61%  +1  +12% 

PK  24  19  47%  20  61%  +1  +14% 

K  7  19  52%  ‐  ‐  ‐19  ‐52% 

Colusa Total/Avg  441  14  26%  20  63%  +6  +37% 

n=Number of participants with complete information 
Rounded up if .5%   



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 9 ‐ 
 

SUBSCALE 2 
PEER‐PREFERRED SOCIAL BEHAVIOR 

This seven‐item subscale measures social behaviors that are highly valued by peers in terms of 
peer dynamics and social  relations  in  free play settings. The behavior content of  items  in this 
subscale reflect levels of interaction with peers, helpfulness, ability to make friends, leadership, 
perceptiveness, communication, and sharing with others. 
 

Table 5 
Peer Preferred Social Behavior 

 
      Average Scores for WAS Subscale 2 

School/Program  n 

Before 
Participation 

After 
Participation 

Net Change 

#  %  #  %  #  % 

Colusa COE Total/Avg  410  20  15%  29  58%  +9  +43% 

Williams Children’s Center  45  17  8%  27  46%  +10  +38% 

PK 45  17  8%  27  46%  +10  +38% 

Williams Elementary School  365  20  16%  29  59%  +9  +43% 

TK 13  17  6%  33  76%  +16  +70% 

K 86  18  9%  29  56%  +11  +47% 

1st 85  20  14%  31  69%  +11  +55% 

2nd 92  20  15%  29  58%  +9  +43% 

3rd 89  24  28%  28  52%  +4  +24% 

Hand in Hand                                                     31  30  59%  32  71%  +2  +12% 

PK 24  30  56%  32  71%  +2  +15% 

K 7  32  68%  ‐  ‐  ‐32  ‐68% 

Colusa Total/Avg  441  21  18%  29  59%  +8  +41% 

n=Number of participants with complete information 
Rounded up if .5% 
   



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 10 ‐ 
 

SUBSCALE 3 
CLASSROOM ADJUSTMENT BEHAVIOR 

This  seven‐item  subscale measures  adaptive  social‐behavioral  competencies  highly  valued  by 
teachers  in  classroom  instructional  contexts.  The  content  of  this  subscale  reflects  student 
competencies  which  teachers  feel  are  necessary  to  be  effective  in  the  management  of 
instructional environments  in areas such as student study habits,  listening skills, participation, 
responsiveness, and quality of work. 
 

Table 6 
Classroom Adjustment Behavior 

      Average Scores for WAS Subscale 3 

School/Program  n 

Before 
Participation 

After 
Participation 

Net Change 

#  %  #  %  #  % 

Colusa COE Total/Avg  410  20  23%  28  58%  +8  +35% 

Williams Children’s Center  45  18  16%  26  48%  +8  +32% 

PK 45  18  16%  26  48%  +8  +32% 

Williams Elementary School  365  20  24%  28  59%  +8  +35% 

TK 13  17  13%  31  72%  +14  +59% 

K 86  18  17%  27  52%  +9  +35% 

1st 85  20  22%  31  69%  +11  +47% 

2nd 92  20  23%  29  61%  +9  +38% 

3rd 89  23  24%  27  54%  +4  +38% 

Hand in Hand                                                     31  29  59%  31  71%  +2  +13% 

PK 24  29  59%  31  71%  +2  +12% 

K 7  28  52%  ‐  ‐  ‐28  ‐52% 

Colusa Total/Avg  441  20  25%  28  59%  +8  +34% 

n=Number of participants with complete information 
Rounded up if .5% 
 
 

   



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 11 ‐ 
 

IV. ATTACHMENTS 
 
LIST OF ATTACHED PRESENTATION CHARTS            
Chart 1—Participation by Gender by Program     

Chart 2—Participation by Grade Level by Program 

Chart 3 – Participation by Race for by Program 

Chart 4 – Participation by Ethnicity by Program 

Chart 5 – Preferred Language for all Participants by Program 

Chart 6 – Free and Reduced Meal Participants by Program  
*Participants had an option of not responding  

Chart 7 – CalFresh Participants by Program 
*Participants had an option of not responding    

Chart 8—Social Competence and School Adjustment Ratings for all Participants 

Chart 9—School Competence and School Adjustment Ratings for Participants by Gender 

Chart 10—School Adjustment Ratings for Children’s Services 

Chart 11‐ School Adjustment Ratings for Williams Elementary School 

Chart 12—School Adjustment Ratings for Hand in Hand    

 
     
   



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 12 ‐ 
 

  
   
 
 

 

   

0

50

100

150

200

250

Williams Children's
Center

Williams Elementary
School

Hand in Hand Total Participants

24

180

19

223

21

185

12

218

N
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
P
ar
ti
ci
p
an

ts

Program

Chart 1
Participation by Gender by Program 

Male Female

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Pre‐ K Pre‐ K K TK K 1st
Grade

2nd
Grade

3rd
Grade

Pre‐ K K

45

24

7
13

86 85
92 89

24

7N
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
P
ar
ti
ci
p
an

ts

Chart 2
Participation by Grade Level by Program 

Williams Children's Center Williams Elementary School Hand in Hand



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 13 ‐ 
 

   

 

 

 

 

  

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

African
American

Other Asian Am.
Indian/Alaskan

White Hispanic

1 5 22
2

21

342

1 2 5 20
3

N
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
P
ar
ti
ci
p
an

ts
Chart 3

Participation by Race by Program

Williams Children's Center Williams Elementary School Hand in Hand

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Williams Children's Center Williams Elementary School Hand in Hand

20

342

11
8

23 20

N
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
P
ar
ti
ci
p
an

ts

Chart 4
Participation by Ethnicity by Program 

Hispanic or Latino Not Hispanic or Latino



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 14 ‐ 
 

  

 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Arabic English Punjabi Spanish

7 1
20

2

57

306

30

1N
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
P
ar
ti
ci
p
an

ts

Chart 5
Preferred Language by Participants by Program 

Williams Children's Center Williams Elementary School Hand in Hand

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Children Services ‐ Williams Williams Elementary Hand in Hand

100%
100%

35%

P
er
ce
n
ta
n
ge
 o
f 
R
ec
ip
ie
n
ts

Chart 6 
Percentage of FRMP Recipients by Program



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 15 ‐ 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Williams Children's Center Williams Elementary Hand in Hand

61%

30%

0%

P
e
rc
en

ta
n
ge
 o
f 
R
ec
ip
ie
n
ts

Chart 7
Percentage of CalFresh Recipients by Program

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Teacher‐
Preferred
Behaviors
(Subscale 1)

Peer‐
Preferred
Behaviors
(Subscale 2)

Classroom
Adjustment
Behaviors
(Subscale 3)

Overall
Social

Competence
and School
Adjustment
(Total Scale)

26
18

25
20

63
59 59

59

A
ve
ra
ge

 P
e
rc
e
n
ti
le
 S
co
re

Walker Assessment Scale

Chart 8
Social Competence and School Adjustment Ratings for all 

Participants

Pre‐Assessment Post‐Assessment



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 16 ‐ 
 



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 17 ‐ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

Teacher‐
Preferred
Behaviors
(Subscale 1)

Peer‐
Preferred
Behaviors
(Subscale 2)

Classroom
Adjustment
Behaviors
(Subscale 3)

Overall Social
Competence
and School
Adjustment
(Total Scale)

15
8

16
8

47 46 48 47

A
ve
ra
ge
 P
er
ce
n
ti
le
 S
co
re

Chart 10
School Adjustment Raitings for Williams Children's Center

Pre‐Assessment Post‐Assessment

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

Teacher‐
Preferred
Behaviors
(Subscale 1)

Peer‐
Preferred
Behaviors
(Subscale 2)

Classroom
Adjustment
Behaviors
(Subscale 3)

Overall Social
Competence
and School
Adjustment
(Total Scale)

25
16

24
18

65
59 59 60

A
ve
ra
ge
 P
er
ce
n
ti
le
 S
co
re

Chart 11
School Adjustment Raitings for Williams Elementary School

Pre‐Assessment Post‐Assessment



2020/2021 Evaluation Report 
Educational Services‐ Colusa County Office of Education 

 

‐ 18 ‐ 
 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Teacher‐
Preferred
Behaviors
(Subscale 1)

Peer‐
Preferred
Behaviors
(Subscale 2)

Classroom
Adjustment
Behaviors
(Subscale 3)

Overall Social
Competence
and School
Adjustment
(Total Scale)

49

59 59 5861

71 71 70

A
ve
ra
ge
 P
er
ce
n
ti
le
 S
co
re

Chart 12
School Adjustment Raitings for Hand in Hand 

Pre‐Assessment Post‐Assessment



  6.6 

Colusa County Office of Education  

Technology Services 

Board Report June 9, 2021 

 

Colusa Unified School District has agreed to move forward with their EduNet installation 
at the Reclamation District tower and on top of the Colusa High School Gym.  We are 
still working with City Hall to see if anything can be done to allow us at that location to 
better service the families that live near the Golf Course area.  We are looking for other 
locations nearby that have vertical assets that we can leverage. 
 
We had to replace a power supply for one of the radios at the Williams High School 
EduNet site.  The part is covered under warranty. 
 
We are creating a process to install external routers on students’ homes for students 
that live outside of the internal router coverage.  We have found a vendor that is 
interested in conducting the installations.  We will be working with the districts to 
coordinate planning. 
 
We have been configuring the new iBoss webfilter for installation.  We will be 
scheduling a cutover in the near future.   
 
Alex is now the Chair of the California Information Technology in Education (CITE) 
Northeast Regional Group.  We held our first meeting since the pandemic.   The CITE 
Northeast regional group is a group for schools, districts and COE's that discuss and 
share information technology support ideas for the following counties: Butte, Colusa, 
Glenn, Lassen, Modoc, Nevada, Plumas, Shasta, Sierra, Siskiyou, Sutter, Tehama, and 
Yuba. 
 
 



COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting May 12, 2021 

Acronyms Used in This Document May Be Found in Attachment A 

Board Members Present:  Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, and 
Barry Morrell 

 
Staff/Visitors Present:  Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza, Alex Evans, Brandy Havens, Jacob Havens, 

Aaron Heinz, Jennifer Jelavich, Alissa Maas, Vicki Markss, Tina 
Maxwell, Serena Morrow, Lorilee Niesen, Chuck Wayman, and 
Michael West 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

President Cristy Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom, led the 
Pledge of Allegiance, and made the following announcements. 

1.2 Announcements Specific to Teleconference via Zoom 
1.1.1 This Meeting Will Be Recorded 
1.1.2 This Zoom Meeting Will Close Immediately If Malicious Interruption Occurs 
1.1.3 All Votes Will Be Taken by Roll Call 

2.0 ORDERING OF AGENDA 
No changes. 

3.0 STAFF QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

4.0 LETTERS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
4.1 Awarding of Diploma – Colusa County Adult School 

Lorilee Niesen reported on a recent graduate from the Colusa County Adult 
School.  Lorilee presented the graduate, asked him to introduce his guests, 
awarded him with a diploma, gave him a portfolio to organize his professional 
papers, and asked him to share with the Board his plans for the future. 

4.2 Graduation Ceremony at the Education Village Multi‐Purpose Room – Colusa 
County Adult School, Wednesday, May 26, 2021, 6:00 PM 
Michael West invited the Board to attend the Colusa County Adult School 
graduation ceremony. 

4.3 Board Member Upcoming June Absences – Ed Conrado 
Michael West presented an email from Trustee Ed Conrado regarding his 
anticipated absence from the June 8 Public Hearing and the June 9 Regular Board 
Meeting.  He spoke about the importance of the June meetings and the need for 
a quorum at both events.  

8.1 



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 12, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 2 

4.4 Superintendent’s Salary Review Supporting Information Forthcoming 
Michael West presented an email from CCOE’s Director of Human Resources 
Serena Morrow regarding information for the Superintendent’s Salary 
Committee’s upcoming salary review. 

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items not on the agenda 
No public input. 

6.0 REPORTS FROM SUPERINTENDENT AND STAFF 
6.1 Superintendent’s Reports 

6.1.1 Superintendent’s Monthly Report 
Michael West spoke about an upcoming May Revision that will be 
released on Friday and the SSC Workshop the following week that will 
provide information on new spending proposals by Governor Newsom. 
He said the Governor is indicating that the State has a $75 Billion surplus 
in revenues that he is likely to spend a significant amount on education 
and that pension obligations (CalPERS and CalSTRS) are on the list as well.  
Michael reported that Zoom meetings with many organizations and staff 
are trending downward, but groups are still focused on health and safety, 
summer school planning, and SEL opportunities.  He said that CCSESA has 
been meeting virtually with the Governor’s staff.  He added that SSDA will 
testify before the SBE about CTC issues and small districts as well as 
COEs’ concerns about alternative education teacher assignment 
monitoring and local assignment options (the SBE is considering taking 
local control away).  Michael also reported that CalOSHA updated their 
restrictions on quarantine and we expect further updates throughout the 
month of May, also the Governor hinted that mask mandates may go 
away as early as June 15.  Michael was disappointed to announce that 
Colusa County remained in the COVID 19 moderate tier and missed 
moving to the minimal tier by 4/10 of a point.  He reported that he met 
with civil engineers about the adult education project at the Village, 
which is necessary because it is becoming more important to provide 
segregation of adults and students due to growing adult programs and 
growing CBA enrollment.  Michael thanked Alex Evans, Kyle Gehrts, and 
James Cunningham for their efforts in getting internet access to the 
Migrant Camp, which is necessary because the Camp’s usage increased 
significantly.  Michael said he attended the very well‐planned Children’s 
Services’ Family Fair at the Colusa County fairgrounds, which was 
organized by Local Child Care Planning Coordinator Kayla Kennedy. 

 
Following agenda item 11.3, the group circled back to agenda item 6.1.1, Superintendent’s 
Monthly Report 

Michael West shared an email that he had just received that provided an 
update on the Governor’s Budget.  Reading from the email, he 
highlighted an increase in the budget of $94 billion to Proposition 98.  



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 12, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 3 

This increase will provide monies for Universal Transitional Kindergarten, 
Community School expansion, student wellness services, expansion of 
before and after school education, teacher preparedness, the LCFF 
calculation to decrease student to teacher ratio, accelerated learning 
through high‐dose tutoring, virtual learning in the fall, reduction of 
remaining deferrals, a 1% increase to COLA for a total of 5.07%, increase 
to school meals, and sadly no money for proposed pension buy‐outs.  
Michael reiterated that the May Revision will be released on Friday. 

6.1.2 Superintendents Council – April Meeting 
Michael West reported that he met with the district Superintendents in 
April and discussed detailing safe school operation, entry, and 
maintenance.  He said that the hardest challenge is summer school and 
that all Superintendents want to be back to face to face instruction in the 
fall. 

6.2 Administrative Services – Aaron Heinz 
Aaron Heinz reported on the School Lunch Hero Day and Food Services’ 
Administrative Review that had no findings.  He introduced CCOE’s Food Service 
Supervisor Angela Plachek‐Fulcher and publicly thanked her.  Angela spoke 
admiringly of her team and her Administrative Services support system. 

6.3 Children’s Services – Vicki Markss 
Vicki Markss added to her May 2021 Children’s Services written report, speaking 
about the State Review that went smoothly and had a few recommendations to 
revise, but nothing was out of compliance. 

6.4 Educational Services – Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza added to her May 2021 Educational Services written 
report by highlighting Educational Services’ Migrant Resource Fair for McKinney 
Vento students at the Migrant Camp.  She said that 25 organizations, including 
several CCOE programs and many local and county agencies, participated in the 
event by either hosting a booth or providing donations.  Discussion was held on 
the McKinney Vento Act regarding training the districts so that they may receive 
these funds.  Maria explained that the grant is written by the COE, and districts 
are welcome to apply for the funds.  She said that each district has an MVA 
liaison whose goal is to build capacity and to whom CCOE sends information 
once a month, and then liaisons are responsible for pushing out the information 
to their districts.  Maria reported that she submitted a proposal to Colusa County 
Behavioral Health to request additional funds for the Second Step program, 
which will, among other things, enhance services to preschools.  Michael West 
said he met with Noel O’Neill, the Interim Director of Behavioral Health and that 
Mr. O’Neill is supportive of the proposal and Michael believes the County will 
sign a revised MOU. 

   



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 12, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 4 

6.5 Special Education & SELPA – Chuck Wayman 
In his presentation of the May 2021 Special Education report, Chuck Wayman 
provided an overview of the SELPA including the number of employees, locations 
served, number of students and students with disabilities countywide, the 
number of Special Education students served per district, the SELPA budget, the 
formula for billing the districts for Special Education services, an analysis by 
district of savings to their budgets by participating in the SELPA, and an a 
comparison of Colusa County’s districts savings to Glenn County’s districts under 
their SELPA bill back process.  Chuck answered the Board’s questions regarding 
ages of students (birth to adult), and he described the process of identifying 
students who may have a disability.  Discussion was held on whether the State 
has any surplus revenue earmarked for Special Education, and Michael West said 
that it is a dynamic process right now.  Chuck added that advocation efforts are 
underway to have the State match the COLA, but currently everything is 
underfunded.  Discussion was also held on assessments and interventions. 

6.5.1 SELPA ‐ April Meeting 
Chuck Wayman reported that the SELPA had an increase in budget, and it 
passed.  Discussion was held on the hope for additional funding for 
Special Education.  Discussion was held on poor academic performance 
during distance learning not being considered a disability, and if it was, 
then the system would be overwhelmed. 

6.6 Technology Services – Alex Evans 
The Board did not have any questions or comments about Alex Evans’ May 2021 
Technology Services written report.  Alex added that he and Jennifer Jelavich 
participated in a radio interview on Marysville’s 93Q, during which he 
highlighted CCOE programs. 

7.0 BOARD QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
No questions or comments. 

7.1 Board President’s Report 
No report. 

8.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board member for separate 
discussion or action.  Ed Conrado/Moved, Barry Morrell/Seconded, and the motion 
carried four ayes (Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell), one abstain 
(Jason McMullan) to approve the following Consent Agenda items: 

8.1 Approve Minutes of the April 14, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 
8.2 Approve Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators 

9.0 PUBLIC INPUT – Items on the agenda 
No public input. 



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 12, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 5 

10.0 OLD BUSINESS 
10.1 Community College District Territory (standing item) 

Michael West reported on his meeting with acting YCCD Chancellor, and current 
WCC President, Dr. Art Pimentel about future program expansions and course 
offerings at WCC. 

10.2 Facilities Update (standing item) 
No update. 

10.3 LCAP Update (standing item) 
Maria Arvizu Espinoza reported that she has been working with district 
superintendents to provide support and review and input on writing their LCAPs. 

10.4 Innovative Approaches to Literacy Grant (standing item) 
Digital Literacy Specialist Alyssa Maas reported that CCOE celebrated its fifth 
year of using F2B.  She reported on F2B data from May 2016 to May 2021 that 
indicated a great amount of literacy learning opportunities and on 2020‐21 data 
that indicated 76 to 84% proficiency rates in language, reading comprehension, 
logic and reasoning, and phonics and phonological awareness.  She also reported 
on bicultural book giveaways at the Family Fair and Migrant Resource Fair, on an 
upcoming early literacy certification training for daycare providers and partner 
organizations, and on the Hand in Hand Partnership that included teacher and 
parent online trainings, and iPad distribution to children that, once completed, 
will bring the F2B iPads currently in circulation to 519 county‐wide.  Alissa also 
spoke about preliminary results of the first round of the book sharing program 
for birth through third grade surveys that indicated 88% of families have 
children’s books in their home, 94% of parents read with their children at home, 
40% of families have a library card, and 33% of families visit the library at least 
once a month.  Alissa spoke about efforts currently underway to combat the low 
library card and usage percentage. 

11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
11.1 Approve Children’s Services Inventory for Disposal 

Alex Evans reported on items that will be sent to e‐waste. 
 
Barry Morrell/Moved, Ed Conrado/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve Children’s Services Inventory for Disposal. 

11.2 Approve the Expanded Learning Opportunity Grant Plan 
Maria Arvizu‐Espinoza reported that the goal of seeking the Expanded Learning 
Opportunity (ELO) Grant to receive $142,000 in funding to provide supplemental 
instruction and support to students who are identified as needing academic, 
social‐emotional, and other supports, including the provision of summer school.  
Lorilee Niesen reported on an upcoming ten‐day summer school academy, which 
will be a hands on, project‐based program for SWAA students that will begin on 



Colusa County Board of Education 
May 12, 2021, Regular Meeting 
Page 6 

the Monday after the last day of school.  She said that monies will also be used 
to fund instructional assistant support (paraeducator), a library for readers, 
additional counselor time (currently two hours per week), to offer additional 
opportunities for the Farm to School program, and additional MTSS.  Aaron 
Heinz thanked Maria and Lorilee for their work and development of the plan. 
 
Ed Conrado/Moved, Brenda Miller/Seconded, and the motion carried five ayes 
(Ed Conrado, Cristy Edwards, Jason McMullan, Brenda Miller, Barry Morrell) to 
approve the Expanded Learning Opportunity Grant Plan. 

 
Following agenda item 11.3, the group circled back to agenda item 6.1.1, Superintendent’s 
Monthly Report 
 
ADVANCED PLANNING 

11.3 Items to be Considered for the Next Board Meeting 
No items added. 

11.4 Next Public Hearing 
LCAP and Budget 
June 8, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

11.5 Next Regular Board Meeting 
LCAP and Budget Approval 
June 9, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
345 5th Street, Colusa, Large Conference Room and via Zoom 

12.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 5:07 p.m. 

Adopted and Entered    Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
         
Cristy Edwards, President    Michael P. West, County Superintendent 
Colusa County Board of Education    and Secretary, Colusa County Board of Education



  Attachment A 

ACRONYMS 
 

CalOSHA  California Occupational Safety and Health Act 

CalPERS  California Public Employees Retirement System ‐ Also known as PERS 

CalSTRS  California State Teachers Retirement System 

CBA  Coastal Buttes Academy 

CCOE  Colusa County Office of Education 

CCSESA  California County Superintendents Educational Services Association 

COE  County Office of Education 

COLA  Cost of Living Adjustment 

COVID 19  Corona Virus 2019 

CTC  California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (also known as CCTC) 

F2B  Footsteps to Brilliance 

LCAP  Local Control and Accountability Plan 

LCFF  Local Control Funding Formula 

MOU  Memorandum of Understanding 

MTSS  Multi‐Tiered System of Supports 

MVA  McKinney‐Vento Act 

SBE  California State Board of Education 

SEL  Social and Emotional Learning 

SELPA  Special Education Local Plan Area 

SSC  School Services of California, Inc. 

SSDA  Small School Districts' Association 

SWAA  S. William Abel Academy 

WCC  Woodland Community College 

YCCD  Yuba Community College District 

 



  

Colusa County Office of Education  

S. William Abel Academy 

Local Performance Priorities  

 

The State Board of Education (SBE) approved standards for the local indicators that support a local 

educational agency (LEA) in measuring and reporting progress within the appropriate priority area. 

The approved performance standards require a LEA to: 

• Annually measure its progress in meeting the requirements of the specific LCFF priority. 

• Report the results as part of a non-consent item at a regularly scheduled public meeting of 

the local governing board/body in conjunction with the adoption of the LCAP. 

• Report results to the public through the Dashboard utilizing the SBE-adopted self-

reflection tools for each local indicator. 

   
Priority 1:  Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-Aligned Instructional 

Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities  

• The LEA annually measures its progress in meeting the Williams 

settlement requirements at 100% at all of its school sites, as applicable, 

and promptly addresses any complaints or other deficiencies identified 

throughout the academic year, as applicable; the LEA then reports the 

results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting 

and to reports to stakeholders and the public through the Dashboard. 

 

Priority 2:   Implementation of State Academic Standards  

• The LEA annually measures its progress implementing state academic 

standards; the LEA then reports the results to its local governing board 

at a regularly scheduled meeting and reports to stakeholders and the 

public through the Dashboard. 

 

Priority 3:  Parent and Family Engagement  

• The LEA annually measures its progress in: (1) seeking input from 

parents in decision making and (2) promoting parental participation in 

programs; the LEA then reports the results to its local governing board 

at a regularly scheduled meeting and reports to stakeholders and the 

public through the Dashboard. 

 

Priority 6:   School Climate  

• The LEA administers a local climate survey at least every other year 

that provides a valid measure of perceptions of school safety and 

connectedness, such as the California Healthy Kids Survey, to students 

in at least one grade within the grade span(s) that the LEA serves (e.g., 

K-5, 6-8, 9-12), and reports the results to its local governing board at a 

regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing board and to 

stakeholders and the public through the Dashboard. 

 

Priority 7:  Access to a Broad Course of Study  



• The LEA annually measures its progress in the extent to which students 

have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study that 

includes the adopted courses of study specified in the California 

Education Code (EC) for Grades 1-6 and Grades 7-12, as applicable, 

including the programs and services developed and provided to 

unduplicated students and individuals with exceptional needs; the LEA 

then reports the results to its local governing board at a regularly 

scheduled meeting and reports to stakeholders and the public through 

the Dashboard. 

 

Priority 9:   Coordination of Services for Expelled Students  

• The county office of education (COE) annually measures its progress in 

coordinating instruction as required by California EC Section 48926; 

the COE then reports the results to its local governing board at a 

regularly scheduled meeting and reports to stakeholders and the public 

through the Dashboard. 

 

Priority 10:  Coordination of Services for Foster Youth 

• The COE annually measures its progress in coordinating services for 

foster youth; the COE then reports the results to its local governing 

board at a regularly scheduled meeting and reports to stakeholders and 

the public through the Dashboard. 

 

 

 

Below are the results of the S. William Abel Academy self-assessment. Please note that this 

assessment is inclusive solely of our alternative education program and does not include other 

departments such as Children Services or SELPA since they do not fall under the purview of the 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP).  

  
  

Priority 1 – Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-Aligned Instructional 

Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities 

  

Assessment:  

Number/percentage of misassignments of teacher of English learners, total teacher misassignments, 

and vacant teacher positions: 0  

  

Number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned 

instructional materials for use at school and at home:  0  

  

Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard (including 

deficiencies and extreme deficiencies):  1 

• Rating: Fair 

• When raining, some classrooms overhead roll-up doors pose hazard from outside eyebrow 

overhangs, top and below door thresholds and weather seals. Two back windows leaks. New 

interior and exterior LED lighting has been installed.  

 



The Human Resources department analyzes teachers’ misassignments. Standards aligned materials 

are evaluated as part of the Williams visit and presented to the Board of Trustees. Facilities 

Inspection Tool (FIT) deficiencies are also calculated at that time as part of the Williams visit.  

 

    

Priority 2- Implementation of State Academic Standards  

  

Assessment: 1. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing professional learning for teaching to the 

recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below. 

Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 1 – Exploration and Research Phase; 2 – Beginning Development; 

3 – Initial Implementation; 4 – Full Implementation; 5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability  

1. Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks  

  

Content area  1  2  3  4  5  

English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English 

Language Arts   

   

x 

     

English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts 

Standards)   

   X    

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics      X    

Next Generation Science Standards     X     

History-Social Science       x   

  

2. Rate the local educational agency's progress in making instructional materials that are 

aligned to the recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified 

below available in all classrooms where the subject is taught.  

  

Content area  1  2  3  4  5  

English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English 

Language Arts   

     x  

English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts 

Standards)   

      

X 

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics     X     

Next Generation Science Standards     X     

History-Social Science        x  

  

 

3. Rate the local educational agency's progress in implementing policies or programs to 

support staff in identifying areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to 

the recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below 

(e.g., collaborative time, focused classroom walkthroughs, teacher pairing)  

  

Content area  1  2  3  4  5  

English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English 

Language Arts   

   X     

English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts 

Standards)   

   X     

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics       x    



Next Generation Science Standards        

X 

  

History-Social Science     x      

  

Other Adopted Academic Standards  

4. Rate the local educational agency's progress implementing each of the following academic 

standards adopted by the State Board of Education for all students.  

  

Content area  1  2  3  4  5  

Career Technical Education     X    

Health Education Content Standards    X     

Physical Education Model Content Standards   X      

Visual and Performing Arts       x  

World Language   x      

  

Support for Teachers and Administrators   

5.  Rate the LEA’s success at engaging in the following activities with teachers and school 

administrators during the prior school year (including the summer preceding the prior school 

year). 

  

Activities  1  2  3  4  5  

Identifying the professional learning needs of groups of teachers or staff 

as a whole   

  x        

Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers      x      

Providing support for teachers on the standards they have not yet 

mastered   

    

x 

    

 

 

Priority 3- Parent and Family Engagement  

  

Building Relationships  

   

Building Relationships 1 2 3 4 5 

1. Rate the LEA’s progress in 

developing the capacity of 

staff (i.e., administrators, 

teachers, and classified 

staff) to build trusting and 

respectful relationships 

with families. 

    x 

2. Rate the LEA’s progress in 

creating welcoming 

environments for all 

families in the community.  

   x  



Building Relationships 1 2 3 4 5 

3. Rate the LEA’s progress in 

supporting staff to learn 

about each family’s 

strengths, cultures, 

languages, and goals for 

their children. 

  x   

4. Rate the LEA’s progress 

in developing multiple 

opportunities for the 

LEA and school sites to 

engage in 2-way 

communication between 

families and educators 

using language that is 

understandable and 

accessible to families. 

    x 

 

Briefly describe the LEA’s current strengths and progress in this area, and identify a focus area 

for improvement, including how the LEA will improve the engagement of underrepresented 

families. 

 

Building trusting relationships with students, staff and families is the focus of the S. William Abel 

Academy. Not only is this a question posed during every teacher interview, it has been discussed as 

the most essential job duty for all staff. Building relationships begins with an intake meeting for all 

students enrolling to discuss the student handbook, the culture of the school, any questions regarding 

enrollment and an opportunity to meet the staff and students. Staff works to build trust by conducting 

Individual Learning Plan (ILP) meetings with students and parents every six weeks to discuss student 

progress, changes needed and recommendations for school improvement.  Counselors, probation 

officers, Special Education staff are all included in the progress and concerns of all students. Monthly 

Educational Services staff meetings allows staff to be informed about school events and student 

supports needed.  All staff are given “PRIDE” tickets to issue to students displaying character traits 

defined in the Positive Behavior support system. Phone calls are made home by the teacher, 

administrator, and support staff to communicate student progress and attendance.  Bilingual staff are 

available to provide valuable communication to all parents.  All communications are sent home to 

parents in English and Spanish. All parents/guardians and stakeholders are invited to attend LCAP 

Stakeholder Meetings and when unable to make the meeting, follow up questions are posed to 

include their thoughts in school improvement. Staff have an open-door policy which allows parents 

or stakeholders to address concerns at any time.  

A focus area for improvement is to create parent engagement opportunities. Collaboration with 

Prevention Services Staff to host parent activities will allow deeper relationships to be built with 

families. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes 

 

Building Partnerships 1 2 3 4 5 

5. Rate the LEA’s progress in 

providing professional 

learning and support to 

teachers and principals to 

improve a school’s 

capacity to partner with 

families. 

  x   

6. Rate the LEA’s progress in 

providing families with 

information and resources 

to support student learning 

and development in the 

home. 

 x    

7. Rate the LEA’s progress in 

implementing policies or 

programs for teachers to 

meet with families and 

students to discuss student 

progress and ways to work 

together to support 

improved student 

outcomes. 

   x  

8. Rate the LEA’s progress 

in supporting families to 

understand and exercise 

their legal rights and 

advocate for their own 

students and all students. 

  x   

 

 

Briefly describe the LEA’s current strengths and progress in this area, and identify a focus area 

for improvement, including how the LEA will improve the engagement of underrepresented 

families. 

 

Teachers and principals have been provided support to increase capacity by participating in the 

Professional Learning Network (PLN) for the tri-county region.  The PLN offers staff an 

opportunity to collaborate with others in similar capacities to discuss student outcomes, family 

engagement, and other important topics. Building capacity while building trust with families is 

also essential work.   Staff works to support student outcomes by conducting ILP meetings and 

parent-teacher conferences at the end of each grading period. The counselor provides and discusses 

graduation status reports with each student and provides social emotional counseling as well. The 

teacher provides weekly updates of credits earned and progress toward graduation.  Open 

communication between staff and parents is ongoing to keep parents informed of student progress.   

Parents and families advocating for their students is encouraged and appreciated at SWACS. Staff 

provides families information regarding legal rights and resources available to them and their child. 

 



A focus area for improvement in building partnerships is to create more opportunities for parent 

education.  While we do have an “open-door” policy to assist parents requesting help, we have 

other families that are unable to participate in meetings due to a variety of reasons.  Offering 

engaging parent education activities in the future may be a way to involve all families in improving 

student outcomes. 

 

Seeking Input for Decision Making 

 

Seeking Input 1 2 3 4 5 

9. Rate the LEA’s progress in 

building the capacity of 

and supporting principals 

and staff to effectively 

engage families in advisory 

groups and with decision-

making. 

 x    

10. Rate the LEA’s progress in 

building the capacity of 

and supporting family 

members to effectively 

engage in advisory groups 

and decision-making. 

 x    

11. Rate the LEA’s progress in 

providing all families with 

opportunities to provide 

input on policies and 

programs and 

implementing strategies to 

reach and seek input from 

any underrepresented 

groups in the school 

community. 

   x  

12. Rate the LEA’s progress 

in providing 

opportunities to have 

families, teachers, 

principals, and district 

administrators work 

together to plan, design, 

implement and evaluate 

family engagement 

activities at school and 

district levels. 

x     

 

 

 

 



Briefly describe the LEA’s current strengths and progress in this area, and identify a focus area 

for improvement, including how the LEA will improve the engagement of underrepresented 

families. 

 

Seeking input for decision-making has not remained consistent due to the teacher turnover rate at 

SWAA. Even though ideas are generated on ways to seek input from families, the inconsistency 

of staff in the teacher position poses a problem. Surveys are provided to parents, students, and 

other stakeholders to provide feedback for continuous improvement. Even though LCAP 

stakeholder meetings to gather feedback regarding programs and policies are held, the participation 

rate at these meetings have been minimal.   

Collaboration with Prevention Services Staff to encourage parents and families to attend activities 

has become a major priority.  With flyers, phone calls home, and consistent communication, we 

hope to gain traction in this area. Regardless of numbers in attendance, we will not stop pursuing 

parental engagement until all families of our students are represented.   

 

 

Priority 6 - School Climate 

 

Data from the California Healthy Kids Survey has not been made available.  Due to the small 

percentage (14%) of parents participating in the survey, other methods were used to determine the 

areas of strength and growth of the school.  Since the focus of 2020-21 was to re-open schools 

safely, surveys focused on instruction models and ways to improve current programs. 

May 2020 surveys indicated that 100% of parents and students believed the school’s transition to 

Distance Learning was effective. May 2021 surveys revealed that 86% of parents wanted the school 

to return to “in-person” instruction.   

Continuous improvement areas included in student and parent surveys include the need for Work 

Based learning opportunities, an increase in Career Technical Education courses and stability of 

the SWAA teacher. 

 

Priority 7 - Access to a Broad Course of Study 

 

1. Briefly identify the locally selected measures or tools that the LEA is using to track the 

extent to which all students have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study, based 

on grade spans, unduplicated student groups, and individuals with exceptional needs served.  

 

Students at the S. William Abel Academy have access to a rigorous and broad course of study.  

Upon an intake meeting, all students are provided academic counseling including graduation 

requirements and courses needed to meet those requirements.  With the support from teachers, the 

counselor, administration and parents, students then develop an Individualized learning plan to 

determine the path to accomplish their objectives.  Students have access to Edmentum, which 

provides online UC-CSU, common core approved courseware to complete course requirements; a 

broad spectrum of Introductory CTE courses to meet CTE requirements, and access to the 

community college that is adjacent to the community school for dual enrollment opportunities.  

Edmentum provides the teacher and administration current progress of students and support 

systems in Exact Path ensure student success.  SWAA is WASC accredited so providing all 

students a broad course of study is essential in meeting accreditation criteria.  

 

 

 



2. Using the locally selected measures or tools, summarize the extent to which all students 

have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study. The summary should identify any 

differences across school sites and student groups in access to, and enrollment in, a broad course 

of study, and may describe progress over time in the extent to which all students have access to, 

and are enrolled in, a broad course of study.  

 

All students at SWAA have access to a broad course of study.  Since the school population is quite 

small, students are fortunate to be able to work on different courses and courseware to meet their 

academic needs. The teacher assists when needed as student’s progress at their own pace. The 

Individualized learning plan helps provide direction for students and communication to parents 

regarding their student’s academic trajectory. CTE curriculum is available to provide more career 

exploration opportunities for students.  All high school students are offered enrollment in the 

Woodland Community College, Colusa County Campus which is located next door to the school. 

 

3. Given the results of the tool or locally selected measures, identify the barriers preventing 

the LEA from providing access to a broad course of study for all students.  

 

The S. William Abel Academy has limited financial resources. SWAA only employs one full-time 

teacher, one part-time Fine Arts teacher, and a part-time Farm to School Project Coordinator to 

serve its student population.  Since much of the student population is transient, establishing career 

pathways has been a struggle. The school is not able to offer world languages, therefore limiting 

the ability of students to transition to a four-year state university. While Edmentum provides access 

to a plethora of core classes, providing multiple elective opportunities to a wide array of grade 

levels is also challenging. 

 

4. In response to the results of the tool or locally selected measures, what revisions, 

decisions, or new actions will the LEA implement, or has the LEA implemented, to ensure access 

to a broad course of study for all students?  

 

SWAA’s need to update curriculum to meet state standards and frameworks will help provide 

access for all students to a broad course of study. In addition, the expansion of CTE programs will 

give students more opportunity to build skills. Guiding students in establishing their course of 

study and a road map to matriculate to college is a priority.  Providing educational field trips to 

colleges and trade schools will also provide experiences that give access to students. 

 

 

Priority 9 - Coordination of Services for Expelled Students 

  

Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 1 – Exploration and Research Phase; 2 – Beginning Development; 3  

– Initial Implementation; 4 – Full Implementation; 5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability  

Coordinating Instruction  1  2  3  4  5  

1. Assessing status of triennial plan for providing educational 

services to all expelled students in the county, including: Review of 

required data.  

          

1a. Review of required outcome data. x     



1.b. Identifying existing educational alternatives for expelled 

pupils, gaps in educational services to expelled pupils, and 

strategies for filling those service gaps. 

      x    

1.c. Identifying alternative placements for pupils who are expelled 

and placed in district community day school programs, but who fail 

to meet the terms and conditions of their rehabilitation plan or who 

pose a danger to other district pupils. 

      x    

 

2.  Coordinating on development and implementation of triennial 

plan with all local educational agencies within the county.  
        x 

3.  Establishing ongoing collaboration and policy development for 

transparent referral process for local educational agencies within the 

county to the county office of education or other program options, 

including dissemination to all local educational agencies within the 

county a menu of available continuum of services for expelled 

students.  

        x  

4.  Developing memorandum of understanding regarding the 

coordination of partial credit policies between district of residence 

and county office of education.  

    x      

  



 

  

Priority 10 – Coordination of Services for Foster Youth 

  

Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 1 – Exploration and Research Phase; 2 – Beginning Development; 3  

– Initial Implementation; 4 – Full Implementation; 5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability  

Coordinating Services   1  2  3  4  5  

1. Establishing ongoing collaboration and supporting policy 

development, including establishing formalized information 

sharing agreements with child welfare, probation, Local 

Education Agency (LEAs), the courts, and other 

organizations to support determining the proper educational 

placement of foster youth (e.g., school of origin versus 

current residence, comprehensive versus alternative school, 

and regular versus special education). 

    
 

x 
    

2. Building capacity with LEA, probation, child welfare, and 

other organizations for purposes of implementing school 

based support infrastructure for foster youth intended to 

improve educational outcomes (e.g., provide regular 

professional development with the Foster Youth Liaisons to 

facilitate adequate transportation services for foster youth).  

      x    

3. Providing information and assistance to LEAs regarding the 

educational needs of   foster youth in order to improve 

educational outcomes.  

        x  

4. Providing direct educational services for foster youth in LEA 

or county-operated programs provided the school district 

has certified that specified services cannot be provided or 

funded using other sources, including, but not limited to, 

Local Control Funding Formula, federal, state or local 

funding.  

x          

5. Establishing ongoing collaboration and supporting 

development of policies and procedures that facilitate 

expeditious transfer of records, transcripts, and other 

relevant educational information. 

        x  

6. Facilitating the coordination of post-secondary opportunities 

for youth by engaging with systems partners, including, but 

not limited to, child welfare transition planning and 

independent living services, community colleges or 

universities, career technical education, and workforce 

development providers. 

  x   

7. Developing strategies to prioritize the needs of foster youth 

in the community, using community-wide assessments that 

consider age group, geographical area, and identification of 

highest needs students based on academic needs and 

placement type. 

    x 



8. Engaging in the process of reviewing plan deliverables and of 

collecting and analyzing LEA and COE level outcome data 

for purposes of evaluating effectiveness of support services 

for foster youth and whether the investment in services 

contributes to improved educational outcomes for foster 

youth. 

  x   

 

 

 



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCTION 
 

Michael P. West 

Superintendent of Schools 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SYSTEM OF SUPPORT PLAN 

2021-2022 

 
 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

Summary            3 

 

Structure            3 

 

System of Support Purpose         4 

 

Definition of Terms             5 – 6 

 

Goal 1            7 

 

Goal 2                8 – 9 

 

Goal 3            9 

 

Collaboration                     10 – 11 

 

Fiscal Resources                                      11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

 

SUMMARY 

The Colusa County Office of Education Superintendent of Schools will support districts and schools within 

Colusa County implementing Local Control Accountability Plans (LCAP). The Superintendent leads the System 

of Support Team. 

 

 

 

 

 

STRUCTURE 

The Colusa County Office of Education System of Support Team includes representative members from: 

• Administrative Services 

• Educational Services 

• Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 
 

 

SYSTEM OF SUPPORT PURPOSE 

The purpose of this support is to help local educational agencies (LEAs) and their schools meet the needs of each 

student they serve, with a focus on building local capacity to sustain improvement and effectively address 

disparities in opportunities and outcomes including: 

 

Reopening of School Guidance 

• Providing tools and resources to support returning to schools 

 

Distance Learning 

• Providing distance learning technical assistance for the LEAs that will implement a hybrid program 

• Identifying and sharing best practices 

 

Accountability 

• Providing LCAP guides, resources, professional development, and technical assistance 

• Providing LCAP feedback and support through approval process 

• Providing training and support for revised LCAP Template and revised LCAP Federal Addendum 

• Providing support and advisement related to state and federal program requirements 

• Providing Comprehensive Support and Improvement plan feedback and support 

• Providing Special Education support for required CDE monitoring. 

• Providing Williams monitoring and support 

 

Professional Development, Services, and Supports 

• Facilitating Attendance Supervisor Training and Certification, technical assistance, and attendance systems 

support 

• Facilitating Homeless/Foster Youth Services Network and support 

• Facilitating school climate training 

• Providing mental health support professional learning including suicide prevention training and social 

emotional learning  

• Embedding continuous improvement process and activities into countywide learning networks 

 

Supports for LEAs Identified for Technical Assistance 

• Providing continuous improvement process coaching and facilitation 

• Facilitating local and state data analysis 

• Facilitating self-assessment 

• Providing progress monitoring and follow up support 

• Providing parent education trainings 

• Providing support for required Special Education reviews 

• Building district capacity for continuous improvement through ongoing coaching and professional 

development 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



5 
 

DEFINITION OF TERMS 

 
Aim Statement: Explicit description of desired outcomes written to be measurable and time specific. 

 

California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE): State agency created under Local Control 

Funding Formula (LCFF) that offers support to county offices of education, school districts, and charter schools 

with support in the improvement and implementation of LCFF. 

 

California Dashboard: Contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a 

set of state and local measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement.  

 

Continuous Improvement: Identified in statute as the framework for improving outcomes for California students 

through the LCAP and used to describe an ongoing effort over time that leads to improvement of student outcomes. 

Distinguishing features include: 

• Taking a systems perspective 

• Being process-oriented 

• Understanding problems and their root causes 

 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI):  The Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) requires state 

educational agencies to determine school eligibility for comprehensive support and improvement. These are 

schools that have been determined by the State of California to be eligible for additional support and 

assistance due to challenges in academic achievement and other key areas of growth . 

 

Differentiated Assistance (DA): Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) are eligible for Differentiated Assistance 

if: 

• The County Superintendent does not approve an LCAP 

• The governing board of the LEA requests technical assistance 

• The LEA fails to improve pupil achievement across more than one state priority for one or more student 

groups 

 

Distance Learning (DL): Instruction in which the student and instructor are in different locations. This 

may include interacting using technology and/or print materials.  

 

Fishbone Diagram: Also called a cause and effect diagram, is a visualization tool for categorizing the 

potential causes of a problem to identify its root causes. 

 

Improvement Science: Systematic process explicitly designed to improve teaching and learning through a 

problem-centered approach. 

 

Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP): The LCAP is a three-year plan that describes the goals, 

actions, services, and expenditures to support positive student outcomes that address state and local 

priorities. 

 

LEA Self-Assessment: Tool for District Leadership Teams to examine the status of systemic practices that 

have been consistently demonstrated through research to be the components of effective district systems. 

 

North Central Counties Professional Learning Networks (NCCPLN): Support networks that are based 

on the concept of Professional Learning Communities and are intended to build capacity and support deeper 

learning in interpreting, using, and understanding the Dashboard and the LCAP as tools for continuous 



6 
 

improvement. Members of the Colusa, Yolo, and Yuba COEs PLN include district and county leaders in 

charge of the development and implementation of LCAPs. 

 

Plan-Do-Study-Act Cycle (PDSA):  Tool to incorporate Improvement Science, Continuous Improvement, 

Root Cause Analysis, and other methodologies to determine the effectiveness in creating change. 

 

Problem of Practice: An area of focus that a school or school district identifies as an area of focus for 

improvement. 

 

Root Cause Analysis: A process for understanding the root causes of the current problem and may assist 

in understanding the system and user perspectives. 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA): A plan that represents a school’s cycle of continuous 

improvement of student performance. 

 

The following plan to support districts in implementing Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan and Local Control 

Accountability Plan adhered to provisions/requirements of  Ed Code 52066. 
 

 

 

 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&amp;sectionNum=52066


7 
 

Goal 1:  Complete the review of LCAPs submitted by school districts per Education Code (EC) 52070. 

COMPONENT OBJECTIVE METRIC ACTION 

Learning Control and Accountability 

Plan (LCAP) Support 

Completing the review of LCAPs 

submitted by school districts [Ed Code 

52070] 

 

Provide ongoing informational 

updates and training to 

superintendents and other 

school/district leaders related to 

LCAPs, State Priorities, and 

student groups. 

 

 

1. LCAP Approval Timeline 

2. LCAP Technical Manual 

A.  Provide districts with an LCAP 
approval timeline that allows for all 
statutory required activities including 
a robust stakeholder engagement 

process. 

B.  Host technical assistance training   

      that support LCAP development  

      including: 

• NCCPLN Trainings 

• District Team Meetings 

• Other supports by request 

 Implement a robust LCAP review 

process that emphasizes early 

review and support of district 

LCAPs.   

1. District LCAP Timelines 

2. LCAP Approval Timeline 

 

A. Align district and CCOE calendars by 

requesting and receiving district LCAP 

development timelines. 

B. Meet with districts by March 5th to 

schedule review activities including 

formal and informal review process. 

C. Districts are able to provide CCOE 

with an LCAP with enough time for 

CCOE to perform a full pre-review 

including checks for technical 

compliance and other qualitative 

check. 

D. CCOE will provide feedback to 

districts with enough time to make 

revisions (if necessary). 

E. CCOE will perform a preliminary 

fiscal and program review to check for 

major errors within two weeks of 

LCAP adoption by districts. 

F. CCOE will complete a full review of 

board adopted LCAPs by the statutory 

deadline of September 15th. 

 

 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52070.&amp;lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52070.&amp;lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52070.&amp;lawCode=EDC


8 
 

Goal 2:  Provide technical assistance to districts based on need by utilizing the cycle of continuous improvement.  Technical assistance is 

provided to districts who are identified for Differentiated Assistance that focus on the academic, behavioral, and social-emotional well-

being of students as well as LEAs that volunteer for assistance. 

 
COMPONENT OBJECTIVE METRIC ACTION 

Technical Assistance 

Providing technical assistance to school 

districts pursuant to subdivisions (a) 

and (b) of Ed Code 52071. 

Provide support to district leaders 

in reviewing current year 

Dashboard data  

1. California School Dashboard 
 

2. District LCAP Documents 
 

3. CA Dashboard Technical Guide 

Districts will be able to complete the 
Greatest Progress, Greatest Needs, and 
Performance Gaps sections of LCAPs as 
it aligns with Dashboard data. 

 Support LEAs with identifying a 

problem of practice and 

completing a root cause analysis 

1. Completion of root cause  
     analysis tools 

2. Alignment of LCAP goals to 
root cause analysis 

3. Completion of the 
identification of a problem of 
practice 

 

A. Work with districts to identify causes  
using the Improvement Science tools  

      (i.e., Fishbone Diagram, Aim   
     Statement, Root Cause Analysis,  

     PDSA Cycle, etc.) 
B. Introduce the Continuous  
     Improvement Cycle to determine root  
     causes. 
C. Work with district to draft LCAP    

goals that align to root causes 

 Support LEAs with local and state 

data analysis and identification of 

gaps, strengths, and weaknesses 

1. Review of the Greatest 
Progress, Greatest Needs, and 
Performance Gaps sections of 
LCAP 

 
2. District progress on the CA 

Dashboard 
 

3. 3. LEA self-assessment results 

A. Work with district leaders to review  

      the current year Dashboard data to   

     determine greatest progress, greatest  

     needs, and performance gaps. 

B. Review and analyze state and local 

     data 

C. Provide professional development 

    on CA Dashboard Analysis 

D.Provide LEAs with support on  

conducting the LEA self-assessment to 

identify systems level strengths and  

    weaknesses 

 Support LEAs with a synthesis of 

findings and action planning. 

1. Alignment of LCAP actions 
and services to identified 
problem of practice 

 

2. Alignment of Demonstration of 

Increased or Improved Services 

for Unduplicated Pupils to 

identified problem of practice 

A. Work with LEAs to identify aim  

     statements, and primary and   

     secondary drivers to address  

     identified root causes 
B. Provide LEAs with tools to identify  
     change ideas and create Actions 
     in their LCAP to address root causes  

C. Provide customized support in area(s) 

     that the district has identified as a  

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&amp;lawCode=EDC


9 
 

COMPONENT OBJECTIVE METRIC ACTION 

 

3. Alignment of School Plan for 

Student Achievement and other 

system plans to district LCAP  

 

     need, based on root cause analysis 

D. Provide district with evidence-based 

     practices to improve outcomes 

     

 

Goal 3:  Provide universal supports to all districts that focus on the academic, behavioral, and social-emotional well-being of students in 

implementing their LCAP. 

 

COMPONENT OBJECTIVE METRIC ACTION 

Providing any other support to school 

districts and schools within the county 

in implementing the provisions of  Ed 

Code 52071. 

NCCPLN will facilitate quarterly 

sessions aimed at providing 

technical and adaptive supports to 

districts in Colusa, Yolo, and 

Yuba counties. 

1. Attendance at NCCPLN 

Meetings 

 

2. Distance Learning 

 

3. Technology 

A. Districts will be supported in  
    developing equity-based strategies 
    that support increased student  
    achievement as evidenced by  
    achievement on academic   

    indicators on the California School   
    Dashboard. 
B. Provide opportunities for district to  
     share continuous improvement  
     practices and processes utilized in the  
     NCCPLN meetings 

C.Collaborate with other LEAs and  
COEs 

 Assist LEAs in implementing and 

monitoring impact of actions 

identified in their LCAP 

1. Review of District Annual 
Updates 

 
2. District progress on the CA 

Dashboard 
 

3. Attendance at professional 
learning events   

A. Review LEAs Annual Updates and   
     district progress on the CA Dashboard 

B. Provide individualized support to   
     LEAs t in district-identified areas.  
C. Provide professional learning  
     opportunities in targeted areas 
D. Assistance status guidance and how it  

aligns to the LCAP and SPSA 

 Monthly SEL CoP’s (Yolo, 

Yuba, Colusa, and Sutter) that 

focuses on enhancing the 

development and 

implementation of SEL across 

district campus sites 

Partnership with Yolo COE for 

SEL CoP facilitation 

Increased student outcomes as a result of 
students feeling a greater sense of 
belonging, connectedness, and 
engagement as evidenced by the 
outcomes on the California Healthy Kids 

Survey. 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&amp;lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&amp;lawCode=EDC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&amp;lawCode=EDC


10 
 

 

COLLABORATION 
 

The Colusa County Superintendent of Schools will collaborate with the CCEE, the California Department of Education (CDE) other county 

superintendents (CCSESA), Capital Central Foothill Area Consortium (CCFAC) to support LEAs and schools within the county implementing 

LCAPs in the following ways: 
 

Actions CCEE CDE CCSESA CCFAC State SELPA SEACO CAFSE 

Colusa County Superintendent of Schools participates in quarterly 

CCSESA meetings. 

X X X     

Assistant Superintendent-Educational Services meets bi-monthly 
with C&I leaders across the state at Curriculum and Instruction 
Steering Committee (CISC) meetings. 

X X X     

Assistant Superintendent-Educational Services co-leads a North 
Central Counties Professional Learning Network Consortium 
(NCCPLN), which includes districts and charter schools.  
Educational Services, business services, and SELPA participates in 
the NCCPLN.  

X       

Assistant Superintendent-Educational Services meets monthly with 

the Capital Central Foothills Area Consortium (CCFAC) the 

Geographic Lead Agency Group for the area. 

  X 

 

 

 

X    

Assistant Superintendent-Educational Services serves as an 

Advisory Member and meets monthly with the CCFAC Advisory 

Group. 

  X X    

Assistance Superintendent-Educational services participates in 

CCFAC workgroups for: UDL, EL, equity, and Small COEs. 

 

  X X    

Assistant Superintendent-Educational services meets bi-monthly 

with the Bilingual Coordinators Network group. 

 X      



11 
 

Actions CCEE CDE CCSESA CCFAC State SELPA SEACO CAFSE 

Assistant Superintendent-Educational services meets monthly with 

Capital Service Region 3 leaders. 

    X X     

Assistant Superintendent-Educational Services attends State and 

Federal Program Meetings. 

 X      

Assistant Superintendent-Educational Services attends Regional 

Expanded Learning Meetings. 

 X      

Associate Superintendent-Business attends BASC meetings.   X     

Assistant Superintendent-Special Education participates in monthly 

State SELPA meetings to gain further knowledge on Special 

Education timelines, budget, reviews, and new laws. 

 X   X   

Assistant Superintendent-Special Education attends SEACO 

meetings. 

     X  

Assistant Superintendent-Special Education participates in CAFSE 

monthly meetings about Special Education laws and funding. 

      X 

 

FISCAL RESOURCES 

Resource 2021-22 Estimated Costs 

Certificated Personnel (Salaries & Benefits) $182,415  

Classified Personnel (Salaries & Benefits) $20,960 

Materials Supplies $1,000 

Travel $200 

Professional/Consulting Services & Operational Expenses $5,000 

Total Estimated Funding $209,575 



12 
 

 

 



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Colusa County Office of Education

CDS Code: 06-10066

School Year: 2021 – 22

LEA contact information: Aaron Heinz, Associate Superintendent

School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students).

Budget Overview for the 2021 – 22 School Year

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Colusa County Office of Education expects to receive 
in the coming year from all sources.

The total revenue projected for Colusa County Office of Education is $14,296,497.00, of which 
$2,632,076.00 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $4,243,060.00 is other state funds, 
$5,347,109.00 is local funds, and $2,074,252.00 is federal funds. Of the $2,632,076.00 in LCFF Funds, 
$30,547.00 is generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, 
and low-income students).

LCFF supplemental & 
concentration grants, 

$30,547 , 0%

All Other LCFF funds, 
$2,601,529 , 18%

All other state funds, 
$4,243,060 , 30%

All local funds, 
$5,347,109 , 

37%

All federal funds, 
$2,074,252 , 15%

Total LCFF Funds , 
2632076, 18%

Projected Revenue by Source

 Page 1 of 3



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school 
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students.

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Colusa County Office of Education plans to spend for 
2021 – 22. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP.

Colusa County Office of Education plans to spend $14,205,580.00 for the 2021 – 22 school year. Of that 
amount, $242,723.00 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $13,962,857.00 is not included in the 
LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: 

This LCAP Expenditures represent 1.7% of total 2021-22 budgeted Expenditures.  Expenditures not 
included in the LCAP are Special Education for all school districts in Colusa County,  multiple Federal, 
State and Local Grants serving students throughout Colusa County and the Administrative Offices.

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2021 – 22 
School Year

In 2021 – 22, Colusa County Office of Education is projecting it will receive $30,547.00 based on the 
enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Colusa County Office of Education 
must describe how it intends to increase or improve services for high needs students in the LCAP. Colusa 
County Office of Education plans to spend $242,723.00 towards meeting this requirement, as described 
in the LCAP.

Total Budgeted 
General Fund 
Expenditures, 
$14,205,580 

Total Budgeted 
Expenditures in 

the LCAP
$242,723 

$ 0

$ 2,000,000

$ 4,000,000

$ 6,000,000

$ 8,000,000

$ 10,000,000

$ 12,000,000

$ 14,000,000

$ 16,000,000

Budgeted Expenditures in the LCAP

 Page 2 of 3



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2020 – 21

This chart compares what Colusa County Office of Education budgeted last year in the Learning 
Continuity Plan for actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs 
students with what  Colusa County Office of Education estimates it has spent on actions and services that 

contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students in the current year.

In 2020 – 21, Colusa County Office of Education's Learning Continuity Plan budgeted $10,092.00 for 
planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Colusa County Office of 
Education actually spent $10,592.00 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 
2020 – 21.

$10,592 

$10,092 

$ 0 $ 2,000 $ 4,000 $ 6,000 $ 8,000 $ 10,000 $ 12,000

Prior Year Expenditures: Increased or Improved Services for High 
Needs Students

Total Budgeted Expenditures for
High Needs Students in the
Learning Continuity Plan

Actual Expenditures for High
Needs Students in Learning
Continuity Plan

 Page 3 of 3



Page 1 of 35 
 

California Department of Education 
January 2021 

Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan 

Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 

Colusa County Office of Education Lorilee Niesen, Director of Educational Services 
lniesen@ccoe.net 
530-473-1350 x 10834 

The following is the local educational agency’s (LEA’s) analysis of its goals, measurable outcomes and actions and services from the 
2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP).  

Goal 1  

Provide a countywide structured positive instructional program in collaboration with county agencies that provides all students, including 
foster youth, English learners, economically disadvantaged, and expelled students, with academic support that promotes college and 
career readiness with academic and socio-emotional interventions to eliminate barriers for student success. 

State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: P1, P2, P3, P4, P5, P6, P7, P8, P9, P10 

 

mailto:lniesen@ccoe.net


Page 2 of 35 
 

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

1A. Properly Credentialed Teachers: Maintain CCOE will maintain 
fully credentialed teachers. 

 

2019-20 data shows the teacher to be fully credentialed.  There 
were no teacher misassignments this year. 

(Annual Williams Data reported in 2019-20 SARC) 

1B. Student access to standards based instructional materials:  
Maintain all students access to standards based instructional 
materials 

All students have access to standards based instructional 
materials. When COVID-19 occurred, all students were issued a 
chrome book and internet access immediately to ensure 
continuation of subject matter and access to curriculum. 

(Annual Williams Data reported in 2019-20 SARC ) 

1C. Facilities are properly maintained in “good or exemplary” 
repair (Annual FIT Report): Maintain all sites are in good repair  

 

October FIT Report revealed the Education Village ranked  Good 
in 5 out of 6 categories.  In the External Category-Windows, 
Doors, Gates &  Fences, CCOE’s Education Village ranked 
Poor.  The overall rating was 94.79% Good 

2A. State Board adopted academic content and performance 
standards fully Implemented: 100% of courses will be aligned and 
taught using the most recent state standards 

 

100% of  online courses are aligned to state standards. 
Curriculum was updated during the summer of 2019 for 
Independent Study courses to reference standards and ensure 
state standards were identified in each unit. 

Walkthrough data 

2B. How programs & services will enable ELs access to CCSS 
and ELD standards: Maintain 100% of curriculum aligned 
designated and integrated ELD in all subject areas. 

100% of curriculum is aligned to designated and integrated ELD 
in all subject areas. Teacher provided ELD supports. 

Walkthrough data  



Page 3 of 35 
 

3A, B, C: Facilitate parent involvement through multiple 
opportunities including parents of unduplicated pupils and 
individuals with exceptional needs: Maintain parent facilitation 
involvement through multiple opportunities. Parent/teacher 
conferences will take place twice a year. Parents will be 
encouraged to attend all committees. 

Parents will be encouraged to fill out surveys. 

Parent involvement opportunities were presented many times. 

Individualized Learning plan meetings and Parent Teacher 
Conferences  were held on 8/03/20; 9/14/20; 9/15/20; 9/20/20; 
12/15/20; 02/09/21; 5/18/21 

 Parents were provided field trip participation opportunities and 
LCAP meeting information prior to the activity occurring. Parent 
surveys were conducted regarding school scheduling,  meal 
programs, and the effects of COVID-19 on their families and their 
students.  

Parents were invited to attend the LCAP Stakeholder Meeting on 
February 25, 2021.  

Parents were invited to participate in the CHKS Survey:14% of 
parents completed the survey 

Parents were surveyed May 2020 and May 2021. 71.4% of 
parents completed the surveys. 

100% were pleased with the transition to the  school Distance 
Learning/Hybrid Program. 

Parent Contact:  86% prefer face-to-face meetings; 14% prefer 
Zoom 

Rating of Food Program: 43%   extremely effective, 43% very 
effective, 14% slightly effective 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 4 of 35 
 

Expected Actual 

 

 

4A. Statewide Assessments: Maintain continue administering 
statewide assessments to all qualified students. 

Executive order N-30-20 was issued in 2019-20 due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. This waived the requirements for statewide 
assessments. SWACS used Exact Path Diagnostic Testing in 
Reading, Language Arts and Mathematics to determine current 
student performance levels. 

4B. API N/A 

4C. Percentage of students meeting A-G courses: Continue to 
prepare students to qualify them to take A-G courses and expose 
them to choices. Provide an academic plan for all students that 
includes projected graduation. 

 

Even though academic plans are developed with each student 
and the opportunity to participate in A-G courses exist, S. William 
Abel Academy Students choose not to enroll is A-G courses.  
This is due to community school students  being credit deficient, 
the need for partial credits, or a student’s desire to return to their 
home district therefore making them transient in nature. 

4D. Increase English learner progress toward English proficiency: 
Establish baseline progress toward English proficiency as 
measured by ELPAC. 

ELPAC testing was suspended in 2019-20 due to the COVID-19 
pandemic and Executive order N-30-20. SWACS used Exact 
Path Diagnostic Testing in Reading, Language Arts and 
Mathematics to determine current student performance levels. 

4E. Percent of students reclassified to Fluent English Proficient: 
Continue to provide ELD instruction to English learners to 
strengthen English fluency. 

No students were reclassified in 2019-20 due to the COVID-19 
pandemic not allowing students to return to school in the Spring.  
SWACS normally conducts the ELPAC testing in the Spring, but 
was unable to administer this assessment due to students not 
being on campus. 

4F. The percent of students who pass AP exams: Continue to 
prepare students to qualify them to take A-G courses and expose 
them to choices. Provide an academic plan for all students that 
includes projected graduation. 

AP exams are available to students, but due to no students 
participating in AP courses,  the transiency rate of students, and 
the need to complete credits, no students took AP exams. 
Students at S. William Abel are focused on completing credits to 
either return to their home district or obtain a diploma from 
SWACS. 



Page 5 of 35 
 

Expected Actual 

4G. Percent of students participated & demonstrated college 
preparedness in Early Assessment Programs Continue to teach 
students essential reasoning and decision-making skills with the 
goal of higher order learning to provide choices:  
workforce/college: 

EAP programs were not offered due to the COVID-19 pandemic 
but skills in decision-making and essential reasoning were 
refined as students participated in monthly Student Stakeholder 
Meetings. All students were presented an opportunity to attend 
the adjacent Woodland Community College. 

5A. Maintain the school attendance rate above 75%: Attendance 
rate at 75% 

The S. William Abel Community School had an attendance rate 
of 85.3% during the 2019-2020 school year despite the 
pandemic that occurred in the Spring . Follow up phone calls 
regarding student attendance and absences were conducted 
daily by the Supervisor of Attendance which encouraged daily 
attendance by all students. 

5B. Decrease the chronic absenteeism rate by 3%: Decrease 
chronic absenteeism by 3%. 

56.52% of the students enrolled at the S. William Abel 
Community School were chronically absent during the 2019-
2020 school year. This when compared to the 2018-19 school 
year rate of 73.2% shows a significant decrease. 

5C. Middle school dropout rate: As middle students enroll, 
continue to monitor attendance. 

There was a zero percent dropout rate for middle school 
students. SWACS had two middle school students transitioning 
back to their districts during the 2019-2020 school year.  

5D. High school dropout rate: Monitor high school student 
attendance and ensure an academic plan is in place that includes 
a graduation goal. 

Student attendance was monitored by the Supervisor of 
Attendance.  All students were provided transportation and 
attendance reports were provided at each parent/teacher/student 
conference to review attendance and credits. An academic plan 
was developed for each student and quarterly updates to the 
plan by the counselor kept all students focused on their 
graduation goal. With all of these systems  in place SWACS had 
2 high school dropouts in 2019-20.  This resulted in an 8.7% 
dropout rate 



Page 6 of 35 
 

Expected Actual 

5E. High school graduation rate: Increase graduation rate by 58%   

The graduation rate at the S. William Abel Community School 
during the 2019-2020 school year was 40%. The school 
graduated two 12th graders and two 11th graders in 2019-2020. 
Due to the small population of students and the majority being 8-
11th grade the graduation rate showed a decrease from the 
previous year. 

6A. Reduce the number of students who are suspended annually:  
Decrease suspension rate to zero.   

Due to the implementation of MTSS strategies, there were no 
suspensions in 2019-20. 

6B. Pupil expulsion rate: Maintain expulsion rates at current level. Student expulsion rate was zero. 

6C. Student surveys on safety and school connectedness: Post 
Survey: 97% indicate student satisfaction with instruction, 
encouragement, motivation, and connectedness to school. 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, student surveys focused on 
how to improve services during distance learning, supports 
needed for Social emotional learning, and consideration of a 
hybrid program for the 2020-21 school year.  Survey results  
indicated 100% of students wished to return to a hybrid program 
in the fall if offered and felt that the school would be a safe place 
to return.   

6C. Parent surveys on safety and school connectedness: Seek 
Parental Input -Post: 95%;  Participation in School Programs - 
Post: 83%; Safety - Post: 94%; Academics - 85% 

 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, parent initial surveys focused 
on how to improve services during distance learning, supports 
needed for Social emotional learning, and consideration of a 
hybrid program for the 2020-21 school year. 

Survey results  indicated 86% of parents requested the 
implementation of a hybrid program in the fall and felt that the 
school would be a safe place to return.  When school opened on 
October 14, 2020 to the hybrid program, 100% of parents sent 
their students to school, except for the student that was 
previously on Independent study. 

6C. Teacher surveys-school safety and school connectedness: 
Continue teacher survey for feedback on school safety and 
connectedness. 

Weekly check-ins with the teachers indicated the teachers felt 
safe and the hybrid program offered more connection to their 
students than 100% Distance Learning. 



Page 7 of 35 
 

Expected Actual 

7A. All students, including unduplicated pupils and individuals 
with exceptional needs will have access to a broad course of 
study that includes all subject areas defined in Ed Code 51210 
and 51220: 100% of students will have access to a broad course 
of study via the curriculum utilized for instruction. 

100% of students have access to a broad course of study 
through the curriculum used for instruction. Edmentum, an online 
curriculum was accessible to all students during the COVID-19 
pandemic and supplemental resources where provided when 
needed by students. 

8. Pupil Outcomes. Percent of students participating in a CTE 
course: Maintain 100% student participation (community 
school/independent study) in CTE courses. 

In 2019-2020 26.09% of the SWACS students participated in a 
CTE course. This decline was due to the core credit 
requirements needed by students attending SWACS.  Students 
entering SWACS  either  had their CTE credits met, were eligible 
for McKinney-Vento State Graduation Requirements or were 
planning on enrolling in CTE courses when they return to their 
home districts for more choices available. 

9. Coordination of services for expelled students: Continue 
coordination of services with school districts, juvenile court 
system, special education to implement a student transition plan, 
ILP, IEP, and/or 504. 

The Expelled Student Plan for 2018-2021 was updated and 
approved by the district school boards in May 2018 and by the 
CCOE Board in June 2018. Services for expelled students were 
ongoing including collaboration with the juvenile court system, 
behavioral health, the Colusa County Adult School, Woodland 
Community College, and special education. Student transition 
plans were created for students transitioning back to their 
districts, with two students transitioning back in  February 2020. 
All students during the intake process at SWACS develop an 
Individualized Learning Plan (ILP) that outlines goals, 
academics, and resources to ensure student success.  ILP Plans 
are visited quarterly to determine student progress. IEP and 504 
plans are reviewed and followed when students enroll in 
SWACS. Due to the pandemic, no expulsions took place, thus 
resulting in no increase in enrollment of expelled youth.  



Page 8 of 35 
 

Expected Actual 

10.Coordination of services for foster youth: Continue 
coordination of services with county child welfare, juvenile court 
system, behavioral health, and districts, to ensure the timely 
transfer of student health and education records, immediate 
school enrollment, minimize changes in school placement, and 
immediate delivery of educational services. 

The Foster Youth Executive Advisory Council quarterly meetings 
included Child Welfare, Juvenile Probation, Behavioral Health, LEAs, 
Law Enforcement, Migrant Education, One Stop, Child Abuse 
Prevention Council, Independent Living Program, First 5, Williams 
Police Department, Colusa County Probation and the county Foster 
Youth Coordinator. These agencies worked in partnership to support 
and improve services to students in foster care. 

 

Foster Youth District Liaison meetings were held monthly to discuss 
updates, laws, and serve as a training ground for Foster Focus, 
FASFA Challenge, AB 216/167 trainings, and other trainings were held 
based on current needs.  

 

Transportation and meals were provided to ALL students at SWAA, 
including Foster Youth to ensure that they attended school   



Page 9 of 35 
 

Actions / Services Planned  
Action/Service 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

Actual Expenditures 

Action 1 

Maintain additional math, English, and other core subject support, during school, 
and/or an extended school day through on-site tutoring, credit recovery classes 
not available in the school (paper pencil and/or online) small group direct 
instruction, one on one support, differentiated materials, counseling, and 
parent/guardian/teacher meetings. 

No additional cost. 
Cost reflected in 
Actions/ Services #8. 
The extended school 
day was within the 
scope of the teacher 
work day.   

No additional cost. Cost 
reflected in Actions/ 
Services #8. The 
extended school day 
was within the scope of 
the teacher work day.   

Action 2 

Action/Services 2 will be deleted and is incorporated into Action/Services 6. 

No additional cost. 
Cost reflected in 
Actions/ Services #8.   

No additional cost. Cost 
reflected in Actions/ 
Services #8.  

Action 3 

Maintain Designated and Integrated ELD. 
$300 

No additional cost. 
Teacher provided ELD 
support for students 
during the regular 
course of instruction. 

Action 4 

Provide Foster and Homeless Liaison trainings to provide support and 
coordinate services to foster youth in the county. 

No additional cost.  
Districts received 
funding to support 
foster students.   

No additional cost.  
Districts received 
funding to support foster 
students.   

 

Action 5 

Maintain Friday Night Live classes to build leadership skills, broaden appropriate 
social networks, and implement youth led projects to improve school climate and 
reduce youth access to alcohol and other drugs. 

No additional cost. 
Cost reflected in 
Actions/ Services #8. 

No additional cost. Cost 
reflected in Actions/ 
Services #8. 



Page 10 of 35 
 

Action 6 

Provide all students with a culturally responsive, relevant curriculum aligned to 
California State Standards and incorporate AVID strategies in lessons to support 
student success in rigorous curriculum. 

$2025 Edmentum Software 
License Cost  

$3160 

Additional curriculum 
resources 

$428 

(Lottery Funds) 

Action 7 

Students will be assisted in making a smooth transition back to their home 
school by meeting with district administration to ensure alignment of instruction 
to meet academic requirements and necessary support systems are in place. 

No additional cost. 
Cost reflected in 
Actions/ Services #8.   

No additional cost. Cost 
reflected in Actions/ 
Services #8.   



Page 11 of 35 
 

Action 8 

Basic Educational expenditures including but not limited to staffing, supplies, 
services, and other expenditures. 

 

• Highly qualified instructor/administrator to meet the academic needs of all 
students.  

 

• Provide academic and behavioral interventions and involve parents in the 
education process (MTSS).  

 

• Provide reliable safe home to school transportation for low income 
students to increase attendance.  

 

• Provide a nutritious breakfast and lunch for students through the National 
School Lunch Program for those who qualify and continue to provide 
meals for all students regardless of qualification.  

 

• Materials required to achieve and maintain academic goals and state 
mandated assessments.  

 

• Services required to achieve and maintain student academic and 
behavior goals. (i.e. student incentives, fieldtrips).  

 

 

 

 

$111,049 

 

 

$10,000 

 

 

$4,300   

 

 

$1,500 

 

 

$2,500 

 

 

$4,500 

 

 

 

 

 

$50,920 

 

 

$17,424 

 

$504- Fuel for Van 

$2,700- Transit Tickets 

$3,204  Total 

 

$5,867 

 

 

$0 

 

 

$1058 

 

 

Action 9 

Maintain Student Study Team Meetings, Individual Education Plan, Individual 
Learning Plan, and 504 meetings as required. 

 

No additional cost. 
Cost reflected in 
Actions/ Services #8. 

No additional cost. Cost 
reflected in Actions/ 
Services #8. 

Action10 

Promote/support parent/guardian participation through increased 
communication, invitations to school committees, community, parent, and school 
events. 

$750 $239 



Page 12 of 35 
 

Action 11 

Support independent study/home school students by maintaining regularly 
scheduled weekly meetings to provide direct instruction, provide assignments, 
and ensure attendance is continuous. Provide academic counseling for 
individual student success and meet regularly with students, parents /guardians, 
and teacher to review student progress. 

$1400 

Independent 
Study/home school 
students met with the 
teacher one day per 
week.  The cost for the 
teacher is included in 
Action 8, and 
transportation costs for 
the students are also 
included in Action 8. 

Academic Counseling 
Costs are also included 
in counselor time in 
Action 8. 

Action 12 

Action/Services 12 will be deleted and is incorporated into Action/Services 11. 

0 

 

0 

 

Action 13 

Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT) ratings of good or better. 
$15,010 $15,010 

Action 14 

Maintain a system to evaluate student performance data to modify instruction, 
provide timely student interventions, and support data decision-making 
practices. 

See Goal 1, Action 6 See Goal 1, Action 6 

Action 15 

Provide access to all students, course offerings in comprehensive schools, 
community college dual enrollment courses and online learning classes to meet 
student’s academic goals. 

$1,000   

$216 

Action 16 

Survey parents, students, and the community for program effectiveness and 
school climate. 

No additional cost. 
Cost reflected in 
Actions/ Services #8. 

No additional cost. Cost 
reflected in Actions/ 
Services #8. 

Action 17 

Maintain quarterly LCAP Committee meetings. 
$300 $87 



Page 13 of 35 
 

Action 18 

Provide continuous communication/collaboration with other county agencies to 
improve attendance, emotional health, social adjustment, successful 
reintegration to regular school for all students, including unduplicated pupils and 
students with exceptional needs. 

No additional cost. 
Cost reflected in 
actions/services #8.   

No additional cost. Cost 
reflected in 
actions/services #8.   

 

 

Action 19 

Ensure systems are in place for the on-going WASC accreditation self-study for 
the community school. 

$1,078 $1070 

Action 20 

Develop a continuum of Career Technical Education (CTE) and college 
readiness experiences for students including soft skills, personal planning and 
organizational skills trainings, career exploration, and field trips to colleges and 
business sites. 

$2,000 $1614 

 

 

 

Action 21 

Provide Prevention Education Services in the county and community school for 
on-site support and coordinate services for prevention, intervention, and 
cessation programs. 

$1000 $140 spent from 
Tobacco Use 
Prevention Education 
Funds 

 

Action 22 

Provide transportation for students on field trips, college visits, and in emergency 
situations in recently purchased van. $2500 for supplies, maintenance and 
repairs. 

 

$2500 $186  (maintenance 
costs) 

 

 

 

 

Goal Analysis 

A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff.   

Actions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 14,16, and 18 resulted in no costs to the S. William Abel Academy but were fully implemented. 



Page 14 of 35 
 

Action 6 was implemented but due to an increase in the subscription cost of Edmentum and the need to purchase additional copies of 
curriculum resources for student use, costs reflect a 43% increase. 

Action 8:  Resulted in a decrease in teacher cost due to teacher resignation and the hiring of a credentialed long-term substitute. There 
was an 43% increase in costs for counseling services and transportation due to student needs  and as the result of the pandemic. 
There was no cost incurred for assessments as state-mandated assessments were waived. With no field trips in the Spring of 2020, 
allocated monies were 76% less than projected.  Student incentives/ PRIDE Store were not available during the spring months. Meal 
costs increased  74% due to the delivery of meals during the pandemic and ensuring all students received meals. 

Action 10: Due to no LCAP meeting and parent meetings being held via zoom, less costs were incurred. 

Action 11: Additional support from the counselor was included in Action 8. 

Action 12 was deleted 

Action 13 was implemented as projected 

Action 15: No costs were incurred due to the Woodland Community College being closed during spring 2020 due to the pandemic and 
only minimal costs were incurred for Zoom equipment. 

Action 17: Due to only one LCAP meeting being held in the fall, costs were 70% less than projected. 

Action 20: With no in-person classes or college readiness field trips scheduled March-April 2020, costs reflect a 19% decrease. 

Action 21:  Costs for Red Ribbon Week and Tobacco Use Prevention were paid from TUPE funding sources for services. 

Action 22: Due to the pandemic and lack of field trips, and college visits, actual costs show a 93% decrease when compared to 
projected costs. 

 

With the COVID-19 pandemic and the shutdown of the state, many funds that were allocated were redirected to other areas including 
but not limited to salaries, copies, Special Education costs, support with CALPADS reporting and indirect costs. 

A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 

The 2019-20 school year posed successes and many challenges for the S. William Abel Community School. In 2019, a 
principal/teacher was hired over the summer to lead the S. William Abel Community School (SWACS) into the coming year. In 
September, the teacher/principal had resigned leaving the LEA scrambling to find an adequate replacement.  With no viable candidates 
available, a retired, experienced, certificated teacher was hired to serve as the SWACS teacher for 2019-20. With the departure of the 
principal/teacher, it also left a vacancy for a principal. The Director of Educational Services then stepped back into her previous role of 
serving as the SWACS Principal. With the experience of the credentialed teacher, the expertise of the existing Art teacher, support and 
instruction from the Farm to School Project coordinator and the Director of Educational Services as the principal, the fall showed 



Page 15 of 35 
 

promise for students to obtain credits, participate in hands-on activities and have access to a CTE Program.  In fall 2019,  the S. William 
Abel  Community School which houses expelled and at promise-youth, consisted of 16 students. Demographics of these students 
included 81.25 % being classified as economically-disadvantaged, 6.25% English Learners, and 25% students with disabilities. 
Regardless of status or ability level, SWACS believes supports should be provided to all students. Students were provided academic 
and social emotional interventions from a licensed, family and marriage therapist to ensure services were provided for the “whole child”. 
Parents were contacted consistently regarding student academic progress and when behavior challenges occurred. Daily phone calls 
home to parents to verify absences were consistent and expected.  Prevention Services Staff housed next door to SWACS allowed the 
coordinators to provide supports and services as needed. Student Stakeholder Meetings were held monthly and empowered students 
in creating change and having a voice in their school.   

Students in the Independent Study Program received consistent support and tutoring weekly from the teacher.  Independent Study 
contracts were reviewed, amended as necessary, and followed. . Time was made available in the afternoons from 1:00-3:00 PM for 
tutoring of  all students. In October 2019, one student had enrolled in  advanced education offerings at the adjacent Woodland 
Community College Campus. Field trips to the Colusa Farm Show, a nature hike, and the operation of the PRIDE Store each month for 
students to redeem PRIDE tickets for demonstrating positive traits were some of the highlights from July to February. 

 Action plans and services were being implemented according to plan until March 17, 2020, when school was shut down due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. The pandemic did not cause a cease in services being provided to students, but a change in how the services 
would be rendered.  Staff engaged in survival mode to provide students with curriculum, access to online courseware, zoom meetings 
for parent/teacher conferences, phone and zoom conferences with the LMFT, and the continuation of meals being provided. Since 
students had been receiving meals five days per week during regular school session, the need still existed for them to have access to 
enough food for the week.  To alleviate that concern,  meals were delivered to students three times per week which allowed students to 
submit work for grading and the opportunity to receive teacher feedback prior to the next meal delivery. With state testing being 
suspended, the focus was to have students continue to complete credits to stay on their trajectory toward graduation.  

The conclusion of the 2019-20 school year resulted in a call to action.  Items that needed to be addressed included the imminent need 
to establish a baseline for students to determine learning loss due to the pandemic. In addition, a needs assessment was conducted to 
determine a school schedule for the 2020-21 year based on student and parent feedback. Surveys revealed that 86% of parents and 
students were in favor of in-person instruction if possible.  Of those in favor of in-person instruction, 100% requested a hybrid program 
recommending in person instruction  3 days, and distance learning the other 2 days. With the stay at home order and the status of 
Colusa County remaining in the purple tier, the end of the 2019-20 school year looked as though school would not be reopening any 
time soon and the beginning months of school  would result in students being 100% on distance learning.  

The silver lining to the COVID-19 pandemic was the opportunity for  collaboration between programs at CCOE (SWACS, Special 
Education, Children’s Services, and IT)  to establish a consistent, thoughtful plan in moving CCOE forward despite the pandemic. This 
plan focused on how to provide distance learning and access to all students, how to get the students back to in person instruction safely 
when possible and what would protocols would need to be in place to offer in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year. These 
efforts resulted in all of the programs contributing and being a part of the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. 



Page 16 of 35 
 

 

 A special note, in June 2020, the S. William Abel Community School requested a name change to the S. William Abel Academy to 
ensure that  students were not being stigmatized as community school students.  The intent of the change was that the  focus of “at-
promise” youth would assist in building self-esteem in students and a change in perception by others. The Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan was created using this new school name. 

Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
The following is the local educational agency’s (LEA’s) analysis of its 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan (Learning 
Continuity Plan). 

In-Person Instructional Offerings 

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings 

Description 
Total Budgeted 
Funds 

Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 

Contributing 

This space intentionally left blank due to the LEA not offering in-person instruction. N/A  N 

A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction and 
what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 

S. William Abel Academy (SWAA) realized the need for in-person instruction for its At-Promise Youth it served, but since Colusa 
County remained on California’s monitoring list, this method of delivery was unavailable due to Governor Newsom’s order dated July 
17, 2020 that schools may not open if they are located in counties that are on California’s Covid-19 Monitoring list. Recognizing that in 
person instruction would be most beneficial, SWAA continued to operate a distance learning program to serve student’s academic and 
social-emotional needs until it was safe to return to in person instruction.  

The Director of Educational Services and the Assistant Superintendent of Special Education did not wait until the county was off the 
monitoring list to begin planning for the safe reopening of the schools to offer face-to-face instruction.  Both program leads collaborated 
to create a reopening plan for the schools under the purview of the Colusa County Office of Education. Feedback and collaboration 
from the Colusa County Public Health Department also drove the plan. After receiving stakeholder feedback from parents, students, 
and other key stakeholders, 88% of the students at S. William Abel Academy were brought back to a hybrid program of face to face 
instruction and distance learning on October 14, 2020, while one student remained on Independent Study. With a small population of 



Page 17 of 35 
 

seven students in the community school, maintaining social distancing guidelines, mask requirements and other safety protocols was 
manageable. The small population of students at the Coastal Buttes Academy returned to face-to face instruction as well. 

Both SWAA and Special Education worked in collaboration with Colusa County Public Health to create a process that would be safe for 
students to come to CCOE campus to receive services. Since the students enrolled in CCOE programs are considered high needs and 
At-Promise, the approval was given for in person instruction early on. Special Education student levels were monitored by staff and 
measured with levels prior to school closure to gage learning loss. This was done by work completion and NWEA assessment results. 
Each student completed a standardized assessment through NWEA to get a baseline of levels, which occurred in the Spring of 2020. 
The NWEA was given upon return to school to determine the exact learning loss. Staff worked at  addressing the learning loss gaps 
through intensive interventions. In addition,  IEP teams determined if goals needed to be adjusted to account for the learning loss that 
occurred. With SWAA students returning in October,  formative assessments were given through Exact Path to determine student 
levels in ELA and Mathematics. Not anticipating the reopening of school, no costs were included in the initial writing of the 2020-21 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. SWAA did incur costs for in-person instruction including PPE equipment and supplies and 
increased transportation costs. 

Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings 

A description of the successes and challenges in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year. 

With the need to return to in-person instruction for the student populations at CCOE as soon as possible, but also being mindful of 
creating a safe environment for students, parents, and staff to return, this created multiple challenges before success. The first call to 
action was to survey parents and students to determine if providing some part of in-person instruction was being requested. The survey 
sent out in May 2020  regarding a hybrid program of distance learning/ in-person instruction, resulted in 67% of the parents requested a 
hybrid schedule consisting of in-person instruction; 17% requested distance learning; and the student that was on Independent Study 
wished to remain in the Independent Study program. Student’s surveys revealed that 67% wanted to return to in-person/hybrid 
schedules when the school was able to offer this option. Other survey questions included the impact of the school closure, and student 
access. 14% of the parents shared that a family member had been laid off due to the pandemic. Another family member shared about 
the stress that COVID had been causing in helping her son meet his deadlines on distance learning. A parent at SWAA was reluctant to 
send her student back until she deemed the protocols in place could ensure her student’s safety and the result of her student falling 
further behind due to not participating in a hybrid schedule of learning.  Staff shared concerns about the students not being on campus 
and the lack of engagement of students in Distance learning. 

Having never dealt with a pandemic situation in education, programs struggled as to where to start.  The guidance from Colusa County 
Department of Public Health, helped navigate the path through these unchartered waters. The collaborative effort from SWAA, Special 
Education, the administrative and human services department, and Children’s Services resulted in the Learning Continuity  Attendance 
Plan designed to serve all programs under the Colusa County Office of Education umbrella.  Being a small county office allowed all 
parties to be at the table to determine the best course of action to deliver a safe in-person learning experience for the pupils at CCOE. 



Page 18 of 35 
 

While the ultimate success of having students back in school for in-person or hybrid schedules was achieved, it did not come without its 
challenges. Challenges included parent concern regarding sending students back to in-person instruction. Safe transportation of 
students to and from school posed challenges as a protocol needed to be put in place prior to this occurring.  In addition, the consistent 
monitoring of students and staff with a thermal scan thermometer each day was a new twist to the start of everyone’s day. Mask 
requirements, the installation of many hand sanitizing stations; stressing the importance of hand-washing; ensuring staff and students 
maintained physical distancing requirements; and the constant wiping down all frequently touched surfaces has become the new 
normal to all students and staff. 

With distance learning still being a factor, staff had to become quite proficient in technology to deliver instruction or to participate in 
meetings or webinars.  Zoom accounts needed to be created; Google classroom became a new medium for creating and sharing 
assignments and maintaining student contact;  and cell phones needed to be purchased for staff to connect with students and families 
regarding transportation pick up and drop off. Ensuring students and staff had the devices and technology to perform the tasks 
necessary to complete their work was challenge that was consistently addressed. 

Maintaining the safety and health of the staff created some challenges due to the quarantine protocols necessary for the safe return of 
employees to work.  With employees experiencing “COVID-like” symptoms it was difficult to determine which staff would be present for 
work due to possible exposure. Having a limited number of staff to start with created strains on some departments and forced some 
programs to close for short periods of time. 

Overcoming the previous mentioned challenges was worth the effort as students were able to participate in face-to-face instruction.  
Staff, student, and parent morale changed the day that students returned to campus.  With these high need students needing social 
interaction, teacher-led in-school instruction, and individualized student support, students have prospered. Exact Path scores for SWAA 
students have increased from Quarter 1-Quarter 3.  Due to SWAA and CBA’s small class size, the school has yet to become a hot spot 
for spreading COVID.  This was due in part to the thoughtful and intentional planning of  the reopening and the desire of staff to offer 
quality education to the students at CCOE. 



Page 19 of 35 
 

Distance Learning Program 

Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program 

Description 
Total Budgeted 
Funds 

Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 

Contributing 

Student technology acquisition including hot spots and internet access for all 
students.  

$5,052.00 $2042.00 Y 

Professional development provided for staff to Distance Learning Programs. $898.00 $1458.00 Y 

Staff technology acquisition including webcams, professional Zoom accounts and 
headsets with built in microphones to ensure staff’s ability to host online learning 
spaces 

$895.00 $1978.00 Y 

Increased transportation costs due to meal delivery and schoolwork drop off and pick 
up. 

$553.00 $2487.00 Y 

Student incentives for assistance and participation in distance learning. $1,539.00 $1144.00 Y 

A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the distance learning 
program and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 

Never have gone through a pandemic at the start of a school year, it was difficult to project costs. Total estimated expenditures 
exceeded budget expenditures by $172, thus resulting in a slight increase of 2%. Student technology costs were less than projected 
due to the fact that  all students had previously been provided laptops for student use, so no additional laptops needed to be 
purchased.  With some students already having internet access in their home, the costs for hot spots was less than projected.  The 
need to purchase a Poly com unit to provide instruction on distance learning days by the teacher was reflected in the increased costs in 
staff technology. Increased transportation costs to provide meals to students during the fall as well as additional meal delivery during 
distance learning shows the increase in transportation.  With students not being on campus for part of the year and businesses and 
colleges closed due to COVID, there was a decrease in projected costs of student incentives. 

All schools at CCOE  devised systems to create continuity of instruction for their students. While the systems may have looked 
different, the end goal was to ensure that pupils had full access to curriculum regardless of method of delivery. For S. William Abel, 
instruction has been and will  continue to be accomplished through online curriculum; daily dedicated time with the teacher; morning 



Page 20 of 35 
 

check-ins and afternoon exit tickets for days that students on the hybrid schedule. SWAA realized that to be able to create a successful 
Individualized Learning Plan for each student, it was necessary to begin the year with diagnostic testing to determine student’s 
strengths and weaknesses. These tests in Reading, Language Arts, English Language Development, and Math helped determine the 
essential areas in which students need support. In addition, it helped chart a path for skill building and to mitigate learning loss. 
Individualized Learning Plans were completed at meetings with parents, students, and the school team prior to the start of school for all 
students. Individualized Learning Plan meetings were held every six weeks to review progress and academic goals with students and 
parents. School calendars were provided to students and parents depicting grading periods and parent teacher conferences. Teacher 
communication with students and parents provided monitoring of student grades and credits. S. William Abel Academy used platforms 
such as Google Classroom and Zoom to provide continuity of instruction for all students. Edmentum Courseware provided instruction in 
core classes for all students while textbooks were provided in other disciplines. Students requested various methods of instruction to 
overcome their lack of motivation. All classes were made available to students, but Individualized Learning Plan meetings with parents 
and students determined necessary requirements and course focus. Intake meetings and follow up ILP meetings dictated the student’s 
trajectory. Each student was created an individualized schedule during distance learning to ensure access to rigorous courses and to 
meet program requirements of 180 minutes of daily instruction. Exact Path, an online platform, was used to build skills in student 
deficiency areas. Student incentives were provided for their assistance and participation in distance learning. In addition, meals were 
delivered three days per week to ensure that students had access to a consistent food supply. Student technology and devices were 
purchased and provided access for those needing assistance. 

In October, the S. William Abel Academy transitioned to a hybrid schedule with students participating in face-to-face instruction three 
days per week and distance learning two days per week.  The rationale being that if the COVID-19 pandemic became worse, it would 
be seamless to transition back to full time distance learning.  Parents also expressed interest in having students continue in some sort 
of distance learning to ensure a seamless transition if the situation warranted it. When the school transitioned to in person instruction 
(hybrid model) the same curriculum models were utilized.  

In addition, the one student participating in Independent Study followed the same curriculum models as those participating in Distance 
Learning with weekly check ins rather than daily. Since SWAA maintains only one full time teacher on staff, the transition from distance 
learning to a hybrid program was a seamless transition. The Licensed Marriage/Family Therapist (LMFT), employed by SWAA, who  is 
also a licensed academic counselor reviewed student transcripts and provided case management for each student. This included one-
on one support, home visits or any other necessary resources.  

Special Education transitioned their adopted curriculum to a digital platform so that it could easily be delivered in either setting. 
Nearpod, NWEA, Unique, Google Classroom and Zoom were utilized to ensure that the quality of content remained the same from 
classroom to distance learning. Special Education implemented Unique, NWEA, and Google Classroom throughout 2019-2020 school 
year, so students became familiar with the platforms and could access the content when delivered in these methods. The content and 
curriculum have remained the same and can be delivered in either format. Children’s Services preschool classrooms transitioned to a 
virtual and remote classroom model that included important aspects from current classroom curriculum models.  Instructional delivery 
methods included virtual strategies for engaging families and hands on learning opportunities to ensure an individualized approach for 
varying young learners.  Google Classroom and Zoom were utilized.   



Page 21 of 35 
 

A research-based curriculum that focused on theme studies and individualized interactions ensured consistent and quality learning.  
Curriculum continued to support learning experiences that strengthened creativity, confidence, and critical thinking opportunities.  A 
consistent routine was a highest priority and included a focus question of the day that encouraged children to share about themselves 
and their families.  

 Footsteps2Brilliance and Clever Kids University, interactive web-based applications, remain as an important part of instruction.  The 
interactive programs provide interact eBooks that easily toggle between English and Spanish languages and promote pre-reading skills 
such as letter recognition, writing skills, and phonemic awareness.  The electronic applications integrate with currently preschool 
curriculum and continue to expose children to a variety of language and literacy, mathematical development, social and emotional 
learning and perceptual development that prepares children for kindergarten readiness. Education services include weekly lesson plans 
with learning kits equipped with hands-on learning materials that were distributed to the children’s homes each week.  Learning kits 
contained instructions and books, counting objects, manipulatives to support learning objectives.  Teachers had access to a 
comprehensive library of books and videos for unlimited resources. 

 In April 2021, Children’s Services re-opened a full-day preschool classroom for young children of migrant families.  Other full-day 
preschool classrooms transitioned to in-classroom instruction five days per week with a modified group size.  Families were provided 
with the option of classroom or virtual instruction that met their needs.   Part-day classrooms transitioned to in-classroom instruction 
with the option of virtual and remote services per parent request.  The same curriculum model were used. Learning Genie Family App 
engaged families and reinforced consistent communication between home and school.  Individualized Learning Plans were created in 
collaboration with parents to ensure skills continued to progress. Additional sanitization methods to ensure extreme precautionary 
measures were followed. 

Support from CCOE’s Technology Services Department resulted in the creation of a Google Tenant to support LMS standards to allow 
Teachers to interact with students through Google Classroom and to communicate through Gmail with students. The CCOE 
Technology Department  worked continuously to secure and ensure Child Internet Protection Act (CIPA) compliance to all student 
devices to help facilitate distance learning for students. The Technology Department assisted the S. William Abel Academy by adding 
Go-Guardian applications on student devices.  This helped monitor student activity as well as provided alerts if students were 
experiencing a crisis or thoughts of suicide.  In addition, they  monitored usage of LMS to determine if certain content areas or grade 
levels needed additional support or resources. The Technology Services Department was instrumental in providing access to all 
students and their devices. 

Analysis of the Distance Learning Program 

A description of the successes and challenges in implementing each of the following elements of the distance learning program in the 
2020-21 school year, as applicable: Continuity of Instruction, Access to Devices and Connectivity, Pupil Participation and Progress, 
Distance Learning Professional Development, Staff Roles and Responsibilities, and Support for Pupils with Unique Needs. 



Page 22 of 35 
 

Parent surveys in May 2020 revealed that 100% of the parents believed the school was effective in its transition to distance learning.  
Informal interviews with students revealed that while the students were not experiencing access issues, 83% wanted to return to some 
form of in-person instruction to learn from  their teacher in person and be back with their peers. Informal interviews with teachers 
resulted in teachers wanting students to return to campus to increase student engagement. 

With a small student population of seven students, S. William Abel Academy did not face the challenges that larger LEAS face in trying 
to provide continuity of instruction. Having established relationships with parents and students prior to the pandemic, and a small 
number of students, it was easy to communicate with parents when experiencing challenges and the school’s plan for re-opening.. With 
a small student population it was seamless to provide students with devices to complete their distance learning. Connectivity issues due 
to the small rural towns were experienced but mobile hot spots provided to all students that did not have internet in their home helped 
alleviate this problem. When students had device or connectivity issues, staff would travel to the student’s home to troubleshoot 
problems.  Pupil participation in distance learning was characterized by morning check in’s, individual instructional time allocated for 
each student every day, followed by an exit ticket in the afternoon.  When students could not be reached, parents were notified and 
home visits occurred when necessary. Virtual field trips on Fridays kept students engaged and eager to log in. With students 
maintaining two days of distance learning even after the school’s reopening, the same schedule was followed. Edmentum, an online 
standards-based curriculum was being used by students prior to the pandemic, so this made the transition seamless. Although credits 
continued to be earned while students remained on Distance Learning, Exact Path assessment results for 3rd quarter showed an 
increase in Math, ELA, and Reading scores of students when school transitioned to the hybrid schedule.  

Distance Learning Professional Development was not only requested but imperative. The Distance Learning Playbook webinar 
provided administration resources on how to provide a quality educational experience while students were not present for face-to-face 
instruction.   Social emotional learning webinars, community of practices, and resources provided the counselor, teacher, and 
administration tools on how to support students and parents.  The ability to participate in virtual workshops, webinars, and conferences 
made professional development more accessible by not requiring a substitute or the cost of travel. 

The roles of staff did not change due to Distance Learning. The S. William Abel Academy Staff believes the best way to serve its 
students is to treat them like clients. In order to do that, staff ensures that students always come first. Staff  did not change the services 
they provided; they merely changed the methods in which they provided services. For example, delivering meals instead of students 
eating on campus, using Google Classroom for assignments and check-ins, scheduling virtual field trips instead of in-person, providing 
counseling services either by zoom or home visits, and hosting parent conferences and ILP plan meetings via Zoom rather than in 
person. Staff did not see Distance Learning as an opportunity for learning loss, but a different approach in providing education. 

The school population at SWAA represents a large percentage of students with IEP’s.  Collaboration between the SWAA teacher and 
the Special Education teacher allowed students to receive support one day per week with the Special Education teacher joining the 
zoom call during the student’s one-on-one time with the teacher.  These support meetings occurred on Wednesdays and when students 
transitioned to the hybrid schedule, the same schedule was maintained. 

The biggest challenge that SWAA experienced and continues to experience with Distance Learning is the inconsistent logging in of 
students. While some students remain consistent in attendance during Distance Learning, a few continue to need persuasion.  



Page 23 of 35 
 

Nevertheless, follow up phone calls to parents by the teacher and Supervisor of Attendance put the student back on track more often 
than not. Student success plans are developed for those students who continue to be absent.  Individualized Learning Plan Goals are 
addressed at each quarterly meeting with some students achieving their goals and others deferring theirs to the next school year. 

Pupil Learning Loss 

Actions Related to the Pupil Learning Loss 

Description 
Total Budgeted 
Funds 

Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 

Contributing 

Instructional and data technology driven tools to include Google Classroom and 
Zoom  

$1,155.00 

Edmentum  
Program 
License 

$1483.00 

Y 

A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning 
loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 

The difference in estimated expenditures in actions related to learning loss included the increased cost for the Edmentum Program 
License.  Edmentum provided courseware for students to complete core classes on line and also included Exact Path assessments to 
determine learning loss. S. William Abel acknowledges that there was a learning gap and learning loss from the summer slide from 
2019-20. To determine the amount of loss is difficult to quantify.  Since no baseline assessments were completed in 2019-20 due to 
teacher turnover and the pandemic, SWAA recognized that in order to be able to create a successful Individualized Learning Plan (ILP) 
for each student, it was vital to begin the year with diagnostic testing to determine student’s academic strengths and weaknesses. 
These tests in Reading, Language Arts, and Math in Exact Path helped determine the essential areas in which students needed 
support. Moreover, Exact Path provided recommendations in charting a path for skill building and to mitigate learning loss. 
Individualized Learning Plans were developed at meetings with parents, students, and staff and assessment results were shared from 
each quarter. Exact Path provided skill building in areas where students were deficient. ILP meetings also reviewed progress and 
academic goals with students and parents regarding their trajectory to obtaining credits for their high school diploma.. English 
Language Learners were assessed in  Spring 2021 through the administration of the  ELPAC and results will also provide insight into 
the amount of learning loss when received. Since only two students were eligible to take the CAASPP Test in Spring 2021, data will not  
be representative of all students nor provide a clear picture of learning loss. 



Page 24 of 35 
 

Special Education used Goals testing and NWEA assessment results to gauge learning loss. If learning loss has occurred, intensive 
intervention will be given in the areas of loss. An IEP meeting will be held to discuss the learning loss and goal adjusted. When 
appropriate, compensatory education will be discussed and offered if appropriate.  

Children’s Services will utilize developmentally appropriate assessment results to identify progress and areas of need. Individualized 
curriculum opportunities will provide concentrated focus to improve developmental gains. 

Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss 

A description of the successes and challenges in addressing Pupil Learning Loss in the 2020-21 school year and an analysis of the 
effectiveness of the efforts to address Pupil Learning Loss to date.  

Exact Path Assessment results representing all four quarters gave parents some indication of the amount of learning loss for their 
student but also how much the student rebounded at the conclusion of school. The final results of the Exact Path Assessments will 
serve as a benchmark for the 2021-22 School Year. 100% of the parents surveyed appreciated the school reopening and students 
returning to some in-person instruction. Student surveys revealed that 100% of the students were eager to return to school as they 
were not fully engaged in distance learning and desired the face-to-face interaction with their teacher.  Teacher comments indicated the  
increased change in student’s productivity when students attended school in-person. Monthly Progress reports generated by the 
grading program, Aeries, provided students and parents updates on student’s progress in classes. The teacher also reviewed these 
reports during parent/student/teacher conferences. These progress reports will continue to be generated and shared. 

Since the student population at S. William Abel represents all subgroups: English learners, low-income, foster youth, pupils with 
exceptional needs, and pupils experiencing homelessness, the same supports and programs were made to all students. 

Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 

A description of the successes and challenges in monitoring and supporting mental health and social and emotional well-being in the 
2020-21 school year. 

With COVID-19 creating additional stress for students who are already deemed “At-Promise”, supports for social emotion well-being 
were not only imperative but time-sensitive.  The beginning of the school year focused on ensuring daily interactions with all students 
and follow-up when students became not available based on the informal feedback provided to the principal from the teacher and 
counselor. The services of the Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist/Counselor was called upon to ensure that students were 
supported socially and emotionally. The  teacher incorporated the use of Google classroom  which allowed all students to interact  as a 
class and with the teacher, even when face-to-face instruction was not an option. Student feedback encouraged the teacher to use 



Page 25 of 35 
 

Google classroom rather than zoom. The delivering of school meals allowed staff to perform wellness checks on students three days 
per week to ensure student’s health and well-being. 

Furthermore, the school purchased Go-Guardian which not only provided the teacher the ability to refocus the student on the task at 
hand, but it also included software information that provided staff alerts when students searched for key words that may indicate the 
student was in emotional distress. 

Continuing to provide incentives for students and following the Multitiered Systems of Support (MTSS) model has provided students the 
opportunity to be rewarded for demonstrating positive behavior.  Students set classroom goals to be achieved by all students and all 
goals were met in the 2020-21 school year. These goals focused on demonstrating positive character traits and contributing to the 
social well-being of students in class. Virtual field trips provided by the teacher on Fridays during distance learning allowed students to 
experience a change to the current schedule and an opportunity to experience something beyond the traditional coursework. 

The enthusiasm to re-open the S. William Abel Academy for in-person instruction was driven by the survey responses that parents 
realized the need for their students to return to school for social interaction, and staff was eager to have students back on campus to 
provide all supports and services. The hybrid model of instruction brought some emotional stability to the students and their parents.  
Surveys sent to parents always included questions regarding their mental health and the effect COVID-19 was having on their families 
and themselves. Support was available and utilized by family members to ensure the student and their family maintained their mental 
health. 

Challenges in providing social emotional support to students were faced when students were on distance learning.  Some days 
students did not check in to their class at the scheduled time and the teacher was unable to determine their well-being. Follow up phone 
calls by staff and home visits mitigated this problem. With students being on campus, it made outreach by the teacher, principal, or 
counselor more manageable. 

Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 

A description of the successes and challenges in implementing pupil and family engagement and outreach in the 2020-21 school year. 

Pupil and family engagement was and continues to be a struggle at the S. William Abel Academy.  With potential exposure to COVID 
as a risk throughout the 2020-21 School year, pupil and family engagement was at a minimum.  ILP meetings were conducted and 
LCAP meetings hosted.  Zoom meetings were scheduled for parent-teacher conferences and not until May 2021 did parents attend any 
school functions. This was due to the fact that there were no school functions offered prior. End of the year field trip participation by a 
parent showed hope that more pupil and family outreach can be accomplished in the 2021-22 school year. 

Throughout the 2020-21 year, absence reports and grade reports were shared with students and parents at ILP meetings and parent 
conferences. For students having difficulty in Distance learning and not participating, Student Success Team meetings were held, and a 
plan was created with reengagement strategies included. Due to the small size of the student population, when parents were having 



Page 26 of 35 
 

concerns regarding the engagement level of the student in the school program, conversations with the principal and teacher resulted in 
the incorporation of strategies for re-engaging students using the MTSS tiers of support. 

The CCOE Preventions Services Team provided staff virtual trainings with Dr. Victor Rios and Dr. Pedro Nava to navigate engaging 
parents in non-traditional ways and view them as partners and assets.  

With the help of the Prevention Services Team, some activities were conducted at the conclusion of the 2020-21 school year and 
parents were invited and attended. Healing California is an excellent example of collaboration between the CCOE Prevention Services 
Team and parents.  The future looks bright for family engagement once COVID-19 exposures are significantly low.  Plans for parent 
nights and family engagement have begun and will be a priority in 2021-22. 

Analysis of School Nutrition 

A description of the successes and challenges in providing school nutrition in the 2020-21 school year. 

Knowing that greater than 87% of students at S. William Abel Academy are socioeconomically disadvantaged, meals and school 
nutrition play a vital role in the lives of students. Since there is a small student population, all students receive free meals.  Prior to 
October 14, 2021, when students were on Distance Learning, all students received meals three days per week.  Meals were delivered 
by staff and allowed the opportunity for wellness checks and the submitting of school work produced, graded and returned during meal 
delivery.  Once school opened on the hybrid schedule, meals were delivered to students two days per week when students were 
returned home to ensure a full week supply of meals.  Students on Independent Study were provided a full week meal supply as well.  
When students were on campus, three days per week, meals were prepared and plated individually by cafeteria staff to ensure student 
safety. 

Challenges in providing school nutrition included establishing a set meal delivery schedule with students or parents present to receive 
the meals. Other challenges included that while SWAA provided nutrition to the student’s doorstep, other siblings in the house from 
other school districts did not receive the same service.  This forced parents to ask the question of why their other children were not 
provided the same services. 

Since Educational Services’ staff intends to obtain Servsafe Certification during summer 2021, non-frozen meals will be available for 
delivery. 50% of student surveys revealed the request for fresh food in addition to the frozen food being delivered for the next school 
year. 

Additional Actions and Plan Requirements 

Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan 



Page 27 of 35 
 

Section Description 
Total 
Budgeted 
Funds 

Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 

Contributing 

N/A There are no additional actions to include in this section. N/A N/A N 

A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and budgeted expenditures for the additional plan 
requirements and what was implemented and expended on the actions. 

N/A 

Overall Analysis 

An explanation of how lessons learned from implementing in-person and distance learning programs in 2020-21 have informed the 
development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP. 

Even though during the May 2020 and May 2021 surveys 100% of parents and students surveyed indicated that they were pleased with 
the  transition to Distance Learning during the pandemic and “the school handled the situation effectively”, Distance Learning and the 
hybrid schedule has identified needs that the S. William Abel Academy will need to meet in the forthcoming years. While the hybrid 
schedule reflected an increase in Exact Path diagnostic test scores from Distance Learning, the need to offer in-person instruction five 
days per week should reflect an even greater increase in student scores. Diagnostic assessments will need to be completed in the fall 
of 2021 to determine an effective baseline for measuring growth with in-person instruction. Student and Parent follow-up surveys 
conducted in May 2021 revealed 100% of parents and students requested in-person instruction for the 2021-22 school year. The one 
student on Independent Study requested to remain on Independent Study due to personal reasons. Other items of interest revealed 
during the survey included continuing the transportation of students to and from school and providing student meals.  While 43% of 
parents rated the meal distribution program extremely effective, and 43% rated it very effective, 14% rated it only slightly effective. The 
request to offer fresh foods versus frozen foods was the major reason for the rating. 

Curriculum updating and adopting will be a priority for the 2021-24 LCAP as some students struggled with the online Edmentum 
curriculum. Edmentum reports reveal that only 191 hours of instruction were utilized by students in the 2020-21 school year, with peaks 
in September and October 2020. Alternative standards-aligned curriculum resources needed to be provided for students to meet 
graduation requirements. 

In addition, requests to provide work based learning experiences for students was mentioned in the parent post survey. 



Page 28 of 35 
 

After school tutoring utilized by English Language learners showed an increase in test scores from Quarter 1 to Quarter 3 and also an 
increase in credits earned.  The need to provide after school tutoring or additional academic support from the teacher will continue into 
the 2021-24 LCAP years.  At the time of writing this LCAP, it was too early to determine the effect of after school tutoring on ELPAC 
scores. 

Having implemented the hybrid program in 2020-21 and parent and student request to return to in-person instruction, lessons can be 
obtained from this experience. Students being on distance learning showed the need to have alternative curriculum resources for 
student learning.  In addition, the need to have an additional assessment program to provide the school with data is a lesson learned.  
While at the time, waiving the state assessment requirement in 2019-20, seemed like a great plan, this resulted in the lack of data for 
the school to determine its effectiveness. In addition, having students on a hybrid program created some additional stress for students 
and staff when students lacked a stable internet connection during class time. Determining which days of the week to host in-person 
instruction forced staff to review attendance reports and charts to see patterns in student attendance. With alternative education school 
settings, the opportunity to provide students feedback and support on preparing them to return to their home district comes best when 
being able to speak with the student face to face. Also, having students in class provides an opportunity for students to receive 
incentives and participate in Career Technical Education or “hands-on” classes  

COVID-19 has provided the need to pay careful attention to safety protocols and the need to update safety plans. Using the Health 
Education Framework will  provide direction for students.  The increase in support services from the school counselor will provide 
increased social emotional support for all students.  The inclusion of increased parent opportunities will help provide social emotional 
support to families. Distance learning will be provided through the existing Independent Study Program or based on recommendations 
from the California Department of Education.  All of these lessons learned will be reflected in the 2021-24 LCAP.  

 

 

An explanation of how pupil learning loss continues to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for pupils with 
unique needs. 

Pupil learning loss is being addressed in 2020-21 through multiple ways.  After school tutoring provided by the teacher on Wednesdays 
that was provided in 2021 will continue to assist students needing additional support.  In addition, learning loss is being tackled by the 
implementation of a summer learning academy. Realizing the need to offer a hands-on, project based learning summer school 
academy to engage students beyond the regular school year is being piloted in June 2021.  This summer academy is open to all 
students with 86% of students expressing interest in participating.  The program will focus on developing projects that span across 
multiple discipline areas. At the time of this writing, five of the seven S. William Abel Academy Students were attending summer school.  
Another summer academy focusing on project based learning is being  planned  for 2022-23.  Program improvement and changes will 
be incorporated based on the recommendations of stakeholders following the current summer academy. 



Page 29 of 35 
 

In addition,  the completion of diagnostic testing with Exact Path in fall 2021 will establish a baseline to compare scores in Spring 2022 
to determine learning gains or loss.  Completion of high school credits will continue to be a factor as students progress toward their 
graduation and Individualized Learning Plan goals.  All the forementioned strategies and assessments will be provided to all SWAA 
students including those with unique needs. 

A description of any substantive differences between the description of the actions or services identified as contributing towards 
meeting the increased or improved services requirement and the actions or services implemented to meet the increased or improved 
services requirement. 

As mentioned previously, due to the small student population at the S. William Abel Academy, all students receive supports as many 
students meet various program services areas. 

Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan  

A description of how the analysis and reflection on student outcomes in the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP. 

COVID-19 has taught a lot about the strengths and weaknesses of the educational system.  For S. William Abel, it is no different.  
Reflection of program needs, and program improvement is what has directed the development of the 2021-24 LCAP. While stakeholder 
survey results show that students, parents, and partnering agencies are appreciative of the services provided to students, the focus of 
the quality of education being provided remains in the forefront.  The need to expand, develop, update and adopt standards-based 
curriculum is key.  In addition, the student and parent requests to provide work based learning experiences for students has been noted 
and prioritized. The consistent need for social emotional support, curriculum, and guidance will remain regardless, if COVID-19 is 
present or gone. Since the S. William Abel Academy is host to a small student population, it has the ability to create innovative ways to 
provide student and family engagement. The ability to provide food and  transportation will continue to be a major focus as it allows 
direct interaction and relationship building with the students, and resources that our students so desperately need. The writing of the 
LCAP, SARC, and WASC Self-study will allow S. William Abel to take a deeper look at its programs, outcomes, and how to improve 
services for students. Increased funding from the state through one time grants will allow SWAA to provide additional resources to 
students. 

With a small group of students and consistent communication with parents, stakeholders have the opportunity to provide input regularly.  
Student Stakeholder meetings, LCAP Stakeholder meetings, parent conferences, weekly check-ins with the teachers, Educational 



Page 30 of 35 
 

Services Staff meetings, field trips and daily phone calls afford the opportunity for input from all parties. SWAA will continue to work with 
its partners, parents, students and staff to ensure that changes continue, and stakeholders are involved in the process. 

 



 

Page 31 of 35 
 

Instructions: Introduction 
The Annual Update Template for the 2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and the Annual Update for the 2020–21 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan must be completed as part of the development of the 2021-22 LCAP. In subsequent years, 
the Annual Update will be completed using the LCAP template and expenditure tables adopted by the State Board of Education. 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the LCAP template, please contact the local COE, or the 
California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at 
lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Instructions: Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan 
Year 

Annual Update 

The planned goals, state and/or local priorities, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the approved 2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). Minor typographical errors may be corrected. 
Duplicate the Goal, Annual Measurable Outcomes, Actions / Services and Analysis tables as needed. 

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

For each goal in 2019-20, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to the expected annual measurable 
outcomes identified in 2019-20 for the goal. If an actual measurable outcome is not available due to the impact of COVID-19 provide a 
brief explanation of why the actual measurable outcome is not available. If an alternative metric was used to measure progress towards 
the goal, specify the metric used and the actual measurable outcome for that metric. 

Actions/Services 

Identify the planned Actions/Services, the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions toward achieving the described goal and 
the actual expenditures to implement the actions/services.  

Goal Analysis 

Using available state and local data and input from parents, students, teachers, and other stakeholders, respond to the prompts as 
instructed. 

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 

Page 32 of 35 
 

• If funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were expended on other actions and services through the end 
of the school year, describe how the funds were used to support students, including low-income, English learner, or foster youth 
students, families, teachers and staff. This description may include a description of actions/services implemented to mitigate the 
impact of COVID-19 that were not part of the 2019-20 LCAP. 

• Describe the overall successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services. As part of the description, specify which 
actions/services were not implemented due to the impact of COVID-19, as applicable. To the extent practicable, LEAs are 
encouraged to include a description of the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal. 

Instructions: Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 

Annual Update 

The action descriptions and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim from the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance 
Plan. Minor typographical errors may be corrected. 

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings  

• In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to in-person instruction and 
the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 

• Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction and 
what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  

Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings 

• Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. If in-
person instruction was not provided to any students in 2020-21, please state as such. 

Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program 

• In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to the distance learning 
program and the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 



 

Page 33 of 35 
 

• Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the distance learning 
program and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  

Analysis of the Distance Learning Program 

• Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in implementing distance learning in the 2020-21 school year in each of the following 
areas, as applicable:  

o Continuity of Instruction,  

o Access to Devices and Connectivity,  

o Pupil Participation and Progress,  

o Distance Learning Professional Development,  

o Staff Roles and Responsibilities, and  

o Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs, including English learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full 
continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness 

To the extent practicable, LEAs are encouraged to include an analysis of the effectiveness of the distance learning program to 
date. If distance learning was not provided to any students in 2020-21, please state as such. 

Actions Related to Pupil Learning Loss 

• In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to addressing pupil learning 
loss and the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 

• Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning 
loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  

Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss 

• Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in addressing Pupil Learning Loss in the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. To the 
extent practicable, include an analysis of the effectiveness of the efforts to address pupil learning loss, including for pupils who 
are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils who are experiencing homelessness, 
as applicable. 



 

Page 34 of 35 
 

Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 

• Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in monitoring and supporting Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being of 
both pupils and staff during the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. 

Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 

• Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges related to pupil engagement and outreach during the 2020-21 school year, including implementing 
tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who were absent from distance learning and the efforts of the LEA in reaching out to 
pupils and their parents or guardians when pupils were not meeting compulsory education requirements or engaging in 
instruction, as applicable. 

Analysis of School Nutrition 

• Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in providing nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils during the 2020-21 school 
year, whether participating in in-person instruction or distance learning, as applicable. 

Analysis of Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan 

• In the table, identify the section, the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures for the additional actions and the estimated 
actual expenditures to implement the actions, as applicable. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 

• Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the additional actions to 
implement the learning continuity plan and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  

Overall Analysis of the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 

The Overall Analysis prompts are to be responded to only once, following an analysis of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. 

• Provide an explanation of how the lessons learned from implementing in-person and distance learning programs in 2020-21 
have informed the development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP.  



 

Page 35 of 35 
 

o As part of this analysis, LEAs are encouraged to consider how their ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic has 
informed the development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP, such as health and safety considerations, distance 
learning, monitoring and supporting mental health and social-emotional well-being and engaging pupils and families. 

• Provide an explanation of how pupil learning loss continues to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for 
pupils with unique needs (including low income students, English learners, pupils with disabilities served across the full 
continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness).  

• Describe any substantive differences between the actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement, pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496, and the 
actions and/or services that the LEA implemented to meet the increased or improved services requirement. If the LEA has 
provided a description of substantive differences to actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement within the In-Person Instruction, Distance Learning Program, Learning Loss, or 
Additional Actions sections of the Annual Update the LEA is not required to include those descriptions as part of this description. 

Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan 
The Overall Analysis prompt is to be responded to only once, following the analysis of both the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan.  

• Describe how the analysis and reflection related to student outcomes in the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP, as applicable. 

 
California Department of Education 
January 2021 
 



1 | P a g e  
 

Local Control and Accountability Plan 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 

Colusa County Office of Education 
Lorilee Niesen, Director of Educational  
Services 

lniesen@ccoe.net 
(530) 473-1350 x 10834 

Plan Summary 2021-2022 

General Information 
A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students. 

Colusa County, nestled in the northern part of California just 70 miles from the state capitol is a rural farming community that is a large 
contributor to the state’s agricultural production. Rice, almonds and processing tomatoes represent the top three commodities over the span 
of 1,156 square miles. With a populous of only 21,547 people, a focus on agriculture and the county being ranked 18th in Agricultural 
Production in California, it would appear the unemployment rate would be low. Unfortunately, Colusa County consistently has one of the 
highest unemployment rates in the state with rates fluctuating from 15-21%. In addition, with a large population of agricultural workers in the 
county needed to support the production of the agricultural crops, many families are migratory.  

One of the county’s top employer is the Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE). CCOE employs 260 people representing multiple 
departments including Administrative Services, Business Services, Children’s Services, Educational Services, Human Resources, Special 
Education and Technology Services.  While program titles represent each department, it is important to note that the CCOE Special 
Education department provides the administration and oversight of the Coastal Buttes Academy, a school dedicated to fostering student 
growth using a full continuum of educationally beneficial services designed to support student success in the least restrictive environment. 
Special Education students. Located at the same facility as Special Education, the Educational Services Department is responsible for a 
plethora of grants, Preventions Services programs, differentiated assistance to the four local districts, the Colusa County Adult School and 
provides the management and oversight of the S. William Abel Academy (SWAA).  

The S. William Abel Academy, which was previously referred to as the S. William Abel Community School, is a county community school 
providing academic and social emotional services for students that are expelled, deemed “At-Promise”, or are placed based on parental 
choice.  The school received WASC accreditation in 2018-19 and is in the midst of preparing its Self-Study for an accreditation team visit in 
March of 2022. SWAA is located in Williams and serves students in 7-12th grades. The enrollment numbers for SWAA continually fluctuate 
due to expulsion numbers, school referrals, graduates, the successful transition of students back to their home districts and the transiency of 
the student population. In 2018-19, 41 students were served by SWAA.  2019-20 showed a decline in enrollment to 23 students to the 
current enrollment for S. William Abel Academy of 7 students. These declining enrollment numbers represent students transitioning back to 
their home districts, 8 students receiving their high school diplomas in 2018-19, and 4 graduating in 2019-20.  Moreover, zero expulsions 
during the COVID-19 Pandemic, and the mere fact that schools were scrambling and trying to survive from March 2020 when the pandemic 

mailto:lniesen@ccoe.net


2 | P a g e  
 

hit has represented no growth in enrollment during the 2020-21 year. SWAA is considered a DASS (Dashboard Alternative School Status) 
School and with numbers in each subgroup being less than 10, it does not report student data to the California Dashboard. Regardless of the 
size of enrollment, SWAA continues to provide all students with an individualized learning plan to meet their individual needs, and the social 
emotional support necessary to ensure success. While all students receive services, the small student population does represent all of the 
various subgroups of foster youth, McKinney-Vento students, English learners, economically-disadvantaged students, Special Education 
students, Migrant various ethnicities, youth on probation, and students that are extremely credit-deficient. 

 With a small county office and a small school, this translates to employees wearing many hats.  For example, the Director of Educational 
Services serves as the Principal for SWAA, the sole administrator of the Colusa County Adult School, the LEA CAASPP Coordinator, the 
Farm to School Administrator, the LCAP writer, the WASC Accreditation lead and writer, provider of oversight of numerous grants and 
budgets, grant writer and all other duties as assigned. The positive side to staff wearing many hats allows the seamless transition of students 
to the adult school, the collaboration with the small number of teachers on staff, and the coherence of the writing of the SARC, WASC 
Report, Local performance Indicators and the LCAP.  The Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services also plays a key role in 
supporting the students at SWAA by providing translation, student support, budgeting assistance, and program guidance. She also provides 
direction in the writing of the aforementioned reports. 

Small student numbers and a small staff is not reflective of the support and services that SWAA students receive.  Even though the LEA 
attempts to apply for Title I, Title III, and other program funds, the small enrollment results in minimal amounts being awarded when 
compared to the time necessary to complete the required documents for compliance. Even though 43% of the student population are English 
Learners and Title III funds are not received, the Educational Services Team continues to provide all communications in both English and 
Spanish.  Individualized Learning Plan (ILP) meetings held every six weeks, college courses offered to students at the adjacent Woodland 
Community College Campus, counselor support, options for Independent Study, free meals and free daily transportation to and from school 
are just a few of the perks for SWAA students. Small student numbers have allowed the reopening of school in a swifter fashion than large 
districts. The ability to collaborate with the Colusa County Public Health, Probation and Behavioral Health Departments, Department of 
Health and Human Services, Woodland Community College, the  Sheriff’s Department and Williams Police Department result in students 
being supported by community agencies and an extension of services available.  The location of the S. William Abel Academy is the CCOE 
Education Village, which fittingly describes the approach the county office takes to serving its students. 

Reflections: Successes 

A description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 

Some of the successes achieved by the S. William Abel Academy includes: 

• 12 students graduating from S. William Abel Academy in the last two years 

• 2 students graduating as 11th graders 

• WASC Accreditation Status 

• Development of additional CTE experience in Certified Nursing Assisting for SWAA students amidst COVID-19 

• Transition of 5 students back to their home districts in 2019-20 



3 | P a g e  
 

In addition, there were no student suspensions in 2020 when compared to 2019 Dashboard Data being in the red. Local indicators self-
reflected indicate that SWAA continues to build trusting and respectful relationships with it partners and families and sustain them. Local 
indicators also reflect that SWAA is implementing and sustaining coordinated instruction and establishing ongoing collaboration and policy 
development for transparent referrals.  In addition, Prevention Services coordination of services has resulted in full implementation and 
sustainability of providing information and assistance to LEAs regarding the educational needs of foster youth. 

Reflections: Identified Need 

A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any areas of low 
performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address those areas. 

A focus area for improvement based on local indicator self-evaluation includes the need to create parent engagement opportunities. 
Collaboration with the Prevention Services Team has begun with the planning of “We are Family” themes to provide parents engaging 
experiences on a monthly basis. The self-reflection tool also identified the need to update curriculum based on state standards and 
frameworks 

2019 Dashboard data showed the S. William Abel Academy in red for suspension rates.  Needing to make changes to redirect student 
behavior, SWAA used a variety of MTSS strategies including a student incentive program and a PRIDE store for students to redeem tickets 
for positive behavior.  The PRIDE Store and student incentives will continue to be offered and with no suspensions in 2020-21, SWAA is 
hoping for the same outcome. 

LCAP Highlights 
A brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized. 

This year’s LCAP features a focus on curriculum and assessment to align curriculum with the most recent standards and frameworks.  It also 
provides actions and services to create more experiences in work based learning and Career Technical Education. In addition to student 
experiences, it provides actions to address social emotional learning and support for students as well as their families. Goals, actions and 
services were written directly to address the needs identified by students, parents, staff, and other key stakeholders. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 

An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 

Schools Identified 

A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 

N/A 

 



4 | P a g e  
 

Support for Identified Schools 

A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 

N/A 

 

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 

A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 

N/A 

 

Stakeholder Engagement  

A summary of the stakeholder process and how the stakeholder engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP.  

The Stakeholder Engagement Process is a result of many approaches to seek recommendations on how to maintain and improve programs 
at the S. William Abel Academy.  Traditional stakeholder processes like sharing the LCAP with English Learner Parent Advisory Committees 
and school site councils to request feedback does not occur at SWAA due to the low number of students, the transiency rate of students and 
the fact that with the small number of seven students, school staff communicate with parents regularly.  Instead, SWAA utilizes other means 
to engage stakeholders in the LCAP Process. Typically, two LCAP meetings are held each year and all stakeholder groups are invited.  Due 
to the COVID-19 Pandemic, only one LCAP Stakeholder Meeting was held on February 25, 2021. While there was representation of 
teachers, administration, support staff and partnering agencies, additional stakeholder feedback was solicited in addition to the 
recommendations made at the meeting.   

Stakeholder engagement also included discussing the 2021-24 LCAP at Student Stakeholder Meetings that occur monthly. The LCAP was not 
only listed as an agenda item, but a description of the role the LCAP plays in the school was provided.  Once students understood the role of 
the LCAP, suggestions for school improvement and recommendations for program changes were provided by students.  

The LCAP was also discussed at multiple Educational Services Staff Meetings requesting input on changes staff would like to see in moving 
forward. The Educational Services Team consists of the Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services, the SWAA Teacher, SWAA 
LMFT/Counselor, administrative assistant, Prevention Services team members, The Program Support Technician and the Director of 
Educational Services.  Monthly Cabinet meetings held at the county level also served as a platform for stakeholders to provide input. Cabinet 
members include other program areas such as Special Education, Children’s Services, Administrative Services, First 5, Technology Services, 
Public Relations and Educational Services. 

Surveys are used as a means to obtain stakeholder feedback from parents and students. While the California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) 
was provided and requested to be completed multiple times, results show only one parent completed the survey and some students. Data is 
currently pending regarding the outcome of the completed surveys and once received, the data will be used as recommendations for 
program improvement. Oral and written surveys were provided to parents and students in May 2020, regarding student and family needs 



5 | P a g e  
 

directly tied to access, COVID-19, and the request to return to a hybrid model of instruction.  In addition,  Summer School Surveys were 
provided and received by students and parents regarding the establishment of a summer academy to mitigate learning loss. Finally, due to 
the low response of the CHKS survey, surveys were conducted during Spring Parent/student/teacher Individualized Learning Plan meetings 
to obtain additional feedback on LCAP recommendations. 

Realizing the requirements to meet with local bargaining units, the Parent Advisory Committee, and  the English Language Parent Advisory 
Committee, SWAA does not have a local bargaining unit for its one full time teacher.  Also, with the small student population, parents are 
consulted on a regular basis regarding program changes needed so committee meetings are not held. Student feedback is provided at 
monthly Stakeholder meetings where the LCAP is a common agenda item. Since the SELPA Administrator is housed at the same site as 
SWAA, collaboration and communication is effective and on-going. 

Due to the small staff at SWAA, weekly check-in meetings between the teacher and principal provide an opportunity to discuss strategic 
planning, accountability and improvement in programs. Since the Director of Educational Services also serves as the Principal for the S. 
William Abel Academy and the LCAP writer,  the opportunity to request stakeholder feedback is often. Due to the meetings attended, the 
committees she serves on, the commitment to improve safety, and consistent communication with parents, students, and partnering 
agencies, stakeholder engagement is an on-going process. WASC recommendations from the Initial Visiting Committee in 2018 that resulted 
in accreditation through June 2022 have also been considered in the development of the LCAP. 

 

A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups. 

The LCAP Stakeholder meeting was attended by parents, teachers, the principal, the LMFT and agency partners. Since local bargaining 
units, English Language Parent Advisory Committee, and Parent Advisory Groups do not apply to SWAA due to its small student population 
of seven students other methods of obtaining feedback are used such as  individual parent contact, communication with the SELPA 
Administrator, and Student Stakeholder meetings 

Highlights of the February 25, 2021, LCAP Stakeholder meeting that included: 

• The appreciation of the continued collaboration between the S. William Abel Academy and the probation department. It was also 
requested that the same level of communication continue between the school and agency to better serve the students. 

• Other agency personnel believed there was a “strong support system for students with dedicated staff that care about student success” 
and would like that to continue. 

• Support staff present discussed the supports provided for the social-emotional well-being of students and how that was providing students 
the fundamentals needed for survival.  

• Recommendations from the LCAP Stakeholder Meeting included: 

• Continuing to provide transportation to and from school even after the COVID-19 Pandemic ends since public transportation has logistical 
issues 

• The creation of student success plans for all students with parent input so that parents could be educated on how to support their children 

• Improving attendance rates of students to ensure that students are in school 

• The inclusion of SWAA Students in One Stop’s Friday Night Live Club 
Additional Recommendations provided by staff, parents and students include: 



6 | P a g e  
 

• Continued incentives for students for achieving personal and class goals including but not limited to the PRIDE Store, Class Thermometer 
Goals, and end of the year field trips to acknowledge student success 

• More in-person field trips when they become available 

• Offering a Summer School Academy to mitigate learning loss 

• More physical education opportunities for students 

• Expand CTE and Work-based learning opportunities for students to develop work-ready skills 

• Changes to the meal program, including fresh foods in the meal delivery program 

• The need to continue to stay focused on student’s credits and classes  

• The continuation of home visits and school-family communications 

• Membership in Student Leadership Organizations for SWAA students 

• Continued need of support services for students and their families 

• Additional parent engagement opportunities to support parents  

• Implementation of additional assessment tools to monitor student progress and guide instruction 

• Creation of Professional Development Plans for classified and certificated staff to increase knowledge and capacity 

• Additional space for students to congregate and work on CTE Projects such as wood-working 

• Updating curriculum and supplemental materials aligned with state standards and the Common Core 

A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific stakeholder input. 

SWAA staff recognizes the need for continuous program improvement.  The stakeholder input provided above gives the school direction in 
areas to improve.  All recommendations will be given consideration but due to the small class size and the availability of resources, staff 
cannot guarantee all requests will be met. The writing of the goals, actions and services are reflective of the stakeholder feedback provided. 
The inclusion of critical areas for follow-up from the Visiting WASC Committee into the LCAP will result in the extension of accreditation for 
the S. William Abel Academy. The S. William Abel Academy works continuously to meet the needs of all stakeholder groups. With the small 
staff of seven people communication is an on-going process. There is open communication weekly with the teacher and principal through 
weekly check-ins.  In addition, the principal and administrative assistant meet weekly to discuss concerns and program improvement for 
SWAA. With probation personnel being on campus every two weeks, communication is consistent with our partners. Educational Services 
Monthly Meetings include LCAP as a standing agenda item. Communication is a key focus of SWAA. 

Goals and Actions 

Goal 
Goal # Description 

Goal #1 
S. William Abel Academy will raise the achievement of all students through rigorous, relevant curriculum and instruction and 
will be measured through formative and summative assessments. 



7 | P a g e  
 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

Even though S. William Abel Academy does not report individual student assessment data to the California Dashboard due to less than 10 
students per grade level, Exact Path Diagnostic results show that six out of seven students are below grade level in Reading, Math and 
Language Arts. The need for students to be at grade level and the recommendation from the Visiting WASC Committee for curriculum 
changes necessitates a need to change curriculum.  An alternative assessment program in addition to Exact Path Diagnostics will be 
reviewed and implemented to establish the amount of learning loss students have endured due to the pandemic. 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1A. Properly 
Credentialed 
Teachers 

2020-21 shows no 
teacher 
misassignments 

(CALPADS Data) 

  . CCOE will maintain 
fully credentialed 
teachers. 

1B. Student access 
to standards based 
instructional materials 

2020-21 shows all 
students have access 
to standards based 
instructional materials 

(2020-21 SARC 
Report) 

 . . Maintain 

All students have 
access to standards 
based instructional 
materials. 

2A. State Board 
Adopted academic 
content and 
performance 
standards fully 
implemented 

2020-21 

100% of online 
courses are aligned 
to state standards 

(Edmentum Course 
Descriptions) 

   100% of  all courses 
will be aligned with  
state standards and 
frameworks 

2B. How programs 
and services will 
enable EL’s access 
to CCSS and ELD 
standards 

2020-21 

100% of online 
curriculum include 
alignment to 
Designated and 
Integrated ELD 
standards 

   100% of new 
curriculum will align 
to CCSS and 
designated & 
integrated ELD 
standards 



8 | P a g e  
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

4A. Statewide 
Assessments 

2020-21 Data shows 
100% of 11th graders 
completed CAASPP 
Testing; 100% of 
ELL’s completed the 
ELPAC test 

.   Maintain 

Continue 
administering 
statewide 
assessments to all 
qualified students. 

4D. Increase English 
learner progress 
toward English 
proficiency or any 
subsequent 
assessment of 
English Proficiency 

Since students were 
not attending in-
person instruction in 
2019-20,due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic,  
no students were 
given the ELPAC test 
thus no data is 
available to report 

Three EL’s were 
given the ELPAC test 
in May 2021 

      

Establish baseline 
progress toward 
English proficiency as 
measured by ELPAC. 

4E. Percent of 
students reclassified 
to Fluent English 
Proficient 

2019-20 
Redesignation rate 
was zero due to the 
ELPAC not being 
administered due to 
the COVID-19 
Pandemic 

   Continue to provide 
ELD instruction to 
English learners to 
strengthen English 
fluency 



9 | P a g e  
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

7A. All students, 
including 
unduplicated pupils 
and individuals with 
exceptional needs 
will have access to a 
broad course of study 
that includes all 
subject areas defined 
in Ed Code 51210 
and 51220: 

2020-21 

100% of students 
have access to a 
broad course of study 
through the 
curriculum used for 
instruction 

 

 

 

 

 100% of students had 
access to a broad 
course of study 
through curriculum 
used for instruction 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

1 SWAA Teacher 
Highly qualified instructor to meet the academic needs of all students 
that has CLAD or SDAIE authorization 

$50,920.00 Y 

2 Assessment Program 
Implement a new assessment program to determine student levels and 
targeted areas for support 

$5000.00 Y 

3 Curriculum 

Provide students with a culturally responsive, relevant, curriculum 
aligned to California Standards (Common Core) with an emphasis on 
English Language Development, academic vocabulary, and reading 
proficiency 

Explore science and math curriculum replacement 

$25,000.00 Y 

4 Staff Professional Development 
Staff participation in professional development events that build capacity 
in providing engaging, educational learning experiences 

$1000.00 Y 

5 ELD Strategies 
Staff participation in professional learning intentionally designed to assist 
English Learners in core content and advancing in English language 
proficiency areas 

$500.00 Y 



10 | P a g e  
 

Goal Analysis 2021-2022 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

[Respond here] 

 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

[Respond here] 

 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

[Respond here] 

 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

[Respond here] 

 

A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table 

 

Goal # Description 

Goal #2  Provide an instructional program that prepares students for college and career readiness. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

Student response at student stakeholder meetings have been centered around Career Technical Education (CTE) Program experiences and 
the desire to participate in additional classes. Parent survey responses have indicated the need to have work-based learning experiences for 
their students. The overwhelming response to participate in the Summer School Academy in 2021, is a direct reflection that SWAA students 
are interested in hands-on, project-based learning experiences and parents are encouraging their enrollment. 



11 | P a g e  
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

4B. CTE Pathway 
Completion Rate 

2020-21 

Zero students 
completed CTE 
Pathways 

   Expansion of CTE 
course offerings to 
offer full CTE 
pathways. 

. 

 

4C. Percentage of 
students who have 
successfully 
completed UC 
Course requirements 
or CTE sequences or 
programs of study 
that align with 
California’s CTE 
Standards and 
Frameworks 

A-G courses were 
available to all 
qualified students 
however; these are 
not applicable metrics 
for community school 
students due to 
transiency, 
exceptional credit 
deficiency, lack of 
consistent 
assessments, and 
partial credit. No 
students enrolled in 
A-G courses in 2020-
21 

   Prepare students to 
take A-G courses and 
expose them to 
choices.  

Provide a student 
success plan for all 
students that includes 
projected graduation 

4F. The percent of 
students who pass 
AP exams 

2020-21 

Zero students took 
AP exams 

   Continue to prepare 
students to qualify 
them to take A-G 
courses and expose 
them to choices. 



12 | P a g e  
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

4G. Percent of 
students participated 
& demonstrated 
college preparedness 
in Early Assessment 
Programs 

2020-21 

No students enrolled 
in EAP 

   Continue to teach 
students essential 
reasoning and 
decision-making skills 
with the goal of 
higher order learning 
to provide choices:  
workforce/college: 

5E. High school 
graduation rate 

2019-20 

The graduation rate 
at the S. William Abel 
Community School 
during the 2019-2020 
school year was 
40%. 

These numbers 
fluctuate based on 
enrollment. 

 

 

    

Increase the 2020-21 
graduation rate by 
graduating 6 
students. 

 

Transition of 
students, 18 years 
and older to the  
Colusa County Adult 
School at the end of 
the school year to 
assist in graduating. 

8. Pupil Outcomes 
Percent of students 
participating in a CTE 
course: 

2019-2020  

26.09% of the 
SWACS students 
participated in a CTE 
course. 

   100% of students 
participate in a CTE 
course  

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

1 Individualized Learning Plans 
Use Individualized Learning Plans (ILP) and Student Success Plans to 
provide feedback on student progress to student, parent, and teachers to 
career and college ready skills and credits toward graduation.. 

$0  Y 



13 | P a g e  
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

2 
CTE and College Readiness 
Experiences 

Develop a continuum of experiences in CTE and college readiness for 
students that promote soft skills training, personal planning and field trips 
to business and college visits 

$30,000 Y 

3 Summer School Academy 
Continue the Summer School Academy with an emphasis on project-
based learning experiences 

$7356.00 

ELO Grant 

Y 

4 Course Offerings 
Provide course offering access to all students which may include classes 
at comprehensive schools, community college dual enrollment, and 
online learning classes to meet student’s academic goals 

$1000.00 Y 

 

Goal Analysis 2021-2022 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

[Respond here] 

 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 

[Respond here] 

 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

[Respond here] 

 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

[Respond here] 

 



14 | P a g e  
 

A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table 
 
 

Goal # Description 

Goal #3 
Develop and implement a multi-tiered system of support in collaboration with parents and partner agencies that improves 
social emotional health and student engagement. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

 Incorporating multiple levels of support for SWAA students is requested by parents and students. The increased supports will improve  
social emotional health for students as well as their families.  Stakeholders emphasized the need to provide supports for students at the 
Stakeholder Meeting in February 2021. 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1C. Facilities are 
properly maintained 
in “good or 
exemplary” repair 

2019-20 

Education Village 
Sites received an  
overall rating of 
“Good”  in FIT Report 

( Annual FIT Report) 

   Maintain 

Education Village 
sites receive an  
overall rating of 
“Good”  in FIT Report 

 



15 | P a g e  
 

3A, B, C: Facilitate 
parent involvement 
through multiple 
opportunities 
including parents of 
unduplicated pupils 
and individuals with 
exceptional needs. 

 

Individualized 
Learning plan 
meetings and Parent 
Teacher Conferences  
were held on 8/03/20; 
9/14/20; 9/15/20; 
9/20/20; 12/15/20; 
02/09/21; 5/18/21 

Parents were invited 
to attend the LCAP 
Stakeholder Meeting 
on February 25, 
2021.  

Parents were invited 
to participate in the 
CHKS Survey:14% of 
parents completed 
the survey 

Parents were 
surveyed May 2020 
and May 2021. 
71.4% of parents 
completed the 
surveys. 

100% were pleased 
with the transition to 
the  school Distance 
Learning/Hybrid 
Program. 

Parent Contact:  86% 
prefer face-to-face 
meetings; 14% prefer 
Zoom 

Rating of Food 
Program: 43%   
extremely effective, 

.   Host five parent 
engagement 
opportunities in 
collaboration with 
CCOE Prevention 
Services Staff. 

Parent Teacher 
Conferences will be 
held four times per 
year. 

80% of Parents will 
complete SWAA 
surveys. 

51% of parents 
complete CHKS 
Survey. 

Outreach will be 
100% with 90% 
parent participation 

 



16 | P a g e  
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

43% very effective, 
14% slightly effective. 

ILP meetings every 
six weeks promote 
participation of 
students with 
exceptional needs 

  

5A. Maintain the 
school attendance 
rate above 75% 

85.3% attendance 
rate for 2019-20 

(Aeries Data) 

   87% attendance rate 
for 2023-24 

5B. Decrease the 
chronic absenteeism 
rate by 3 % 

Chronic absenteeism 
rate was 56.52% in 
2019-20 

   53% chronic 
absentee rate in 
2023-24 

5C. Middle school 
dropout rate 

2020-21 

There was a zero 
dropout rate for 
middle school 
students  

    

As middle students 
enroll, continue to 
monitor attendance. 

5D. High school 
dropout rate 

2020-21  

High school dropout 
rate was zero. 

   Monitor high school 
student attendance 
and ensure an 
academic plan is in 
place that includes a 
graduation goal. 

6A. Reduce the 
number of students 
who are suspended 
annually 

2020-21 

Zero students were 
suspended. 

   Suspension rate of 
zero. 



17 | P a g e  
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

6B. Pupil Expulsion 
Rate 

2020-21 

No expulsions 
occurred at SWAA, 
thus resulting in zero 
expulsion rate 

   Maintain Expulsion 
rates at zero. 

6C. Student surveys 
on safety and school 
connectedness 

2020-21 

Due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, student 
surveys focused on 
how to improve 
services during 
distance learning, 
supports needed for 
Social emotional 
learning, and 
consideration of a 
hybrid program for 
the 2020-21 school 
year.  Survey results 
indicated 100% of 
students wished to 
return to a hybrid 
program in the fall if 
offered and felt that 
the school would be a 
safe place to return.   

   75% of students 
participate in CHKS 
Survey 

6C. Parent surveys 
on safety and school 
connectedness 

2020-21 

14% of parents 
completed the CHKS 
Survey 

   75% of parents 
participate in CHKS 
Survey 



18 | P a g e  
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

6C. Teacher surveys-
school safety and 
school 
connectedness 

2020-21 

Due to only having 
one classroom 
teacher, a teacher 
survey was not 
conducted.   

Teacher requested to 
return to a hybrid 
model of instruction 
in October 2020 to 
connect with 
students. 

   Continue weekly 
check-ins, staff 
meetings and 
informal 
conversations to 
collaboration with the 
teacher on ways to 
improve school safety 
and school 
connectedness 



19 | P a g e  
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

9. Coordination of 
services for expelled 
students 

Expelled Student 
Plan for 2018-2021 

Coordinated Services 
for expelled students 
including 
Collaboration with the 
juvenile court system, 
behavioral health, the 
Colusa County Adult 
School, Woodland 
Community College, 
and  CCOE Special 
Education.  

Developed Student 
transition plans and 
participated in 
transition meetings 
for students 
transitioning back to 
their home districts 

Developed and 
maintained Student 
ILP Plans for all 
students and  IEP  
and 504 plans when 
appropriate 

Coordinated services 
with CCOE 
Prevention Services 

    Continue 
coordination of 
services with county 
child welfare, juvenile 
court system, 
behavioral health,  
and districts, to 
ensure the timely 
transfer of student 
health and education 
records, immediate 
school enrollment, 
minimize changes in 
school placement, 
and immediate 
delivery of 
educational services. 

Work with CCOE 
Prevention Services 
team to coordinate 
services 



20 | P a g e  
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

10. Coordination of 
services for foster 
youth 

2020-21 

The Foster Youth 
Executive Advisory 
Council quarterly 
meetings 

 

Monthly Foster Youth 
District Liaison 
meetings  

 

Transportation and 
meals provided to ALL 
students at SWAA, 
including Foster Youth 
to ensure that they 
attended school   

   Continue 
coordination of 
services with CCOE 
Prevention Services  
to collaborate with 
county child welfare, 
juvenile court system, 
behavioral health, 
and districts, to 
ensure the timely 
transfer of student 
health and education 
records, immediate 
school enrollment, 
minimize changes in 
school placement, 
and immediate 
delivery of 
educational services 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

1 Facilities Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT) ratings of good or better $15,010.00 Y 

2 MTSS Provide academic and behavioral interventions $34,000.00 Y 

3 Transportation 
Provide reliable, safe transportation from home to school to increase 
attendance 

$7000.00 Y 

4 Student Meals 
Provide a nutritious breakfast and lunch for students through the 
National School Lunch Program for qualifying students and those that do 
not meet program requirements  

$6000.00 Y 

5 Parent Engagement 
Partner with CCOE Prevention Services Department to provide parent 
engagement opportunities on a regular basis and continue to invite 
parents to LCAP Stakeholder Meetings and student activities 

$1000.00 Y 



21 | P a g e  
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

6 Student Incentives 
Services and supplies need to achieve and maintain student academic 
and behavior goals 

$3500.00 Y 

7 SEL 
Provide social-emotional learning supports for students through 
curriculum. Activities, and staff training 

$8937 

ELO Grant 

Y 

8 Independent Study 
Support Independent Study/home school students by maintaining 
regularly scheduled weekly meetings to provide direct instruction, 
assignments and support. 

$0 Y 

9 Instructional Assistant 
Additional social emotional and academic services provided to SWAA 
students.  This position will be based on available funding sources 

$45000 

ELO Grant 

Y 

10 Referral process 

Continue coordination between CCOE-Educational Services Staff and 
district liaisons for all referrals to SWAA regular and Independent Study 
Program.  Coordination of activities includes referral process and the 
integration of special education compliance with all placement change 
requirements for students with an IEP 

$0 Y 

11 Foster Youth 

CCOE will coordinate services for foster children through appropriate 
tracking through Foster Focus; monthly district liaison meetings; 
providing technical assistance as needed; meeting program compliance; 
and maintaining existing MOU with Colusa County One Stop to support 
the Independent Learning Program. 

 

$1500.00 Y 

 

Goal Analysis 2021-2022 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

[Respond here] 

 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 



22 | P a g e  
 

[Respond here] 

 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

[Respond here] 

 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

[Respond here] 

 

A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table.  



23 | P a g e  
 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [LCAP Year] 

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services  
Increased Apportionment based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students  

 30.69% $30,550 

The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Increased or Improved Services Expenditures 
Table. 

Required Descriptions 
For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of (1) 
how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the goals for these students. 

A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required. 

Colusa County Office of Education is utilizing LCFF Supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs of 
low income, English learners and foster youth at the S. William Abel Academy. Due to the small school size, mobile student population, and 
extremely credit deficient students, LCFF supplemental funds are used schoolwide to increase or improve services for unduplicated students 
in the following manner: 

* Teacher salary: the teacher provides supplementary instruction to English Learners beyond the regular school hours intended to ensure the 
educational achievement, develop full proficiency in English, meet grade level standards, and reclassify in a timely manner.  Students are 
able to receive additional instruction before and after the regular school day. 

*Meals for low income students: students benefit form a no cost nutritious meal, improve their nutritional and educational outcomes which are 
directly tied to an increase in school attendance. 

*Public transportation to increase attendance: SWAA is 10 to 20 miles from neighboring rural schools; therefore providing transportation at 
no cost to students or families allows students to have a safe route to school while at the same time increasing student attendance.  
Providing transportation services in this high need area ultimately bridges the achievement gap. 

*Maintain Designated and Integrated ELD: assures all students receive equal access to required content standards.   

* Provide Foster and Homeless Liaison Trainings: ensures foster youth are properly identified and effective services are provided in a timely 
manner. 

 



 
 

 

Instructions 

Plan Summary 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Goals and Actions 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students  

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the LCAP template, please contact the local COE, or the California 
Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction and Instructions 

The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires LEAs to engage their local stakeholders in an annual planning process to evaluate their 
progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have ten state priorities). LEAs document the results of this 
planning process in the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) using the template adopted by the State Board of Education.  

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions:  

• Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic 
planning (California Education Code [EC] 52064(e)(1)). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to 
teaching and learning performance data. Local educational agencies (LEAs) should continually evaluate the hard choices they make 
about the use of limited resources to meet student and community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all 
students. 

• Meaningful Stakeholder Engagement: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made through 
meaningful stakeholder engagement (EC 52064(e)(1)). Local stakeholders possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's 
programs and services. Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals 
and actions to be included in the LCAP. 

• Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require 
LEAs to show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students in 
proportion to the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC 52064(b)(4-6)). 

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 
 

 

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics 
(EC 52064(b)(1) & (2)).  

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC 52064(b)(7)). 

The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which should: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning (b) through meaningful engagement 
with stakeholders that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP template do 
not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a stakeholder engagement tool.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of the 
school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted 
and actual expenditures are aligned. 

The revised LCAP template for the 2021–22, 2022–23, and 2023–24 school years reflects statutory changes made through Assembly Bill 1840 
(Committee on Budget), Chapter 243, Statutes of 2018. These statutory changes enhance transparency regarding expenditures on actions 
included in the LCAP, including actions that contribute to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, English 
learners, and low-income students, and to streamline the information presented within the LCAP to make adopted LCAPs more accessible for 
stakeholders and the public. 

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing, but also allow stakeholders to understand why, and 
whether those strategies are leading to improved opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use language and 
a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse stakeholders and the broader public. 

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and stakeholder engagement functions:  

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the California School Dashboard, how is the LEA using its 
budgetary resources to respond to student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including by meeting its 
obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics or a set of actions that the LEA believes, based on input gathered from stakeholders, 
research, and experience, will have the biggest impact on behalf of its students.  

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP itself. Additionally, information is included at the beginning of each section emphasizing the 
purpose that each section serves. 



 
 

 

Plan Summary 

Purpose 

A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to provide a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included in the subsequent sections of the LCAP. 

Requirements and Instructions 

General Information – Briefly describe the students and community. For example, information about an LEA in terms of geography, 
enrollment, or employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community challenges, and other such information as an LEA 
wishes to include can enable a reader to more fully understand an LEA’s LCAP. 

Reflections: Successes – Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, and any other information, what progress is the LEA 
most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying specific examples of how past 
increases or improvements in services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students have led to improved performance for these 
students. 

Reflections: Identified Need – Referring to the Dashboard, identify: (a) any state indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or 
“Orange” performance category or any local indicator where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating AND (b) 
any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What 
steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas of low performance and performance gaps? Other needs may be identified using 
locally collected data including data collected to inform the self-reflection tools and reporting local indicators on the Dashboard. 

LCAP Highlights – Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement – An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

● Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

● Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a 
school-level needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through 
the implementation of the CSI plan. 



 
 

 

● Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the 
CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Purpose 

Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such stakeholder 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally identified 
priorities (EC 52064(e)(1)). Stakeholder engagement is an ongoing, annual process.  

This section is designed to reflect how stakeholder engagement influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The goal is to allow 
stakeholders that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public understand how the LEA engaged stakeholders and 
the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing this section.  

Statute and regulations specify the stakeholder groups that school districts and COEs must consult when developing the LCAP: teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the LEA, parents, and students. Before adopting the LCAP, school 
districts and COEs must share it with the Parent Advisory Committee and, if applicable, to its English Learner Parent Advisory Committee. The 
superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must 
also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP. Statute requires charter schools to consult 
with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in developing the LCAP. The LCAP should also be 
shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner 
Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between schoolsite and district-level goals and actions.  

Information and resources that support effective stakeholder engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for 
advisory group composition, can be found under Resources on the following web page of the CDE’s website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/. 

Requirements and Instructions 

Below is an excerpt from the 2018–19 Guide for Annual Audits of K–12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, which is 
provided to highlight the legal requirements for stakeholder engagement in the LCAP development process: 

Local Control and Accountability Plan: 
For county offices of education and school districts only, verify the LEA: 

a) Presented the local control and accountability plan to the parent advisory committee in accordance with Education Code section 
52062(a)(1) or 52068(a)(1), as appropriate. 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/


 
 

 

b) If applicable, presented the local control and accountability plan to the English learner parent advisory committee, in accordance 
with Education Code section 52062(a)(2) or 52068(a)(2), as appropriate. 

c) Notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit comments regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to be 
included in the local control and accountability plan in accordance with Education Code section 52062(a)(3) or 52068(a)(3), as 
appropriate. 

d) Held at least one public hearing in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(1) or 52068(b)(1), as appropriate. 

e) Adopted the local control and accountability plan in a public meeting in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(2) or 
52068(b)(2), as appropriate. 

Prompt 1: “A summary of the stakeholder process and how the stakeholder engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP.” 

Describe the stakeholder engagement process used by the LEA to involve stakeholders in the development of the LCAP, including, at a 
minimum, describing how the LEA met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required stakeholder groups as applicable to the type of LEA. 
A sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement 
strategies with stakeholders. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to stakeholder engagement.  

Prompt 2: “A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.” 

Describe and summarize the stakeholder feedback provided by specific stakeholders. A sufficient response to this prompt will indicate ideas, 
trends, or inputs that emerged from an analysis of the feedback received from stakeholders. 

Prompt 3: “A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.” 

A sufficient response to this prompt will provide stakeholders and the public clear, specific information about how the stakeholder engagement 
process influenced the development of the LCAP. The response must describe aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in 
response to the stakeholder feedback described in response to Prompt 2. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized stakeholder 
requests within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the LCAP. For the purposes of this 
prompt, “aspects” of an LCAP that may have been influenced by stakeholder input can include, but are not necessarily limited to: 

• Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 

• Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 

• Determination of the desired outcome on one or more metrics 

• Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 

• Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 

• Elimination of action(s) or group of actions  

• Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 



 
 

 

• Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated services 

• Determination of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 

• Determination of material differences in expenditures 

• Determination of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 

• Determination of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 

Goals and Actions 

Purpose 

Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to stakeholders what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal should be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to stakeholders and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted by 
performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their student 
groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 

Requirements and Instructions 

LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
should consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that are 
included in the Dashboard in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. 

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 

• Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure 
improvement. A Focus Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 

• Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of 
metrics. 

• Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and 
allows an LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics. 



 
 

 

Focus Goal(s) 

Goal Description: The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound. An LEA develops a Focus Goal to 
address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach. The Focus Goal can explicitly reference 
the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal. An explanation must be based 
on Dashboard data or other locally collected data. LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including relevant 
consultation with stakeholders. LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a focus goal. 

Broad Goal 

Goal Description: Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal. The description of a broad goal will be 
clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal. The goal description organizes the actions and expected 
outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner. A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative 
terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for 
measuring progress toward the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped 
together will help achieve the goal. 

Maintenance of Progress Goal 

Goal Description: Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals 
in the LCAP. Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP. The 
state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with stakeholders, has determined to 
maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 

Measuring and Reporting Results: 

For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs are encouraged to 
identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that would reflect narrowing of any existing 
performance gaps.  

Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of 
the three-year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2019 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the most 
recent available (e.g. high school graduation rate). 

Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS. Because final 2020–2021 outcomes on some 



 
 

 

metrics may not be computable at the time the 2021–24 LCAP is adopted (e.g. graduation rate, suspension rate), the most recent data available 
may include a point in time calculation taken each year on the same date for comparability purposes. 

The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. 

Complete the table as follows: 

● Metric: Indicate how progress is being measured using a metric. 

● Baseline: Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2021–22. As described above, the baseline is the most recent data 
associated with a metric. Indicate the school year to which the data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 1 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2022–23, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 2 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2023–24, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 3 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2024–25, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. The 2024–25 LCAP will be the first year in the next three-year cycle. Completing this 
column will be part of the Annual Update for that year. 

● Desired Outcome for 2023-24: When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the desired outcome for the relevant metric the LEA 
expects to achieve by the end of the 2023–24 LCAP year. 

  



 
 

 

Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 

Desired Outcome 

for Year 3 

(2023-24) 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2021–

22. 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2021–

22. 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2022–

23. Leave blank 

until then. 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2023–

24. Leave blank 

until then. 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2024–

25. Leave blank 

until then. 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2021–

22. 

The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the applicable 
metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA. To the extent a state priority does not specify one or 
more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to use within the 
LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant self-reflection tool for local 
indicators within the Dashboard. 

Actions: Enter the action number. Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the expenditure tables. Provide a description 
of the action. Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be 
provided in the summary expenditure tables. Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increase or improved services requirement 
as described in the Increased or Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No. (Note: for each such action offered on an LEA-
wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Summary Section to address the 
requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496(b) in the Increased or Improved Services Section of the LCAP). 

Actions for English Learners: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant English learner student 
subgroup must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum, the language acquisition programs, as defined in EC 
Section 306, provided to students and professional development activities specific to English learners. 

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant Foster Youth student 
subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to Foster Youth students. 

Goal Analysis: 

Enter the LCAP Year 



 
 

 

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in 
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and 
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned 
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.  

● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures do not 
need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 

● Describe the effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. In some cases, not all actions 
in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal. When responding to this prompt, LEAs 
may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a single metric or 
group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for more robust 
analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency for 
stakeholders. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not closely 
associated. 

● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income 
Students  

Purpose 

A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides stakeholders with a comprehensive description, within a single dedicated 
section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improved services for its unduplicated students as compared to all students and how LEA-wide or 
schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements. Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be 
sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of stakeholders to facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this 
section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing.  

Requirements and Instructions 

This section must be completed for each LCAP year.  



 
 

 

When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the “Increased or Improved Services” section and enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using 
the copy of the section, complete the section as required for the relevant LCAP year. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years 
within the LCAP. 

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Increased Apportionment based on the enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students: Specify the estimate 
of the amount of funds apportioned on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated pupils for the LCAP year. 

Required Descriptions: 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an 
explanation of (1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these 
actions are effective in meeting the goals for these students. 

For each action included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for unduplicated 
pupils and provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA must include an explanation consistent with 5 CCR Section 15496(b). For 
any such actions continued into the 2021–24 LCAP from the 2017–2020 LCAP, the LEA must determine whether or not the action was effective 
as expected, and this determination must reflect evidence of outcome data or actual implementation to date. 

Principally Directed and Effective: An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA’s 
goals for unduplicated students when the LEA explains how: 

● It considers the needs, conditions, or circumstances of its unduplicated pupils; 

● The action, or aspect(s) of the action (including, for example, its design, content, methods, or location), is based on these considerations; 
and 

● The action is intended to help achieve an expected measurable outcome of the associated goal. 

As such, the response provided in this section may rely on a needs assessment of unduplicated students. 

Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation 
as to how, are not sufficient. Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does 
not meet the increase or improve services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

For example, if an LEA determines that low-income students have a significantly lower attendance rate than the attendance rate for all students, 
it might justify LEA-wide or schoolwide actions to address this area of need in the following way: 



 
 

 

After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students, we learned that the attendance rate of our low-
income students is 7% lower than the attendance rate for all students. (Needs, Conditions, Circumstances [Principally Directed]) 

In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will develop and implement a new attendance program that is designed 
to address some of the major causes of absenteeism, including lack of reliable transportation and food, as well as a school climate that 
does not emphasize the importance of attendance. Goal N, Actions X, Y, and Z provide additional transportation and nutritional 
resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign on the benefits of high attendance rates. (Contributing Action(s)) 

These actions are being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students with less than a 100% attendance rate will 
benefit. However, because of the significantly lower attendance rate of low-income students, and because the actions meet needs most 
associated with the chronic stresses and experiences of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the attendance rate 
for our low-income students will increase significantly more than the average attendance rate of all other students. (Measurable 
Outcomes [Effective In]) 

COEs and Charter Schools: Describe how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement on an 
LEA-wide basis are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 

For School Districts Only: 

Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis: 

Unduplicated Percentage > 55%: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, describe how these actions are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as described above. 

Unduplicated Percentage < 55%: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%, describe how these actions are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the 
actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, 
including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory. 

Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis: 

School Districts must identify in the description those actions being funded and provided on a schoolwide basis, and include the required 
description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis. 

For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these actions are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 



 
 

 

For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of unduplicated pupils: 
Describe how these actions are principally directed to and how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for foster 
youth, English learners, and low-income students in the state and any local priorities. 

“A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the 
percentage required.” 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved 
by at least the percentage calculated as compared to the services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to 
grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in the 
LCAP that are included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement. This description 
must address how these action(s) are expected to result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils as compared to the services the LEA provides to all students for the relevant LCAP year. 

Expenditure Tables 

Complete the Data Entry table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other 
Expenditure Tables. All information is entered into the Data Entry table. Do not enter data into the other tables. 

The following expenditure tables are required to be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 

• Table 1: Actions 

• Table 2: Total Expenditures 

• Table 3: Contributing Expenditures 

• Table 4: Annual Update Expenditures 

The Data Entry table may be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body, but is not required to be 
included. 

 In the Data Entry table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 

• Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 



 
 

 

• Action Title: Provide a title of the action.  

• Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All”, or by entering 
a specific student group or groups. 

• Increased / Improved: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services; OR, type “No” 
if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services. 

• If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 

o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e. districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades the 
entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups.  

o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 

o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools”. If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

• Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time for 
which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year”, or “2 Years”, or “6 Months”. 

• Personnel Expense: This column will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the following columns: 

o Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.  

o Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated. 

• LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e. base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation).  

• Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 



 
 

 

• Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
2021-22 Proposed Budget 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA 95932 
mwest@ccoe.net  p 530.458.0350 f 530.458.8054 

June 9, 2021 

To: Colusa County Board of Education 

From: Michael West 

Subject: 2021-22 Budget 

Attached you will find a copy of the budget for the 2021-22 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, 

for your review and approval. In light of the past year's events surrounding the COVID-19 

pandemic, we continue to take a fiscally cautious and conservative position in developing this 

budget based on the Governor's May 2021 budget proposal. 

However, we are in a much better place than we were one year ago. In June 2020, we were 

facing a pandemic-driven economic shutdown that was unprecedented in nature, with a 

projected budget deficit of $54 billion. We faced a call by the Governor for 10% cuts across the 

board in LCFF funding, and a suspension of any statutory cost-of-living adjustment (COLA). The 

future was ominous. 

What a difference a year makes. 

In one of the most dramatic turnabouts in California's history, the economy has come roaring 

back to life. In the Governor's May Revision, the state now has a projected $75.7 billion surplus 

for 2021-22, in addition to over $25 billion in federal relief. This equates to total funding of 

$121.7 billion for all K-12 education programs, the highest level of funding in California's 

history. Deferrals are being bought down, the COLA is back, and preparations are being made 

for a full return to the classroom. 

The Colusa County Office of Education used some of its reserves this past year to make it 

through the pandemic, but a return to surplus budgeting is currently projected. CCOE will 

continue to provide the best services and educational opportunities for its students and 

families as is possible. 

This budget is a snapshot of our present fiscal status and reflects the best plan that our fiscal 

department and program managers have, based on today's information and assumptions. 

Budgets are ever-changing documents that reflect the mission and goals of the county office, 

and change as more information is available. Monthly and Interim reports will be brought to 

the board to show any material changes throughout the year. 



 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 

COE Certification (Form CB/CC) .......................................................................................... 1 

Average Daily Attendance-Form A ..................................................................................... 7 

General Fund 01Assumptions and Forms........................................................................... 11 

Multi Year Projection (MYP) for General Fund 01 ............................................................. 40 

Adult Education Fund 11 ...................................................................................................... 47 

Child Development Fund 12 ................................................................................................ 62 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 ......................................................................................................... 75 

Special Reserve Fund 17 ...................................................................................................... 84 

Foundation for Private Purpose Trust Fund 73 ................................................................... 94 

 Criteria and Standards Report ......................................................................................... 107 

 



 

 

 

COE Certification Forms CB & CC 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
FINANCIAL REPORTS

2021-22 Budget
County Office of Education Certification

06 10066 0000000
Form CB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cb-c (Rev 03/26/2020) Page 1 of 4 Printed:  5/27/2021   10:32 AM

ANNUAL BUDGET REPORT:
July 1, 2021 Budget Adoption

This budget was developed using the state-adopted Criteria and Standards. It includes the expenditures
necessary to implement the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) or annual update to the LCAP
that will be effective for the budget year. The budget was filed and adopted subsequent to a public hearing
by the County Board of Education pursuant to Education Code sections 1620, 1622, 33129, 52066, 52067,
and 52068.

Public Hearing: Adoption Date: June 09, 2021

Place: CCOE Board Room/Zoom Signed:
Date: June 08, 2021 Clerk/Secretary of the County Board

Time: 4:00 PM (Original signature required)

Contact person for additional information on the budget reports:

Name: Aaron Heinz
Title: Associate Superintendent

Telephone: 530-458-0350
E-mail: aheinz@ccoe.net

To update our mailing database, please complete the following:

Superintendent's Name: Michael P. West
Chief Business Official's Name: Aaron Heinz

CBO's Title: Associate Superintendent
CBO's Telephone: 530-458-0350

Criteria and Standards Review Summary

The following summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards
Review (Form 01CS). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met" and supplemental information and
additional fiscal indicators that are "Yes" may indicate areas of potential concern for fiscal solvency
purposes and should be carefully reviewed.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met
Not
Met

1a Average Daily
Attendance (ADA) -
County Operations
Grant

Projected County Operations Grant ADA has not been overestimated by
more than the standard for the first prior fiscal year, or two or more of
the previous three fiscal years. X

1b ADA - County
Programs

Projected ADA for county programs has not exceeded the standard for
the budget and two subsequent fiscal years. X

2



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
FINANCIAL REPORTS

2021-22 Budget
County Office of Education Certification

06 10066 0000000
Form CB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cb-c (Rev 03/26/2020) Page 2 of 4 Printed:  5/27/2021   10:32 AM

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS (continued) Met
Not
Met

2 Local Control
Funding Formula
(LCFF) Revenue

Projected change in LCFF revenue is within the standard for the
budget and two subsequent fiscal years. X

3 Salaries and
Benefits

Projected total salaries and benefits are within the standard for the
budget and two subsequent fiscal years. X

4a Other Revenues Projected operating revenues (e.g., federal, other state, and other
local) are within the standard for the budget and two subsequent
fiscal years.

X

4b Other Expenditures Projected expenditures (e.g., books and supplies, and services and
other operating) are within the standard for the budget and two
subsequent fiscal years.

X

5 Ongoing and Major
Maintenance
Account

If applicable, required contribution to the ongoing and major
maintenance account (i.e., restricted maintenance account) is
included in the budget.

X

6 Deficit Spending Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard
for two or more of the last three fiscal years. X

7 Fund Balance Unrestricted county school service fund beginning balance has not
been overestimated by more than the standard for two or more of the
last three fiscal years.

X

8 Reserves Projected available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic
uncertainties, unassigned/unappropriated amounts) meet minimum
requirements for the budget and two subsequent fiscal years.

X

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION No Yes
S1 Contingent Liabilities Are there known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program

audits, litigation, state compliance reviews) that may impact the
budget?

X

S2 Using One-time
Revenues to Fund
Ongoing Exps.

Are there ongoing county school service fund expenditures in excess
of one percent of the total county school service fund expenditures
that are funded with one-time resources?

X

S3 Using Ongoing
Revenues to Fund
One-time Exps.

Are there large non-recurring county school service fund
expenditures that are funded with ongoing county school service fund
revenues?

X

S4 Contingent
Revenues

Are any projected revenues for the budget or two subsequent fiscal
years contingent on reauthorization by the local government, special
legislation, or other definitive act (e.g., parcel taxes, forest reserves)? X

S5 Contributions Have contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or
transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating
deficits, changed by more than the standard for the budget or two
subsequent fiscal years?

X

3



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
FINANCIAL REPORTS

2021-22 Budget
County Office of Education Certification

06 10066 0000000
Form CB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cb-c (Rev 03/26/2020) Page 3 of 4 Printed:  5/27/2021   10:32 AM

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) No Yes
S6 Long-term

Commitments
Does the county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments or
debt agreements? X

• If yes, have annual payments for the budget or two subsequent
fiscal years increased over prior year's (2020-21) annual
payment?

X

S7a Postemployment
Benefits Other than

Does the county office provide postemployment benefits other than
pensions (OPEB)? X

Pensions • If yes, are they lifetime benefits? X
• If yes, do benefits continue beyond age 65? X
• If yes, are benefits funded by pay-as-you-go? X

S7b Other Self-insurance
Benefits

Does the county office provide other self-insurance benefits (e.g.,
workers' compensation)? X

S8 Status of Labor Are salary and benefit negotiations still open for:

Agreements • Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 1) X
• Classified? (Section S8B, Line 1) X
• Management/supervisor/confidential? (Section S8C, Line 1) X

S9 Local Control and
Accountability Plan
(LCAP)

• Did or will the county office of education's governing board adopt
an LCAP or an update to the LCAP effective for the budget year? X

• Adoption date of the LCAP or an update to the LCAP: Jun 09, 2021Jun 09, 2021

S10 LCAP Expenditures Does the county office of education's budget include the
expenditures necessary to implement the LCAP or annual update
to the LCAP as described in the Local Control and Accountability
Plan and Annual Update Template?

X

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS No Yes
A1 Negative Cash Flow Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the

budget year with a negative cash balance in the county school
service fund?

X

A2 Independent
Position Control

Is personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
X

A3 Declining ADA Is County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior fiscal
year and budget year? X

A4 New Charter
Schools Impacting
County Office ADA

Are any new charter schools operating in county boundaries that are
impacting the county office's ADA, either in the prior fiscal year or
budget year?

X

A5 Salary Increases
Exceed COLA

Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any
of the budget or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would
result in salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected
state funded cost-of-living adjustment?

X

A6 Uncapped Health
Benefits

Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid)
health benefits for current or retired employees? X

4



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
FINANCIAL REPORTS

2021-22 Budget
County Office of Education Certification

06 10066 0000000
Form CB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cb-c (Rev 03/26/2020) Page 4 of 4 Printed:  5/27/2021   10:32 AM

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS (continued) No Yes
A7 Fiscal Distress

Reports
Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress?
If yes, provide copies to the CDE. X

A8 Change of CBO or
Superintendent

Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief
business official (CBO) positions within the last 12 months? X

5



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
2021-22 Budget

Workers' Compensation Certification
06 10066 0000000

Form CC

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cc (Rev 02/14/2017) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  5/27/2021  10:34 AM

ANNUAL CERTIFICATION REGARDING SELF-INSURED WORKERS' COMPENSATION CLAIMS

Pursuant to EC Section 42141, if a county office of education is self-insured for workers' compensation claims, the 
county superintendent of schools annually shall provide information to the governing board of the county board of
education regarding the estimated accrued but unfunded cost of those claims. The county board of education annually
shall certify to the Superintendent of Public Instruction the amount of money, if any, that has been reserved in the budget
of the county office of education for the cost of those claims.

To the Superintendent of Public Instruction:

( ) Our county office of education is self-insured for workers' compensation claims as defined in 
Education Code Section 42141(a):

Total liabilities actuarially determined: $
Less: Amount of total liabilities reserved in budget: $
Estimated accrued but unfunded liabilities: $ 0.00

( X ) This county office of education is self-insured for workers' compensation claims
through a JPA, and offers the following information:
Post 1995 claims liability is transferred to Protected Insurance Program for Schools (PIPS).

( ) This county office of education is not self-insured for workers' compensation claims.

Signed Date of Meeting: Jun 09, 2021
Clerk/Secretary of the Governing Board 

(Original signature required)

For additional information on this certification, please contact:

 Name: Aaron Heinz

 Title: Associate Superintendent of Admin 

 Telephone: 530-458-0350

 E-mail: aheinz@ccoe.net

6



 

 

 

AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE (ADA) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 06 10066 0000000

Form A

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: ada (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

     2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget2021-22 Budget

Description P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA
Estimated P-2

ADA
Estimated

Annual ADA
Estimated

Funded ADA

A. DISTRICT
 1.  Total District Regular ADA
      Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
      Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
      Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
      and Extended Year, and Community Day
      School (includes Necessary Small School
     ADA)
 2.  Total Basic Aid Choice/Court Ordered
     Voluntary Pupil Transfer Regular ADA 
      Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
      Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
      Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
      and Extended Year, and Community Day
      School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)
 3.  Total Basic Aid Open Enrollment Regular ADA
      Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
      Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
      Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
      and Extended Year, and Community Day
      School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)
 4.  Total, District Regular ADA
      (Sum of Lines A1 through A3) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 5.  District Funded County Program ADA
      a.  County Community Schools 
      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 
      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI
      d.  Special Education Extended Year
      e.  Other County Operated Programs:
           Opportunity Schools and Full Day
           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
           Schools
      f.  County School Tuition Fund 
           (Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380]
      g.  Total, District Funded County Program ADA
           (Sum of Lines A5a through A5f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 6.  TOTAL DISTRICT ADA
      (Sum of Line A4 and Line A5g) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 7.  Adults in Correctional Facilities
 8.  Charter School ADA
      (Enter Charter School ADA using
      Tab C. Charter School ADA)

8



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 06 10066 0000000

Form A

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: ada (Rev 03/15/2021) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

     2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget2021-22 Budget
Estimated P-2 Estimated Estimated 

Description P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
 1.  County Program Alternative Education  
      Grant ADA
      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
         Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 12.32 10.67 10.67 5.00 5.00 5.00
      d. Total, County Program Alternative Education
          ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through B1c) 12.32 10.67 10.67 5.00 5.00 5.00
 2.  District Funded County Program ADA
      a.  County Community Schools 0.14 0.13 0.13
      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 14.55 14.55 14.55 14.55 14.55 14.55
      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI
      d.  Special Education Extended Year 1.55 1.55 0.00 1.55 1.55
      e.  Other County Operated Programs:
           Opportunity Schools and Full Day
           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
           Schools
      f.  County School Tuition Fund 
           (Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380]
      g.  Total, District Funded County Program ADA
           (Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 14.69 16.23 16.23 14.55 16.10 16.10
 3.  TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
      (Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 27.01 26.90 26.90 19.55 21.10 21.10
 4.  Adults in Correctional Facilities 4.05 3.51 3.51 3.51 3.51 3.51
 5.  County Operations Grant ADA 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93
 6.  Charter School ADA
      (Enter Charter School ADA using
      Tab C. Charter School ADA)

9



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 06 10066 0000000

Form A

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: ada (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

     2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget2021-22 Budget

Description P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA
Estimated P-2

ADA
Estimated

Annual ADA
Estimated

Funded ADA
C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
    Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.    Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.
    Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.    Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.

      FUND 01:  Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01.      FUND 01:  Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01.

 1.  Total Charter School Regular ADA 
 2.  Charter School County Program Alternative 
      Education ADA
      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
          Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]
      d. Total, Charter School County Program 
          Alternative Education ADA
          (Sum of Lines C2a through C2c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 3.  Charter School Funded County Program ADA
      a.  County Community Schools 
      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 
      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI
      d.  Special Education Extended Year
      e.  Other County Operated Programs:
           Opportunity Schools and Full Day
           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
           Schools
      f.  Total, Charter School Funded County
          Program ADA
          (Sum of Lines C3a through C3e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 4.  TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
      (Sum of Lines C1, C2d, and C3f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      FUND 09 or 62:  Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 09 or Fund 62.

 5.  Total Charter School Regular ADA 
 6.  Charter School County Program Alternative 
      Education ADA
      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
          Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]
      d. Total, Charter School County Program
          Alternative Education ADA
          (Sum of Lines C6a through C6c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 7.  Charter School Funded County Program ADA
      a.  County Community Schools 
      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 
      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI
      d.  Special Education Extended Year
      e.  Other County Operated Programs:
           Opportunity Schools and Full Day
           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
           Schools
      f.  Total, Charter School Funded County
          Program ADA
          (Sum of Lines C7a through C7e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 8.  TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
      (Sum of Lines C5, C6d, and C7f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 9.  TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
      Reported in Fund 01, 09, or 62
      (Sum of Lines C4 and C8) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10



 

 

 

COUNTY SERVICE FUND - General Fund 01   
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11



General Fund Financial Assumptions 

Budget 2021-22 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

The assumptions used and listed in this document are the most current and 

accurate information we have available at the time of the preparation of the 

Proposed Budget for the year 2021-22. 

 

Throughout the fiscal year we continually strive to improve the budget 

information. Per Education Code 16222 no later than 45 days after the governor 

signs the annual budget we will make available for public review any revisions 

made to the budget to reflect material changes included in the budget act.  We 

also report to the board at First Interim (December), and Second Interim (March) 

report periods. 

 

The attached Standardized Account Code Structure (SACS) forms are presented 

by major object account classification, reflecting the 2020-21 Estimated Actuals 

in Columns A-C and the Proposed adopted budget in Column D-F.  The Budget 

figures are broken out by Restricted, Unrestricted and Totals for each of the two 

years.  The differences between the two years is shown as a percentage in the 

last column. 

 

Restricted programs are programs that are funded by specific sources for specific 

activities such as Special Education. Unrestricted programs are programs and 

expenditures that are funding by state and local dollars that do not have a 

specific activity tied to the funding source.  Although the word “unrestricted” is 

associated with these dollars, the county office has many mandated 

requirements and activities that these funds are used for, such as support to 

districts and Williams Act requirements. 

 

The SACS Forms attached are the documents the Board is adopting.  Other 

supplemental information is included to make the SACS forms more informative. 

 

12



Multi-year projections assume a modest cost of living allowance (COLA) increase 

based on the School Services Dartboard, while ADA has declined in the current 

budget year.  This combination of increased COLA and decreased ADA results in 

a slight increase to LCFF funding. 

 

Looking ahead to 2021-22 and beyond, the County Office recognizes that 

increased employee costs, including step and column, and STRS and PERS 

employer rate increases, outpace any gains made through LCFF funding.  The 

County Office continues to strive to its available resources prudently, all revolving 

around the belief that the students we help educate today are our future 

tomorrow. 

 

General Fund Revenue 
 

 

Revenue is generated by various State, Federal, and Local sources as well as 

transfers from other funds within the County Office. 

 

 

Enrollment projections are based on historical trends adjusted for any known 

information on current population.  Current projections are for declining 

enrollment for the current budget year, and flat enrollment for future years. 

 

LCFF
18%

Federal
15%

Other State
30%

Local
37%

2021-22 Revenues

LCFF Federal Other State Local

13



 

Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) is refined at each reporting period with the 

most current attendance data and the latest projections from CDE.  

 

The LCFF funds consist of Local Property Taxes, Education Protection Act (Prop 30) 

Funds, and State Aid.  LCFF funding equates to 18% of the general fund revenue.  

 

Federal Revenue comprises 15% of the general fund revenue. Federal grants such 

as Special Education, Literacy Grant and Homeless Grant are included in this line 

item. 

 

State Revenue is 30% of the general fund revenue. State grants such as Special 

Education, Foster Youth and Tobacco Use Prevention grants are included in this 

line item. 

 

Local Revenue makes up 37% of the general fund revenue. The majority of these 

funds are Special Education Excess Costs billed to the school districts in our 

county.   

 
 

General Fund Expenditures 
 
 
The 2021-22 expenditures in the general fund are projected to decrease 4.6% 

compared to 2020-21.  Much of the decrease is attributed to a reduction in grant 

funding and the associated expenditures. 

 

Salaries and Benefits 
Certificated salaries are 33% of all general fund expenditures. This is a slight 

increase compared to 2020-21 due to step increases for staff. 

 
Classified salaries make up 30% of all expenditures. This increase is mainly due to 

increased staffing in Facilities and IT, as well as step increases for staff.  

 

Employer paid benefit costs are 28% of all expenditures. The benefit costs have 

increased due to increased staffing, rising retirement costs, and an unusual 

increase by the state to the charged Unemployment Insurance (UI) rate from 

0.05% to 1.23%. 

 
Books and Supplies total 6% of all expenditures. This amount is less than 2020-21 

14



due to decreased funding in grants. 

 

Services and Other Operating Expenses are 7% of all expenditures. This amount is 

less than 2020-21 due to decreased funding in grants  

 
Equipment – Capital Outlay is less than 1% of all expenditures.   

 

Other Outgo - Indirect Costs reduced expenditures by over 4%.  Indirect costs are 

the amounts the COE charges programs to provide services such as business 

administration, personnel (HR), and payroll.   

 

Indirect Cost Rate (ICR)  
 
The ICR for the budget year 2021-22 is 10.93%. 

 
Programs will be charged the full state-approved rate unless program guidelines 

15



prohibit the full rate or special arrangements for a cap have been arranged with 

the Superintendent. The negotiated or capped ICR for 2021-22 are as follows: 

  

 Special Education / First 5 –  Not to exceed 7.00% 

 Children Services – Not to exceed 7.25% 

 Food Services – Not to exceed 5.48% 

 IAL Grant – Not to exceed 8.07% 

 

Fund Balance 

 

The Colusa County Office of Education is in sound financial standing and will 

continue to work to maintain this standing. 

 

The County Office is budgeting to spend less than it will receive in 2021-22, 

resulting in a budget surplus of $96,917. The Multiyear Projections (MYP) estimate 

continued budget surpluses during fiscal years 2022-23 and 2023-24. 

 

The most significant fiscal concern the County Office has is the limited LCFF 

growth competing with fixed costs such as step and column, and PERS and STRS 

costs, which combined are growing at a minimum pace estimated at 4% per 

year.  This increase outpaces our office’s LCFF funding even more so with a 

projected loss of 50% of our ADA in 2021-22.  Educational agencies across the 

state are struggling with managing this imbalance. 

 

The County Office will continue to provide the very best educational opportunities 

possible for the students of Colusa County.  As such, the Colusa County Office of 

Education is committed to finding ways to control costs without impairing services, 

and further enrich the lives of our students. 

 

16



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

2ndInterim

Budget

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Current

Budget

2021/22

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd   

Starting Balance

3,696,035 3,696,035 4,304,135 4,304,135 4,304,135 9700 4,024,914 

Revenue

2,495,351 2,706,265 2,706,265 2,706,265 2,614,393 8000 2,632,076 LCFF/Property Taxes

1,070,029 1,070,029 1,070,029 1,070,029 1,070,029 8100 1,118,585 Federal Revenue

544,378 544,378 726,764 1,430,475 1,454,700 8200 955,667 Federal Revenue

2,453,403 2,453,403 2,453,403 2,823,984 2,844,153 8300 2,845,565 Other State Revenue

1,513,680 1,513,680 1,591,165 1,722,534 1,530,582 8500 1,397,495 Other State Revenue

664,247 964,247 1,114,864 1,046,257 1,200,175 8600 760,314 Other Local Revenue

4,185,189 4,185,189 4,185,189 3,890,646 3,886,553 8700 4,586,795 Other Local Revenue

6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 8900 6,000 Other Sources

14,606,585 14,696,190 13,853,679 13,443,191 12,932,277 14,302,497 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

2,373,875 2,373,875 2,450,205 2,478,240 2,447,950 1100 2,497,210 Teacher Salaries

1,233,058 1,233,058 1,233,058 1,271,579 1,386,131 1200 1,390,162 Certificated Pupil Support Sal

693,350 693,350 713,428 704,247 715,950 1300 716,371 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

108,705 108,705 108,705 108,705 108,705 1900 110,798 Other Certificated

Total for Object 1000 4,658,736 4,562,771 4,505,396 4,408,988 4,408,988 4,714,541 

1,325,957 1,325,957 1,424,310 1,451,726 1,319,793 2100 1,467,251 Para Educator Salaries

565,419 565,419 565,419 596,406 580,406 2200 727,104 Classified Support

685,597 685,597 715,825 716,471 716,867 2300 685,509 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

845,708 845,708 939,269 942,418 951,230 2400 965,064 Clerical/Office Salaries

249,842 249,842 249,842 242,672 240,153 2900 355,770 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 3,808,449 3,949,693 3,894,665 3,672,523 3,672,523 4,200,698 

1,189,837 1,189,837 1,203,765 1,204,945 1,126,785 3100 1,142,866 STRS State Teachers Retirement

853,911 853,911 870,522 888,103 831,810 3200 991,115 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

348,292 348,292 359,251 365,480 351,322 3300 388,093 Social Security/Medicare

870,254 870,254 909,492 922,765 950,060 3400 1,053,918 Health & Welfare Insurance

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), May 27 2021 10:39AM 

Page 1 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 17



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

2ndInterim

Budget

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Current

Budget

2021/22

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 01 - General Fund/county Sch.srv.fd    (continued)

Expense (continued)

8,792 8,792 8,831 8,870 8,848 3500 115,734 State Unemployment Insurance

242,503 242,503 250,859 254,306 249,936 3600 265,710 Workers Compensation

10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 3700 10,000 Retiree Benefits

Total for Object 3000 3,528,761 3,654,469 3,612,720 3,523,589 3,523,589 3,967,436 

443,869 443,869 496,937 799,884 766,203 4300 490,099 Materials and Supplies

88,167 88,167 213,230 362,886 369,944 4400 220,538 Noncapitalized Equipment

61,887 61,887 61,887 61,887 61,887 4700 74,679 Food

Total for Object 4000 1,198,034 1,224,657 772,054 593,923 593,923 785,316 

190,297 190,297 207,039 198,708 157,977 5200 139,440 Travel/Conference

35,073 35,073 35,073 35,148 35,845 5300 38,172 Dues/Memberships

80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 106,879 5400 115,000 Property/Liab.Insurance

116,586 116,586 116,586 116,586 116,586 5500 116,586 Utilities

113,621 113,621 113,623 117,628 117,928 5600 116,181 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

289,726- 289,726- 289,726- 289,726- 289,512-5700 621,093-Direct Costs Transfers

1,030,310 830,310 1,201,021 1,344,098 1,523,131 5800 889,583 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

143,310 143,310 145,451 151,193 145,451 5900 185,272 Communications

Total for Object 5000 1,914,285 1,753,635 1,609,067 1,219,471 1,419,471 979,141 

55,000 90,031 6100 30,000 Land Improvements

36,432 36,432 173,206 195,706 218,826 6400 38,302 Equipment

15,000 6500 Equipment Replacement

Total for Object 6000 323,857 250,706 173,206 36,432 36,432 68,302 

449,350- 449,350- 489,896- 504,857- 546,316-7300 509,854-Direct Support/indirect Costs

14,885,806 14,891,074 14,077,212 13,005,576 13,205,576 14,205,580 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

3,422,736 3,422,736 4,080,602 4,121,363 4,024,914 9700

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), May 27 2021 10:39AM 

Page 2 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 18



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

2ndInterim

Budget

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Current

Budget

2021/22

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Total for Fund 01

Starting Balance 3,696,035 3,696,035 4,304,135 4,304,135 4,304,135 4,024,914 

Revenue 13,443,191 12,932,277 13,853,679 14,696,190 14,606,585 14,302,497 

Expense 13,205,576 13,005,576 14,077,212 14,891,074 14,885,806 14,205,580 

Ending Balance Acct Type 3,422,736 3,422,736 4,080,602 4,121,363 4,024,914 0 

Calc Ending Balance 3,422,736 4,133,650 4,080,602 4,109,251 4,024,914 4,121,831 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), May 27 2021 10:39AM 

Page 3 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 19



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 1 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,208,651.00 405,742.00 2,614,393.00 2,226,334.00 405,742.00 2,632,076.00 0.7%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 2,524,729.00 2,524,729.00 0.00 2,074,252.00 2,074,252.00 -17.8%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 22,800.00 4,351,935.00 4,374,735.00 18,800.00 4,224,260.00 4,243,060.00 -3.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 649,067.00 4,437,661.00 5,086,728.00 632,060.00 4,715,049.00 5,347,109.00 5.1%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,880,518.00 11,720,067.00 14,600,585.00 2,877,194.00 11,419,303.00 14,296,497.00 -2.1%

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 490,573.00 4,168,163.00 4,658,736.00 519,395.00 4,195,146.00 4,714,541.00 1.2%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,451,528.00 2,356,921.00 3,808,449.00 1,535,844.00 2,664,854.00 4,200,698.00 10.3%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 844,132.00 2,684,629.00 3,528,761.00 937,873.00 3,029,563.00 3,967,436.00 12.4%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 233,071.00 964,963.00 1,198,034.00 215,823.00 569,493.00 785,316.00 -34.4%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 535,711.00 1,378,574.00 1,914,285.00 589,077.00 390,064.00 979,141.00 -48.9%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 141,126.00 182,731.00 323,857.00 32,902.00 35,400.00 68,302.00 -78.9%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299
           Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,249,928.00) 703,612.00 (546,316.00) (1,216,177.00) 706,323.00 (509,854.00) -6.7%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,446,213.00 12,439,593.00 14,885,806.00 2,614,737.00 11,590,843.00 14,205,580.00 -4.6%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 434,305.00 (719,526.00) (285,221.00) 262,457.00 (171,540.00) 90,917.00 -131.9%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 (348,031.00) 348,031.00 0.00 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (342,031.00) 348,031.00 6,000.00 (165,540.00) 171,540.00 6,000.00 0.0%

20



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 2 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
    BALANCE (C + D4) 92,274.00 (371,495.00) (279,221.00) 96,917.00 0.00 96,917.00 -134.7%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 3,922,140.00 381,995.00 4,304,135.00 4,014,414.00 10,500.00 4,024,914.00 -6.5%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 3,922,140.00 381,995.00 4,304,135.00 4,014,414.00 10,500.00 4,024,914.00 -6.5%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 3,922,140.00 381,995.00 4,304,135.00 4,014,414.00 10,500.00 4,024,914.00 -6.5%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 4,014,414.00 10,500.00 4,024,914.00 4,111,331.00 10,500.00 4,121,831.00 2.4%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance 
        a) Nonspendable
            Revolving Cash 9711 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%

            Stores 9712 0.00 10,479.80 10,479.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

            Prepaid Items 9713 11,488.88 0.00 11,488.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 20.20 20.20 0.00 10,500.00 10,500.00 51880.2%

        c) Committed
            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 3,258,135.12 0.00 3,258,135.12 3,400,552.00 0.00 3,400,552.00 4.4%

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,808,773.00 2,808,773.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,666,356.12 2,666,356.12

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated     

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 744,290.00 0.00 744,290.00 710,279.00 0.00 710,279.00 -4.6%

           Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

21



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 3 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

G. ASSETS

    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 4,605,090.30 (1,888,515.66) 2,716,574.64

            1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00 0.00 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00 0.00 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 500.00 0.00 500.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00 0.00 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00 0.00 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00 0.00 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 0.00 234,995.06 234,995.06

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00 0.00 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 6,613.73 0.00 6,613.73

    6) Stores 9320 0.00 10,479.80 10,479.80

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 11,488.88 0.00 11,488.88

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00 0.00 0.00

    9) TOTAL, ASSETS 4,623,692.91 (1,643,040.80) 2,980,652.11

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00 0.00 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 279,635.69 0.00 279,635.69

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00 0.00 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00 0.00 0.00

    4) Current Loans 9640 0.00 0.00 0.00

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00 0.00 0.00

    6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 279,635.69 0.00 279,635.69

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00 0.00 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

    Ending Fund Balance, June 30

22



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 4 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

    (G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 4,344,057.22 (1,643,040.80) 2,701,016.42

23



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 5 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

LCFF SOURCES
 
  Principal Apportionment
    State Aid - Current Year 8011 1,642,219.00 0.00 1,642,219.00 1,659,902.00 0.00 1,659,902.00 1.1%

    Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 481,199.00 0.00 481,199.00 481,199.00 0.00 481,199.00 0.0%

    State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Tax Relief Subventions
    Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 2,601.00 0.00 2,601.00 0.0%

    Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  County & District Taxes
    Secured Roll Taxes 8041 458,750.00 0.00 458,750.00 458,750.00 0.00 458,750.00 0.0%

    Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 28,192.00 0.00 28,192.00 28,192.00 0.00 28,192.00 0.0%

    Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Supplemental Taxes 8044 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 5,746.00 0.00 5,746.00 0.0%

    Education Revenue Augmentation
     Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Community Redevelopment Funds
     (SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Penalties and Interest from
     Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)
    Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 1,348.00 0.00 1,348.00 0.0%

    Less: Non-LCFF
          (50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

  Subtotal, LCFF Sources 2,620,055.00 0.00 2,620,055.00 2,637,738.00 0.00 2,637,738.00 0.7%
  LCFF Transfers

    Unrestricted LCFF Transfers -
     Current Year 0000 8091 (5,662.00) (5,662.00) (5,662.00) (5,662.00) 0.0%

    All Other LCFF Transfers -
     Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Property Taxes Transfers 8097 (405,742.00) 405,742.00 0.00 (405,742.00) 405,742.00 0.00 0.0%

24



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 6 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,208,651.00 405,742.00 2,614,393.00 2,226,334.00 405,742.00 2,632,076.00 0.7%

FEDERAL REVENUE
 

  Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 854,044.00 854,044.00 0.00 898,212.00 898,212.00 5.2%

  Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 215,985.00 215,985.00 0.00 220,373.00 220,373.00 2.0%

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 100,465.00 100,465.00 0.00 128,483.00 128,483.00 27.9%

  Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from
   Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 
   Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 4035 8290 610.00 610.00 610.00 610.00 0.0%

  Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student
   Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

25



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 7 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

  Title III, Part A, English Learner

   Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Public Charter Schools Grant 
   Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act

3020, 3040, 3041,
3045, 3060, 3061,
3110, 3150, 3155,
3177, 3180, 3181,
3182, 3183, 3185,
4037, 4050, 4123,
4124, 4126, 4127,
4128, 4204, 5510,
5630 8290 96,927.00 96,927.00 74,225.00 74,225.00 -23.4%

  Career and Technical
   Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 1,256,698.00 1,256,698.00 0.00 752,349.00 752,349.00 -40.1%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 2,524,729.00 2,524,729.00 0.00 2,074,252.00 2,074,252.00 -17.8%

OTHER STATE REVENUE
 

  Other State Apportionments

    ROC/P Entitlement
      Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education Master Plan
      Current Year 6500 8311 2,741,643.00 2,741,643.00 2,766,168.00 2,766,168.00 0.9%

      Prior Years 6500 8319 23,113.00 23,113.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 79,397.00 79,397.00 0.00 79,397.00 79,397.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 0.00 47,000.00 47,000.00 422.2%

    Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 9,800.00 0.00 9,800.00 9,800.00 0.00 9,800.00 0.0%

    Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 8,000.00 3,700.00 11,700.00 4,000.00 2,400.00 6,400.00 -45.3%

    Tax Relief Subventions
      Restricted Levies - Other 

        Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from
     State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

26



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 8 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

    Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6650, 6680, 6685,

6690, 6695 8590 122,741.00 122,741.00 85,000.00 85,000.00 -30.7%

    California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Career Technical Education Incentive 
     Grant Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Specialized Secondary  7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Quality Education Investment Act 7400 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 5,000.00 1,372,341.00 1,377,341.00 5,000.00 1,244,295.00 1,249,295.00 -9.3%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 22,800.00 4,351,935.00 4,374,735.00 18,800.00 4,224,260.00 4,243,060.00 -3.0%

27



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 9 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
 

  Other Local Revenue
    County and District Taxes

      Other Restricted Levies
         Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Ad Valorem Taxes
         Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

         Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Community Redevelopment Funds
       Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Penalties and Interest from
       Delinquent Non-LCFF 
       Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 28,090.00 28,090.00 0.00 28,090.00 28,090.00 0.0%

      All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 75,000.00 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00 75,000.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value
      of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts
      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 20,250.00 359,225.00 379,475.00 250.00 60,981.00 61,231.00 -83.9%

      Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue
      Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF

28



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 10 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

            (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Pass-Through Revenues From
       Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 376,324.00 341,286.00 717,610.00 371,324.00 224,669.00 595,993.00 -16.9%

  Tuition 8710 16,755.00 3,709,060.00 3,725,815.00 10,367.00 4,401,309.00 4,411,676.00 18.4%

  All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 160,738.00 0.00 160,738.00 175,119.00 0.00 175,119.00 8.9%

  Transfers of Apportionments
      Special Education SELPA Transfers
        From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      ROC/P Transfers
        From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Transfers of Apportionments
        From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%   

        From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 649,067.00 4,437,661.00 5,086,728.00 632,060.00 4,715,049.00 5,347,109.00 5.1%
 

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,880,518.00 11,720,067.00 14,600,585.00 2,877,194.00 11,419,303.00 14,296,497.00 -2.1%

29



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 11 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 51,293.00 2,396,657.00 2,447,950.00 62,636.00 2,434,574.00 2,497,210.00 2.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 6,791.00 1,379,340.00 1,386,131.00 0.00 1,390,162.00 1,390,162.00 0.3%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 432,489.00 283,461.00 715,950.00 456,759.00 259,612.00 716,371.00 0.1%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 108,705.00 108,705.00 0.00 110,798.00 110,798.00 1.9%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 490,573.00 4,168,163.00 4,658,736.00 519,395.00 4,195,146.00 4,714,541.00 1.2%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 1,319,793.00 1,319,793.00 0.00 1,467,251.00 1,467,251.00 11.2%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 205,676.00 374,730.00 580,406.00 265,393.00 461,711.00 727,104.00 25.3%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 523,756.00 193,111.00 716,867.00 517,042.00 168,467.00 685,509.00 -4.4%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 722,096.00 229,134.00 951,230.00 753,409.00 211,655.00 965,064.00 1.5%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 240,153.00 240,153.00 0.00 355,770.00 355,770.00 48.1%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,451,528.00 2,356,921.00 3,808,449.00 1,535,844.00 2,664,854.00 4,200,698.00 10.3%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
 

  STRS 3101-3102 75,901.00 1,050,884.00 1,126,785.00 86,142.00 1,056,724.00 1,142,866.00 1.4%

  PERS 3201-3202 329,315.00 502,495.00 831,810.00 351,354.00 639,761.00 991,115.00 19.2%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 113,137.00 238,185.00 351,322.00 120,094.00 267,999.00 388,093.00 10.5%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 257,653.00 692,407.00 950,060.00 286,985.00 766,933.00 1,053,918.00 10.9%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 841.00 8,007.00 8,848.00 22,186.00 93,548.00 115,734.00 1208.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 57,285.00 192,651.00 249,936.00 61,112.00 204,598.00 265,710.00 6.3%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 844,132.00 2,684,629.00 3,528,761.00 937,873.00 3,029,563.00 3,967,436.00 12.4%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 147,533.00 618,670.00 766,203.00 181,785.00 308,314.00 490,099.00 -36.0%

30



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 12 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 85,538.00 284,406.00 369,944.00 34,038.00 186,500.00 220,538.00 -40.4%

  Food 4700 0.00 61,887.00 61,887.00 0.00 74,679.00 74,679.00 20.7%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 233,071.00 964,963.00 1,198,034.00 215,823.00 569,493.00 785,316.00 -34.4%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 77,133.00 80,844.00 157,977.00 81,133.00 58,307.00 139,440.00 -11.7%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 32,522.00 3,323.00 35,845.00 34,172.00 4,000.00 38,172.00 6.5%

  Insurance 5400 - 5450 106,879.00 0.00 106,879.00 115,000.00 0.00 115,000.00 7.6%

  Operations and Housekeeping
   Services 5500 105,000.00 11,586.00 116,586.00 105,000.00 11,586.00 116,586.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and 
   Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 91,187.00 26,741.00 117,928.00 92,446.00 23,735.00 116,181.00 -1.5%   

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 (69,150.00) 69,150.00 0.00 (68,737.00) 68,737.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (289,512.00) 0.00 (289,512.00) (286,782.00) (334,311.00) (621,093.00) 114.5%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 348,780.00 1,174,351.00 1,523,131.00 341,111.00 548,472.00 889,583.00 -41.6%

  Communications 5900 132,872.00 12,579.00 145,451.00 175,734.00 9,538.00 185,272.00 27.4%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
  OPERATING EXPENDITURES 535,711.00 1,378,574.00 1,914,285.00 589,077.00 390,064.00 979,141.00 -48.9%

31



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 13 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

CAPITAL OUTLAY
 

  Land 6100 0.00 35,031.00 35,031.00 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 -14.4%

  Land Improvements 6170 55,000.00 0.00 55,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Media for New School Libraries
   or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 71,126.00 147,700.00 218,826.00 32,902.00 5,400.00 38,302.00 -82.5%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 141,126.00 182,731.00 323,857.00 32,902.00 35,400.00 68,302.00 -78.9%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
 

  Tuition
    Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict
     Attendance  Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments
      To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments
      To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

32



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 14 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

      All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Debt Service
      Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
 

   Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 (703,612.00) 703,612.00 0.00 (706,323.00) 706,323.00 0.00 0.0%

   Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (546,316.00) 0.00 (546,316.00) (509,854.00) 0.00 (509,854.00) -6.7%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (1,249,928.00) 703,612.00 (546,316.00) (1,216,177.00) 706,323.00 (509,854.00) -6.7%
 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,446,213.00 12,439,593.00 14,885,806.00 2,614,737.00 11,590,843.00 14,205,580.00 -4.6%

33



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 15 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0% 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

    To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/
     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

  SOURCES

    State Apportionments
      Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Proceeds

      Proceeds from Disposal of
       Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Sources
      County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Transfers from Funds of
       Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds
      Proceeds from Certificates
       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

     Transfers of Funds from
      Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

34



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted

Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 16 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

     All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 (348,031.00) 348,031.00 0.00 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (348,031.00) 348,031.00 0.00 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) (342,031.00) 348,031.00 6,000.00 (165,540.00) 171,540.00 6,000.00 0.0%

35



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted
Expenditures by Function

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/21/2018) Page 1 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Function Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,208,651.00 405,742.00 2,614,393.00 2,226,334.00 405,742.00 2,632,076.00 0.7%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 2,524,729.00 2,524,729.00 0.00 2,074,252.00 2,074,252.00 -17.8%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 22,800.00 4,351,935.00 4,374,735.00 18,800.00 4,224,260.00 4,243,060.00 -3.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 649,067.00 4,437,661.00 5,086,728.00 632,060.00 4,715,049.00 5,347,109.00 5.1%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,880,518.00 11,720,067.00 14,600,585.00 2,877,194.00 11,419,303.00 14,296,497.00 -2.1%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)
 

    1) Instruction 1000-1999 135,225.00 6,025,371.00 6,160,596.00 133,749.00 6,478,387.00 6,612,136.00 7.3%

    2) Instruction - Related Services 2000-2999 870,904.00 2,705,669.00 3,576,573.00 920,232.00 1,957,483.00 2,877,715.00 -19.5%

    3) Pupil Services 3000-3999 104,740.00 2,183,547.00 2,288,287.00 88,256.00 1,993,646.00 2,081,902.00 -9.0%

    4) Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00 62,631.00 62,631.00 10,300.00 139,392.00 149,692.00 139.0%

    5) Community Services 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) General Administration 7000-7999 1,106,151.00 1,111,001.00 2,217,152.00 1,213,004.00 739,072.00 1,952,076.00 -12.0%

    8) Plant Services 8000-8999 229,193.00 351,374.00 580,567.00 249,196.00 282,863.00 532,059.00 -8.4%

    9) Other Outgo 9000-9999
Except

7600-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,446,213.00 12,439,593.00 14,885,806.00 2,614,737.00 11,590,843.00 14,205,580.00 -4.6%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B10) 434,305.00 (719,526.00) (285,221.00) 262,457.00 (171,540.00) 90,917.00 -131.9%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 (348,031.00) 348,031.00 0.00 (171,540.00) 171,540.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (342,031.00) 348,031.00 6,000.00 (165,540.00) 171,540.00 6,000.00 0.0%

36



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted
Expenditures by Function

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/21/2018) Page 2 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Function Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
    BALANCE (C + D4) 92,274.00 (371,495.00) (279,221.00) 96,917.00 0.00 96,917.00 -134.7%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 3,922,140.00 381,995.00 4,304,135.00 4,014,414.00 10,500.00 4,024,914.00 -6.5%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 3,922,140.00 381,995.00 4,304,135.00 4,014,414.00 10,500.00 4,024,914.00 -6.5%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 3,922,140.00 381,995.00 4,304,135.00 4,014,414.00 10,500.00 4,024,914.00 -6.5%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 4,014,414.00 10,500.00 4,024,914.00 4,111,331.00 10,500.00 4,121,831.00 2.4%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance 
        a) Nonspendable
            Revolving Cash 9711 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%

            Stores 9712 0.00 10,479.80 10,479.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

            Prepaid Items 9713 11,488.88 0.00 11,488.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 20.20 20.20 0.00 10,500.00 10,500.00 51880.2%

        c) Committed
            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned

            Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 9780 3,258,135.12 0.00 3,258,135.12 3,400,552.00 0.00 3,400,552.00 4.4%

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,808,773.00 2,808,773.00

Solar Payoff 0000 9780 75,000.00 75,000.00

Technology Upgrades 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

Community School Set Aside 0000 9780 316,779.00 316,779.00

Deferred Maintenance 0000 9780 100,000.00 100,000.00

CCOE 0000 9780 2,666,356.12 2,666,356.12

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

             Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 744,290.00 0.00 744,290.00 710,279.00 0.00 710,279.00 -4.6%

37



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund
Unrestricted and Restricted
Expenditures by Function

06 10066 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 02/21/2018) Page 3 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

  2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget

Description Function Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

             Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

38



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-a (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed:  5/25/2021  4:53 PM

2020-21 2021-22
Resource Description  Estimated Actuals Budget

5320 Child Nutrition: Child Care Food Program (CCFP) Claims-Centers and Family Day Ca20.20 10,500.00

Total, Restricted Balance 20.20 10,500.00

39



 

 

 

Multi Year Projection (MYP) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYP

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: myp (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:55 AM

Description
Object
Codes

2021-22
Budget

(Form 01)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form A, Line B5) 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
  current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,226,334.00 2.48% 2,281,547.00 3.11% 2,352,503.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 18,800.00 0.00% 18,800.00 0.00% 18,800.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 632,060.00 0.00% 632,060.00 0.00% 632,060.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 (171,540.00) -3.78% (165,052.00) -7.84% (152,120.00)

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 2,711,654.00 2.28% 2,773,355.00 3.02% 2,857,243.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 519,395.00 527,186.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 7,791.00 7,908.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 519,395.00 1.50% 527,186.00 1.50% 535,094.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 1,535,844.00 1,558,882.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 23,038.00 23,383.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 1,535,844.00 1.50% 1,558,882.00 1.50% 1,582,265.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 937,873.00 8.03% 1,013,162.00 3.06% 1,044,182.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 215,823.00 0.00% 215,823.00 0.00% 215,823.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 589,077.00 0.00% 589,077.00 0.00% 589,077.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 32,902.00 0.00% 32,902.00 0.00% 32,902.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,216,177.00) 0.95% (1,227,776.00) 0.55% (1,234,586.00)

  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

10.  Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below)

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 2,614,737.00 3.61% 2,709,256.00 2.05% 2,764,757.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) 96,917.00 64,099.00 92,486.00

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01, line F1e) 4,014,414.00 4,111,331.00 4,175,430.00

  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 4,111,331.00 4,175,430.00 4,267,916.00

  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance

      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 500.00 500.00 500.00

      b. Restricted 9740

      c. Committed

          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00

          2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00

      d. Assigned 9780 3,400,552.00 3,485,750.00 3,566,169.00

      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 710,279.00 689,180.00 701,247.00

          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 4,111,331.00 4,175,430.00 4,267,916.00

41



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYP

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: myp (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:55 AM

Description
Object
Codes

2021-22
Budget

(Form 01)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

  1. County School Service Fund 

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 710,279.00 689,180.00 701,247.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Enter reserve projections for subsequent years 1 and 2
   in Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted.)

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790

  3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c) 710,279.00 689,180.00 701,247.00

F. ASSUMPTIONS
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and 
second subsequent fiscal years.  Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments 
projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10.  For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

42



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYP

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: myp (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:55 AM

Description
Object
Codes

2021-22
Budget

(Form 01)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA  (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in 
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form A, Line B5)

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
  current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1.  LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 405,742.00 2.48% 415,804.00 3.11% 428,736.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,074,252.00 -35.37% 1,340,671.00 0.00% 1,340,671.00
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 4,224,260.00 -3.06% 4,095,132.00 0.00% 4,095,132.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 4,715,049.00 7.27% 5,057,690.00 3.67% 5,243,521.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 171,540.00 -3.78% 165,052.00 -7.84% 152,120.00

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 11,590,843.00 -4.46% 11,074,349.00 1.68% 11,260,180.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 4,195,146.00 4,017,429.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 62,927.00 60,261.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments (240,644.00)

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 4,195,146.00 -4.24% 4,017,429.00 1.50% 4,077,690.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 2,664,854.00 2,642,696.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 39,973.00 39,640.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment

     d.  Other Adjustments (62,131.00)

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 2,664,854.00 -0.83% 2,642,696.00 1.50% 2,682,336.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,029,563.00 3.31% 3,129,926.00 2.36% 3,203,699.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 569,493.00 -48.21% 294,933.00 0.00% 294,933.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 390,064.00 -27.85% 281,431.00 0.00% 281,431.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 35,400.00 0.00% 35,400.00 0.00% 35,400.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 706,323.00 -4.78% 672,534.00 1.81% 684,691.00
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

10.  Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below)

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 11,590,843.00 -4.46% 11,074,349.00 1.68% 11,260,180.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) 0.00 0.00 0.00

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01, line F1e) 10,500.00 10,500.00 10,500.00

  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 10,500.00 10,500.00 10,500.00
  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance
      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 0.00

      b. Restricted 9740 10,500.00 10,500.00 10,500.00

      c. Committed

          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

          2. Other Commitments 9760

      d. Assigned 9780

      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 10,500.00 10,500.00 10,500.00

43



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYP

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: myp (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 2 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:55 AM

Description
Object
Codes

2021-22
Budget

(Form 01)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

  1. County School Service Fund 

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750
      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790

(Enter reserve projections for subsequent years 1 and 2

  in Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted.)

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)

      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790

  3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c)
F. ASSUMPTIONS
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and
second subsequent fiscal years.  Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments
projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10.  For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the 
SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

$750,000 federal literacy grant funding ended in FY21-22; $140,000 ELO one-time state funds removed in 2022-2023.$750,000 federal literacy grant funding ended in FY21-22; $140,000 ELO one-time state funds removed in 2022-2023.

44



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted/Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYP

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: myp (Rev 03/09/2016) Page 1 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:55 AM

Description
Object
Codes

2021-22
Budget

(Form 01)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)
County Operations Grant ADA (Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in
  Columns C and E; current year - Column A - is extracted from Form A, Line B5) 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93 0.00% 4,466.93
(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
  current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,632,076.00 2.48% 2,697,351.00 3.11% 2,781,239.00
  2.  Federal Revenues 8100-8299 2,074,252.00 -35.37% 1,340,671.00 0.00% 1,340,671.00
  3.  Other State Revenues 8300-8599 4,243,060.00 -3.04% 4,113,932.00 0.00% 4,113,932.00
  4.  Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 5,347,109.00 6.41% 5,689,750.00 3.27% 5,875,581.00
  5.  Other Financing Sources
     a.  Transfers In 8900-8929 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00 0.00% 6,000.00
     b.  Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
     c.  Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

  6.  Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 14,302,497.00 -3.18% 13,847,704.00 1.95% 14,117,423.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

  1.  Certificated Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 4,714,541.00 4,544,615.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 70,718.00 68,169.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments (240,644.00) 0.00

     e.  Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 4,714,541.00 -3.60% 4,544,615.00 1.50% 4,612,784.00

  2.  Classified Salaries

     a.  Base Salaries 4,200,698.00 4,201,578.00

     b.  Step & Column Adjustment 63,011.00 63,023.00

     c.  Cost-of-Living Adjustment 0.00 0.00

     d.  Other Adjustments (62,131.00) 0.00

     e.  Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 4,200,698.00 0.02% 4,201,578.00 1.50% 4,264,601.00

  3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,967,436.00 4.43% 4,143,088.00 2.53% 4,247,881.00

  4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 785,316.00 -34.96% 510,756.00 0.00% 510,756.00

  5.  Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 979,141.00 -11.09% 870,508.00 0.00% 870,508.00

  6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 68,302.00 0.00% 68,302.00 0.00% 68,302.00

  7.  Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

  8.  Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (509,854.00) 8.90% (555,242.00) -0.96% (549,895.00)
  9.  Other Financing Uses
     a.  Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

     b.  Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

10.  Other Adjustments 0.00 0.00

11.  Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 14,205,580.00 -2.97% 13,783,605.00 1.75% 14,024,937.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

 (Line A6 minus line B11) 96,917.00 64,099.00 92,486.00

D. FUND BALANCE

  1.  Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01, line F1e) 4,024,914.00 4,121,831.00 4,185,930.00
  2.  Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 4,121,831.00 4,185,930.00 4,278,416.00
  3.  Components of Ending Fund Balance

      a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 500.00 500.00 500.00
      b. Restricted 9740 10,500.00 10,500.00 10,500.00
      c. Committed
          1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
          2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
      d. Assigned 9780 3,400,552.00 3,485,750.00 3,566,169.00

      e. Unassigned/Unappropriated
          1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 710,279.00 689,180.00 701,247.00
          2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
      f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance

          (Line D3f must agree with line D2) 4,121,831.00 4,185,930.00 4,278,416.00

45



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

Multiyear Projections
Unrestricted/Restricted

06 10066 0000000
Form MYP

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: myp (Rev 03/09/2016) Page 2 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:55 AM

Description
Object
Codes

2021-22
Budget

(Form 01)
(A)

 %
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2022-23
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2023-24
Projection

(E)

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

  1. County School Service Fund 
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 710,279.00 689,180.00 701,247.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

      d. Negative Restricted Ending Balances

         (Negative resources 2000-9999) 979Z 0.00 0.00

  2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)
      a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

      b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00  0.00

      c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
  3. Total Available Reserves - by Amount (Sum lines E1a thru E2c) 710,279.00 689,180.00 701,247.00

  4. Total Available Reserves - by Percent (Line E3 divided by Line F3c) 5.00% 5.00%  5.00%

F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES

  1. Special Education Pass-through Exclusions

      For counties that serve as the administrative unit (AU) of a 

      special education local plan area (SELPA):

      a. Do you choose to exclude from the reserve calculation

           the pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members? Yes

      b. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special

          education pass-through funds:
          1. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

          2. Special education pass-through funds 

              (Column A: Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546,

              objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223; enter projections
              for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E) 0.00

  2. County Office's Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

       Used to determine the reserve standard percentage level on line F3d

       (Line B11, plus line F1b2 if line F1a is No) 14,205,580.00 13,783,605.00 14,024,937.00

  3. Calculating the Reserves
      a. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line B11) 14,205,580.00 13,783,605.00 14,024,937.00

      b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Line F1b2, if Line F1a is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00

      c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
          (Line F3a plus line F3b) 14,205,580.00 13,783,605.00 14,024,937.00

      d. Reserve Standard Percentage Level

         (Refer to Form 01CS, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 4% 4% 4%

      e. Reserve Standard - By Percent (Line F3c times F3d) 568,223.20 551,344.20 560,997.48

      f. Reserve Standard - By Amount

         (Refer to Form 01CS, Criterion 8 for calculation details) 316,000.00 316,000.00 316,000.00

      g. Reserve Standard (Greater of Line F3e or F3f) 568,223.20 551,344.20 560,997.48

      h. Available Reserves (Line E3) Meet Reserve Standard (Line F3g) YES YES YES

46



 

ADULT EDUCATION FUND 11 
 

The Adult Education Fund is used to account 
separately for revenues for the adult education 
programs. 
 
The principal revenues in this fund are the following: 
 
 Workforce Investment Opportunity Act (WIOA) 
         Adult Education Block Grant 

Adult Education in Correctional Facilities 
 
Expenditures in this fund must be for adult 
education purposes only; money received for 
programs other than adult education shall not be 
expended for adult education (Education Code 
sections 52616 (b) and 52501). 
 
Expenditures in this fund may be made only for 
direct instructional costs and direct support costs 
and indirect costs as specified in Education Code 
Section 52616.4. 
 
Colusa County Office of Education has committed 
to the continued education of adult learners with 
this funding. 

47



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

2ndInterim

Budget

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Current

Budget

2021/22

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund   

Starting Balance

44,907 44,907 130,930 130,930 130,930 9700 25,932 

Revenue

5,662 8000 5,662 LCFF/Property Taxes

31,624 31,624 31,624 7,815 10,646 8200 4,940 Federal Revenue

8,753 8,753 8,753 8,753 8,753 8500 8,753 Other State Revenue

169,227 169,227 169,227 189,227 239,391 8600 252,958 Other Local Revenue

264,452 205,795 209,604 209,604 209,604 272,313 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

39,652 39,652 39,652 50,058 54,664 1100 118,484 Teacher Salaries

22,394 22,394 22,394 22,394 22,394 1300 25,095 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 77,058 72,452 62,046 62,046 62,046 143,579 

2100 9,517 Para Educator Salaries

18,250 18,250 18,250 10,950 10,950 2400 19,033 Clerical/Office Salaries

Total for Object 2000 10,950 10,950 18,250 18,250 18,250 28,550 

19,365 19,365 19,365 21,660 21,660 3100 21,170 STRS State Teachers Retirement

4,144 4,144 4,144 2,486 2,486 3200 4,378 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

3,047 3,047 3,047 2,710 2,710 3300 11,123 Social Security/Medicare

6,978 6,978 6,978 4,977 4,977 3400 7,254 Health & Welfare Insurance

44 44 44 46 46 3500 5,446 State Unemployment Insurance

2,411 2,411 2,411 2,627 2,627 3600 8,284 Workers Compensation

Total for Object 3000 34,506 34,506 35,989 35,989 35,989 57,655 

48,362 48,362 48,362 44,801 48,688 4300 10,862 Materials and Supplies

15,724 15,724 15,724 15,724 15,724 4400 1,000 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 64,412 60,525 64,086 64,086 64,086 11,862 

6,188 6,188 6,188 4,692 4,692 5200 4,692 Travel/Conference

12,957 12,957 12,957 12,957 12,957 5700 13,919 Direct Costs Transfers

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), May 27 2021 10:39AM 

Page 4 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 48



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

2ndInterim

Budget

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Current

Budget

2021/22

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 5800 1,000 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

Total for Object 5000 18,649 18,649 20,145 20,145 20,145 19,611 

155,162 6200 New Building/Improvement of

9,088 9,088 9,088 8,713 8,713 7300 11,056 Direct Support/indirect Costs

369,450 205,795 209,604 209,604 209,604 272,313 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

44,907 44,907 130,930 130,930 25,932 9700

Total for Fund 11

Starting Balance 44,907 44,907 130,930 130,930 130,930 25,932 

Revenue 209,604 209,604 209,604 205,795 264,452 272,313 

Expense 209,604 209,604 209,604 205,795 369,450 272,313 

Ending Balance Acct Type 44,907 44,907 130,930 130,930 25,932 0 

Calc Ending Balance 44,907 44,907 130,930 130,930 25,932 25,932 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), May 27 2021 10:39AM 

Page 5 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 49



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 10,646.00 4,940.00 -53.6%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 239,391.00 252,958.00 5.7%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 264,452.00 272,313.00 3.0%

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 77,058.00 143,579.00 86.3%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 10,950.00 28,550.00 160.7%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 34,506.00 57,655.00 67.1%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 64,412.00 11,862.00 -81.6%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 18,649.00 19,611.00 5.2%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 155,162.00 0.00 -100.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 8,713.00 11,056.00 26.9%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 369,450.00 272,313.00 -26.3%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (104,998.00) 0.00 -100.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

50



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) (104,998.00) 0.00 -100.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 130,930.00 25,932.00 -80.2%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 130,930.00 25,932.00 -80.2%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 130,930.00 25,932.00 -80.2%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 25,932.00 25,932.00 0.0%
        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 25,932.00 25,932.00 0.0%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

51



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

G. ASSETS
    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 91,687.52

           1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 0.00

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00

    6) Stores 9320 0.00

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

   9) TOTAL, ASSETS 91,687.52

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 6.95

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 241.25

    4) Current Loans 9640

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00

   6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 248.20

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

    Ending Fund Balance, June 30
    (G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 91,439.32

52



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

LCFF SOURCES

  LCFF Transfers

    LCFF Transfers - Current Year 8091 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.0%

    LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from
   Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 10,646.00 4,940.00 -53.6%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 10,646.00 4,940.00 -53.6%

OTHER STATE REVENUE  
  

  Other State Apportionments

   All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 8311 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 8319 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from
     State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Adult Education Program 6391 8590 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.0%

53



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

  Other Local Revenue

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts
      Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 196,930.00 190,180.00 -3.4%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 42,461.00 62,778.00 47.8%

  Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 239,391.00 252,958.00 5.7%

TOTAL, REVENUES 264,452.00 272,313.00 3.0%

54



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 6 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 54,664.00 118,484.00 116.7%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 22,394.00 25,095.00 12.1%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 77,058.00 143,579.00 86.3%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 9,517.00 New

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 10,950.00 19,033.00 73.8%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 10,950.00 28,550.00 160.7%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 21,660.00 21,170.00 -2.3%

  PERS 3201-3202 2,486.00 4,378.00 76.1%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 2,710.00 11,123.00 310.4%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 4,977.00 7,254.00 45.8%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 46.00 5,446.00 11739.1%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 2,627.00 8,284.00 215.3%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 34,506.00 57,655.00 67.1%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 48,688.00 10,862.00 -77.7%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 15,724.00 1,000.00 -93.6%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 64,412.00 11,862.00 -81.6%

55



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 7 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 4,692.00 4,692.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 12,957.00 13,919.00 7.4%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 18,649.00 19,611.00 5.2%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 155,162.00 0.00 -100.0%

  Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 155,162.00 0.00 -100.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Tuition

    Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
      Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Transfers Out

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

56



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 8 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 8,713.00 11,056.00 26.9%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 8,713.00 11,056.00 26.9%
 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 369,450.00 272,313.00 -26.3%

57



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 9 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: State School Building Fund/
     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates
       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS
 

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

58



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 5,662.00 5,662.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 10,646.00 4,940.00 -53.6%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 8,753.00 8,753.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 239,391.00 252,958.00 5.7%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 264,452.00 272,313.00 3.0%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)  
  

    1) Instruction 1000-1999 134,417.00 173,370.00 29.0%

    2) Instruction - Related Services 2000-2999 57,201.00 72,968.00 27.6%

    3) Pupil Services 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Community Services 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) General Administration 7000-7999 8,713.00 11,056.00 26.9%

    8) Plant Services 8000-8999 169,119.00 14,919.00 -91.2%

    9) Other Outgo 9000-9999
Except

7600-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 369,450.00 272,313.00 -26.3%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B10) (104,998.00) 0.00 -100.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

59



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 2 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) (104,998.00) 0.00 -100.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 130,930.00 25,932.00 -80.2%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 130,930.00 25,932.00 -80.2%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 130,930.00 25,932.00 -80.2%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 25,932.00 25,932.00 0.0%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 25,932.00 25,932.00 0.0%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 9780 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

60



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Adult Education Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  11

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:32 PM

2020-21 2021-22
Resource Description  Estimated Actuals Budget

6015 Adults in Correctional Facilities 25,932.00 25,932.00

Total, Restricted Balance 25,932.00 25,932.00

61



 

CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 12 
 
The Child Development Fund is used to 
account separately for federal, state, and local 
revenues to operate child development 
programs.  

The principal revenues and other sources in this 
fund are the following: 

 Child Nutrition Programs (Federal) 
 State Preschool 
      Child Nutrition Programs (State) 
 Child Development Apportionments  
 Interest 
 Child Development Parent Fees 
  
 
The Child Development Fund may be used only 
for expenditures for the operation of child 
development programs. 

 

62



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

2ndInterim

Budget

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Current

Budget

2021/22

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund   

Starting Balance

80,418 80,418 80,418 9700 150,418 

Revenue

3,316,918 3,316,918 3,929,160 4,279,446 4,670,774 8200 3,923,409 Federal Revenue

3,763,300 3,763,300 3,996,550 4,232,090 4,300,784 8500 4,310,489 Other State Revenue

206,247 206,247 440,381 440,381 450,081 8600 225,402 Other Local Revenue

9,421,639 8,951,917 8,366,091 7,286,465 7,286,465 8,459,300 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

933,277 933,277 933,277 933,277 977,063 1100 964,329 Teacher Salaries

264,779 264,779 276,779 276,779 275,279 1300 273,055 Cert.Supervisors /Admin. Sal

Total for Object 1000 1,252,342 1,210,056 1,210,056 1,198,056 1,198,056 1,237,384 

711,261 711,261 711,261 711,261 710,261 2100 726,438 Para Educator Salaries

271,714 271,714 274,714 274,714 273,214 2300 261,064 Classified Supervisors /Admin.

243,782 243,782 243,782 243,782 242,782 2400 259,673 Clerical/Office Salaries

356,281 356,281 356,281 356,281 367,281 2900 390,025 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 1,593,538 1,586,038 1,586,038 1,583,038 1,583,038 1,637,200 

414,617 414,617 416,472 416,472 416,789 3100 411,011 STRS State Teachers Retirement

361,498 361,498 361,498 361,498 365,743 3200 381,958 PERS Public Employees Retiremt

134,731 134,731 135,759 135,759 137,536 3300 140,627 Social Security/Medicare

289,583 289,583 289,783 289,783 289,562 3400 283,614 Health & Welfare Insurance

1,377 1,377 1,382 1,382 1,436 3500 33,291 State Unemployment Insurance

81,067 81,067 81,269 81,269 82,023 3600 86,569 Workers Compensation

Total for Object 3000 1,293,089 1,286,163 1,286,163 1,282,873 1,282,873 1,337,070 

173,627 173,627 353,275 312,403 345,704 4300 210,982 Materials and Supplies

3,702 3,702 135,834 176,618 177,618 4400 31,433 Noncapitalized Equipment

550 550 550 62,681 62,681 4700 62,681 Food

Total for Object 4000 586,003 551,702 489,659 177,879 177,879 305,096 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), May 27 2021 10:39AM 

Page 6 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 63



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

2ndInterim

Budget

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Current

Budget

2021/22

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 12 - Child Development Fund    (continued)

Expense (continued)

57,971 57,971 57,578 47,378 47,378 5200 64,504 Travel/Conference

15,141 15,141 15,141 15,141 15,141 5300 13,816 Dues/Memberships

1,732 1,732 1,732 1,732 1,732 5400 1,732 Property/Liab.Insurance

126,904 126,904 128,024 172,824 172,682 5500 168,138 Utilities

112,526 112,526 115,926 121,926 121,841 5600 119,379 Rentals, Leases and Repairs

276,769 276,769 276,769 276,769 276,555 5700 607,174 Direct Costs Transfers

1,878,367 1,878,367 2,379,754 2,797,179 3,080,364 5800 2,435,109 Consulting Serv/operating Exp

104,947 104,947 105,444 119,772 119,372 5900 96,958 Communications

Total for Object 5000 3,835,065 3,552,721 3,080,368 2,574,357 2,574,357 3,506,810 

144,999 165,999 165,999 6100 Land Improvements

30,000 30,000 88,000 88,000 88,000 6400 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 253,999 253,999 232,999 30,000 30,000 0 

440,262 440,262 480,808 499,126 537,603 7300 498,798 Direct Support/indirect Costs

9,351,639 8,939,805 8,366,091 7,286,465 7,286,465 8,522,358 Total for Expense 

accounts

Ending Balance

80,418 80,418 150,418 9700

Total for Fund 12

Starting Balance 0 0 80,418 80,418 80,418 150,418 

Revenue 7,286,465 7,286,465 8,366,091 8,951,917 9,421,639 8,459,300 

Expense 7,286,465 7,286,465 8,366,091 8,939,805 9,351,639 8,522,358 

Ending Balance Acct Type 0 0 80,418 80,418 150,418 0 

Calc Ending Balance 0 0 80,418 92,530 150,418 87,360 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), May 27 2021 10:39AM 

Page 7 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 64



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 4,670,774.00 3,923,409.00 -16.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 4,300,784.00 4,310,489.00 0.2%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 450,081.00 225,402.00 -49.9%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 9,421,639.00 8,459,300.00 -10.2%

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,252,342.00 1,237,384.00 -1.2%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,593,538.00 1,637,200.00 2.7%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,293,089.00 1,337,070.00 3.4%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 586,003.00 305,096.00 -47.9%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 3,835,065.00 3,506,810.00 -8.6%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 253,999.00 0.00 -100.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 537,603.00 498,798.00 -7.2%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 9,351,639.00 8,522,358.00 -8.9%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 70,000.00 (63,058.00) -190.1%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

65



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 70,000.00 (63,058.00) -190.1%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 80,418.00 150,418.00 87.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 80,418.00 150,418.00 87.0%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 80,418.00 150,418.00 87.0%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 150,418.00 87,360.00 -41.9%
        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 88,758.00 25,700.00 -71.0%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments 9780 61,660.00 61,660.00 0.0%

Child Development Programs 0000 9780 61,660.00

Child Development Programs 0000 9780 61,660.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

66



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

G. ASSETS
    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 1,012,990.03

           1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 0.00

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00

    6) Stores 9320 0.00

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

   9) TOTAL, ASSETS 1,012,990.03

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 1,006.11

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 6,372.48

    4) Current Loans 9640

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00

   6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 7,378.59

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

    Ending Fund Balance, June 30
    (G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 1,005,611.44

67



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Child Nutrition Programs 8220 332,060.00 332,060.00 0.0%

  Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 4,338,714.00 3,591,349.00 -17.2%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 4,670,774.00 3,923,409.00 -16.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE  

    Child Nutrition Programs 8520 9,032.00 9,032.00 0.0%

    Child Development Apportionments 8530 869,438.00 1,155,940.00 33.0%

    Pass-Through Revenues from
     State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    State Preschool 6105 8590 2,037,086.00 1,869,792.00 -8.2%

    All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,385,228.00 1,275,725.00 -7.9%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 4,300,784.00 4,310,489.00 0.2%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

  Other Local Revenue

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 14,143.00 14,143.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Fees and Contracts

      Child Development Parent Fees 8673 4,800.00 4,800.00 0.0%

      Interagency Services 8677 329,538.00 125,404.00 -61.9%

      All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 101,600.00 81,055.00 -20.2%

        All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 450,081.00 225,402.00 -49.9%

TOTAL, REVENUES 9,421,639.00 8,459,300.00 -10.2%

68



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 977,063.00 964,329.00 -1.3%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 275,279.00 273,055.00 -0.8%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1,252,342.00 1,237,384.00 -1.2%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 710,261.00 726,438.00 2.3%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 273,214.00 261,064.00 -4.4%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 242,782.00 259,673.00 7.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 367,281.00 390,025.00 6.2%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,593,538.00 1,637,200.00 2.7%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 416,789.00 411,011.00 -1.4%

  PERS 3201-3202 365,743.00 381,958.00 4.4%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 137,536.00 140,627.00 2.2%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 289,562.00 283,614.00 -2.1%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 1,436.00 33,291.00 2218.3%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 82,023.00 86,569.00 5.5%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,293,089.00 1,337,070.00 3.4%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 345,704.00 210,982.00 -39.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 177,618.00 31,433.00 -82.3%

  Food 4700 62,681.00 62,681.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 586,003.00 305,096.00 -47.9%

69



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 6 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 47,378.00 64,504.00 36.1%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 15,141.00 13,816.00 -8.8%

  Insurance 5400-5450 1,732.00 1,732.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 172,682.00 168,138.00 -2.6%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 121,841.00 119,379.00 -2.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 276,555.00 607,174.00 119.5%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 3,080,364.00 2,435,109.00 -20.9%

  Communications 5900 119,372.00 96,958.00 -18.8%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 3,835,065.00 3,506,810.00 -8.6%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

  Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Land Improvements 6170 165,999.00 0.00 -100.0%

  Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Equipment 6400 88,000.00 0.00 -100.0%

  Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 253,999.00 0.00 -100.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Other Transfers Out

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Debt Service

    Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

  Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 537,603.00 498,798.00 -7.2%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 537,603.00 498,798.00 -7.2%
 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 9,351,639.00 8,522,358.00 -8.9%

70



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 7 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    From: General Fund 8911 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    Long-Term Debt Proceeds

      Proceeds from Certificates
       of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS
 

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

71



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Function

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 4,670,774.00 3,923,409.00 -16.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 4,300,784.00 4,310,489.00 0.2%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 450,081.00 225,402.00 -49.9%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 9,421,639.00 8,459,300.00 -10.2%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)  
  

    1) Instruction 1000-1999 2,657,506.00 2,650,744.00 -0.3%

    2) Instruction - Related Services 2000-2999 4,854,493.00 4,012,380.00 -17.3%

    3) Pupil Services 3000-3999 475,466.00 836,306.00 75.9%

    4) Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Community Services 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) General Administration 7000-7999 537,603.00 498,798.00 -7.2%

    8) Plant Services 8000-8999 826,571.00 524,130.00 -36.6%

    9) Other Outgo 9000-9999
Except

7600-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 9,351,639.00 8,522,358.00 -8.9%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B10) 70,000.00 (63,058.00) -190.1%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

72



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Function

06 10066 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 2 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 70,000.00 (63,058.00) -190.1%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 80,418.00 150,418.00 87.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 80,418.00 150,418.00 87.0%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 80,418.00 150,418.00 87.0%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 150,418.00 87,360.00 -41.9%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 88,758.00 25,700.00 -71.0%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 9780 61,660.00 61,660.00 0.0%

Child Development Programs 0000 9780 61,660.00

Child Development Programs 0000 9780 61,660.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

73



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Child Development Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

2020-21 2021-22
Resource Description  Estimated Actuals Budget

5320 Child Nutrition: Child Care Food Program (CCFP) Claims-Centers and Family Day Ca5,410.00 5,410.00

5350 Child Nutrition: CCFP Family Day Care Sponsor Admin 3,265.00 3,265.00

6130 Child Development: Center-Based Reserve Account 70,002.00 9,940.00

6131 Child Development: Resource & Referral Reserve Account 5,369.00 2,373.00

6132 Child Development: Alternative Payment Reserve Account 4,712.00 4,712.00

Total, Restricted Balance 88,758.00 25,700.00

74



 

 

Forest Reserve Fund 16 
 

This fund exists to account separately for 
federal forest reserve funds received by offices 
of county superintendents for distribution to 
school districts and community college 
districts (Education Code Section 2300; 
Government Code Section 29484).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

2ndInterim

Budget

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Current

Budget

2021/22

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 16 - Forest Reserve Fund   

Starting Balance

39,793 39,793 39,793 9700 39,793 

Revenue

41,354 41,354 41,354 41,354 41,354 8200 41,354 Federal Revenue

200 200 200 200 200 8600 200 Other Local Revenue

41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 Total for Revenue 

accounts and Object 

8000

Expense

35,554 35,554 35,554 35,554 35,554 7200 35,554 Other Transfers Out

6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 7600 6,000 Other Financing Uses

41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 Total for Expense 

accounts and Object 

7000

Ending Balance

39,793 39,793 39,793 9700

Total for Fund 16

Starting Balance 0 0 39,793 39,793 39,793 39,793 

Revenue 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 

Expense 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 41,554 

Ending Balance Acct Type 0 0 39,793 39,793 39,793 0 

Calc Ending Balance 0 0 39,793 39,793 39,793 39,793 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), May 27 2021 10:39AM 

Page 8 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 76



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  16

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 200.00 200.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 41,554.00 41,554.00 0.0%

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (6,000.00) (6,000.00) 0.0%

77



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  16

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 39,793.00 39,793.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 39,793.00 39,793.00 0.0%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 39,793.00 39,793.00 0.0%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 39,793.00 39,793.00 0.0%
        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments 9780 39,793.00 39,793.00 0.0%

Due to Districts & County Offices 0000 9780 39,793.00

Due to Districts & County Offices 0000 9780 39,793.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

78



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  16

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

G. ASSETS
    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 35,320.81

           1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 0.00

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00

    6) Stores 9320 0.00

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

   9) TOTAL, ASSETS 35,320.81

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 0.00

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00

    4) Current Loans 9640

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00

   6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 0.00

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

    Ending Fund Balance, June 30
    (G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 35,320.81

79



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  16

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

FEDERAL REVENUE

  Forest Reserve Funds 8260 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.0%

  Pass-Through Revenues from
   Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

  Other Local Revenue

    Interest 8660 200.00 200.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 200.00 200.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 41,554.00 41,554.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

  Other Transfers Out

    Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
      To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.0%

      To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers 7281-7283 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.0%

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0%

80



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  16

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 41,354.00 41,354.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 200.00 200.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 41,554.00 41,554.00 0.0%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)  
  

    1) Instruction 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Instruction - Related Services 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Pupil Services 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Community Services 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) General Administration 7000-7999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Plant Services 8000-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) Other Outgo 9000-9999
Except

7600-7699 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.0%

   10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 35,554.00 35,554.00 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B10) 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (6,000.00) (6,000.00) 0.0%

81



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  16

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 2 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 39,793.00 39,793.00 0.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 39,793.00 39,793.00 0.0%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 39,793.00 39,793.00 0.0%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 39,793.00 39,793.00 0.0%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 9780 39,793.00 39,793.00 0.0%

Due to Districts & County Offices 0000 9780 39,793.00

Due to Districts & County Offices 0000 9780 39,793.00

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

82



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Forest Reserve Fund

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  16

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:33 PM

2020-21 2021-22
Resource Description  Estimated Actuals Budget

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00 0.00

83



 

 

 

 

SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 17 
 
 
The Special Reserve Fund for other than Capital 
Outlay Projects is used primarily to provide for 
the accumulation of General Fund money for 
general operating purposes (Education Code 
Section 42840 – Amounts from this special 
reserve fund must first be transferred into the 
General Fund or other appropriate fund of the 
LEA before expenditures can be made). 

 

This fund is used to set aside funds for future 
purchases of large items such as copy 
machines, vehicles, equipment, software and 
hardware upgrades. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

2ndInterim

Budget

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Current

Budget

2021/22

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 17 - Spc.resrv.for Othr.th.cptl.prj   

Starting Balance

872,619 872,619 879,911 879,911 879,911 9700 897,911 

Revenue

18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 8600 18,000 Other Local Revenue

Ending Balance

890,619 890,619 897,911 897,911 897,911 9700

Total for Fund 17

Starting Balance 872,619 872,619 879,911 879,911 879,911 897,911 

Revenue 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 

Ending Balance Acct Type 890,619 890,619 897,911 897,911 897,911 0 

Calc Ending Balance 890,619 890,619 897,911 897,911 897,911 915,911 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), May 27 2021 10:39AM 

Page 9 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 85



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.0%

B. EXPENDITURES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

86



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 879,911.00 897,911.00 2.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 879,911.00 897,911.00 2.0%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 879,911.00 897,911.00 2.0%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 897,911.00 915,911.00 2.0%
        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments 9780 897,911.00 915,911.00 2.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

87



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

G. ASSETS
    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 884,091.87

           1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 0.00

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00

    6) Stores 9320 0.00

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

   9) TOTAL, ASSETS 884,091.87

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 0.00

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00

    4) Current Loans 9640

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00

   6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 0.00

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

    Ending Fund Balance, June 30
    (G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 884,091.87

88



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

  Other Local Revenue

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.0%

89



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    From: General Fund/CSSF 8912 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
 

    To: General Fund/CSSF 7612 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    To: State School Building Fund/
     County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS
 

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a-b+e) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

90



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.0%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)  
  

    1) Instruction 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Instruction - Related Services 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Pupil Services 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Community Services 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) General Administration 7000-7999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Plant Services 8000-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) Other Outgo 9000-9999
Except

7600-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B10) 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

91



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/03/2019) Page 2 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
     BALANCE (C + D4) 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 
    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 879,911.00 897,911.00 2.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 879,911.00 897,911.00 2.0%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 879,911.00 897,911.00 2.0%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 897,911.00 915,911.00 2.0%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance
        a) Nonspendable
             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed
             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  
             Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 9780 897,911.00 915,911.00 2.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

92



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail
06 10066 0000000

Form  17

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-b (Rev 04/17/2019) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

2020-21 2021-22
Resource Description  Estimated Actuals Budget

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00 0.00

93



 

 

 

FOUNDATION FOR PRIVATE PURPOSE 
TRUST FUND 73 
 
This fund is used to account separately for gifts 
or bequests per Education Code Section 41031 
that benefit individuals, private organizations, 
or other governments and under which neither 
principal nor income may be used for purposes 
that support the LEA’s own programs.  

This fund should be used when there is a formal 
trust agreement with the donor. Donations not 
covered by a formal trust agreement should be 
accounted for in the general fund. Amounts in 
the Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund shall 
be expended only for the specific purposes of 
the gift or bequest (Education Code Section 
41032).  

 

This fund is used for scholarships for the CCOE 
Agriculture Educational Foundation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

94



Fiscal06a Comparative Object Summary 

2020/21

2ndInterim

Budget

2020/21

1stInterim

Budget

2020/21

45 Day

Revise

2020/21

Original

Budget

2020/21

Current

Budget

2021/22

Proposed

Account

Object Code

Fund 73 - Foundation Trust Fund   

Starting Balance

67,271 67,271 67,346 67,346 67,346 9700 70,346 

Revenue

3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 8600 3,000 Other Local Revenue

Ending Balance

70,271 70,271 70,346 70,346 70,346 9700

Total for Fund 73

Starting Balance 67,271 67,271 67,346 67,346 67,346 70,346 

Revenue 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Ending Balance Acct Type 70,271 70,271 70,346 70,346 70,346 0 

Calc Ending Balance 70,271 70,271 70,346 70,346 70,346 73,346 

Total for Org 001 - Colusa County Office of Education

Starting Balance 4,680,832 4,680,832 5,502,533 5,502,533 5,502,533 5,209,314 

Revenue 20,490,900 21,001,814 22,491,928 23,916,456 24,355,230 23,096,664 

Expense 20,743,199 20,543,199 22,694,461 24,078,228 24,648,449 23,041,805 

4,428,533 4,428,533 5,300,000 5,340,761 5,209,314 0 Ending Balance Acct Type

Calc Ending Balance 4,428,533 5,209,314 5,264,173 5,340,761 5,300,000 5,139,447 

Selection

Generated for Angelina Guizar (AGUIZAR), May 27 2021 10:39AM 

Page 10 of 10

Grouped by Object, Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online Status = N, Ending Date = 6/30/2021, Restricted? = Y, Fund = 01-73, Object = 

1-8,97, Obj Lvl = 2, Obj Digits = 1, Visual = N, Description = L, Page Break Lvl = 1)

001 - Colusa County Office of Education 95



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

B. EXPENSES
 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Depreciation and Amortization 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  
         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

96



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
     NET POSITION (C + D4) 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

F. NET POSITION
 
    1) Beginning Net Position
        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 67,346.00 70,346.00 4.5%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 67,346.00 70,346.00 4.5%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) 67,346.00 70,346.00 4.5%

    2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) 70,346.00 73,346.00 4.3%
 
        Components of Ending Net Position 
        a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted Net Position 9797 70,346.00 73,346.00 4.3%

        c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

97



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

G. ASSETS
    1) Cash
        a) in County Treasury 9110 68,049.54

           1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00

        b) in Banks 9120 0.00

        c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 0.00

        d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

        e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

    2) Investments 9150 0.00

    3) Accounts Receivable 9200 0.00

    4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00

    5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00

    6) Stores 9320 0.00

    7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

    8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

    9) Fixed Assets
        a) Land 9410 0.00

        b) Land Improvements 9420 0.00

        c) Accumulated Depreciation - Land Improvements 9425 0.00

        d) Buildings 9430 0.00

        e) Accumulated Depreciation - Buildings 9435 0.00

        f) Equipment 9440 0.00

        g) Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment 9445 0.00

        h) Work in Progress 9450 0.00

  10) TOTAL, ASSETS 68,049.54

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

98



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

I. LIABILITIES

    1) Accounts Payable 9500 0.00

    2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00

    3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00

    4) Current Loans 9640

    5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00

    6) Long-Term Liabilities
        a) Net Pension Liability 9663 0.00

        b) Total/Net OPEB Liability 9664 0.00

        c) Compensated Absences 9665 0.00

        d) COPs Payable 9666 0.00

        e) Capital Leases Payable 9667 0.00

        f) Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 9668 0.00

        g) Other General Long-Term Liabilities 9669 0.00

    7) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 0.00

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

    1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00

    2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. NET POSITION

    Net Position, June 30
    (G10 + H2) - (I7 + J2) 68,049.54

99



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

OTHER STATE REVENUE  

    STRS On-Behalf Pension Contributions 7690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

  Other Local Revenue

    Sales
      Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Interest 8660 500.00 500.00 0.0%

    Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    Other Local Revenue

      All Other Local Revenue 8699 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

100



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 6 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
 

  Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
 

  Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
  

  STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
 

  Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

101



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 7 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

  Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Professional/Consulting Services and
   Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

  Depreciation Expense 6900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  Amortization Expense-Lease Assets 6910 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

    All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

102



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Object
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-e (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 8 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
 

  INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
 

    Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES
 

  SOURCES
 

    All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  USES
 

    All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  CONTRIBUTIONS
 

   Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0%
 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
  (a + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

103



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES
 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

B. EXPENSES (Objects 1000-7999)  
  

    1) Instruction 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Instruction - Related Services 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Pupil Services 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Community Services 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) General Administration 7000-7999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Plant Services 8000-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) Other Outgo 9000-9999
Except

7600-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

   10) TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
     OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER
     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B10) 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
 
    1) Interfund Transfers
        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  
        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

104



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Expenses by Function
06 10066 0000000

Form  73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-e (Rev 03/20/2017) Page 2 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2020-21

Estimated Actuals
2021-22
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
     NET POSITION (C + D4) 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

F. NET POSITION

 
    1) Beginning Net Position

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 67,346.00 70,346.00 4.5%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 67,346.00 70,346.00 4.5%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) 67,346.00 70,346.00 4.5%

    2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) 70,346.00 73,346.00 4.3%

 

        Components of Ending Net Position

        a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted Net Position 9797 70,346.00 73,346.00 4.3%

        c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

105



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

July 1 Budget
Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund
Exhibit: Restricted Net Position Detail

06 10066 0000000
Form 73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: fund-e (Rev 11/30/2012) Page 1 Printed:  5/24/2021  2:34 PM

2020-21 2021-22
Resource Description  Estimated Actuals Budget

9010 Other Restricted Local 70,346.00 73,346.00

Total, Restricted Net Position 70,346.00 73,346.00

106



 

 

 

Criteria and Standards Report 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

107



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 1 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

Provide methodology and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enrollment, revenues, expenditures, reserves and fund balance, and multiyear 
commitments (including cost-of-living adjustments).

Deviations from the standards must be explained and may affect the approval of the budget.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS 

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance

A. STANDARD:  Projected County Operations Grant average daily attendance (ADA) has not been overestimated in 1) the first prior fiscal year OR in 2)
two or more of the previous three fiscal years by more than the following percentage levels:

Percentage Level County Operations Grant ADA
3.0%          0          to          6,999
2.0%    7,000          to        59,999
1.0% 60,000        and         over

County Office ADA (Form A, Estimated Funded ADA column, Line B5): 4,467

County Office County Operations Grant ADA Standard Percentage Level: 3.0%

1A-1. Calculating the County Office's County Operations Grant ADA Variances

DATA ENTRY:   Enter the County Operations Grant Funded ADA in the Original Budget column for all fiscal years. All other data are extracted or calculated

County Operations Grant Funded ADA

Original Budget Estimated/Unaudited Actuals
ADA Variance Level
(If Budget is greater

Fiscal Year (Form A, Line B5) than Actuals, else N/A) Status

Third Prior Year (2018-19) 4,389.73 4,422.26 N/A Met

Second Prior Year (2019-20) 4,422.26 4,466.93 N/A Met

First Prior Year (2020-21) 4,466.93 4,466.93 N/A Met

1A-2. Comparison of County Office County Operations Grant ADA to the Standard

DATA ENTRY:  Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected County Operations Grant ADA has not been overestimated by more than the standard percentage level for the first prior year.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

1b. STANDARD MET - Projected County Operations Grant ADA has not been overestimated by more than the standard percentage level for two or more of the previous three years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

108



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 2 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance (continued)

B. STANDARD: Projected ADA for county operated programs for any of the budget year or two subsequent fiscal years has not increased 
from the historical average from the three prior fiscal years by more than two percent (2%) each year.

1B-1. Calculating the County Office's Historical Average Projected ADA for County Operated Programs

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Average Daily Attendance (Form A, Estimated Actuals, Funded ADA)

Charter School ADA and
County and Charter School District Funded Charter Schoo Funded 

Alternative Education Grant ADA County Program ADA County Operations Grant ADA  County Program ADA
Fiscal Year (Form A, Lines B1d and C2d) (Form A, Line B2g) (Form A, Line B5) (Form A, Lines C1 and C3f)

Third Prior Year (2018-19) 12.98 19.89 4,422.26 0.00
Second Prior Year (2019-20) 10.67 16.23 4,466.93 0.00
First Prior Year (2020-21) 10.67 16.23 4,466.93 0.00

Historical Average: 11.44 17.45 4,452.04 0.00

County Office's County Operated Programs ADA Standard:
Budget Year (2021-22)

(historical average plus 2%): 11.67 17.80 4,541.08 0.00
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23)

(historical average plus 4%): 11.90 18.15 4,630.12 0.00
2nd Subsequent year (2023-24)

(historical average plus 6%): 12.13 18.50 4,719.16 0.00

1B-2. Calculating the County Office's Projected ADA for County Operated Programs

DATA ENTRY: Budget year data will be extracted from Form A. Enter the remaining data in each of the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If Form MYP exists, County Operations Grant ADA
will be extracted for the two subsequent fiscal years.

Average Daily Attendance (Form A, Estimated Funded ADA)
Charter School ADA

County and Charter School District Funded and Charter School Funded
Alternative Education Grant ADA County Program ADA County Operations Grant ADA County Program ADA

Fiscal Year (Form A, Lines B1d and C2d) (Form A, Line B2g) (Form A, Line B5) (Form A, Lines C1 and C3f)
Budget Year (2021-22) 5.00 16.10 4,466.93 0.00
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 5.00 16.10 4,466.93 0.00
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 5.00 16.10 4,466.93 0.00

Status: Met Met Met Met

1B-3. Comparison of County Office Projected County Operated Programs ADA to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected ADA for county operated programs has not exceeded the standard for the budget and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

109



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 3 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

2. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue

STANDARD:  Projected local control funding formula (LCFF) revenue for any of the budget year or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed from
the prior fiscal year by more than the change in population, plus the county office's gap funding or its cost-of-living adjustment (COLA)¹ plus or minus
one percent.

For excess property tax counties, projected LCFF revenue has not changed from the prior fiscal year by more than the percent change in property tax
revenues plus or minus one percent.

¹ County offices that are already at or above their LCFF target funding level receive no gap funding. These county offices have a COLA applied to
their LCFF target, but their year-over-year revenue increase might be less than the statutory COLA due to certain local factors and components of the
funding formula.

2A. County Office's LCFF Revenue Standard

Indicate which standard applies:

LCFF Revenue

Excess Property Tax/Minimum State Aid

The County office must select which LCFF revenue standard applies.
LCFF Revenue Standard selected: LCFF Revenue

2A-1. Calculating the County Office's LCFF Revenue Standard

DATA ENTRY: Section I, enter applicable data for all fiscal years. Section I-a is completed by a county office funded at Target, and Section I-b is completed by a county office funded 
at Hold Harmless. Section II, enter data in Step 2b1 for all fiscal years. Section III, all data are extracted or calculated. Section IV, enter data in Step 1a for the  two subsequent
fiscal years, Step 2b1 for all fiscal years, and Step 2b3 for current year only.  All other data are extracted or calculated.

NOTE: Enter data in Section I, Line c1 and Section IV only if the county office has charter school funded county program ADA corresponding to financial data reported in Fund 01. 
Due to the full implementation of LCFF, gap funding is no longer applicable. Regardless of the standard selected, criterion 2A-1 must be completed to obtain the total change in
population and funding level.

Projected LCFF Revenue

Select County Office's LCFF revenue funding status:

At Target If status is at target, then COLA amount in Step 2b2 is used in Step 2c in Sections II and III.

  Hold Harmless If status is hold harmless, then amount in Step 2c is zero in Sections II and III. 

Status: At Target

Prior Year Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
I. LCFF Funding (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

a. COE funded at Target LCFF
a1. COE Operations Grant 1,359,750.00 1,467,373.00 1,503,764.00 1,550,531.00

a2. COE Alternative Education Grant 189,494.00 99,554.00 102,022.00 105,196.00

b. COE funded at Hold Harmless LCFF N/A N/A N/A N/A

c. Charter Funded County Program

c1. LCFF Entitlement

d. Total LCFF

(Sum of a or b, and c) 1,549,244.00 1,566,927.00 1,605,786.00 1,655,727.00

II. County Operations Grant

Step 1 - Change in Population

a. ADA (Funded)

(Form A, line B5 and Criterion 1B-2) 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93

b. Prior Year ADA (Funded) 4,466.93 4,466.93 4,466.93

c. Difference (Step 1a minus Step 1b (At Target) or 0 (Hold Harmless)) 0.00 0.00 0.00

d. Percent Change Due to Population

(Step 1c divided by Step 1b) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Step 2 - Change in Funding Level
a. Prior Year LCFF Funding

(Section I-a1 (At Target) or Section I-b
(Hold Harmless), prior year column) 1,359,750.00 1,467,373.00 1,503,764.00

b1. COLA percentage (if COE is at target) 5.07% 2.48% 3.11%
b2. COLA amount (proxy for purposes of this criterion) 68,939.33 36,390.85 46,767.06
c. Total Change (Step 2b2 (At Target) or 0 (Hold Harmless)) 68,939.33 36,390.85 46,767.06
d. Percent Change Due to Funding Level 

(Step 2c divided by Step 2a) 5.07% 2.48% 3.11%

110



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 4 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

Step 3 - Weighted Change in Population and Funding Level
a. Percent change in population and funding level 

(Step 1d plus Step 2d) 5.07% 2.48% 3.11%
b. LCFF Percent allocation (Section I-a1 divided by Section I-d (At Target)

or Section I-b divided by Section I-d (Hold Harmless)) 93.65% 93.65% 93.65%
c. Weighted Percent change 

(Step 3a x Step 3b) 4.75% 2.32% 2.91%

III. Alternative Education Grant Prior Year Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Step 1 - Change in Population (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

a. ADA (Funded) (Form A, lines

B1d, C2d, and Criterion 1B-2) 10.67 5.00 5.00 5.00
b. Prior Year ADA (Funded) 10.67 5.00 5.00

c. Difference (Step 1a minus Step 1b) (5.67) 0.00 0.00
d. Percent Change Due to Population

(Step 1c divided by Step 1b) -53.14% 0.00% 0.00%

Step 2 - Change in Funding Level
a. Prior Year LCFF Funding

(Section I-a2 (At Target) or Section I-b (Hold Harmless), prior year column) 189,494.00 99,554.00 102,022.00
b1. COLA percentage (if COE is at target) (Section II-Step 2b1) 5.07% 2.48% 3.11%
b2. COLA amount (proxy for purposes of this criterion) 9,607.35 2,468.94 3,172.88
c. Total Change (Step 2b2 (At Target) or 0 (Hold Harmless)) 9,607.35 2,468.94 3,172.88
d. Percent Change Due to Funding Level

(Step 2c divided by Step 2a) 5.07% 2.48% 3.11%

Step 3 - Weighted Change in Population and Funding Level
a. Percent change in population and funding level (Step 1d plus Step 2d) -48.07% 2.48% 3.11%
b. LCFF Percent allocation (Section I-a2 divided by Section I-d (At Target)

or Section I-b divided by Section I-d (Hold Harmless)) 6.35% 6.35% 6.35%
c. Weighted Percent change 

(Step 3a x Step 3b) -3.05% 0.16% 0.20%

IV. Charter Funded County Program Prior Year Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Step 1 - Change in Population (2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

a. ADA (Funded)
(Form A, line C3f) 0.00 0.00

b. Prior Year ADA (Funded) 0.00 0.00 0.00
c. Difference (Step 1a minus Step 1b) 0.00 0.00 0.00
d. Percent Change Due to Population

(Step 1c divided by Step 1b) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Step 2 - Change in Funding Level
a. Prior Year LCFF Funding (Section I-c1, prior year column) 0.00 0.00 0.00

b1. COLA percentage
b2. COLA amount (proxy for purposes of this criterion) 0.00 0.00 0.00
c Percent Change Due to Funding Level

(Step 2b2 divided by Step 2a) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Step 3 - Weighted Change in Population and Funding Level
a. Percent change in population and funding level (Step 1d plus Step 2c) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
b. LCFF Percent allocation (Section I-c1 divided by Section I-d) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
c. Weighted Percent change 

(Step 3a x Step 3b) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

V. Weighted Change Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
a. Total weighted percent change (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

(Step 3c in sections II, III and IV) 1.70% 2.48% 3.11%

LCFF Revenue Standard (line V-a, plus/minus 1%): 0.70% to 2.70% 1.48% to 3.48% 2.11% to 4.11%

111



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 5 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

2B. Alternate LCFF Revenue Standard - Excess Property Tax / Minimum State Aid

DATA ENTRY: If applicable to your county office, input data in the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years for projected local property taxes; all other data are extracted or calculated. 

Excess Property Tax or Minimum State Aid County Office Projected LCFF Revenue 

Prior Year Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Projected local property taxes
(Form 01, Objects 8021 - 8089) 496,637.00 496,637.00 496,637.00 496,637.00

Excess Property Tax/Minimum State Aid Standard 
(Percent change over previous year, plus/minus 1%): N/A N/A N/A

2C. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue

DATA ENTRY: Enter data in the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years for LCFF Revenue; all other data are extracted or calculated. 

Prior Year Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. LCFF Revenue

(Fund 01, Objects 8011,
8012, 8020-8089) 2,620,055.00 2,637,738.00 2,697,351.00 2,781,239.00

County Office's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue: 0.67% 2.26% 3.11%

Standard: 0.70% to 2.70% 1.48% to 3.48% 2.11% to 4.11%

Status: Not Met Met Met

2D. Comparison of County Office LCFF Revenue to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected change in LCFF revenue is outside the standard in one or more of the budget or two subsequent fiscal years.  Provide reasons why the
projection(s) exceed the standard(s) and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting LCFF revenue.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

ADA decreased by 50% in FY 21-22.

112



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 6 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

3. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits

STANDARD: Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the budget year or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed from the prior fiscal year
amount by more than the change in funded COLA plus or minus five percent.

3A. Calculating the County Office's Salaries and Benefits Standard Percentages

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. County Office's Change in Funding Level
(Criterion 2C): 0.67% 2.26% 3.11%

2. County Office's Salaries and Benefits Standard

(Line 1, plus/minus 5%): -4.33% to 5.67% -2.74% to 7.26% -1.89% to 8.11%

3B. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change in Salaries and Benefits

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYP exists, Salaries and Benefits for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years. All other 
data are extracted or calculated. 

Salaries and Benefits

(Form 01, Objects 1000-3999) Percent Change
Fiscal Year (Form MYP, Lines B1-B3) Over Previous Year Status

First Prior Year (2020-21) 11,995,946.00
Budget Year (2021-22) 12,882,675.00 7.39% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 12,889,281.00 0.05% Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 13,125,266.00 1.83% Met

3C. Comparison of County Office Change in Salaries and Benefits to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected ratio(s) of salary and benefit costs to total expenditures are outside the standard in one or more of the budget or two subsequent fiscal years.
Provide reasons why the projection(s) exceed the standard, a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting salaries and benefits, and what changes, if any, will
be made to bring the projected salary and benefit costs within the standard.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

New positions were added. 

113



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 7 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

4. CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures

STANDARD: Projected operating revenues (including federal, other state, and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and
services and other operating), for any of the budget year or two subsequent fiscal years, have not changed from the prior fiscal year amount by more
than the change in funded COLA plus or minus ten percent.

For each major object category, changes that exceed the percentage change in the funded COLA plus or minus five percent must be explained.

4A. Calculating the County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Ranges

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.
Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)
1. County Office's Change in Funding Level

(Criterion 2C): 0.67% 2.26% 3.11%
2. County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures

Standard Percentage Range (Line 1, plus/minus 10%): -9.33% to 10.67% -7.74% to 12.26% -6.89% to 13.11%
3. County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures

Explanation Percentage Range (Line 1, plus/minus 5%): -4.33% to 5.67% -2.74% to 7.26% -1.89% to 8.11%

4B. Calculating the County Office's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range (Section 4A, Line 3)

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYP exists, the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Year data for each revenue and expenditure section will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent
years. All other data are extracted or calculated. 

Explanations must be entered for each category if the percent change for any year exceeds the county office's explanation percentage range.

Percent Change Change Is Outside
Object Range / Fiscal Year Amount  Over Previous Year Explanation Range

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-8299) (Form MYP, Line A2)

First Prior Year (2020-21) 2,524,729.00

Budget Year (2021-22) 2,074,252.00 -17.84% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,340,671.00 -35.37% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 1,340,671.00 0.00% No

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

In 20-21 CCOE spent two years' of revenue of a three-year federal literacy grant. In 21-22 the final $750,000 federal literacy grant is budgeted,
therefore 22-23 reflects the reduction.

Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MYP, Line A3)

First Prior Year (2020-21) 4,374,735.00

Budget Year (2021-22) 4,243,060.00 -3.01% No

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 4,113,932.00 -3.04% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 4,113,932.00 0.00% No

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

ELO funds expended in 21-22.

Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) (Form MYP, Line A4)

First Prior Year (2020-21) 5,086,728.00

Budget Year (2021-22) 5,347,109.00 5.12% No

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 5,689,750.00 6.41% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 5,875,581.00 3.27% No

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MYP, Line B4)

First Prior Year (2020-21) 1,198,034.00

Budget Year (2021-22) 785,316.00 -34.45% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 510,756.00 -34.96% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 510,756.00 0.00% No

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

COVID funds plus two years of literacy grant were recorded in 20-21. In 21-22 was the final year of literacy grant.

114



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 8 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MYP, Line B5)

First Prior Year (2020-21) 1,914,285.00

Budget Year (2021-22) 979,141.00 -48.85% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 870,508.00 -11.09% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 870,508.00 0.00% No

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

COVID funds plus two years of literacy grant were recorded in 20-21. In 21-22 was the final year of literacy grant.

4C. Calculating the County Office's Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures  (Section 4A, Line 2)

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Percent Change
Object Range / Fiscal Year Amount Over Previous Year Status

Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenue (Section 4B)
First Prior Year (2020-21) 11,986,192.00
Budget Year (2021-22) 11,664,421.00 -2.68% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 11,144,353.00 -4.46% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 11,330,184.00 1.67% Met

Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 4B)
First Prior Year (2020-21) 3,112,319.00
Budget Year (2021-22) 1,764,457.00 -43.31% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 1,381,264.00 -21.72% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 1,381,264.00 0.00% Met

4D. Comparison of County Office Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked from Section 4B if the status in Section 4C is not met; no entry is allowed below.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected other operating revenues have not changed by more than the standard for the budget and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

Federal Revenue

(linked from 4B

if NOT met)

Explanation:
Other State Revenue

(linked from 4B
if NOT met)

Explanation:
Other Local Revenue

(linked from 4B
if NOT met)

1b. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating expenditures changed by more than the standard in one or more of the budget or two subsequent fiscal years.  Reasons for the
projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, will be made to bring the projected operating expenditures
within the standard must be entered in Section 4B above and will also display in explanation box below.

Explanation:
Books and Supplies

(linked from 4B
if NOT met)

COVID funds plus two years of literacy grant were recorded in 20-21. In 21-22 was the final year of literacy grant.

Explanation:
Services and Other Exps

(linked from 4B
if NOT met)

COVID funds plus two years of literacy grant were recorded in 20-21. In 21-22 was the final year of literacy grant.

115



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 9 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

5. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance

STANDARD: Confirm that the annual contribution for facilities maintenance funding is not less than the amount required pursuant to Education Code
Section 17070.75, if applicable, and that the county office is providing adequately to preserve the functionality of its facilities for their normal life in
accordance with Education Code sections 52066(d)(1) and 17002(d)(1).

Determining the County Office's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75 - Ongoing and Major Maintenance/Restricted
Maintenance Account (OMMA/RMA)

NOTE: EC Section 17070.75 requires the county office to deposit into the account a minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent of the total unrestricted
general fund expenditures and other financing uses for that fiscal year.

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. If standard is not met, enter an X in the appropriate box and enter an explanation, if applicable.

Budgeted
Unrestricted Expenditures

and Other Financing Uses 3% Required Budgeted Contribution ¹

(Form 01, Resources 0000-1999, Minimum Contribution to the Ongoing and Major

Objects 1000-7999) (Unrestricted Budget times 3%) Maintenance Account Status

Ongoing and Major Maintenance/Restricted
Maintenance Account 2,614,737.00 78,442.11 171,540.00 Met

¹ Fund 01, Resource 8150, Objects 8900-8999 

If standard is not met, enter an X in the box that best describes why the minimum required contribution was not made:

  Not applicable (county office does not participate in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998)

  Other (explanation must be provided)

Explanation:

(required if NOT met

and Other is marked)

116



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 10 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

6. CRITERION: Deficit Spending

STANDARD: Unrestricted deficit spending (total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses is greater than total unrestricted revenues and
other financing sources), as a percentage of total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses, has not exceeded one-third of the county
office's available reserves¹ as a percentage of total expenditures and other financing uses², in two out of three prior fiscal years.

6A. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.
Third Prior Year Second Prior Year First Prior Year

(2018-19) (2019-20) (2020-21)
1. County Office's Available Reserve Amounts (resources 0000-1999)

a. Stabilization Arrangements
    (Funds 01 and 17, Object 9750) 0.00 0.00 0.00
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties
    (Funds 01 and 17, Object 9789) 540,766.00 607,108.00 744,290.00
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated
    (Funds 01 and 17, Object 9790) 0.00 0.00 0.00
d. Negative County School Service Fund Ending Balances in
    Restricted Resources (Fund 01, Object 979Z, if negative, for
    each of resources 2000-9999) 0.00 0.00 0.00
e. Available Reserves (Lines 1a through 1d) 540,766.00 607,108.00 744,290.00

2. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
a. County Office's Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
    (Fund 01, objects 1000-7999) 10,815,325.84 12,142,146.38 14,885,806.00
b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Fund 10, resources
    3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546, objects 7211-7213
    and 7221-7223) 0.00 0.00 0.00
c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
    (Line 2a plus Line 2b) 10,815,325.84 12,142,146.38 14,885,806.00

3. County Office's Available Reserve Percentage
(Line 1e divided by Line 2c) 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

County Office's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels
(Line 3 times 1/3): 1.7% 1.7% 1.7%

¹Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve
for Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County School Service 
Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be 
reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the County School Service Fund.

² A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area
(SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members.

6B. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Percentages

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. 

Net Change in Total Unrestricted Expenditures Deficit Spending Level

Unrestricted Fund Balance and Other Financing Uses (If Net Change in Unrestricted Fund

Fiscal Year (Form 01, Section E) (Form 01, Objects 1000-7999) Balance is negative, else N/A) Status

Third Prior Year (2018-19) 692,590.98 2,178,251.21 N/A Met

Second Prior Year (2019-20) 447,344.15 2,137,158.56 N/A Met

First Prior Year (2020-21) 92,274.00 2,446,213.00 N/A Met

Budget Year (2021-22) (Information only) 96,917.00 2,614,737.00

6C. Comparison of County Office Deficit Spending to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard percentage level in two or more of the three prior years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

117



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 11 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

7. CRITERION: Fund Balance

STANDARD: Budgeted beginning unrestricted county school service fund balance has not been overestimated for two out of three prior fiscal years
by more than the following percentage levels:

County Office Total Expenditures
Percentage Level ¹ and Other Financing Uses ²

1.7%                            0   to            $6,317,999
1.3%            $6,318,000   to          $15,794,999
1.0%          $15,795,000   to          $71,078,000
0.7%          $71,078,001 and                 over

¹ Percentage levels equate to a rate of deficit spending which would eliminate recommended reserves
for economic uncertainties over a three year period.

² A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit of a Special Education Local Plan Area may
exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members.

County Office's Expenditures and Other Financing
 Uses (Criterion 8A1), plus SELPA Pass-through

(Criterion 7A2b) if Criterion 7A, Line 1 is No: 14,205,580

County Office's Fund Balance Standard Percentage Level: 1.3%

7A. Calculating the County Office's Special Education Pass-through Exclusions (only for county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA)

DATA ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if Form MYP exists, all data will be extracted including the Yes/No button selection. If not, click the appropriate Yes or No button for item 1 and,
if Yes, enter data for item 2a and for the two subsequent years in item 2b; Budget Year data are extracted.

For county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA (Form MYP, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2):

1. Do you choose to exclude pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members from the 
calculations for fund balance and reserves? Yes

2. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through funds:
a. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

b. Special Education Pass-through Funds 
    (Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546, 
    objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223): 0.00

7B. Calculating the County Office's Unrestricted County School Service Fund Beginning Balance Percentages

DATA ENTRY: Enter data in the Original Budget column for the First, Second, and Third Prior Years; all other data are extracted or calculated.

Unrestricted County School Service Fund Beginning Balance ³ Beginning Fund Balance

(Form 01, Line F1e, Unrestricted Column) Variance Level

Fiscal Year Original Budget Estimated/Unaudited Actuals (If overestimated, else N/A) Status

Third Prior Year (2018-19) 2,596,242.00 2,782,204.03 N/A Met

Second Prior Year (2019-20) 2,963,121.00 3,474,795.01 N/A Met

First Prior Year (2020-21) 3,696,035.00 3,922,140.00 N/A Met
Budget Year (2021-22) (Information only) 4,014,414.00

³ Adjusted beginning balance, including audit adjustments and other restatements (objects 9791-9795)

7C. Comparison of County Office Unrestricted Beginning Fund Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Unrestricted county school service fund beginning fund balance has not been overestimated by more than the standard percentage level for two or more of the
previous three years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

118



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 12 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

8. CRITERION: Reserves

STANDARD: Available reserves¹ for any of the budget year or two subsequent fiscal years are not less than the following percentages or amounts as
applied to total expenditures and other financing uses²:

County Office Total Expenditures
Percentage Level³ and Other Financing Uses ³

5% or      $71,000 (greater of)                            0   to            $6,317,999
4% or    $316,000 (greater of)            $6,318,000   to          $15,794,999
3% or    $632,000 (greater of)          $15,795,000   to          $71,078,000
2% or $2,132,000 (greater of)          $71,078,001 and                 over

¹Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for
Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County School Service Fund
and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be
reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the County School Service Fund.

² A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit of a Special Education Local Plan Area may
exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members.

³ Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually by the prior year statutory cost-of-living adjustment, as
referenced in Education Code Section 2574, rounded to the nearest thousand.

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

County Office's Expenditures and Other Financing
 Uses (Criterion 8A1), plus SELPA Pass-through

(Criterion 7A2b) if Criterion 7A, Line 1 is No: 14,205,580 13,783,605 14,024,937

County Office's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: 4% 4% 4%

8A. Calculating the County Office's Reserve Standard

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYP exists, 1st and 2nd Subsequent Year data for line 1 will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years. 
All other data are extracted or calculated. 

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Fund 01, objects 1000-7999) (Form MYP, Line B11) 14,205,580.00 13,783,605.00 14,024,937.00

2. Plus: Special Education Pass-through

(Criterion 7A, Line 2b if Criterion 7A, Line 1 is No) 0.00

3. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Line A1 plus Line A2) 14,205,580.00 13,783,605.00 14,024,937.00

4. Reserve Standard Percentage Level 4% 4% 4%

5. Reserve Standard - by Percent

(Line A3 times Line A4) 568,223.20 551,344.20 560,997.48

6. Reserve Standard - by Amount

(From percentage level chart above) 316,000.00 316,000.00 316,000.00
7. County Office's Reserve Standard

(Greater of Line A5 or Line A6) 568,223.20 551,344.20 560,997.48

119



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 13 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

8B. Calculating the County Office's Budgeted Reserve Amount

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYP exists, 1st and 2nd Subsequent Year data for lines 1 through 7 will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years. 
All other data are extracted or calculated. 

Reserve Amounts
(Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except lines 4, 8, and 9):

Budget Year
(2021-22)

1st Subsequent Year
(2022-23)

2nd Subsequent Year
(2023-24)

1. County School Service Fund - Stabilization Arrangements
(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYP, Line E1a) 0.00

2. County School Service Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties

(Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MYP, Line E1b) 710,279.00 689,180.00 701,247.00

3. County School Service Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MYP, Line E1c) 0.00 0.00 0.00
4. County School Service Fund - Negative Ending Balances in Restricted

Resources (Fund 01, Object 979Z, if negative, for each

of resources 2000-9999) (Form MYP, Line E1d) 0.00 0.00 0.00
5. Special Reserve Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYP, Line E2a) 0.00

6. Special Reserve Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties

(Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MYP, Line E2b) 0.00

7. Special Reserve Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MYP, Line E2c) 0.00

8. County Office's Budgeted Reserve Amount

(Lines B1 thru B7) 710,279.00 689,180.00 701,247.00
9. County Office's Budgeted Reserve Percentage (Information only)

(Line 8 divided by Section 8A, Line 3) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

County Office's Reserve Standard 

(Section 8A, Line 7): 568,223.20 551,344.20 560,997.48

Status: Met Met Met

8C. Comparison of County Office Reserve Amount to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected available reserves have met the standard for the budget and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

120



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 14 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation for each Yes answer.

S1. Contingent Liabilities

1a. Does your county office have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program audits, litigation,
state compliance reviews) that may impact the budget? No

1b. If Yes, identify the liabilities and how they may impact the budget:

S2. Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures

1a. Does your county office have ongoing county school service fund expenditures in the budget in excess of 
one percent of the total county school service fund expenditures that are funded with one-time resources? No

1b. If Yes, identify the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue funding the ongoing expenditures in the following fiscal years:

S3. Use of Ongoing Revenues for One-time Expenditures

1a. Does your county office have large non-recurring county school service fund expenditures that are funded 

with ongoing county school service fund revenues? No

1b. If Yes, identify the expenditures:

S4. Contingent Revenues

1a. Does your county office have projected revenues for the budget year or either of the two subsequent fiscal 
years contingent on reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act 
(e.g., parcel taxes, forest reserves)? No

1b. If Yes, identify any of these revenues that are dedicated for ongoing expenses and explain how the revenues will be replaced or expenditures reduced:

121



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 15 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

S5. Contributions

Identify projected contributions from unrestricted resources in the county school service fund to restricted resources in the county school service fund for the budget year and two
subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if contributions have changed from prior fiscal year amounts by more than $20,000 and more than ten percent. Explanation should
include whether contributions are ongoing or one-time in nature.

Identify projected transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund for the budget year and
two subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if transfers have changed from prior fiscal year amounts by more than $20,000 and more than ten percent. Explanation should
include whether transfers are ongoing or one-time in nature.

Estimate the impact of any capital projects on the county school service fund operational budget.

County Office's Contributions and Transfers Standard:
-10.0% to +10.0%

or -$20,000 to +$20,000

S5A. Identification of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the County School Service Fund

DATA ENTRY:  For Contributions, enter data in the Projection column for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Contributions for the First Prior Year and Budget Year data will be extracted.
For Transfers In and Transfers Out, the First Prior Year and Budget Year data will be extracted. If Form MYP exists, the data will be extracted for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If
Form MYP does not exist, enter data for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Click the appropriate button for 1d. All other data are extracted or calculated.

Description / Fiscal Year Projection Amount of Change Percent Change Status

1a. Contributions, Unrestricted County School Service Fund (Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8980)
First Prior Year (2020-21) (348,031.00)
Budget Year (2021-22) (171,540.00) (176,491.00) -50.7% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) (165,052.00) (6,488.00) -3.8% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) (152,120.00) (12,932.00) -7.8% Met

1b. Transfers In, County School Service Fund *
First Prior Year (2020-21) 6,000.00
Budget Year (2021-22) 6,000.00 0.00 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 6,000.00 0.00 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 6,000.00 0.00 0.0% Met

1c. Transfers Out, County School Service Fund *
First Prior Year (2020-21) 0.00
Budget Year (2021-22) 0.00 0.00 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2022-23) 0.00 0.00 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 0.00 0.0% Met

1d. Impact of Capital Projects
Do you have any capital projects that may impact the county school service fund operational budget? No

* Include transfers used to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund.

S5B. Status of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Not Met for items 1a-1c or if Yes for item 1d.

1a. NOT MET - The projected contributions from the unrestricted county school service fund to restricted county school service fund programs have changed by more than the
standard for one or more of the budget or subsequent two fiscal years. Identify restricted programs and amount of contribution for each program and whether contributions are
ongoing or one-time in nature. Explain the county office's plan, with timeframes, for reducing or eliminating the contribution.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

In 20-21 CCOE anticipated contributing $200,000 to our food service program. We anticipate in closing FY20-21 and future years will be much less. 

1b. MET - Projected transfers in have not changed by more than the standard for the budget and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

122



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 16 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

1c. MET - Projected transfers out have not changed by more than the standard for the budget and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

1d. NO - There are no capital projects that may impact the county school service fund operational budget.

Project Information:

(required if YES)

123



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 17 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

S6. Long-term Commitments

Identify all existing and new multiyear commitments¹ and their annual required payment for the budget year and two subsequent fiscal years. Explain how any increase in annual
payments will be funded.

Also, explain how any decrease to funding sources used to pay long-term commitments will be replaced.

¹ Include multiyear commitments, multiyear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations.

S6A. Identification of the County Office's Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in item 1 and enter data in all columns of item 2 for applicable long-term commitments; there are no extractions in this section.

1. Does your county office have long-term (multiyear) commitments?
(If No, skip item 2 and sections S6B and S6C) Yes

2. If Yes to item 1, list all new and existing multiyear commitments and required annual debt service amounts. Do not include long-term commitments for postemployment benefits
other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in Criterion S7A.

# of Years SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: Principal Balance
Type of Commitment Remaining Funding Sources (Revenues) Debt Service (Expenditures) as of July 1, 2021

Leases
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences 0000 Resource 105,000

Other Long-term Commitments (do not include OPEB):

TOTAL: 105,000

Prior Year Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment
Type of Commitment (continued) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I)

Leases
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences

Other Long-term Commitments (continued):

Total Annual Payments: 0 0 0 0
Has total annual payment increased over prior year (2020-21)? No No No

124



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 18 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

S6B. Comparison of County Office's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Yes.

1a. NO - Annual payments for long-term commitments have not increased in one or more of the budget and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if Yes to increase
 in total annual payments) 

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in item 1; if Yes, an explanation is required in item 2.

1. Will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources?

No

2. NO - Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, and one-time funds are not being used for long-term commitment annual payments.

Explanation:
(required if Yes)

125



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 19 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

S7. Unfunded Liabilities

Estimate the unfunded liability for postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) based on an actuarial valuation, if required, or other method; identify or estimate the
actuarially determined contribution (if available); and indicate how the obligation is funded (pay-as-you-go, amortized over a specific period, etc.).

Estimate the unfunded liability for self-insurance programs such as workers' compensation based on an actuarial valuation, if required, or other method; identify or estimate the
required contribution; and, indicate how the obligation is funded (level of risk retained, funding approach, etc.).

S7A. Identification of the County Office's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB)

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in item 1 and enter data in all other applicable items; there are no extractions in this section except the budget year data on line 5b.

1. Does your county office provide postemployment benefits other

than pensions (OPEB)? (If No, skip items 2-5) Yes

2. For the county office's OPEB:
a. Are they lifetime benefits? No

b. Do benefits continue past age 65? No

c. Describe any other characteristics of the county office's OPEB program including eligibility criteria and amounts, if any, that retirees are required to contribute
    toward their own benefits:

Members of ECCOE bargaring unit with 20 or more years at CCOE will have $50,000 maxium towards health benefits from age 55 to 65. Members
must be 55 to retire with this benefit.

3. a. Are OPEB financed on a pay-as-you-go, actuarial cost, or other method? Pay-as-you-go

b. Indicate any accumulated amounts earmarked for OPEB in a self-insurance or Self-Insurance Fund Government Fund
    government fund 0 0

4. OPEB Liabilities
a. Total OPEB liability 425,555.00
b. OPEB plan(s) fiduciary net position (if applicable) 0.00
c. Total/Net OPEB liability (Line 4a minus Line 4b) 425,555.00
d. Is total OPEB liability based on the county office's estimate 
    or an actuarial valuation? Actuarial
e. If based on an actuarial valuation, indicate the measurement date
    of the OPEB valuation. Apr 16, 2020

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
5. OPEB Contributions (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

a. OPEB actuarially determined contribution (ADC), if available, per
    actuarial valuation or Alternative Measurement 
    Method 0.00 0.00 0.00
b. OPEB amount contributed (for this purpose, include premiums paid to a
    self-insurance fund) (funds 01-70, objects 3701-3752) 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00
c. Cost of OPEB benefits (equivalent of "pay-as-you-go" amount) 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00
d. Number of retirees receiving OPEB benefits 1 1 0

126



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 20 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

S7B. Identification of the County Office's Unfunded Liability for Self-Insurance Programs

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in item 1 and enter data in all other applicable items; there are no extractions in this section.

1. Does your county office operate any self-insurance programs such as workers' 
compensation, employee health and welfare, or property and liability? (Do not
include OPEB, which is covered in Section 7A) (If No, skip items 2-4)

No

2. Describe each self-insurance program operated by the county office, including details for each such as level of risk retained, funding approach, basis for the valuation (county
office's estimate or actuarial valuation), and date of the valuation:

NVSIG is JPA for Worker's Compensation. Claims after 1995 are covered by Protected Insurance Program for Schools (PIPS). 

3. Self-Insurance Liabilities

a. Accrued liability for self-insurance programs
b. Unfunded liability for self-insurance programs

4. Self-Insurance Contributions Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

a. Required contribution (funding) for self-insurance programs
b. Amount contributed (funded) for self-insurance programs

127



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 21 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

S8. Status of Labor Agreements

Analyze the status of all employee labor agreements. Identify new labor agreements, as well as new commitments provided as part of previously ratified multiyear agreements; and
include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the date of the required board meeting. Compare the
increase in new commitments to the projected increase in ongoing revenues, and explain how these commitments will be funded in future fiscal years.

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized at budget adoption, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff:

The county office of education must determine the cost of the settlement, including salaries, benefits, and any other agreements that change costs, and provide the California
Department of Education (CDE) with an analysis of the cost of the settlement and its impact on the operating budget.

The CDE shall review the analysis relative to the criteria and standards, and may provide written comments to the president of the governing board and the county superintendent
of schools.

S8A. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Enter all applicable data items; there are no extractions in this section.

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)
Number of certificated (non-management)
full-time-equivalent (FTE) positions 45.9 55.0 55.0 55.0

Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations
1. Are salary and benefit negotiations settled for the budget year? No

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents
have not been filed with the CDE, complete questions 2-4.

If No, identify the unsettled negotiations including any prior year unsettled negotiations and then complete questions 5 and 6.

21-22 Negotiations are in progress. In 21-22 CCOE is now including unrepresented certificated staff in our FTE totals for more accuracy moving
forward.

Negotiations Settled
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public 

disclosure board meeting:

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date:  End Date:  

4. Salary settlement: Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the budget and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)? No No No

One Year Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 45,000

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 10,000 0 0

128



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 22 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the budget and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 454,023 454,023 454,023

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer Hard CAP Hard CAP Hard CAP

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 1.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Certificated (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements

Are any new costs from prior year settlements included in the budget? No

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the budget and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the budget and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 69,081 63,646 61,370

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the budget and MYPs? Yes No No

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the budget and MYPs?

No No No

Certificated (Non-management) - Other
List other significant contract changes and the cost impact of each change (i.e., class size, hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.):

129



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 23 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

S8B. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Classified (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Enter all applicable data items; there are no extractions in this section.

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Number of classified (non-management)
FTE positions 57.5 100.0 100.0 100.0

Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

1. Are salary and benefit negotiations settled for the budget year? No

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents
have not been filed with the CDE, complete questions 2-4.

If No, identify the unsettled negotiations including any prior year unsettled negotiations and then complete questions 5 and 6.

21-22 negotiations have not begun. In our FTE totals for FY 21-22, we are now including unrepresented classified for more accuracy moving forward

Negotiations Settled
2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure 

board meeting:

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date:  End Date:  

4. Salary settlement: Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the budget and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 24,477

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 50,000

130



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 24 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the budget and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 475,530 475,530 475,530

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer Hard CAP Hard CAP Hard CAP

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 1.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements

Are any new costs from prior year settlements included in the budget? No

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the budget and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the budget and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 78,927 58,914 58,927

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the budget and MYPs? Yes No No

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the budget and MYPs? No No No

Classified (Non-management) - Other
List other significant contract changes and the cost impact of each change (i.e., hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.):

131



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 25 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

S8C. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Enter all applicable data items; there are no extractions in this section.

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2020-21) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)
Number of management, supervisor, and
confidential FTE positions 10.0 13.0 13.0 13.0

Management/Supervisor/Confidential 

Salary and Benefit Negotiations

1. Are salary and benefit negotiations settled for the budget year? No

If Yes, complete question 2.

If No, identify the unsettled negotiations including any prior year unsettled negotiations and then complete questions 3 and 4.

21-22 negotiations are in progress.  In 21-22 CCOE is now including unrepresented certificated staff in our FTE totals for more accuracy moving
forward.

If n/a, skip the remainder of Section S8C.

Negotiations Settled

2. Salary settlement: Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the budget and multiyear 
projections (MYPs)? No No No

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Negotiations Not Settled

3. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 16,994

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

4. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 40,000

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the budget and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 124,365 124,365 124,365

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer Hard CAP Hard CAP Hard CAP

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 1.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Step and Column Adjustments (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the budget and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes
2. Cost of step & column adjustments 25,315 11,168 10,916
3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Other Benefits (mileage, bonuses, etc.) (2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24)

1. Are costs of other benefits included in the budget and MYPs? No No No

2. Total cost of other benefits

3. Percent change in cost of other benefits over prior year

132



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 26 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

S9. Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP)

Confirm that the county office of education's governing board has adopted an LCAP or an update to the LCAP effective for the budget year.

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in item 1, and enter the date in item 2.

1. Did or will the county office of education's governing board adopt an LCAP or an update to the LCAP effective for the budget year? Yes

2. Adoption date of the LCAP or an update to the LCAP. Jun 09, 2021

S10. LCAP Expenditures

Confirm that the county office of education's budget includes the expenditures necessary to implement the LCAP or annual update to the LCAP.

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button.

Does the county office of education's budget include the expenditures necessary to implement the LCAP or annual update to the LCAP as Yes
described in the Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template?

133



Colusa County Office of Education
Colusa County

2021-22 July 1 Budget
County School Service Fund

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review
06 10066 0000000

Form 01CS

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
File: cs-b (Rev 04/19/2021) Page 27 of 27 Printed:  5/27/2021  11:56 AM

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS

The following fiscal indicators are designed to provide additional data for reviewing agencies. A "Yes" answer to any single indicator does not necessarily suggest a cause for concern, but
may alert the reviewing agency to the need for additional review.

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items A1 through A8 except item A3, which is automatically completed based on data in Criterion 1.

A1. Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the budget year with a
negative cash balance in the county school service fund? No

A2. Is the system of personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
No

A3. Is the County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior fiscal year and budget year? (Data from
Criterion 1, Sections 1B-1 and 1B-2, County Operations Grant ADA column, are used to determine
Yes or No) No

A4. Are new charter schools operating in county office boundaries that impact the county office's
ADA, either in the prior fiscal year or budget year? No

A5. Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the budget
or subsequent years of the agreement would result in salary increases that No
are expected to exceed the projected state funded cost-of-living adjustment?

A6. Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health benefits for current or
retired employees? No

A7. Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress?
(If Yes, provide copies to CDE) No

A8. Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business
official positions within the last 12 months? No

When providing comments for additional fiscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment.

Comments:
(optional)

End of County Office Budget Criteria and Standards Review

134



Page 1

SACS2021 Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
5/24/2021 2:28:23 PM 06-10066-0000000

July 1 Budget
2020-21 Estimated Actuals
Technical Review Checks

Colusa County Office of Education                            Colusa County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and 
related requirements:

F    - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct, 

correct the data; if data are correct an explanation 
is required)

O    - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if 
data are correct an explanation is optional, 
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS
CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTB - (O) - The following combinations for RESOURCE and 
OBJECT (objects 9791, 9793, and 9795) are invalid: EXCEPTION

           ACCOUNT
FD - RS - PY - GO - FN - OB RESOURCE OBJECT               VALUE

01-6520-0-0000-0000-9791 6520 9791           11,160.00
Explanation:Due to COVID CDE allowed for carryover from 19-20.

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS
EXP-POSITIVE - (W) - The following expenditure functions have a negative 
balance by resource, by fund. (NOTE: Functions, including CDE-defined optional
functions, are checked individually, except functions 7200-7600 are combined.)

EXCEPTION

FUND RESOURCE FUNCTION               VALUE
01 6500 2490          -59,216.00
Explanation:CCOE has budgeted transfers between resources in SP ED. Actual 
expenditures will not be charged to function 2490.

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

Checks Completed.

135



Page 1

SACS2021 Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0
5/24/2021 2:28:58 PM 06-10066-0000000

July 1 Budget
2021-22 Budget

Technical Review Checks
Colusa County Office of Education                            Colusa County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and 
related requirements:

F    - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct, 

correct the data; if data are correct an explanation 
is required)

O    - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if 
data are correct an explanation is optional, 
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS
EXP-POSITIVE - (W) - The following expenditure functions have a negative 
balance by resource, by fund. (NOTE: Functions, including CDE-defined optional
functions, are checked individually, except functions 7200-7600 are combined.)

EXCEPTION

FUND RESOURCE FUNCTION               VALUE
01 3327 2490           -3,769.00
Explanation:CCOE has budgeted transfers between SP ED resources. Actual 
expenditures will not be recorded in fuction 2490. 

01 6546 2490          -18,269.00
Explanation:CCOE has budgeted transfer between resources in SP ED. Actual 
expenditures will not be coded to function 2490.

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

Checks Completed.

136



  11.3 

COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
RESOLUTION 20/21‐03 

RESOLUTION OF THE COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT 
OF SCHOOLS AND THE COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGARDING THE 2021‐22 EDUCATION PROTECTION ACCOUNT 

 
 
  WHEREAS, the voters approved Proposition 30 on November 6, 2012 and Proposition 55 on 
November 8, 2016; 
 
  WHEREAS, Proposition 30 added Article XIII, Section 36 to the California Constitution effective 
November 7, 2012; and Proposition 55 amended Article XIII, Section 36 of the California Constitution 
effective November 8, 2016 and commencing on January 1, 2018; 
 
  WHEREAS, the provisions of Article XIII, Section 36(e) create in the State General Fund an 
Education Protection Account to receive and disburse the revenues derived from the incremental 
increases in taxes imposed by Article XIII, Section 36(f); 
 
  WHEREAS, before June 30th of each year, the Director of Business Services shall estimate the 
total amount of additional revenues, less refunds that will be derived from the incremental increases 
in tax rates made pursuant to Article XIII, Section 36(f) that will be available for transfer into the 
Education Protection Account during the next fiscal year; 
 
  WHEREAS, if the sum determined by the State Controller is positive, the State Controller shall 
transfer the amount calculated into the Education Protection Account within ten days preceding the 
end of the fiscal year; 
 
  WHEREAS, all monies in the Education Protection Account are hereby continuously appropriated 
for the support of school districts, county offices of education, charter schools and community 
college districts; 
 
  WHEREAS, monies deposited in the Education Protection Account shall not be used to pay any 
costs incurred by the Legislature, the Governor or any agency of state government; 
 
  WHEREAS, a community college district, county office of education, school district, or charter 
school shall have the sole authority to determine how the monies received from the Education 
Protection Account are spent in the school or schools within its jurisdiction; 
 
  WHEREAS, the governing board of the district shall make the spending determinations with 
respect to monies received from the Education Protection Account in open session of a public 
meeting of the governing board; 
 



Board Resolution 20/21‐03 
Page 2 
June 9, 2021 

  WHEREAS, the monies received from the Education Protection Account shall not be used for 
salaries or benefits for administrators or any other administrative cost; 
 
  WHEREAS, each community college district, county office of education, school district and charter 
school shall annually publish on its Internet website an accounting of how much money was received 
from the Education Protection Account and how that money was spent; 
 
  WHEREAS, the annual independent financial and compliance audit required of community college 
districts, county offices of education, school districts and charter schools shall ascertain and verify 
whether the funds provided from the Education Protection Account have been properly disbursed 
and expended as required by Article XIII, Section 36 of the California Constitution; and 
 
  WHEREAS, expenses incurred by community college districts, county offices of education, school 
districts and charter schools to comply with the additional audit requirements of Article XIII, Section 
36 may be paid with funding from the Education Protection Act and shall not be considered 
administrative costs for purposes of Article XIII, Section 36; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The monies received from the Education Protection Account shall 
be spent as required by Article XIII, Section 36 and the spending determinations on how the money 
will be spent shall be made in open session of a public meeting of the governing board of Colusa 
County Board of Education; and further 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, In compliance with Article XIII, Section 36(e), with the California Constitution, 
the governing board of the Colusa County Office of Education has determined to spend the monies 
received from the Education Protection Act as attached. 
 
The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Colusa County Board of 
Education on the 9th day of June 2021 by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:   
 
Noes:   
 
Absent:   
 

I, Michael P. West, Secretary of the Governing Board of Colusa County Office of Education, of Colusa 
County, California, certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution adopted by 
the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held at a regular public place of meeting and the resolution 
is on file in the of said Board. 
 
       
  (Clerk’s Signature)      (Date) 



Colusa COE 2020‐21 Budget
Expenditures through: June 30, 2021 

For Fund 01, Resource 1400 Education Protection Account

Description Object Codes Amount

AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR

Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9795 0.00

Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 481,199.00

Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00

Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00

Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00

All Other Financing Sources and Contributions 8900-8999 0.00

Deferred Revenue 9650  
TOTAL AVAILABLE 481,199.00

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Function

(Objects 1000-7999)

Instruction 1000-1999

Instruction-Related Services

Instructional Supervision and Administration 2100-2150 0.00

AU of a Multidistrict SELPA 2200 0.00
Instructional Library, Media, and Technology 2420 0.00

Other Instructional Resources 2490-2495 0.00

School Administration 2700 481,199.00

Pupil Services

Guidance and Counseling Services 3110 0.00

Psychological Services 3120 0.00

Attendance and Social Work Services 3130 0.00

Health Services 3140 0.00

Speech Pathology and Audiology Services 3150 0.00

Pupil Testing Services 3160 0.00

Pupil Transportation 3600 0.00

Food Services 3700 0.00

Other Pupil Services 3900 0.00

Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00

Community Services 5000-5999 0.00

Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00

General Administration 7000-7999

Plant Services 8000-8999

Other Outgo 9000-9999 0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 481,199.00

BALANCE (Total Available minus Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses) 0.00



Colusa COE 2021‐22 Budget

Expenditures through: June 30, 2022

For Fund 01, Resource 1400 Education Protection Account

Description Object Codes Amount

AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR

Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9795 0.00

Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 481,199.00

Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00

Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00

Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00

All Other Financing Sources and Contributions 8900-8999 0.00

Deferred Revenue 9650  
TOTAL AVAILABLE 481,199.00

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Function

(Objects 1000-7999)

Instruction 1000-1999

Instruction-Related Services

Instructional Supervision and Administration 2100-2150 0.00

AU of a Multidistrict SELPA 2200 0.00
Instructional Library, Media, and Technology 2420 0.00

Other Instructional Resources 2490-2495 0.00

School Administration 2700 291,806.00

Pupil Services

Guidance and Counseling Services 3110 0.00

Psychological Services 3120 0.00

Attendance and Social Work Services 3130 0.00

Health Services 3140 0.00

Speech Pathology and Audiology Services 3150 0.00

Pupil Testing Services 3160 0.00

Pupil Transportation 3600 0.00

Food Services 3700 0.00

Other Pupil Services 3900 0.00

Ancillary Services 4000-4999 0.00

Community Services 5000-5999 0.00

Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00

General Administration 7000-7999 140,420.00

Plant Services 8000-8999 48,973.00

Other Outgo 9000-9999 0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 481,199.00

BALANCE (Total Available minus Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses) 0.00



Superintendent Salaries 21/22

 

Class VII

Counties Work Days Salary Daily Rate

Calaveras 220 $138,720 $631

Glenn 230 $160,000 $696

Inyo 215 $175,000 $814

Lassen 225 $151,716 $674

Modoc 215 $139,352 $648

Mono 200 $151,665 $758

Siskiyou 230 $153,625 $668

Trinity 205 $153,994 $751

Tuolumne 225 $172,176 $765

Amador 225 $200,000 $889

Del Norte 246 $191,137 $777

Mariposa 262 $160,000 $611

 *Plumas 225 $144,355 $642#DIV/0!

Average Class VII Counties 225 $160,903 $717

230 $162,473 $706

Work Days Salary Daily Rate

224 $162,473 $725

225 $136,500 $607

225 $167,374 $744

220 $174,800 $795

Average Colusa Co District Superintendents 224 $160,287 $718

230 $162,473 $706

Work Days Salary Daily Rate

224 $202,640 $905

230 $160,000 $696

217 $189,849 $875

220 $200,491 $911

215 $193,861 $902

Average Contiguous Superintendents 221 $189,368 $858

230 $162,473 $706

*Del Norte, Mariposa and Plumas Countys are 3 of 5 county/unified school districts; most of the salary is paid by

°Verified 5/14/21

* Lassen did not get back to me.  Using same days and salary from last year.

Colusa

Colusa Unified

District

Williams Unified

Sutter

Pierce Joint Unified

Butte

Contiguous Counties

Colusa

Maxwell Unified

 the district.

Glenn

Yolo

Lake

Colusa

S:\SURVEYS\Superintendent's Salary Survey\Superintendent's Salary Survey 21-22\Superintendent Salaries 2021



Superintendent Salary 21-22

COUNTY/         

DISTRICT

DAYS/

YEAR
SALARY 

CAR 

ALLOWANCE
CAP

MASTER'S 

DEGREE

DOCTORATE 

DEGREE

ENGLISH 

LANGUAGE 

CERTIFICATE

ACSA DUES
CELL 

PHONE
OTHER TOTAL SALARY

Maxwell USD 225 136,500.00$    -$                   8,868.00$       -$                -$                -$                  Yes -$             -$                 145,368.00$        
Calaveras 220 138,720.00$    -$                   10,216.00$     -$                -$                -$                  -$              600.00$       -$                 149,536.00$        
Modoc 215 139,352.00$    -$                   12,900.00$     1,500.00$       -$                -$                  -$              -$             -$                 153,752.00$        
Plumas 225 144,355.00$    -$                   11,059.00$     -$                -$                -$                  Yes -$             -$                 155,414.00$        
Mono 200 151,665.00$    -$                   30,501.00$     -$                -$                -$                  Yes -$                 182,166.00$        
Lassen 225 151,716.00$    -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                  1,508.90$    600.00$       -$                 153,824.90$        
Siskiyou 230+ 153,625.00$    -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                  -$              -$                 153,625.00$        
Trinity 205 153,993.96$    -$                   6,302.04$       -$                -$                -$                  Yes -$             -$                 160,296.00$        
Glenn 230 160,000.00$    -$                   1,164.00$       -$                -$                -$                  -$              -$             -$                 161,164.00$        
Mariposa 262 160,000.00$    -$                   13,359.00$     1,500.00$       1,500.00$       -$                  Yes -$             -$                 176,359.00$        
Colusa 230 162,473.00$    4,200.00$         10,000.00$     -$                -$                -$                  Yes -$             -$                 176,673.00$        
Pierce Joint USD 225 167,374.00$    4,800.00$         -$                1,000.00$       1,000.00$       -$                  Yes -$             -$                 174,174.00$        
Tuolumne 225 172,176.00$    10,020.00$     -$                -$                -$                  Yes 600.00$       11,000.00$     193,796.00$        
Williams USD 220 174,800.00$    -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                  Yes -$             -$                 174,800.00$        
Inyo 215 175,000.00$    -$                   -$                500.00$          -$                -$                  1,603.00$    -$             -$                 177,103.00$        
Colusa USD 224 178,647.00$    -$                   10,523.76$     800.00$          1,000.00$       -$                  Yes 600.00$       -$                 191,570.76$        
Lake 217 189,848.96$    -$                   14,500.00$     -$                -$                -$                  -$              360.00$       -$                 204,708.96$        
Del Norte 246 191,137.00$    -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                  -$              -$             -$                 191,137.00$        
Yolo 215 193,861.00$    -$                   7,800.00$       1,000.00$       1,000.00$       -$                  Yes 1,200.00$       204,861.00$        
Amador 225 200,000.00$    500.00$            10,050.00$     1,000.00$       1,000.00$       Yes -$             212,550.00$        
Sutter 220 200,491.00$    -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                  -$              -$             -$                 200,491.00$        
Butte 224 202,640.04$    -$                   991.14$          -$                -$                -$                  -$              -$             50,000.00$     253,631.18$        

*Siskiyou Superintendent is an elected official.  Legally required to work 2 days a year.  Current Superintendent  works 230+ days a year.

*Tuolumne: Compensation under Other, is for Business Allowance (travel & mileage).
* Yolo, Calaveras and Trinity same salary as last year. They haven't heard of any increase for 2021/2022.

* Lassen did not get back to me. Using same days and salary from last year.

* Butte: Other $50,000 in life insurance. 



Inventory for Disposal

June 9, 2021

345 5th Street

Tag # Manufacturer Make/Model Item/Year Serial # Original Cost Reason For Surplus

N/A Ford Windstar 2004 Silver Van  VIN 1FMZA51694BA82007 $12,976.00 Obselete

Intended Disposition:

Children's Services Surplus Inventory

Donate to Charity.





COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Michael P. West, County Superintendent of Schools 

345 5th Street, Suite A, Colusa CA 95932 
mwest@ccoe.net  p 530.458.0350 f 530.458.0350 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Veronica Sandoval, President 

Educators of Colusa County Office of Education 

FROM: Michael P. West 

Colusa County Superintendent of Schools 

DATE: May 12, 2021 

SUBJECT: Superintendent's Sunshine Proposal for Educators of Colusa 

County Office of Education (ECCOE) for 2021-22 

The Colusa County Office of Education (CCOE) proposes the following items for 

negotiations for 2021-2022: 

1. Entire Agreement/Modification (Article 28) — Contract Review and 

Possible Revision 

CCOE reserves the right to present more detailed written proposals as 

negotiations commence in each of the articles identified in this initial proposal 

and reserves the right to open additional articles. 

Michael P. W 

Colusa erintendent of Schools 



COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
RESOLUTION 20/21‐04 

RESOLUTION OF THE COLUSA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
AND THE COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

IN RECOGNITION AND PROFOUND APPRECIATION OF DISTINGUISHED YEARS OF SERVICE 
BY COLUSA COUNTY ONE‐STOP 

  WHEREAS, the mission of the Colusa County Office of Education is to provide educational 
programs and services that promote the development of children and adults; 

  WHEREAS, Colusa County One‐Stop has always been mindful of the interests of students in 
Colusa County and has worked to support, encourage, and advance their educational 
opportunities; 

  WHEREAS, the Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the Colusa County Board of 
Education recognize Colusa County One‐Stop and their seventeen years of collaboration in 
education programs; 

  WHEREAS, Colusa County One‐Stop has been an active advocate for many endeavors, 
including the return of community college classes and services to Colusa County, construction 
and operation of childcare services in all four school districts, and all adult education classes 
and programs; and 

  WHEREAS, the Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the Board of Education 
recognize the Colusa County One‐Stop’s dedication to students in Colusa County; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Colusa County Superintendent of Schools and the 
Board of Education acknowledge and extend their gratitude to the Colusa County One‐Stop for 
their dedicated service and notable contribution to education in Colusa County; and further 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Colusa County Office of Education has adopted this resolution of 
appreciation and recognition for their commitment, devotion, and collaboration in all matters 
of the Colusa County Office of Education. 

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Colusa County 
Board of Education on the 9th day of June 2021 by the following vote: 

Ayes:   

Noes:   

Absent:   

I, Michael P. West, Secretary of the Governing Board of Colusa County Office of Education, of 
Colusa County, California, certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held at a regular public place of meeting 
and the resolution is on file in the office of said Board. 

       
  (Clerk’s Signature)      (Date) 

11.8 
 



July 1, 2021 
Thru 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Colusa County 
Consortium Plan 

 

 
 

For Serving Expelled Students 
 
 
 

BETWEEN 
 

Colusa County Superintendent of Schools Office 
Colusa Unified School District 
Maxwell Unified School District 
Pierce Joint Unified School District 
Williams Unified School District 



1 
 

Colusa County Consortium Plan for Serving Expelled Students 
 

Introduction 
 

Education Code 48926 requires a countywide plan, which shall include the following provisions: 
 

a. Enumerate existing educational alternatives for expelled youth 

b.    Identify gaps in educational services to expelled pupils 

c. Identify strategies for filling those gaps in services 

d.    Identify alternative placement for pupils who are expelled from districts within the county. 

Educational programs within the County of Colusa provide a variety of opportunities for students who need 
traditional and/or alternative education programs. Individual school districts offer a variety of program options 
within their respective schools.  The Colusa County Office of Education-Educational Services Department 
operates a Community School. 

 

A student whose behavior has resulted in expulsion is given a rehabilitation plan that is designed by the district 
of residence. The rehabilitation plan may involve one or more of the options outlined. A student who is simply 
in need of an educational alternative may also access these programs through a Parent request, District and/or 
County referral process. 

 

Education Code 48926: 
 

Each County Superintendent of Schools in counties that operate a community school pursuant to Section 1980, 
in conjunction with superintendents of the school districts within the county, shall develop a plan to provide 
education services to all expelled pupils in that county.  The plan shall be adopted by the governing board of 
each school district within the county and by the County Board of Education. 

 

The plan shall enumerate existing educational alternatives for expelled pupils, identify gaps in educational 
services to expelled pupils, and strategies for filling those service gaps.  The plan shall also identify alternative 
placements for pupils who are expelled and have been placed in district alternative education programs, but 
who fail to meet the terms and conditions of their rehabilitation plan or who pose a danger to other district 
pupils, as determined by the governing board. 

 

Each county superintendent of schools, in conjunction with the superintendents of the school districts, shall 
submit to the Superintendent of Public Instruction the county plan for providing educational services to all 
expelled pupils in the county no later than June 30, 2021, and shall submit a triennial update of the plan to the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction, including the outcome data pursuant to Section 48916.1, on June 30th, 
thereafter. 

 

Education Code 48916.1: 
 

a. At the time an expulsion of a pupil is ordered, the governing board of the school district shall ensure 
that an education program is provided to the pupil who is subject to the expulsion order for the period 
of the expulsion.   Except for pupils expelled pursuant to subdivision (d) of Section 48915, the 
governing board of a school district is required to implement the provision of this section only to the 
extent funds are appropriated for this purpose in the annual Budget Act or other legislation, or both. 

 

b. Notwithstanding  any  other  provision  of  law,  any  educational  program  provided  pursuant  to 
subdivision (a) may be operated by the school district, the county superintendent of schools, or a 
consortium of districts or in joint agreement with the county superintendent of schools. 

 

c. Any educational program provided pursuant to subdivision (b) may not be situated within or on the 
grounds of the school from which the pupil was expelled. 



2 

d. If the pupil subject to the expulsion order was expelled from kindergarten or grades 1 to 6, inclusive,  

 

the education program provided pursuant to subdivision (b) may not be combined or merged with 
educational programs offered to pupils in any of the grades 7 to 12, inclusive.  The district or county 
program is the only program required to be provided to expelled pupils as determined by the 
governing board of the school district. 

 

e. Each school district shall maintain data as specified in this subdivision and report the data annually to 
the State Department of Education, commencing June 1, 2021, provide data to the CCOE, on forms 
provided by the State Department of Education. The school district shall maintain the following data: 

 

1.  The number of pupils recommended for expulsion; 
 

2.  The grounds for each recommended expulsion; 
 

3.  Whether the pupil was subsequently expelled; 
 

4.  Whether the expulsion order was suspended; 
 

5.  The type of referral made after the expulsion; and 
 

6. The disposition of the pupil after the end of the period of   expulsion. 
 

f. When  a  school  district  does  not  report  outcome  data  as  required  by  this  subdivision,  the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction may not apportion any further money to the school district 
pursuant to Section 48664 until the school district is in compliance with the provisions of this 
subdivision.  Before withholding the apportionment of funds to a school district pursuant to this 
subdivision, the Superintendent of Public Instructions shall give written notice to the governing board 
of the school district pursuant to this subdivision, the Superintendent of Public Instruction shall give 
written notice to the governing board of the school district that the school district has failed to report 
the data required by paragraph (1) and that the school district has 30 calendar days from the date of 
the written notice of noncompliance to report the requested data and thereby avoid the withholding 
of the apportionment of funds. 

 

g. If the county superintendent of schools is unable for any reason to serve the expelled pupils of a 
school district within the county, the governing board of that school district may enter into an 
agreement with a County Superintendent of Schools in another county to provide education services 
for the district’s expelled pupils. 

 

Existing School District Alternatives for Expelled Students 
 

Each school district will take steps to see that services are provided for students who have an expulsion hearing. 
A student whose behavior has resulted in expulsion shall be given a rehabilitation plan that is designed by the 
district of residence.  Any recommended placement should be monitored, and appropriate documentation 
maintained. This plan may involve one or more of the options outlined below. 

 

The governing board of each school district will determine which educational alternatives are appropriate and 
available.   Educational alternatives throughout Colusa County for students recommended for expulsion 
include, but are not limited to, the following options: 

 

1.        Expulsion, suspended order, with placement on a different campus within the district; 
 

2. Expulsion,  suspended  order,  with  placement  in  District  Independent  Study,  if  the  parent 
consents; 

 

3. Expulsion, suspended order, with subsequent transfer to another district following inter-district 
request processes; 



3 

 

 

School Program; 
 

5. Expulsion with subsequent transfer to Community Day school within another district; or 
 

6. Expulsion with referral to the Colusa County Office of Education Community School Program. 
 

7. Because the goal of the community school is to reunify students to their home schools as timely 
as possible, districts could consider expulsion on a semester/case by case basis as well as a 
Resource Specialist to monitor the Rehabilitation Plan. 

 

Colusa County Consortium Plan for Serving Expelled Students 
 

The Colusa County Board of Education and the Governing Boards of each school district within Colusa County 
believe that all students are entitled to an appropriate public education.  Access to educational services will 
assist students to achieve their educational, career, and life goals; minimize future involvement with the 
Juvenile Court System for those students at risk; and maximize the opportunity for a higher quality of life. 

 

The Colusa County Board of Education, the Colusa County Superintendent of Schools, and the Governing 
Boards for the four Colusa County School Districts shall make every effort to keep all students in a school where 
an appropriate education can be provided, including those students who are expelled. 

 

Educational programs within Colusa County provide numerous opportunities for students who need traditional 
and/or alternative education programs. School districts in Colusa County offer a broad spectrum of educational 
alternatives, including, but not limited to: 

 

• Counseling Services 
 

• After school Tutoring 
 

• Alternative Educational Programs, i.e. Continuation/Alternative High Schools, Independent Study, 
Home Schooling, In-House Suspension and Home Suspension 

 

• DART/SARB Referrals 
 

• Parent Contacts 
 

The Colusa County Office of Education programs include: 
 

• Colusa County Community School at the Education Village in Williams. (Hereinafter referred to as 
the “S. William Abel Academy”). 

 

• Special Education Services 
 

• Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID) Strategies embedded into curriculum 
 

• Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS) Framework, Tiers I-III 
 

• Opportunity or Remediation/Tutoring during school hours 
 

• Individual Learning Plan (ILP) meetings 
 

• Public Transit Passes 
 

• Nutritious breakfast and lunch 
 

• Mental Health Services and Social Emotional Supports 
 

• Intervention Strategies to Support Social Emotional Learning 
 

• Educational Fieldtrips 

• Career Technical Education (CTE) 
 



4 

 

 

• Community College Concurrent Enrollment 
 

• Parent Contacts and Home Visits when necessary 
 

• Collaboration with Colusa Behavioral Health 
 

• Collaboration with Colusa County District Attorney 
 

• Independent Study 
 

• Collaboration with Colusa County Probation Department 
 

• Collaboration with Colusa County Sheriff’s Department 
 

Collaboratively, the four Colusa County School Districts and the Colusa County Office of Education offer a 
significant continuum of services providing alternatives to students prior to expulsion and services for expelled 
and at-promise students. In the event, a district requires additional services beyond what CCOE has the 
financial capacity to provide, the district will be financially responsible for those specific services. 

 

Colusa County Office of Education Overview 
 

The Colusa County Office of Education Educational Services Department will offer an educational option for 
expelled and at-promise students through the Community School, provided ADA is adequate to support the 
program.  The S. William Abel Academy program is a permissive educational program that provides the four 
local school districts with an educational option for expelled and at-promise youth. 

 

Colusa  County  Office  of  Education  Guidelines  for  Countywide  Programs  Serving  Expelled  and  At-
promise 
Students: 

 

• Students will successfully complete an individualized learning plan that will enable the student to 
return to their home school or graduate from the S. William Abel Academy. 

 

• Students will exhibit appropriate behavior and have good school attendance. 
 

• Students will be provided a learning environment that is accepting of all students, increases 
resiliency and enhances self-esteem. This learning environment may include in-person 
instruction, distance learning, independent study, or a hybrid program. 

 

• Students will be provided an academic program of instruction that is aligned to State standards and 
incorporates skills that will help them be socially and emotionally successful. 

 

• Students will be assisted in making a smooth transition back to their home school. 
 

Colusa County Educational Alternatives for Expelled and At-promise 
Youths 

 

The Colusa County Office of Education offers the following options for expelled and at-promise 
youth: 

 

• S. William Abel Academy at the Educational Village in Williams 
 

Gaps in Educational Services 
 

Six major gaps exist in respect to providing a comprehensive system of educational services to expelled 
students. Expelled students in grades 7-12 will be referred to the S. William Abel Academy at the Educational 
Village in Williams. 



5 

 

 

 

Gaps in Educational Services Colusa County/District Strategies for Addressing Gaps 

1. The school districts in Colusa County are small and 
generally expel a small number of students during the 
course of a school year.  Developing programs for such 
students, located in each district, is not financially 
possible.  The districts and the Colusa County Office of 
Education must work to develop solutions that are both 
educationally sound and financially possible. 

A. Depending on the Education Code violation, students may be placed on 
a suspended expulsion and allowed to remain on the school site with a 
mandatory behavior contract, terms and conditions. 

 

B. Depending on the Education Code violation, a student may be placed on 
a suspended expulsion and placed at a District Alternative/Continuation 
High School or in Independent Study, with a mandatory behavior contract, 
terms and conditions. 

 

C. An expelled student may possibly attend another district under a 
mandatory behavior contract, as determined by established inter-district 
agreements. 

 

D. Districts will continue to explore other possible means of discipline in 
lieu of expulsion when a student commits an expellable offense. Districts 
will continue to explore other means of discipline prior to expelling a 
student. 

2. The district-operated Community Day School option 
for expelled students, as described in current California 
Education Code, is difficult for the local districts to 
develop due to the following reasons: 

A. The six (6) hour, or 360-minute day exceeds the required hours for a 
minimum school day (240 minutes), the required hours for a continuation 
school day (15 hours per week), and the required hours for students 
enrolled in the various elementary and secondary school programs. 

 

B. The District Community Day School program limits the available 
instructional strategies which can be used, such as contracted study, which 
limits the program flexibility required for success. 

 

C. The separation of students in grades K-6 from students in grades 7-8 also 
creates boundaries that will be financially and/or geographically difficult. 

 

D. The cap on the number of students able to be served by small districts 
severely limits the availability for each individual school district to operate 
their own Community Day School. 

3. A student could be expelled from the District under 
Education Code 48915 and referred to either a 
Community Day School (if available), or the S. William 
Abel Academy. This student could then commit another 
violation of Education Code 48915, or simply not 
attend, and ultimately be referred to the original 
District.  If the student fails the program or commits 
another expulsion type offense, there may not be any 
viable alternative remaining. 

A. The S. William Abel Academy will develop, in collaboration with the 
Colusa County Probation Department, alternative strategies for those 
expelled students who commit another violation of Education Code 48915 
while attending the S. William Abel Academy. 

 

B. The truancy notification process will begin on students with three (3) 
unexcused absences or three (3) tardies of thirty minutes or more. 
Probation will be notified immediately for those students on probation and 
not attending school. 

 

C.  A  Student  Study  Team  may  be  established to  evaluate  the 
student’s needs and suggest alternative placements. 

 

D. When all educational options available to Colusa County have been 
exhausted, placement in a contiguous county will be explored.  Colusa 
County Office of Education will establish a reciprocal consideration 
relationship with surrounding counties to address the service gap. 



6 

 

 

 

4. Students who are expelled by the individual small 
school districts within Colusa County vary as to age, 
grade level and expulsion offenses.  The wide range of 
age, grade level and seriousness of the offense makes it 
difficult to provide appropriate programs for these 
districts. 

A. Expelled students will be referred to the S. William Abel Academy.   
Academy staff will develop alternative strategies for working with these 
students. S. William Abel will offer curriculum for grades 7-12. 

5. There are significant geographical distances between 
local small districts, thus the county operated 
Community School for districts would require either 
extensive busing, which is not financially feasible for the 
districts, or parent provided transportation, which is 
often impossible for the parents. 

A. Colusa County Transit will be available at a minimum cost to transport 
students, a school van may be utilized for transporting students depending 
on enrollment numbers, and/or parents will be responsible to transport 
their children to school. Special Education Students may access 
transportation through the IEP process. 

 

B.  Other transportation options continue to be explored. 

6. Students in Kindergarten and grades one through six 
who are expelled will have to be served by their district 
of origin. 

A. Elementary students may not be housed at the same campus as 
students in grades 7-12. Current Colusa County Office of Education 
programs for expelled students are all housed on a single site. 

 

B.  A student may possibly attend another district under a mandatory 
behavior contract, per existing inter-district agreements. 

 

C. The elementary districts will use all their local alternatives in providing 
educational programs for their expelled students. 

 

 

 

 
Process for Referral to the Colusa County Office of Education Community School 

 

When a district determines that an appropriate educational option does not exist within the district for 
an expelled pupil or otherwise at‐promise pupil, the district may refer the student to the Colusa County 
Superintendent of Schools’ community school program (S. William Abel Academy), a different district 
school, another district program, a district Community Day School (if available). It is the responsibility of  the  
district  that  communication be  maintained with  the  parent and student until enrollment in the 

Community School or other school chosen occurs. The county will review the district Rehabilitation Plan and 
referral to develop an individual learning program for each student based on their individual needs and 
circumstances. Parents will be included and expected to work cooperatively in addressing the needs of 
their children. 

 

The referring district shall provide the following documentation at the time of referral for enrollment: 
a. Completed SWAA referral form 
b. CSIS Number (California Statewide Student Identifier Number) 
c. Expulsion Rehabilitation Plan  
d. Attendance and discipline information 
e. Current transcript 



7 

 

 

f. Most recent assessment data (SBAC, ELPAC, etc.) 
g. IEP/504 Plan (if applicable) 

 
Educational Services will provide districts with progress reports and notification of a student’s change in 
residence, termination from the program or completion of requirements for graduation. 

 

Special Education 
 

Any pupil referred to S. William Abel Academy that has an active (Individual Education Plan) IEP, must present a 
copy of his/her most recent IEP upon registration. The referring district will hold a change of placement IEP 
prior to sending the pupil and invite the appropriate S. William Abel Academy Staff. At the meeting, the IEP 
team will determine how the provisions of the IEP will be implemented at S. William Abel Academy. The 
Colusa County SELPA Local Plan will be followed for Special Education students enrolled in the S. William Abel 
Academy. SELPA coordination will be necessary to ensure that the pupil’s needs can and will be addressed by 
appropriately credentialed staff. Every effort must be made to ensure compliance with PL 101476 in the event 
of a special education student expulsion. It is anticipated that S. William Abel Academy staff and CCOE SELPA 
staff will coordinate efforts to ensure continuity of IEP implementation. 

 

Revenue 
 

Revenue generated by the student ADA while in attendance at the S. William Abel Academy and any special 
one-time funds, constitute the source of funding for the school.  In the event the costs of operating 
programs that have been requested by the districts should exceed revenue generated by ADA and associated 
funds, excess may be billed back to the districts based on their share of program use and upon agreement 
between districts and county office. 

 

Districts agree to notify the county office by February 1, of the school year prior to implementing alternative 
programs of any decision that would result in a significant loss of ADA for the S. William Abel Academy. The 
notification would allow the county office to adjust staff size for the following year and present March 15 
notification as required by Ed Code. 

 

The monthly meetings of the Superintendents Council will provide a structure to facilitate dialogue between 
the Educational Services Department, S. William Abel Academy, and the districts to address curriculum 
coordination, graduation requirements, standardized testing, courses of study, and other topics of mutual 
interest. 

 

Student Violations 
 

Violation of Education Code 48915, section (C) 
 

If a student enrolled in a Colusa County Office of Education Community School program violates any of the 
following sections of Education code 48915, section (c), 

 

a) Possessing, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm. 

b) Brandishing a knife at another person. 

c) Unlawfully selling a controlled substance. 
 

d) Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault. 

e) Possession of an explosive. 

Program personnel will: 
 

➢   Refer to the SWAA Student Handbook and based on the offense, apply consequences that may 
result in contacting the police department, probation, and/or recommendation for expulsion.

https://ccoe.net/UserFiles/Servers/Server_675748/File/EdServices/Community%20School/12.%202020-2021%20Student%20Handbook.pdf


8 

 

 

➢   Inform and work with the home district to find an appropriate placement. 
 

➢   Inform the family of the option of attending a charter school in or out of the County. 
 

➢   Offer the student the option of enrolling in another program operated by the Colusa County 
Office of Education if available. 

 

Additionally, if a student enrolled in the S. William Abel Academy violates any of the following sections of 
Education code 48900, 

 

a) Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another   person. 

b) Possessed, sold or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous object. 

c) Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, or otherwise furnished, or been under the influence of, any 
controlled substance. 

 

d) Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance. 

e) Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion. 

Program personnel will: 
 

➢ Refer to the SWAA Student Handbook and based on the offense, apply consequences that may 
result in contacting the police department, probation, and/or recommendation for expulsion. 
➢ Inform and work with the home district to find an appropriate placement. 

 

➢ Inform the family of the option of attending a charter school in or out of the County. 
 

➢   Offer the student the option of enrolling in the independent study program or other school 
program operated by the Colusa County Office of Education. 

 

A student may choose to enroll in a different district, a charter or a private school at the parent’s expense. The 
different district, charter, or private school, however, is under no obligation to accept or serve the expelled 
student. 



9 

 

 

Colusa County Educational  Plan for Expelled Youth (AB922 Plan) 
 

Section 48960 of  the California Education Code requires each  County Superintendent of Schools, in 
conjunction with the superintendents of the school districts within the county, to develop a plan for providing 
educational  services to all expelled pupils in that county. It further requires that the plan be adopted by the 
Governing Board of each school district within the county and the County Board of Education.  Finally, this 
Section requires that each  county superintendent of schools, in  conjunction with  the superintendents of 
the school districts submit a triennial update to the plan. To demonstrate compliance with this legal mandate, 
the California Department of Education requires that the signatures of  both the county and  district 
superintendents be included with the plans to demonstrate that this process has occurred. 

 

Your signatures below serve to verify that your AB922 plan has been updated and approved by your boards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Michael P. West, Superintendent Date 

Colusa County Office of Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jeff Turner, Superintendent Date 
Colusa Unified School District 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Summer Shadley, Superintendent Date 
Maxwell Unified School District 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Carol Geyer, Superintendent Date 
Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Bill Cornelius, Superintendent Date 
Williams Unified School District 


	01 Jul 08 20 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	6.0 Reports from Staff
	6.2 Administrative Services
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.7 Technology Services

	8.1 June Public Hearing Minutes
	8.2 June Regular Meeting Minutes
	11.1 Supervisors of Attendance Training a

	02 Aug 12 20 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	4.1 CSBA Region 4 Representative Letter
	7/16/20 D. Patterson Letter
	CSBA Legislative Udate

	6.0 Reports from Staff
	6.2  Administrative Services
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 July Regular Meeting Minutes
	11.1 45 Day Revised Budget
	11.2 SELPA Local Plan
	11.3 Consolidated Application
	11.4 Technical Services Inventory for Disposal

	03 Sep 09 20 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	6.0 Reports from Staff
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.5 Special Education
	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 August Regular Meeting Minutes
	10.3.1 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan
	11.2 Resolution 20_21-01 Sufficiency of Textbooks

	03 Sep 14 20 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	5.1 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

	04 Oct 14 20 Board Packet
	 Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	4.2 CCBE Update
	Desired Outcomes & Agenda Items
	Task
	Who
	Date Due
	Desired Result / notes


	4.3 SSDA President Letter to Members
	4.4 2020 09 24 CDPH Letter
	4.5 CDPH Blueprint Data Chart
	6.0 Reports from Staff
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 September Public Hearing Minutes - Instructional Materials
	8.2 September Public Hearing Minutes - LCP
	8.3 September Regular Meeting Minutes
	8.4 September Special Meeting Minutes
	11.1 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85
	Page 86
	Page 87
	Page 88
	Page 89
	Page 90
	Page 91
	Page 92
	Page 93
	Page 94
	Page 95
	Page 96

	11.2  Gann Limits Resolution
	11.3 CCESP 2020-21 Public Disclosure of Agreement
	11.4 ECCOE 2020-21 Public Disclosure of Agreement
	11.5 HDV Employer Contribution Increase
	11.6 2020-21 CCOE Annual Plan for LCAP Support

	05 Nov 10 20 Board Packet
	01 Agenda
	4.1 Assembly Members Letter to CHHS Secretary Ghaly Reopening Schools
	4.2 School District Supts Letter to Newsom Common Standard
	6.0 Reports from Staff
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.6 Technology Services

	6.5.1 SELPA - October Meeting
	8.1 October Regular Meeting Minutes
	10.1.1 WCC President's College Report
	Excellence in Education Awards 2020 Yolo County Office of Education:
	Town Hall for LCC:
	Professional Development Day Activities TODAY, October 30:
	Student ID Cards:
	Class schedule is LIVE – Registration for Spring 2021 begins on November 16:
	Website Integration:
	Transfer Rates:
	UndocuAlly Activities in collaboration with Yuba College:
	Performing Arts and Culinary Arts Project:
	“Meet the Entrepreneur” Event:
	Cash for College Event:
	Desserts at the WCC Quad:
	Upcoming visits to CCC and LCC:
	Celebrating our Cultures:
	Virtual Open House hosted by Student Services

	11.1 2019-20 Financial Audit Governance Letter
	11.1 2019-20 Financial Audit Report
	11.2.1 Draft 2021 Schedule of Meetings
	11.2.2 Draft President Rotation Schedule
	11.2.3 Draft 2021 Liaison Assignments
	11.4 Williams Settlement Act Report to the County Board of Education

	06 Dec 11 20 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	2.1.1 Certificate of Appointment Trustee Area 1_Brenda Miller
	2.1.2 Certificate of Appointment Trustee Area 2_Richard Morrell
	2.1.3 Certificate of Election Trustee Area 4_Cristy Edwards
	2.3 President Rotation Schedule
	2.4 2021 Schedule of Meetings
	2.5 2021 Liaison Assignments
	9.1 November 10, 2020 Minutes
	13.1 Approve First Interim Report

	07 Jan 13 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	8.1 December 11, 2020 Minutes
	Attachment A - Acronyms
	Attachment B - Board President Rotation
	Attachment C - 2021 Schedule of Meetings
	Attachment D - Liaison Assignments

	11.1 Salary Benefits % 10 Year Analysis
	2020
	2019 
	2018
	2017
	2016
	2015
	2014
	2013
	2012
	2011

	11.1 Colusa COE 2019-20 Audit Comparative Analysis

	08 Feb 10 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1 
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	6.0 Department Reports
	6.2 Administrative Services
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.5 Special Education
	6.6 Technology

	8.1 January 13, 2021 Minutes
	10.1 MOU YCCD for Use of the Spectrum
	11.1.1 SARC - CBA 2021
	About
	A. Conditions of Learning
	B. Pupil Outcomes
	C. Engagement
	D. Other SARC Information

	11.1.2 SARC - SWAA 2021
	About
	A. Conditions of Learning
	B. Pupil Outcomes
	C. Engagement
	D. Other SARC Information

	11.2 Supervisor of Attendance
	Supervisor of Attendance Certification Training
	EC 48240
	EC 48241 

	11.3 2021-22 Year 3 Funding Application
	11.4 Sale of CCOE Williams Property
	Williams Property Map
	2014 04 03 Resolution Authorizing Sale

	11.5 Brown Act Social Media Usage

	09 Mar 10 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	6.0 Reports from Staff
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.5.1 SELPA - February Meeting
	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 February 10, 2021, Minutes
	11.1 20-21 Second Interim Report

	10 Apr 14 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	6.0 Reports From Staff
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.5 Special Education
	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 March 10, 2021, Minutes
	11.1 LCAP Federal Addendum for Title I, Part A Funds
	11.2 CCSESP Sunshine Proposal
	11.3 Superintendent's CCESP Sunshine Response

	11 May 12 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	4.3 Board Member Upcoming June Absences_Conrado
	4.4 Superintendent's Salary Review Information Forthcoming
	6.0 Reports From Staff
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.5 Special Education
	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 April 14 2021 Minutes
	8.2 Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators
	11.1 Children's Services Inventory for Disposal
	11.2 Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant
	Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan
	Plan Descriptions
	Expenditure Plan
	Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant Plan Instructions: Introduction
	Instructions: Plan Requirements
	Fiscal Requirements

	Instructions: Plan Descriptions
	A description of how parents, teachers, and school staff were involved in the development of the plan
	A description of how parents and guardians of students will be informed of the opportunities for supplemental instruction and support.
	A description of how students will be identified and the needs of students will be assessed
	A description of the LEA’s plan to provide supplemental instruction and support

	Instructions: Expenditure Plan
	A description of how these funds are being coordinated with other federal Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Funds received by the LEA




	12 Jun 09 21 Board Packet
	Agenda Pg 1
	Agenda Pg 2
	Agenda Pg 3
	6.0 Reports From Staff
	6.3 Children's Services
	6.4 Educational Services
	6.4 Second Step Evaluation Data Report
	6.6 Technology Services

	8.1 May 14 2021 Minutes
	10.3.1 2021 LCAP Performance Priorities
	10.3.2 2021-22 CCOE Annual System of Support Plan
	11.1 2021-24 CCOE LCAP
	11.2 2021-22 CCOE Budget
	Superintendents Budget Letter 2021-22.pdf
	Page 1

	Fiscal06.pdf
	Comparative Object Summary 


	11.3 Resolution 2021-03 Regarding 2021-22 Education Protection Account
	11.4 Superintendent Salaries 2021
	11.4 Superintendent Survey 2021
	11.5 Children's Services Inventory for Disposal
	11.6 ECCOE Sunshine Proposal
	11.7 Superintendent's Response to ECCOE Sunshine Proposal
	11.8 Resolution 2021-04 Colusa County One Stop Recognition
	11.9 2021-24 Colusa County Consortium Plan for Expelled Students


	6: 
	4: 6.4
	5: 
	1: 6.5.1

	2: 6.2
	1: 
	1: 10.1


	11: 
	1: 11.1
	4: 11.4
	2: 11.2
	3: 11.3
	5: 11.5
	6: 11.6
	7: 11.7
	9: 11.9

	4: 
	1: 4.1
	2: 4.2
	5: 4.5
	3: 4.3
	4: 4.4

	10: 
	3: 
	1: 10.3.1
	2: 10.3.2

	1: 
	1: 10.1.1

	4: 11.4

	5: 
	1: 5.1

	Text1: July 16, 2020    Dear President Conrado and Colusa County Board of Education Board Members, I hope this letter finds everyone healthy and safe in the midst of this COVID-19 pandemic. While it is certainly a serious challenge for all of us, it is very striking on how its impact varies so much from one community to another.The CCBE Board of Directors is holding a virtual retreat the weekend of July 31  - August 1st. A virtual retreat is a first for the CCBE and we don't yet know details of the format of the meeting or the proposed agenda. However, the reality is that we will be talking about COVID-19, the state budget, “reopening guidance” and the challenge of educating our students this fall  - how can we offer effective educational programs while keeping students, families and staff safe!We all face these challenges, but each county has their own unique circumstances. I am requesting your input regarding what are your needs that you believe CCBE can provide assistance or can advocate on your behalf in Sacramento and Washington, DC. And equally important, please let me know what actions, proposals or rules that you clearly don't want imposed upon your county, even if they may be appropriate in other communities in California. I will share your needs and your concerns at the retreat and report back to you.The amount of COVID-19 information, often contradictory, that is now bombarding school districts and county offices has become overwhelming. At the same time the general consensus is that there is no clarity on how to translate all this “guidance” to viable educational options and how to get the funding to pay for them. Personally, I am advocating multiple choices for families. Too many of our families must return to work and need as an economic necessity that their children return to school. Other families are able to make other choices such as full-time distance learning/home schooling. How best to serve our most vulnerable students is also a huge challenge.I have attached to the letter the latest legislative update from CSBA for the Delegate Assembly. While you may have read similar updates, this one provides a good overview for school and county board members.Please feel free to contact me at any time as the Region 4 County Delegate Representative. My Placer County email address is dpatterson@placercoe.k12.ca.us and my phone number is 916-801-2454. Thank you, David PattersonDavid Patterson, Ed.D.CCBE Region 4 County Delegate Representative  cc: Colusa County Superintendent of Schools Michael West             
	13: 
	1: 13.1

	Original Declaration of Need for year: 2021-2022
	Revised Declaration of Need for year: 
	Name of District: 
	District CDS Code: 
	Month for scheduled public meeting: 
	Day for the scheduled public meeting: 
	Year for the scheduled public meeting: 
	Declaration year: 
	Name of submitter: 
	Title of submitter: 
	Fax Number of submitter: 
	Telephone Number of submitter: 
	Date of Submitter: 
	Mailing Address of Submitter: 
	EMail Address of the submitter: 
	Name of County: Colusa County Office of Education
	County CDS Code: 06-10066
	Name of State Agency: 
	Name of NPSNPA: 
	County of Location: 
	8: 
	2: 8.2

	Month of the declaration: 05
	Day for the declaration: 12
	The year for the declaration: 21
	Year in which the declaration remains in force: 2022
	Name of Submitter_2: Michael P. West
	Signature of the submitter_2: 
	Title of Submitter_2: County Superintendent
	Fax number of the submitter_2: (530) 458-8054
	Telephone number of submitter_1: (530) 458-0350
	Date for the document being submitted: 
	Mailing Address of the Submitter_2: 345 5th Street, Colusa, CA  95932
	EMail address of the submitter: bramirez@ccoe.net
	Estimated number of CLAD/English Learner Authorization (applicant already holds teaching credential): 4
	Estimated number of bilingual authorization needed: 1
	List target languages for bilingual authorization: Spanish
	Estimated number of Resource Specialist(s): 4
	Estimated number of Teacher Librarian Services: 
	Estimated number of permits needed for Multiple Subject: 2
	Estimated number of permits needed for Single Subject: 2
	Estimated number of permits needed for Special Education: 5
	Total number of estimated permits: 9
	If there is no district intern program, explain: 
	Does your agency participate in a Commission-approved college or university internship program?: Yes
	If yes how many interns do you expect to have this year: 5
	If yes list each college or university with which you participate in an internship program 1: Brandman University, Chico State, National University, Sacramento State
	If yes list each college or university with which you participate in an internship program 2: 
	If yes list each college or university with which you participate in an internship program 3: 
	If no explain why you do not participate in an internship program 1: 
	If no explain why you do not participate in an internship program 2: 
	Has your agency established a District Intern program: No


